
Wednesday, November 13, 2019 Meeting Agenda  1 

ANN LAND AND BERTHA HENSCHEL MEMORIAL    
FUNDS COMMISSION 
Howard Chan, Ex Officio 
Alison Leary, President 
Jack Boniwell, Vice President  
Terilyn Cobb, Secretary 
Karen Korbs, Member 
Laurie MacIntosh, Member 
Talbott Smith, Member 
Wanda Yañez, Member 
Yousaf Zamanudin, Member 
 
 
COMMISSION STAFF 
Janelle Oishi, Program Specialist 
Maggie Le, Support Services Manager 
Joseph Cerullo, Senior Deputy City Attorney 

 
Wednesday, November 13, 2019 

9:00 a.m. 
New City Hall, 1st Floor – Council Chambers 

 
NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC 

 
You are welcomed and encouraged to participate in this meeting. Public comment is taken on items listed 
on the agenda when they are called. Public Comment on items not listed on the agenda will be heard as 
noted on the agenda. Comments on controversial items may be limited and large groups are encouraged 
to select 3-5 speakers to represent the opinion of the group. 

Notice to Lobbyists: When addressing the Commission, you must identify yourself as a lobbyist and 
announce the client/business/organization you are representing (City Code 2.15.160). 

Speaker slips are available on the City’s Website and available from staff, and should be completed 
and submitted to the Commission Clerk. 

Government Code 54950 (The Brown Act) requires that a brief description of each item to be transacted or 
discussed be posted at least 72 hours prior to a regular meeting. The City posts Agendas at City Hall as 
well as offsite meeting locations. 

The order and estimated time for Agenda items are listed for reference and may be taken in any order 
deemed appropriate by the Commission. 

The Agenda provides a general description and staff Recommendation; however, the Commission may 
take action other than what is recommended. Hard copies of the agenda and Commission material are 
available at the Youth, Parks, & Community Enrichment Department, and all written material received is 
available at the meeting for public review. 

Meeting facilities are accessible to persons with disabilities. If you require special assistance to participate 
in the meeting, notify the Commission Staff at (916) 808-1016 at least 48 hours prior to the meeting. 

Meeting Agenda  
Ann Land and Bertha Henschel 
Memorial Funds Commission  

Published by the  
Department of Youth, Parks, & Community Enrichment 

 



Wednesday, November 13, 2019 Meeting Agenda  2 

General Conduct for the Public Attending Ann Land and Bertha Henschel Memorial Funds 
Commission Meetings 
 Members of the public attending commission meetings shall observe the same rules and decorum 

applicable to the Members and staff as noted in Chapters 3 and 4 of Council Rules of Procedure. 
 Stamping of feet, whistles, yells or shouting, physically threatening conduct, and/or similar 

demonstrations are unacceptable public behavior and will be prohibited by the Sergeant-at-Arms. 
 Lobbyists must identify themselves and the client(s), business, or organization they represent 

before speaking to the Committee. 
 Members of the public wishing to provide documents to the Committee shall comply with Rule 7D of 

the Council Rules of Procedure. 
Members of the Public Addressing the Ann Land and Bertha Henschel Memorial Funds 
Commission 
 Purpose of Public Comment. The City provides opportunities for the public to address the 

Committee as a whole in order to listen to the public’s opinions regarding non-agenized matters 
within the subject matter jurisdiction of the City during Regular meetings and regarding items on the 
Agenda at all other meetings.  
 Public comments should not be addressed to individual Members nor to City officials, but 

rather to the ALBHMF Commission as a whole regarding Commission business. 
 While the public may speak their opinions on Commission business, personal attacks on 

Commission members and City officials, use of swear words, and signs or displays of 
disrespect for individuals are discouraged as they impede good communication with the 
Commission. 

 Consistent with the Brown Act, the public comment periods on the Agenda are not intended 
to be “Question and Answer” periods or conversations with the Commission and City 
officials. The limited circumstances under which Members may respond to public comments 
are set out in Rule 8D2 of the Council Rules of Procedure. 

Speaker Time Limits  
In the interest of facilitating the Committee’s conduct of the business of the City, the following time limits 
apply to members of the public (speakers) who wish to address the Committee during the meeting.   
 Matters not on the Agenda Two (2) minutes per speaker. 
 Consent Calendar Items the Consent Calendar is considered a single item, and speakers are 

therefore subject to the two (2) minute time limit for the entire Consent Calendar. Consent Calendar 
items can be pulled at a member’s request. Such pulled Consent Calendar items will be considered 
individually and up to two (2) minutes of public comment per speaker on those items will be 
permitted.  

 Discussion Calendar Items Two (2) minutes per speaker.   
Time Limits per Meeting In addition to the above time limits per item, the total amount of time any one 
individual may address the Committee at any meeting is eight (8) minutes. 
 Each speaker shall limit his/her remarks to the specified time allotment. 
 The Presiding Officer shall consistently utilize the timing system which provides speakers with 

notice of their remaining time to complete their comments. A countdown display of the allotted 
time will appear and will flash red at the end of the allotted time.  

 In the further interest of time, speakers may be asked to limit their comments to new materials 
and not repeat what a prior speaker said.  Organized groups may choose a single 
spokesperson who may speak for the group but with no increase in time. 

 Speakers shall not concede any part of their allotted time to another speaker. 
The Presiding Officer may further limit the time allotted for public comments per speaker or in total for 
the orderly conduct of the meeting and such limits shall be fairly applied  



Wednesday, November 13, 2019 Meeting Agenda  3 

AGENDA 
Wednesday, November 13, 2019 

New City Hall, 1st Floor – Council Chambers 
 

All items listed are heard and acted upon by the Ann Land and Bertha Henschel Memorial Funds 
Commission unless otherwise noted. 
 

Open Session – 9:00 a.m. 
 
Roll Call  
 
Consent Calendar   Estimated Time: 5 minutes 
All items listed under the Consent Calendar are considered and acted upon by one Motion.  
Anyone may request an item be removed for separate consideration 
 
1. Approval of the Ann Land and Bertha Henschel Memorial Funds Commission Meeting 

Minutes 
Location:  Citywide 
Recommendation:  Pass a motion approving Commission minutes for May 16, 2018 
Contact: Janelle Oishi, Program Specialist, (916) 808-1016, Youth, Parks, & Community 
Enrichment 
 

2. Site Visit Reports  
Location:  Citywide 
Recommendation:  Receive and File 
Contact: Janelle Oishi, Program Specialist, (916) 808-1016, Youth, Parks, & Community 
Enrichment 

 
Discussion Calendar   Estimated Time:  4 hours 
Discussion calendar items include an oral presentation including those recommending “receive 
and file”. 

 
3. Approve 2020 Commission Meeting Calendar 

Estimated Time:  15 Minutes 
Location: Citywide 
Recommendation: Pass a motion approving the 2020 Commission Meeting Calendar 
Contact: Janelle Oishi, Program Specialist, (916) 808-1016, Youth, Parks, & Community 
Enrichment 
 

4. Highlights of City Treasurer’s Annual Report and 2020 Funding Recommendations  
Estimated Time:  15 Minutes 
Location: Citywide 
Recommendation: Receive and File 
Contact: John Colville, City Treasurer, (916) 808-8297, City Treasurer’s Office 
 

5. 2020 Funding Allocations 
Estimated Time:  2 Hours 
Location: Citywide 
Recommendation: Pass a motion allocating funding to grant applicants for 2019 
Contact: Janelle Oishi, Program Specialist, (916) 808-1016, Youth, Parks, & Community 
Enrichment 



Wednesday, November 13, 2019 Meeting Agenda  4 

ACC Senior Services 
Active 20-30 Club of Greater Sacramento 
City of Refuge 
Community Against Sexual Harm 
First Step Communities 
Fresher Sacramento 
GRID Alternatives North Valley 
Know Corporation 
Mercy Pedalers Inc 
Middle Way Health Foundation 
My Sister’s House 
NeighborWorks Sacramento 
Next Move Homeless Services 
ReIMAGINE Mack Road Foundation 
Repairing the Breach Neighborhood Project 
River City Food Bank 
Sacramento Food Bank & Family Services 
Sacramento LGBT Community Center 
Sacramento Loaves & Fishes 
Sacramento Self-Help Housing 
Saint John’s Program for Real Change 
South Sacramento Christian Center 
South Sacramento Interfaith Partnership Food Closet 
Stanford Settlement Neighborhood Center 
The Salvation Army 
Travelers Aid Emergency Assistance Agency 
UC Davis Health Division Cardiology Heart Failure 
Women Escaping a Violent Environment 
Wellspring Women’s Center 
Women’s Civic Improvement Club 
Women’s Empowerment 
 

6. Revisions to Procedures for Awarding Grants 
Estimated Time:  30 minutes 
Location: Citywide 
Recommendation: Pass a motion revising the procedures for awarding grants 
Contact: Janelle Oishi, Program Specialist, (916) 808-1016, Youth, Parks, & Community 
Enrichment 
 

 
Public Comments - Matters Not on the Agenda 

 
 
Commission Comments, Questions, and Ideas 

 
 

Adjournment 



 
 
Meeting Date: 11/13/2019  
 
Report Type:  Consent 
 
 
 
 

 

Title:  Approval of the Ann Land and Bertha Henschel Commission Meeting Minutes  

Location:  Citywide 

Recommendation: Pass a motion approving Commission minutes for August 21, 2019. 

Contact:  Janelle Oishi, Program Specialist, (916) 808-1016, Youth, Parks, & Community Enrichment 

Presenter:  None 

Department:  Youth, Parks, & Community Enrichment 

Division:  Fiscal and Management Services 

Attachments: 

01 Description/Analysis 
02 August 21, 2019 Minutes 

 
  
Submitted By: Janelle Oishi, Program Specialist 
  

Ann Land and Bertha 
Henchel Report 

www.CityofSacramento.org  

http://www.cityofsacramento.org/


Attachment 01 – Description/Analysis 
 

Issue: Approval of Commission meeting minutes is a board requirement.  

Policy Considerations: None 
 
 Economic Impacts: None 

 Environmental Considerations: None 

 Sustainability: None 

 Commission/Committee Action: None 

Rationale for Recommendation: Approval of the minutes is required by the Commission’s bylaws.  
 
Financial Considerations: None 

 Emerging Small Business Development (ESBD): None 



Wednesday, May 15, 2019    Meeting Minutes 1  

 

 

Meeting Minutes of the 
Ann Land/Bertha Henschel Memorial Fund Commission  

Wednesday, August 21, 2019 

4:00 p.m.  
City Hall – 915 I Street – Historic City Hall, Hearing Room 201 

 
 
Open Session – 4:07 p.m. 

 

Roll Call 
 

The meeting was called to order at 4:07 p.m. 
 

Present: Commissioner Leary, Cobb, Boniwell, MacIntosh, Yanez, Zamanudin, Commission 
Staff Janelle Oishi 

 
 

Consent Calendar  
 

1. Approval of the Ann Land and Bertha Henschel Commission Meeting Minutes 
Location:  Citywide 
Recommendation:  Pass a motion approving Commission minutes for May 15, 2019,  
Contact:  Janelle Oishi, Program Specialist, (916) 808-1016, Youth, Parks, & Community 
Enrichment 
 
Action: Pass a motion approving Commission minutes for May 15, 2019. Motion to add 
descriptives “robust” and “thoughtful” to the statement of the discussion. 
 
Moved/Seconded: Yanez/Boniwell 
Motion carried: Yes-5, Abstain-Cobb 

 
Discussion Calendar 
 

2. Nomination and Election of Vice President 
Location: Citywide 
Contact: Janelle Oishi, Program Specialist, (916) 808-1016, Youth, Parks, & Community    
Enrichment 
 
Action: Pass a motion approving nomination and election of Vice President Jack Boniwell. 
 
Moved/Seconded: MacIntosh/Cobb 



Wednesday, May 15, 2019    Meeting Minutes 2  

Motion carried: Unanimous 
 

3. Nonprofit Organizations & Grantmaking Overview 
Location: Citywide 
Contact: Michael Allyn, Faculty, (916) 435-4123, Impact Foundry 
 
Michael Allyn, faculty at the Impact Foundry provided a presentation to the Commission 
regarding standardized grantmaking processes and application questions. Recommendations 
included providing additional space for question narratives; revising questions to better reflect 
information required to gain an understanding of the organization, the population they serve, 
and how their services meet the goals of the grant; reduce redundancies between the 
application questions and required attachments, eliminate semi-annual reporting to reduce the 
administrative impact on agencies; consider making larger grants to a smaller group of 
applicants – most organizations fund between 10-50% of grant applicants; and develop a 
weighted system of measuring applicants using point scales assigned to each application 
question. During the discussion, additional comments included suggestions to include 
language that funding is restricted to funding basic human needs, and having a question on 
the application on why the services meets the purpose of the fund to better indicate if funds 
are allocated to organizations who are aligned with the fund’s purpose rather than funding all 
applicants. 
 

4. Review and Comment on ad hoc committee Recommendations for the Annual Funding 
Process and Provide Direction to Staff 
Location: Citywide 
Contact: Janelle Oishi, Program Specialist, (916) 808-1016, Youth, Parks, & Community    
Enrichment 
 
Staff provided a brief overview of ad hoc committee recommendations which included the 
recommendation for the Commission to vote on all recommendations during the November 
meeting. Based on responses to the presentation from the Impact Foundry, the President 
directed staff to schedule an ad hoc committee meeting to incorporate recommendations from 
the presentation; the President also opened discussion for the addition of another 
Commissioner to join the ad hoc committee; Commissioner Zamanudin will join the committee. 
 

5. 2020 Grant Application Template 
Location: Citywide 
Contact: Janelle Oishi, Program Specialist, (916) 808-1016, Youth, Parks, & Community    
Enrichment 
 
Action: Pass a motion approving the 2020 grant application. 

 
Moved/Seconded: Leary/Yanez 
Motion Carried: Yes-5, Abstain-MacIntosh 
 

6. Semi-Annual Reports (January – June 2019) 
Location: Citywide 
Contact: Janelle Oishi, Program Specialist, (916) 808-1016, Youth, Parks, & Community    
Enrichment 
 



Wednesday, May 15, 2019    Meeting Minutes 3  

All Semi-Annual Reports were submitted with the exception of the Jewish Federation of the 
Sacramento Region. The agency was awarded funding, signed a contract, and received first 
payment. When the Semi-Annual Report was requested, the agency indicated they declined 
the award and will refund the payment. Discussion was held regarding the report from First 
Step Communities; Commissioners questioned if the use of the funds aligned with the intent of 
the award. The President directed staff to follow up with the City Attorney to determine if the 
agency is within the bounds of their contract to spend funds as indicated in the Semi-Annual 
Report. 
 

7. Assignment of 2019 Site Visits 
Location: Citywide 
Contact: Janelle Oishi, Program Specialist, (916) 808-1016, Youth, Parks, & Community    
Enrichment 
 
Action: Commission Members were selected as per the below table to visit the 2019 grant 
recipient organizations; all site visit reports will be submitted to Commission staff by October 
1, 2019. 
 
Agency Commissioner 
ReIMAGINE Mack Road Foundation Korbs 
River City Food Bank Zamanudin 
The Salvation Army Zamanudin 
Wellspring Women’s Center Korbs 
Women’s Empowerment Korbs 

 
 

Moved/Seconded: Leary/Boniwell 
Motion Carried: Unanimous 
 
 

8. Site Visit Reports 
Location: Citywide 
Contact: Janelle Oishi, Program Specialist, (916) 808-1016, Youth, Parks, & Community    
Enrichment 
 
Site Visit Reports were reviewed by the Commission. Commentary on the reports included a 
concern that the report form does not print as intended. Staff was directed to determine if the 
reports could change to an online form. 

 
 

Public Comments - Matters Not on the Agenda 
 

None 
 
 
Commission Comments, Questions, and Ideas 

 
Commissioners sought clarification on the requirement of recusal in a situation where personal 
donations are made to an organization that may apply for ALBHMF grant funds. City Attorney 
Cerullo will provide confirmation to the Commissioners’ questions. 



Wednesday, May 15, 2019    Meeting Minutes 4  

 
 

Adjournment 
 

Meeting was adjourned at 5:25 p.m. 
 

Respectfully submitted: 
 
 
 

Terilyn Cobb, Secretary  
Ann Land/Bertha 

Henschel Memorial Fund Commission 
 

Approved by: 
 
 
 



 
 
Meeting Date: 11/13/2019  
 
Report Type:  Consent 
 
 
 
 

 

Title:  Site Visit Reports 

Location:  Citywide 

Recommendation: Receive and File 

Contact:  Janelle Oishi, Program Specialist, (916) 808-1016, Youth, Parks, & Community Enrichment 

Presenter:  Not Applicable 

Department:  Youth, Parks, & Community Enrichment 

Division:  Fiscal and Management Services 

Attachments: 
01 Description/Analysis 
02 2019 Site Visit Reports (January – June 2019) 

 
 
  
Submitted By: Janelle Oishi, Program Specialist 
  

Ann Land and Bertha 
Henchel Report 

www.CityofSacramento.org  

http://www.cityofsacramento.org/


Attachment 01 – Description/Analysis 

Issue: Review site visitations (attachment 2). Commissioner assignments for each 2019 grant 
recipient organization were assigned and approved during the February 20, 2019 Commission 
meeting. All site visit reports were reviewed during the August 21, 2019 Commission meeting except 
for the highlighted items below. Attached are the completed site visit reports. 

Grant Recipient Organization Commissioner 
Assigned for Site 

Visit 
Asian Community Center of Sacramento Valley, Inc. DBA ACC 
Senior Services 

Talbott Smith 

ReIMAGINE Mack Road Foundation Karen Korbs 
Repairing The Breach Neighborhood Project Laurie MacIntosh 
River City Food Bank Yousaf Zamanudin 
Sacramento LGBT Community Center Talbott Smith 
Sacramento Self-help Housing Laurie MacIntosh 
Saint John’s Program for Real Change Talbott Smith 
Stanford Settlement Neighborhood Center Talbott Smith 
The Salvation Army Yousaf Zamanudin 
Wellspring Women’s Center Karen Korbs 
Women’s Empowerment Karen Korbs 

 

 Economic Impacts: None 

 Environmental Considerations: None 

 Sustainability: None 

 Commission/Committee Action: None 

Rationale for Recommendation: Site visitations to grant recipients is required by the Commission’s 
bylaws. 
 
Financial Considerations: None 

 Emerging Small Business Development (ESBD): None 



1 | P a g e  
 

 

Ann Land and Bertha Henschel Memorial Fund Commission 
915 I Street, 3rd Floor, Sacramento, CA 95814 

2019 Recipient Agency On-Site Visit Questionnaire 

 
Date of Visit  

    
Commission Member Conducting Visit Talbott Smith 

 
Agency Asian Community Center of Sacramento Valley, Inc. DBA ACC Senior 

Services 
 

Address 7334 Park City Drive Sacramento CA 95831 
 

Contact Name Virginia Wieneke 
  

Phone (916) 393-9026 
 

Email vwieneke@accsv.org 
 

Grant Amount $6,000 
 

Grant Use Transportation 
 

1. How are the grant funds spent? 

 

 

 
 



2 | P a g e  
 

2. How do you identify the indigent and destitute population that you serve? 

 

 

3. Who else provides funding for the same services that we fund?  Are there any changes in other funding 
sources? 

 

 

 

 



3 | P a g e  
 

4. Do you find the Annual Funding process burdensome? Are there any recommendations you would like to 
make to improve the annual funding process? 

 



1 | P a g e

Ann Land and Bertha Henschel Memorial Fund Commission 
915 I Street, 3rd Floor, Sacramento, CA 95814 

2019 Recipient Agency On-Site Visit Questionnaire 

Date of Visit  

Commission Member Conducting Visit Karen Korbs 

Agency ReIMAGINE Mack Road Foundation 

Address 75 Quinta Court Ste.D  Sacramento CA 95823 

Contact Name Marilyn Mann 

Phone (916) 282-3203

Email marilyn.mann@mackroadpartnership.com 

Grant Amount $4,000 

Grant Use Food 

1. How are the grant funds spent?



2 | P a g e

2. How do you identify the indigent and destitute population that you serve?

3. Who else provides funding for the same services that we fund?  Are there any changes in other funding
sources?



3 | P a g e

4. Do you find the Annual Funding process burdensome? Are there any recommendations you would like to
make to improve the annual funding process?



1 | P a g e  
 

 

Ann Land and Bertha Henschel Memorial Fund Commission 
915 I Street, 3rd Floor, Sacramento, CA 95814 

2019 Recipient Agency On-Site Visit Questionnaire 

 
Date of Visit  

    
Commission Member Conducting Visit Laurie MacIntosh 

 
Agency Repairing The Breach Neighborhood Project 

 
Address 2130 4th St  Sacramento CA 95818 

 
Contact Name Mae McNeil 

  
Phone (916) 947-8252 

 
Email maereader@aol.com 

 
Grant Amount $6,000 

 
Grant Use Food, Shelter 

 

1. How are the grant funds spent? 

 

 

 

  



2 | P a g e  
 

 

2. How do you identify the indigent and destitute population that you serve? 

 

 

3. Who else provides funding for the same services that we fund?  Are there any changes in other funding 
sources? 

 

 

 



3 | P a g e  
 

4. Do you find the Annual Funding process burdensome? Are there any recommendations you would like to 
make to improve the annual funding process? 

 



1 | P a g e

Ann Land and Bertha Henschel Memorial Fund Commission 
915 I Street, 3rd Floor, Sacramento, CA 95814 

2019 Recipient Agency On-Site Visit Questionnaire 

Date of Visit  

Commission Member Conducting Visit Yousaf Zamanudin 

Agency River City Food Bank 

Address 1800 28th Street  Sacramento CA 95816 

Contact Name Eileen Thomas 

Phone (916) 834-6360

Email ethomas@rivercityfoodbank.org 

Grant Amount $7,600 

Grant Use Food 

1. How are the grant funds spent?



2 | P a g e

2. How do you identify the indigent and destitute population that you serve?

3. Who else provides funding for the same services that we fund?  Are there any changes in other funding
sources?



3 | P a g e

4. Do you find the Annual Funding process burdensome? Are there any recommendations you would like to
make to improve the annual funding process?



1 | P a g e

Ann Land and Bertha Henschel Memorial Fund Commission 
915 I Street, 3rd Floor, Sacramento, CA 95814 

2019 Recipient Agency On-Site Visit Questionnaire 

Date of Visit  

Commission Member Conducting Visit Talbott Smith 

Agency Sacramento LGBT Community Center 

Address 1927 L St.  Sacramento CA 95811 

Contact Name Koby Rodriguez or Jesse Archer 

Phone (415) 422-0185

Email koby.rodriguez@saccenter.org  or jesse.archer@saccenter.org 

Grant Amount $3,600 

Grant Use Food 

1. How are the grant funds spent?



2 | P a g e  
 

 

2. How do you identify the indigent and destitute population that you serve? 

 

 

3. Who else provides funding for the same services that we fund?  Are there any changes in other funding 
sources? 

 

 

 



3 | P a g e  
 

4. Do you find the Annual Funding process burdensome? Are there any recommendations you would like to 
make to improve the annual funding process? 

 



1 | P a g e  
 

 

Ann Land and Bertha Henschel Memorial Fund Commission 
915 I Street, 3rd Floor, Sacramento, CA 95814 

2019 Recipient Agency On-Site Visit Questionnaire 

 
Date of Visit  

    
Commission Member Conducting Visit Laurie MacIntosh 

 
Agency Sacramento Self-help Housing 

 
Address 1250 Sutterville Rd Suite #260 Sacramento CA 95822  Sacramento  CA 

95383 
 

Contact Name Derek Corea 
  

Phone (440) 759-5797 
 

Email dcorea@sacselfhelp.org 
 

Grant Amount $1,800 
 

Grant Use Shelter 
 

1. How are the grant funds spent? 

 

 

 
 



2 | P a g e  
 

2. How do you identify the indigent and destitute population that you serve? 

 

 

3. Who else provides funding for the same services that we fund?  Are there any changes in other funding 
sources? 

 

 

 

 



3 | P a g e  
 

4. Do you find the Annual Funding process burdensome? Are there any recommendations you would like to 
make to improve the annual funding process? 

 



1 | P a g e

Ann Land and Bertha Henschel Memorial Fund Commission 
915 I Street, 3rd Floor, Sacramento, CA 95814 

2019 Recipient Agency On-Site Visit Questionnaire 

Date of Visit  

Commission Member Conducting Visit Talbott Smith 

Agency Saint John's Program for Real Change 

Address 8401 Jackson Rd. Sacramento CA CA 95628 

Contact Name Sue Cawdrey 

Phone (916) 453-1482

Email scawdrey@saintjohnsprogram.org 

Grant Amount $9,000 

Grant Use Food 

1. How are the grant funds spent?



2 | P a g e  
 

 

2. How do you identify the indigent and destitute population that you serve? 

 

 

3. Who else provides funding for the same services that we fund?  Are there any changes in other funding 
sources? 

 

 

 



3 | P a g e  
 

4. Do you find the Annual Funding process burdensome? Are there any recommendations you would like to 
make to improve the annual funding process? 

 



1 | P a g e  
 

 

Ann Land and Bertha Henschel Memorial Fund Commission 
915 I Street, 3rd Floor, Sacramento, CA 95814 

2019 Recipient Agency On-Site Visit Questionnaire 

 
Date of Visit  

    
Commission Member Conducting Visit Talbott Smith 

 
Agency Stanford Settlement Neighborhood Center 

 
Address 450 West El Camino Ave.  Sacramento CA 95833 

 
Contact Name Julie Rhoten 

  
Phone (916) 927-1303 

 
Email julie@stanfordsettlement.org 

 
Grant Amount $8,200 

 
Grant Use Food 

 

1. How are the grant funds spent? 

 

 

 

  



2 | P a g e  
 

 

2. How do you identify the indigent and destitute population that you serve? 

 

 

3. Who else provides funding for the same services that we fund?  Are there any changes in other funding 
sources? 

 

 

 



3 | P a g e  
 

4. Do you find the Annual Funding process burdensome? Are there any recommendations you would like to 
make to improve the annual funding process? 

 



1 | P a g e

Ann Land and Bertha Henschel Memorial Fund Commission 
915 I Street, 3rd Floor, Sacramento, CA 95814 

2019 Recipient Agency On-Site Visit Questionnaire 

Date of Visit  

Commission Member Conducting Visit Yousaf Zamanudin 

Agency The Salvation Army 

Address 2550 Alhambra Boulevard Sacramento CA 95817 

Contact Name Jo Anne Bucsko 

Phone (916) 469-4639

Email Joanne.bucsko@usw.salvationarmy.org 

Grant Amount $6,100 

Grant Use Food 

1. How are the grant funds spent?



2 | P a g e

2. How do you identify the indigent and destitute population that you serve?

3. Who else provides funding for the same services that we fund?  Are there any changes in other funding
sources?



3 | P a g e

4. Do you find the Annual Funding process burdensome? Are there any recommendations you would like to
make to improve the annual funding process?



1 | P a g e

Ann Land and Bertha Henschel Memorial Fund Commission 
915 I Street, 3rd Floor, Sacramento, CA 95814 

2019 Recipient Agency On-Site Visit Questionnaire 

Date of Visit  

Commission Member Conducting Visit Karen Korbs 

Agency Wellspring Women's Center 

Address 3414 4th Avenue  Sacramento CA 95817 

Contact Name Genelle Smith 

Phone (916) 454-9688

Email genelle.wellspring@comcast.net 

Grant Amount $8,000 

Grant Use Transportation 

1. How are the grant funds spent?



2 | P a g e  
 

 

2. How do you identify the indigent and destitute population that you serve? 

 

 

3. Who else provides funding for the same services that we fund?  Are there any changes in other funding 
sources? 

 

 

 



3 | P a g e  
 

4. Do you find the Annual Funding process burdensome? Are there any recommendations you would like to 
make to improve the annual funding process? 

 



1 | P a g e

Ann Land and Bertha Henschel Memorial Fund Commission 
915 I Street, 3rd Floor, Sacramento, CA 95814 

2019 Recipient Agency On-Site Visit Questionnaire 

Date of Visit  

Commission Member Conducting Visit Karen Korbs 

Agency Women's Empowerment 

Address 1590 North A Street  Sacramento CA 95811 

Contact Name Lisa Culp 

Phone (916) 669-2307

Email lisa@womens-empowerment.org 

Grant Amount $3,000 

Grant Use Food, Utilities, Transportation 
Healthcare 

1. How are the grant funds spent?



2 | P a g e

2. How do you identify the indigent and destitute population that you serve?

3. Who else provides funding for the same services that we fund?  Are there any changes in other funding
sources?

4. Do you find the Annual Funding process burdensome? Are there any recommendations you would like to
make to improve the annual funding process?



3 | P a g e  
 

 

 



 
 
 
Meeting Date: 11/13/2019  
 
Report Type: Discussion 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

Title:  Approve 2020 Commission Meeting Calendar 

Location:  Citywide 

Recommendation: Pass a motion approving the 2020 Commission Meeting Calendar     

Contact:  Janelle Oishi, Program Specialist, (916) 808-1016, Youth, Parks, & Community Enrichment 

Presenter:  Janelle Oishi, Program Specialist, (916) 808-1016, Youth, Parks, & Community 
Enrichment 

Department:  Youth, Parks, & Community Enrichment 

Division:  Fiscal and Management Services 

Attachments: 
01 Description/Analysis 
02 2020 Commission Meeting Calendar 

 
  
Submitted By: Janelle Oishi, Program Specialist 

 
 

Ann Land and Bertha 
Henschel Memorial Funds 

Commission Report 
www.CityofSacramento.org  

http://www.cityofsacramento.org/


 
Attachment 01 – Description/Analysis 
 

Issue: The proposed 2020 Meeting Calendar will reserve Historic City Hall Chambers and New City 
Hall Council Chambers as the locations of four Ann Land and Bertha Henschel Memorial Funds 
Commission Meetings during the 2020 calendar year.  

Policy Considerations: Not Applicable 

 Economic Impacts: Not Applicable 

 Environmental Considerations: Not Applicable 

 Sustainability: Not Applicable 

 Commission/Committee Action: Not Applicable 

Rationale for Recommendation: Sacramento City Code section 2.64.100 (Meetings-Rules and 
Regulations) provides as follows:  

The Ann Land and Bertha Henschel Memorial Funds Commission shall hold regular public 
meetings at least once every three months, at the regular place of business which shall be 
assigned to it by the city council and shall adopt rules and regulations for its government and 
for the performance of its duties. 

Financial Considerations: Not Applicable 

 Local Business Enterprise (LBE): Not Applicable 



.
Meeting Date

Holidays

 JANUARY  FEBRUARY  MARCH 

Sun Mon Tue Wed Thur Fri Sat Sun Mon Tue Wed Thur Fri Sat Sun Mon Tue Wed Thur Fri Sat

1 2 3 4 1 1 2 3 4 5 6 7
5 6 7 8 9 10 11 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 8 9 10 11 12 13 14

12 13 14 15 16 17 18 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 15 16 17 18 19 20 21
19 20 21 22 23 24 25 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 22 23 24 25 26 27 28
26 27 28 29 30 31 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 29 30 31

 APRIL  MAY  JUNE 

Sun Mon Tue Wed Thur Fri Sat Sun Mon Tue Wed Thur Fri Sat Sun Mon Tue Wed Thur Fri Sat

1 2 3 4 1 2 1 2 3 4 5 6
5 6 7 8 9 10 11 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 7 8 9 10 11 12 13

12 13 14 15 16 17 18 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 14 15 16 17 18 19 20
19 20 21 22 23 24 25 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 21 22 23 24 25 26 27
26 27 28 29 30 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 28 29 30

31

 JULY  AUGUST  SEPTEMBER 

Sun Mon Tue Wed Thur Fri Sat Sun Mon Tue Wed Thur Fri Sat Sun Mon Tue Wed Thur Fri Sat

1 2 3 4 1 1 2 3 4 5
5 6 7 8 9 10 11 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 6 7 8 9 10 11 12

12 13 14 15 16 17 18 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 13 14 15 16 17 18 19
19 20 21 22 23 24 25 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 20 21 22 23 24 25 26
26 27 28 29 30 31 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 27 28 29 30

30 31
 OCTOBER  NOVEMBER  DECEMBER 

Sun Mon Tue Wed Thur Fri Sat Sun Mon Tue Wed Thur Fri Sat Sun Mon Tue Wed Thur Fri Sat

1 2 3 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 1 2 3 4 5
4 5 6 7 8 9 10 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 6 7 8 9 10 11 12

11 12 13 14 15 16 17 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 13 14 15 16 17 18 19
18 19 20 21 22 23 24 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 20 21 22 23 24 25 26
25 26 27 28 29 30 31 29 30 27 28 29 30 31

Approved TBD

Meetings are subject to cancellations due to lack of quorum.

Meeting Frequency: Quarterly, 3rd Wednesday of February, May, August, with the 
exception of the November Annual Funding Meeting. 
Meeting Location: Historic City Hall Chambers, with the exception of the 
November Annual Funding Meeting - New City Hall, Council Chambers.

Ann Land and Bertha 
Henschel Memorial 
Funds Commission

2020 Meeting Calendar

(916) 808-7200 www.cityofsacramento.org/clerk clerk@cityofsacramento.org



 
 
Meeting Date: 11/13/2019  
 
Report Type:  Discussion 
 
 
 
 

 

Title:  Highlights of the City Treasurer’s Annual Report and 2020 Funding Recommendations 

Location:  Citywide 

Recommendation: Receive and File 

Contact:  John Colville, City Treasurer, (916) 808-8297, City Treasurer’s Office 

Presenter:  John Colville, City Treasurer, (916) 808-8297, City Treasurer’s Office 

Department:  Office of the City Treasurer 

Division:  N/A 

Attachments: 

01 Description/Analysis 
02 Ann Land and Bertha Henschel Endowment Fund Annual Investment Report 

 
  
Submitted By: John Colville, City Treasurer 
  

Ann Land and Bertha 
Henchel Report 

www.CityofSacramento.org  

http://www.cityofsacramento.org/


Attachment 01 – Description/Analysis 
 

Issue: The City Treasurer is the asset manager of all moneys received for the Ann Land and Bertha 
Henschel Memorial Fund Endowment and is responsible for recommending the dollar amount to be 
allocated on an annual basis for the Commission’s annual funding meeting. 

Policy Considerations: None 
 
 Economic Impacts: None 

 Environmental Considerations: None 

 Sustainability: None 

 Commission/Committee Action: None 

Rationale for Recommendation: Sacramento City Code Chapter 2.64.090 City Treasurer asset 
manager of money received by commission states: The City Treasurer shall be the asset manager of 
all moneys received under this chapter. (Prior code § 60.06.032). 
 
Financial Considerations: $150,000 can be expended, per Commission direction, to assist the poor, 
indigent and needy. 

 Emerging Small Business Development (ESBD): None 



 

 

 

Ann Land/Bertha Henschel Endowment Fund 
Annual Investment Report 
 

June 30, 2019 
 

FY 2019 

Office of the City Treasurer - City of Sacramento 

John Colville, City Treasurer 
 FY 2019 

 

 

http://portal.cityofsacramento.org/CityTreasurer


 
 
 
 
 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

            

 

 

                     PAGE 

 

  INTRODUCTION, STRATEGY & OBJECTIVES ..........................................................................3 

    

 PORTFOLIO SUMMARY ................................................................................................................4 

 

  PORTFOLIO APPRAISAL ...............................................................................................................6 

 

  PERFORMANCE HISTORY ............................................................................................................9 

 

  PERFORMANCE BY ASSET CLASS @ MARKET ......................................................................10 

 

  PERFORMANCE BY ASSET CLASS @ COST .............................................................................11 

 

  PURCHASES/SALES AND GAINS/LOSSES .................................................................................12 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 2 of 13



 

INTRODUCTION 

 

William Land donated $271,720 to the City for the poor, indigent and needy citizens of Sacramento in 1914.  Bertha Henschel and several 

others donated $278,000 in 1953.  As such, the original bequeaths totaling $549,720 are to remain in perpetuity, and all income derived from 

these funds are to be paid for the stated purpose.  Additionally, should the book value of these funds ever fall below the original principal 

amount, investment income shall be retained in the corpus until it is reestablished to the original amount. 

 

These funds are distinct and separate trust funds with common goals.  However, for purposes of investment management, they are managed 

collectively and reported separately.  Ann Land investments approximate 25% of the assets and Bertha Henschel investments approximate 

75% of the assets. 

 

The Ann Land-Bertha Henschel Memorial Funds Commission ("the Commission") was created and exists pursuant to the provisions of 

Sacramento City Code.  The Commission consists of eight members who are appointed by Mayor and Council. The powers and duties of 

the Commission include the disbursement of the income of the funds.  The City Treasurer by code is designated with the authority and 

responsibility for the investment of the funds. 

 

 

STRATEGY 

 

• Adhere to prudent investment practices to provide for the preservation and growth of principal; and 

 

• Permit the Ann Land and Bertha Henschel Memorial Commission to prudently maximize income payments to assist the poor, 

indigent and needy. 

 

 

OBJECTIVES 

 

• Earn a cash rate of return from investments such that, when added to the indigent fund balance, at least $110,000-140,000 can 

be expended, per Commission direction, to assist the poor, indigent and needy; and 

 

• Provide for moderate growth of principal and income. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 3 of 13



City of Sacramento
PORTFOLIO SUMMARY

Ann Land/Bertha Henschel Endowment Fund
June 30, 2019

Pct. Cur. Est.Annual
Security Type Total Cost Market Value Assets Yield Income

Fixed Income
CORPORATE BONDS

CONSUMER 
DISCRETIONARY

200,071 217,295 5.1 3.7 8,125

FINANCIAL 232,815 258,440 6.1 4.6 11,825
HEALTHCARE 99,438 108,310 2.6 3.6 3,850
TRANSPORTATION 200,770 217,528 5.1 3.6 7,900

CORPORATE BONDS 733,094 801,573 18.9 4.0 31,700

Accrued Interest 5,090 0.1
733,094 806,664 19.0 4.0 31,700

Equities
COMMON STOCK

INDUSTRIALS 180,451 403,478 9.5 2.5 10,018
COMMUNICATION 
SERVICES

213,257 241,679 5.7 5.0 12,043

CONSUMER 
DISCRETIONARY

30,938 124,596 2.9 2.2 2,784

CONSUMER STAPLES 254,027 443,580 10.4 3.9 17,517
ENERGY 250,865 268,188 6.3 5.5 14,680
FINANCIAL 175,347 252,135 5.9 3.8 9,457
HEALTHCARE 232,269 485,715 11.4 3.0 14,700
REAL ESTATE 13,788 15,848 0.4 3.3 528
UTILITIES 199,424 341,697 8.0 3.5 12,085
PASSIVE INDEX 617,809 636,196 15.0 4.4 28,129

COMMON STOCK 2,168,175 3,213,112 75.7 3.8 121,940

AMERICAN DEPOSITORY RECEIPTS
CONSUMER STAPLES 145,534 73,366 1.7 7.5 5,479
ENERGY 62,404 62,550 1.5 5.9 3,660

Page 4 of 13



City of Sacramento
PORTFOLIO SUMMARY

Ann Land/Bertha Henschel Endowment Fund
June 30, 2019

Pct. Cur. Est.Annual
Security Type Total Cost Market Value Assets Yield Income

HEALTHCARE 39,174 48,024 1.1 5.0 2,395
AMERICAN 
DEPOSITORY 
RECEIPTS

247,112 183,940 4.3 6.3 11,534

2,415,287 3,397,053 80.0 3.9 133,474

Cash and Equiv.
CASH AND 
EQUIVALENTS

42,505 42,505 1.0 2.7 1,163

42,505 42,505 1.0 2.7 1,163

TOTAL PORTFOLIO 3,190,885 4,246,221 100.0 3.9 166,338

Fixed Income
19%

Equities
80%

Cash and 
Equivalents

1%

Actual Asset Allocation

Page 5 of 13



City of Sacramento
PORTFOLIO APPRAISAL 

Ann Land/Bertha Henschel Endowment Fund
June 30, 2019

Call
Security Unit Total Market Accrued Market Value Pct. Cur. Bond Put

Quantity Symbol Security Cost Cost Price Value Interest + Accrd. Int. Assets Yield S & P Moody Status Date

CASH AND EQUIVALENTS
divacc Dividend Accrual 6,469 6,469 6,469 0.15 4.00
miscintrec Misc Interest Receivable 10 10 10 0.00 1.75
PoolA Pool A Cash 36,025 36,025 36,025 0.85 2.51

42,505 42,505 42,505 1.00 2.74

CORPORATE BONDS
CONSUMER DISCRETIONARY

100,000 609207am7 Mondelez Intl Inc 99.97 99,970 108.30 108,304 619 108,922 2.55 3.81 BBB Baa1 02-07-28
4.125% Due 05-07-28

100,000 855244ar0 Starbucks Corp 100.10 100,101 108.99 108,991 511 109,502 2.57 3.67 BBB+ Baa1 08-15-28
4.000% Due 11-15-28

200,071 217,295 1,130 218,424 5.12 3.74

FINANCIAL
60,000 126117ae0 CNA Financial Corp 98.20 58,921 117.28 70,369 556 70,925 1.66 6.18 BBB+ Baa2

7.250% Due 11-15-23
100,000 49326eeg4 Keycorp Medium Term Nts Be 99.31 99,312 108.83 108,832 695 109,527 2.57 3.77 BBB+ Baa1

4.100% Due 04-30-28
75,000 269246bs2 E Trade Financial Corp 99.44 74,582 105.65 79,239 103 79,342 1.87 4.26 BBB Baa2 03-20-28

4.500% Due 06-20-28
232,815 258,440 1,354 259,794 6.09 4.58

HEALTHCARE
100,000 91324pdk5 Unitedhealth Group Inc 99.44 99,438 108.31 108,310 171 108,481 2.55 3.55 A+ A3

3.850% Due 06-15-28

TRANSPORTATION
200,000 907818ey0 Union Pacific Corp 100.38 200,770 108.76 217,528 2,436 219,964 5.13 3.63 A- Baa1 06-10-28

3.950% Due 09-10-28
733,094 801,573 5,090 806,664 18.90 3.95

COMMON STOCK
INDUSTRIALS

350 ba Boeing Co Com 139.52 48,832 364.01 127,403 127,403 3.00 2.26 A+
700 cat Caterpillar Inc Del Com 73.80 51,658 136.29 95,403 95,403 2.25 3.02 B+
300 lmt Lockheed Martin Corp 160.06 48,017 363.54 109,062 109,062 2.57 2.42 A
550 utx United Technologies 58.08 31,944 130.20 71,610 71,610 1.69 2.26 A

180,451 403,478 403,478 9.51 2.48

COMMUNICATION SERVICES
2,950 t At&t Inc 39.71 117,141 33.51 98,854 98,854 2.33 6.09 B
2,500 vz Verizon Communications Inc 38.45 96,116 57.13 142,825 142,825 3.37 4.22 B

213,257 241,679 241,679 5.70 4.98

CONSUMER DISCRETIONARY
600 mcd Mcdonald's Corp 51.56 30,938 207.66 124,596 124,596 2.94 2.23 A

Page 6 of 13



City of Sacramento
PORTFOLIO APPRAISAL 

Ann Land/Bertha Henschel Endowment Fund
June 30, 2019

Call
Security Unit Total Market Accrued Market Value Pct. Cur. Bond Put

Quantity Symbol Security Cost Cost Price Value Interest + Accrd. Int. Assets Yield S & P Moody Status Date

CONSUMER STAPLES
2,500 mo Altria Group Inc 26.65 66,630 47.35 118,375 118,375 2.79 7.10 A-
1,600 ko Coca Cola Co Com 30.20 48,320 50.92 81,472 81,472 1.92 3.14 B+
1,400 cl Colgate Palmolive Co Com 30.86 43,201 71.67 100,338 100,338 2.37 2.40 A-

500 kmb Kimberly Clark Corp 110.30 55,150 133.28 66,640 66,640 1.57 3.09 B+
700 pg Procter & Gamble Co 58.18 40,726 109.65 76,755 76,755 1.81 2.72 A

254,027 443,580 443,580 10.46 3.95

ENERGY
2,500 amlp Alps Etf Tr Alerian Mlp 16.03 40,075 9.85 24,625 24,625 0.58 7.83

500 cvx Chevron Corporation 58.54 29,271 124.44 62,220 62,220 1.47 3.83 B
984 enb Enbridge Inc Com 20.87 20,537 36.08 35,503 35,503 0.84 6.14 B+

3,000 kmi Kinder Morgan Inc Del Com 41.48 124,426 20.88 62,640 62,640 1.48 4.79 B
1,300 mmp Magellan Midstream Prt Com 

Unit Rp Lp
28.12 36,555 64.00 83,200 83,200 1.96 6.24

250,865 268,188 268,188 6.32 5.47

FINANCIAL
3,750 bx Blackstone Group Inc 35.62 133,565 44.42 166,575 166,575 3.93 4.66
3,100 xlf Select Sector Spdr Tr Sbi Int-Finl 13.48 41,782 27.60 85,560 85,560 2.02 1.98

175,347 252,135 252,135 5.94 3.75

HEALTHCARE
2,000 bmy Bristol Myers Squibb Com 20.38 40,765 45.35 90,700 90,700 2.14 3.62 B-
1,000 jnj Johnson & Johnson 62.22 62,224 139.28 139,280 139,280 3.28 2.73 A-
1,500 mrk Merck & Co Inc (new) 41.75 62,629 83.85 125,775 125,775 2.97 2.62 B-
3,000 pfe Pfizer Inc 22.22 66,651 43.32 129,960 129,960 3.06 3.32 B+

232,269 485,715 485,715 11.45 3.03

REAL ESTATE
431 xlre Select Sector Spdr Tr Rl Est Sel 

Sec
31.99 13,788 36.77 15,848 15,848 0.37 3.33

UTILITIES
1,000 aee Ameren Corp Com 50.04 50,043 75.11 75,110 75,110 1.77 2.53 B
1,000 duk Duke Energy Corp New Com 

New
53.56 53,560 88.24 88,240 88,240 2.08 4.28 B+

1,500 pnw Pinnacle West Cap Corp 41.20 61,802 94.09 141,135 141,135 3.33 3.14 A-
1,200 ppl Ppl Corp Com 28.35 34,019 31.01 37,212 37,212 0.88 5.32 B

199,424 341,697 341,697 8.06 3.54

PASSIVE INDEX
6,950 pgf Invesco Financial Preferred ETF 19.50 135,554 18.42 128,019 128,019 3.02 5.43

15,700 pgx Invesco Preferred ETF 15.07 236,599 14.64 229,848 229,848 5.42 5.54
1,850 dvy Ishares Select Dividend ETF 83.53 154,525 99.56 184,186 184,186 4.34 3.38

Page 7 of 13



City of Sacramento
PORTFOLIO APPRAISAL 

Ann Land/Bertha Henschel Endowment Fund
June 30, 2019

Call
Security Unit Total Market Accrued Market Value Pct. Cur. Bond Put

Quantity Symbol Security Cost Cost Price Value Interest + Accrd. Int. Assets Yield S & P Moody Status Date

740 iwd Ishares Tr Russell 1000 Val 123.15 91,131 127.22 94,143 94,143 2.22 2.35
617,809 636,196 636,196 15.00 4.42

2,168,175 3,213,112 3,213,112 75.76 3.80

AMERICAN DEPOSITORY RECEIPTS
CONSUMER STAPLES

2,104 bti British Amern Tob Plc 
Sponsored Adr

69.17 145,534 34.87 73,366 73,366 1.73 7.47

ENERGY
1,500 bp BP Plc Sponsored Adr 41.60 62,404 41.70 62,550 62,550 1.47 5.85

HEALTHCARE
1,200 gsk Glaxosmithkline 32.64 39,174 40.02 48,024 48,024 1.13 4.99

247,112 183,940 183,940 4.34 6.27

TOTAL PORTFOLIO 3,190,885 4,241,131 5,090 4,246,221 100.00 3.92

Page 8 of 13



City of Sacramento
Ann Land/Bertha Henschel Endowment Fund

June 30, 2019

Performance History
TWR FOR SELECTED PERIODS

ANNUALIZED
GROSS OF FEES

Latest 1 Latest 3 Latest 5 Inception
Year Years Years To Date

Account 12.14 7.14 6.95 7.72
Russell 1000 Value 
(Price Only)

5.66 7.44 4.79 6.64

iShares Select Dividend 
ETF

1.86 5.30 5.28 ?

DJ Select Dividend 5.80 9.21 9.22 ?
FTSE US Broad 
Investment-Grade Bond

7.91 2.32 2.95 6.20

S&P 500 8.22 11.91 8.46 7.43

Monthly Performance
Percent Return Cumulative TWR

Per Period Basis = 100
Time Period Portfolio Russell 

1000 
Value 
(Price 
Only)

iShares 
Select 

Dividend 
ETF

DJ 
Select 

Dividend

FTSE US 
Broad 

Investment-Grade 
Bond

S&P 500Portfolio Russell 
1000 
Value 
(Price 
Only)

iShares 
Select 

Dividend 
ETF

DJ 
Select 

Dividend

FTSE US 
Broad 

Investment-Grade 
Bond

S&P 500

06-30-2018 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00
06-30-2018 to 07-31-2018 4.02 3.78 2.27 2.31 0.04 3.60 104.02 103.78 102.27 102.31 100.04 103.60
07-31-2018 to 08-31-2018 0.62 1.21 1.05 1.06 0.66 3.03 104.67 105.04 103.35 103.39 100.70 106.74
08-31-2018 to 09-30-2018 1.22 0.00 -1.24 -0.30 -0.66 0.43 105.95 105.04 102.07 103.08 100.03 107.20
09-30-2018 to 10-31-2018 -3.42 -5.33 -3.90 -3.87 -0.78 -6.94 102.33 99.44 98.09 99.09 99.25 99.76
10-31-2018 to 11-30-2018 1.88 2.70 2.07 2.14 0.57 1.79 104.25 102.13 100.11 101.21 99.82 101.54
11-30-2018 to 12-31-2018 -4.85 -9.82 -8.73 -8.01 1.86 -9.18 99.19 92.10 91.38 93.10 101.67 92.22
12-31-2018 to 01-31-2019 4.70 7.57 6.81 6.84 1.03 7.87 103.85 99.06 97.60 99.47 102.72 99.48
01-31-2019 to 02-28-2019 3.09 2.93 2.89 2.91 -0.05 2.97 107.06 101.97 100.42 102.37 102.67 102.43
02-28-2019 to 03-31-2019 1.71 0.43 0.03 1.03 1.95 1.79 108.89 102.41 100.45 103.42 104.67 104.27
03-31-2019 to 04-30-2019 1.18 3.37 2.93 2.99 0.05 3.93 110.18 105.86 103.40 106.50 104.72 108.37
04-30-2019 to 05-31-2019 -2.46 -6.70 -7.37 -7.38 1.79 -6.58 107.47 98.77 95.77 98.64 106.59 101.24
05-31-2019 to 06-30-2019 4.34 6.97 6.36 7.25 1.24 6.89 112.14 105.66 101.86 105.80 107.91 108.22

Date to Date
06-30-2018 to 06-30-2019 12.14 5.66 1.86 5.80 7.91 8.22

*

*

*Index commencement date was 11/30/03
Page 9 of 13



City of Sacramento
PERFORMANCE BY ASSET CLASS

Discounted Cash Flow Method Gross of Fees
Ann Land/Bertha Henschel Endowment Fund

From 06-30-18 To 06-30-19

Fixed Income Call Options Put Options Equities Cash and Equiv. Total Portfolio

Market Value on 06-30-18 68,638 0 0 3,836,265 30,830 3,935,734
Accrued Interest 556 0 0 0 0 556

  Purchases/Contributions 683,289 0 0 91,772 944,243 0

  Sales/Withdrawals -28,782 0 0 -915,461 -933,604 -158,542

  Transfers In 0 0 0 0 0 0

  Transfers Out 0 0 0 0 0 0

  Realized Gains 0 0 0 9,949 0 9,949

  Unrealized Gains 58,762 0 0 240,199 0 298,961

  Interest Income 19,666 0 0 0 1,035 20,701

  Dividend Income 0 0 0 134,329 0 134,329

  Change in Accrued Interest 4,535 0 0 0 0 4,535
Market Value on 06-30-19 801,573 0 0 3,397,053 42,505 4,241,131
Accrued Interest 5,090 0 0 0 0 5,090

  Total Gain before Fees 82,962 0 0 384,477 1,035 468,474

  IRR for 1.00 Years 15.03% 0.00% 0.00% 11.77% 1.97% 12.10%

  Annualized IRR 15.03% 0.00% 0.00% 11.77% 1.97% 12.10%

Page 10 of 13



City of Sacramento
PERFORMANCE BY ASSET CLASS

GROSS OF FEES AT COST
Ann Land/Bertha Henschel Endowment Fund

From 06-30-18 To 06-30-19

Fixed Income Call Options Put Options Equities Pool A Cash Other Cash 
& 

Equivalents

Total Cash 
and Equiv.

Total 
Portfolio

Cost Value on 06-30-18 58,921 0 0 2,748,413 20,838 9,992 30,830 2,838,164
Accrued Interest 556 0 0 0 0 0 0 556

  Purchases 683,289 0 0 91,131 0 780,491 780,491 1,554,911

  Contributions 0 0 0 641 391,559 -227,807 163,752 0

  Sales 0 0 0 -780,491 0 -774,420 -774,420 -1,554,911

  Withdrawals -28,782 0 0 -134,970 -377,156 217,972 -159,184 -158,542

  Transfers In 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

  Transfers Out 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

  Realized Gains 0 0 0 356,234 0 0 0 356,234

  Amortization 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

  Interest Income 19,666 0 0 0 784 251 1,035 20,701

  Dividend Income 0 0 0 134,329 0 0 0 134,329

  Change in Accrued Interest 4,535 0 0 0 0 0 0 4,535
Cost Value on 06-30-19 733,094 0 0 2,415,287 36,025 6,479 42,505 3,190,885
Accrued Interest 5,090 0 0 0 0 0 0 5,090

  Average Cost Base 544,173 0 0 2,168,916 32,115 20,384 52,499 2,765,587

  Total Gain before Fees 24,200 0 0 490,562 784 251 1,035 515,798

  IRR for 1.00 Years 4.45% 0.00% 0.00% 22.62% 2.44% 1.23% 1.97% 18.65%

  Annualized IRR 4.45% 0.00% 0.00% 22.62% 2.44% 1.23% 1.97% 18.65%

Page 11 of 13



City of Sacramento
PURCHASE/SALE AND GAIN/LOSS

Ann Land/Bertha Henschel Endowment Fund
From 07-01-18 To 06-30-19

Trade Settle Unit 06-30-2019
Date Date Quantity Security Price Amount Price Difference

Purchases
CORPORATE BONDS
10-25-2018 10-29-2018 75,000 E Trade Financial Corp 99.44 74,582 105.65 6

4.500% Due 06-20-28
10-25-2018 10-29-2018 100,000 Keycorp Medium Term Nts Be 99.31 99,312 108.83 10

4.100% Due 04-30-28
09-28-2018 10-02-2018 100,000 Mondelez Intl Inc 99.97 99,970 108.30 8

4.125% Due 05-07-28
09-28-2018 10-02-2018 100,000 Starbucks Corp 100.10 100,101 108.99 9

4.000% Due 11-15-28
09-18-2018 09-20-2018 200,000 Union Pacific Corp 100.38 200,770 108.76 8

3.950% Due 09-10-28
10-25-2018 10-29-2018 100,000 Unitedhealth Group Inc 99.44 99,438 108.31 9

3.850% Due 06-15-28
674,173

COMMON STOCK
07-20-2018 07-24-2018 740 Ishares Tr Russell 1000 Val 123.15 91,131 127.22 4

91,131

Total Purchases 765,304

Page 12 of 13



City of Sacramento
PURCHASE/SALE AND GAIN/LOSS

Ann Land/Bertha Henschel Endowment Fund
From 07-01-18 To 06-30-19

Trade Settle Unit Original
Date Date Quantity Security Price Amount Price Gain/Loss

Sales
COMMON STOCK
09-12-2018 09-14-2018 1,000 Donnelley R R & Sons Co 5.30 5,297 28.51 -23,215
10-22-2018 10-24-2018 3,000 Ford Mtr Co 8.38 25,147 10.40 -6,053
10-30-2018 11-01-2018 2,000 General Electric Co 11.33 22,662 33.73 -44,798
09-26-2018 09-28-2018 400 Ishares Tr Transp Ave Idx 204.05 81,620 77.24 50,724
10-22-2018 10-24-2018 750 Ishares US Basic Materials ETF 89.94 67,457 69.09 15,638
09-26-2018 09-28-2018 700 Ishares US Technology ETF 193.12 135,181 40.00 107,181
09-13-2018 09-17-2018 800 M & T Bk Corp Com 173.51 138,811 51.92 97,275
10-22-2018 10-24-2018 1,500 Microsoft Corp 108.90 163,346 30.51 117,581
07-19-2018 07-23-2018 1,150 Philip Morris Intl Inc Com 79.50 91,427 43.78 41,081
09-13-2018 09-17-2018 1,400 Scana Corp New Com 35.39 49,544 34.80 820

780,491 356,234

Total Sales 780,491 356,234

Page 13 of 13



 
 
Meeting Date: 11/13/2019  
 
Report Type:  Discussion 
 
 
 
 

 

Title:  2020 Funding Allocations  

Location:  Citywide 

Recommendation: Pass a motion allocating funding to grant applicants for 2020 

Contact:  Janelle Oishi, Program Specialist, (916) 808-1016, Youth, Parks, & Community Enrichment 

Presenter:  Janelle Oishi, Program Specialist, (916) 808-1016, Youth, Parks, & Community 
Enrichment 

Department:  Youth, Parks, & Community Enrichment 

Division:  Fiscal and Management Services 

Attachments: 

01 Description/Analysis 
02 Funds Requested by Services 
03 Funding History 
04 2020 Funding Applications 

 
  
Submitted By: Janelle Oishi, Program Specialist 
  

Ann Land and Bertha 
Henchel Report 

www.CityofSacramento.org  

http://www.cityofsacramento.org/


Attachment 01 – Description/Analysis 
 

Issue: The Ann Land and Bertha Henschel Memorial Funds Commission meets annually to disburse 
investment earnings to agencies that provide aid and assistance to the destitute men, women and 
children of the City of Sacramento. 

Policy Considerations: None 
 
 Economic Impacts: None 

 Environmental Considerations: None 

 Sustainability: None 

 Commission/Committee Action: None 

Rationale for Recommendation: Sacramento City Code section 2.64.150 (Powers and Duties) 
provides as follows:  
 

The Ann Land and Bertha Henschel Memorial Funds Commission shall have power and it shall 
be its duty: 

A. To administer the disbursement of the income of the Ann Land Memorial Fund 
and the Bertha Henschel memorial fund for the benefit, aid and assistance of the 
destitute men, women and children of the city in such manner as may be deemed 
proper and beneficial. 
B. The funds commission may provide for the disbursement of the income of the 
Ann Land memorial fund and the Bertha Henschel memorial fund through such agency 
or agencies as shall be deemed by the funds commission to be appropriate for carrying 
out the abovementioned purposes of such funds. 

 
Financial Considerations: None 

 Emerging Small Business Development (ESBD): None 



Food Clothing Shelter Utilities Transportation Heathcare
ACC Senior Services 10,000 10,000                   
Active 20-20 Club of Greater Sacramento #1032 1,000 5,000 6,000                     
City of Refuge 7,500 7,500                     
Community Against Sexual Harm 2,500 1,500 4,000                     
First Step Communities 1,000 5,500 2,000 3,500 12,000                   
Fresher Sacramento 10,000 10,000                   
GRID Alternatives North Valley 10,000 10,000                   
Know Corporation 14,000 14,000                   
Mercy Pedalers, Inc. 2,000 2,000 1,000 5,000                     
Middle Way Health Foundation 5,250 5,250                     
My Sister''s House 3,000 5,000 2,000 10,000                   
NeighborWorks Sacramento 10,000 10,000                   
Next Move Homeless Services 10,000 10,000                   
ReIMAGINE Mack Road Foundation 7,000 7,000                     
Repairing the Breach Neighborhood Project 7,000 500 7,500                     
River City Food Bank 10,000 10,000                   
Sacramento Food Bank & Family Services 5,000 5,000                     
Sacramento LGBT Community Center 8,000 8,000                     
Sacramento Loaves & Fishes 10,000 10,000                   
Sacramento Self-help Housing 6,000 6,000                     
Saint John?s Program for Real Change 10,000 10,000                   
South Sacramento Christian Center 10,000 10,000                   
South Sacramento Interfaith Partnership Food Closet 12,000 12,000                   
Stanford Settlement Neighborhood Center 10,000 10,000                   
The Salvation Army 7,000 7,000                     
Travelers Aid Emergency Assistance Agency 9,000 1,000 500 10,500                   
UC Davis Health Division of Cardiology Heart Failure 20,000 20,000                   
Wellspring Women's Center 8,400 8,400                     
Women Escaping A Violent Environment, Inc. 8,000 8,000                     
Women''s Civic Improvement Club 1,650 3,950 3,100 8,700                     
Women''s Empowerment 2,000 2,000 2,000 6,000                     

$135,650 $8,000 $29,950 $38,100 $18,500 $47,650 $277,850

Ann Land and Bertha Henschel Memorial Funds - 2020 Funds Requested by Services

AGENCY 

TYPES OF FUNDS REQUESTED AMOUNT 
REQUESTED

2020



AGENCY 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
Asian Community Center of Sacramento Valley, Inc. 0 3,000 6,000 8,000 8,000 10,250 9,000 9,000 9,000 6,000
Bridge Network 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3,000 0
Catholic Charities of Sacramento Inc. 9,500 9,000 10,000 10,000 0 0 0 0 0 0
Community Against Sexual Harm 0 0 0 0 0 1,000 1,500 2,000 2,500 3,400
First Step Communities 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 8,500 9,400 8,500
Francis House of Sacramento 9,500 8,000 10,500 11,000 11,500 12,500 9,500 0 0 0
My Sister's House 0 0 3,000 7,000 7,000 7,000 7,000 8,000 8,500 8,100
Neighbor Works Homeownership Center Sacramento Region 0 0 0 5,000 2,500 3,500 3,500 4,000 4,800 7,000
ReIMAGINE Mack Road Foundation 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4,000
Repairing the Breach Neighborhood Project 0 0 2,500 3,000 3,000 3,000 5,000 7,500 6,500 6,000
River City Food Bank 0 7,500 9,000 10,000 10,000 11,000 9,000 10,000 8,000 7,600
Roberts Family Development Center 7,500 6,000 8,000 0 0 5,000 6,000 7,500 8,400 0
Next Move (Frances House Center) 9,500 9,000 9,500 10,000 10,000 10,000 9,000 7,500 8,500 7,000
Sacramento Council of Parent Teacher Association 0 2,500 2,500 2,500 5,000 0 3,000 0 0 0
Sacramento Food Bank 0 0 0 0 0 0 4,500 6,250 4,400 5,000
Sacramento LGBT Community Center 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3,600
Sacramento Loaves & Fishes 9,000 9,000 9,000 9,000 9,500 9,000 7,500 9,000 8,000 8,500
Sacramento Self-Help Housing 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,800
Safe Ground Sacramento 0 0 0 5,500 0 6,500 8,000 0 0 0
Saint John's Program for Real Change 9,500 9,500 9,500 9,500 9,500 9,000 8,000 9,000 8,700 9,000
Soroptimist International of Sacramento, Inc. 0 0 1,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
South Sacramento Christian Center 0 3,500 4,000 0 4,000 4,000 4,000 6,250 0 0
South Sacramento Interfaith Partnership 10,000 9,000 9,500 0 0 7,500 7,000 8,000 8,400 9,200
Stanford Settlement Neighborhood Center 9,500 9,500 10,000 10,000 10,000 11,000 8,500 9,000 9,000 8,200
Stanford Youth Solutions 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
The Salvation Army 5,500 5,000 5,500 6,000 6,000 6,000 4,000 6,000 6,500 6,100
Traveler's Aid-Emergency Assistance 9,500 8,000 8,000 0 8,000 8,000 0 0 6,800 6,800
WEAVE, Inc. 9,500 8,000 8,500 8,000 5,000 5,500 5,000 5,500 2,500 3,500
Wellspring Women's Center 9,500 8,000 9,000 9,000 9,000 9,000 8,000 9,000 9,000 8,000
Women Civic Improvement Club 0 5,000 6,000 7,000 7,000 8,250 8,000 8,000 8,100 7,700
Women's Empowerment 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3,000
YWCA of Contra Costa County/Sacramento 7,500 4,500 4,500 4,500 0 0 0 0 0 0

ANNUAL TOTALS $115,500 $124,000 $145,500 $135,000 $125,000 $147,000 $135,000 $140,000 $140,000 $138,000

Ann Land and Bertha Henschel Memorial Funds - Funding History since 2010



TOTAL
$68,250

$3,000
$38,500
$10,400
$26,400
$72,500
$55,600
$30,300

$4,000
$36,500
$82,100
$48,400
$90,000
$15,500
$20,150

$3,600
$87,500

$1,800
$20,000
$91,200

$1,000
$25,750
$68,600
$94,700

$0
$56,600
$55,100
$61,000
$87,500
$65,050

$3,000
$21,000

$1,345,000

           



COMPLETE APPLICATIONS 
ALBHMF 2020 

• City of Refuge
• Community Against Sexual Harm
• GRID Alternatives North Valley
• Know Corporation
• Middle Way Health Foundation
• My Sister’s House
• NeighborWorks Sacramento
• Next Move Homeless Services
• ReIMAGINE Mack Road Foundation
• Repairing the Breach Neighborhood Project
• Sacramento Food Bank & Family Services
• Sacramento LGBT Community Center
• Sacramento Loaves & Fishes
• Sacramento Self-Help Housing
• Stanford Settlement Neighborhood Center
• The Salvation Army
• Travelers Aid Emergency Assistance 

Agency
• Women Escaping A Violent Environment
• Wellspring Women’s Center
• Women’s Civic Improvement Club
• Women’s Empowerment



ALBH	Grant	Application	2019
City	of	Sacramento

	Submitted	On:
October	28th,	2019	@	12:57am

Organization	Name City	of	Refuge

Physcial	Address 3216	Martin	Luther	King	Jr.	Boulevard
Sacramento
CA
95817

Mailing	address	different	from
physical	address?

No

Name Rachelle	Ditmore

Title Housing	Director

Phone	Number 916-370-5080

E-Mail	Address rachelle@cityofrefugesac.com

Name Loren	Ditmore

Phone	Number 916-678-8375

E-Mail	Address loren@cityofrefugesac.com

Name Philip	Peterson

Title Treasurer

Phone	Number 916-678-8375

E-Mail	Address philip@tallacvalleycapital.com

Please	indicate	below	the
services	you	are	requesting

Food

Indicate	the	dollar	amount
requested	for	Food

$7,500

#	of	clients	that	will	be	served	by
the	Ann	Land	&	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds

40

Total	Amount	Requested $7,500.00

The	amount	requested	will	be
applied	to	the	following.

On-going	Program

The	funds	requested	will	be	used
to	serve	the	following	(please
check	all	that	apply)

Women
Children

Will	other	funds	supplement	Ann
Land	and	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds	request	for	this
program?

Yes



Briefly	explain City	of	Refuge	has	an	established	funding	strategy	that	is	diversified	with	private	donations	from
individuals,	foundations,	corporations,	and	community	organizations.	We	also	have	funding
contracts	with	city	and	county	agencies.	Our	board	and	leadership	teams	are	focused	on	ensuring
the	financial	health	of	our	organization	through	major-donor	relationships,	grant	seeking	efforts,
and	community	engagement	initiatives.

Did	you	lose	any	funding	in	2019
from	any	source?

Yes

Briefly	explain We	lost	2019	funding	from	Sacramento	City	Unified	School	district	for	City	of	Refuge’s	Shine
/Sisterhood	Program	due	to	budget	cuts	at	the	district.	Through	volunteer	involvement	we	have
been	able	to	scale	back	the	program	to	hold	quarterly	gathering	and	maintaining	valuable
connection	with	this	vulnerable	population	of	high	school	age	and	young	adult	women.

Do	you	anticipate,	or	have	you
been	notified,	that	you	will	lose
funding	in	2020?

No

Are	you	aware	of,	or	do	you
anticipate	receiving,	any	new
sources	of	funding	in	2020,	for
example,	stimulus	or	other
funds?

Yes

Briefly	explain City	of	Refuge	was	recently	rewarded	a	significant	grant	from	the	City	of	Sacramento	to
operate	an	emergency	shelter	program	for	women	and/or	women	with	children.	This	funding	will
continue	through	2020.

List	the	hours	that	programs
funded	by	Ann	Land	and	Bertha
Henschel	Memorial	Funds	will	be
available	to	clients.

Our	Transitional	Housing	Program	is	a	residential	program	operating	24	hours	per	day,	7	days	per
week.

Describe	the	geographic	service
area,	within	the	City,	when	you
will	spend	the	requested	funds.

City	of	Refuge	is	located	in	District	7.	We	are	a	vital	resource	with	easy	accessibility	to	our
community	members	and	have	a	long-standing	presence	in	the	Oak	Park	neighborhood	and	the
city	of	Sacramento.	Each	day	we	meet	and	serve	youth	and	adults	living	homeless	or	in	extreme
poverty	where	domestic	violence,	crime,	drug	abuse,	human	trafficking,	and	gang	activity	have
become	the	norm.	We	are	a	safe	refuge	for	youth,	adults,	and	families	to	find	support,	purpose,
direction,	and	hope.

Please	upload	a	brief	description
(no	more	than	two	pages)	of	the
program	or	service	for	which	you
are	requesting	funds.	Explain	how
the	program	or	service
addresses	the	mission	and
funding	priorities	of	the	Ann	Land
and	Bertha	Henschel	Memorial
Funds.

https://seam.ly/Mv0pzA3S

Mission	Statement	–
Organizational	Goal

Our	mission	is	to	support	people	living	in	marginalized	communities	of	Sacramento	and	to
empower	their	ability	to	create	a	personal	transformation	that	will	lead	to	a	healthy	and	thriving
community.	Our	goal	is	to	provide	comprehensive	services	with	a	client-centered	and	trauma
informed	approach,	cultural	competency,	non-judgement,	and	low-barrier	entry	empowering
women	to	realize	their	dreams	of	true	independence.



Date	incorporated	or	otherwise
formed

2
1
2012

Briefly	describe	other	services
and	programs	your	organization
currently	provides.

In	addition	to	our	emergency	and	transitional	housing	programs,	we	provide	youth	and	adult
engagement	programs	that	include	personal	development	activities,	life-skills	classes,	after-
school	tutoring	and	activities,	family	friendly	evening	and	weekend	events,	personal	hygiene
items,	food,	and	safety	from	the	streets	through	our	Resource	Center.	We	have	an	extensive
workforce	development	and	hands-on	job	training	program	and	are	a	partner	with	City	of
Sacramento’s	“Thousand	Strong”	program.

Private	or	Corporate	Donations
(Amount)

490279

Private	or	Corporate	Donations
(%	of	Total	Funding)

81.5

United	Way	(Amount) 0

United	Way	(%	of	Total	Funding) 0

SETA	(Amount) 0

SETA	(%	of	Total	Funding) 0

Federal	Assistance	(Amount) 0

Federal	Assistance	(%	of	Total
Funding)

0

State	Assistance	(Amount) 0

State	Assistance	(%	of	Total
Funding)

0

City	or	County	Assistance	(not
from	the	Ann	Land	Bertha
Henschel	Memorial	Funds)
(Amount)

$111,601

City	or	County	Assistance	(not
from	the	Ann	Land	Bertha
Henschel	Memorial	Funds)	(%	of
Total	Funding)

18.54

Grants	(Amount)

Grants	(%	of	Total	Funding)

Ann	Land	and	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds	(Amount)

0

Ann	Land	and	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds	(%	of	Total
Funding)

0

Other	(briefly	describe	below)
(Amount)

0



Other	(briefly	describe	below)	(%
of	Total	Funding)

0

Total	Amount $601,881.00

Other	Income	Sources

The	names	of	the	members	of
your	organization’s	board	of
directors	and	of	your
organization’s	officers

https://seam.ly/wufVgL39

An	organizational	chart	or
description	of	your	organization’s
management	structure

https://seam.ly/49iYmMnq

Verification	of	your
organization’s	not-for-profit
status	(letter	from	IRS	confirming
§	501(c)(3)	status)

https://seam.ly/9LrA0KTD

Verification	that	your
organization	(1)	is	currently
registered	and	in	good	standing
with	the	Registry	of	Charitable
Trusts	maintained	by	the
California	Attorney	General	or	(2)
is	not	required	to	register.

https://seam.ly/jKceHFFH

A	copy	of	your	organization’s
current	business	license	or	a
letter	from	the	City	of
Sacramento	Finance	Department
verifying	your	organization’s
exemption	from	the	City’s
business-operations	tax.	The
Sacramento	City	Code	requires
that	anyone	conducting	business
within	the	City	of	Sacramento
have	a	current	business	license
on	file	with	the	City.	The	City
issues	nonprofit	organizations	a
waiver	letter	in	lieu	of	a	business
license.	A	waiver	letter	can	be
obtained	at	the	Revenue	Counter
in	New	City	Hall,	First	Floor,	Room
1214.	Indicate	your
organization’s	non-profit	status
on	the	application	form.	There	is
no	charge	for	nonprofit
organizations.

https://seam.ly/4wKi61cO



A	copy	of	your	organization’s
most	recent	audit	and	any
corrective	actions	or
recommendations	suggested	by
the	auditor.	If	you	do	not	have	an
annual	audit,	please	explain	why.
You	must	also	provide	a	copy	of
your	organization’s	most-recent
annual	financial	statements,
signed	by	your	organization’s
treasurer	AND	by	the	preparer,
whether	a	CPA	or	bookkeeper

https://seam.ly/Egk6fQqH

A	budget	sheet	showing	how
awarded	funds	will	be	spent

https://seam.ly/kHA5ynQi

Signature	Data First	Name:	Loren
Last	Name:	Ditmore
Email	Address:	loren@cityofrefugesac.com

Signed	at:	10/27/2019	09:53PM



Ann Land and Bertha Henschel Memorial Fund Grant Proposal  
City of Refuge – Housing Program | October 2019 

 

 

Mission Alignment and History.  
Our mission, services, and the support we provide align well with the mission and priorities of 
the Ann Land and Bertha Henschel Memorial Fund to benefit the lives of destitute men, 
women, and children in our City. In 2010, City of Refuge opened its first home in response to 
the dire needs of women and children seeking freedom from sexual exploitation, harm, 
violence, and human trafficking. We ensure that our most vulnerable population of women and 
children are safe and receive the services necessary to change the direction of their lives. 
Enhancing self-esteem and improving the physical and emotional well-being of these precious 
lives is our most significant concern.   
 
Specific Use of Funds. 
City of Refuge Sacramento is seeking support for our daily food and meal costs. Healthy and 
nutritious meals are a basic need and the first step to improving the health and well-being of 
the women and children we serve. Meals are prepared daily, three times per day, and include 
two healthy snacks. Women in our program partner with our resident services staff to plan 
meals, assist with shopping and making selections, and consider the best options to provide 
nutritious meals within a limited budget. Each aspect of these daily living practices is an 
opportunity to build positive and healthy routines that will prepare each woman and her family 
for independent and sustainable living. 
 
Population Served. 
Women are referred to us by law enforcement, community agencies, or other social service 
providers; some find their way through a concerned friend, neighbor, or local faith-based 
congregation. Most are trapped by poverty, abuse, addictions, and lack a positive support 
network. They are hidden in the shadow of the streets or living in unthinkable situations. A safe 
environment with 24/7 supportive care is critical to serving this population of young women, 
aged 18-26, of which 85% are mothers (most becoming a mother in their teens). In 2018, our 
transitional housing program served 14 women and approximately 18 children, with ten 
women successfully transitioning to stable, independent living within 6-months to one year. 
With newly formed partnerships and increased funding, we are strengthening our ability to 
impact even more lives by the end of our fiscal year in July 2020. Together, we can make a 
significant difference in the lives of the women and children we serve. 
  
Housing Program Services and Activities. 
Our experienced staff provides client-centered, trauma-informed care helping our young 
women plan and navigate a pathway to healing and self-sustainability. Women will address 
their physical and mental health concerns and substance use recovery needs. They will 
participate in resource counseling to determine needs for public assistance, health care 
coverage, transportation, and legal services, CPS and reunification, and court appearances. 
They will improve financial literacy, build a budget/savings plan, set educational goals, and 
prepare themselves to enter the workforce. Mothers will develop positive parenting skills, 



Ann Land and Bertha Henschel Memorial Fund Grant Proposal  
City of Refuge – Housing Program | October 2019 

 

assistance with public school enrollment, transportation needs, and setting routines to ensure 
each child’s social and emotional needs are met, and school integration or reintegration is 
successful.  
  
Measuring Success. 
Our evidence-based care model provides a staff-to-resident ratio of 1:4 during the day and 1:6 
overnight. Daily we are witness to many successes great and small. We track progress through 
each women’s individualized development plan prepared with guidance from their case 
manager and reviewed weekly. Initially, our goal is to ensure basic needs are met, such as 
safety, food, shelter, clothing, and a sense of belonging. As trusted relationships build, the daily 
encounters and comprehensive tools provided lead to the longer-term impacts of improved 
health, stronger coping and decision-making skills, and a significant and active support network. 
Women gain the confidence and skills needed to transition into the workforce and stable, 
independent living.  
  
Partnerships, Volunteers, and In-kind Support. 
We provide a full spectrum of comprehensive services because of the strength of our invaluable 
partners, volunteers, and in-kind providers. They include but are not limited to, the following: 
  
Community Against Sexual Harm (C.A.S.H.), Sac County Family Justice Center, Dignity Mobile 
Trauma Clinic and Healthy Women and Babies Program, Opening Doors, Black Child Legacy, 
Child Protective Services, City Police Chief Daniel Han, Carol Watson, Local F.B.I. Contact, 
County Sheriff’s Department, Sacramento’s DA Office, Sac City Unified School District, 
Sacramento City Mayor’s Office, Greater Sacramento Urban League, many valued employment 
partners, and nearly 300+ dedicated individual volunteers annually.  
  
In Closing. 
We go beyond rescuing. We help women and their children reduce fear and concerns for safety 
and improve their overall health and well-being. We empower them to rebuild their lives with 
the necessary tools and compassionate support needed to realize their dreams of true 
independence. Thank you for your thoughtful consideration of our request. Please reach out if 
you have any questions or need additional information to conduct your review.  
  
Respectfully,  
  
Loren & Rachelle Ditmore 
 



3216 Martin Luther King Jr. Blvd., Sacramento, CA 95817 | www.cityofrefugesac.org 

 

 

 

 

2019 Board of Directors 

 
Officers: 
 
Scott Edwards, Board Chair 
Business Development Executive/Consultant 
 
Keri Bailey, Secretary 
Cal-Grocers Association, Lobbyist 
  
Philip Peterson, Treasurer  
Aulon Arch Inc., Financial Analyst 
 
Members: 
 
Jennifer Cox, Dignity Health, Human Trafficking Program Manager 

John Elmasian, Keller Williams, Realtor  

Kirk Ellis, Commercial Real Estate Appraiser 

Chris Evans, Trans Cosmos Communications Corp., COO 

Heather Krieser, MBA, Landauer, Regional Sales Manager  

Alex Vaiz, Vida Family Church, Founding and Senior Pastor 

Loren Ditmore, City of Refuge Sacramento, CEO 

 



3216 Martin Luther King Jr. Blvd., Sacramento, CA 95817 | www.cityofrefugesac.org 

 

 

2019 Organizational Chart 

 
Board of Directors 

Loren Ditmore, Co-Founder & Chief Executive Officer 

Marissa Smith, Youth Programs & Support Director 

Kashae Knox, Workforce Development Director 

Tyler Garrison, Young Men’s Outreach Director 

Lisa Martucci, Bookkeeper 

Andrea Cisneros, Facilities Manager 

Harold Coleman, Facilities Coordinator

 

Rachelle Ditmore, Co-Founder / Housing Director /Community Outreach 

Lashon Gordon, Housing Program Manager   

LiMetria Daniels, Senior Case Manager  

Genesis Araiza, Case Manager 

Tanjie Alston, Evening Supervisor 

Resident Services Staff 

Rachel Gonzalez, Children’s Program Director 

Refuge Child Care Services Staff 

In-kind Support and Volunteer Services  

 
Leadership Staff Bios are available upon request. 











Ann Land and Bertha Henschel Memorial Fund Grant Proposal 
City of Refuge – Housing Program | October 2019 

Statement from City of Refuge – Board Treasure | October 23, 2019 

City of Refuge currently does not have its financial statements audited annually due to the cost 

of the audit relative to the current size of the organization. 

As board treasurer, I provide oversight to City of Refuge by conducting monthly reviews of the 

organization's financial statements and meeting with the executive and leadership team 

regarding internal controls and processes. I also meet quarterly with the bookkeeper to review 

and ensure accuracy and integrity of the financial statements. As a liaison for the organization, I 

keep the board of directors informed on financial decisions and encourage open 

communication and constructive feedback to ensure best practices and transparency with 

regards to funds received from donors, grants, and local businesses in order to meet the 

mission and objectives of City of Refuge. Professionally, I have been the controller of a private 

equity firm for six years and apply the same high standards while serving as treasurer for City of 

Refuge. 

Philip Peterson 

philip@tallacvalleycapital.com 

Please see the following pages for the signed and most current financial statement and balance sheet. 





Jul '18 - Jun 19

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income

43000 · Misc. Income
43440 · In-Kind Goods&Services - Income 2,074.92

43000 · Misc. Income - Other 406.51

Total 43000 · Misc. Income 2,481.43

43300 · DIRECT PUBLIC -   GRANTS
43310 · Corporate and Business Grants 129,000.00

Total 43300 · DIRECT PUBLIC -   GRANTS 129,000.00

43400 · DIRECT PUBLIC -   SUPPORT
43410 · Corporate Contributions 16,800.49
43450 · Individ /Business Contributions 348,204.41

Total 43400 · DIRECT PUBLIC -   SUPPORT 365,004.90

44500 · GOVERNMENT -   GRANTS
44510 · Agency (Government) Grants 59,800.00

Total 44500 · GOVERNMENT -   GRANTS 59,800.00

44400 · GOVERNMENT -   CONTRACTS
44430 · Local Government Contracts 51,801.03

Total 44400 · GOVERNMENT -   CONTRACTS 51,801.03

49020 · SALES - Products/Clothing -524.20
47500 · RENTAL INCOME

47550 · COR Property Rent Revenue 4,350.00

Total 47500 · RENTAL INCOME 4,350.00

Total Income 611,913.16

Gross Profit 611,913.16

Expense
62880 · REAL ESTATE

62884 · Mortg Int Exp Offset-14th Ave 4,763.01
62883 · Property Tax - 14th Ave 4,856.54
62889 · Property Tax - 3200/3208 MLK 3,586.76
62886 · Real Estate Fees 3,725.00

Total 62880 · REAL ESTATE 16,931.31

60900 · BUSINESS OPERATIONS EXPENSE
65060 · Advertising/Marketing Expenses 978.18
60930 · Banking & Online Service Fees 389.68
65015 · Computer Expense 3,597.27
60960 · Fines, Penalties, Judgments 43.24
62155 · HR Services 1,500.00
65120 · Insurance-Gen Liability &  D&O 12,682.67
62114 · Live Scan / Background Checks 443.00
65150 · Memberships and Dues 150.95
60940 · Other Business Supplies 1,084.80
65044 · Office Supplies 3,252.11
65020 · Postage, Mailing Service 275.54
65030 · Printing and Copying 2,431.17
62111 · Payroll Service 2,060.00
65050 · Telephone / Internet 10,349.66
65070 · Website/Technology Costs 699.00

Total 60900 · BUSINESS OPERATIONS EXPENSE 39,937.27

5:18 PM City of Refuge Sacramento
10/24/19 Profit & Loss
Accrual Basis July 2018 through June 2019

Page 1



Jul '18 - Jun 19

62115 · PROFESSIONAL EXPENSES
62113 · Accountant Fees 1,000.00
62116 · Bookkeeping Expense 21,363.30
62117 · Outside Professional Services 600.00

Total 62115 · PROFESSIONAL EXPENSES 22,963.30

65180 · MEETINGS
65186 · Board Meetings 75.82
65185 · Meetings with Others 958.51
65181 · Staff Meetings 2,388.73
65182 · Meals/Entertainment Management 150.00

Total 65180 · MEETINGS 3,573.06

68300 · TRAVEL &  MEETINGS
68310 · Conference, Convention, Meeting 602.12
68320 · Travel  (Admin) 1,651.46
68350 · Vehicle  Maintenance 8,150.24
68370 · Meals/Entertainment travel 1,074.81

Total 68300 · TRAVEL &  MEETINGS 11,478.63

68500 · In Kind Goods&Services Expense 2,074.92
62800 · FACILITIES & EQUIPMENT EXPENSE

62841 · Building Repairs 1,457.02
62840 · Equip Rental and Maintenance 1,135.73
62850 · Facility Maintanence Expense 10,981.36
62910 · Facility Supplies 2,777.43
62900 · Furniture/Appliances Expense 5,534.58
62890 · RENT, Parking, Utilities

62892 · Facility Rental 19,716.62
62894 · Gas and Electric 10,158.43
62891 · Office Rent 20,125.00
62893 · Security 4,285.41
62895 · Water/Garbage/Street Cleaning 6,141.51

Total 62890 · RENT, Parking, Utilities 60,426.97

Total 62800 · FACILITIES & EQUIPMENT EXPENSE 82,313.09

60300 · ASSISTANCE/AWARD/GRANT  EXPENSE
60346 · Benevolence 1,795.51

Total 60300 · ASSISTANCE/AWARD/GRANT  EXPENSE 1,795.51

65100 · OTHER TYPES OF EXPENSES
65160 · Misc  Expense 306.34
65170 · Staff Development 845.39
65175 · Staff Appreciation 1,317.92
66550 · Volunteer Appreciation 2,478.22

Total 65100 · OTHER TYPES OF EXPENSES 4,947.87

64000 · FUNDRAISING
64200 · Fundraising Expense 2,751.84
64100 · The Table Expenses

64150 · The Table Decor 7,538.64
64160 · The Table Food 360.49
64100 · The Table Expenses - Other 1,290.15

Total 64100 · The Table Expenses 9,189.28

Total 64000 · FUNDRAISING 11,941.12

66000 · PAYROLL EXPENSES
66270 · Payroll Taxes - ER 24,024.33

5:18 PM City of Refuge Sacramento
10/24/19 Profit & Loss
Accrual Basis July 2018 through June 2019

Page 2



Jul '18 - Jun 19

66100 · Salary & Wages
66101 · CEO/ED 32,447.88
66102 · Housing Director 22,302.00
66112 · Housing Program Manager 21,600.00
66113 · Case Manager 35,301.36
66122 · Resident Support Staff 20,682.80
66103 · Director of Operations 49,520.00
66105 · Workforce Development Director 35,551.50
66111 · Career Coach 2,349.00
66107 · Youth Outreach Adm/Communicatio 34,186.50
66104 · Assistant Coach 985.00
66110 · Facilities Maintenance Employee 5,888.40
66106 · Volunteer Cord/HouseProgDevelop 367.50
66108 · Childcare Employee 1,547.00
66109 · Community Outreach Employee 13,642.50
66114 · Sisterhood Intern 1,189.30
66115 · Summer Intern 1,278.00
66100 · Salary & Wages - Other 0.00

Total 66100 · Salary & Wages 278,838.74

66135 · Stipend 760.00

Total 66000 · PAYROLL EXPENSES 303,623.07

66250 · Workers Comp Insurance 12,337.06
62145 · PROGRAM EXPENSES

62160 · Program-Contracted Services 4,010.78
62161 · Program Services Other -non emp 866.00
62156 · Outreach Event Costs 5,098.85
62180 · Speaker / Performer 1,019.18

Total 62145 · PROGRAM EXPENSES 10,994.81

65000 · PROGRAM OPERATIONS EXPENSE
65010 · Books, Subscriptions, Reference 1,110.49
65017 · Entertainment/Activities 1,123.23
68340 · Fuel Expense 7,659.75
65036 · Mileage Reimbursement 1,166.20
68360 · Parking and tolls 676.65
65035 · Transportation Exp (programs) 3,943.27
65080 · FOOD & HOUSEHOLD SUPPLIES

65047 · Cleaning Supplies 311.91
65041 · Dining 4,917.81
65046 · Groceries 9,037.01
65052 · Household Items 1,036.45

Total 65080 · FOOD & HOUSEHOLD SUPPLIES 15,303.18

65040 · SUPPLIES - PROGRAM OPERATIONS
65042 · Clothing for Participants 502.90
65049 · Gifts for program participants 95.95
65051 · Health Supplies 432.63
65045 · Other Program Supplies 3,362.77
65048 · Party Supplies/Celebrations 749.78
65043 · Personal Items 1,264.53

Total 65040 · SUPPLIES - PROGRAM OPERATIONS 6,408.56

Total 65000 · PROGRAM OPERATIONS EXPENSE 37,391.33

66900 · Reconciliation Discrepancies 0.00
69800 · Uncategorized Expenses 31.00

Total Expense 562,333.35

Net Ordinary Income 49,579.81

5:18 PM City of Refuge Sacramento
10/24/19 Profit & Loss
Accrual Basis July 2018 through June 2019

Page 3



Jul '18 - Jun 19

Other Income/Expense
Other Expense

62888 · Interest Exp Mortgag 14th-#2290 9,033.39
62885 · Depreciation Expense - 14th Ave 13,057.44
70000 · Depreciation Expense 1,135.36

Total Other Expense 23,226.19

Net Other Income -23,226.19

Net Income 26,353.62

5:18 PM City of Refuge Sacramento
10/24/19 Profit & Loss
Accrual Basis July 2018 through June 2019

Page 4



Jun 30, 19

ASSETS
Current Assets

Checking/Savings
10210 · Checking Bank  ARB-0264 93,604.24
10220 · Checking-Commercial FSB-7195 5.00
105000 · PEX Debit Cards 588.00
105010 · Andrea Cisneros-1388 20.21
105006 · Kashae Knox-0148 32.05
105013 · Lashon Gordon-1347 8.72
105014 · Loren Ditmore - 5910 109.43
10400 · Pay Pal 60.00
105005 · Marissa Maldanado-0544 18.75
105011 · Tyler Garrison-2458 15.27

Total Checking/Savings 94,461.67

Accounts Receivable
11000 · ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 1,133.07

Total Accounts Receivable 1,133.07

Other Current Assets
13000 · PREPAID EXPENSES

13003 · Prepaid Expenses General 1,837.50

Total 13000 · PREPAID EXPENSES 1,837.50

Total Other Current Assets 1,837.50

Total Current Assets 97,432.24

Fixed Assets
15700 · Land - 14th Ave 50,000.00
15100 · BUILDINGS -ASSET

15200 · Building-AccumDepreciate-14thAv -15,233.68
15110 · Buildings - 14th Ave 359,103.38

Total 15100 · BUILDINGS -ASSET 343,869.70

15000 · FURNITURE & EQUIPMENT ASSETS
15020 · Furniture Purchases Asset

15025 · Accum Depreciaton Furniture -1,090.36
15020 · Furniture Purchases Asset - Other 2,889.13

Total 15020 · Furniture Purchases Asset 1,798.77

15010 · Computer (Asset)
15015 · Accum Depreciation Computer -45.00
15010 · Computer (Asset) - Other 2,700.00

Total 15010 · Computer (Asset) 2,655.00

Total 15000 · FURNITURE & EQUIPMENT ASSETS 4,453.77

16000 · The Refuge - Building  3200 36,000.00

Total Fixed Assets 434,323.47

TOTAL ASSETS 531,755.71

8:57 AM City of Refuge Sacramento
10/25/19 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of June 30, 2019

Page 1



Jun 30, 19

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities

Current Liabilities
Other Current Liabilities

24150 · PAYROLL TAX LIABILITIES
24300 · EDD Liability 267.12

Total 24150 · PAYROLL TAX LIABILITIES 267.12

Total Other Current Liabilities 267.12

Total Current Liabilities 267.12

Long Term Liabilities
27150 · Mortgage 14th -FiveStarBank2290 211,762.61

Total Long Term Liabilities 211,762.61

Total Liabilities 212,029.73

Equity
32000 · Unrestricted Net Assets 293,372.36
Net Income 26,353.62

Total Equity 319,725.98

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 531,755.71

8:57 AM City of Refuge Sacramento
10/25/19 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of June 30, 2019

Page 2



COMPONENT Total Program Budget
Funding Request 

from ALBH
Other Sources

Personnel Expense: 
Housing Director  FTE 44,000$                   -$                   $              44,000 
Program Manager FTE 36,000$                   -$                   $              36,000 
Senior Case Manager  FTE 43,000$                   -$                   $              43,000 
Case Manager 36,000$                   -$                   $              36,000 
Mental Health Counselor 22,000$                   -$                   $              22,000 
Weekend/Evening Resident Supervisor .5 FTE 13,800$                   -$                   $              13,800 
Resident Support Staff  3 FTE 90,000$                   -$                   $              90,000 
Childcare  1.5 FTE 34,840$                   -$                   $              34,840 
Workforce Development .125 FTE 4,680$                      -$                   $                4,680 
Substance Use Disorder Counselor .125 FTE 8,000$                      -$                   $                8,000 
Transportation Coordination 36,000$                   -$                   $              36,000 
Facility Supervisor .75 FTE 27,000$                   -$                   $              27,000 
Personnel Total: 395,320$                  $           395,320 

Occupancy/Mortgage 38,160$                   -$                   $              38,160 
Utilities 12,000$                   -$                   $              12,000 
New Bed, furniture, home appliances 10,000$                   -$                   $              10,000 
Facility Maintenance 15,000$                   -$                   $              15,000 
Equipment 800$                         -$                   $                   800 
Communications 3,000$                      -$                   $                3,000 
Office Supplies 1,000$                      -$                   $                1,000 
Travel 800$                         -$                   $                   800 
Technology 1,500$                      -$                   $                1,500 
Direct Participant Support 1,800$                      -$                   $                1,800 
Food/Beverage/Health Supplies 28,800$                   7,500$               $              21,300 
Operations Total: 112,860$                 7,500$               $           105,360 

-$                  
Sub Total 508,180$                 7,500$               $           500,680 
In-direct Costs (not to exceed 10%) 22,500$                   -$                   $              22,500 

-$                  
Total Program Expenses: 530,680$                 7,500$               $           523,180 

City of Refuge Housing Budget  with ALBH Request Allocation
12 Month Budget / July 1, 2019 - June 30, 2020

Operations Expense:



ALBH	Grant	Application	2019
City	of	Sacramento

	Submitted	On:
October	17th,	2019	@	2:21pm

Organization	Name Community	Against	Sexual	Harm

Physcial	Address 3101	1st	Ave
Sacramento
CA
95817

Mailing	address	different	from
physical	address?

Yes

Mailing	Address PO	Box	160022
Sacramento
CA
95816

Name Terri	Galvan

Title Executive	Director

Phone	Number 916-856-2900

E-Mail	Address tgalvan@cashsac.org

Name Terri	Galvan

Phone	Number 916-856-2900

E-Mail	Address tgalvan@cashsac.org

Name Terri	Galvan

Title Executive	Director

Phone	Number 916-856-2900

E-Mail	Address tgalvan@cashsac.org

Please	indicate	below	the
services	you	are	requesting

Food
Transportation

Indicate	the	dollar	amount
requested	for	Food

$2,500

#	of	clients	that	will	be	served	by
the	Ann	Land	&	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds

325

Indicate	the	dollar	amount
requested	for	Transportation

$1,500

#	of	clients	that	will	be	served	by
the	Ann	Land	&	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds

100

Total	Amount	Requested $4,000.00



The	amount	requested	will	be
applied	to	the	following.

On-going	Program

The	funds	requested	will	be	used
to	serve	the	following	(please
check	all	that	apply)

Women
Children

Will	other	funds	supplement	Ann
Land	and	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds	request	for	this
program?

Yes

Briefly	explain Our	Center	for	Women	programs	are	supported	by	the	Oak	Park	Business	Association	and	the
Stockton	Boulevard	Partnership.

Did	you	lose	any	funding	in	2019
from	any	source?

No

Do	you	anticipate,	or	have	you
been	notified,	that	you	will	lose
funding	in	2020?

No

Are	you	aware	of,	or	do	you
anticipate	receiving,	any	new
sources	of	funding	in	2020,	for
example,	stimulus	or	other
funds?

Yes

Briefly	explain We	expect	to	receive	funding	from	the	State	of	California	to	start	a	comprehensive	employment
program	with	wrap	around	services.

List	the	hours	that	programs
funded	by	Ann	Land	and	Bertha
Henschel	Memorial	Funds	will	be
available	to	clients.

Monday	through	Friday	8:30	-	5:30	with	the	possibility	of	Saturday	hours	in	2020.

Describe	the	geographic	service
area,	within	the	City,	when	you
will	spend	the	requested	funds.

City	of	Sacramento	with	a	concentration	in	Oak	Park.

Please	upload	a	brief	description
(no	more	than	two	pages)	of	the
program	or	service	for	which	you
are	requesting	funds.	Explain	how
the	program	or	service
addresses	the	mission	and
funding	priorities	of	the	Ann	Land
and	Bertha	Henschel	Memorial
Funds.

https://seam.ly/d6RQyBrF

Mission	Statement	–
Organizational	Goal

Our	mission	is	to	assist	women	who	have	been	commercially	sexually	exploited	through	survivor-
led	peer	support	and	harm	reduction	services,	while	providing	education	about	the	harm	inflicted
on	women	and	the	community.



Date	incorporated	or	otherwise
formed

2
1
2008

Briefly	describe	other	services
and	programs	your	organization
currently	provides.

Community	Against	Sexual	Harm	offers	a	daily	Drop-In	Center	for	Women,	street-outreach,
Sacramento	County''s	RESET	prostitution	diversion	program,	Healthy	Women	and	Families,	and
Opening	Doors	Anti-Trafficking	program	to	comprehensively	meet	the	varied	needs	of	the
women	we	serve.	In	2020,	we	will	add	an	employment	program	to	our	programs	and	services.

Private	or	Corporate	Donations
(Amount)

83,295

Private	or	Corporate	Donations
(%	of	Total	Funding)

20

United	Way	(Amount) 0

United	Way	(%	of	Total	Funding) 0

SETA	(Amount) 0

SETA	(%	of	Total	Funding) 0

Federal	Assistance	(Amount) 0

Federal	Assistance	(%	of	Total
Funding)

0

State	Assistance	(Amount) 111,205

State	Assistance	(%	of	Total
Funding)

26

City	or	County	Assistance	(not
from	the	Ann	Land	Bertha
Henschel	Memorial	Funds)
(Amount)

0

City	or	County	Assistance	(not
from	the	Ann	Land	Bertha
Henschel	Memorial	Funds)	(%	of
Total	Funding)

0

Grants	(Amount) 199,373

Grants	(%	of	Total	Funding) 47

Ann	Land	and	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds	(Amount)

3,400

Ann	Land	and	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds	(%	of	Total
Funding)

.007

Other	(briefly	describe	below)
(Amount)

29,010

Other	(briefly	describe	below)	(%
of	Total	Funding)

7



Total	Amount $426,283.00

Other	Income	Sources Program	Service	Fee:	$22,140
In	Kind	Revenue:	$6,870

The	names	of	the	members	of
your	organization’s	board	of
directors	and	of	your
organization’s	officers

https://seam.ly/eVJAyhDM

An	organizational	chart	or
description	of	your	organization’s
management	structure

https://seam.ly/1S3q4uYY

Verification	of	your
organization’s	not-for-profit
status	(letter	from	IRS	confirming
§	501(c)(3)	status)

https://seam.ly/DNp1AyDR

Verification	that	your
organization	(1)	is	currently
registered	and	in	good	standing
with	the	Registry	of	Charitable
Trusts	maintained	by	the
California	Attorney	General	or	(2)
is	not	required	to	register.

https://seam.ly/PdVphEAF

A	copy	of	your	organization’s
current	business	license	or	a
letter	from	the	City	of
Sacramento	Finance	Department
verifying	your	organization’s
exemption	from	the	City’s
business-operations	tax.	The
Sacramento	City	Code	requires
that	anyone	conducting	business
within	the	City	of	Sacramento
have	a	current	business	license
on	file	with	the	City.	The	City
issues	nonprofit	organizations	a
waiver	letter	in	lieu	of	a	business
license.	A	waiver	letter	can	be
obtained	at	the	Revenue	Counter
in	New	City	Hall,	First	Floor,	Room
1214.	Indicate	your
organization’s	non-profit	status
on	the	application	form.	There	is
no	charge	for	nonprofit
organizations.

https://seam.ly/5yVUaMR0



A	copy	of	your	organization’s
most	recent	audit	and	any
corrective	actions	or
recommendations	suggested	by
the	auditor.	If	you	do	not	have	an
annual	audit,	please	explain	why.
You	must	also	provide	a	copy	of
your	organization’s	most-recent
annual	financial	statements,
signed	by	your	organization’s
treasurer	AND	by	the	preparer,
whether	a	CPA	or	bookkeeper

https://seam.ly/ygsrU6lI

A	budget	sheet	showing	how
awarded	funds	will	be	spent

https://seam.ly/SiIKXXA4

Signature	Data First	Name:	Terri
Last	Name:	Galvan
Email	Address:	tgalvan@cashsac.org

Signed	at:	10/17/2019	11:13AM



Community Against Sexual Harm 

Programs and Services 

 
 

We are requesting funding for basic food supplies and bus passes for our Center for Women 

program participants. The Center is located at corner of Broadway and Alhambra in Oak Park. 

Women come to our center to have their most basic needs met, to step away from the strain of 

life on the streets, and to meet with peer specialists who provide warm links to needed 

resources such as emergency housing options for homeless participants. Our Center has food, 

a comfortable space to relax, computers, telephones, restrooms, toiletries, and a clothes closet. 

Our Center is open for “drop-in” from 1:00 – 5:00 pm Monday through Friday, classes are held 

Monday and Wednesday from 10:00 – 12:30, and staff members are available for appointments 

and emergencies from 8:30 am to 5:30 pm Monday through Friday and 10:00 am to 1:00 pm on 

Saturdays. All participants initially complete a brief intake assessment and self-identify as 

victims of commercial sexual exploitation to participate in our program. After trust is established, 

a more thorough needs assessment is completed to guide additional services.   

 

We offer transportation assistance to help ensure that our participants have access to the 

community services that they need, including medical care, parenting and other classes, and 

social service appointments. Our food program feeds extremely low income women in our 

community and helps us build a connection to those with high service needs. In 2018, we 

provided more than 2600 meals to some of our community’s most vulnerable women, including 

more pregnant women and their families. This year we are on track to feed more women and 

children than we ever have.  The need keeps expanding.  Our food program includes simple 

sack lunches, nutritious warm meals and fresh items.  We also offer take-out sack lunches for 

women that do not have a stable source of food over the weekend, and in partnership with the 

Sacramento Food Bank, we offer monthly food boxes for housed participants with extremely low 

incomes.  This has been an very important part of our program.



Community Against Sexual Harm serves women who are homeless, engaged in high risk 

behaviors, extremely distrustful, and sometimes addicted to drugs. Most of our clients are 

completely destitute or are living far below the poverty line. Our program is designed as an 

entry point for women that need services to stabilize, but rarely access on their own. We offer a 

low-threshold program that reduces barriers between victims, their basic needs, and our unique 

services. Because we are based on a harm reduction model, no woman is turned away from 

our program. Instead, we meet them where they are and craft a plan for their individual needs. 

Our Center for Women is also the setting for RESET (Reducing Sexual Exploitation and 

Trafficking), a prostitution diversion program that offers education and community support 

instead of incarceration, Healthy Women and Families, which provides intensive wrap- around 

services, food, and transportation assistance for pregnant women, and Opening Doors Anti-

Trafficking Program which offers comprehensive services to help women heal from extreme 

trauma. Over the past few years, we have steadily increased the number of women we serve 

through direct services, from 97 served in 2012 to 300 in 2018. We will serve 350 women and 

their children in 2019 and expect the same for 2020. 

 
 

Our program has been in existence since 2008 and was created through a partnership with the 

Sacramento Police Department, CSUS professors, neighborhood residents, a local business 

district, and women involved in the sex-trade who recognized that incarceration was not 

making a difference in prostitution activity in Oak Park and the surrounding communities. A 

formal needs assessment identified that non-judgmental, dedicated services were needed in 

Sacramento for this population. Our Center for women and the services we provide are a result 

of this collaborative effort. Or program is a more comprehensive solution to a long-standing 

community problem and directly addresses the need for specialized services to meet the needs 

of women that often fall through the cracks in our safety net. 



Community Against Sexual Harm (CASH) 
Board of Directors 

Lt. Cindy Stinson Executive Staff: 
Board President Terri Galvan 
Sacramento Police Department Executive Director 
2967 17th Street 7488 Wynndel Way 
Sacramento, CA 95818 Elk Grove, CA 95758 
EMAIL: cstinson@pd.cityofsacramento.org EMAIL: tgalvan@cashsac.org 
PHONE: 916-284-8094 PHONE: 916-856-2900 

 
Sharon Eghigian 
Secretary 
NeighborWorks 
P.O. Box 5420 
Sacramento, CA 95817 
EMAIL: Sharon@mwsac.org 
PHONE: 916-452-5356 

 
Susan Feenstra 
Retired Sacramento Police Department 
P.O. Box 101 
Wilton, CA 95693 
EMAIL: sfeenstra12@gmail.com 
PHONE: 916-806-0889 

 
Stephanie Landrum 
Public  Affairs 
Health Net 
1740 Creekside Oaks Drive Suite 200, 
Sacramento, CA 95833   |   
EMAIL: Stephanie.A.Landrum@healthnet.com 
PHONE: 916-688-2624 

 
Alexis Klein 
Deputy District Attorney 
Placer County District Attorney’s Office 
10810 Justice Center Drive Suite #240 
Roseville, CA 95678 
EMAIL: klein.alexism@gmail.com 
 
Jenny Aguilar 
Health and Human Services 
925 Del Paso Blvd #500 
Sacramento, CA 95815 
EMAIL:  aguilarje@saccounty.net 
 

mailto:cstinson@pd.cityofsacramento.org
mailto:tgalvan@cashsac.org
mailto:Sharon@mwsac.org
mailto:sfeenstra12@gmail.com
mailto:Stephanie.A.Landrum@healthnet.com
mailto:klein.alexism@gmail.com
mailto:aguilarje@saccounty.net


 
 

 

Community Against Sexual Harm 
Organizational Chart 

Executive Director 

Terri Galvan

College Interns/Volunteers

Stipend Peer

Center Coordinator

Ronda Hiemstra
Cal OES Case Manager 

Kristie Kiefer

VOCA Case Manager

Shenesa McCoy

Outreach 

April Grayson

Administrative Peer Mentor

VOCA Outreach

Yolanda Roberts

Bookkeeper

Mike Rayno & Gidiep 
Nguyen

Clinical Supervision

Julia Vander Schaaf

Program Administrator

Sawan Vaden

CASH Board of Directors 





 









 

 

COMMUNITY AGAINST SEXUAL HARM 
 

Financial Statements 

and 

Independent Auditor's Report 
 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2018 

 



Community Against Sexual Harm 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

December 31, 2018 
 

 

 

 
 
 
   PAGE          

 
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT   3 - 4 
 
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 5 
  
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS 6 
 
STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES  7 
 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 8 
 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS    9 - 13 
 



 

3 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 
 
To the Board of Directors 
Community Against Sexual Harm  
Sacramento, California 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Community Against Sexual Harm (a 

nonprofit organization), which comprises the statement of financial position as of December 31, 

2018, and the related statements of activities and changes in net assets, functional expenses and 

cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.   
 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements 

in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this 

includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the 

preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 

whether due to fraud or error. 
 

Auditor’s Responsibility 
 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We 

conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 

of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 

assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. 
 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 

disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, 

including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 

due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control 

relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to 

design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 

expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization’s internal control. Accordingly, we 

express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting 

policies used and the reasonableness of significant 

accounting estimates made by management, as well as 

evaluating the overall presentation of the financial 

statements. 

1515 River Park Drive, Suite 150 
Sacramento, CA 95815-4606 
Tel (916) 481-2856 
Fax (916) 488-4428 
http://www.dhscpa.com 



Page 2  

4 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 

for our audit opinion. 

 

Opinion 

 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 

the financial position of Community Against Sexual Harm as of December 31, 2018, and the 

changes in its net assets, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance 

with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 
Emphasis of Matter 

As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements, Community Against Sexual Harm adopted 

Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2016-14, Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic 958): 

Presentation of Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Entities. Our opinion is not modified with 

respect to this matter. 
 

 
DAMORE, HAMRIC & SCHNEIDER, INC. 

Certified Public Accountants  

 

Sacramento, CA 

 

May 17, 2019 

 
 
 
 
 



Community Against Sexual Harm 
 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION  
 

December 31, 2018 
 

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

5 

 

Current Assets:

Cash and Cash Equivalents 67,324$        
Accounts Receivable 54,359          

Prepaid Expenses and Deposits 3,909            

Total Current Assets and Total Assets 125,592$      

Current Liabilities:

Accounts Payable 13,082$        

Accrued Vacation 1,033            

Deferred Revenue 15,000          

Total Current Liabilities and Total Liabilities 29,115$        

Net Assets:

Net Assets without Donor Restrictions 96,477$        

Total Net Assets 96,477$        

Total Liabilities and Net Assets 125,592$      

ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS



Community Against Sexual Harm 
 

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS 
 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2018 
 

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

6 

 
Without Donor

Revenues: Restrictions

Direct Public Grants 202,773$         

Government Grants 111,205           

Direct Public Support 47,452             

Program Service Fees 22,140             

Special Events (net of direct fundraising expense of $3,570) 35,843             

In-Kind Revenue 6,870               

Total Revenues 426,283$         

 

Expenses:

Program Services 357,309$         

General and Administration 32,061             

Fundraising 9,019               

Total Expenses 398,389$         

 

Increase in Net Assets 27,894$           

Net Assets, Beginning of Year 68,584             

Net Assets, End of Year 96,478$           
 



Community Against Sexual Harm 
 

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES 

 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2018 

 

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

7 

 

Program General and 

Services Administration Fundraising Total

Salary 195,104$    17,222$             4,305$           216,631$    
Payroll Taxes 16,411        1,417                 354                18,182        
Occupancy 19,645                                  19,645        
Professional Services 717             6,277                 6,994          
Travel and Mileage 9,219                                    9,219          
Support Services 93,557        2,627                 96,184        
Communications 2,448          432                    2,880          
Supplies, Postage and Printing 3,205          954                    432                4,591          
Conferences, Education and Training 2,728                                    2,728          
Insurance 4,088          2,958                 7,046          
Special Events                    1,576             1,576          
Repairs and Maintenance 360             360             

Facilities and Equipment 5,310          55                      5,365          

Miscellaneous                    119                    119             

In-Kind Expense 4,517                                    2,352             6,869          

Total Functional Expenses 357,309$    32,061$             9,019$           398,389$    

Supporting Activities



 Community Against Sexual Harm 
 
 STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

 

 For the Year Ended December 31, 2018 

 

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

8 

 

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:

Change in Net Assets 27,894$        
Adjustments to Reconcile Change in Net Assets to                      

Cash used by Operating Activities:
(Increase) Decrease in:                      

Accounts Receivable 19,491)(          
Prepaid Expenses and Deposits 1,348            

Increase (Decrease) in:
Accounts Payable 1,368            
Due to Grantees 65,000)(          
Accrued Vacation 1,324)(            

Deferred Revenue 41,667)(          

Net Cash Used by Operating Activities 96,872)($        

Net Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents 96,872)($        

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 164,196        

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year 67,324$        

Supplemental Data:

Interest Paid in Cash 0$                 

Taxes Paid in Cash 0$                 
 

 



 Community Against Sexual Harm 
 
 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

 December 31, 2018 

 

 

9 

NOTE 1 ORGANIZATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: 
 

Community Against Sexual Harm (Organization) is a nonprofit public benefit 
corporation whose mission is to assist women that have been commercially sexually 
exploited through survivor-led peer support and harm reduction services, while 
providing education about the harm inflicted on women and the community. The 
Organization’s Drop-In Center in Sacramento, California, offers individual peer 
mentoring, case management, conducts street outreach, and educates the community 
about the personal and social consequences of commercial sexual exploitation.  The 
Organization’s programs are supported primarily through grants, contributions, and 
services provided from the Organization’s program. 
 
A. Use of Estimates - The preparation of financial statements in conformity with 

accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported 
amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those 
estimates. 
 

B. Basis of Accounting - The financial statements of the Organization reflect the 
accrual method of accounting in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles.  Net assets and revenues, expenses, gains, and losses are classified 
based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions according to 
three classes of net assets as follows: 

 

Net Assets without Donor Restrictions - Net assets that are not subject to 

donor-imposed stipulations. 

 

Net Assets with Donor Restrictions – Net assets subject to donor-imposed 

stipulations that may or will be met, either by actions of the Organization 

and/or the passage of time. The Organization had no net assets with donor 

restrictions as of December 31, 2018. 

 

C. Cash and Cash Equivalents - Cash and cash equivalents include demand 
deposits.  

 

D. Property and Equipment - Property and equipment having an extended useful 
life are capitalized at cost, when the cost is $2,000 or greater. As of December 
31, 2018, the Organization had no property and equipment that met the 
capitalization threshold.  
 



 Community Against Sexual Harm 
 
 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

 December 31, 2018 

 

 

10 

NOTE 1 ORGANIZATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued): 
 

E. Revenue Recognition - Program service fees are recognized when the services 
occur. All contributions are available for the Organization’s programs unless 
specifically restricted by the donor. Grants are earned and recorded as revenue 
when requirements from the grant agreements are met.  

 

F. Deferred Revenue - Deferred revenue represents funding received in advance of 
work performed or before revenue is earned. 
 

G. Accounts Receivable - The majority of the balance in this account consists of 

services that have been provided, but not yet received at December 31, 2018.  

The balances are stated at the amount management expects to collect from 

outstanding balances.  

 

H. Due to Grantees - During 2018, the Organization participated in a collaborative 

grant agreement and the disbursement of grants funds was passed through the 

Organization as the lead agency in the grant agreement. Due to grantees amount 

relates to funds outstanding from the collaborative agreement to be distributed 

to grant partners. No amounts were due at December 31, 2018.  

 

I. Contributed Materials and Services - The Organization records various types of 

in-kind contributions. Contributed services are recognized at fair value if the 

services received (a) create or enhance long-lived assets or (b) require 

specialized skills, are provided by individuals processing those skills, and 

would typically need to be purchased if not provided by donation. Contributions 

of tangible assets are recognized at fair value when received. Contributions of 

office space are recognized at fair value when used. The amounts reflected in 

the accompanying financial statements as in-kind support are offset by like 

amounts included in expenses. 

 

J. Income Taxes - The Organization is exempt from federal and state income taxes 

under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code (and corresponding 

California statute).  Accordingly, no provision for income taxes is included in 

these statements. 



 Community Against Sexual Harm 
 
 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

 December 31, 2018 

 

 

11 

NOTE 1 ORGANIZATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued): 
 

K. Accounting Pronouncements that have been Implemented in the Current 

Financial Statements: 

 

Financial Accounting Standards Board Accounting Standards Update 2016-14 

– On August 18, 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-14 – Not-for-Profit Entities 

(Topic 958): Presentation of Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Entities, 

with required implementation for Community Against Sexual Harm during the 

year ended December 31, 2018. The primary objective of the Update is to 

improve financial statement presentation by not-for-profit entities. It required 

Community Against Sexual Harm’s Statement of Financial Position to present 

two classes of net assets: net assets with donor restrictions and net assets 

without donor restrictions. The Update additionally required enhanced 

disclosures of Community Against Sexual Harm’s board designations and 

donor restricted assets, quantitative and qualitative information that 

communicates how the Organization manages its liquid resources available to 

meet cash needs for general expenditures within one year of the Statement of 

Financial Position date, and the methodology for allocating costs among 

program and support functions. The Update is required to be implemented on a 

retrospective basis and reclassifications of net assets and investment gains and 

losses were made in all periods presented. 

 

L. Newly Issued Accounting Pronouncement, But Not Yet Effective: 

 

Financial Accounting Standards Board Accounting Standards Update 2016-02 

– In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02 – Leases, with required 

implementation for Community Against Sexual harm during the year ending 

December 31, 2020. The objective of this Update is to increase transparency 

and comparability among organizations by recognizing lease assets and 

liabilities on the statement of financial position and disclosing key information 

about leasing arrangements in the notes to the financial statements. The impact 

of the implementation has not been assessed at this time. 

 

M. Subsequent Events Review - Management has evaluated subsequent events 

through the date of the audit report, which is the date the financial statements were 

available to be issued. 

 
 



 Community Against Sexual Harm 
 
 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

 December 31, 2018 

 

 

12 

NOTE 2 CONCENTRATIONS OF CREDIT RISK: 
 

The Organization maintains its cash balances in one financial institution. Accounts 

at the institution are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) 

up to $250,000. As of December 31, 2018, the Organization’s bank balance was 

fully insured by FDIC. 

 

The Organization also has a PayPal account to collect contributions. The PayPal 

balance account is not insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation 

(FDIC). As of December 31, 2018, the Organization’s uninsured balance was 

$2,531.  
 

 

NOTE 3 OPERATING LEASE: 

 

The Organization’s lease for office space expired on March 31, 2019. The monthly 

lease payment was $2,153, of which the Organization paid $1,435 and received an in-

kind donation of $718. At December 31, 2018, the total future lease commitment is 

$4,305. The annual rental expense was $19,645 and the annual in-kind donation was 

$8,616 in 2018. 

 

The Organization entered into a one-year lease effective April 1, 2019 with the same 

terms and conditions as the previous agreement. 
 

 

NOTE 4  FUNCTIONAL ALLOCATION OF EXPENSES: 

 

The costs of providing the various programs and activities have been summarized on 

a functional basis in the statement of activities.  Directly identifiable expenses are 

charged to programs, fundraising, and supporting services. Accordingly, certain costs 

have been allocated among the programs and supporting services benefited. Salary 

expenses are allocated between program and supporting activities based on 

management’s analysis of actual staff time. 
 

 

NOTE 5  VACATION AND SICK LEAVE BENEFITS: 

  

Accrued unpaid employee vacation benefits are recognized as a liability of the 

Organization. The amount of accumulated vacation benefits for 2018 was $1,033. 

 

Sick leave is offered, but employees do not have a vested right to accumulated sick 

leave. For this reason, the Organization does not accrue a liability for accumulated 

sick leave benefits. Sick leave benefits are recorded as expenditures in the period 

sick leave is taken. 



 Community Against Sexual Harm 
 
 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

 December 31, 2018 

 

 

13 

NOTE 6  LIQUIDITY: 

 

The Organization’s financial assets available within one year of the year ended 

December 31, 2018 for general expenditure are as follows: 

 

Financial Assets:

Cash and Cash Equivalents 67,324$      

Accounts Receivable 54,359        

Financial Assets at Year End 121,683$    

Less those unavailable for general expenditure within one year, due to:

Restrictions by donor

Board designations                    

Financial assets available to meet cash needs for

general expenditures within one year 121,683$    
 

 

The Organization’s management and Board of Directors meet monthly to review 

budgeted revenues and expenses and monitor the financial assets available as its 

general expenditures, liabilities, and other obligations come due.  



Expense Description Cost ALBH 2020
Program 

Food 6,000.00$                      2,500.00$             
Supplies 2,500.00$                      

Transportation 3,500.00$                      1,500.00$             

Totals: 12,000.00$                    4,000.00$             

Budget for Basic Need, Meals, and Transportation



ALBH	Grant	Application	2019
City	of	Sacramento

	Submitted	On:
October	28th,	2019	@	5:51pm

Organization	Name GRID	Alternatives	North	Valley

Physcial	Address 1417	N	Market	Blvd
Suite	3
Sacramento
CA
95834

Mailing	address	different	from
physical	address?

No

Name Arianne	Ortegaray

Title Corporate	&	Community	Relations	Officer

Phone	Number 9164723269

E-Mail	Address aortegaray@gridalternatives.org

Name Rebekah	Casey

Phone	Number 916-588-9279

E-Mail	Address rcasey@gridalternatives.org

Name Arianne	Ortegaray

Title Corporate	&	Community	Relations	Officer

Phone	Number 916-472-3269

E-Mail	Address aortegaray@gridalternatives.org

Please	indicate	below	the
services	you	are	requesting

Utilities

Indicate	the	dollar	amount
requested	for	Utilities

$10,000

#	of	clients	that	will	be	served	by
the	Ann	Land	&	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds

Approximately	150,000	people	receive	resources	every	month

Total	Amount	Requested $10,000.00

The	amount	requested	will	be
applied	to	the	following.

One-time	Project

The	funds	requested	will	be	used
to	serve	the	following	(please
check	all	that	apply)

Families
Women
Men
Children



Will	other	funds	supplement	Ann
Land	and	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds	request	for	this
program?

Yes

Briefly	explain GRID	Alternatives	North	Valley	is	partnering	with	the	Sacramento	Metropolitan	Utility	District
(SMUD)	for	their	Community	Solar	Program.	This	program	provides	financial	support	for	the
installation	of	rooftop	solar	systems	on	local	nonprofit	organization	facilities.	SMUD	has	a	goal	to
promote	energy	efficiency	and	solar	measures	to	low-income	customers	and	nonprofit
businesses	in	the	Sacramento	area	through	coordinated	efforts	with	community	service
providers.

Did	you	lose	any	funding	in	2019
from	any	source?

No

Do	you	anticipate,	or	have	you
been	notified,	that	you	will	lose
funding	in	2020?

No

Are	you	aware	of,	or	do	you
anticipate	receiving,	any	new
sources	of	funding	in	2020,	for
example,	stimulus	or	other
funds?

No

List	the	hours	that	programs
funded	by	Ann	Land	and	Bertha
Henschel	Memorial	Funds	will	be
available	to	clients.

The	Solar	Savings	for	the	Sacramento	Food	Bank	Project	will	support	Sacramento	Food	Bank	&
Family	Services’	general	operations.	These	are	available	to	clients	Monday	through	Friday,	from
roughly	8:30	AM	to	4	PM.	They	have	a	vast	offering	of	support	services	and	food	distributions,
reaching	the	most	underserved	areas	in	Sacramento	county.	SFBFS’	Produce	For	All	provides
free,	fresh	fruits	and	vegetables	to	individuals	and	families	at	health	clinics,	schools,	churches,
and	other	community	centers.

Describe	the	geographic	service
area,	within	the	City,	when	you
will	spend	the	requested	funds.

Sacramento	Food	Bank	&	Family	Services	(SFBFS)	is	the	official	food	bank	of	Sacramento
County.	It’s	partner	Agencies	include	food	closets,	churches	and	other	organizations	that
distribute	groceries/meals	and	receive	their	food/support	through	SFBFS.	Together,	SFBFS	and
over	220	Partner	Agencies	feed	over	150,000	men,	women	and	children	every	month	in
Sacramento	County.

Please	upload	a	brief	description
(no	more	than	two	pages)	of	the
program	or	service	for	which	you
are	requesting	funds.	Explain	how
the	program	or	service
addresses	the	mission	and
funding	priorities	of	the	Ann	Land
and	Bertha	Henschel	Memorial
Funds.

https://seam.ly/mx5ccqCk

Mission	Statement	–
Organizational	Goal

GRID	Alternatives''	mission	is	to	use	climate	change	solutions	to	empower	underserved
communities	through	education	and	adoption	of	clean	energy	technology.	Every	GRID	project
generates	measurable	"triple	bottom	line"	results:	long-term	financial	benefits	for	low-income
families	struggling	to	keep	up	with	monthly	expenses;	training	and	hands-on	experience	for	local
workers	in	solar	installation;	and	environmental	benefits	for	everyone	by	preventing	local
greenhouse	gas	emissions.



Date	incorporated	or	otherwise
formed

6
5
2014

Briefly	describe	other	services
and	programs	your	organization
currently	provides.

Energy	for	All	is	our	flagship	program,	where	we	develop	and	implement	clean	energy	projects	in
communities	of	concern	at	no	cost	to	homeowners	and	renters.	We	integrate	real-world,	hands-
on	training	in	every	solar	project	and	provide	job	placement	assistance	for	job	seekers.	We
partner	with	affordable	housing	organizations,	job	training	groups,	State	and	local	agencies,
utilities,	tribes,	and	nonprofits	to	ensure	the	rapidly	growing	clean	energy	economy	is	a	win	for	all
our	communities.

Private	or	Corporate	Donations
(Amount)

$120,000

Private	or	Corporate	Donations
(%	of	Total	Funding)

1.54%

United	Way	(Amount) $0

United	Way	(%	of	Total	Funding) 0%

SETA	(Amount) $0

SETA	(%	of	Total	Funding) 0%

Federal	Assistance	(Amount) $0

Federal	Assistance	(%	of	Total
Funding)

0%

State	Assistance	(Amount) $3,380,225

State	Assistance	(%	of	Total
Funding)

43.26%

City	or	County	Assistance	(not
from	the	Ann	Land	Bertha
Henschel	Memorial	Funds)
(Amount)

$0

City	or	County	Assistance	(not
from	the	Ann	Land	Bertha
Henschel	Memorial	Funds)	(%	of
Total	Funding)

0%

Grants	(Amount) $125,000

Grants	(%	of	Total	Funding) 1.6%

Ann	Land	and	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds	(Amount)

$0

Ann	Land	and	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds	(%	of	Total
Funding)

0%

Other	(briefly	describe	below)
(Amount)

$4,189,316



Other	(briefly	describe	below)	(%
of	Total	Funding)

53.61%

Total	Amount $7,814,541.00

Other	Income	Sources The	other	sources	include:	Shared	Income	from	Headquarters,	In-kind	Construction	Materials,
Fee-for-service	work	for	Multifamily/Commercial	and	Workforce	Development	projects,	Third
Party	Ownership	Net	Proceeds,	and	Individual	Contributions.

The	names	of	the	members	of
your	organization’s	board	of
directors	and	of	your
organization’s	officers

https://seam.ly/9kiWgx9e

An	organizational	chart	or
description	of	your	organization’s
management	structure

https://seam.ly/FF6jstSs

Verification	of	your
organization’s	not-for-profit
status	(letter	from	IRS	confirming
§	501(c)(3)	status)

https://seam.ly/NT4UgvNo

Verification	that	your
organization	(1)	is	currently
registered	and	in	good	standing
with	the	Registry	of	Charitable
Trusts	maintained	by	the
California	Attorney	General	or	(2)
is	not	required	to	register.

https://seam.ly/jzestlsz

A	copy	of	your	organization’s
current	business	license	or	a
letter	from	the	City	of
Sacramento	Finance	Department
verifying	your	organization’s
exemption	from	the	City’s
business-operations	tax.	The
Sacramento	City	Code	requires
that	anyone	conducting	business
within	the	City	of	Sacramento
have	a	current	business	license
on	file	with	the	City.	The	City
issues	nonprofit	organizations	a
waiver	letter	in	lieu	of	a	business
license.	A	waiver	letter	can	be
obtained	at	the	Revenue	Counter
in	New	City	Hall,	First	Floor,	Room
1214.	Indicate	your
organization’s	non-profit	status
on	the	application	form.	There	is
no	charge	for	nonprofit
organizations.

https://seam.ly/lOOexEG7



A	copy	of	your	organization’s
most	recent	audit	and	any
corrective	actions	or
recommendations	suggested	by
the	auditor.	If	you	do	not	have	an
annual	audit,	please	explain	why.
You	must	also	provide	a	copy	of
your	organization’s	most-recent
annual	financial	statements,
signed	by	your	organization’s
treasurer	AND	by	the	preparer,
whether	a	CPA	or	bookkeeper

https://seam.ly/Yt8NhIRt

A	budget	sheet	showing	how
awarded	funds	will	be	spent

https://seam.ly/Yt1FvRNl

Signature	Data First	Name:	Arianne
Last	Name:	Ortegaray
Email	Address:	aortegaray@gridalternatives.org

Signed	at:	10/28/2019	01:58PM



 

Solar Savings for the Sacramento Food Bank 

 

 

 

Project Description 

Sacramento Food Bank & Family Services (SFBFS) has evolved from a church basement food 

pantry in Oak Park to the largest nonprofit provider of basic human needs in Sacramento 

County. With that growth in provided services, comes an ever-growing cost of utilities, 

specifically electricity. We seek funds to cover the funding gap for installing solar power for the 

SFBFS to enhance the efficiency and savings for building operations. Cost savings from solar 

power generation will directly benefit the impoverished men, women, children, and families 

receiving support from the SFBFS. Homelessness has increased by an estimated 19% in 

Sacramento County since 2017. There are visible signs of its impact on individuals and families 

and in our neighborhoods, and thousands depend on SFBFS for food, clothing, education, legal 

services, and general support.  

 

Given how many individuals and families already depend on this organization for support, they 

have already proven the quantifiable impact they can have when provided necessary resources. 

A significant benefit of the organization installing solar is that it allows for sustainable savings 

that can go to those in need, rather than one-time funding that would not be as reliable.  

  

With this project, there are many opportunities to track outcomes using metrics, ranging from 

utility savings to the number of kilowatts of clean, renewable energy installed to the number of 

tons of greenhouse gas reduction resulting from this project installation.  

 

Supporting the solar installation through GRID Alternatives allows funding provided to go even 

further. GRID is a high impact nonprofit, having installed 48MW of solar and benefitting over 

13,000 people. By integrating workforce development in every solar project, GRID provides the 

opportunity for individuals to take part in climate solutions within their own community. GRID's 

work ensures that the benefits of the clean economy reach those who are most impacted by 

pollution, poverty, and climate change.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Sacramento Food Bank & Family Services (SFBFS) 

Sacramento Food Bank & Family Services is a local, non-profit agency committed to serving 

individuals and families in need. With a staff of 88 and a volunteer force over 9,000 annually, 

SFBFS provides free emergency goods and services to 150,000 men, women and children each 

month. SFBFS offers a safe space for hope to grow, without judgment, among neighbors that 

value every human experience. The organization connects people to services and partners with 

other local support organizations in problem-solving. 

 

 

 

GRID Alternatives 

GRID Alternatives' is a national nonprofit whose vision is of a successful transition to clean, 

renewable energy that includes everyone, especially communities of concern. The communities 

GRID serves are among Sacramento’s most diverse and disadvantaged neighborhoods with the 

highest percentages of minority and low-income populations. Every GRID project generates 

measurable "triple bottom line" results: long-term financial benefits for solar energy recipients 

to keep up with monthly expenses; training and hands-on experience for local workers in a 

growing field of solar installation; and environmental benefits by preventing greenhouse gas 

emissions and building support for solar power as a mainstream solution for our local 

community. With this project for the Sacramento Food Bank & Family Services, the goal is to 

spread the savings that come from solar power generation to the thousands of community 

members who depend on their support.  



   

 
 
 

GRID Alternatives North Valley 
Board of Directors Roster 

 
 
 
Brandie Leathers, President 
Business Development Director Performance Infrastructure, Johnson Controls 
 
Brandie Leathers has more than 20 years of experience in the technology industry and serves as an 
advocate for regulatory and regional utility power providers, with a focus on Federal and State policies. 
 Previously, Leathers served as the Director of Application Engineering and Project Management at SMA 
America.  Leathers is currently Business Development Director Performance Infrastructure for Johnson 
Controls. She is also the owner of Your Energy, Inc., a Northern California-based company that helps 
startups and established companies develop and implement initiatives in the clean energy sector, as 
well as the owner of V2 Energy Solutions, LLC., a Veteran-owned Holding Company that is focused on 
the development of both sustainable energy and infrastructure support solutions via Veteran based 
small and mid sized businesses.  
 
Jonathan Marz, Secretary 
Attorney, Diepenbrock Elkin Gleason LLP 
 
Jonathan Marz is a partner of Diepenbrock Elkin Gleason LLP, a Sacramento-based Law Firm with a 
statewide practice in Construction, Business, Real Estate and Environmental Law.  His own practice 
focuses on Construction and Business Litigation.  Jonathan received his J.D. from Santa Clara University 
School of Law and his B.A. in Political Science and History from UC Davis.  Jonathan's interest in GRID 
Alternatives arises from his shared interest in the company's three-part philanthropic goals: (1) helping 
low-income families attain economic security; (2) providing volunteer installers valuable hands-on 
experience; and (3) pursuing clean, renewable energy. 
 
Kate Meis, Member 
Executive Director, Local Government Commission 

 
Kate Meis has been a leader at the Local Government Commission for the last decade and has served as 
Executive Director since 2013.  The LGC is a nationally recognized nonprofit connecting local leaders, 
implementing innovative solutions and advancing smart-growth policies.  Meis has been recognized for 
her climate change work by the Chronicle of Philanthropy as one of the nation's "40 under 40 Young 
Leaders Who Are Solving the Problems of Today - and Tomorrow."  Meis has helped launch many of the 
LGC's pioneering programs, including the Statewide Energy Efficiency Collaborative, the California 
Adaptation Forum, CivicSpark, and the Alliance of Regional Collaboratives for Climate Adaptation. 
 
Sara Long, Member 
Sr. Marketing Manager, Direct & Digital Acquisition, SUNRUN 
 
Sara Long is Senior Marketing Manager at Direct & Digital Acquisition at Sunrun, Inc. the largest 
dedicated residential solar company in the U.S. Prior to Sunrun, Inc., Sara has worked at Rec Solar, Inc. 



    
 

 

and Conergy USA in various marketing positions.  Sara brings with her 10 years of marketing 
development in the solar industry, including lead generation, branding, event planning, and strategic 
development.  Sara was first introduced to GRID in 2011 when installing a solar system on a school in 
Nicaragua with Power to the People, now known as GRID’s International program. 
 
 
Derrick Ross 

Research and Development Engineer at Western Cooling Efficiency Center 

 
Derrick Ross specializes in mechanical engineering, ventilation, and air conditioning (HVAC) 
technologies. Currently employed as a Research & Development Engineer at UC Davis Western Cooling 
Efficiency Center, Derrick studies emerging HVAC technologies using a combination of equipment 
modeling, laboratory experiments, and field demonstrations with the hopes of ultimately reducing 
greenhouse gas emissions.  



Bob 

Executive Director 

Denice 

Executive Assistant 
/Ofc M r 

Krista 

Executive 
Assistant/Events M 

Rebekah 

Deputy Director 

Jarrett 

Regional Construction 
Manager 

Katie Neal 

Quality & Standards 
Program Mgr, 

Commercial/Residential 

Ann 

Director, Operations & 

Programs 

Arianne Ortegaray 

Corp & Community Relations Ofer 

Bakari Touray

Multifamily Project Developer

Carol Davy(lova 

Individual & Major Gift Ofer 

Hilary Tellesen 

Workforce Programs Mgr 

Shyla Black 

Multifamily Program Coordinator

Steve Geiger 

Tech Academy Mgr & Solar 
Installation Training Ofer 

Kevin Miller 

Design Mgr & SIS 

David Walsh 

Field Proj Mgr & Technical Lead 

Sergio Coronel 

Chico Construction Mgr 

TBD 

Project Manager 

TBD 

Electrician 

Andre Marks 

Construction Asst 

TBD

TBD

Hallie Kenyon 

SIS 

Jerry Ramirez 

SolarCorps Const Fellow 

Sekou Whitecotton 

SolarCorps Const Fellow 

Philip Burke 

SIS 

Sterling Gilmer 

SolarCorps Const Fellow 

Tyler Chandon 

SIS 

Melanie Biesecker 

Outreach Mgr 

Kari Kapadia 

Operations Project Mgr 

Alisha Sellers 

Communications Assoc 

Devin Beltran 

Workforce Programs 
S ecialist 

Miguel Ruiz 

SolarCorps Workforce & 
Volunteerism Fellow 

Garry Negroni 

Solar Trainer & 
Installation Su ervisor 

Eric Goldman 

Site Visit & Design Specialist 

Chase Martini 

Project Mgmt Fellow 

Calen Barnes 

Construction Asst 

Kris Delgado 

SolarCorps Const Fellow 

Cesar 

Outreach Coordinator 

Dan Beveridge 

Sr Outreach Coordinator 

Drew Smith 

Outreach Coordinator 

Emily Potter 

Outreach Coordinator 

Hannah Rolland 

Outreach Specialist 

Summer LeBard 

Outreach Coordinator 



 

GRID Alternatives 1171 Ocean Avenue O 510.731.1310 E info@gridalternatives.org 

 Oakland, CA 94608 F 510.225.2585 W gridalternatives.org 

 

 

January 8, 2015 

 

To Whom It May Concern: 

 

The following organizations are affiliates of GRID Alternatives, and are recognized by the IRS 
as tax-exempt subordinates under the attached determination letter: 
 

GRID Alternatives Colorado, Inc. 
EIN: 46-1815422 
1120 W. 12th Avenue 
Denver, CO 80204 

 
GRID Alternatives Greater Los 
Angeles, Inc. 
EIN: 46-1652604 
950 Dovlen Place, Suite B 
Carson, CA 90746 
 

GRID Alternatives Mid-Atlantic, 
Inc. 
EIN: 47-2717517 
1629 Benning RD NE, Suite 300 
Washington, DC 20002

GRID Alternatives North Valley, 
Inc. 
EIN: 47-2700073 
3860 Morrow Lane, Suite A 
Chico, CA 95928 
 

GRID Alternatives San Diego, Inc. 
EIN: 47-2682164 
1827 Main Street, Suite 200 
San Diego, CA 92113 
 

GRID Alternatives Tri-State, Inc. 
EIN: 46-4330266 
1360 Garrison Avenue 
Bronx, NY 10474 

 

If you have any questions or require additional information, please contact Tim Sears, GRID 
Alternatives COO/CFO and Co-Founder, at tsears@gridalternatives.org or (510) 731-1313. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

 

Erica Mackie 
CEO and Co-Founder 











�

�������	
�����	���
�������������������������������������������������� �!�����"��#� ��������$������%�#�&%��%��'������������%���!&(�%��)*+,-./0-12.�3-456 789:�;<=>8?;=9@>A�?B8=C�@;<<>DE�9?FG HIJ�KLH36 MNONPPPNQL.1RS�TSU56 J*JVKTW�X2+U2+-R5V*+,-./0-12.�3Y4Z5+6 QNM[Q\]I5,/̂R+S�JR-RŶ6 F_̀ àbc I5.5d-e�fY5VLgUh�f-R56 ijkijOPk[IXT�I5,/̂R+-12.�3Y4Z5+6 F=POMNP[M Ĥ̂Y5�f-R56 OjQjOPkNI5l2+m�TSU56 Fnòpcq�8arpsc̀otub Lv5l1w5�f-R56 OjQjOPkNf-R5�Tx/̂�JR-RŶ6 QjO\jOPk\ f-R5�2y�z-̂R�I5.5d-e6 kOjk[jOPk\{	��
��|}}����JR+55R6 Q\]P�~B88B��<?E�?BG�A=>�;JR+55R�z/.5��6X/RS��JR-R5��/U6 FC9FB�F;�[i[O\���
�������������
}�
���p̀sc�?ut�a�cu�8arpscà �p̀sc�?ut�a�cu�8arpscàFub�̀�otub�u��8arpsc̀otub�<a�à Fub�̀�otub�u��8arpsc̀otub�<a�à8aba�o���p�pbr OPkN98A��ù��[[P�Aàpas OPk]Fù às�ub�ab�a��̀u��8arpsc̀q OPk]�9b�u���aca��p�pbr�?ut�a�ù��88��k OPk]�pbo��?ut�a�cu�8arpscà �pbo��?ut�a�cu�8arpscàOPki�9b�u���aca�88��k OPki�9b�u���aca�88��kOPki�98A��ù��[[P OPki�98A��ù��[[P�u_b�pbr�:u�_�abcs �u_b�pbr�:u�_�abcsOPki�88��k OPki�88��k|

�	���
��	��	�	JR-RŶ�2y�K/e/.,6 ;��a�ca��ll2Y.1.,��5+/2m�W5,/.�f-R56 kjkjOPki�ll2Y.1.,��5+/2m�L.m�f-R56 kOjQkjOPkiT2R-e��̂ 5̂R̂6 �MiPE\N]GPPT2R-e�I5w5.Y56 �QEQOOEONQGPPK/e/.,�I5l5/w5m�f-R56 kkjkNjOPk]X24Ue5R5�HIJ�K2+4�����I5l5/w5m���V3�6 D*.e/.5�JYZ4/̂̂/2.���V3�6 ?JR-RŶ�2y�K/e/.,6 ;��a�ca�

���  �¡¢�£¤ �� ¥¦¡ �§¡̈   ̈ © �  ̈ª£«¡¤¦�¬© �  ̈©�£̈ § © � ̈ �ª̈ ¡�©§�¬¤¡§¤



�

���������	
����	����	����� �����������������	
����	���	����� ���������������	������� ���� !����"�������	#�$����� �%�� ���� "��&���	#���$��	����� ���������'(�)*����	+#,	&��)	--.	#���$��	/0123� 45����	,�6)����	/0123� 7,�����	�8	&���� 9::;<=;>���������	
����	����	����� �������'���������	
����	���	����� ���������'�����	������� ���%�'�� �"�������	#�$����� ����?'� ? "��&���	#���$��	����� ���� ����?(�)*����	+#,	&��)	--.	#���$��	/0123� 45����	,�6)����	/0123�@ABCDAE	@AFGHDICDGJKH	L	MNAKD	@AOJIDHPQR	SRTUVRW	SRXYSWZ	ZQY[\	]RTY[	WR̂R\W	Y\	VQR	SRXYSW	V_̂R	]R̀\a	b̀R[RWcdQUS̀V_	eRàZVSUV̀Y\Z	SRTUVR	VY	fSYgRZZ̀Y\UT	hi\WSÙZ̀\a	jbR\VZ	[Q̀XQ	SRTUVR	VY	fSYgRZZ̀Y\UT	hi\WSÙZRS	eRàZVSUV̀Y\ZkeUggTR	eRàZVSUV̀Y\Z	SRTUVR	VY	eUggTR	eR̂YSVZkdT̀Xl	Y\	VQR	@mn	@AFGHDICDGJK	oJ	VY	\Ub̀aUVR	VY	VQR	SRTUVRW	SRXYSWk7p	q;rs=;>	q;:pt>u





GRID ALTERNATIVES 

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2016 



GRID ALTERNATIVES 

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS WITH ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015 

CONTENTS 

Independent Auditors’ Report…………………………………………………………………………………   1 

Consolidated Statements of Financial Position ……………………………………………..……………....   4 

2016 Consolidated Statement of Activities…………………………..…………………….………..………..   5 

2015 Consolidated Statement of Activities…………………………………………………………………...   6 

2016 Consolidated Statement of Functional Expenses ………….…………………..………………….…   7 

2015 Consolidated Statement of Functional Expenses……………………………………………………..   8 

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows …………………………………………………………………….   9 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements ……………………………………………………….….…… 10 

Additional Information 

Independent Auditors’ Report on Additional Information……………………….……………….…… 21 

2016 Consolidating Schedule of Financial Position …………………………………………..….…. 22 

2015 Consolidating Schedule of Financial Position…………………………………………….……. 23 

2016 Consolidating Schedule of Activities……………………………………………………….…… 24 

2015 Consolidating Schedule of Activities……………………………………………………….…… 25 

Schedules of Financial Position - Greater Los Angeles, Inc…………………………………...……. 26 

Schedules of Activities - Greater Los Angeles, Inc………………………………………………..…. 27 

Schedules of Financial Position - Colorado, Inc……………………………………………………… 28 

Schedules of Activities - Colorado, Inc……………………………………………………………..…. 29 



GRID ALTERNATIVES 

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS WITH ADDITIONAL INFORMATION (CONT’D) 
DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015 

Schedules of Financial Position - Tri-State, Inc……………………………………….…….…..……. 30 

Schedules of Activities - Tri-State, Inc……………………………………….……………….…..…… 31 

Schedules of Financial Position - San Diego, Inc……………………………………….….…..……. 32 

Schedules of Activities - San Diego, Inc…………………………………………………..……..…… 33 

Schedules of Financial Position - North Valley, Inc……………………………………..………..….. 34 

Schedules of Activities - North Valley, Inc………………………………………..………………..…. 35 

Schedules of Financial Position - Mid-Atlantic, Inc…………………………..……………….…….... 36 

Schedules of Activities - Mid-Atlantic, Inc…………………………………………..……………….... 37 

Schedule of Financial Position - Central Valley, Inc……………………………………………….… 38 

Schedule of Activities - Central Valley, Inc………………………………………………..………….. 39 
2016 California Public Utilities Commission - Single-Family Affordable 
 Solar Homes Program SASH Expenditures, Advances and Incentives…………………………. 40 

Supplemental Information 

Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on 

 Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Consolidated Financial Statements 

   Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards…….………………………….. 41 

Independent Auditors’ Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and Report 

  on Internal Control Over Compliance, Required by Uniform Guidance……………………….. 43 

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards……………………………………………………….. 46 

Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards………………………………………… 47 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs………………………………………………………… 49 

Management’s Response and Corrective Action Plan……………………………………………… 53 



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 

To the Board of Directors of 

GRID Alternatives 

REPORT ON THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of GRID Alternatives and its Affiliates 

(collectively, the Organization), which comprise the consolidated statements of financial position as of 

December 31, 2016 and 2015; the related consolidated statements of activities, of cash flows and of functional 

expenses for the years then ended; and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements. 

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements 

in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, which includes the 

design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of 

consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We 

conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America 

and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 

Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain 

reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement. 

An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the 

consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the 

assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud 

or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the Organization’s 

preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures 

that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 

5000 Executive Parkway, Suite 400 San Ramon, California 94583-4346 925-277-9100 Main 925-277-9552 Fax



To the Board of Directors of 

GRID Alternatives  

Page two  

of the Organization’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating 

the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates 

made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 

opinion. 

OPINION 

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 

financial position of the Organization as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, and the changes in its net assets and 

its cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 

States of America. 

EMPHASIS OF MATTER  

The previously issued financial statements have been restated for the correction of a material misstatement. 

The explanation for the restatement is disclosed at Note 16 to these financial statements. Our opinion is not 

modified with respect to that matter. 

OTHER MATTERS - SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION 

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements taken 

as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of 

Federal Regulations, Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit 

Requirements for Federal Awards, is presented for the purpose of additional analysis and is not a required part 

of the consolidated financial statements.  Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived 

from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated 

financial statements. The information has been subject to the auditing procedures applied in the audits of the 

consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such 

information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial 

statements or to the consolidated financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in 

accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the 

schedule of expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the consolidated 

financial statements taken as a whole.   



To the Board of Directors of 

GRID Alternatives  

Page three 

OTHER REPORTING REQUIRED BY GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated July 31, 2017, on 

our consideration of the Organization’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 

compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, and other matters. 

The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting 

and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over 

financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 

Government Auditing Standards in considering the Organization’s internal control over financial reporting 

and compliance. 

San Ramon, California 

July 31, 2017 

kmannell
Stamp



See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 

-4- 

GRID ALTERNATIVES 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015 

2016 2015

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 2,399,222$        3,503,233$        
Grants and contracts receivable 8,152,207 4,966,916
Certificates of deposit 15,947 36,057
Investments 1,068,979 1,187,838
Construction-in-process 2,489,125 1,152,399
Prepaid expenses 1,698,317   1,112,531  

Total current assets 15,823,797   11,958,974  

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property and equipment, net of 
  accumulated depreciation 786,310 608,920
Deposits 95,804   81,651    

Total non-current assets 882,114  690,571   

Total assets 16,705,911$     12,649,545$     

CURRENT LIABILIT IES
Accounts payable and 
  other accrued expenses 2,374,759$        1,242,745$        
Deferred revenue 616,396 859,570
Accrued payroll liabilities 781,601 590,400
Line of credit 1,000,000   1,000,000  

Total current liabilities 4,772,756   3,692,715  

NET ASSETS
Unrestricted, as restated 6,683,977 3,471,009
Unrestricted - Board-designated reserve 1,500,000 1,500,000
Temporarily restricted, as restated 3,749,178   3,985,821  

Total net assets 11,933,155   8,956,830  

Total liabilities and net assets 16,705,911$     12,649,545$     

LIABILIT IES AND NET ASSETS

ASSETS



See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 

-5- 

GRID ALTERNATIVES 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016  

Temporarily
Unrestricted Restricted Total

REVENUE AND SUPPORT
Grants 

Government -$      16,390,521$   16,390,521$   
Foundation 1,117,236  3,339,622   4,456,858  
Corporation 1,394,917  -  1,394,917  

Donations - individual and events 440,088  -  440,088  
Service contracts 16,796,730    -  16,796,730   
Dividend income 33,385  -  33,385  
In-kind revenue 3,628,978  -  3,628,978  
Net assets released from restrictions 19,966,786    (19,966,786)   -  

Total revenue and support 43,378,120    (236,643)  43,141,477   

EXPENSES
Program services 32,347,023    -  32,347,023   
General and administrative 4,487,012  -  4,487,012  
Fundraising 3,331,117  -  3,331,117   

Total expenses 40,165,152    -  40,165,152   

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 3,212,968  (236,643)  2,976,325  

NET ASSETS
Beginning of year, as restated 4,971,009  3,985,821   8,956,830   

End of year 8,183,977$     3,749,178$     11,933,155$   



See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 

-6- 

GRID ALTERNATIVES 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015  

Temporarily
Unrestricted Restricted Total

REVENUE AND SUPPORT
Grants 

Government -$      6,314,888$     6,314,888$     
Foundation 91,469  4,702,500  4,793,969   
Corporation 1,197,186  -  1,197,186   

Donations - individual and events 375,699   -  375,699    
Service contracts 16,574,364    -  16,574,364   
Dividend income 38,643  -  38,643  
In-kind revenue 5,376,648  -  5,376,648   
Net assets released from restrictions 7,731,567  (7,731,567)   -  

Total revenue and support 31,385,576    3,285,821  34,671,397   

EXPENSES
Program services 26,980,818    -  26,980,818   
General and administrative 3,063,548  -  3,063,548   
Fundraising 4,443,768  -  4,443,768   

Total expenses 34,488,134    -  34,488,134   

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS (3,102,558)  3,285,821  183,263    

NET ASSETS
Beginning of year 8,073,567  700,000  8,773,567   

End of year, as restated 4,971,009$     3,985,821$     8,956,830$     



See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 

-7- 

GRID ALTERNATIVES 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016  

General and

Program

 Expenses Fundraising Services Total

Salaries and wages 2,424,125$      1,935,372$     9,688,908$     14,048,405$   

Payroll taxes and fringe benefits 673,443   436,960  2,826,304   3,936,707   

Travel and conferences 262,098   168,580  1,275,660   1,706,338   

Printing 26,447      54,823   75,602   156,872  

Bank charges 91,964      -   1,619  93,583   

Program material - 

  supplies and permits 21,814   26,186   9,561,920   9,609,920   

Program consultants -   -   2,252,954   2,252,954   

Insurance 16,602   17,048   106,123  139,773  

Telecommunication 42,796   38,417   215,745  296,958  

Staff development 12,107   15,321   115,805  143,233  

Facilities 126,590   128,406  705,443  960,439  

Professional fees 325,294   457,571  1,690,250   2,473,115   

Postage 12,191   5,825  20,461   38,477   

Office expenses 86,908   34,129   46,795   167,832  

Depreciation 16,472   11,628   180,302  208,402  

Miscellaneous taxes and fees 10,346   851  264,444  275,641  

External grants/awards -   -   27,525   27,525   

Donations/awards 337,815   -   3,291,163  3,628,978  

4,487,012$      3,331,117$     32,347,023$   40,165,152$   

Administrative



See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 

-8- 

GRID ALTERNATIVES 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015 

General and

Program

 Expenses Fundraising Services Total

Salaries and wages 1,673,361$     2,301,517$     6,443,594$     10,418,472$   

Payroll taxes and fringe benefits 306,979  618,798   1,757,558   2,683,335   

Travel and conferences 229,653  229,235   852,258   1,311,146   

Printing 19,815     72,557  52,107   144,479  

Bank charges 55,257     1,115.00  1,550  57,922   

Program material - 

  supplies and permits 12,457  25,143  6,257,593   6,295,193   

Program consultants 710.00  300.00  4,275,427   4,276,437   

Insurance 18,395  13,375  183,078   214,848  

Telecommunication 48,123  67,895  115,332   231,350  

Staff development 11,554  11,405  59,540   82,499   

Facilities 88,279  254,747   411,788   754,814  

Professional fees 300,164  793,938   789,638   1,883,740   

Postage 10,611  5,599   15,194   31,404   

Office expenses 66,103  37,281  78,729   182,113  

Depreciation 10,005  10,013  130,875   150,893  

Miscellaneous taxes and fees 4,342   850  387,649   392,841  

External grants/awards -    -   -  -  

Donations/awards 207,740  -   5,168,908   5,376,648  

3,063,548$     4,443,768$     26,980,818$   34,488,134$   

Administrative



See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 

-9- 

GRID ALTERNATIVES 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015 

2016 2015

Cash flows from operating activities
Change in net assets 2,976,325$     183,263$         
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to
  net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

Depreciation 208,402 150,893  
Net gain/loss on investments (31,141)    67,069     

Changes in assets and liabilities
Deposits (14,153)    (28,426)   
Current grants and contracts receivable (3,185,291)     (2,282,203)       
Construction-in-process (1,336,726)     62,125     
Prepaid expenses (585,786)  (875,780)          
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 1,132,014       (4,054)      
Accrued payroll liabilities 191,201   251,275  
Deferred revenue  (243,174)  (342,647)          

Net cash used in operating activities (888,329)  (2,818,485)       

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of equipment (385,792)  (464,927)          
Sale of certificates of deposit 20,110     1,895,093        
Sale of investments 150,000   -           

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (215,682)  1,430,166        

Cash flows from financing activities
Principal borrowing on line of credit -            1,000,000        

Net cash provided by financing activities -            1,000,000        

Net change  in cash and cash equivalents (1,104,011)     (388,319)          

Cash and cash equivalents
Beginning of year 3,503,233       3,891,552        

End of year 2,399,222$     3,503,233$      

Supplemental information

Interest paid 61,507$           93,104$           

No income taxes were paid in either year.



-10- 

GRID ALTERNATIVES 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015 

NOTE 1. ORGANIZATION AND TAX STATUS 

GRID Alternatives and its Affiliates (collectively, the Organization) is a non-profit, tax-exempt service 

organization makes renewable energy technology and job training accessible to underserved communities. The 

Organization is exempt from federal and state income tax liability under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal 

Revenue Code and Section 23701d of the California Revenue and Taxation Code. GRID Alternatives is a 

nationally recognized non-profit organization headquartered in Oakland, California. It operated four regional 

branch offices under its entity, located in the Bay Area, Central Coast, Central Valley and Inland Empire 

regions of California, during the year ended December 31, 2015. Effective January 2016, Central Valley 

spun off as a separate affiliate. The Organization also conducts work in tribal communities in South Dakota, 

Arizona, Montana, New Mexico and operated an international branch office in Nicaragua during 2015 and 

2016. 

The Organization is affiliated with GRID Alternatives Colorado, Inc.; GRID Alternatives Greater Los Angeles, 

Inc.; GRID Alternatives Tri-State, Inc.; GRID Alternatives San Diego, Inc.; GRID Alternatives North Valley, Inc.; 

GRID Alternatives Mid-Atlantic, Inc.; and GRID Alternatives Central Valley, Inc. These affiliates install solar 

electric systems for low-income families and affordable housing providers throughout their region, providing 

families with needed savings and training workers for jobs in the growing solar industry. The financial activity of 

these organizations is included in the accompanying consolidated financial statements of the Organization.   

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require management to evaluate the 

tax positions taken by the Organization and to recognize a tax liability if the Organization has taken an uncertain 

position that more likely than not would not be sustained upon examination by the Internal Revenue Service 

(IRS). Management has analyzed the tax positions taken by the Organization and has concluded that, as of 

December 31, 2016, there are no uncertain positions taken, or expected to be taken, that would require 

recognition of a liability or disclosure in the consolidated financial statements. The Organization is subject to 

routine audits by the taxing jurisdictions; however, there are currently no audits for any tax periods in progress. 

The Organization believes it is no longer subject to income tax examinations for the fiscal years prior to 2013. 



-11- 

NOTE 1. ORGANIZATION AND TAX STATUS (CONT’D) 

During the year ended December 31, 2016, the IRS revoked the tax exempt status for the following three 

affiliates: Grid Alternatives Greater Los Angeles, Grid Alternatives Colorado, Grid Alternatives Tri-State. 

The Organization believes the revocation was made by the IRS in error and has been assigned a tax payer 

advocate by the IRS. The Organization is in the process of working with the IRS to rectify the error and 

reinstate the tax exempt status retroactively. Management does not believe that there will be any material 

tax effects to these Affiliates or the Organization as a whole. 

NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Method of Accounting - The Organization’s consolidated financial statements are prepared under the accrual 

basis of accounting in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 

America. 

Basis of Presentation - The consolidated financial statements include the Organization and its affiliates: GRID 

Alternatives Colorado, Inc.; GRID Alternatives Greater Los Angeles, Inc.; GRID Alternatives Tri-State, Inc.; 

GRID Alternatives San Diego, Inc.; GRID Alternatives North Valley, Inc.; GRID Alternatives Mid-Atlantic, Inc.; 

and GRID Alternatives Central Valley, Inc. As part of the consolidated financial statements, all intercompany 

transactions have been eliminated. 

Net Asset Categories - Resources are classified into three net asset categories according to the existence 

or absence of donor-imposed restrictions. Descriptions of the three net asset categories and types of 

transactions affecting each category follow: 

Unrestricted net assets: These represent net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed restrictions. 

Temporarily restricted net assets: These represent net assets that are subject to donor-imposed time or use 

restrictions that have not been met. When a donor-imposed restriction is accomplished, temporarily 

restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets and are reported in the statements of 

activities as net assets released from restrictions. 

Permanently restricted net assets: These represent net assets that are subject to donor-imposed restrictions 

to be maintained permanently by the Organization as donor-restricted endowments. Generally, the donors of 

these assets permit the Organization to use all or part of the income earned on related investments for 

general or specific purposes. 



-12- 

NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D) 

Revenue is reported as increases in unrestricted net assets unless uses of the related assets are limited by 

donor-imposed restrictions. Expenses are reported as decreases in unrestricted net assets. Gains and losses on 

investments and other assets or liabilities are reported as increases or decreases in unrestricted net assets 

unless their use is restricted by explicit donor stipulation or by law. Expirations of temporary restrictions on net 

assets (i.e., the donor stipulation purpose has been fulfilled and/or the stipulated time period has elapsed) are 

reported as reclassification between the applicable classes of net assets. 

Investment Valuation, Transactions and Income Recognition - 

General - Investments are carried at fair value, which is determined, presented and disclosed in accordance 

with Financial Accounting Standards Board Accounting Standards Codification (FASB ASC) 820, Fair Value 

Measurements and Disclosures. Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or 

paid to transfer a liability (i.e., the “exit price”) in an orderly transaction between market participants at the 

measurement date. 

FASB ASC 820 establishes a fair value hierarchy for inputs used in measuring fair value that maximizes the use 

of observable inputs and minimizes the use of unobservable inputs by requiring that the most observable inputs 

be used when available. Observable inputs are those that market participants would use in pricing the asset or 

liability based on market data obtained from sources independent of the Organization. Unobservable inputs 

reflect the Organization’s assumptions about inputs that market participants would use in pricing the investments 

developed based on the best information available in the circumstances. The fair value hierarchy is categorized 

into three levels, based on the inputs, as follows: 

Level 1 - Valuations based on quoted market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the 

Organization has the ability to access. 

Level 2 - Valuations based on quoted prices in markets that are not active, quoted prices for similar 

investments in active markets or model-based valuations for which all significant assumptions are 

observable and can be corroborated by observable market data. 



-13- 

NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D) 

Level 3 - Valuations based on unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and are 

significant to the overall fair value measurement. Values are determined using proprietary pricing models, 

discounted cash flow models that include the investment entities’ own judgments and estimations, or some 

other pricing method using unobservable inputs. 

Inputs and Valuation Methods - In determining fair value, FASB ASC 820 allows various valuation approaches. 

The specific methods used for the Organization’s investment classes are presented below. 

Equity securities: The fair value of equity securities is generally based on quoted prices in active markets 

(Level 1). 

Money market mutual funds: Money market mutual funds are valued at cost, which approximates fair value 

(Level 2). 

Municipal bonds: Municipal bonds are valued based on discount yield/price modeling that takes into account 

the various maturity dates and stated coupon rates of the bonds (Level 2). 

Valuation Methods, Consistency - The valuation techniques used in the accompanying consolidated financial 

statements have been consistently applied. 

Transactions and Income Recognition - Purchases and sales are recorded on the settlement-date basis. 

Investment income is recorded when it is received. 

Revenue Recognition and Expenses - The Organization reports grants and contributions as restricted if they 

are received with donor stipulations that limit the use of the donated assets.   

When a donor-imposed restriction expires (that is, when the time restriction ends or the purpose is 

accomplished), temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets and are reported in 

the consolidated statements of activities as net assets released from restrictions. When restrictions on 

contributions are satisfied in the same period as the receipt of the contribution, the Organization reports both the 

contribution revenue and the related expenses as unrestricted. 

Deferred Revenue - The Organization records deferred revenue in connection with advance(s) provided by a 

funding source’s contractual disbursement agreement. Deferred revenue is reclassified to revenue when it is 



-14- 

NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D) 

earned. Advances at December 31, 2016 and 2015, are the administrative portion of the Single-Family 

Affordable Homes (SASH) program and the Cap and Trade Incentives Program under an agreement with 

the State of California. 

Functional Allocation of Expenses - The costs of providing the various programs and activities have been 

summarized on a functional basis in the consolidated statements of activities. Accordingly, certain costs have 

been allocated among the programs and supporting services. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Bank deposits are classified as cash and cash equivalents. 

Construction-in-Process - Subcontractor fees and equipment purchases are captured in the construction-in-

process account when purchased and are removed and recognized as an expense when a project meets 

sufficient criteria to be invoiced for the underlying revenue related to the respective project. The balance is 

composed of subcontractor fees and solar equipment for projects that have yet to be completed.   

Fair Value - Substantially all of the assets (except furniture and equipment) and all of the liabilities of the 

Organization approximate fair value. 

Property, Equipment and Depreciation - Property and equipment is reported at cost or donated value at the 

time it is received and is depreciated under the straight-line method over an estimated useful life of five years. 

The Organization’s policy is to capitalize purchases over $500.   

In-Kind Donations - In-kind donations consist of materials and professional legal services. In-kind materials and 

equipment are recognized at fair value on the date of receipt. In-kind professional legal services are recognized 

based on amounts provided by the attorneys, which are calculated based on hours of services incurred and the 

attorney billing rates. 

Estimates - The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with generally accepted 

accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported 

amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. Actual results may differ from those 

estimates. 



-15- 

NOTE 3. GRANTS AND CONTRACTS RECEIVABLE  

Generally accepted accounting principles require the recognition of unconditional promises to give in the period 

of the award, even if the donor has restricted the use and the restriction will not be met until a future reporting 

period. Grants receivable at December 31, 2016, consists of grants, contracts and unconditional promises to 

give, which management believes are fully collectible. Two funders represent 63% of the total receivable (35% 

and 28%) at December 31, 2016. Four funders represent 62% of the total receivable (21%, 19%, 12% and 10%) 

at December 31, 2015. The solvency of the funders is not of concern to management at this time.   

NOTE 4. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

The Organization places its cash and cash equivalents with financial institutions deemed to be creditworthy. The 

balances are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) up to $250,000 per institution. 

Deposits may at times exceed the insured deposit limits. 

During 2015 and 2016, the Organization maintained additional certificates of deposit, which are no longer 

considered cash and cash equivalents due to their liquidity and are presented as separate asset accounts on 

the consolidated statements of financial position. 

NOTE 5. INVESTMENTS  

The following summary presents the fair value for each of the Organization’s investment categories as of 

December 31, 2016 and 2015: 

2016 2015

Investments at fair value, as 
 determined by quoted prices

Equity securities 1,009,351$     973,985$         

Investments at fair value, as
  otherwise determined

Money market mutual funds 59,628  213,853  

Total 1,068,979$     1,187,838$     

Years Ended

December 31,



-16- 

NOTE 6. INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 

Assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis, based on their fair value hierarchy at December 31, 2016 

and 2015, are as follows: 

Quoted Prices in Significant

Active Markets for Other Observable

December 31, Identical Assets Inputs

2016 (Level 1) (Level 2)

Equity securities
Domestic equities 592,041$        592,041$           -$    
International equities 417,310   417,310  -   

Total equity securities 1,009,351   1,009,351   -   

Money market mutual funds 59,628   - 59,628  

Total 1,068,979$     1,009,351$        59,628$     

Fair Value Measurements at Reporting Date Using:

Description

Quoted Prices in Significant

Active Markets for Other Observable

December 31, Identical Assets Inputs

2015 (Level 1) (Level 2)

Equity securities
Domestic equities 586,857$        586,857$           -$    
International equities 387,128   387,128  -   

Total equity securities 973,985   973,985  -   

Money market mutual funds 213,853   -   213,853  

Total 1,187,838$     973,985$           213,853$           

Fair Value Measurements at Reporting Date Using:

Description



-17- 

NOTE 7. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT  

The following is a summary of property and equipment at December 31, 2016 and 2015: 

2016 2015

Property and equipment 1,224,805$     827,741$         

Less:  Accumulated depreciation (438,495)  (218,821)  

Total 786,310$         608,920$         

Depreciation expense for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, totaled $208,402 and $150,893, 

respectively. 

NOTE 8. TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS  

Temporarily restricted net assets are as follows: 

2016 2015

HDR Foundation -$     20,000$           
The Schmidt Family Foundation 105,000      50,000    
Max Family Factor Foundation -        17,500    
The JPB Foundation 988,404      2,000,000     
Sun Edison Foundation -        767,500        
All Points North Foundation -        40,000    
Energy Foundation 43,750  25,000    
Wells Fargo Foundation 250,000      708,333        
Wells Fargo Foundation - National Expansion Award -        350,000        
Wells Fargo Foundation - Multi-year grant 2,000,000   -    
The Community Foundation 1,876    7,488      
Clif Bar Family Foundation 5,000    -  
Silicon Valley Community Foundation 40,000  -    
The Grove Foundation 25,000        -    
The San Francisco Foundation 25,000        -    
The San Francisco Foundation 125,000      -  
Flex Foundation 11,250  -    
Oak Hill Fund 37,500  -    
PG&E 10,000  -    
Rexel Foundation 15,534  -    
America Honda Foundation 15,864  -    
Golden State Environmental Justice 50,000  -    

Total 3,749,178$     3,985,821$     

December 31,



-18- 

NOTE 9. BOARD-DESIGNATED FUNDS 

Board-designated funds represent unrestricted net assets that are subject to conditions placed by the governing 

board such as for future programs, investments, contingencies, purchases, construction of fixed assets, or other 

uses. These funds are considered unrestricted because the condition is not specified by a donor. The following 

represents Board-designated funds by net asset type, as of December 31, 2016 and 2015: 

Temporarily Permanently

Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total

Board-designated funds 1,500,000$   -$            -$              1,500,000$   

Temporarily Permanently

Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total

Board-designated funds 1,500,000$   -$            -$              1,500,000$   

December 31, 2016

December 31, 2015

NOTE 10. LINE OF CREDIT  

During 2016, the Organization replaced its existing line of credit facility from one financial institution to another. 

The Organization’s established maximum and available line of credit balance is $6,000,000 and $3,000,000 as 

of December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively. The line of credit bears interest at the U.S. Prime Index Rate plus 

1.25%. The interest rate at December 31, 2016 and 2015, was 4.75%. The Organization had an outstanding 

principal balance of $1,000,000 as of December 31, 2016 and 2015. The line of credit is secured by assets of 

the Organization. The Organization was in compliance with all debt covenants as of December 31, 2016 and 

2015. The line of credit is scheduled to mature in September 2017. 



-19- 

NOTE 11. OBLIGATIONS UNDER OPERATING LEASES 

The Organization leases various office spaces. Rental expense for the years ending December 31, 2016 and 

2015, totaled $766,048 and $568,891, respectively. The following schedule reflects future minimum 

commitments associated with the leases. 

Amount

838,571$         
753,544   
566,874   
390,500   
183,269   

Total 2,732,758$     

2021
2020

Years Ended 

December 31,

2017
2018
2019

NOTE 12. IN-KIND REVENUE AND IN-KIND EXPENDITURES  

Donated materials, services performed or expenditures paid by donors are recorded as in-kind revenues and 

are expensed as in-kind expenditures in off-set value in the year in which they occur. For the years ended 

December 31, 2016 and 2015, the in-kind revenue and in-kind expenditures are as follows:  

2016 2015

Construction materials 3,179,963$     5,052,613$     
Legal services 337,815    291,265  
Volunteer services 111,200    32,770  

Total 3,628,978$     5,376,648$     

Years Ended December 31,

NOTE 13. CONTINGENCY  

Grant awards require the fulfillment of certain conditions as set forth in the instruments of grant. Failure to fulfill 

the conditions could result in the return of the funds to the grantors. The Organization deems this contingency 

remote because, by accepting the grants and their terms, it has accommodated the objectives of the 

Organization to the provisions of the grants. The Organization’s management is of the opinion that the 

Organization has complied with the terms of all grants.   



-20- 

NOTE 14. RETIREMENT PLAN  

The Organization offers a 403(b) retirement plan to all of its employees. The Organization offers Employer 

Contributions to employees who have established 18 months of employment. The Organization has contributed 

$45,805 and $0 during the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively. 

NOTE 15. RELATED PARTIES 

The Organization engaged in transactions with the employers of two members of the Organization’s Board of 

Directors. The Organization received in-kind legal services with a value of $85,889 and $111,621 from law firms 

that employ members of the Board of Directors for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.  

NOTE 16. RESTATEMENT 

The December 31, 2015, financial statements reflected the correct amount of total net assets. However, one 

donation of $1,000,000 was classified as unrestricted, when in fact, it was temporarily restricted. As a result, 

the 2015 financial statements have been restated to reclassify a portion of unrestricted net assets into 

temporarily restricted net assets. The following table presents the effects of the correction on the statements 

of financial position: 

As restated

Restatement

Unrestricted net assets 4,471,009$     (1,000,000)$    3,471,009$     

Unrestricted - Board - designated reserve 1,500,000$     -$                1,500,000$     

Temporarily restricted net assets 2,985,821$     1,000,000$     3,985,821$     

December 31, 2015

As previously stated

December 31, 2015

NOTE 17. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

Subsequent events were evaluated through the date on which the consolidated financial statements were 

available to be issued. This date is approximately the same as the independent auditors’ report date.  



ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 

To the Board of Directors of 

GRID Alternatives 

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of GRID Alternatives and its Affiliates (collectively, the 

Organization) for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, and have issued our reports thereon dated 

July 31, 2017, and September 27, 2016, respectively, which contained an unmodified opinion on those 

consolidated financial statements. Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the 

consolidated financial statements taken as a whole. The accompanying supplementary information, which 

appears on pages 22 through 39, is presented for the purpose of additional analysis and is not a required part of 

the consolidated financial statements. The supplementary information referenced on page 40 is an analysis 

detailing expenditures, advances and incentives under the Single-family Affordable Solar Homes (SASH) 

program and is provided at the request of the California Public Utilities Commission as part of their 

monitoring and oversight of the SASH program.   

Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from, and relates directly to, the 

underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements. The information 

has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audits of the consolidated financial statements and 

certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying 

accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated 

financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards 

generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material 

respects, in relation to the consolidated financial statements taken as a whole.  

San Ramon, California 

July 31, 2017 

5000 Executive Parkway, Suite 400 San Ramon, California 94583-4346 925-277-9100 Main 925-277-9552 Fax

kmannell
Stamp



-22- 

GRID ALTERNATIVES 

CONSOLIDATING SCHEDULE OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 

GRID GRID Eliminating Consolidated
Alternatives Affiliates Total Entries Totals

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 1,637,485$   761,737$      2,399,222$   -$           2,399,222$   
Grants and contracts receivable 4,386,107 3,766,100    8,152,207 -       8,152,207
Intercompany receivable 14,183,368 11,079,510  25,262,878 (25,262,878)   -      
Certificates of deposit 15,947        -         15,947 -       15,947       
Investments 1,068,979  -         1,068,979 -       1,068,979    
Construction-in-process 1,089,224  1,399,901    2,489,125 -       2,489,125
Prepaid expenses 1,056,554  641,763        1,698,317    -       1,698,317    

Total current assets 23,437,664   17,649,011  41,086,675  (25,262,878)   15,823,797   

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property and equipment, net 
  of accumulated depreciation 245,872      540,438 786,310 -       786,310
Deposits 33,510        62,294  95,804    -      95,804       

Total non-current assets 279,382      602,732        882,114        -       882,114     

Total assets 23,717,046$ 18,251,743$ 41,968,789$ (25,262,878)$  16,705,911$ 

CURRENT LIABILIT IES
Accounts payable and 
  other accrued expenses 949,572$      1,425,187$   2,374,759$   -$           2,374,759$   
Deferred revenue 616,396      -         616,396 -       616,396
Accrued payroll liabilities 343,395      438,206 781,601 -       781,601
Intercompany payable 10,901,500   14,361,378 25,262,878 (25,262,878)   -      
Line of credit 1,000,000  -         1,000,000    -       1,000,000    

Total current liabilities 13,810,863   16,224,771  30,035,634  (25,262,878)   4,772,756    

NET ASSETS
Unrestricted 4,762,005  1,921,972    6,683,977    -       6,683,977    
Unrestricted - Board-designated reserve 1,500,000  -         1,500,000 -       1,500,000
Temporarily restricted 3,644,178  105,000        3,749,178    -       3,749,178    

Total net assets 9,906,183  2,026,972    11,933,155  -       11,933,155  

Total liabilities and net assets 23,717,046$ 18,251,743$ 41,968,789$ (25,262,878)$  16,705,911$ 

LIABILIT IES AND NET ASSETS

ASSETS



-23- 

GRID ALTERNATIVES 

CONSOLIDATING SCHEDULE OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015 

GRID GRID Eliminating Consolidated
Alternatives Affiliates Total Entries Totals

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 2,419,332$   1,083,901$   3,503,233$   -$          3,503,233$   
Grants and contracts receivable 4,138,632      828,284       4,966,916 -   4,966,916
Intercompany loan and receivable 5,035,236 310,975       5,346,211 (5,346,211)   -       
Certificates of deposit 36,057  -      36,057 -   36,057
Investments 1,187,838      -      1,187,838 -   1,187,838
Construction-in-process 709,351     443,048       1,152,399 -   1,152,399
Prepaid expenses 562,954     549,577       1,112,531    -   1,112,531   

Total current assets 14,089,400   3,215,785   17,305,185   (5,346,211)    11,958,974   

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property and equipment, net 
  of accumulated depreciation 284,414     324,506 608,920 -   608,920
Deposits 37,870  43,781    81,651  -  81,651    

Total non-current assets 322,284     368,287       690,571     -   690,571       

Total assets 14,411,684$ 3,584,072$   17,995,756$ (5,346,211)$  12,649,545$ 

CURRENT LIABILIT IES
Accounts payable and
  other accrued expenses 833,688$       409,057$      1,242,745$   -$          1,242,745$   

 Deferred revenue 859,570     -      859,570 -   859,570
Accrued payroll liabilities 304,687     285,713 590,400 -   590,400
Intercompany loan and payable 296,244     5,049,967 5,346,211    (5,346,211)   -       
Line of credit 1,000,000      -      1,000,000    -   1,000,000   

Total current liabilities 3,294,189      5,744,737   9,038,926     (5,346,211)    3,692,715   

NET ASSETS
Unrestricted, as restated 5,719,174      (2,248,165)   3,471,009    -   3,471,009   
Unrestricted - Board-designated reserve 1,500,000      -      1,500,000 -   1,500,000
Temporarily restricted, as restated 3,898,321      87,500    3,985,821    -   3,985,821   

Total net assets 11,117,495   (2,160,665)    8,956,830    -   8,956,830   

Total liabilities and net assets 14,411,684$ 3,584,072$   17,995,756$ (5,346,211)$  12,649,545$ 

LIABILIT IES AND NET ASSETS

ASSETS



-24- 

GRID ALTERNATIVES 

CONSOLIDATING SCHEDULE OF ACTIVITIES 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 

Temporarily Temporarily Eliminating Consolidated

Unrestricted Restricted Unrestricted Restricted Total Entries Total

REVENUE AND SUPPORT

Grants 

Government -$     5,071,812 -$       11,318,709$ 16,390,521$ -$    16,390,521$ 

Foundation 1,008,518 3,144,622 108,718    195,000    4,456,858  -    4,456,858    

Corporation 992,316 -     402,601    -    1,394,917  -    1,394,917    

Donations - individual and events 304,336 -     135,752    -    440,088   -    440,088   

Service contracts 5,222,026 -     14,625,813   -    19,847,839   (3,051,109)    16,796,730   

Dividend income 217,414 -     18   -    217,432   (184,047)    33,385  

In-kind revenue 1,403,942 -     2,225,036   -    3,628,978  -    3,628,978    

Net assets released from restrictions 8,470,577  (8,470,577)  11,496,209   (11,496,209)  -    -    -   

Total revenue and support 17,619,129    (254,143)  28,994,147   17,500   46,376,633   (3,235,156)    43,141,477   

EXPENSES

Program services 14,035,233    -     21,323,632   -    35,358,865   (3,011,842)    32,347,023   

General and administrative 2,374,702   -     2,221,249   -    4,595,951  (108,939)    4,487,012    

Fundraising 2,166,363  -     1,279,129   -    3,445,492  (114,375)    3,331,117    

Total expenses 18,576,298    -     24,824,010   -    43,400,308   (3,235,156)    40,165,152   

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS (957,169)  (254,143)  4,170,137   17,500   2,976,325  -    2,976,325    

NET ASSETS

Beginning of year, as restated 7,219,174  3,898,321   (2,248,165)  87,500   8,956,830  -    8,956,830    

End of year 6,262,005$    3,644,178$   1,921,972$   105,000$      11,933,155$ -$    11,933,155$ 

GRID Alternatives GRID Affiliates



-25- 

GRID ALTERNATIVES 

CONSOLIDATING SCHEDULE OF ACTIVITIES 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015 

Temporarily Temporarily Eliminating Consolidated

Unrestricted Restricted Unrestricted Restricted Total Entries Total

REVENUE AND SUPPORT

Grants 

Government -$       3,269,894$   -$     3,196,681$   6,466,575$   (151,687)$     6,314,888$   

Foundation 69,000 4,415,000    22,469    287,500    4,793,969  -     4,793,969   

Corporation 744,114 -    453,072     -   1,197,186  -     1,197,186   

Donations - individual and events 209,553 -    166,146     -   375,699    -     375,699   

Service contracts 11,522,600 -    6,870,868   -   18,393,468   (1,819,104)    16,574,364   

Dividend income 100,143 -    -   -   100,143    (61,500)    38,643  

In-kind revenue 2,455,221 -    2,921,427   -   5,376,648  -     5,376,648   

Net assets released 

  from restrictions 4,486,573   (4,486,573)  3,396,681   (3,396,681)  -     -     -    

Total revenue and support 19,587,204   3,198,321    13,830,663   87,500    36,703,688   (2,032,291)    34,671,397   

EXPENSES

Program services 14,445,089   -    12,785,729   -   27,230,818   (250,000)    26,980,818   

General and administrative 3,510,575   -    1,335,264   -   4,845,839  (1,782,291)    3,063,548   

Fundraising 2,322,205   -    2,121,563   -   4,443,768  -     4,443,768   

Total expenses 20,277,869   -    16,242,556   -   36,520,425   (2,032,291)    34,488,134   

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS (690,665)    3,198,321    (2,411,893)  87,500    183,263    -     183,263   

NET ASSETS

Beginning of year 7,909,839   700,000   163,728     -   8,773,567  -     8,773,567   

End of year, as restated 7,219,174$   3,898,321$   (2,248,165)$  87,500$         8,956,830$   -$       8,956,830$   

GRID Alternatives GRID Affiliates



-26- 

GRID ALTERNATIVES 

SCHEDULES OF FINANCIAL POSITION - GRID ALTERNATIVES GREATER LOS ANGELES, INC. 
DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015 

2016 2015

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 28,457$           621,582$         

Grants and contracts receivable 604,424  275,320   

Intercompany loan and receivable 1,910,283    241,500   

Construction-in-process 456,390  187,894   
Prepaid expenses 136,099  199,773   

Total current assets 3,135,653    1,526,069   

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property and equipment, net of 

  accumulated depreciation 107,864  82,412  
Deposits 17,366    17,366  

Total non-current assets 125,230  99,778  

Total assets 3,260,883$     1,625,847$     

CURRENT LIABILIT IES

Accounts payable and other accrued expenses 485,627$         177,203$         

Accrued payroll liabilities 78,421    67,470  
Intercompany loan and payable 765,995  7,710  

Total current liabilities 1,330,043    252,383   

NET ASSETS

Unrestricted 1,825,840    1,305,964   
Temporarily restricted 105,000  67,500  

Total net assets 1,930,840    1,373,464   

Total liabilities and net assets 3,260,883$     1,625,847$     

LIABILIT IES AND NET ASSETS

ASSETS



 

-27- 

GRID ALTERNATIVES 
 

 
SCHEDULES OF ACTIVITIES - GRID ALTERNATIVES GREATER LOS ANGELES, INC. 
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015 

 

 

Temporarily Temporarily

Unrestricted Restricted Total Unrestricted Restricted Total

REVENUE AND SUPPORT
Grants 

Government -$               3,252,656$   3,252,656$   -$               1,648,197$   1,648,197$   
Foundation 1,000 90,000           91,000 6,350 107,500         113,850
Corporation 69,000 -                  69,000 64,413 -                  64,413

Donations - individual and events 18,763 -                  18,763 21,846 -                  21,846
Service contracts 1,502,801 -                  1,502,801 2,305,194 -                  2,305,194
In-kind revenue 547,066 -                  547,066 673,285 -                  673,285
Net assets released from restrictions 3,305,155     (3,305,155)    -                  1,688,197     (1,688,197)    -                  

Total revenue and support 5,443,785     37,501           5,481,286     4,759,285     67,500           4,826,785     

EXPENSES
Program services 4,576,153     -                  4,576,153     3,770,056     -                  3,770,056     
General and administrative 307,646         -                  307,646         237,561         -                  237,561         
Fundraising 40,111           -                  40,111           581,536         -                  581,536         

Total expenses 4,923,910     -                  4,923,910     4,589,153     -                  4,589,153     

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 519,875         37,501           557,376         170,132         67,500           237,632         

NET ASSETS
Beginning of year 1,305,964     67,500           1,373,464     1,135,832     -                  1,135,832     

End of year 1,825,839$   105,001$      1,930,840$   1,305,964$   67,500$         1,373,464$   

2016 2015

 



-28- 

GRID ALTERNATIVES 

SCHEDULES OF FINANCIAL POSITION - GRID ALTERNATIVES COLORADO, INC. 
DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015 

2016 2015

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 340,758$      117,295$      
Grants and contracts receivable 839,998   96,106    
Intercompany loan and receivable 251,708   1,398  
Construction-in-process 56,310     31,349    
Prepaid expenses 19,341     15,954    

Total current assets 1,508,115  262,102  

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property and equipment, net of 
  accumulated depreciation 65,108     36,465    
Deposits 5,053   2,000  

Total non-current assets 70,161     38,465    

Total assets 1,578,276$   300,567$      

CURRENT LIABILIT IES
Accounts payable and other accrued expenses 259,099$      30,423$         
Accrued payroll liabilities 69,324     36,299    
Intercompany loan and payable 3,294,789  1,803,235  

Total current liabilities 3,623,212  1,869,957  

NET ASSETS
Unrestricted (2,044,936)   (1,589,390)   
Temporarily restricted -    20,000    

Total net assets (2,044,936)   (1,569,390)   

Total liabilities and net assets 1,578,276$   300,567$      

LIABILIT IES AND NET ASSETS

ASSETS



-29- 

GRID ALTERNATIVES 

SCHEDULES OF ACTIVITIES - GRID ALTERNATIVES GREATER COLORADO, INC. 
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015 

Temporarily Temporarily
Unrestricted Restricted Total Unrestricted Restricted Total

REVENUE AND SUPPORT
Grants 

Government -$     173,497$      173,497$      -$          97,070$         97,070$         
Foundation 6,500      90,000  96,500     15,000   65,000      80,000      
Corporation 92,451    -   92,451 100,598      -   100,598

Donations - individual and events 31,422    -   31,422 9,656     -   9,656
Service contracts 2,479,032 -   2,479,032 580,025      -   580,025
In-kind revenue 203,540       -   203,540 519,119      -   519,119
Net assets released from restrictions 283,497       (283,497)   -       142,070      (142,070)   -   

Total revenue and support 3,096,442   (20,000)      3,076,442    1,366,468  20,000      1,386,468    

EXPENSES
Program services 2,819,715   -    2,819,715    1,461,381  -   1,461,381    
General and administrative 402,422       -    402,422   231,090      -   231,090    
Fundraising 329,851       -    329,851   484,803      -  484,803    

Total expenses 3,551,988   -    3,551,988    2,177,274  -   2,177,274    

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS (455,546)     (20,000)      (475,546)      (810,806)    20,000      (790,806)  

NET ASSETS
Beginning of year (1,589,390)    20,000  (1,569,390)   (778,584)       -                  (778,584)  

End of year (2,044,936)$  -$          (2,044,936)$  (1,589,390)$  20,000$         (1,569,390)$  

2016 2015



-30- 

GRID ALTERNATIVES 

SCHEDULES OF FINANCIAL POSITION - GRID ALTERNATIVES TRI-STATE, INC. 
DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015 

2016 2015

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 49,861$         207,421$      
Grants and contracts receivable 136,422   85,352    
Intercompany loan and receivable 341,596   18,107    
Construction-in-process 104,225   92,094    
Prepaid expenses 36,034     68,409    

Total current assets 668,138   471,383  

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property and equipment, net of 
  accumulated depreciation 44,937     50,137    
Deposits 11,000     11,000    

Total non-current assets 55,937     61,137    

Total assets 724,075$      532,520$      

CURRENT LIABILIT IES
Accounts payable and other accrued expenses 24,054$         32,487$         
Accrued payroll liabilities 29,331     39,036    
Intercompany loan and payable 3,093,023  2,002,534  

Total current liabilities 3,146,408  2,074,057  

NET ASSETS
Unrestricted (2,422,333)   (1,541,537)   

Total net assets (2,422,333)   (1,541,537)   

Total liabilities and net assets 724,075$      532,520$      

LIABILIT IES AND NET ASSETS

ASSETS



-31- 

GRID ALTERNATIVES 

SCHEDULES OF ACTIVITIES - GRID ALTERNATIVES GREATER TRI-STATE, INC. 
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015 

Temporarily Temporarily

Unrestricted Restricted Total Unrestricted Restricted Total

REVENUE AND SUPPORT

Grants 

Government -$               2,659$           2,659$           -$               154,442$      154,442$      

Foundation -          -                  50,000         50,000

Corporation 19,500 -          19,500 45,715 -    45,715

Donations - individual and events 9,882 -          9,882 5,860 -    5,860

Service contracts 646,646 -          646,646 218,230 -    218,230

In-kind revenue 78,293 -          78,293 310,721 -    310,721

Net assets released from restrictions 2,659           (2,659)    -    204,442        (204,442)     -           

Total revenue and support 756,980       -          756,980       784,968        -    784,968         

EXPENSES

Program services 1,290,654   -          1,290,654   1,612,150     -    1,612,150     
General and administrative 331,816       -          331,816       255,886       -    255,886        
Fundraising 15,306         -          15,306         264,949       -    264,949        

Total expenses 1,637,776   -          1,637,776  2,132,985    -    2,132,985    

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS (880,796)     -          (880,796)     (1,348,017)    -    (1,348,017)    

NET ASSETS

Beginning of year (1,541,537)    -          (1,541,537)    (193,520)       -      (193,520)       

End of year (2,422,333)$  -$               (2,422,333)$  (1,541,537)$ -$               (1,541,537)$  

20152016



-32- 

GRID ALTERNATIVES 

SCHEDULES OF FINANCIAL POSITION - GRID ALTERNATIVES SAN DIEGO, INC. 
DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015 

2016 2015

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 22,206$         37,564$         
Grants and contracts receivable 303,152   184,933  
Intercompany loan and receivable 840,063   26,668  
Construction-in-process 113,628   76,275  
Prepaid expenses 72,176   111,783  

Total current assets 1,351,225    437,223  

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property and equipment, net of 
  accumulated depreciation 24,488   27,108  
Deposits 8,250  6,550    

Total non-current assets 32,738   33,658  

Total assets 1,383,963$   470,881$      

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and other accrued expenses 61,353$         37,422$         
Accrued payroll liabilities 49,275   54,865  
Intercompany loan and payable 887,312   100,631  

Total current liabilities 997,940   192,918  

NET ASSETS
Unrestricted 386,023   277,963  

Total net assets 386,023   277,963  

Total liabilities and net assets 1,383,963$   470,881$      

LIABILIT IES AND NET ASSETS

ASSETS



-33- 

GRID ALTERNATIVES 

SCHEDULES OF ACTIVITIES - GRID ALTERNATIVES SAN DIEGO, INC. 
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015 

Temporarily Temporarily

Unrestricted Restricted Total Unrestricted Restricted Total

REVENUE AND SUPPORT
Grants 

Government -$        870,395$      870,395$      -$         562,154$      562,154$      
Foundation 51,218   -        51,218      1,119 -    1,119    
Corporation 54,500   -        54,500      150,567 -    150,567       

Donations - individual and events 16,722   -        16,722      112,778 -    112,778       
Service contracts 1,639,963   -        1,639,963    1,407,592 -    1,407,592  
In-kind revenue 227,781       -        227,781    512,285 -    512,285       
Net assets released from restrictions 870,395       (870,395)    -       562,154   (562,154)      -   

Total revenue and support 2,860,579   -        2,860,579    2,746,495    -    2,746,495  

EXPENSES
Program services 2,258,967   -        2,258,967    2,056,902    -    2,056,902  
General and administrative 200,723       -        200,723    160,482   -    160,482       
Fundraising 292,829       -        292,829    251,148   -    251,148       

Total expenses 2,752,519   -        2,752,519    2,468,532    -    2,468,532  

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 108,060       -        108,060    277,963   -    277,963       

NET ASSETS

Beginning of year 277,963       -        277,963    -     -    -   

End of year 386,023$      -$               386,023$      277,963$      -$        277,963$      

2016 2015



-34- 

GRID ALTERNATIVES 

SCHEDULES OF FINANCIAL POSITION - GRID ALTERNATIVES NORTH VALLEY, INC. 
DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015 

2016 2015

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 52,473$         49,723$         

Grants and contracts receivable 747,584   127,238   

Intercompany loan and receivable 1,285,495    19,990  

Construction-in-process 94,073   29,259  

Prepaid expenses 116,613   141,676   

Total current assets 2,296,238    367,886   

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property and equipment, net of 

  accumulated depreciation 92,558   76,125  

Deposits 6,865  6,865  

Total non-current assets 99,423   82,990  

Total assets 2,395,661$   450,876$      

CURRENT LIABILIT IES

Accounts payable and other accrued expenses 142,898$      119,357$      

Accrued payroll liabilities 79,872   60,012  

Intercompany loan and payable 2,016,411    267,923   

Total current liabilities 2,239,181    447,292   

NET ASSETS

Unrestricted 156,480   3,584  

Total net assets 156,480   3,584  

Total liabilities and net assets 2,395,661$   450,876$      

LIABILIT IES AND NET ASSETS

ASSETS



-35- 

GRID ALTERNATIVES 

SCHEDULES OF ACTIVITIES - GRID ALTERNATIVES NORTH VALLEY, INC. 
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015 

Temporarily Temporarily

Unrestricted Restricted Total Unrestricted Restricted Total

REVENUE AND SUPPORT

Grants 

Government -$        2,955,469$   2,955,469$   -$        718,529$      718,529$      

Foundation 50,000  15,000    65,000   -     50,000    50,000   

Corporation 88,073  -    88,073   24,622  -    24,622   

Donations - individual and events 24,001  -    24,001   8,048    -    8,048     

Service contracts 1,102,839 -    1,102,839    1,899,727   -    1,899,727    

In-kind revenue 458,247    -    458,247    621,347   -    621,347    
Net assets released from restrictions 2,970,469   (2,970,469)   -   768,529   (768,529)   -   

Total revenue and support 4,693,629   -    4,693,629    3,322,273  -    3,322,273    

EXPENSES

Program services 3,704,875   -    3,704,875    2,752,030   -    2,752,030    

General and administrative 400,989    -    400,989    185,568   -    185,568    
Fundraising 434,869    -    434,869    381,091   -    381,091    

Total expenses 4,540,733   -    4,540,733    3,318,689  -    3,318,689    

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 152,896    -    152,896    3,584    -    3,584     

NET ASSETS
Beginning of year 3,584    -    3,584     -     -    -   

End of year 156,480$      -$    156,480$      3,584$           -$     3,584$           

2016 2015



-36- 

GRID ALTERNATIVES 

SCHEDULES OF FINANCIAL POSITION - GRID ALTERNATIVES MID-ATLANTIC, INC. 
DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015 

2016 2015

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 199,454$       50,316$         
Grants and contracts receivable 70,453  59,335   
Intercompany loan and receivable 108,018  3,312  
Construction-in-process 137,522  26,177   
Prepaid expenses 47,712  11,982   

Total current assets 563,159  151,122   

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property and equipment, net of 
  accumulated depreciation 75,804  52,259   
Deposits -    -  

Total non-current assets 75,804  52,259   

Total assets 638,963$       203,381$      

CURRENT LIABILIT IES
Accounts payable and other accrued expenses 85,235$         12,165$         
Accrued payroll liabilities 47,752  28,031   
Intercompany loan and payable 2,327,358   867,934   

Total current liabilities 2,460,345   908,130   

NET ASSETS
Unrestricted (1,821,382)   (704,749)    

Total net assets (1,821,382)   (704,749)    

Total liabilities and net assets 638,963$       203,381$      

LIABILIT IES AND NET ASSETS

ASSETS



-37- 

GRID ALTERNATIVES 

SCHEDULES OF ACTIVITIES - GRID ALTERNATIVES MID-ATLANTIC, INC. 
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015 

Temporarily Temporarily

Unrestricted Restricted Total Unrestricted Restricted Total

REVENUE AND SUPPORT

Grants 

Government -$               51,129$         51,129$         -$               16,289$         16,289$         

Foundation -                  -                  -                      -                  15,000           15,000           

Corporation 40,927           -                  40,927           67,157           -                  67,157           

Donations - individual and events 33,650           -                  33,650           7,958             -                  7,958             

Service contracts 1,066,132 -                  1,066,132     460,100         -                  460,100         

In-kind revenue 158,333         -                  158,333         284,670         -                  284,670         
Net assets released from restrictions 51,129           (51,129)         -                 31,289          (31,289)          -    

Total revenue and support 1,350,171     -                 1,350,171    851,174        -                  851,174        

EXPENSES
Program services 2,041,349     -                 2,041,349    1,133,210    -                  1,133,210    
General and administrative 396,238         -                 396,238        264,677        -                  264,677        
Fundraising 29,217           -                 29,217          158,036        -                  158,036        

Total expenses 2,466,804     -                 2,466,804    1,555,923    -                  1,555,923    

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS (1,116,633)    -                  (1,116,633)    (704,749)       -                  (704,749)       

NET ASSETS
Beginning of year (704,749)       -                 (704,749)      -                  -                  -    

End of year (1,821,382)$  -$               (1,821,382)$  (704,749)$     -$               (704,749)$     

2016 2015



-38- 

GRID ALTERNATIVES 

SCHEDULE OF FINANCIAL POSITION - GRID ALTERNATIVES CENTRAL VALLEY, INC. 
DECEMBER 31, 2016  

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 68,528$         
Grants and contracts receivable 1,064,067   
Intercompany loan and receivable 6,342,347   
Construction-in-process 437,753    
Prepaid expenses 213,788    

Total current assets 8,126,483   

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property and equipment, net of 
  accumulated depreciation 129,679    
Deposits 13,760   

Total non-current assets 143,439    

Total assets 8,269,922$   

CURRENT LIABILIT IES
Accounts payable and other accrued expenses 366,921$       
Accrued payroll liabilities 84,231   
Intercompany loan and payable 1,976,490   

Total current liabilities 2,427,642   

NET ASSETS
Unrestricted 5,842,280   

Total net assets 5,842,280   

Total liabilities and net assets 8,269,922$   

GRID Alternatives Central Valley, Inc., became an affiliate in 2016.  

There is no schedule for 2015.

LIABILIT IES AND NET ASSETS

ASSETS



-39- 

GRID ALTERNATIVES 

SCHEDULE OF ACTIVITIES - GRID ALTERNATIVES CENTRAL VALLEY, INC. 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016  

Temporarily

Unrestricted Restricted Total

REVENUE AND SUPPORT

Grants 

Government -$    4,012,904$   4,012,904$   

Foundation -   -   -                  

Corporation 38,150 -   38,150   

Donations - individual and events 1,312  -   1,312   

Service contracts 6,188,400 -   6,188,400   

In-kind revenue 551,776 -   551,776   

Interest income 18 -   18  

Net assets released from restrictions 4,012,904   (4,012,904)  -   

Total revenue and support 10,792,560   -   10,792,560   

EXPENSES

Program services 4,631,919   -   4,631,919   

General and administrative 181,415  -   181,415   

Fundraising 136,946  -   136,946   

Total expenses 4,950,280   -   4,950,280   

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 5,842,280   -   5,842,280   

NET ASSETS

Beginning of year -   -   -   

End of year 5,842,280$   -$    5,842,280$   

GRID Alternatives Central Valley, Inc., became an affiliate in 2016.  

There is no schedule for 2015.



-40- 

GRID ALTERNATIVES
CALIFORNIA PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISION - SINGLE-FAMILY AFFORDABLE SOLAR HOMES PROGRAM
SASH EXPENDITURES, ADVANCES, AND INCENTIVES
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016

TOTAL 
CONTRACT 
PERIOD TO 

DECEMBER 31, 
2016 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 TOTAL Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 TOTAL
CONTRACT PERIOD: 12/12/08-12/31/2022

 TOTAL 
EXPENDED 

CONTRACT FROM 
12/08 to 12/31/16 

UNEXPENDED 
ADMINISTRATIVE 
EXPENSE AS OF 

DECEMBER 31, 2016
TASK 1 14,478    
TASK 2 405,003   297,545 372,467  354,742   1,429,757    488,854   521,768 472,392    613,968   2,096,981    11,096,190    
TASK 4 -     0 -   -     -   31,101   0 -   -   31,101    577,483    
SASH Program Administration 
Services 16,230,000    405,003   297,545    372,467  354,742   1,429,757    519,955   521,768   472,392    613,968   2,128,082    11,688,151    4,541,849   
Marketing & Outreach (M&O) 6,490,000   126,116   122,233 86,643    103,738   438,730   184,384   184,035 182,802    90,886  642,107    4,716,165    1,773,835   
TOTAL 22,720,000$      531,120$    419,778$      459,110$     458,480$      1,868,488$     704,339$      705,803$      655,194$      704,854$      2,770,189$     16,404,317$    6,315,683$     

 TOTAL ADVANCE 
RECEIVED FROM  

12/08 -12/31/16 
110,709$       -$      1,580,258$     -$               1,690,967$      332,122$       737,728$      1,046,391$    307,037$       2,423,278$      17,082,101$     

UNEARNED 
INCOME AS OF    

DECEMBER 
31,2016 

420,411$       419,778$       (1,121,148)$    458,480$       177,521$       372,217$       (31,925)$       (391,197)$      397,817$       346,911$       (677,784)$      

CONTRACT PERIOD: 12/12/08-12/31/2022
TOTAL 

INCENTIVES 
INVOICED  

UNEXPENDED 
INCENTIVES AS OF 

DECEMBER 31, 2016
PG&E 60,297,300    620,134   1,071,216    1,184,274   669,327   3,544,951    1,251,554  1,349,109   935,781    945,993   4,482,437    44,942,115    15,355,185   
SDG&E 14,247,700    150,987   444,708    205,653  227,706   1,029,054    30,782   48,645   347,397    223,227   650,051    11,035,053    3,212,647   
SCE 63,444,000    1,052,876    1,087,944    646,928  457,236   3,244,984    1,313,965  1,071,440   2,866,821    1,814,039   7,066,265    44,402,857    19,041,143   

TOTAL 137,989,000$    1,823,997    2,603,868$   2,036,855$    1,354,269$   7,818,989$     2,596,301 2,469,194$   4,149,999$   2,983,259$   12,198,753$   100,380,025$     37,608,975$     

TOTAL BUDGET 160,709,000$    
445,979   930,416    1,519,848   523,407   3,419,650    1,463,372  1,866,735   1,261,920    1,237,072   5,829,099    
233,862   230,025    316,584  294,975   1,075,446    192,842   110,210   247,188    257,445   807,685    

1,527,489    1,081,404    909,646  319,734   3,838,273    1,717,052  1,636,524   1,847,182    2,252,579   7,453,337    
2,207,330$    2,241,845$   2,746,078$    1,138,116$   8,333,369$     3,373,266$   3,613,469$   3,356,290$   3,747,096$   14,090,121$   

Notes:
Initial agreement amended by $54M as a result of Assembly Bill (AB) 217, until 2022.
Task 1 Develop and Execute Comprehensive Program Implementation Plan
Task 2 Identify, Establish Relationships, and Generate Partnership With Stakeholders
Task 3 Create and Execute a Targeted Marketing and Outreach Campaign
Task 4 Develop and Regularly Update a System for Program Monitoring and Evaluation

INCENTIVES 

ADMINISTRATION ADVANCE RECEIVED

INCENTIVES INVOICED INCENTIVES INVOICED 

ADMINISTRATION ADVANCE RECEIVED

BUDGET

ADMINISTRATION

EARNED & UNEARNED PORTION OF ADVANCE EARNED & UNEARNED PORTION OF ADVANCE

BUDGET

ADMINISTRATION EXPENSE ADMINISTRATION EXPENSE

FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

INCENTIVES PAID INCENTIVES PAID



SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION 



5000 Executive Parkway, Suite 400 San Ramon, California 94583 925-277-9100 Main 925-277-9552 Fax 

-41- 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE 
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

To the Board of Directors of 
GRID Alternatives  

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States, the financial statements of GRID Alternatives and its Affiliates (collectively, the 
Organization) (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the statements of financial position as of December 31, 
2016 and 2015; the related statements of activities, of functional expenses and of cash flows for the years then 
ended; and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated 
July 31, 2017. 

INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Organization’s internal control 
over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances 
for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Organization’s internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the Organization’s financial 
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet 
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and 
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant 
deficiencies and, therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. 



-42- 

To the Board of Directors of 
GRID Alternatives  
Page two 

We did identify a certain deficiency in internal control, described in the accompanying schedule of findings and 
questioned costs as item 2016-001, that we consider to be a material weakness. 

COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Organization’s financial statements are free from 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts 
and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of 
financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an 
objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed 
instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards 
and which are described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as item 2016-001. 

ORGANIZATION’S RESPONSE TO FINDINGS 

The Organization’s response to the findings identified in our audit is described in the accompanying schedule of 
findings and questioned costs. GRID Alternatives’ response was not subjected to the auditing procedures 
applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it. 

PURPOSE OF THIS REPORT 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the 
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization’s internal control or on 
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards 
in considering the Organization’s internal control and compliance.  Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for 
any other purpose.   

San Ramon, California 
July 31, 2017 

kmannell
Stamp



5000 Executive Parkway, Suite 400 San Ramon, California 94583 925-277-9100 Main 925-277-9552 Fax 

-43- 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR 
PROGRAM AND REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE, 

REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE 

To the Board of Directors of 
GRID Alternatives  

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM 

We have audited GRID Alternatives and its Affiliates’ (collectively, the Organization) compliance with the types of 
compliance requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement, which could have a direct and material 
effect on each of the Organization’s major federal programs for the year ended December 31, 2016. The 
Organization’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditors’ results section of the accompanying 
schedule of findings and questioned costs.   

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY 

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of its 
federal awards applicable to its federal programs.    

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the Organization’s major federal programs 
based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of 
compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards 
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the 
United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform 
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). 
Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above could have a 
direct and material effect on a major federal program. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about 
the Organization’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered 
necessary in the circumstances. 

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal program. 
However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Organization’s compliance. 



-44- 

To the Board of Directors of 
GRID Alternatives  

OPINION ON EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM 

In our opinion, the Organization complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements 
referred to above, which could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year 
ended December 31, 2016.   

OTHER MATTERS 

The results of our auditing procedures disclosed instances of noncompliance, which are required to be 
reported in accordance with the Uniform Guidance and which are described in the accompanying schedule 
of findings and questioned costs as item 2016-002. Our opinion on each major federal program is not 
modified with respect to these matters. 

The Organization’s response to the noncompliance findings identified in our audit is described in the 
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. The Organization’s response was not subjected to 
the auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the 
response. 

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE 

Management of the Organization is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over 
compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of 
compliance, we considered the Organization’s internal control over compliance with the types of requirements 
that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major 
federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform 
Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over 
compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization’s internal control 
over compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance 
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to 
prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a 
timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of 
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance such that there is a reasonable possibility that material 
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected 
and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 
federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important 
enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 



-45- 

To the Board of Directors of 
GRID Alternatives  

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph 
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be 
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and, therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies 
may exist that were not identified. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we 
consider to be material weaknesses. However, we identified a deficiency in internal control over compliance, 
as described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as item 2016-002, that we 
consider to be a significant deficiency. 

The Organization’s response to the internal control over compliance findings identified in our audit is 
described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. The Organization’s response was 
not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express no 
opinion on the response. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of 
internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform 
Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.  

San Ramon, California 
July 31, 2017 

kmannell
Stamp



See accompanying notes to the schedule of expenditures of federal awards. 

-46- 

GRID ALTERNATIVES 

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 

Federal Pass-Through

CFDA Entity Identifying Federal

Number Number Expenditures

Community Development Block Grants

Passed through City and County of San Francisco 14.218 [OPEN] 59,152$    

Passed through 2016 Arapahoe County 14.218 [OPEN] 10,000   

Passed through City of Boulder, Colorado 14.218 [OPEN] 44,392   

Pass through City of Thornton, Colorado 14.218 [OPEN] 52,500   

Pass through City of Compton, California 14.218 [OPEN] 13,331   

Passed through City of Salinas, California 14.218 [OPEN] 50,363   

Passed through Monterey County, California 14.218 [OPEN] 37,365   

Passed through Monterey County, California 14.218 [OPEN] 31,654   

Passed through County of San Luis Obispo, California 14.218 [OPEN] 35,380   

Passed through City of Roseville, California 14.218 [OPEN] 12,775   

Passed through City of San Diego, California 14.218 [OPEN] 184,800   

Passed through City of San Diego, California 14.218 [OPEN] 27,777   

Passed through City of San Diego, California 14.218 [OPEN] 12,528   

Passed through City of Palm Desert, California 14.218 C33570C 12,185   

Passed through City of Moreno Valley, California 14.218 [OPEN] 24,000   

Passed through San Bernardino County, California 14.218 [OPEN] 12,000   

Passed through Riverside County, California 14.218 [OPEN] 5,000  

Passed through City of Temecula, California 14.218 [OPEN] 5,103  
Passed through City of Temecula, California 14.218 [OPEN] 12,000   

Total Department of Housing and 
  Urban Development (HUD) 642,305   

The Corporation for National and 
 Community Services Direct Program

Americorps* 94.006 540,683   
Department of Energy (DOE)

Deployment of Clean Energy and Energy Efficient
 Projects on Indian Lands

Passed through Bishop Paiute Tribe* 81.087 [OPEN] 156,000   
Passed through Rosebud Sioux Tribal* 81.087 [OPEN] 91,612   
Passed through Chippewa Cree Tribe* 81.087 [OPEN] 72,969   

Total Department of Energy (DOE) 320,581   

  Total Expenditures of Federal Awards 1,503,569$       

* Major program.

Federal Awarding Agency / Program Title

Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD)



-47- 

GRID ALTERNATIVES 

NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 

NOTE 1. GENERAL AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING 

The schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the Schedule) presents the activity of all federal financial 

assistance programs of GRID Alternatives and its Affiliates (collectively, the Organization) for the year ended 

December 31, 2016. Expenditures on the Schedule are presented using the accrual basis of accounting, as 

described in Note 2 to the Organization’s financial statements. Such expenditures are recognized following the 

cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable 

or are limited as to reimbursement. 

The information in the Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of 

Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit 

Requirements for Federal Awards. Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations 

of the Organization, it is not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in net assets, 

or cash flows of the Organization. 

NOTE 2. SUB-RECIPIENTS  

The Organization provided no federal awards to sub-recipients during the year ended December 31, 2016. 

The Organization received federal awards of $642,305 for Community Development Block Grants (CFDA 

14.218) and $320,581 for Department of Energy grants (SFDA 81.087) as sub-recipients during the year 

ended December 31, 2016. 

NOTE 3. INSURANCE AND NON-CASH ASSISTANCE  

The Organization expended no federal awards in the form of insurance in effect or non-cash assistance 

during the year ended December 31, 2016. 



-48- 

NOTE 4. INDIRECT COSTS  

For one Department of Energy grant, indirect costs were calculated and charged at 1.26%. For the other 

contracts, the Organization did not calculate or charge any administrative costs and, therefore, did not elect 

to use the 10% de minimis indirect cost rate. 



-49- 

GRID ALTERNATIVES 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 

Section I - Summary of Auditors’ Results 

Financial Statements 

Type of auditors’ report issued on financial statements: Unmodified 

Internal control over financial reporting: 

Material weakness identified See item 2016-001 

Significant deficiencies in internal control disclosed by the audit of the financial 
statements. None reported

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted Yes 

Federal Awards 

Type of auditors’ report issued on compliance for major programs: Unmodified 

Internal control over major programs: 

Material weakness identified No 

 Significant deficiencies in internal control over major programs See item 2016-002 

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in accordance with the OMB 
Compliance Supplement? See item 2016-002 

Identification of Major Programs 

CFDA Number Name of Federal Program 

The Corporation for National and Community Services 
  Direct Program 

94.006  Americorps

Department of Energy 
  Deployment of Clean Energy and Energy Efficiency Projects on Indian Land 

81.087 Bishop Paiute Tribe  

81.087 Rosebud Sioux Tribal Utility Commission 

81.087  Chippewa Cree Tribe

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and type B programs: $750,000 

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?  No 



-50- 

Section II - Findings Related to the Financial Statements Report in Accordance with Government 
Auditing Standards 

2016-001 Inadequate Controls over Financial Reporting 

Condition and Context - The prior-year financial statements were restated to properly 
reflect the unrestricted and temporarily restricted net assets as of December 31, 2015. 

Cause and Effect - Management has the ultimate responsibility for the Organization’s internal control over 
financial reporting. This responsibility should include an adequate system of review of the completeness and 
accuracy of the Organization’s net assets and classification of net assets between unrestricted and 
temporarily restricted net assets. Failure to implement and follow proper internal control procedures over 
financial reporting may result in a material misstatement of net assets. 

Criteria - A material weakness in internal controls is the result of a deficiency in internal controls, or a 
combination of deficiencies in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that material 
misstatements of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a 
timely basis. We believe the above finding represents a material weakness. 

Recommendation - We recommend that the Organization carefully review and track the restrictions 
placed on net assets along with the release of funds to accurately report the unrestricted and restricted 
net assets on its financial statements.   

View of Responsible Officials - Management’s response is reported in “Management’s Response and 
Corrective Action Plan” and is considered part of this report. 



-51- 

Section III - Findings and Questioned Costs Related to Federal Awards 

2016-002 
Inadequate Controls over Preparation of Schedule of Expenditures and 
Federal Awards 

Program Name: Deployment of Clean Energy and Energy Efficient Projects on Indian Land 

CFDA Number: 81.087 Department of Energy 

Federal Agency: Department of Energy 

Pass-Through Entity: Bishop Paiute Tribe  

Program Name: Deployment of Clean Energy and Energy Efficient Projects on Indian Land 

CFDA Number: 81.087 Department of Energy 

Federal Agency: Department of Energy 

Pass-Through Entity: Rosebud Sioux Tribe 

Program Name: Deployment of Clean Energy and Energy Efficient Projects on Indian Land 

CFDA Number: 81.087 Department of Energy 

Federal Agency: Department of Energy 

Pass-Through Entity: Chippewa Cree Tribe 

Criteria or Specific Requirement - Per Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, 
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, 
Subpart F, Section 200.510(b), the auditee (the Organization) must prepare a schedule of 
expenditures of federal awards (SEFA) for the period covered by the auditee’s financial statements, 
which must include the total federal awards expended as determined in accordance with Section 
200.502 Basis for Determining Federal Awards Expended.

Condition Found and Context - Based on our review of the “final” SEFA provided by the Organization, 
we noted that Department of Energy grants totaling $320,581 were excluded because the Organization 
initially failed to include these grants on the SEFA. The amount was subsequently reflected in the 
SEFA. (Finding Code No. 2016-002) 

Cause and Effect - The Organization had initially prepared the SEFA using a prior-year template, 
which did not include the two new Department of Energy grants applicable to the 2016 year. Because 
these two grants represent new funding received during 2016, they were inadvertently excluded, 
leaving the SEFA understated by the amount of funds expended of $247,613 under both grants 
combined. 

Questioned Costs - None. 



-52- 

Section III - Findings and Questioned Costs Related to Federal Awards (Cont’d) 

Recommendation - We recommend that the Organization improve its controls over financial reporting 
in order to prepare an accurate SEFA that is in compliance with federal regulations. This can be 
accomplished through monitoring and analyzing grant funding received on an ongoing basis to 
determine whether the funds represent federal funding that should be reflected on the SEFA. 

Views of Responsible Officials - Management’s response is reported in “Management’s Response and 
Corrective Action Plan” and is considered part of this report. 

Section IV - Disposition of Prior-Year Federal Award Findings 

Not applicable.   

Section V - Disposition of Prior-Year Financial Statement Findings 

A Inadequate Controls over Financial Reporting 

Status: Not Reported.

In the prior-year, we recommended that, prior to the payment of invoices, the reviewer document their 
review by either signing or initialing the approved invoice. In addition, the bank reconciliation review 
process should be documented consistently with initials of the reviewer and the date reviewed, to support 
that the review process has been performed timely. 

In the current year, we noted that the Organization properly documented review of invoices prior to 
payment through manual or electronic signatures of the reviewer approving the invoices for payment. In 
addition, we noted that the bank reconciliation review process was documented consistently with the 
initials of the reviewer and the date reviewed. (Finding Code No. 2015-001)



- 

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSE AND CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN 

Inadequate Controls over Financial Reporting (Finding No. 2016-001) 

TRNA (Temporary Restricted Net Assets) Schedule for the fiscal year 2015 overstated unrestricted net assets. 
During FY2016 TRNA schedule preparation and related review of grant agreements accounting staff discovered the 
prior year mistake and communicated it to the auditors. To avoid similar situation in the future the accounting 
department will update the schedule of temporary restricted revenue on a monthly basis with secondary verification 
from a Development Staff who secured the revenue. Accounting Policies will be updated to include this procedure. 

Inadequate Controls over Preparation of Schedule of Expenditures and Federal Awards (Finding No. 2016-002) 

Three contracts with Native American Tribes were misclassified as fee-for Service Contracts instead of Government 
Contracts. Confusion arose from GRID invoicing the Tribes directly for the services provided and not the Federal 
agency. To avoid such a mistake in the future and properly report funding on the SEFA schedule, accounting will 
carefully review and discuss contracts and grant funding with clients/grantors to ensure that if federal pass through 
funds are used, such a contract or grant is appropriately classified and reported. Accounting Policies will be updated 
to include this procedure. 

-53-



����������	
����������������	���������	������������
����������� !"�#���$%&���'��(& $��)��*�+� ,�-��.&'$/01234�-156178�35�4�-21�5992: ;<=>?@A�BCD=<E FGHIGFJGKLMNACOOCAP=M�Q=NA�Q=MAPMR?M@S E FHTUVJUUWXDA=ACO�YP<?@A�;<=R<CZ�Q=NAN[�;?<N=MM?O \ ]̂_]̀]abcdefL;gdhiH�gjidkLjBWH�l�hmhn;dkWmhhdBg=oXO? E FUHIKpJKVLMq?<A?< E FIHVGpJppkC@rPMR E UHsVpJtKdO?@A<P@CO�umW E FUHIptJTVi<Cq?O E TVJVVdvXPwZ?MA�k?MACON E FHUTGJVU;?<ZPAAPMR�l�fAPOPAS�x??N E IHFIpJGUdMRPM??<PMR E FHKFVJVGfAPOPAS�WyXAo=zM E sUIJpVWCO?N�iC{ E sHFGpJTTWyPwwPMR E pKGJKIdvXPwZ?MA�Q=NA�Q=MAPMR?M@S E sHFVUJKGxXAX<?�|C<<CMAS E FHUFKJVKmw?<CAP=MN�CMo�gCPMA?MCM@? E UHFTsJVVd;Q�mq?<y?Co E THTKpJsG�WXDA=ACO�YP<?@A�;<=R<CZ�Q=NAN[�dvXPwZ?MAH�gCA?<PCONH�l�h=Mn;?<N=MM?O� \ }~_}��a~b4547:�/01234�-156178�35�4� \ �̂}_̂�~4547:�09/01234�-156178�35�4� \ �̂_}�̂4547:�-15�234�+�/624 \ ��}_�̂~-156178�12�29�2�=q?<Z?MA�n�w?MoPMR�WgfY E GUHGsp�=q?<Z?MA�n�w?MoPMR�jMM�BCMo�jMo�u?<AyC��?MN@y?O�g?Z=<PCO�xXMo E FVHVVVLMnrPMo�dvXPwZ?MA�Q=MA<PDXAP=MN�n�N?@X<?o E tHVVVmAy?<�xXMoN�A=�D?�<CPN?o E FGHVKI4547:�12�29�2 \ ��}_�̂~��YP<?@A�;<=R<CZ�Q=NAN�C<?�Ay?�OPM?�PA?ZN�FVV��CNN=@PCA?o�zPAy�Ay?�w<=>?@AJ�iyPN�PM@OXo?N�;?<N=MM?O�CMo�h=Mn;?<N=MM?O�Q=NAN��?JRJ�NCOC<P?NH��<PMR?H�XAPOPAP?NH�NwC@?�@=NANH�A<Cq?OH�@=Mq?MPMR�@=M�?<?M@?��??NH�?A@J�J���]�LMoP<?@A�;<=R<CZ�Q=NAN�C<?�Ay=N?�<?OCA?o�A=�Ay?�=q?<COO�=w?<CAP=MN�=��Ay?�=<RCMP�CAP=M�@C<<SPMR�=XA�Ay?�w<=w=N?o�C@APqPAP?NJ�0 *��&'$�-��!��(�3�"$"�'�  �$�&�'&&*��̂���#�$%&�/��&'$�-��!��(�3�"$"��&�'��*� !�'� "��$� $"�"��'� $��'$"�J



ALBH	Grant	Application	2019
City	of	Sacramento

	Submitted	On:
October	28th,	2019	@	5:31pm

Organization	Name Know	Corporation

Physcial	Address 7761	Roberts	River	Way
Sacramento
CA
95831

Mailing	address	different	from
physical	address?

No

Name Les	Roberson

Title Director	of	Operation	/	CEO

Phone	Number 916-215-8610

E-Mail	Address les8610@sbcglobal.net

Name Les	Roberson

Phone	Number 1-916-215-8610

E-Mail	Address les8610@sbcglobal.net

Name Les	Roberson

Title Director	of	Operation

Phone	Number 916-393-2279

E-Mail	Address les8610@sbcglobal.et

Please	indicate	below	the
services	you	are	requesting

Healthcare

Indicate	the	dollar	amount
requested	for	Healthcare

$18,000.00

#	of	clients	that	will	be	served	by
the	Ann	Land	&	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds

Appx	300	men	and	women	annually	participate	in	one	of	three	10	week	MHWP	workshops

Total	Amount	Requested $14,000.00

The	amount	requested	will	be
applied	to	the	following.

On-going	Program

The	funds	requested	will	be	used
to	serve	the	following	(please
check	all	that	apply)

Women
Men

Will	other	funds	supplement	Ann
Land	and	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds	request	for	this
program?

Yes



Briefly	explain Other	cash	funds	will	come	from	individuals,	a	golf	tournament	sponsored	by	KNOW,	and
contracts	with	local	and	state	public	agencies.	Mental	health	practitioners	will	provide	in-kind
services.

Did	you	lose	any	funding	in	2019
from	any	source?

No

Do	you	anticipate,	or	have	you
been	notified,	that	you	will	lose
funding	in	2020?

No

Are	you	aware	of,	or	do	you
anticipate	receiving,	any	new
sources	of	funding	in	2020,	for
example,	stimulus	or	other
funds?

No

List	the	hours	that	programs
funded	by	Ann	Land	and	Bertha
Henschel	Memorial	Funds	will	be
available	to	clients.

To	meet	the	needs	of	the	participants	KNOW	offers	Mental	Health	Wellness	Program	between
the	hours	of	3	pm	and	6	pm.	However,	we	have	the	flexibility	to	move	program	hours	if	it
benefits	the	community	and	people	we	serve.	.

Describe	the	geographic	service
area,	within	the	City,	when	you
will	spend	the	requested	funds.

MHWP	will	be	provided	in	in	the	Del	Paso	Heights	community	(District	2).	Del	Paso	Height	is	a
part	of	Sacramento	with	a	diverse	population	of	38,051	residents.	In	2013	Substance	abuse	and
mental	health	issues	were	a	major	issues	in	the	community.	Sierra	Health	Foundation	and
Sacramento	County	Community	Health	Needs	Assessment	stated	lack	of	mental	health	facilities
were	a	barrier	to	social	and	emotional	wellness	for	residents	in	Del	Paso	Heights.

Please	upload	a	brief	description
(no	more	than	two	pages)	of	the
program	or	service	for	which	you
are	requesting	funds.	Explain	how
the	program	or	service
addresses	the	mission	and
funding	priorities	of	the	Ann	Land
and	Bertha	Henschel	Memorial
Funds.

https://seam.ly/Y81ipMlm

Mission	Statement	–
Organizational	Goal

The	specific	purpose	of	KNOW	is	provide	mental	health	services	for	at-risk	youth,	adults,	seniors
citizens	affected	with	mild.	moderate	or	severe	mental	illness.	KNOW	provide	mental	health
assessments	and	individual/group	therapy	for	under-served	populations	including	the	homeless,
Veterans,	LGBTQ	and	those	living	in	ethnically	and	socio-economically	diverse	communities.
Another	goal	is	to	form	partnerships	to	leverage	local	and	state	resources	for	under-served
populations.

Date	incorporated	or	otherwise
formed

7
30
2017

Briefly	describe	other	services
and	programs	your	organization
currently	provides.

KNOW	often	provides	speakers	and	workshop	leaders	at	conferences	and	symposium,	organizes
recreational	gathering	for	participants	and	their	families,	and	collaborates	with	other	similar
organizations	to	raise	awareness	about	mental	health	and	wellness.	A	gallery	of	KNOW	events	is
available	on	the	website	(got2know.org).



Private	or	Corporate	Donations
(Amount)

$19,628.00

Private	or	Corporate	Donations
(%	of	Total	Funding)

80%

United	Way	(Amount) 0

United	Way	(%	of	Total	Funding) o

SETA	(Amount) 0

SETA	(%	of	Total	Funding) 0

Federal	Assistance	(Amount) 0

Federal	Assistance	(%	of	Total
Funding)

0

State	Assistance	(Amount) 0

State	Assistance	(%	of	Total
Funding)

0

City	or	County	Assistance	(not
from	the	Ann	Land	Bertha
Henschel	Memorial	Funds)
(Amount)

$3,925.60

City	or	County	Assistance	(not
from	the	Ann	Land	Bertha
Henschel	Memorial	Funds)	(%	of
Total	Funding)

20%

Grants	(Amount) 0

Grants	(%	of	Total	Funding) 0

Ann	Land	and	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds	(Amount)

0

Ann	Land	and	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds	(%	of	Total
Funding)

0

Other	(briefly	describe	below)
(Amount)

0

Other	(briefly	describe	below)	(%
of	Total	Funding)

0

Total	Amount $0.00

Other	Income	Sources None.

The	names	of	the	members	of
your	organization’s	board	of
directors	and	of	your
organization’s	officers

https://seam.ly/5txtumQm



An	organizational	chart	or
description	of	your	organization’s
management	structure

https://seam.ly/0HmUCIsX

Verification	of	your
organization’s	not-for-profit
status	(letter	from	IRS	confirming
§	501(c)(3)	status)

https://seam.ly/r7OHL676

Verification	that	your
organization	(1)	is	currently
registered	and	in	good	standing
with	the	Registry	of	Charitable
Trusts	maintained	by	the
California	Attorney	General	or	(2)
is	not	required	to	register.

https://seam.ly/sYFGayT9

A	copy	of	your	organization’s
current	business	license	or	a
letter	from	the	City	of
Sacramento	Finance	Department
verifying	your	organization’s
exemption	from	the	City’s
business-operations	tax.	The
Sacramento	City	Code	requires
that	anyone	conducting	business
within	the	City	of	Sacramento
have	a	current	business	license
on	file	with	the	City.	The	City
issues	nonprofit	organizations	a
waiver	letter	in	lieu	of	a	business
license.	A	waiver	letter	can	be
obtained	at	the	Revenue	Counter
in	New	City	Hall,	First	Floor,	Room
1214.	Indicate	your
organization’s	non-profit	status
on	the	application	form.	There	is
no	charge	for	nonprofit
organizations.

https://seam.ly/1BGF4Qqo

A	copy	of	your	organization’s
most	recent	audit	and	any
corrective	actions	or
recommendations	suggested	by
the	auditor.	If	you	do	not	have	an
annual	audit,	please	explain	why.
You	must	also	provide	a	copy	of
your	organization’s	most-recent
annual	financial	statements,
signed	by	your	organization’s
treasurer	AND	by	the	preparer,
whether	a	CPA	or	bookkeeper

https://seam.ly/rDvhaWnX



A	budget	sheet	showing	how
awarded	funds	will	be	spent

https://seam.ly/m5lL1AlP

Signature	Data First	Name:	Les
Last	Name:	Roberson
Email	Address:	les8610@sbcglobal.net

Signed	at:	10/28/2019	02:23PM



 

 

KNOW Mental Health Wellness Program (MHWP) provide a 
structured program staffed by a licensed professional with 
extensive experience treating substance abuse and/or mental 
illness conditions.   

The KNOW copyrighted “Anger Transformed Builds Self-Worth” 
project includes custom intake documents, 10 weekly program 
agendas, group rules, and supporting materials. The intake 
documents include: Individual Profile, Mental Health History, 
Family History, Treatment Plan/Goals, and pre- and post-
evaluation assessment. 

Clinical based therapy including cognitive behavior, reality-based 
therapy and spiritual components are the basis of the workshop 
process. Planned activities are designed to raise self-esteem, 
eliminate boredom, introduce mentors/partners who aid in each 
participant’s successful recovery. 

Program success will be aided through program data using 
custom software designed to collect and analyze common data 
elements. KNOW can apply the data effectively to individual 
clients and monitor the program.    

 



As language or hearing impairment can many times be a barrier 
to receiving mental health wellness services, KNOW (MHWP) will 
make every effort to acquire the appropriate interpreter services 
as necessary for participants.  

The approval of Ann Land and Bertha Henschel Memorial Fund 
will assure that the KNOW (MHWP) 10-week program will be 
delivered to appx 300 participants in Del Paso Heights. Recovery 
for individuals impacts family members as well. When extended 
family members of participants are included, the project could 
serve well over 1,000 city residents in 2020. 

Project Locations: The Joseph Mims Hagginwood Community 
Center located at 3271 Marysville Blvd, Sacramento CA. 95838 
 
Greater Sacramento Urban League 3725 Marysville Blvd, 
Sacramento CA. 95838   
 
 
Project Timeline:   1-2-2020 to 1-31-2020 recruit/select 
2-3-2020 to 4-6-2020 10-week therapy session 
4-6-2020 to 4-13-2020 curriculum modify 
4-13-2020 to 4-20-2020 recruit plan & promote 
5-4-2020 to 7-6-2020 10-week therapy session 
7-8-2020 to 7-13-2020 data analysis evaluation 
7-13-2020 to 9-15-2020 10-week therapy session 
9-15-2020 to 9-22-2020 data analysis evaluation 
9-22-2020 to 10-19-2020 Final Report!   
 





















ALBH	Grant	Application	2019
City	of	Sacramento

	Submitted	On:
October	15th,	2019	@	6:16pm

Organization	Name Middle	Way	Health	Foundation

Physcial	Address 716	Alhambra	Blvd.
Sacramento
CA
95816

Mailing	address	different	from
physical	address?

No

Name Judy	Lynn	Taylor

Title Office	Manager

Phone	Number 916-492-9007

E-Mail	Address swalker@middlewayhealth.com

Name Stephen	B	Walker

Phone	Number 916-492-9007

E-Mail	Address swalker@middlewayhealth.com

Name Judy	Lynn	Taylor

Title Office	Manager

Phone	Number 916-492-9007

E-Mail	Address swalker@middlewayhealth.com

Please	indicate	below	the
services	you	are	requesting

Healthcare

Indicate	the	dollar	amount
requested	for	Healthcare

$5,250.00

#	of	clients	that	will	be	served	by
the	Ann	Land	&	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds

90

Total	Amount	Requested $5,250.00

The	amount	requested	will	be
applied	to	the	following.

New	Program

The	funds	requested	will	be	used
to	serve	the	following	(please
check	all	that	apply)

Families
Women
Men
Children



Will	other	funds	supplement	Ann
Land	and	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds	request	for	this
program?

Yes

Briefly	explain We	are	also	seeking	a	small	grant	from	Teichert	Foundation,	and	receive	private	donations	each
year.

Did	you	lose	any	funding	in	2019
from	any	source?

No

Do	you	anticipate,	or	have	you
been	notified,	that	you	will	lose
funding	in	2020?

No

Are	you	aware	of,	or	do	you
anticipate	receiving,	any	new
sources	of	funding	in	2020,	for
example,	stimulus	or	other
funds?

No

List	the	hours	that	programs
funded	by	Ann	Land	and	Bertha
Henschel	Memorial	Funds	will	be
available	to	clients.

The	programs	funded	by	Ann	Land	and	Bertha	Henschel	Memorial	Funds	will	allow	us	to	extend
an	estimated	additional	210	client	hours.	These	include	4	workshops	that	are	estimated	to	handle
20	people	per	workshop,	4	workshops	that	will	accomodate	10	people	per	workshop,	and	an
additional	50	client	hours	for	regular	family,	parent	and	individual	counseling.

Describe	the	geographic	service
area,	within	the	City,	when	you
will	spend	the	requested	funds.

Middleway	Health	Foundation	clients	come	from	all	over	the	city,	including	South	Sacramento,
Natomas,	Midtown,	and	Del	Paso	area,	as	well	as	nearby	areas	such	as	Carmichael,	Rancho
Cordova	and	Citrus	Heights.	Our	services	are	located	at	716	Alhambra	Blvd	in	Sacramento,	very
near	the	Safeway	on	Alhambra	Blvd,	and	our	clinic	is	easily	reached	by	public	transit	as	well	as
private	transportation.

Please	upload	a	brief	description
(no	more	than	two	pages)	of	the
program	or	service	for	which	you
are	requesting	funds.	Explain	how
the	program	or	service
addresses	the	mission	and
funding	priorities	of	the	Ann	Land
and	Bertha	Henschel	Memorial
Funds.

https://seam.ly/OFxa819X

Mission	Statement	–
Organizational	Goal

Middleway	Health	Foundation	provides	free	mental	health	services	to	our	community	members
who	are	too	poor	to	cover	the	cost	of	regular	mental	health	care	or	have	no	insurance	for	their
mental	health	challenges.	We	hope	to	close	a	significant	gap	in	public	and	private	mental	health
services.	The	Foundation''s	goal,	through	regular	psychotherapy	and	public	outreach	workshops,
is	to	support	people	with	mental	health	challenges	who	have	‘fallen	between	the	cracks’	or	are	in
danger	of	doing	so.

Date	incorporated	or	otherwise
formed

5
9
2013



Briefly	describe	other	services
and	programs	your	organization
currently	provides.

Middleway	Health	Foundation	is	committed	to	offering	people	without	means	the	same	high	level
of	service	that	paying	clients	receive.	The	Foundation	provides	the	complete	array	of
psychotherapy	services,	including	initial	intake,	evaluations	and	therapy	sessions	through	face-to-
face	contact.	In	addition,	“Fit	for	Recovery”	workshops	and	family-related	services	are	offered	to
help	people	reduce	stress	and	increase	their	ability	to	parent	and	communicate	effectively.

Private	or	Corporate	Donations
(Amount)

$20,529.64

Private	or	Corporate	Donations
(%	of	Total	Funding)

89%

United	Way	(Amount)

United	Way	(%	of	Total	Funding)

SETA	(Amount)

SETA	(%	of	Total	Funding)

Federal	Assistance	(Amount)

Federal	Assistance	(%	of	Total
Funding)

State	Assistance	(Amount) CA

State	Assistance	(%	of	Total
Funding)

CA

City	or	County	Assistance	(not
from	the	Ann	Land	Bertha
Henschel	Memorial	Funds)
(Amount)

Sacramento

City	or	County	Assistance	(not
from	the	Ann	Land	Bertha
Henschel	Memorial	Funds)	(%	of
Total	Funding)

United	States

Grants	(Amount)

Grants	(%	of	Total	Funding)

Ann	Land	and	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds	(Amount)

United	States

Ann	Land	and	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds	(%	of	Total
Funding)

CA

Other	(briefly	describe	below)
(Amount)

$2,485.00

Other	(briefly	describe	below)	(%
of	Total	Funding)

11%

Total	Amount $23,014.64



Other	Income	Sources Contributions	from	clients	of	Middleway	Health	Foundation.

The	names	of	the	members	of
your	organization’s	board	of
directors	and	of	your
organization’s	officers

https://seam.ly/jBntCsMd

An	organizational	chart	or
description	of	your	organization’s
management	structure

https://seam.ly/qLAFWCr4

Verification	of	your
organization’s	not-for-profit
status	(letter	from	IRS	confirming
§	501(c)(3)	status)

https://seam.ly/o847SxXE

Verification	that	your
organization	(1)	is	currently
registered	and	in	good	standing
with	the	Registry	of	Charitable
Trusts	maintained	by	the
California	Attorney	General	or	(2)
is	not	required	to	register.

https://seam.ly/Dx3nV8FT

A	copy	of	your	organization’s
current	business	license	or	a
letter	from	the	City	of
Sacramento	Finance	Department
verifying	your	organization’s
exemption	from	the	City’s
business-operations	tax.	The
Sacramento	City	Code	requires
that	anyone	conducting	business
within	the	City	of	Sacramento
have	a	current	business	license
on	file	with	the	City.	The	City
issues	nonprofit	organizations	a
waiver	letter	in	lieu	of	a	business
license.	A	waiver	letter	can	be
obtained	at	the	Revenue	Counter
in	New	City	Hall,	First	Floor,	Room
1214.	Indicate	your
organization’s	non-profit	status
on	the	application	form.	There	is
no	charge	for	nonprofit
organizations.

https://seam.ly/XRjKG2ol



A	copy	of	your	organization’s
most	recent	audit	and	any
corrective	actions	or
recommendations	suggested	by
the	auditor.	If	you	do	not	have	an
annual	audit,	please	explain	why.
You	must	also	provide	a	copy	of
your	organization’s	most-recent
annual	financial	statements,
signed	by	your	organization’s
treasurer	AND	by	the	preparer,
whether	a	CPA	or	bookkeeper

https://seam.ly/zhxIV0Vu

A	budget	sheet	showing	how
awarded	funds	will	be	spent

https://seam.ly/heNQQvmg

Signature	Data First	Name:	Judy
Last	Name:	Taylor
Email	Address:	swalker@middlewayhealth.com

Signed	at:	10/15/2019	03:16PM



 

 Page 1 

Middleway Health FOUNDATION, Inc. 

716 Alhambra Blvd. 

Sacramento, CA 95816 

Phone: (916) 492-9007 

 

Free Mental Health Services  

For Sacramento Residents of Limited Means 

Mission Statement:   Middleway Health Foundation provides free mental health services and social services / case 

management to our community members who cannot afford to cover the cost of regular mental health care or have no 

insurance for their mental health challenges. The Foundation's goal, through regular psychotherapy and public 

outreach workshops, is to support people with mental health challenges who have ‘fallen between the cracks’ or 

are in danger of doing so. 

No One Turned Away:   The Foundation understands that low income people and people without reliable mental health 

coverage are limited in terms of psychotherapeutic services available. Not just because of cost, but also because 

traditionally there is a lot of difficult paperwork that limits peoples’ access to public programs. Middleway Health 

Foundation has a policy of being available to anyone who comes to us with mental health needs, with minimal paperwork 

and a streamlined approach to client intake. 

Closing the Gap:   Services for low income people frequently rely on group therapy or phone consultations using pre-

defined lists of topics and answers. We know there are limitations to such approaches although they are far too often the 

solution for providing mental health services to people with limited funds. Middleway Health Foundation is committed 

to offering low income clients the same high level of service that paying clients would receive. The Foundation 

provides the complete array of psychotherapy services, including initial intake, evaluations and therapy sessions 

through face-to-face contact, and community focused workshops to improve parenting and communication skills. 

Our History:   In 2013, under the leadership of psychotherapist Stephen Bryant Walker, a group of therapists and 

practitioners from Middle Way Health came together to discuss possible solutions to the pervasive, systemic lack of 

mental health access for people of limited means. On May 9, 2013, this group officially formed the nonprofit Middleway 

Health Foundation to offer continued mental health support to our clients who have fallen through the cracks financially, 

due to changes in their financial status or lack of affordable insurance coverage. The therapists involved agreed to help 

support the Foundation’s clients for a small stipend rather than their usual hourly fees. Each of the therapists involved 

supports their regular case load in addition to clients for the Foundation. 

Requirement for Additional Funding:   The Middleway Health Foundation would like to increase our support for 

families and people who are experiencing stress and difficulties communicating within their households. We would like 

to increase our outreach to veterans who are having difficulty creating a balanced and healthy life, and increase the 

amount of therapy hours we are able to offer to the bilingual community and to low income parents / families. 

 

With that in mind, we are requesting grant funding through the Ann Land and Bertha Henschel Memorial Funds to 

offer a series of community focused mental health workshops, and funding to increase the available therapy 

sessions by an additional 50 hours, specifically to help destitute men, women and families in the Sacramento area.  

Here are brief descriptions of the workshops: 

- Parenting Workshops: Colleen Wong, MA, LMFT, is putting together a series of Parenting Workshops designed to 

support single mothers and families without means. People attending these workshops will learn parenting and 

coping skills designed to improve the quality of homelife and help decrease the amount of stress the family’s 

experience, and increase parent’s interpersonal skills. These workshops are designed so that people can attend them 

more than once to gain additional training. 

- Art Therapy Workshops: Lindsay Parkinson, Board Certified Art Therapist and LMFT, has designed a series of 

Art Therapy Workshops focused on helping adults work with PTSD and trauma-related issues. These workshops will 

also increase participants’ communication skills, while helping to reduce stress. 



 
 

 Page 2 

 

The Foundation offers its regular psychotherapy services through generous support from private donors as well as small 

cash contributions from its clients. Almost every client makes a donation, each as they are able, to help keep the 

Foundation services available. We also receive generous donations from the counselors who helped form the 

Foundation, as well as the organization they work for, Middle Way Health Family Counseling, Inc. 

Support of money from the Ann Land and Bertha Henschel Memorial Funds will allow the Foundation to increase 

our outreach to the bilingual community as well as to increase the amount of support we are able to offer to parents and 

families without adequate means. These are two areas we are increasingly being requested for services from and wish to 

broaden our support. 

Services Provided to Clients for Middleway Health Foundation:   Mental health and social services provided by 

Middleway Health Foundation help close a significant gap in public and private mental health services. The 

Foundation’s goal is to find those people who have ‘fallen between the cracks’ or are in danger of doing so. The 

Foundation offers these services directly to the community for people whose access to needed services is traditionally 

limited. In addition to providing counseling services and workshops, the Foundation connects people in need with 

additional available services, so they can make their own informed health decisions. Clients of the Middleway Health 

Foundation have access to and gain benefit from:  

● Counseling  

● Psychotherapy  

● Meditation & Mindfulness Groups  

● Support Groups  

● Health Counseling  

● Healthcare Provider Directory  

Who Is Eligible for Services?   Through the foundation, individuals who might not otherwise receive needed mental 

health care are served. Target clients include but are not limited to people who:  

● Are low income but do not have access to Medi-Cal  

● Have Medi-Cal but are experiencing a crisis and would not be able to receive an appointment for several months 

through their Medi-Cal insurance  

● Are on Medicare, which does not pay for regular psychotherapy sessions with Marriage and Family     

Therapists after people turn 65 

● Have inadequate health insurance or high insurance co-pays which they are unable to afford 

● Are indigent Veterans, or Veterans or seniors with limited income 

● Are single parents or married couples with limited income  

These people have few other resources from which to receive the mental health counseling and support that they need. 

The Foundation’s staff has the experience and training to serve people from a wide variety of communities. The 

Foundation recognizes that Sacramento is home to people from all over the world. This diversity is reflected both in the 

clients Middleway Health Foundation serves and in the staff. The Foundation’s staff includes Native American, African 

American, Caucasian, Gay, Straight, and bilingual resources. Diversity is something to be celebrated and the staff 

considers it one of our greatest strengths.  

 

Website: https://middlewayhealthfoundation.org  

Facebook: https://www.facebook.com/MiddlewayHealthFoundation/  



 

Middleway Health FOUNDATION, Inc. 

716 Alhambra Blvd. 

Sacramento, CA 95816 

Phone: (916) 492-9007 

 

 

Board of Directors, 2019 

 

 

Stephen Bryant Walker, President  
Sacramento, CA  
Therapist, Middle Way Health Family Counseling, Inc.  

 
Susan Farrar, Secretary  

Sacramento, CA  
Retired Research Manager, State of California 

 
Patty Marcotte, Treasurer  

Sacramento, CA  
Teacher, Natomas School District 



 

Middleway Health FOUNDATION, Inc. 

716 Alhambra Blvd. 

Sacramento, CA 95816 

Phone: (916) 492-9007 

 

 

 

Organizational Chart, 2019 

 

CEO / Director:  Stephen Bryant Walker, MA, LMFT 

Office Manager: Judy Lynn Taylor 

Counseling Staff:  Colleen Tweed Wong, MA, LMFT 

   Trish Gemulla, MBA, MS, LMFT 

   Jesus Sanchez, MS, MA, LMFT 

   Karen Randles, MS, LMFT 

   Dana Ferry, MA, AMFT 

   Lindsay Parkinson, BCAT, LMFT 







Registrant Details
Entity type: Corporate Class as registered with the Secretary of State or based on founding & registration documents.

Organization Name: MIDDLEWAY HEALTH FOUNDATION, INC. IRS FEIN: 463559450
Entity Type: Public Benefit SOS/FTB Corporate/Organization Number: 3568537

Registry Status: Current Renewal Due/Exp. Date: 5/15/2020
RCT Registration Number: CT0214772 Issue Date: 1/9/2015
Record Type: Charity Registration Effective Date: 1/9/2015
Date This Status: 8/22/2017 Date of Last Renewal: 10/15/2019

Mailing Address
Street: 716 ALHAMBRA BLVD
Street Line 2:
City, State Zip: SACRAMENTO CA 95816

Filings & Correspondence
Confirmation of Registration Letter Confirmation of Registration Letter

Founding Documents Founding Documents

Form RRF-1 2017

1st Delinquency Letter 1st Delinquency Letter

2015 Form RRF-1 Click on Document Type at the left to open PDF

2014 Form RRF-1 Click on Document Type at the left to open PDF

Founding Documents Founding Documents

Missing Reports Letter Missing Reports Letter

Annual Renewal Data
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 1/1/2014
Accounting Period End Date: 12/31/2014
Total Assets: $12,090.00
Total Revenue: $18,800.00
Filing Received Date: 8/21/2017
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): N
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 1/1/2015
Accounting Period End Date: 12/31/2015
Total Assets: $2,339.00
Total Revenue: $11,660.00
Filing Received Date: 8/21/2018
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): N
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 1/1/2016
Accounting Period End Date: 12/31/2016
Total Assets: $9,417.00
Total Revenue: $32,345.00
Filing Received Date: 5/17/2017
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): N

HOME  ABOUT  MEDIA  CAREERS  REGULATIONS  RESOURCES  PROGRAMS  CONTACT

http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=15AW2244071410.pdf&document_id=09027b8f801ea39d
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=20593.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80213be0
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=340297.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80342969
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=00000155.pdf&document_id=09027b8f802e324c
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=192531.pdf&document_id=09027b8f802f9730
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=192530.pdf&document_id=09027b8f802f972f
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=211388.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8021446e
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=CT0214772647.pdf&document_id=09027b8f802cf6c8
https://oag.ca.gov/home
https://oag.ca.gov/about
https://oag.ca.gov/media
https://oag.ca.gov/careers
https://oag.ca.gov/meetings/public-participation
https://oag.ca.gov/services-info
https://oag.ca.gov/programs
https://oag.ca.gov/contact


Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 1/1/2017
Accounting Period End Date: 12/31/2017
Total Assets: $3,936.00
Total Revenue: $25,771.00
Filing Received Date: 5/15/2018
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): N
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 1/1/2018
Accounting Period End Date: 12/31/2018
Total Assets: $2,932.00
Total Revenue: $23,014.00
Filing Received Date: 10/15/2019
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): N
Online Submission (Y/N):

Related Registrations & Event Reports
The related records shown below depend on the record type being viewed:

Charity Registrations relate to Professional Fundraising Events which relate to Professional Fundraiser Registrations.
Raffle Registrations relate to Raffle Reports.
Click on the RCT Registration No to navigate to the related record.

No Related Records















 
Middleway Health FOUNDATION, Inc. 

716 Alhambra Blvd. 

Sacramento, CA 95816 

Phone: (916) 492-9007 

 

Middleway Health Foundation 2020    

Proposed Programs & Expenses for Grant Funding   

    

Community Workshops For Low Income Patients Amount # Clients # Client 

    Served* Hours 

      Parenting Workshops (Colleen Tweed Wong, LMFT)       

          4 workshops; 2 hours each; designed to improve/develop  $1,200.00 12 each   

          parenting skills for single mothers and low income families   x 4   

           - Materials and handouts for parenting workshops $50.00     

        Total Cost for Parenting Workshops $1,250.00 48 96 

        

        

      Art Therapy Workshops (Lindsay Kay Parkinson, LMFT)       

          4 workshops; 2 hours each; designed to help adults increase $1,200.00 8 each   

         communication and reduce stress. It is frequently used to help   x 4   

         patients recovering from trauma access issues. Good tool for       

         multi-cultural groups because it bypasses language.       

           - Materials for art therapy workshops $300.00     

        Total Cost for Art Therapy Workshops $1,500.00 32 64 

        

        

       Stipend Funds to Pay for Additional Client Sessions       

          - Increase capacity for up to 10 new bilingual and        

             couples / family clients by adding coverage for       

             an additional 50 sessions (at $50/session)       

        Total  Additional Stipend Funds $2,500.00 10 50 

        
        

Total Grant Amount Requested $5,250.00 90 210 
   

   
*We anticipate the number of clients served to vary slightly – these are estimates. The parenting 

workshops will be able to hold up to 20 couples; the Art Therapy workshops will be limited to 10 

participants. Additional client sessions may support couples and families as well as individuals, so the 

total number supported by additional therapy sessions may range from 8-20 people. 



ALBH	Grant	Application	2019
City	of	Sacramento

	Submitted	On:
October	28th,	2019	@	4:44pm

Organization	Name My	Sister''s	House

Physcial	Address 5770	Freeport	Blvd.	#48
Sacramento
CA
95822

Mailing	address	different	from
physical	address?

Yes

Mailing	Address 3053	Freeport	Blvd.	#120
Sacramento
CA
95818

Name Nilda

Title Valmores

Phone	Number 9169300626

E-Mail	Address nildamsh@gmail.com

Name Nilda	Valmores

Phone	Number 916-930-0626

E-Mail	Address nildamsh@gmail.com

Name Nilda

Title Valmores

Phone	Number 916-930-0626

E-Mail	Address nildamsh@gmail.com

Please	indicate	below	the
services	you	are	requesting

Food
Shelter
Utilities

Indicate	the	dollar	amount
requested	for	Food

$3,000

#	of	clients	that	will	be	served	by
the	Ann	Land	&	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds

30

Indicate	the	dollar	amount
requested	for	Shelter

$5,000

#	of	clients	that	will	be	served	by
the	Ann	Land	&	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds

30



Indicate	the	dollar	amount
requested	for	Utilities

$2,000

#	of	clients	that	will	be	served	by
the	Ann	Land	&	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds

30

Total	Amount	Requested $10,000.00

The	amount	requested	will	be
applied	to	the	following.

On-going	Program

The	funds	requested	will	be	used
to	serve	the	following	(please
check	all	that	apply)

Women
Children

Will	other	funds	supplement	Ann
Land	and	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds	request	for	this
program?

Yes

Briefly	explain My	Sister''s	House	will	use	Cal	OES	funds	to	help	provide	additional	support	services	for	its	Safe
Haven	clients	and	donations	to	pay	for	some	of	the	Safe	Haven	rent.

Did	you	lose	any	funding	in	2019
from	any	source?

Yes

Briefly	explain My	Sister’s	House	did	not	lose	funding	per	se,	but	funding	was	discontinued	as	of	October	1	when
a	special	national	demonstration	project	grant	term	ended	on	September	30,	2019.

Do	you	anticipate,	or	have	you
been	notified,	that	you	will	lose
funding	in	2020?

Yes

Briefly	explain In	2020,	My	Sister’s	House	will	have	$78,085	less	than	the	previous	year	from	Cal-OES	funds.	An
identical	cut	was	received	by	all	of	California’s	domestic	violence	organizations.

Are	you	aware	of,	or	do	you
anticipate	receiving,	any	new
sources	of	funding	in	2020,	for
example,	stimulus	or	other
funds?

Yes

Briefly	explain In	2020,	My	Sister’s	House	will	receive	$10,000	in	partnership	funds	from	PRO	Youth	Families.
The	source	of	these	funds	is	the	Federal	Department	of	Health	&	Human	Services	Family	and
Youth	Services	Bureau	Adolescent	Pregnancy	Prevention	Program.	My	Sister’s	House	role	is	to
provide	training	and	education	on	domestic	violence,	sexual	assault	and	human	trafficking.

List	the	hours	that	programs
funded	by	Ann	Land	and	Bertha
Henschel	Memorial	Funds	will	be
available	to	clients.

24	hours/day,	7	days/week

Describe	the	geographic	service
area,	within	the	City,	when	you
will	spend	the	requested	funds.

The	entire	city	of	Sacramento.



Please	upload	a	brief	description
(no	more	than	two	pages)	of	the
program	or	service	for	which	you
are	requesting	funds.	Explain	how
the	program	or	service
addresses	the	mission	and
funding	priorities	of	the	Ann	Land
and	Bertha	Henschel	Memorial
Funds.

https://seam.ly/BBFjUkmY

Mission	Statement	–
Organizational	Goal

My	Sister’s	House	is	a	nonprofit	organization	formed	in	2001.	My	Sister’s	House	serves	Asian
and	Pacific	Islander	and	other	underserved	women	and	children	impacted	by	domestic	violence,
sexual	assault	and	human	trafficking	by	providing	a	culturally	appropriate	and	responsive	safe
haven,	job	training,	and	community	services.

Date	incorporated	or	otherwise
formed

12
8
2000

Briefly	describe	other	services
and	programs	your	organization
currently	provides.

My	Sister’s	House	provides	four	key	services:	(1)	Outreach	and	education	to	help	prevent
domestic	violence,	sexual	assault,	and	human	trafficking;	(2)	24	hour	multilingual	crisis	line	to
provide	safety	planning,	risk	assessment	and	referrals;	(3)	three	Safe	Haven	shelters	–	a	6	bed
emergency	shelter,	6	bed	transitional	housing	shelter,	and	a	6	bed	anti-human	trafficking	shelter;
and	(4)	Women	to	Work	Program	helps	domestic	violence	victims	develop	self-sufficiency	and
independence.

Private	or	Corporate	Donations
(Amount)

$340,116

Private	or	Corporate	Donations
(%	of	Total	Funding)

16%

United	Way	(Amount) 0

United	Way	(%	of	Total	Funding) 0

SETA	(Amount) $34,100

SETA	(%	of	Total	Funding) 2%

Federal	Assistance	(Amount) $224,496

Federal	Assistance	(%	of	Total
Funding)

10%

State	Assistance	(Amount) $951,001

State	Assistance	(%	of	Total
Funding)

44%

City	or	County	Assistance	(not
from	the	Ann	Land	Bertha
Henschel	Memorial	Funds)
(Amount)

$65,056



City	or	County	Assistance	(not
from	the	Ann	Land	Bertha
Henschel	Memorial	Funds)	(%	of
Total	Funding)

3%

Grants	(Amount) 1,614,769

Grants	(%	of	Total	Funding) 75%

Ann	Land	and	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds	(Amount)

$8,100

Ann	Land	and	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds	(%	of	Total
Funding)

0.3%

Other	(briefly	describe	below)
(Amount)

$164,003

Other	(briefly	describe	below)	(%
of	Total	Funding)

25%

Total	Amount $2,157,250.00

Other	Income	Sources Individual	donations,	Conference/Contract	income,	My	Sister''s	Cafe	Gross	Profit	

Please	note	(Grants	amount	reflect	total	grants	amount	-	i.e.	corporate,	federal,	etc.)

The	names	of	the	members	of
your	organization’s	board	of
directors	and	of	your
organization’s	officers

https://seam.ly/du0DA2x3

An	organizational	chart	or
description	of	your	organization’s
management	structure

https://seam.ly/IaCetfmF
https://seam.ly/ggva8cwK

Verification	of	your
organization’s	not-for-profit
status	(letter	from	IRS	confirming
§	501(c)(3)	status)

https://seam.ly/20MNqaxc

Verification	that	your
organization	(1)	is	currently
registered	and	in	good	standing
with	the	Registry	of	Charitable
Trusts	maintained	by	the
California	Attorney	General	or	(2)
is	not	required	to	register.

https://seam.ly/4k6uQOhn



A	copy	of	your	organization’s
current	business	license	or	a
letter	from	the	City	of
Sacramento	Finance	Department
verifying	your	organization’s
exemption	from	the	City’s
business-operations	tax.	The
Sacramento	City	Code	requires
that	anyone	conducting	business
within	the	City	of	Sacramento
have	a	current	business	license
on	file	with	the	City.	The	City
issues	nonprofit	organizations	a
waiver	letter	in	lieu	of	a	business
license.	A	waiver	letter	can	be
obtained	at	the	Revenue	Counter
in	New	City	Hall,	First	Floor,	Room
1214.	Indicate	your
organization’s	non-profit	status
on	the	application	form.	There	is
no	charge	for	nonprofit
organizations.

https://seam.ly/lhNaMAT9

A	copy	of	your	organization’s
most	recent	audit	and	any
corrective	actions	or
recommendations	suggested	by
the	auditor.	If	you	do	not	have	an
annual	audit,	please	explain	why.
You	must	also	provide	a	copy	of
your	organization’s	most-recent
annual	financial	statements,
signed	by	your	organization’s
treasurer	AND	by	the	preparer,
whether	a	CPA	or	bookkeeper

https://seam.ly/gbNu5EGi

A	budget	sheet	showing	how
awarded	funds	will	be	spent

https://seam.ly/yIxLQrJd

Signature	Data First	Name:	Nilda
Last	Name:	Valmores
Email	Address:	nildamsh@gmail.com

Signed	at:	10/28/2019	01:34PM







 

 
2019-2020 Board of Directors 

Revised October 2019 
 

 YEAR JOINED NAME BOARD TITLE ORGANIZATION 

1) 2019 Bryan Cruz Board Member Kaiser Permanente South Sacramento 

2) 2017 Stefanie Cruz Board Member Cole Pro Media 

3) 2018 Michelle Dang Board Treasurer CSUS, School of Nursing 

4) 2019 Susan Granzella Board Member VISA (Retired) 

5) 2010 Jessica Heskin Board President State of California, Department of Health 

6) 2019 Trish Higgins Board Member Shaw Law Group 

7) 2013 Yen Marshall Board Vice President AT&T External Affairs (Retired) 

8) 2019 Charles Panadero Board Member Dr. Charles V. Panadero, MD,  
Private Practice 

9) 2017 Kao Saephanh Board Member Sacramento Municipal Utility District 

10) 2013 Latika Sharma Board Secretary State of California, Department of Managed Healthcare 

11) 2016 Moira Sharma, PsyD. Board Member Kaiser Permanente 

12) 2019 Camille Thomas Board Member Costco Wholesale 

13) 2018 Chris Gee Schoon-Tong Board Member Beach Hut Deli 

14) 2019 Ayanna Yonemura Board Member UC Davis, Asian American Studies Department 

  Nilda Valmores Ex-officio Executive Director My Sister’s House 

 
www.my-sisters-house.org info@my-sisters-house.org Help Line: 916-428-3271 Office Line:916-930-0626 

http://www.my-sisters-house.org/
mailto:info@my-sisters-house.org


2019-2020 Staff Organizational Chart 

Executive Director 
Nilda Valmores 

Deputy Director 
Sitra T. 

Counseling  
Director 

Vinder Lallian 

Attorney 
Grace Yoon 

Employment &  
Immigration  

Program Manager 
Rejie Baloyos 

Client Service  
Advocates 

(Part-Time) 2 
Alexa Alejandrez 

Andrea Mejia 

Shelter Coordinator 
Janelle Castanar 

Communications & 
Volunteer  

Coordinator /  
Human  

Trafficking  
Specialist 

Jasmeen Kairam 

Data Outcome  
Evaluator /  

Administrative  
Assistant 
Zoua Thao 

Counseling  
Intern 

(Part-Time) 
Mai Yang 

Employment  
Advocate 

Kristyn Martin 

Women to Work Program Managers 
(Part-Time) 
Yang Her 

Patricia Sokolowski 

Enterprise Manager 
Julia Herrera 

Communications 
and Outreach  

Assistant / MYLAR 
Project Liason  

Kali Smiley 

Volunteer Outreach  
Advocates 

Updated 10/17/19 

Volunteer 
Advocates 

Housing First  
Advocate 
Rose Klein 

Trainees  
(Part-Time) 4 

Volunteers 
Café 

Shelter Advocates 
& Volunteers 

Transitional  
Housing Advocate 

Hermeet Kirn 
Gamage 

Sexual Assault 
Prevention Specialist 

Michelle Huey 

Development  
Assistant 

(Part-Time) 
Christina Xiong 

Finance Officer 
Desli Beckman 

Volunteer 
Attorneys 



 

 
2019-2020 My Sister’s House Organizational Chart 

 
 

  

1. Jessica Heskin, Board President 
State of California,  
Department of Health 

BOARD MEMBERS AT LARGE 

9. Charles Panadero 
Dr. Charles V. Panadero, MD 
Private Practice 

5. Bryan Cruz 
Kaiser Permanente 

15.   Nilda Valmores 
Executive Director  
Ex-Officio Member 

2. Yen Marshall, Vice President 
AT&T External Affairs 

10. Kao Saephanh 
SMUD 

4. Michelle Dang, Treasurer 
CSUS, School of Nursing 

11. Moira Sharma, PsyD 
Kaiser Permanente 

3. Latika Sharma, Secretary 
State of California, Department  
of Managed Healthcare 

12. Camille Thomas 
Costco Wholesale 

7. Susan Granzella 
VISA 

6. Stephanie Cruz 
Cole Pro Media 

TECHNICAL 
 
• Executive 
• OOPS 
• Finance 
• Fundraising / 

Special Events 

8. Trish Higgins 
Shaw Law Group 

14. Chris Gee-Schoon Tong 
Beach Hut Deli 

PROGRAMS 
 
• Sexual Assault 
• Revenue 

Generating 
 

SPECIAL 
 

• Friends / Advisory 

COMMITTEES 
 

13. Ayanna Yonemura, Ph.D. 
UC Davis 





10/25/2019 Details

rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Details.aspx?result=e92da9b4-9839-4992-ac05-845e7e6f45ea 1/5

Registrant Details
Entity type: Corporate Class as registered with the Secretary of State or based on founding & registration documents.

Organization Name: MY SISTER'S HOUSE IRS FEIN: 680464114
Entity Type: Public Benefit SOS/FTB Corporate/Organization Number: 2326772

Registry Status: Current Renewal Due/Exp. Date: 11/15/2019
RCT Registration Number: 117196 Issue Date: 6/30/2006
Record Type: Charity Registration Effective Date: 6/30/2006
Date This Status: 10/23/2019 Date of Last Renewal:

Mailing Address
Street: 3053 FREEPORT BOULEVARD, #120
Street Line 2:
City, State Zip: SACRAMENTO CA 95818

Filings & Correspondence
CT-550 2009 CT-550 2009

CT-551 2009 CT-551 2009

RRF-1 2011 2011 RRF-1

RRF-1 2011 2011 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2011 2011 IRS Form 990

IRS Form 990 2012 2012 IRS Form 990

RRF-1 2010 2010 RRF-1

IRS Form 990-EZ 2010 2010 IRS Form 990-EZ

Explanation Notice, 2012 Explanation Notice, 2012

Incomplete RRF-1 Notice 2012 Incomplete RRF-1 Notice 2012

Incomplete RRF-1 Notice 2011 Incomplete RRF-1 Notice 2011

RRF-1 2009 2009 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2004 2004 IRS Form 990

IRS Form 990 2008 2008 IRS Form 990

IRS Form 990-EZ 2009 2009 IRS Form 990-EZ

RRF-1 2009 2009 RRF-1

RRF-1 2012 2012 RRF-1

RRF-1 2013 2013 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2013 2013 IRS Form 990

RRF-1 2014 2014 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2014 2014 IRS Form 990

2015 RRF-1 2015 RRF-1

2015 IRS Form 990 2015 IRS Form 990

2016 Form RRF-1 2016 Form RRF-1

HOME  ABOUT  MEDIA  CAREERS  REGULATIONS  RESOURCES  PROGRAMS  CONTACT

http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=CT-550+2009.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80025831
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=CT-551+2009.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80025832
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2011.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80025834
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2011.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80025835
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2011.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80025836
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2012.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80025837
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2010.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80025838
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990-EZ+2010.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80025839
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=Explanation+Notice%2c+2012.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8002583a
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=Incomplete+RRF-1+Notice+2012.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8002583b
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=Incomplete+RRF-1+Notice+2011.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8002583c
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2009.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80025840
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2004.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80025841
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2008.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80025842
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990-EZ+2009.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80025843
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2009.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80025844
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=85153.pdf&document_id=09027b8f801ace1a
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=1166775.pdf&document_id=09027b8f801e3361
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=1166776.pdf&document_id=09027b8f801e3362
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=767862.PDF&document_id=09027b8f8022ec0b
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=767863.PDF&document_id=09027b8f8022ec0c
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=943891.PDF&document_id=09027b8f80271017
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=943892.PDF&document_id=09027b8f80271018
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=1266761.PDF&document_id=09027b8f802e9906
https://oag.ca.gov/home
https://oag.ca.gov/about
https://oag.ca.gov/media
https://oag.ca.gov/careers
https://oag.ca.gov/meetings/public-participation
https://oag.ca.gov/services-info
https://oag.ca.gov/programs
https://oag.ca.gov/contact


10/25/2019 Details

rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Details.aspx?result=e92da9b4-9839-4992-ac05-845e7e6f45ea 2/5

2016 IRS Form 990 Series 2016 IRS Form 990 Series

IRS Form 990 Series 2017

Form RRF-1 2017

Annual Renewal Data
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2001
Accounting Period End Date: 6/30/2002
Total Assets: $58,038.00
Total Revenue: $109,079.00
Filing Received Date: 11/12/2002
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2002
Accounting Period End Date: 6/30/2003
Total Assets: $87,484.00
Total Revenue: $217,687.00
Filing Received Date: 11/17/2003
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2003
Accounting Period End Date: 6/30/2004
Total Assets: $170,000.00
Total Revenue: $357,990.00
Filing Received Date: 11/16/2004
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2004
Accounting Period End Date: 6/30/2005
Total Assets: $111,074.00
Total Revenue: $145,681.00
Filing Received Date: 8/22/2006
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2005
Accounting Period End Date: 6/30/2006
Total Assets: $128,123.00
Total Revenue: $239,305.00
Filing Received Date: 10/27/2006
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2006
Accounting Period End Date: 6/30/2007
Total Assets: $162,653.00
Total Revenue: $260,737.00
Filing Received Date: 11/16/2007
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2007
Accounting Period End Date: 6/30/2008
Total Assets: $203,925.00

http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=1266762.PDF&document_id=09027b8f802e9907
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=327151.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8033c23b
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=327152.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8033c23c


10/25/2019 Details

rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Details.aspx?result=e92da9b4-9839-4992-ac05-845e7e6f45ea 3/5

Total Revenue: $247,259.00
Filing Received Date: 11/14/2008
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2008
Accounting Period End Date: 6/30/2009
Total Assets: $207,519.00
Total Revenue: $369,792.00
Filing Received Date: 11/17/2009
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2009
Accounting Period End Date: 6/30/2010
Total Assets: $295,624.00
Total Revenue: $455,291.00
Filing Received Date: 11/16/2010
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2010
Accounting Period End Date: 6/30/2011
Total Assets: $308,577.00
Total Revenue: $500,834.00
Filing Received Date: 11/17/2011
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2011
Accounting Period End Date: 6/30/2012
Total Assets: $367,925.00
Total Revenue: $711,629.00
Filing Received Date: 11/2/2012
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2012
Accounting Period End Date: 6/30/2013
Total Assets: $505,794.00
Total Revenue: $757,426.00
Filing Received Date: 11/18/2013
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2013
Accounting Period End Date: 6/30/2014
Total Assets: $633,025.00
Total Revenue: $925,604.00
Filing Received Date: 11/19/2014
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2014
Accounting Period End Date: 6/30/2015
Total Assets: $827,651.00
Total Revenue: $1,077,134.00
Filing Received Date: 2/17/2016



10/25/2019 Details

rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Details.aspx?result=e92da9b4-9839-4992-ac05-845e7e6f45ea 4/5

Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2015
Accounting Period End Date: 6/30/2016
Total Assets: $958,426.00
Total Revenue: $1,254,651.00
Filing Received Date: 4/13/2017
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2016
Accounting Period End Date: 6/30/2017
Total Assets: $1,109,639.00
Total Revenue: $1,716,089.00
Filing Received Date: 5/10/2018
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2017
Accounting Period End Date: 6/30/2018
Total Assets: $1,541,437.00
Total Revenue: $2,162,467.00
Filing Received Date: 10/18/2019
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N):
Status of Filing: Not Submitted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2018
Accounting Period End Date: 6/30/2019
Total Assets:
Total Revenue:
Filing Received Date:
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): N
Online Submission (Y/N):

Related Registrations & Event Reports
The related records shown below depend on the record type being viewed:

Charity Registrations relate to Professional Fundraising Events which relate to Professional Fundraiser Registrations.
Raffle Registrations relate to Raffle Reports.
Click on the RCT Registration No to navigate to the related record.

Prereq Type: Prerequisite Relationship: Charity
Registrant: AUTOMOTIVE RECOVERY SERVICES INC
Registration No: E0027632 Registration Type: Fundraising Event Registration Status: Complete
Date Established: 7/6/2016 Association Date: 1/1/2016 Expiration Date: 12/31/2016
Prereq Type: Prerequisite Relationship: Charity
Registrant: AUTOMOTIVE RECOVERY SERVICES INC
Registration No: E0029056 Registration Type: Fundraising Event Registration Status: Complete
Date Established: 1/17/2017 Association Date: 1/1/2017 Expiration Date: 12/31/2017
Prereq Type: Prerequisite Relationship: Charity
Registrant: AUTOMOTIVE RECOVERY SERVICES INC
Registration No: E0031886 Registration Type: Fundraising Event Registration Status: Complete
Date Established: 12/27/2017 Association Date: 1/1/2018 Expiration Date: 12/31/2018
Prereq Type: Prerequisite Relationship: Charity
Registrant: AUTOMOTIVE RECOVERY SERVICES INC
Registration No: E0034809 Registration Type: Fundraising Event Registration Status: Awaiting Reporting
Date Established: 1/7/2019 Association Date: 1/1/2019 Expiration Date: 12/31/2019
Prereq Type: Prerequisite Relationship:

http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Details.aspx?result=7ee261ff-bacd-4aaf-aa65-a8b81c18d50c
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Details.aspx?result=c5625506-78cd-4205-b7c4-83430da1656b
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Details.aspx?result=fc18ce9c-c6b7-426b-b720-f7ed4168357c
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Details.aspx?result=a6e5a220-c9dd-41d0-a620-bf5a3ec47bb1


10/25/2019 Details

rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Details.aspx?result=e92da9b4-9839-4992-ac05-845e7e6f45ea 5/5

Charity
Registrant: HAROLD'S CAR DONATION SERVICE, INC.
Registration No: E0037062 Registration Type: Fundraising Event Registration Status: Awaiting Reporting
Date Established: 8/1/2019 Association Date: 7/30/2019 Expiration Date: 7/30/2029

http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Details.aspx?result=b4052702-ceb3-46d6-847a-d93ce6f1d547




































 

 
 

30
53

 F
re

ep
or

t B
lv

d.
, N

o.
 1

20
, S

ac
ra

m
en

to
, C

A
 9

58
18

   
• 

  P
H

O
N

E:
 9

16
.9

30
.0

62
6 

  •
   

FA
X:

 9
16

.9
30

.0
08

6 
  •

   
w

w
w

.m
y-

si
st

er
s-

ho
us

e.
or

g ANN LAND AND BERTHA HENSCHEL MEMORIAL FUND 
2020 GRANT BUDGET 
  
 
 
My Sister’s House requests $10,000 to provide supportive services and pay for shelter 
expenses at its Safe Haven, the 6-bed culturally sensitive shelter for largely Asian and 
Pacific Islander victims. Funds from the Ann Land and Bertha Henschel Memorial Fund 
will specifically be used in the following ways during 2020 for My Sister’s House Safe 
Haven: 
• $5000 for the shelter rent 
• $3000 for (culturally responsive) food and supplies for the Safe Haven 
• $2000 for gas, electric, and security for the Safe Haven 
 
Total:  $10,000 request 
 



ALBH	Grant	Application	2019
City	of	Sacramento

	Submitted	On:
October	17th,	2019	@	2:32pm

Organization	Name Sacramento	Neighborhood	Housing	Services,	Inc.	(dba	NeighborWorks	Sacramento)

Physcial	Address 2411	Alhambra	Blvd.,	Suite	200
Sacramento
CA
95817

Mailing	address	different	from
physical	address?

No

Name Sharon	Eghigian

Title Director,	Community	Impact	Services

Phone	Number 916-452-5356

E-Mail	Address sharon@nwsac.org

Name Juan	Rivera

Phone	Number 916-452-5356

E-Mail	Address jrivera@nwsac.org

Name Sharon	Eghigian

Title Director,	Community	Impact	Services

Phone	Number 916-452-5356

E-Mail	Address sharon@nwsac.org

Please	indicate	below	the
services	you	are	requesting

Food

Indicate	the	dollar	amount
requested	for	Food

$10,000

#	of	clients	that	will	be	served	by
the	Ann	Land	&	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds

650	families

Total	Amount	Requested $10,000.00

The	amount	requested	will	be
applied	to	the	following.

On-going	Program

The	funds	requested	will	be	used
to	serve	the	following	(please
check	all	that	apply)

Families
Women
Men
Children



Will	other	funds	supplement	Ann
Land	and	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds	request	for	this
program?

Yes

Briefly	explain We	will	request	funding	from	Mechanics	Bank	(previously	Rabobank)	to	support	this	request.	We
are	requesting	funds	from	the	Ann	Land	and	Bertha	Henschel	Memorial	Funds	to	provide	a	dollar
for	dollar	Cal-Fresh	match	for	Cal-Fresh	families	shopping	at	the	Oak	Park	Farmers	Market	and
the	Farmers	Market	at	U.C.	Davis	Health.

Did	you	lose	any	funding	in	2019
from	any	source?

No

Do	you	anticipate,	or	have	you
been	notified,	that	you	will	lose
funding	in	2020?

No

Are	you	aware	of,	or	do	you
anticipate	receiving,	any	new
sources	of	funding	in	2020,	for
example,	stimulus	or	other
funds?

No

List	the	hours	that	programs
funded	by	Ann	Land	and	Bertha
Henschel	Memorial	Funds	will	be
available	to	clients.

The	Oak	Park	Farmers	Market	operates	on	Saturdays	from	9	a.m.	to	1	p.m.	from	May	through
October.	The	Farmers	Market	at	U.C.	Davis	Health	operates	on	Wednesdays	from	3	p.m.	to	7
p.m.	from	May	through	October.

Describe	the	geographic	service
area,	within	the	City,	when	you
will	spend	the	requested	funds.

The	requested	funds	will	be	spent	by	City	residents	participating	in	the	CalFRESH	EBT	program
who	are	attending	the	Oak	Park	Farmers	Market/Farmers	Market	at	U.C.	Davis	Health.	The
target	population	includes	residents	of	Oak	Park	and	surrounding	neighborhoods,	including	Tahoe
Park,	Curtis	Park,	Land	Park	and	South	Sacramento.	Including	zipcodes:	95817,95818,	95820	and
portions	of	95816,	95819	and	95828.

Please	upload	a	brief	description
(no	more	than	two	pages)	of	the
program	or	service	for	which	you
are	requesting	funds.	Explain	how
the	program	or	service
addresses	the	mission	and
funding	priorities	of	the	Ann	Land
and	Bertha	Henschel	Memorial
Funds.

https://seam.ly/fmIPlIRV

Mission	Statement	–
Organizational	Goal

NeighborWorks	Sacramento	is	a	nonprofit	501(c)(3)	organization	created	in	1987	with	a	mission
to	provide	opportunities	for	successful	homeownership	and	strong	communities	through	quality
education,	affordable	lending,	supporting	partnerships	and	dedicated	leadership.

Date	incorporated	or	otherwise
formed

4
1
1987



Briefly	describe	other	services
and	programs	your	organization
currently	provides.

In	addition	to	our	2	Farmers	Markets,	NeighborWorks	Sacramento''s	programs	include
Homebuyer	Education	and	Financial	Literacy,	Mutual	Self	Help	Housing,	Resident	leadership
support	and	training,	our	annual	"Paint	the	Town"	neighborhood	improvement	program,	our
"Hand	in	Hand"	toy	drive,	and	other	community	events	and	projects.

Private	or	Corporate	Donations
(Amount)

$443,980.08

Private	or	Corporate	Donations
(%	of	Total	Funding)

19%

United	Way	(Amount) $328.10

United	Way	(%	of	Total	Funding) .01%

SETA	(Amount) 0

SETA	(%	of	Total	Funding) 0

Federal	Assistance	(Amount) $501,554

Federal	Assistance	(%	of	Total
Funding)

21.22%

State	Assistance	(Amount) $25,210.73

State	Assistance	(%	of	Total
Funding)

1.07%

City	or	County	Assistance	(not
from	the	Ann	Land	Bertha
Henschel	Memorial	Funds)
(Amount)

$5,500

City	or	County	Assistance	(not
from	the	Ann	Land	Bertha
Henschel	Memorial	Funds)	(%	of
Total	Funding)

.23%

Grants	(Amount) $656,170.40

Grants	(%	of	Total	Funding) 27.77%

Ann	Land	and	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds	(Amount)

$4,800

Ann	Land	and	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds	(%	of	Total
Funding)

.20%

Other	(briefly	describe	below)
(Amount)

$725,717.69

Other	(briefly	describe	below)	(%
of	Total	Funding)

30.71%

Total	Amount $2,363,261.00

Other	Income	Sources Fees	for	service,	rent,	and	interest



The	names	of	the	members	of
your	organization’s	board	of
directors	and	of	your
organization’s	officers

https://seam.ly/oR1u1Urf

An	organizational	chart	or
description	of	your	organization’s
management	structure

https://seam.ly/tGpYOxvJ

Verification	of	your
organization’s	not-for-profit
status	(letter	from	IRS	confirming
§	501(c)(3)	status)

https://seam.ly/a9sZydCy

Verification	that	your
organization	(1)	is	currently
registered	and	in	good	standing
with	the	Registry	of	Charitable
Trusts	maintained	by	the
California	Attorney	General	or	(2)
is	not	required	to	register.

https://seam.ly/O53pZgBa

A	copy	of	your	organization’s
current	business	license	or	a
letter	from	the	City	of
Sacramento	Finance	Department
verifying	your	organization’s
exemption	from	the	City’s
business-operations	tax.	The
Sacramento	City	Code	requires
that	anyone	conducting	business
within	the	City	of	Sacramento
have	a	current	business	license
on	file	with	the	City.	The	City
issues	nonprofit	organizations	a
waiver	letter	in	lieu	of	a	business
license.	A	waiver	letter	can	be
obtained	at	the	Revenue	Counter
in	New	City	Hall,	First	Floor,	Room
1214.	Indicate	your
organization’s	non-profit	status
on	the	application	form.	There	is
no	charge	for	nonprofit
organizations.

https://seam.ly/6e6NibhI



A	copy	of	your	organization’s
most	recent	audit	and	any
corrective	actions	or
recommendations	suggested	by
the	auditor.	If	you	do	not	have	an
annual	audit,	please	explain	why.
You	must	also	provide	a	copy	of
your	organization’s	most-recent
annual	financial	statements,
signed	by	your	organization’s
treasurer	AND	by	the	preparer,
whether	a	CPA	or	bookkeeper

https://seam.ly/8gCC4Pj0

A	budget	sheet	showing	how
awarded	funds	will	be	spent

https://seam.ly/vGmENfz3

Signature	Data First	Name:	Sharon
Last	Name:	Eghigian
Email	Address:	sharon@nwsac.org

Signed	at:	10/16/2019	12:31PM



Please provide a brief description of the program/service for which you are requesting 
funds. Your description should be limited to a maximum of 2 pages.  
 
NeighborWorks® HomeOwnership Center Sacramento Region (NeighborWorks® Sacramento) 
is seeking funding to increase access to locally-grown, healthy food for low-income residents of 
the City of Sacramento.  We will use project funds to increase the number of CalFresh (EBT) 
and WIC customers at the Oak Park Farmers Market and at our second Farmers Market, 
launched in May 2018, located at the U.C. Davis Medical Center at 45th and X Streets.  
 
We are requesting $10,000 for this project.  We will use these funds only to support our dollar 
for dollar EBT “incentive” match to encourage EBT customers to use their EBT benefits at the 
Farmers Market.  We use funds from other sources to cover any administrative, staffing and 
outreach costs for the EBT program and for the Market.  
 
The Oak Park Farmers Market is a community development project of NeighborWorks® 
Sacramento. NeighborWorks® Sacramento has been housed in Oak Park throughout our more 
than 30 year history. We provide a variety of services to support residents in the greater 
Sacramento region to support homeownership and healthy, engaged communities.   
 
Over the last ten years, Oak Park residents’ interest in healthy food has continued and 
expanded. Residents turned to NeighborWorks® Sacramento in the fall of 2009 to ask for our 
support to develop the Oak Park Farmers Market. NeighborWorks® Sacramento brought 
together the components necessary for the success of this project - organizational capacity, the 
trust we have developed with residents, relationships with elected officials and other partners, 
and, most importantly, a commitment to resident-led projects. NeighborWorks® launched the 
Farmers market in May of 2010, and the Market runs weekly on Saturdays from May through 
October in McClatchy Park.   
 
Oak Park and other City neighborhoods are recognized as “food deserts” due to the lack of 
grocery stores in their neighborhoods. The City of Sacramento has 6 times more fast food 
restaurants/convenience stores than grocery stores.  Because many chronic diseases have 
been associated with low consumption of vegetables and fruits, along with high consumption of 
sugary or high-fat foods, urban food deserts negatively impact the health of those living in 
socially deprived neighborhoods. Oak Park has one supermarket competing with a high volume 
of convenience/liquor stores. The Oak Park Farmers Market and the Farmers Market at U.C. 
Davis Health provide healthy choices for residents of Oak Park and other neighborhoods, 
including Curtis Park, Mid-Town, Colonial Heights, Tahoe Park and South Sacramento. 
 
Over the last ten years, the Oak Park Farmers Market has provided EBT benefits and the EBT 
match to more than 8,000 people.  Through the EBT match program, the Market has provided 
more than $250,000 in EBT benefits/match, which has provided more than 1 million servings of 
healthy food. Since May 2010, we have also provided many healthy and family friendly activities 
at the Market, including nutrition education activities for children, healthy cooking 
demonstrations hosted by local chefs, arts and crafts, yoga and more. Many residents share 
with us that they spend much more time than anticipated at the Market to talk with neighbors, 
listen to music, or participate in one of the activities provided at the Market.  
 
We are particularly proud of being one of the first Farmers Markets in the City of Sacramento to 
accept EBT benefits. NeighborWorks® Sacramento has put a particular emphasis on reaching 
out to EBT families to let these families know they can access EBT benefits at the Oak Park 



Farmers Market.  Since 2011, we have worked to secure funding from our partners to continue 
to meet the increasing demand for the EBT match at our Market.  
                                
We have conducted many types of outreach to EBT and WIC families. These efforts have 
included providing flyers door-to-door in communities throughout Sacramento, including Oak 
Park, Tahoe Park, Colonial Heights and South Sacramento.  In addition, we have provided 
flyers to community based agencies and public agencies that work with EBT families, including 
the Sacramento Food Bank, River City Food Bank, La Familia, Asian Resources, local WIC 
clinics, health centers, and many others.  
 
These efforts have been very successful.  We continue to bring in several new EBT families 
each week at the market; typically 5 to 10 new families using CalFresh visit the Market each 
week. We have grown from $100/week in average weekly EBT sales in 2010 to approximately 
$1,300 in average weekly sales in 2019.  We provide EBT benefits to an average of almost 50 
families each week.   
 
Through funding from the Ann Land and Bertha Henschel Memorial Fund, we will be able to 
increase our outreach to families using WIC and CalFresh EBT and continue to provide an 
EBT incentive match.  We will leverage the funding from the Ann Land and Bertha Henschel 
Memorial Fund with other funders to provide the EBT match for the 2019 Market season.  
 
With these funds, we will be able to continue to expand our EBT incentive to support more 
families, and increase our EBT usage at our new Farmers Market at U.C. Davis Health.  This 
second Market is another opportunity to provide resources to improve the health of low-income 
families living in Oak Park and surrounding neighborhoods.  
 
We will also continue to partner with Sacramento Food Bank and Family Services and other 
local groups who work closely with potential customers using WIC and EBT benefits.  
Sacramento Food Bank and Family Services regularly staffs an information booth at the Oak 
Park Farmers Market to provide information about CalFresh and other services. We have also 
had staff from the Sacramento Department of Human Assistance provide information at the Oak 
Park Farmers Market about applying for CalFresh and other benefits.   This allows families not 
yet using CalFresh to learn about the program in a safe and comfortable setting.  
 
The funds from the Ann Land and Bertha Henschel Memorial Fund will allow NeighborWorks® 
Sacramento to build on our success reaching EBT and WIC families. There are thousands of 
families in the City of Sacramento who are participating in the CalFresh program and the WIC 
program. The project funds will help us continue to reach out to these individuals and provide 
direct access to locally grown, healthy food.  
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

HomeOwnership Center Sacramento: 2411 Alhambra Blvd., Ste. 200, Sacramento, CA 95817 
 

Tel. (916) 452-5356 / Toll Free (CA) (888) 355-5356 /  Fax. (916) 431-3209 / www.nwsac.org 

 

 
BOARD OF DIRECTOR and ORGANIZATION OFFICERS 
 
 

Board of Directors Officers 

Eugene Lee, Board President  
California Energy Commission Supervisor, 
Existing Buildings Office  
State of CA 
 
Lauretta Casimir- Mahoney, Vice President 
Branch Manager, South Pacific Finance Corp.  
 
Chris Chaffee, Board Secretary  
Principal, The Chaffee Group 
 
Kevin Greene, Treasurer  
Principal, Walk Lost Ventures 
 
Patrick Durham, Board Governance Chair 
SMUD Director, Environmental Management & 
Real Estate Services  
 
Manny Delgadillo, Member 
Branch Manager, Wells Fargo 
 
Debra Winstead, Member 
Branch Manager, Platinum Home Mortgage Corp 
 
Duane Webb, Member 
Community Lending Manager, Citibank 
 
 
 
 

 

Organization Officers 
 
Juan Rivera 
President & Chief Executive Officer 
 
Linda Carroll 
Sr. Vice President and Chief Operating Officer 
 
 
 



NeighborWorks 
HomeOwnership Center 

Sacramento Region 

Board of Trustees 
Juan B. Rivera 

President & Chief Executive 
Officer 

Board of Directors 

Board Governance 

Committee 

Loan & Finance 

Committee Linda Carroll 
Senior Vice President & Chief 

Operating Officer 

Sharon Eghigian 
Director, Community 

Engagement 

Theresa Nantor 
Director, Real Estate 

Development 

Kara Thomson 
Sr. Manager, 

HomeOwnership 
Development 

Griselda Clifford 
Sr. Housing Counselor 

(Bi-Lingual) 

Linda Bennett 
 Housing Counselor 

Jea Sako 
Manager, Finance 

Department 

Joany Titherington 
Manager, Farmer’s 

Markets 

Vacant 
Manager, Residential 
Construction Services 

 2019 

Manny Delgadillo 
Pat Durham 
Erin Teague 
Kevin Greene 
Dwayne Webb 

Pat Durham , Chair 
Lauretta Casimir 

Kevin Greene, Chair 
Chris Chaffee 
Monique Ambers 
Robyn Sims 

Eugene Lee, President 
Lauretta Casimir, 1st  Vice President 
Kevin Greene, Treasurer 
Chris Chaffee, Secretary 

Vacant 
Self-Help Housing  

Construction Assistant 

Brandon Bouldin 
Customer Service 

Associate 

Diana Gonzalez 
Portfolio & Asset 
Quality Assistant 

Vacant 
Corporate Accountant 

Cecelia Geter 
HomeOwnership 
Development  & 

Retention Specialist 

Policy & Advocacy 

Committee 

Pat Durham , Chair 
Lauretta Casimir 
Kevin Greene 
 

Kory Vance 
HomeOwnership 

Development Intern 
(VISTA) 

Juana Recinos 
Finance & Operations 

Specialist 

Elise Grimes 
Finance Associate 

Vacant 
Director, Marketing & 

Fundraising 

Blanca Gutierrez 
Manager, Resource 

Development & Brand  

Ping Kwong 
Network  

Administrator 

Denice Dell 
Mortgage Loan 

Officer 
NMLS # 1480774 

Stephen Bredan 
Mortgage Broker 
NMLS # 295920 

Gerine Williams 
Community Dev 
Project Specialist 

Frank Pasquale 
Self-Help Housing 

Supervisor II 

Beilul Naizghi 
Project Manager 

Elaine Schreader 
Junior 

Loan Processor 

Eusevio Ortega 
CCRH 

Real Estate  Intern 

Jean Crum 
HomeOwnership  Intake  

Coordinator 

Angie Lopez 
Housing Counselor/ 

Lending Assistant 

Linda Aldridge 
Salesforce & Data 

Management  
Consultant 

Leonor Perez 
Community Lending 

Officer II 

Stephanie Bribiesca 
Intake Specialist 

Jennifer Bloom 
Mortgage Loan  

Processor 
NMLS# 

Data Input & 
Impact Reporting 

VISTA 





Registrant Details
Entity type: Corporate Class as registered with the Secretary of State or based on founding & registration documents.

Organization Name: SACRAMENTO NEIGHBORHOOD HOUSING SERVICES, INC. IRS FEIN: 680118032
Entity Type: Public Benefit SOS/FTB Corporate/Organization Number: 1548314

Registry Status: Current Renewal Due/Exp. Date: 5/15/2019
RCT Registration Number: 067173 Issue Date: 12/31/2006
Record Type: Charity Registration Effective Date: 12/31/2006
Date This Status: 1/18/2012 Date of Last Renewal: 12/18/2018

Mailing Address
Street: 2400 ALHAMBRA BOULEVARD
Street Line 2:
City, State Zip: SACRAMENTO CA 95817

Filings & Correspondence
RRF-1 2010 2010 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2010 2010 IRS Form 990

Founding Documents Founding Documents

RRF-1 2008 2008 RRF-1

RRF-1 2007 2007 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2007 2007 IRS Form 990

RRF-1 2006 2006 RRF-1

RRF-1 2005 2005 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2005 2005 IRS Form 990

RRF-1 2002 2002 RRF-1

RRF-1 2004 2004 RRF-1

RRF-1 2003 2003 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2003 2003 IRS Form 990

IRS Form 990 2002 2002 IRS Form 990

RRF-1 2001 2001 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2001 2001 IRS Form 990

RRF-1 2000 2000 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2000 2000 IRS Form 990

IRS Form 990 2004 2004 IRS Form 990

RRF-1 2011 2011 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2006 2006 IRS Form 990

IRS Form 990 2008 2008 IRS Form 990

RRF-1 2011 2011 RRF-1

RRF-1 2012 2012 RRF-1

Miscellaneous Document Miscellaneous Document

IRS Form 990 2012 2012 IRS Form 990

IRS Form 990 2011 2011 IRS Form 990

HOME  ABOUT  MEDIA  CAREERS  REGULATIONS  RESOURCES  PROGRAMS  CONTACT

http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2010.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80087d28
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2010.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80087d29
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=Founding+Documents.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80087d2a
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2008.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80087d2b
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2007.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80087d2c
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2007.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80087d2d
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2006.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80087d2f
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2005.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80087d30
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2005.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80087d31
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2002.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80087d35
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2004.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80087d32
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2003.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80087d33
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2003.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80087d34
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2002.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80087d36
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2001.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80087d37
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2001.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80087d38
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2000.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80087d39
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2000.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80087d3a
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2004.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80087d3b
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2011.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80087d3f
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2006.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80087d3c
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2008.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80087d3d
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2011.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80087d3e
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2012.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80087d40
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=Miscellaneous+Document.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80087d44
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2012.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80087d41
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2011.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80087d42
https://oag.ca.gov/home
https://oag.ca.gov/about
https://oag.ca.gov/media
https://oag.ca.gov/careers
https://oag.ca.gov/meetings/public-participation
https://oag.ca.gov/services-info
https://oag.ca.gov/programs
https://oag.ca.gov/contact


Miscellaneous Document Miscellaneous Document

RRF-1 2009 2009 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2009 2009 IRS Form 990

1st Delinquency Notice 1st Delinquency Notice

2016 Form RRF-1 Click on Document Type at the left to open PDF

RRF-1 2013 2013 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2013 2013 IRS Form 990

RRF-1 2014 2014 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2014 2014 IRS Form 990

2015 IRS Form 990 2015 IRS Form 990

2015 RRF-1 2015 RRF-1

2016 Form RRF-1 Click on Document Type at the left to open PDF

Renewal Filing 2017

2016 IRS Form 990 Series Click on Document Type at the left to open PDF

Annual Renewal Data
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 1/1/2001
Accounting Period End Date: 12/31/2001
Total Assets: $3,107,042.00
Total Revenue: $1,188,606.00
Filing Received Date: 4/23/2002
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 1/1/2002
Accounting Period End Date: 12/31/2002
Total Assets: $3,686,550.00
Total Revenue: $1,360,992.00
Filing Received Date: 5/16/2003
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 1/1/2003
Accounting Period End Date: 12/31/2003
Total Assets: $4,404,996.00
Total Revenue: $1,553,830.00
Filing Received Date: 5/18/2004
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 1/1/2004
Accounting Period End Date: 12/31/2004
Total Assets: $4,924,771.00
Total Revenue: $1,211,899.00
Filing Received Date: 11/7/2005
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 1/1/2005
Accounting Period End Date: 12/31/2005
Total Assets: $5,100,298.00
Total Revenue: $1,127,333.00
Filing Received Date: 7/31/2006
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted

http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=Miscellaneous+Document.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80087d43
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2009.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80087d45
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2009.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80087d46
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=1st+Delinquency+Notice.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80087d48
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=191800.pdf&document_id=09027b8f802f94ab
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=605657.PDF&document_id=09027b8f80206814
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=605658.PDF&document_id=09027b8f80206815
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=808561.PDF&document_id=09027b8f8023a291
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=808562.PDF&document_id=09027b8f8023a292
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=1073003.PDF&document_id=09027b8f80297e3e
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=1073002.PDF&document_id=09027b8f80297e3d
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=214106.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8030177f
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=434472.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8036aeaa
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=214103.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8030177e


Accounting Period Begin Date: 1/1/2006
Accounting Period End Date: 12/31/2006
Total Assets: $6,301,382.00
Total Revenue: $1,709,220.00
Filing Received Date: 5/10/2007
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 1/1/2007
Accounting Period End Date: 12/31/2007
Total Assets: $7,698,271.00
Total Revenue: $1,450,618.00
Filing Received Date: 5/13/2008
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 1/1/2008
Accounting Period End Date: 12/31/2008
Total Assets: $8,328,297.00
Total Revenue: $2,001,050.00
Filing Received Date: 5/19/2009
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 1/1/2009
Accounting Period End Date: 12/31/2009
Total Assets: $9,571,912.00
Total Revenue: $3,128,325.00
Filing Received Date: 5/18/2010
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 1/1/2010
Accounting Period End Date: 12/31/2010
Total Assets: $11,648,306.00
Total Revenue: $3,114,263.00
Filing Received Date: 6/6/2011
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 1/1/2011
Accounting Period End Date: 12/31/2011
Total Assets: $12,098,497.00
Total Revenue: $3,361,299.00
Filing Received Date: 5/15/2012
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 1/1/2012
Accounting Period End Date: 12/31/2012
Total Assets: $15,191,279.00
Total Revenue: $6,502,778.00
Filing Received Date: 4/16/2013
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 1/1/2013
Accounting Period End Date: 12/31/2013
Total Assets: $17,549,650.00
Total Revenue: $5,497,045.00
Filing Received Date: 5/15/2014
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y



Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 1/1/2014
Accounting Period End Date: 12/31/2014
Total Assets: $16,702,120.00
Total Revenue: $2,815,432.00
Filing Received Date: 5/6/2015
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 1/1/2015
Accounting Period End Date: 12/31/2015
Total Assets: $21,778,440.00
Total Revenue: $7,390,383.00
Filing Received Date: 5/10/2016
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 1/1/2016
Accounting Period End Date: 12/31/2016
Total Assets: $22,807,054.00
Total Revenue: $5,628,182.00
Filing Received Date: 8/16/2017
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 1/1/2017
Accounting Period End Date: 12/31/2017
Total Assets: $17,724,484.00
Total Revenue: $1,589,953.00
Filing Received Date: 11/19/2018
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N):

Related Registrations & Event Reports
The related records shown below depend on the record type being viewed:

Charity Registrations relate to Professional Fundraising Events which relate to Professional Fundraiser Registrations.
Raffle Registrations relate to Raffle Reports.
Click on the RCT Registration No to navigate to the related record.

Prereq Type: Prerequisite Relationship: Charity
Registrant: CATHIE J BRADLEY DBA CJB & ASSOCIATES, LLC
Registration No: E0000149 Registration Type: Fundraising Event Registration Status: Complete
Date Established: 11/9/2007 Association Date: 2/1/2007 Expiration Date: 5/30/2007

http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Details.aspx?result=98e9b330-7904-4c32-8c2e-9a4e0c37d0a7






Sacramento Neighborhood Housing Services, Inc. 
and Subsidiaries 

dba Neighborworks Homeownership 
Center Sacramento Region 

 
Consolidated Financial Statements  
(With Supplementary Information)  
and Independent Auditor's Report 

 
December 31, 2018 and 2017 



Sacramento Neighborhood Housing Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries  
dba NeighborWorks Homeownership Center Sacramento Region 

 
Index 

 
 

1 

Page 

Independent Auditor's Report 2 

Financial Statements 

Consolidated Statements of Financial Position 4 

Consolidated Statements of Activities and Changes in Net Assets 6 

Consolidated Statements of Functional Expenses 8 

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 9 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 10 

Supplementary Information 

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 21 

Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 22 

Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance 
and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance 
with Government Auditing Standards 23 

Independent Auditor's Report on Compliance for the Major Federal Program and on Internal 
Control over Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance 25 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 27 

 

 



 

2 

Independent Auditor's Report 

To the Board of Directors 
Sacramento Neighborhood Housing Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries dba NeighborWorks 
Homeownership Center Sacramento Region 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Sacramento Neighborhood Housing 
Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries dba NeighborWorks Homeownership Center Sacramento Region (a 
nonprofit organization) which comprise the consolidated statements of financial position as of 
December 31, 2018 and 2017, and the related consolidated statements of activities and changes in net 
assets, functional expenses and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the 
financial statements.  

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes 
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error.  

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We 
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from 
material misstatement.  

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the 
financial statements.  

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion.  

 



 

3 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of Sacramento Neighborhood Housing Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries dba 
NeighborWorks Homeownership Center Sacramento Region as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, and 
the changes in its net assets, and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Adoption of New Accounting Principle 

As discussed in Note 2, the Organization adopted the Financial Accounting Standards Board’s 
Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) 2016-14, Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic 958) – Presentation of 
Financial Statements of Not-for-Project Entities as of and for the year ended December 31, 2018. The 
requirements of the ASU have been applied retrospectively to all periods presented. Our opinion is not 
modified with respect to this matter. 

Other Information 

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a 
whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code 
of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and 
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a 
required part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was 
derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the 
financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit 
of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such 
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial 
statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance 
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the 
information is fairly stated, in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated April 30, 
2019, on our consideration of Sacramento Neighborhood Housing Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries dba 
NeighborWorks Homeownership Center Sacramento Region’s internal control over financial reporting 
and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant 
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing 
of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to 
provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Sacramento Neighborhood Housing Services, Inc. and 
Subsidiaries dba NeighborWorks Homeownership Center Sacramento Region’s internal control over 
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance 
with Government Auditing Standards in considering Sacramento Neighborhood Housing Services, Inc. 
and Subsidiaries dba NeighborWorks Homeownership Center Sacramento Region’s internal control 
over financial reporting and compliance. 

 
 
 
Sacramento, California 
April 30, 2019 



Sacramento Neighborhood Housing Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries 
dba NeighborWorks Homeownership Center Sacramento Region 

 
Consolidated Statements of Financial Position 

December 31, 2018 and 2017 
 
 

4 

Assets
2018 2017

Without Donor 
Restrictions

General Fund LIFT
Neighborhood 
Reinvestment RLF / NGVB

Consolidated 
Total

Consolidated 
Total

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 2,767,829$        256,067$        44,125$             1,182,680$       4,250,701$        3,797,674$        
Receivables

Grants and donations, net 179,018          -               -                  684,161         863,179         102,744          
Current portion of interest receivable -                  -               -                  20,044           20,044           33,084            
Current portion of loan receivable -                  -               29,353            48,658           78,011           80,231            

Prepaid expenses and deposits 19,853            -                  -                19,853           20,694            

Total current assets 2,966,700          256,067          73,478               1,935,543         5,231,788          4,034,427          

Noncurrent assets
Real estate held for sale -                     -                  134                    1,737,131         1,737,265          3,136,644          
Interest receivable, less current portion -                  -               -                  423,121         423,121         406,500             
Loans receivable, less current portion, net -                  2,475,000    687,335          3,305,305      6,467,640      8,636,213          
Property and equipment, net 1,431,513       -               -                  -                1,431,513      1,510,700          

Total noncurrent assets 1,431,513          2,475,000       687,469             5,465,557         10,059,539        13,690,057        

Total assets 4,398,213$        2,731,067$     760,947$           7,401,100$       15,291,327$      17,724,484$      

 With Donor Restrictions

 



Sacramento Neighborhood Housing Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries 
dba NeighborWorks Homeownership Center Sacramento Region 

 
Consolidated Statements of Financial Position 

December 31, 2018 and 2017 
 
 

See Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements. 
5 

Liabilities and Net Assets
2018 2017

Without Donor 
Restrictions

General Fund LIFT
Neighborhood 
Reinvestment RLF / NGVB

Consolidated 
Total

Consolidated 
Total

Current liabilities
Accounts payable 32,115$             -$                -$                   19,214$            51,329$            66,840$             
Accrued expenses 163,430             -                  -                     163,430            255,167             
Taxes and insurance escrow -                     -                  -                     5,504                5,504                6,750                 
Security deposits 10,628               -                  -                     -                    10,628              10,628               
Deferred revenue -                     -                  -                     -                    -                    3,617                 
Current portion of long-term debt 27,342            -               -                  50,000          77,342           545,371          

Total current liabilities 233,515       -            -               74,718       308,233      888,373       

Noncurrent liabilities
Long-term debt, net of current portion 848,144          -               -                  2,512,000     3,360,144      3,435,227       

Total liabilities 1,081,659          -                  -                     2,586,718         3,668,377         4,323,600          

Net assets
Without donor restrictions 3,316,554       -               -                  -                3,316,554      2,726,530       
With donor restrictions -                  2,731,067    760,947          4,814,382     8,306,396      10,674,354     

Total net assets 3,316,554    2,731,067 760,947       4,814,382  11,622,950 13,400,884  

Total liabilities and net assets 4,398,213$       2,731,067$    760,947$          7,401,100$      15,291,327$    17,724,484$     

 With Donor Restrictions

 
 



Sacramento Neighborhood Housing Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries  
dba NeighborWorks Homeownership Center Sacramento Region 

 
Consolidated Statements of Activities and Changes in Net Assets 

Years Ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 
 
 

6 

Support and Revenue
2018 2017

Without Donor 
Restrictions

General Fund LIFT
Neighborhood 
Reinvestment RLF / NGVB

Consolidated 
Total

Consolidated 
Total

Contributions 441,110$           -$                -$                   -$                   441,110$           359,668$           
Contributions in-kind 13,498               -                  -                     -                     13,498               16,698               
Neighborhood Reinvestment Corporation

Expendable grants 479,373             -                  -                     -                     479,373             375,000             
Other grants -                     -                  -                     300,000             300,000             -                     
Interest on loans and released funds 329,610             -                  -                     (164,826)            164,784             198,165             
Interest income 1,235                 -                  -                     122                    1,357                 1,205                 
Loan, housing counseling and workshop fees 302,533           -                -                    -                   302,533           189,702           
Rental income 142,538             -                  -                     -                     142,538             137,039             
Other income 859                    -                  -                     327                    1,186                 97,711               
Gain (loss) on sale of real estate held for sale 136,010             -                  -                     (22,690)              113,320             (127,314)            
NW LIFT grant earned 355,562             -                  -                     48,000               403,562             293,576             

Total support and revenue 2,202,328$        -$                -$                   160,933$           2,363,261$        1,541,450$        

 With Donor Restrictions

 



Sacramento Neighborhood Housing Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries  
dba NeighborWorks Homeownership Center Sacramento Region 

 
Consolidated Statements of Activities and Changes in Net Assets 

Years Ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 
 
 

See Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements. 
7 

Expenses
2018 2017

Without Donor 
Restrictions

General Fund LIFT
Neighborhood 
Reinvestment RLF / NGVB

Consolidated 
Total

Consolidated 
Total

Program services
Home ownership services 802,023$           1,059,000$        -$                   808,426$           2,669,449$        2,862,087$        
Real estate development 800,199             -                     -                     (1,568)                798,631             1,025,000          
Community building 392,174             -                     -                     392,174             320,299             

Total program services 1,994,396          1,059,000          806,858             3,860,254          4,207,386          

Support services
Fundraising and general 176,826             -                     -                     -                     176,826             252,717             
Leasing activities 104,115             -                     -                     -                     104,115             110,457             

Total expenses 2,275,337          1,059,000          -                     806,858             4,141,195          4,570,560          
-                     

Change in net assets (73,009)              (1,059,000)         -                     (645,925)            (1,777,934)         (3,029,110)         

Net assets with donor restrictions
released from restrictions 663,033             (326,120)            (336,913)            -                     -                     

Net assets, beginning of year 2,726,530          3,790,067          1,087,067          5,797,220          13,400,884        16,429,994        

Net assets, end of year 3,316,554$       2,731,067$       760,947$          4,814,382$       11,622,950$     13,400,884$     

 With Donor Restrictions

 



Sacramento Neighborhood Housing Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries  
dba NeighborWorks Homeownership Center Sacramento Region 

 
Consolidated Statements of Functional Expenses 

Years Ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 
 
 

See Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements. 
8 

Program Services Support Services Other Total
Home 

Ownership 
Services

Real Estate 
Development

Community 
Building

Total Program 
Services

Fundraising and 
General Indirect

Total Support 
Services

Leasing 
Activities 2018 2017

Audit & Tax Preparation 13,388$           13,860$           4,297$             31,545$           2,543$             10,673$           13,216$           239$                45,000$           53,500$           
Loan loss reserve expense -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   88,242             
Bad Debt 43,884             -                   -                   43,884             -                   -                   -                   -                   43,884             -                   
Bank Fee 15,033             -                   -                   15,033             3,966               -                   3,966               -                   18,999             9,325               
Communications 8,241               5,948               2,114               16,303             956                  4,661               5,617               118                  22,038             37,336             
Credit Report 7,518               1,282               -                   8,800               -                   -                   -                   8,800               6,173               
Depreciation and Amortization 24,649             23,210             8,937               56,796             3,320               18,517             21,837             23,810             102,443           132,744           
Dues & Subs. 8,087               1,963               557                  10,607             3,328               1,348               4,676               34                    15,317             16,367             
FM Customer Coupons -                   -                   12,394             12,394             -                   -                   -                   12,394             -                   
FM Day Worker -                   -                   11,318             11,318             -                   -                   -                   -                   11,318             -                   
FM EBT -                   -                   18,172             18,172             -                   -                   -                   -                   18,172             -                   
FM Mktg Printing Signage -                   -                   5,090               5,090               -                   -                   -                   5,090               -                   
FM Music/Band -                   -                   5,717               5,717               -                   -                   -                   5,717               -                   
FM Park Activities -                   -                   3,153               3,153               -                   -                   -                   3,153               -                   
FM Permits -                   -                   6,446               6,446               -                   -                   -                   6,446               -                   
FM Program Manager -                   -                   39,619             39,619             -                   -                   -                   39,619             -                   
FM Project Supplies -                   -                   4,840               4,840               -                   -                   -                   4,840               -                   
Fundraising Expenses -                   -                   -                   27,384             -                   27,384             -                   27,384             30,222             
HomeOwnership Services 75,534             -                   -                   75,534             -                   -                   -                   -                   75,534             71,447             
Interest Expenses 2,067               -                   -                   2,067               -                   -                   -                   2,067               10,131             
Legal Services 10,264             724                  294                  11,282             105                  588                  693                  9                      11,984             517                  
LIFT Loan Forgivable Exp 1,779,600        -                   -                   1,779,600        -                   -                   -                   1,779,600        1,944,533        
Mailing Expenses 1,893               1,578               463                  3,934               235                  980                  1,215               26                    5,175               7,362               
Marketing & Promotional Exp 1,385               1,335               374                  3,094               1,282               694                  1,976               13                    5,083               1,493               
Meeting Exp 5,022               4,057               1,664               10,743             1,038               1,861               2,899               43                    13,685             7,092               
Mileage, Parking and Travel 191                  23,391             539                  24,121             206                  59                    265                  40                    24,426             16,197             
Miscellaneous 11                    13                    32                    56                    44                    10                    54                    106                  216                  4,263               
Neighborhood Improvement 247                  724                  8,440               9,411               -                   -                   -                   9,411               103,152           
Office Insurance 6,985               6,894               1,942               15,821             875                  4,326               5,201               2,219               23,241             34,187             
Office Supplies 5,346               2,956               925                  9,227               583                  2,051               2,634               330                  12,191             9,223               
Other Employee Benefits 18,990             10,249             4,908               34,147             22,634             13,568             36,202             359                  70,708             47,069             
Payroll Taxes and Benefits 26,121             31,429             10,356             67,906             4,632               36,763             41,395             718                  110,019           117,716           
Printing Expenses 1,323               864                  809                  2,996               117                  661                  778                  16                    3,790               3,710               
Professional Services 12,763             2,889               1,065               16,717             429                  2,292               2,721               497                  19,935             38,833             
Property Development -                   5,665               -                   5,665               -                   -                   -                   5,665               3,431               
Realty Services -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   1,362               
Rent 9,730               9,590               3,437               22,757             4,341               7,539               11,880             24,541             59,178             87,694             
Repairs 2,491               2,519               873                  5,883               349                  1,981               2,330               5,152               13,365             13,990             
Retirement Plan Contributions 7,778               9,329               3,066               20,173             1,365               10,908             12,273             211                  32,657             37,084             
Salaries 315,172           379,941           124,664           819,777           56,046             442,221           498,267           8,618               1,326,662        1,470,862        
Service Contract 20,377             15,949             5,823               42,149             2,490               12,902             15,392             11,844             69,385             91,495             
Special Events -                   -                   9,875               9,875               -                   -                   -                   9,875               4,939               
Training 5,549               7,011               6,396               18,956             23                    105                  128                  -                   19,084             14,141             
Utilities 8,115               8,067               2,859               19,041             1,345               6,400               7,745               20,859             47,645             54,728             

Total direct expenses 2,437,754        571,437           311,458           3,320,649        139,636           581,108           720,744           99,802             4,141,195        4,570,560        
Indirect expenses 231,695           227,194           80,716             539,605           37,190             (581,108)          (543,918)          4,313               
Total expenses 2,669,449$      798,631$         392,174$         3,860,254$      176,826$         176,826$         104,115$         4,141,195$      4,570,560$      



Sacramento Neighborhood Housing Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries  
dba NeighborWorks Homeownership Center Sacramento Region 

 
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 

Years Ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 
 
 

See Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements. 
 

9 

2018 2017
Cash flows from operating activities

Changes in net assets (1,777,934)$     (3,029,110)$     
Adjustments to reconcile changes in net assets to net cash 
used in operating activities

Depreciation 102,182           131,959            
Amortization 261                   785                   
Loss on sale of real estate held for sale 113,321           216,589            
Write off 2,746               3,502                
Changes in

Interest receivable 13,040             (18,964)            
Accounts Receivable (763,180)         (65,471)            
Prepaid expenses and deposits 841                   4,175                
Interest receivable, less current portion (16,621)           -                   
Loans receivable 2,170,793        2,714,704         
Accounts payable (73,324)           (92,579)            
Accrued expenses (33,925)           10,951              
Taxes and insurance escrow (1,246)             441                   
Deferred revenue (3,617)             3,617                

Net cash used in operating activities (266,663)         (119,401)          

Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds from sale of real estate held for sale 1,286,059        1,709,970         
Expenditures in fixed assets (22,471)           -                   
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment -                   1,256,259         
Disposal of fixed assets (526)                 -                   
Cash paid for real estate held for sale -                   (750,345)          

Net cash provided by investing activities 1,263,062        2,215,884         

Cash flows from financing activities
Payments on long-term debt (593,372)         (1,627,722)       
Borrowings on long-term debt 50,000             60,000              

Net cash used in financing activities (543,372)         (1,567,722)       

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 453,027           528,761            

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 3,797,674        3,268,913         

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 4,250,701$       3,797,674$       

Supplemental cash flow information
Cash paid for interest 41,878$            54,853$            

 



Sacramento Neighborhood Housing Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries  
dba NeighborWorks Homeownership Center Sacramento Region 

 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

December 31, 2018 and 2017 
 
 

10 

Note 1 - Organization and nature of operations 

Sacramento Neighborhood Housing Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries dba NeighborWorks 
Homeownership Center Sacramento Region (the “Organization”) is a 501(c)(3) not-for-profit 
Organization which was incorporated in 1986 under the laws of the State of California. Its purpose 
is to improve and restore neighborhoods district-wide, primarily for the benefit of the neighborhood 
residents. This is achieved by promoting reinvestment, restoring confidence and emphasizing pride 
through the efforts of neighborhood residents acting in concert with financial institutions, local 
government, insurance companies, the business community, and others. 

Program services 
The following is a description of the Organization's programs: 

Home Ownership Services - To bring new home ownership opportunities to households of 
moderate means by supporting privately funded first mortgages with subsidized second 
mortgages. The Home Ownership Center provides homeowner education classes, flexible loan 
products, financial education & loss mitigation counseling and other loan services. 

Real Estate Development - To develop single family homes through acquisition-rehabilitation, 
new construction and mutual self help. These homes are then sold to low- and moderate-
income homebuyers as a primary residence which will allow them to build assets and stability 
for themselves and the neighborhood. 

Community Building - To provide countless opportunities for partnership and program 
development. These various activities keep the Organization and its partners engaged through 
community mobilization and revitalization events and programs such as Paint the Town , 
Farmers Market National NeighborWorks Week and, most recently, Resident Leadership 
Development services. 

Note 2 - Summary of significant accounting policies 

Basis of presentation 
The financial statements of the Organization have been prepared in accordance with U.S. generally 
accepted accounting principles ("US GAAP"), which require the Organization. to report information 
regarding its financial position and activities according to the following net asset classifications: 

• Net assets without donor restrictions: Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed 
restrictions and may be expended for any purpose in performing the primary objectives of 
the organization. These net assets may be used at the discretion of the Organization's 
management and the board of directors. 

• Net assets with donor restrictions: Net assets subject to stipulations imposed by donors, and 
grantors. Some donor restrictions are temporary in nature; those restrictions will be met by 
actions of the Organization or by the passage of time. Other donor restrictions are perpetual 
in nature, where by the donor has stipulated the funds be maintained in perpetuity. 

Donor restricted contributions are reported as increases in net assets with donor restrictions. When 
a restriction expires, net assets are reclassified from net assets with donor restrictions to net assets 
without donor restrictions in the consolidated statements of activities and changes in net assets. 



Sacramento Neighborhood Housing Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries  
dba NeighborWorks Homeownership Center Sacramento Region 

 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

December 31, 2018 and 2017 
 
 

11 

Principles of consolidation 
The consolidated financial statements of the Organization include the accounts of its wholly-owned 
subsidiary, NGVB, LLC, a for-profit California limited liability company. All material intercompany 
balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. 

Comparative financial statements 
Summarized comparative information has been presented as of and for the year ended December 
31, 2017. 

Use of estimates 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that 
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and 
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and 
expenses during the reporting period. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Concentrations of credit risk 
The Organization grants credit to its customers, substantially all of whom are low- to moderate-
income residents and governmental agencies located in the greater Sacramento area. Management 
believes that its loan underwriting, billing, and collection policies are adequate to minimize potential 
credit risk. 

The Organization maintains its cash and cash equivalents in bank deposit accounts which, at times, 
may exceed federally insured limits. The Organization has not experienced any losses in such 
accounts, nor does the Organization believe it is exposed to any significant credit risk on cash and 
cash equivalents. 

The Organization received approximately 42% and 77% of its revenue and support from three 
grantors during the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively. In addition, the 
Organization’s loan operations are focused in the greater Sacramento area. 

Cash and cash equivalents 
The Organization considers all short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less 
to be cash equivalents. 

Restricted cash 
A portion of cash balances maintained in the with donor restrictions funds may be used to pay for 
operating expenses with permission from the granting agency. The cash received on loan 
repayments are without restrictions but has been designated by management to remain in the 
revolving loan fund or be loaned to new borrowers. Interest and investment income earned on the 
Neighborhood Reinvestment Corporation fund balance may be used for general operations of the 
Organization. 



Sacramento Neighborhood Housing Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries  
dba NeighborWorks Homeownership Center Sacramento Region 

 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

December 31, 2018 and 2017 
 
 

12 

Accounts and loans receivable 
Accounts and loans receivable are presented in the consolidated statements of financial position 
net of the allowance for doubtful accounts. Accounts and loans receivable are written off when they 
are determined to be uncollectible. The allowance for doubtful accounts is calculated based on 
management's estimate of uncollectible accounts. The allowance for doubtful accounts for the years 
ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 consists of the following balances: 

2018 2017

Allowance for doubtful accounts receivable 2,500$              2,500$              
Allowance for doubtful loans receivable 82,593              110,665            

 
Real estate held for sale 
The Organization owns real properties with the goal of rehabilitating and reselling them to 
neighborhood residents. Real estate held for sale is presented in the consolidated statement of 
financial position at the lower of cost or fair market value. No allowance was considered necessary 
based on management's evaluation of the current market rate for the years ended December 31, 
2018 and 2017. 

Property and equipment 
Property and equipment are stated at cost or, if donated, at fair market value as of the date of 
donation and depreciated using the straight-line method over estimated useful lives of 5 to 40 
years. The Organization capitalizes all expenditures of property and equipment in excess of $1,000. 

Impairment of long-lived assets 
The Organization reviews its loans receivable, real estate held for sale and its property and 
equipment for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying 
value of an asset may not be recoverable. When recovery is reviewed, if the undiscounted cash 
flows estimated to be generated by the asset are less than its carrying amount, management 
compares the carrying amount of the asset to its fair value in order to determine whether an 
impairment loss has occurred. The amount of the impairment loss is equal to the excess of the 
asset's carrying value over its estimated fair value. No impairment loss has been recognized during 
the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017. 

Debt issuance costs 
Debt issuance costs, net of accumulated amortization, are reported as a direct deduction from the 
face amount of the loan payable to which such costs relate. Amortization of debt issuance costs is 
reported as a component of interest expense and is computed using an imputed interest rate on the 
related loan. 

Interest income on loans 
Interest on loans is accrued and credited to income based on the principal amount outstanding. The 
accrual of interest on loans is discounted as a matter of practice in the opinion of management 
review and recommendation by the Business and Finance Committee. If there is an indication that 
the borrower may be unable to meet the payments as they become due then all unpaid accrued 
interest is written off. As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, no allowance was considered necessary 
for interest receivable.  



Sacramento Neighborhood Housing Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries  
dba NeighborWorks Homeownership Center Sacramento Region 

 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

December 31, 2018 and 2017 
 
 

13 

Contributions in-kind 
During the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, the value of donated materials and 
equipment meeting the requirements for recognition in the consolidated financial statements 
amounted to $13,498 and $16,698, respectively. 

The Organization has chosen not to recognize donated services in the accompanying consolidated 
financial statements since no objective basis is available to measure the value of these services. A 
number of volunteers have donated significant amounts of time to the Organization's program 
services. 

Marketing and promotion 
The Organization expenses marketing and promotion costs as they are incurred. Marketing and 
promotion expenses for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 amounted to $5,083 and 
$1,493, respectively, and are included in the consolidated statements of functional expenses. 

Income taxes 
The Organization has applied for and received a determination letter from the Internal Revenue 
Service ("IRS") to be treated as a tax exempt entity pursuant to Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal 
Revenue Code and did not have any unrelated business income for the years ended December 31, 
2018 and 2017. Due to its tax exempt status, the Organization is not subject to income taxes. The 
Organization is required to file tax returns with the IRS and other taxing authorities. Accordingly, 
these financial statements do not reflect a provision for income taxes and the organization has no 
other tax positions which must be considered for disclosure. The Organization is subject to routine 
audits by taxing jurisdictions; however, there are currently no audits for any tax periods in progress. 

Uncertain tax positions 
Accounting guidance issued by the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") prescribes a 
recognition threshold and measurement attribute for financial statement recognition and 
measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. For those benefits to 
be recognized, a tax position must be more-likely-than-not to be sustained upon examination by 
taxing authorities. The Organization did not have unrecognized tax benefits as of December 31, 
2018 and does not expect this to change significantly over the next twelve months. The 
Organization will recognize interest and penalties accrued on any unrecognized tax benefits as a 
component of income tax expense. As of December 31, 2018, the Organization has not accrued 
interest or penalties related to uncertain tax positions. 

Functional allocation of expenses 
The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been summarized on a 
functional basis in the consolidated statements of functional expenses. Accordingly, certain costs 
have been allocated among the program and support services based on a time study performed by 
management. 

Change in accounting principle 
On August 18, 2016, FASB issued ASU 2016-14, Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic 958) – Presentation 
of Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Entities. The update addresses the complexity and 
understandability of net asset classification, deficiencies in information about liquidity and 
availability of resources, and the lack of consistency in the type of information provided about 
expenses and investment return. The Organization has adjusted the presentation of these 
statements accordingly. The ASU has been applied retrospectively to all periods presented. 



Sacramento Neighborhood Housing Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries  
dba NeighborWorks Homeownership Center Sacramento Region 

 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

December 31, 2018 and 2017 
 
 

14 

Note 3 - Loans receivable 

Loans are granted to low- and moderate-income residents for the purchase of new homes and 
rehabilitation of existing homes. These loans are approved by a vote of the loan committee and are 
made in accordance with grant restrictions. 

Loans receivable are stated at unpaid principal balances reduced by the allowance for uncollectible 
amounts. All loans are collateralized by deeds of trust on single-family residences. 

As of December 31, 2018, loans receivable are summarized as follows: 

Neighborhood 
Reinvestment LIFT / RLF Total

Total loans receivable
Current portion 29,353$            48,658$             78,011$            
Long-term, net of allowance of $82,593 687,335           5,780,305        6,467,640         

Total loans receivable 716,688$          5,828,963$       6,545,651$       
 

As of December 31, 2017, loans receivable are summarized as follows: 

Neighborhood 
Reinvestment LIFT / RLF Total

Total loans receivable
Current portion 33,002$            47,229$             80,231$            
Long-term, net of allowance of $110,665 908,856           7,727,357        8,636,213         

Total loans receivable 941,858$          7,774,586$       8,716,444$       
 

The original funding source of these loans was from capital previously provided by Sacramento 
Housing Redevelopment Agency, Neighborhood Reinvestment Corporation, and California 
Department of Housing and Community Development. Loan terms range from five to thirty years 
with interest rates ranging from 3% to 7%. 

In the event of unforeseen hardships, terms on all loans receivable are subject to change upon 
review by management and presentation for recommendation and approval by the Business and 
Finance Committee. 

Included in loans receivable are 99 deferred payment loans totaling $2,541,545 as of December 31, 
2018 and 107 deferred payment loans totaling $2,572,525 as of December 31, 2017, all of which 
bear interest at rates ranging from 0% to 3%. Interest receivable from these deferred loans 
amounted to $423,121 and $406,500 for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, 
respectively. 

Management periodically evaluates the adequacy of the allowance for doubtful accounts based on 
the Organization's past loan loss experience, known and inherent risks in the portfolio, the 
estimated value of the underlying collateral and certain other factors. The allowances of $82,593 
and $110,665, respectively, as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, serve as the loan loss reserve and 
is seen as a prudent measure based on historical risk. 



Sacramento Neighborhood Housing Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries  
dba NeighborWorks Homeownership Center Sacramento Region 

 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

December 31, 2018 and 2017 
 
 

15 

Without Donor 
Restrictions

Neighborhood 
Reinvestment 

Funds Other Funds Total

Total loans receivable: None 76 loans 519 loans 595 loans

Loan Delinquency Status

Current None 64 loans 519 loans 583 loans
30-59 days None 2 loans None 2 loans
60-89 days None 2 loans None 2 loans
Over 90 days None 8 loans None 8 loans

 
Note 4 - Real estate held for sale 

Real estate held for sale purposes is stated at cost or at the estimated fair value at the date of gift, if 
donated, and consists of the following at December 31, 2018 and 2017: 

2018 2017

18726 Chaparral Dr -$                 349,076$          
6281 Prentis Ct 19,771             19,043              
1501 Miners Spring Rd 299,370           271,586            
4800 Del Norte Blvd -                  158,975            
5861 Poplar Ave -                  75,044              
1574 Portola Valley Rd -                  232,471            
Williams Properties 57,892             549,484            
Arbuckle Properties 2 628,164           611,110            
Arbuckle Properties 1 732,068           713,588            
3513 May St -                  156,267            

1,737,265$       3,136,644$       
 

Note 5 - Property and equipment 

Property and equipment consist of the following as of December 31, 2018 and 2017: 

2018 2017

Buildings and improvements 1,631,490$       1,611,682$       
Office furniture and equipment 481,823           479,162            

2,113,313$       2,090,844$       

Less accumulated depreciation (681,800)         (580,144)          

Property and equipment, net 1,431,513$       1,510,700$       
 

Depreciation expense for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 amounted to $102,182 
and $131,959, respectively. 



Sacramento Neighborhood Housing Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries  
dba NeighborWorks Homeownership Center Sacramento Region 

 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

December 31, 2018 and 2017 
 
 

16 

Note 6 - Long-term debt 

Long-term debt consists of the following at December 31, 2018 and 2017: 

2018 2017

Note payable to Union Bank, secured by building, 
monthly principal and interest payments of $5,672, due 
October 2033. 4.70% 876,726$           902,919$           

Note payable to Wells Fargo Community Development 
Corporation, quarterly interest-only payments, due 
December 2017 (extended to January 2018). 2.00% -                    237,500             

Note payable to Redevelopment Agency of the City of 
Sacramento, payable in full upon sale of related real 
estate. 0.00%. Amount is unsecured -                    31,680               

Note payable to Housing Assistance Council, due 
February 2020. 0%. Amount is unsecured 50,000               -                    

Note payable to Housing Assistance Council, due 
February 2020. 0%. Amount is unsecured 12,000               60,000               
 
Note payable to Tri-Counties Bank, due February 
2020. 0.00%. The note was extended through February 
2025. 500,000             500,000             

Note payable to Wells Fargo Community Development 
Corporation, quarterly interest-only payments, due 
June 2018 -                    50,000               

Note payable to RCAC, secured by building, monthly 
principal and interest payments, due January 2018 -                    200,000             

Note payable to Rabobank, due May 2020 1,000,000        1,000,000         

Note payable to TriCounties, due January 2021. The 
note was extended through January 2025. 1,000,000          1,000,000          

Subtotal 3,438,726        3,982,099         
Less current portion (77,342)           (545,371)          
Less debt issuance costs (1,240)             (1,501)              

Long-term debt, net 3,360,144$        3,435,227$        
 



Sacramento Neighborhood Housing Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries  
dba NeighborWorks Homeownership Center Sacramento Region 

 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

December 31, 2018 and 2017 
 
 

17 

 
Note 6 - Long-term debt (Continued) 

Future annual maturities of long-term debt over each of the next five years and thereafter 
subsequent to December 31, 2018 are as follows: 

2019 77,342              
2020 1,540,751         
2021 1,030,132         
2022 31,579              
2023 33,096              
Thereafter 725,826            

Total balance 
due 3,438,726$       

 
For the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, interest expense was $43,945, and $75,951, 
respectively. 

The liability of the Organization under the notes is limited to the underlying value of the real estate 
collateral plus other amounts deposited with the Lender. 

Note 7 – Net assets with donor restrictions 

As of December 31, 2018, the Organization has received $11,647,500 of total contributions from a 
commercial bank, of which $10,478,000 is with donor restriction for use in a down payment 
assistance program (NW LIFT and Home LIFT) to be administered by the Organization. NW LIFT 
and Home LIFT provide five-year loans that are forgiven at a rate of 20% annually until 100% is 
forgiven at the end of the five-year term. As of December 31, 2018, the Organization has $125,600 
in NW LIFT loans and $2,475,000 in Home LIFT loans outstanding. The annual forgiveness of 
donor restrictions NW LIFT and Home LIFT funds recognized for the years ended December 31, 
2018 and 2017 was $1,779,600 and $1,944,533, respectively. 

The Neighborhood Reinvestment Corporation Revolving Loan Fund and Capital Projects Funds, 
which grant home ownership and improvement loans, require that a certain corpus of the fund be 
maintained, but allow interest and investment income to remain net assets without donor restriction. 
The following amounts were net assets with donor restrictions for future use for the years ended 
December 31, 2018 and 2017: 



Sacramento Neighborhood Housing Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries  
dba NeighborWorks Homeownership Center Sacramento Region 

 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

December 31, 2018 and 2017 
 
 

18 

2018 2017

Neighborhood Reinvestment Corporation 760,947$          1,552,953$       

2018 2017

NGVB, LLC -$                  (11,125)$           
RLF 4,814,382         5,808,345         

Total RLF/NGVB net assets 4,814,382$       5,797,220$       

 
Note 8 - Pension plan 

Effective January 1, 1994, the Organization adopted a simplified employee pension plan, which 
covers substantially all of its employees. The plan covers full time and part time employees with at 
least one year of service who desire to participate. Employer contributions to the plan are calculated 
at 3% of eligible employee's gross salary. Total pension expense for the years ended December 31, 
2018 and 2017 amounted to $32,657 and $37,084, respectively. 

Note 9 - Operating lease revenue 

The Organization leases certain areas of its office building to unrelated third parties under 
agreements which generally provide for a non-cancelable term followed by an option to renew for 
subsequent terms. 

Future minimum lease payments to be received under existing leases are as follows: 

Year Ending December 31:

2019 147,787$          
2020 154,162            
2021 160,178            
2022 79,371              
2023 83,340               



Sacramento Neighborhood Housing Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries  
dba NeighborWorks Homeownership Center Sacramento Region 

 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

December 31, 2018 and 2017 
 
 

19 

Note 10 – Availability and liquidity 

The following represents the Organization’s financial assets at December 31, 2018 and 2017: 

2018 2017

Cash and cash equivalents 4,250,701$       3,797,674$       
Receivables, net 961,234            216,059            
Other current assets 19,853              20,694              

Total current financial assets 5,231,788         4,034,427         

Less amounts not available to be used within one year
Current liabilities 308,233            622,927            
Net assets with donor restrictions 2,265,088         1,677,924         

Financial assets available to meet general 
expenditures over the next twelve months 2,658,467$       1,733,576$       

 
The Organization’s financial assets are intended to be sufficient to meet its general expenditures, 
liabilities and other obligations as they become due. As part of its liquidity plan, excess cash is 
invested in short-term investments, including money market accounts and certificates of deposit, or 
used as part of income generating programs. 

Note 11 - Contingencies 

Various federal, state and local agencies have the authority to audit the books and records of the 
Organization as they pertain to grants and contracts they have awarded. As a result of these audits, 
some grant or contract costs could be disallowed which would create liability to the Organization. 
Additionally, all government grants are subject to annual renewal or reduction depending on 
available revenue from their budgets. Management does not believe there are any costs which 
would be disallowed.  

In the ordinary course of business, the Organization is involved in various pending claims and 
litigation. While the outcome of these matters is not presently determinable, in the opinion of 
management, these matters are not expected to have a material effect on the financial position or 
operating results of the Organization. 

Note 12 - Subsequent events 

Management evaluated the activity of Sacramento Neighborhood Housing Services, Inc. and 
subsidiaries dba NeighborWorks Homeownership Center Sacramento Region through April 30, 
2019, the date the financial statements were available to be issued, and concluded that no 
subsequent events have occurred that would require recognition in the financial statements or 
disclosure in the notes to the financial statements. 



 

 

Supplementary Information



Sacramento Neighborhood Housing Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries  
dba NeighborWorks Homeownership Center Sacramento Region 

 
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

Year Ended December 31, 2018 
 
 

See Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards. 
 

21 

Federal Grantor/ Federal Agency or Pass-through to
(Pass-through Grantor)/ CFDA Pass-through Subreceipients Federal

Program Title Number Number Amount Expenditures

U.S. Department of Agriculture

Rural Self-Help Housing Technical Assistance 10.420 -                 380,605$        

Farmers' Market and Local Food Promotion 
Program 10.168 -                  1,310               

Speciality Crop Block Grant Program - Farm Bill 10.170 -                 44,145           

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban 
Development

Housing Counseling Assistance Program 14.169 -                 8,524             

Community Development Block Grant 14.228 -                 54,159           

Home Investment Partnership Program 14.239 -                 34,055           

Self -Help Homeownership Opportunity Program 14.247 -                  2,865               

Congressional Appropriation
Passed through NeighborWorks America 99-95-557 -                 * 652,227         

Total federal expenditures 1,177,890$      

* Tested as a major program
 

 

 



Sacramento Neighborhood Housing Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries  
dba NeighborWorks Homeownership Center Sacramento Region 

 
Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

Year Ended December 31, 2018 
 
 

22 

Note 1 - Basis of presentation 

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards ("Schedule") includes the federal 
grant activity of Sacramento Neighborhood Housing Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries dba 
NeighborWorks Homeownership Center Sacramento Region ("SNHS") and is presented on the 
accrual basis of accounting. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the 
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations ("CFR") Part 200, Uniform Administrative 
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards ("Uniform Guidance"). 
Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of SNHS, the amounts 
presented in this schedule may differ from the amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, 
the basic financial statements of Sacramento Neighborhood Housing Services, Inc. and 
Subsidiaries dba NeighborWorks Homeownership Center Sacramento Region. 

Note 2 - Summary of significant accounting policies 

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such 
expenditures are recognized following the costs principles contained in Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal 
Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit 
Requirements for Federal Awards, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are 
limited as to reimbursement. 

Note 3 - Relationship to consolidated financial statements 

The amounts reported in the accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards agree, in 
all material respects, to amounts reported within the consolidated financial statements. Federal 
grant expenses are reported principally in the Organization's consolidated financial statements as 
grant revenue. 

Note 4 - Pass-through entities' identifying number 

When federal awards were received from a pass-through entity, the Schedule of Expenditures of 
Federal Awards shows, if available, the identifying number assigned by the pass-through entity. 
When no identifying number is shown, the Organization determined that no identifying number is 
assigned for the program or the Organization was unable to obtain an identifying number from the 
pass-through entity. 

Note 5 - Indirect cost rate 

The Organization did not elect to use the 10% de minimis indirect cost rate as covered in 2 CFR 
§200.414. Uniform Guidance, §200.510(6), requires the Organization to disclose whether or not it 
elected to use the 10 percent de minimis cost rate that §200.414(f) allows for nonfederal entities 
that have never received a negotiated indirect cost rate. The Organization has an approved indirect 
cost rate agreement in place with the United States Department of Interior.  

 



 

23 

Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and  
on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements  

Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards 

To the Board of Directors 
Sacramento Neighborhood Housing Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries dba NeighborWorks 
Homeownership Center Sacramento Region 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Sacramento 
Neighborhood Housing Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries dba NeighborWorks Homeownership Center 
Sacramento Region, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as of December 
31, 2018, and the related consolidated statements of activities and changes in net assets, functional 
expenses and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, 
and have issued our report thereon dated April 30, 2019, which contains an emphasis of matter 
paragraph for the adoption of a new accounting principle on page 3.  

Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Sacramento 
Neighborhood Housing Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries dba NeighborWorks Homeownership Center 
Sacramento Region's internal control over financial reporting ("internal control") to determine the audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the 
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
Sacramento Neighborhood Housing Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries dba NeighborWorks 
Homeownership Center Sacramento Region's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an 
opinion on the effectiveness of Sacramento Neighborhood Housing Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries dba 
NeighborWorks Homeownership Center Sacramento Region's internal control.  

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material 
misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a 
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control 
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged 
with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control, that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material 
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 



 

24 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Sacramento Neighborhood Housing 
Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries dba NeighborWorks Homeownership Center Sacramento Region's 
financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with 
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which 
could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, 
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and 
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of 
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
entity's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and 
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.  

 
 
 
Sacramento, California 
April 30, 2019 



 

25 

Independent Auditor's Report on Compliance for the Major Federal Program and  
on Internal Control over Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance 

To the Board of Directors 
Sacramento Neighborhood Housing Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries  
dba Neighborworks Homeownership Center Sacramento Region 

Report on Compliance for the Major Federal Program 

We have audited Sacramento Neighborhood Housing Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries dba 
Neighborworks Homeownership Center Sacramento Region’s compliance with the types of compliance 
requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material 
effect on Sacramento Neighborhood Housing Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries dba Neighborworks 
Homeownership Center Sacramento Region's major federal program for the year ended December 31, 
2018. Sacramento Neighborhood Housing Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries dba Neighborworks 
Homeownership Center Sacramento Region's major federal program is identified in the summary of 
auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. 

Management's Responsibility  

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and 
grants applicable to its federal programs. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for Sacramento Neighborhood Housing 
Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries dba Neighborworks Homeownership Center Sacramento Region's 
major federal program based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. 
We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of 
Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost 
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards ("Uniform Guidance"). Those standards and the 
Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a 
direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test 
basis, evidence about Sacramento Neighborhood Housing Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries dba 
Neighborworks Homeownership Center Sacramento Region's compliance with those requirements and 
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.  

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for the major 
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Sacramento 
Neighborhood Housing Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries dba Neighborworks Homeownership Center 
Sacramento Region's compliance. 

Opinion on the Major Federal Program 

In our opinion, Sacramento Neighborhood Housing Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries dba Neighborworks 
Homeownership Center Sacramento Region complied, in all material respects, with the compliance 
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on its major federal program 
for the year ended December 31, 2018. 



 

26 

Report on Internal Control over Compliance 

Management of Sacramento Neighborhood Housing Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries dba 
Neighborworks Homeownership Center Sacramento Region is responsible for establishing and 
maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements 
referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered Sacramento 
Neighborhood Housing Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries dba Neighborworks Homeownership Center 
Sacramento Region's internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a 
direct and material effect on the major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for the major 
federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the 
Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal 
control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Sacramento 
Neighborhood Housing Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries dba Neighborworks Homeownership Center 
Sacramento Region's internal control over compliance.  

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their 
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance 
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over 
compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that 
there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 
federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant 
deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe 
than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by 
those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, 
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of our testing based on the requirements of 
the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.  

 
 
 
Sacramento, California 
April 30, 2019 



Sacramento Neighborhood Housing Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries  
dba NeighborWorks Homeownership Center Sacramento Region 

 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

December 31, 2018 
 
 

27 

A. Summary of Auditor's Results 
 

Financial Statements 

1. Type of report the auditor issued on whether the financial 
statements audited were prepared in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles: Unmodified 

2. Internal control over financial reporting: 

a. Material weakness(es) 
identified?   Yes X No 

b. Significant deficiency(ies) 
identified?  Yes X None reported 

3. Noncompliance material to financial 
statements noted?  Yes X No 

 
Federal Awards 

4. Internal control over major federal programs: 

a. Material weakness(es) 
identified?  Yes X No 

b. Significant deficiency(ies) 
identified?  Yes X None reported 

5. Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major 
federal programs: Unmodified 

6. Any audit findings disclosed that are 
required to be reported in accordance 
with 2 CFR Section 200.516(a)?  Yes X No 

 
7. Identification of major federal programs: 

 
CFDA Numbers(s)  Name of Federal Program or Cluster 
99-95-557  Congressional Appropriation Passed through 

NeighborWorks America 
 

8. Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and 
Type B programs: $750,000 

9. Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee X Yes  No 
 



Sacramento Neighborhood Housing Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries  
dba NeighborWorks Homeownership Center Sacramento Region 

 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

December 31, 2018 
 
 

28 

B. Findings - Financial Statements Audit 
 
  None 
 
C. Findings and Questioned Costs - Major Federal Award Programs Audit 
 
  None 
 
 





NeighborWorks HomeOwnership Center Sacramento Region

Ann Land and Bertha Henschel Memorial Fund  

Budget Sheet

Project Expenses Amt. Budget Narrative

EBT Incentive $10,000
to provide $10,000 in EBT 
match for EBT eligible families

Total $10,000

Process for distributing EBT: 

Each customer comes to the Farmers Market information table and presents their 

CalFresh (Food stamp) EBT card.  The Oak Park Farmers Market has an EBT card machine. 

We swipe their card and deduct the amount requested from their card (for example, $15).  

Through our EBT incentive funding, we are able to provide a dollar for dollar match for the

$15.00. As a result, the customer receives a total of $30 to spend on healthy food at the 

Oak Park Farmers Market. 

The customer receives their EBT benefits in wooden tokens.  This allows for easy shopping at

each of the farmer booths.  The farmers are very familiar with the process of accepting EBT

as payment for their items.

One clear indication of the need for this benefit is the trend we see each month with EBT sales.  

Our highest EBT sales are always on the second Saturday of the month.  That is because

monthly EBT benefits are distributed in the early part of the month.  On the

last Saturday of the month and the first Saturday (before EBT benefits are distributed), 

EBT sales are always much less, because the customer's EBT benefits are almost (or are

totally) spent for the month. 



ALBH	Grant	Application	2019
City	of	Sacramento

	Submitted	On:
October	28th,	2019	@	12:49pm

Organization	Name Next	Move	Homeless	Services

Physcial	Address 8001	Folsom	Blvd
Sacramento
CA
95826

Mailing	address	different	from
physical	address?

No

Name Nick	Lee

Title Director	of	Grants

Phone	Number 916-395-9000

E-Mail	Address nickl@goodwillsacto.org

Name Richard	Abrusci

Phone	Number 916-395-9000

E-Mail	Address RichardA@goodwillsacto.org

Name Macarena	Araya

Title Director	of	Finance

Phone	Number 916-395-9000

E-Mail	Address MacarenaA@goodwillsacto.org

Please	indicate	below	the
services	you	are	requesting

Utilities

Indicate	the	dollar	amount
requested	for	Utilities

$10,000.00

#	of	clients	that	will	be	served	by
the	Ann	Land	&	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds

Francis	House	Center	will	provide	50	families	with	disadvantages	(men,	women	and	children)	with
utilities	assistance	to	help	provide	people	on	the	edge	of	homelessness	with	lights,	warmth	and
running	water

Total	Amount	Requested $10,000.00

The	amount	requested	will	be
applied	to	the	following.

On-going	Program

The	funds	requested	will	be	used
to	serve	the	following	(please
check	all	that	apply)

Families
Women
Men
Children



Will	other	funds	supplement	Ann
Land	and	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds	request	for	this
program?

Yes

Briefly	explain The	Sacramento	Employment	and	Training	Agency	provides	partial	funding	for	Francis	House
Center	to	provide	Safety	Net	services	for	families,	children	and	individuals	with	disadvantages	as
well	as	some	diversion	funding	through	CalWorks.

Did	you	lose	any	funding	in	2019
from	any	source?

No

Do	you	anticipate,	or	have	you
been	notified,	that	you	will	lose
funding	in	2020?

No

Are	you	aware	of,	or	do	you
anticipate	receiving,	any	new
sources	of	funding	in	2020,	for
example,	stimulus	or	other
funds?

No

List	the	hours	that	programs
funded	by	Ann	Land	and	Bertha
Henschel	Memorial	Funds	will	be
available	to	clients.

Monday,	Tuesday,	Thursday	and	Friday,	from	9am	to	3pm

Describe	the	geographic	service
area,	within	the	City,	when	you
will	spend	the	requested	funds.

Francis	House	Center’s	services	are	available	to	anyone	in	need	in	the	Sacramento	region.	The
majority	of	clients	are	located	in	the	downtown,	midtown	and	south	areas	of	Sacramento.

Please	upload	a	brief	description
(no	more	than	two	pages)	of	the
program	or	service	for	which	you
are	requesting	funds.	Explain	how
the	program	or	service
addresses	the	mission	and
funding	priorities	of	the	Ann	Land
and	Bertha	Henschel	Memorial
Funds.

https://seam.ly/hrRt6nIC

Mission	Statement	–
Organizational	Goal

Help	individuals	and	families	with	children	achieve	self-reliance.

Date	incorporated	or	otherwise
formed

6
31
1978

Briefly	describe	other	services
and	programs	your	organization
currently	provides.

The	Next	Move	Family	Shelter	includes	lodging,	meals,	and	services	designed	to	help	families
move	into	permanent	housing.	The	Francis	House	Center	provides	direct	services	to	vulnerable
individuals	of	all	ages,	including:	bus	passes,	a	clothing	donation	center,	Veteran	services,
resource	coaching,	a	diversion	(homelessness	prevention)	program,	a	Family	Rescue	Program,
assistance	obtaining	a	California	ID,	hygiene	kit	provision	and	notary	services.	It	also	has	a
Housing	Department	&	PSH	housing.



Private	or	Corporate	Donations
(Amount)

378,644

Private	or	Corporate	Donations
(%	of	Total	Funding)

82.15%

United	Way	(Amount) 7,415

United	Way	(%	of	Total	Funding) 1.61%

SETA	(Amount) 48,189

SETA	(%	of	Total	Funding) 10.45%

Federal	Assistance	(Amount) 0

Federal	Assistance	(%	of	Total
Funding)

0.00%

State	Assistance	(Amount) 0

State	Assistance	(%	of	Total
Funding)

0.00%

City	or	County	Assistance	(not
from	the	Ann	Land	Bertha
Henschel	Memorial	Funds)
(Amount)

0

City	or	County	Assistance	(not
from	the	Ann	Land	Bertha
Henschel	Memorial	Funds)	(%	of
Total	Funding)

0.00%

Grants	(Amount) 14,393

Grants	(%	of	Total	Funding) 3.12%

Ann	Land	and	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds	(Amount)

7,500

Ann	Land	and	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds	(%	of	Total
Funding)

1.63%

Other	(briefly	describe	below)
(Amount)

4,779

Other	(briefly	describe	below)	(%
of	Total	Funding)

1.04%

Total	Amount $460,920.00

Other	Income	Sources

The	names	of	the	members	of
your	organization’s	board	of
directors	and	of	your
organization’s	officers

https://seam.ly/RpGmzXdr



An	organizational	chart	or
description	of	your	organization’s
management	structure

https://seam.ly/t3DtTY4t

Verification	of	your
organization’s	not-for-profit
status	(letter	from	IRS	confirming
§	501(c)(3)	status)

https://seam.ly/7JXlpibx

Verification	that	your
organization	(1)	is	currently
registered	and	in	good	standing
with	the	Registry	of	Charitable
Trusts	maintained	by	the
California	Attorney	General	or	(2)
is	not	required	to	register.

https://seam.ly/hjXI4UIb

A	copy	of	your	organization’s
current	business	license	or	a
letter	from	the	City	of
Sacramento	Finance	Department
verifying	your	organization’s
exemption	from	the	City’s
business-operations	tax.	The
Sacramento	City	Code	requires
that	anyone	conducting	business
within	the	City	of	Sacramento
have	a	current	business	license
on	file	with	the	City.	The	City
issues	nonprofit	organizations	a
waiver	letter	in	lieu	of	a	business
license.	A	waiver	letter	can	be
obtained	at	the	Revenue	Counter
in	New	City	Hall,	First	Floor,	Room
1214.	Indicate	your
organization’s	non-profit	status
on	the	application	form.	There	is
no	charge	for	nonprofit
organizations.

https://seam.ly/LlmEe6fW

A	copy	of	your	organization’s
most	recent	audit	and	any
corrective	actions	or
recommendations	suggested	by
the	auditor.	If	you	do	not	have	an
annual	audit,	please	explain	why.
You	must	also	provide	a	copy	of
your	organization’s	most-recent
annual	financial	statements,
signed	by	your	organization’s
treasurer	AND	by	the	preparer,
whether	a	CPA	or	bookkeeper

https://seam.ly/ECQyGEig



A	budget	sheet	showing	how
awarded	funds	will	be	spent

https://seam.ly/ccD58gHJ

Signature	Data First	Name:	Nick
Last	Name:	Lee
Email	Address:	nickl@goodwillsacto.org

Signed	at:	10/28/2019	11:49AM



 

[Type here] [Type here] [Type here] (916) 454-2120 • www.nextmovesacramento.org • info@nextmovesacramento.org 

 

October 25, 2019 
 

TO: Ms. Janelle Oishi, Program Specialist 
Support Staff to the Ann Land and Bertha Henschel Memorial Fund Commission 
 

According to HUD, California reports the highest proportion of unsheltered homelessness in the 
country, currently averaging 69 percent.1 This proportion has grown over the last four years, 
leading to the estimation that between 10,000-11,000 residents of Sacramento County will 
experience at least one episode of homelessness during the course of 2019.2  
 

Next Move currently serves 1,800 participants annually throughout various programming and 
provides a variety of services to individuals and families experiencing homelessness or who are 
straddling homelessness. For nearly 50 years, FHC has been serving individuals and families in 
destitute throughout the Sacramento area.  FHC, located in the River District, has been a 
program of Next Move for several years and has become one of the initial resources provided 
to someone who just recently falls into homelessness. The center provides direct services to 
vulnerable individuals of all ages. The services include bus passes, access to a clothing donation 
center as well as Veteran services, resource coaching, assistance obtaining a California ID, 
hygiene kit provision and notary services. In addition, FHC staff offer assistance through a 
diversion (homelessness prevention) program which helps with one-time financial assistance, a 
Family Rescue Program offering temporary shelter to several families each week. Furthermore, 
through the partnership with Goodwill® Industries of Sacramento Valley and Northern Nevada, 
Francis House Center co-located a second Jobs(+) campus and employs a Job Developer who 
helps with job and housing applications and interviews. 
 

FHC is requesting utility assistance from the Ann Land and Bertha Henschel Memorial Fund 
2020 to continue last year’s funded request. Utility assistance continues to be the most 
requested service offered through FHC and is provided to families needing assistance who we 
believe should not have to choose whether to risk eviction because they cannot afford rent or 
to not have heat, gas or electricity in their home. Funds will also be utilized for single individuals 
as there are many resources in Sacramento for families in need, but not as many for singles in 
need. 
 

In addition to literally homeless families, many families struggling to survive in low-income or 
subsidized housing come to FHC for assistance. Because of this, we anticipate a significant 
increase in the demand for this type of assistance. We respectfully request to be re-granted 
$10,000 to pay for utilities for the Sacramento residents needing this support.  
 

On behalf of our clients, we thank you for your continued support.  
 
Cynthia Pimentel  
Francis House Program Manger 

 
1 U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development [HUD]. (2017). 2017 AHAR, Part 2, Section 4: Unaccompanied homeless youth in the United States. 
Washington, D.C.:. Retrieved from https://files.hudexchange.info/resources/documents/2017-AHAR-Part-2-Section-4.pdf. 
2 Baiocchi, A., Curry, S., Williams, S., Argüello, T., Price Wolf, J., & Morris, J. (2019, June). Homelessness in Sacramento County: Results from the 2019 Point-in-Time 
Count. Sacramento, CA: Institute for Social Research and Sacramento Steps Forward. 



GOODWILL INDUSTRIES OF SACRAMENTO VALLEY & NORTHERN NEVADA, 
INC. 2019 BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Douglas Bayless, Ex Officio 
Bayless Properties, Inc. 
2410 Fair Oaks Blvd., Ste 110 
Sacramento, CA 95825 
916-641-0300
916-835-3200 cell
doug@bayloessproperties.com

Debie Baranchulk, Ex Officio 
Neighbor Works America 
Republic Mortgage Home Loans 
2231 Bridlewood Dr,  
Rancho Cordova, CA  95670 
916-747-9118
debieb4755@yahoo.com

Alison Buhler, Director 
813 Treehouse Ln 
Sacramento, CA 95864 
916-736-2677
916-715-1317 cell
alisonbuhler@aol.com

Julius Cherry, Director 
Attorney at Law 
Cherry Bankruptcy 
2600 H Street 
Sacramento, CA 95816 
916-233-2663
916-216-2552 cell
julius@cherrylawconsulting.com

Nathan Cox, First Vice Chair 
SVP/Market Manager 
U.S. Bank 
621 Capitol Mall, Suite 900 
Sacramento, CA 95814 
916-498-3847
916-384-6275 cell
nathan.cox2@usbank.com

Normand Fadness, Director 
Marketing 
6612 Acropolis St. 
Elk Grove, CA 95758 
Cell:  916-717-0353 
normfad@frontiernet.net 

Susan Hussey, Director 
Deputy Sector Navigator 
Health Sector, North Region 
Sacramento City College 
3835 Freeport Boulevard 
Sacramento, CA 95822 
916-650-2767
smhuss29@gmail.com

Brett Huston, Treasurer 
Tax Managing Director 
KPMG 
500 Capitol Mall Ste. 2100 
Sacramento, CA 95814 
916-554-1654
bhuston@kpmg.com

Kipp Johnson, Secretary 
Retired COO 
Lumens 
8301 Woodborough Wy 
Fair Oaks, CA 95628 
916-273-1174
916-730-4784 cell
Kjohnson47@comcast.net

Timothy Kassis, Second Vice Chair 
Senior Vice President and Market 
Manager -Commercial Real Estate  
U.S. Bank 
621 Capitol Mall, Suite 800   
Sacramento, CA  95814 
916-498-3450
916-472-9313 cell
timothy.kassis@usbank.com

Richard Abrusci, Ex Officio 
President/CEO 
Goodwill Industries 
8001 Folsom Blvd. 
Sacramento, CA 95826 
916-395-9000
916-997-7510 cell
ceo@goodwillsacto.org

Steve Saxton, Director 
Attorney/Partner  
Downey Brand LLP 
621 Capitol Mall, 18th Floor 
Sacramento, CA 95826 
7731 Rio Estrada Way 
Sacramento, CA 95831 
916-444-1000
916-799-9319 cell
ssaxton@downeybrand.com

John Wickland, Chair 
Wickland Corporation 
8950 Cal Center Drive, Ste. 125 
Sacramento, CA 95826 
916-978-2470
916-802-4817 cell
jwickland@wickland.com

mailto:doug@bayloessproperties.com
mailto:debieb4755@yahoo.com
mailto:alisonbuhler@aol.com
mailto:julius@cherrylawconsulting.com
mailto:nathan.cox2@usbank.com
mailto:normfad@frontiernet.net
mailto:smhuss29@gmail.com
mailto:bhuston@kpmg.com
mailto:Kjohnson47@comcast.net
mailto:timothy.kassis@usbank.com
mailto:ceo@goodwillsacto.org
mailto:ssaxton@downeybrand.com
mailto:jwickland@wickland.com


Nest Move Homeless Services 
Organization Chart

Richard Abrusci
President

LaTisha 
Lawson

Program Manager 
Family Shelter

Cynthia 
Pimentel

Program Manager 
Francis House 

Center

Loren Pimm
Program Manager 

Omega                
Casa de Esperanza

Cynthia Laux

Case Manager 
IIKristen 

Estrada

Job Developer

Heather 
Cardoza

Program Manager 
Step Up Sacramento 

Home at Last

Ann-Marie 
Snow

Case   Manager 
Omega

Benjamin 
Uhlenhop
Systems and 
Compliance 

Manager

Beth Tackic

Case Manager 
Casa de 

Esperanza

Malinda Morgan

Program 
Resource 
Assistant 

OPEN

Youth 
Development 

Specialist

John Bryant
Maintenance 

Manager

Alex 
McCreddin

Development 
Coordinator

Open

Lead Support 
Staff

Carrie Brown

Case Manager

Gale Green

Case Manager

Javier Leon

Youth 
Development 

Specialist

Stepphanie 
Nevin

Case Manager 
Step Up 

Sacramento

Jolayne Austin

Case Manager 
Step Up 

Sacramento

Open

Case Manager 
Home at Last

Shaday Bryant
Case Manager II 

Step Up 
Sacramento 

Home at Last

Rachel Trujillo

Housing 
Specialist

Elizabeth 
Villasenor

Housing 
SpecialistDoungchai 

Burriss

Housing 
Counselor 

Jon Moyle 

Program 
Resource 
Assistant

Hipolito
Ramirez

Maintenance I

David 
Gonzalez 

Reyes

Maintenance II

Jacqueline 
McClain

Support Staff

Dayisha Boney

Support Staff

Candice 
Booker

Support Staff

Joshanna
Giannini

Support Staff

Jerinna
Jackson

Support Staff

Loraine 
Hernandez

Food Services 
Worker II

Limetrias
Daniels

Support Staff

Moon Lee

Food Services 
Worker I

Lori Mack

Support Staff

Carolyn 
Matthies

HMIS data 
Input 

Dennis Manuel

Maintenance II



















GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS



CliftonLarsonAllen LLP 

CLAconnect.com 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Auditors’ Responsibility 



Opinion

Other Matters  

Code of Federal 
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements 
for Federal Awards

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards  

Government Auditing Standards

Government Auditing Standards



See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements. 



See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements. 



See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements. 



See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements. 



See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements. 



See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements. 



o

o

o

o



o

o

o

o

o

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions



Net Assets With Donor Restrictions

Credit Risk 

Revenue, and Support







Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes

Not-
for-Profit Entities (Topic 958) – Presentation of Financial Statements of Not-For-Profit 
Entities



Level 1 

Level 2

Level 3











CliftonLarsonAllen LLP 

CLAconnect.com 

GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

deficiency in internal control

material weakness

significant deficiency



Government Auditing Standards

Government Auditing Standards



CliftonLarsonAllen LLP 

CLAconnect.com 

Management’s Responsibility 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Government 
Auditing Standards

Code of Federal Regulations Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost 
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards



Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

deficiency in internal control over compliance

material weakness in internal control over compliance

significant deficiency in 
internal control over compliance







Section I – Summary of Auditors’ Results 

Financial Statements

Federal Awards 

Identification of Major Federal Programs 



Section II – Financial Statement Findings 

Government Auditing 
Standards

Section III – Findings and Questioned Costs – Major Federal Programs 



COMPONENT ALBH FUNDS TOTAL

Salary -$                    
Benefits -$                    

SUBTOTAL -$                                    -$                    

Occupancy -$                    
Startup Costs -$                    
Equipment -$                    
Communications -$                    
Office Supplies -$                    
Travel -$                    
Technology -$                    
Direct Participant Support -$                    
Laundry -$                    
Food

SUBTOTAL -$                                    -$                    

Utility Assistance 10,000$                         10,000$         
One-time Housing Costs (arrears, deposits, etc.) -$                    
Moving Costs -$                    

SUBTOTAL 10,000$                         10,000$         
In-direct Costs (not to exceed 10%) -$                    
TOTAL 10,000$                         10,000$         

STAFFING

OPERATIONS

 Ann Land and Bertha Henschel Memorial Fund 2020 Grant Budget


OTHER SERVICES



ALBH	Grant	Application	2019
City	of	Sacramento

	Submitted	On:
October	16th,	2019	@	4:57pm

Organization	Name ReIMAGINE	Mack	Road	Foundation	(RMRF)

Physcial	Address 7833	Center	Parkway
Sacramento
CA
95823

Mailing	address	different	from
physical	address?

Yes

Mailing	Address 75	Quinta	Court	Ste.	D
Sacramento
CA
95823

Name Marilyn	Mann

Title Director	of	Community	Partnership

Phone	Number 916-282-3203

E-Mail	Address marilyn.mann@mackroadpartnership.com

Name Bill	Knowlton

Phone	Number 916-706-3833

E-Mail	Address bill.knowlton@mackroadpartnership.com

Name Marilyn	Mann

Title Director	of	Community	Partnership

Phone	Number 916-706-3833

E-Mail	Address bill.knowlton@mackroadpartnership.com

Please	indicate	below	the
services	you	are	requesting

Food

Indicate	the	dollar	amount
requested	for	Food

$7000.00

#	of	clients	that	will	be	served	by
the	Ann	Land	&	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds

3000	meals	served

Total	Amount	Requested $7,000.00

The	amount	requested	will	be
applied	to	the	following.

On-going	Program



The	funds	requested	will	be	used
to	serve	the	following	(please
check	all	that	apply)

Families
Women
Men
Children

Will	other	funds	supplement	Ann
Land	and	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds	request	for	this
program?

Yes

Briefly	explain Donations	and	services	In-kind,	program	resources,	and	grant	funds	are	leveraged	with	existing
partners	to	cover	the	cost	of	programming.	The	Mack	Road	Partnership	also	provides	resources
and	covers	personnel	costs	to	support	program	operations	for	the	Mack	Road	Valley	Community
Center	(the	Center)	and	SSNL	programs.	Other	food	resource	programs	through	the	United
Way	have	been	added	to	help	meet	food	insecurity	needs	among	children/youth	to	address
hunger	in	the	community	we	serve.

Did	you	lose	any	funding	in	2019
from	any	source?

Yes

Briefly	explain RMRF	applies	annually	for	Kaiser	Permanente	funding.	In	2019	the	total	RMRF	was	awarded
$60,000	(our	full	ask)	to	align	with	a	funding	cap	implemented	for	organizations	applying	at	our
particular	tier	level	&	$15,000	less	than	received	in	2018.	These	funds	are	used	to	operate	and
provide	direct	services	to	at-risk,	low	income	children	and	youth	participants	in	our	Community
Center	programs.

Do	you	anticipate,	or	have	you
been	notified,	that	you	will	lose
funding	in	2020?

No

Are	you	aware	of,	or	do	you
anticipate	receiving,	any	new
sources	of	funding	in	2020,	for
example,	stimulus	or	other
funds?

Yes

Briefly	explain RMRF	applies	for	multiple	grants	throughout	the	year	to	sustain	the	programming	and	services.
There	is	significant	local	completion	for	these	same	resources.	RMRF	has	pending	applications
with	the	County	of	Sacramento	TOT	funding	and	Wells	Fargo	Foundation.	We	will	reapply	for
Kaiser	funding	in	Spring	of	2020.

List	the	hours	that	programs
funded	by	Ann	Land	and	Bertha
Henschel	Memorial	Funds	will	be
available	to	clients.

New	hours	of	operation	increased	from	11am-6pm	to	11am-8pm.	Mon-Fri.	and	include	Sat.
10am-5pm	(year	round).	Snacks	&	access	to	prepared	food	items	are	available	to	children	during
these	hours.	The	Center	also	hosts	monthly	family	and/or	holiday	themed	events	on	Saturdays.
Actual	hours	of	events	operation	may	vary	pending	weather	and	event	theme,	but	are	usually	3
hours	in	duration.	These	events	include	access	to	snacks	and	prepared	food	items.	
Our	Sac	Summer	Night	Light	program,	a	violence-reduction	program	runs,	June-Aug.,	Fri-Sat.
nights	7-10pm.	The	program	offers	an	evening	meal,	free	of	charge	to	all	program	guest
(adults/seniors/youth/children.	Meals	are	served	from	7-8	pm.	



Describe	the	geographic	service
area,	within	the	City,	when	you
will	spend	the	requested	funds.

The	RMRF	serves	low-income,	socio-economically	disadvantaged,	at-risk,	school-age	children	(5-
18yrs),	families	&	individuals	residing	in	the	south	Sacramento	neighborhoods	of	Mack	Road,
Valley	Hi,	and	Center	Parkway.	Our	program	hub	is	our	Community	Center	(the	Center).	The
Center	address	is	7833	Center	Parkway	(95823)	in	the	middle	of	a	low-service,	high-need,	at-risk
neighborhood.	This	area	has	some	of	the	highest	poverty/crime	rates	in	Sacramento	&	is	a
designated	Promise	Zone.

Please	upload	a	brief	description
(no	more	than	two	pages)	of	the
program	or	service	for	which	you
are	requesting	funds.	Explain	how
the	program	or	service
addresses	the	mission	and
funding	priorities	of	the	Ann	Land
and	Bertha	Henschel	Memorial
Funds.

https://seam.ly/wPcSkj71

Mission	Statement	–
Organizational	Goal

RMRF''s	Mission	is	to:
ReIMAGINE	a	healthier	more	vibrant	place	to	live,	shop,	&	thrive
ReSHAPE	the	quality	of	life	for	those	in	need
ReVITALIZE	an	underserved/under-resourced	part	of	Sacramento
ReINVENT	the	way	our	community	thinks	about	food,	job	creation,	&	a	better	future	for	youth	&
young	adults

Date	incorporated	or	otherwise
formed

11
27
2013

Briefly	describe	other	services
and	programs	your	organization
currently	provides.

NEIGHBOORHOOD	VIOLENCE	REDUCTION/PREVENTION
•Mack	Road	Valley	Hi	Community	Center	Programs
•SSNL

SUPPORTED	YOUTH-WORKFORCE	DEVELOPMENT	(Low-income,	at-risk	youth)
•	Summer	employment/training	(SSNL,	Farmer	Market)	
•	Employment/training	(Center,	Hip	Hop	Bike	Shop)

COMMUNITY	RESOURCE	&	ENAGEMENT	
•	Valley	Mack	Farmers	Market
•	ReIMAGINE	Day
•	Urban	Garden	Project
•	Food	for	Thought	(meals)
•	Hip-Hop	Bike	Shop	

Private	or	Corporate	Donations
(Amount)

$23,625.00

Private	or	Corporate	Donations
(%	of	Total	Funding)

8%

United	Way	(Amount) 0

United	Way	(%	of	Total	Funding) 0

SETA	(Amount) 0



SETA	(%	of	Total	Funding) 0

Federal	Assistance	(Amount) 0

Federal	Assistance	(%	of	Total
Funding)

0

State	Assistance	(Amount) 0

State	Assistance	(%	of	Total
Funding)

0

City	or	County	Assistance	(not
from	the	Ann	Land	Bertha
Henschel	Memorial	Funds)
(Amount)

$162,680.00

City	or	County	Assistance	(not
from	the	Ann	Land	Bertha
Henschel	Memorial	Funds)	(%	of
Total	Funding)

54%

Grants	(Amount) $113,521.00

Grants	(%	of	Total	Funding) 38%

Ann	Land	and	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds	(Amount)

0

Ann	Land	and	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds	(%	of	Total
Funding)

0

Other	(briefly	describe	below)
(Amount)

0.00

Other	(briefly	describe	below)	(%
of	Total	Funding)

Total	Amount $299,827.00

Other	Income	Sources NOTE:	Totals	and	percentages	noted	in	the	section	"Finanical	Information"	are	funding	resouces
for	the	2018	program	year.

The	names	of	the	members	of
your	organization’s	board	of
directors	and	of	your
organization’s	officers

https://seam.ly/4IT8oLKl

An	organizational	chart	or
description	of	your	organization’s
management	structure

https://seam.ly/EsXqPiTF

Verification	of	your
organization’s	not-for-profit
status	(letter	from	IRS	confirming
§	501(c)(3)	status)

https://seam.ly/Wkxxc9Qy
https://seam.ly/CKm6dtIg



Verification	that	your
organization	(1)	is	currently
registered	and	in	good	standing
with	the	Registry	of	Charitable
Trusts	maintained	by	the
California	Attorney	General	or	(2)
is	not	required	to	register.

https://seam.ly/joDzXvYx

A	copy	of	your	organization’s
current	business	license	or	a
letter	from	the	City	of
Sacramento	Finance	Department
verifying	your	organization’s
exemption	from	the	City’s
business-operations	tax.	The
Sacramento	City	Code	requires
that	anyone	conducting	business
within	the	City	of	Sacramento
have	a	current	business	license
on	file	with	the	City.	The	City
issues	nonprofit	organizations	a
waiver	letter	in	lieu	of	a	business
license.	A	waiver	letter	can	be
obtained	at	the	Revenue	Counter
in	New	City	Hall,	First	Floor,	Room
1214.	Indicate	your
organization’s	non-profit	status
on	the	application	form.	There	is
no	charge	for	nonprofit
organizations.

https://seam.ly/wNMoR2Q5

A	copy	of	your	organization’s
most	recent	audit	and	any
corrective	actions	or
recommendations	suggested	by
the	auditor.	If	you	do	not	have	an
annual	audit,	please	explain	why.
You	must	also	provide	a	copy	of
your	organization’s	most-recent
annual	financial	statements,
signed	by	your	organization’s
treasurer	AND	by	the	preparer,
whether	a	CPA	or	bookkeeper

https://seam.ly/huQB1SmS

A	budget	sheet	showing	how
awarded	funds	will	be	spent

https://seam.ly/Fl93crFs



Signature	Data First	Name:	Marilyn
Last	Name:	Mann
Email	Address:	marilyn.mann@mackroadpartnership.com

Signed	at:	10/10/2019	12:56PM



 

 
RMRF- 2020 ALBH Application 

 

Our Neighbors, Our Community: 
The 2017 American Community Survey (U.S. Census Bureau) provides a 5-year estimate of the 95823 zip code, which includes 
the Mack Road, Valley Hi, Center Pkwy neighborhoods served by RMRF.  Survey data indicates that of the 23,326 children under 
18 yrs. living in the 95823 for which poverty status was determined, 36.7% live in households with income below the poverty 
line & 63.3% in households on or above; 50.7% live in households supported by SSI, cash public assistance income, or SNAP 
benefits with 72.3% in female head-of households.   
 
All of these conditions combine to create at-risk and high-risk environments for our most vulnerable children and their young 
parents, many of whom are already gang involved. This overwhelming need is the impetus driving our pursuit of resources to 
support and nurture this community.  When considering the needs of youth and families living in the Valley-Mack 
neighborhoods, it is not hard to see that the dynamics of trauma, socio-economic disparities, poverty, crime rates, and 
prevalence of gang violence has had an adverse impacted the community.   
 
Our Program Efforts: 
The Mack Road-Valley Hi Community Center (the Center) is operated by the ReIMAGINE Mack Road Foundation (RMRF) with 
support from the Mack Road Partnership(MRP), a Property and Business Improvement District (PBID).  The Center serves as our 
program hub located in the middle of a low-service, high-need, at-risk neighborhood just off of Mack Road and Center Parkway 
(95823).  The Center and the programs housed in it are a safe haven serving low-income, at-risk, socio-economically 
disadvantaged, school-aged youth, 5-18 years old, as well as families and individuals residing in the south Sacramento 
neighborhoods of Mack Road, Valley Hi, and Center Parkway.  Our programs are designed to reduce and prevent future youth-
violence through after-school/non-school hours and summer programming. The Center operates year round to serve the needs 
of the community.   

The ReIMAGINE Mack Road Foundation serves the South Sacramento neighborhoods of Mack Road, Valley Hi, and Center 
Parkway (95823) through the following community development program services: 

NEIGHBORHOOD VIOLENCE REDUCTION/PREVENTION                          

• Community Center- Afterschool academic support and enrichment, socio-emotional learning and leadership 
opportunities using prevention and pro-youth development framework; services/resources.      

• Sacramento Summer Night Lights (SSNL)- Summer violence reduction/prevention program builds community, positive 
rapport with law enforcement, safe, drug and violence-free community activities 

SUPPORTED YOUTH-WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT  

• Provides paid summer employment/training and professional development to at-risk, youth (SSNL & Farmer Market)                                                             
• Year round employment/training/intern opportunities for at-risk youth (Center & Community Bike Program) 

COMMUNITY RESOURCE and ENAGEMENT                      

• Valley-Mack Farmers Market: Seasonal market provides fresh food alternative in low-income community.  
• ReIMAGINE Day: Annual community clean-up project; Engages businesses, residents, community partners, law 

enforcement and elected officials to work together to create a clean, safe, healthy community.   
• Urban Garden Project:  Youth participate in planting/maintaining/harvesting fresh fruit/veggies grown in the Center’s 

garden; Healthy eating education.  



 

 
RMRF- 2020 ALBH Application 

 

• Food for Thought: Daily food program serves meals/snacks Mon-Sat, Summer Lunch Program Mon-Fri (kids); Summer 
Dinner Friday and Saturday nights (all ages)  

• Community Bike Program: Free repair and Earn-A-Bike Program 

A program highlight at the Center is our annual Sacramento Summer Night Lights program (SSNL) program.  This community 
based, violence reduction strategy, which provides extensive programming throughout the summer months and is modeled 
after the Summer Night Lights project successfully implemented in Los Angeles. The purpose of the program is to create safe 
environments during the peak times for gang-related violence in communities most affected by violence. The program engages 
all community stakeholders along the family life cycle and runs for 10-12 weeks, every Friday and Saturday nights, June through 
August, from 7pm-10pm.  SSNL provides the community safe, drug and violence-free alternative activities, like organized games, 
athletic events, dance lessons, talent completion, art and craft activities, educational activities, music, community resources 
and outreach conducted by partner community-based organizations. A core component of our SSNL program includes the 
provision of healthy meals for adults and children.   

Our Request:  

While various risk factors impact our participants, food insecurity and poor nutrition can be overlooked as a factor contributing 
to behavioral issues, academic performance, and a child’s ability to regulate their emotions and impulse response.  This, 
however, is a real concern for the students we serve.   

During the summer months, our on-site meal and snack services for children are provided through the federal Summer Lunch 
Program.  This program operates from June through August.  As an extension of our partnerships with an area school district, 
in addition to a free snack and lunch during the afternoon, children and school-aged youth (18 and under) can also receive a 
free, nutritionally balanced, evening meal 2 nights per week during the operation of our SSNL program (Friday & Saturday 
nights). In the summer of 2019, 5306 free lunch and evening meals were served to children/youth.  In addition to serving low-
income youth, RMRF also provides evening meals to low income adults and seniors 2 nights per week during the SSNL program.  
These meals are purchased for $3.50 each from the school district and serves them to adults during program hours. This year, 
from June 7 through August 24th, our 2019 SSNL program provided 1255 dinners to low-income adults and seniors in the 
community.  Our cost was $4392.50.  The RMRF is requesting $1000 to offset the cost of providing a free, nutritionally balanced, 
evening meal to adults during the upcoming 2019 violence-reduction program, Sacramento Summer Night Lights (SSNL).   

To address the remaining nine months (39 weeks) of the year, the RMRF requests $6000.00 to help cover the cost of providing 
free, healthy, after-school snacks and food items to children who come to the Center throughout the rest of school year, non-
summer months, holidays, and seasonal breaks.  On average the Center serves 40-75+ youth per day during regular hours of 
operation, six days per week throughout the year. 

Our efforts to fill gaps in access to food for our service populations aligns with the Ann Land and Bertha Henschel Memorial 
Fund Commission’s focus on the provision of “direct aid and assistance to the destitute men, women, and children of the City 
of Sacramento.” It is our hope to partner to meet this real and present need in South Sacramento. 



 

MM Revised 10/2018 
 

 

List of Board ReIMAGINE Mack Road Foundation Board 
Members 

 
 
 

 

Name Board Program Business/Community Affiliation 
Mertens, Matt President ShopSmart 

Kennedy, Anita Secretary 
Dignity Health Methodist 
Hospital 

Tefft, Sabrina Treasurer 
City of Sacramento, Economic 
Development 

Brown, Robert Director Another Look Hair Salon 
Bryant, Matthew Director City of Sacramento, District 8 

Chan, William Director 
Mack Property Development 
LLC 

Luevano, Theresa Director Tiner Properties 
Riley, Keaton Director County Supervisor District 2 
Santos, Mariane Director Newmark Merrill 

Simmons, Les Director 
South Sacramento Christian 
Center 

Stremsterfer, Chase Director County of Sac, Economic Dev. 
Utley, Vera Director Wasatch Development 
Prakash, Amit Director Red Roof Inn 
Ablog, Jennifer Director Kaiser Permanente 
Prakash, Anish Director Phoenix Hospitality Group 
Nguyen, Ken Director Furniture USA 



ReIMAGINE Mack Road Foundation 
Organizational Chart 

 

 

 

 

Executive Director
Bill Knowlton

Marilyn Mann
Director of 
Community 
Partnerships

Dia Vang
Office & Marketing 

Coorinator

Ian Levin
Community Center 

Program Cooridnator

Norma Ward 
District Maintanence 

Manager





















 
PROPOSED ALBH 2020 PROGRAM BUDGET 

 

 

 

ITEM FOOD 
COSTS 

IN-KIND 
 

Other 
RMRF 

RESOURCES 

TOTAL 
REQUESTED 

FROM  
ALBH 

BUDGET JUSTIFICATION 

SSNL 
Student 
Meals  

$18,571.00 $18,571.00 0.00 0.00 
 

 

Based on 2019 summer meals served 
totals, 5306 student meals will be 
provided at 2020 summer meal 
program.  Meals are contributed  in-
kind to RMRF through federal food 
service (estimated 5306 student 
meals @ $3.50 each total). 

SSNL 
Adult/Senior 
Meals 

$4392.50 0.00 $3392.50 $1000.00 Based on 2019 SSNL meals served 
totals, an estimated 1255 adult meals 
will be provided at SSNL 2020. Theses 
meals will he purchased by RMRF 
from a local school district and 
distributed free of charge to low-
income adults and seniors at our SSNL 
program.  If funded, RMRF will use 
$1000.00 from ALBH to assist in 
meeting this need (estimated 1255 
adult/senior meals @ $3.50 each). 

Youth 
Snacks & 
Food Items- 
Community 
Center (non-
summer 
months) 

$6000.00 0.00 $1000.00 $6000.00 If funded, RMRF will use $6000.00 
from ALBH funding to purchase 
healthy snack and food items to be 
distributed free of charge to low-
income students who come to the 
Mack Road Valley Hi Community 
Center (the Center) during program 
hours of operation. 

TOTAL Cost  $28,963.50 
 

$18,571.00 $4292.50 $7000.00 If funded, RMRF will use $7,000.00 
provided by ALBH to provide prepared 
meals to low-income adults/seniors, 
and healthy snacks and food items to 
low-income children during program 
hours. 



ALBH	Grant	Application	2019
City	of	Sacramento

	Submitted	On:
October	21st,	2019	@	8:37pm

Organization	Name Repairing	the	Breach	Neighborhood	Project

Physcial	Address 2130	4th	Street
Sacramento
CA
95818

Mailing	address	different	from
physical	address?

No

Name Mae	McNeil

Title CFO/Project	Manager

Phone	Number 9169478252

E-Mail	Address maereader@aol.com

Name Darryl	B.	Heath

Phone	Number 9164467198

E-Mail	Address revdbheath@aol.com

Name Mae	McNeil

Title CFO/Project	Manager

Phone	Number 9169478252

E-Mail	Address maereader@aol.com

Please	indicate	below	the
services	you	are	requesting

Food
Shelter

Indicate	the	dollar	amount
requested	for	Food

7,000

#	of	clients	that	will	be	served	by
the	Ann	Land	&	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds

Annually	approximately	9,800	individuals	(4600	families)

Indicate	the	dollar	amount
requested	for	Shelter

500

#	of	clients	that	will	be	served	by
the	Ann	Land	&	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds

Annually	approximately	2,300	homeless	clients

Total	Amount	Requested $7,500.00

The	amount	requested	will	be
applied	to	the	following.

On-going	Program



The	funds	requested	will	be	used
to	serve	the	following	(please
check	all	that	apply)

Families
Women
Men
Children

Will	other	funds	supplement	Ann
Land	and	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds	request	for	this
program?

Yes

Briefly	explain Additional	funding	will	be	supplied	from	our	Sister	Organization	-	St.	John	Missionary	Baptist
Church,	Individual	donors	as	well	as	receiving	"in-kind"	donations	from	several	grocery	stores	and
restaurants	in	the	Sacramento	area.

Did	you	lose	any	funding	in	2019
from	any	source?

No

Do	you	anticipate,	or	have	you
been	notified,	that	you	will	lose
funding	in	2020?

No

Are	you	aware	of,	or	do	you
anticipate	receiving,	any	new
sources	of	funding	in	2020,	for
example,	stimulus	or	other
funds?

No

List	the	hours	that	programs
funded	by	Ann	Land	and	Bertha
Henschel	Memorial	Funds	will	be
available	to	clients.

The	food	pantry	is	open	every	Friday	from	10:00	A.M.	until	2:00	P.M.	Emergency	supplies	can
also	be	disbursed	by	our	volunteer	group	who	operates	the	RBNP	Resource	Referral	Office
Wednesdays	through	Fridays	from	10:00	A.M.	until	2:00	P.M.	at	the	same	site	address.

Describe	the	geographic	service
area,	within	the	City,	when	you
will	spend	the	requested	funds.

RBNP''s	Food	Pantry(4th	St.	Manna)	will	service	the	following	zip	codes	in	the	Downtown,
Southside	Park,	Oak	Park	neighborhoods	-	95818,	95817	and	95814.	4th	St.	Manna	is	available	to
assist	any	destitute	or	needy	person	that	would	solicit	our	assistance	regardless	of	their	zip	code
location.

Please	upload	a	brief	description
(no	more	than	two	pages)	of	the
program	or	service	for	which	you
are	requesting	funds.	Explain	how
the	program	or	service
addresses	the	mission	and
funding	priorities	of	the	Ann	Land
and	Bertha	Henschel	Memorial
Funds.

https://seam.ly/jQkkbAtf

Mission	Statement	–
Organizational	Goal

RBNP	Mission	Statement
Repairing	the	Breach	Neighborhood	Project	is	a	non-profit	organization	established	to	create	a
positive	effect	within	the	community	and	its	businesses,	by	providing	services	that	are	beneficial
in	meeting	the	needs	of	a	growing	neighborhood.	Services	consisting	of,	but	not	limited	to,
financial	counseling,	assisting	first	time	home	buyers,	after	school	tutoring,	adult	education	and
GED	assistance,	health	and	welfare	services,	community	food	pantry	and	counseling.



Date	incorporated	or	otherwise
formed

7
14
2008

Briefly	describe	other	services
and	programs	your	organization
currently	provides.

RBNP	opened	a	Resource	Referral	Office	January	of	2010	to	offer	assistance	to	the	community
in	locating	needed	resources	such	as	additional	food,	shelter,	jobs,	child	care,	rehab	centers,
counseling	and	educational	services	and	healthcare	needs.	The	service	is	free	to	all.	In,	the	past
years,	we	have	also	partnered	with	the	US	Postal	Service	and	Serta	Matress	company	and
conducted	mattress	giveaways	at	no	cost	to	the	community.	We	also	host	a	free	community
Thanksgiving	Dinner.

Private	or	Corporate	Donations
(Amount)

Private	or	Corporate	Donations
(%	of	Total	Funding)

United	Way	(Amount)

United	Way	(%	of	Total	Funding)

SETA	(Amount)

SETA	(%	of	Total	Funding)

Federal	Assistance	(Amount)

Federal	Assistance	(%	of	Total
Funding)

State	Assistance	(Amount)

State	Assistance	(%	of	Total
Funding)

0

City	or	County	Assistance	(not
from	the	Ann	Land	Bertha
Henschel	Memorial	Funds)
(Amount)

City	or	County	Assistance	(not
from	the	Ann	Land	Bertha
Henschel	Memorial	Funds)	(%	of
Total	Funding)

Grants	(Amount)

Grants	(%	of	Total	Funding)

Ann	Land	and	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds	(Amount)

$6,000

Ann	Land	and	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds	(%	of	Total
Funding)

40%

Other	(briefly	describe	below)
(Amount)

St.	John	MBC	Budgeted	funds	($6,369)	Individuals	($2,421)



Other	(briefly	describe	below)	(%
of	Total	Funding)

60%

Total	Amount $14,790.00

Other	Income	Sources N/A

The	names	of	the	members	of
your	organization’s	board	of
directors	and	of	your
organization’s	officers

https://seam.ly/77FMgBdr

An	organizational	chart	or
description	of	your	organization’s
management	structure

https://seam.ly/6ixOxENT

Verification	of	your
organization’s	not-for-profit
status	(letter	from	IRS	confirming
§	501(c)(3)	status)

https://seam.ly/dnTFrWyd
https://seam.ly/U6zkobvG

Verification	that	your
organization	(1)	is	currently
registered	and	in	good	standing
with	the	Registry	of	Charitable
Trusts	maintained	by	the
California	Attorney	General	or	(2)
is	not	required	to	register.

https://seam.ly/cHxeuvlJ

A	copy	of	your	organization’s
current	business	license	or	a
letter	from	the	City	of
Sacramento	Finance	Department
verifying	your	organization’s
exemption	from	the	City’s
business-operations	tax.	The
Sacramento	City	Code	requires
that	anyone	conducting	business
within	the	City	of	Sacramento
have	a	current	business	license
on	file	with	the	City.	The	City
issues	nonprofit	organizations	a
waiver	letter	in	lieu	of	a	business
license.	A	waiver	letter	can	be
obtained	at	the	Revenue	Counter
in	New	City	Hall,	First	Floor,	Room
1214.	Indicate	your
organization’s	non-profit	status
on	the	application	form.	There	is
no	charge	for	nonprofit
organizations.

https://seam.ly/OKlAgFaq



A	copy	of	your	organization’s
most	recent	audit	and	any
corrective	actions	or
recommendations	suggested	by
the	auditor.	If	you	do	not	have	an
annual	audit,	please	explain	why.
You	must	also	provide	a	copy	of
your	organization’s	most-recent
annual	financial	statements,
signed	by	your	organization’s
treasurer	AND	by	the	preparer,
whether	a	CPA	or	bookkeeper

https://seam.ly/oqDvxOmg

A	budget	sheet	showing	how
awarded	funds	will	be	spent

https://seam.ly/EfAZnjCo

Signature	Data First	Name:	Mae
Last	Name:	McNeil
Email	Address:	maereader@aol.com

Signed	at:	10/21/2019	05:28PM



 

 
 1 

Repairing The Breach Neighborhood Project(RBNP) is the non-profit arm of the St. John 
Missionary Baptist Church and was created as part of the vision of our Pastor, Rev. 
Darryl B. Heath in 2008 to be utilized to assist families in need in the Southside Park, 
Oak Park and neighboring communities. RBNP has several areas that we provide 
assistance for in the community, but realize that one of the largest and most serious 
areas of concern is the number of people living in a “land of plenty”  that go to bed hungry 
each night. Statics show that one out of every six Americans go to bed hungry. RBNP 
and St. John wants to be able to make a difference and bring that statistic down for the 
residents of Sacramento.  St. John Missionary Baptist Church has served as a 
distribution site for bakery products donated by the Safeway Supermarket chain for over 
10 years and have distributed those good to the members of the Southside Park and Oak 
Park neighborhood on a first come first serve  basis. Starting in 2010, St. John and  
RBNP have partnered with the Sacramento Western Service Workers Association 
providing them with a distribution site on the St. John campus for them to utilize to 
distribute donated fresh produce for its working poor membership. 

 
  RBNP also partners with St. John to supply food and prepare meals to be distributed to 

needy families and destitute residents many times during the year. For Thanksgiving. 
volunteers not only donate, prepare and serve meals to people from the neighborhood on 
that day, but also prepare and deliver meals to homebound individuals and meals to the 
homeless in known areas downtown where the homeless congregate. In the past years 
St. John has held numerous feeding projects for the homeless, destitute and working 
poor. In the winter, RBNP and St. John has created a “Chicken soup for the Soul” project 
where large pots of chicken soup and cornbread  is prepared and delivered to the St. 
John Shelter for homeless women and children along with providing them with toiletries 
and new socks.  The “Chicken soup for the Soul” project has also provided soup for 
homeless individuals in Southside Park as well as provided transportation for the 
homeless to enjoy a hot meal in our dining room facility at the church. Thanks to the 
funding from the Ann Land  and Bertha Henschel Memorial Fund, RBNP has successfully 
organized and opened a Food Pantry (named 4th St. Manna) where we are able to feed 
even more people on a more frequent basis by providing them with non-perishable and 
fresh (perishable) goods that they will be able to utilize to fight the pangs of hunger. 4th 
St.  Manna officially opened its doors to assist the needy on Good Friday, April 6, 2012 
and have served over 9,800 people, men, women, and children to date(approximately 
4,500 families) Our records indicated that out of the 9,800 individuals helped, we serve a 
homeless population of 2,300 individuals. RBNP is also currently participating in the Food 
Donation Connection’s  Weekly Harvest  program and receive left over food  once a week 
from the Yard House Restaurant (Darden Inc) located in the DOCO region of downtown 
Sacramento to include with our food pantry distributions on Fridays. As a part of that 
program, we have also partnered with Pizza Hut LLC to receive Pizzas once a week, as 
well as food donations from the 3 local McDonalds Restaurant chains to add to our 
weekly bags of food. As part of Sac Food bank’s Grocery Recovery program, we also 
receive food from Target and Smart and Final. 

  
 RBNP is requesting the Ann Land and Bertha Henschel Memorial Fund to fund this 

proposal in order to assist us in continuing to  provide nutritional food to the hundreds of 
homeless, destitute and working poor families in our community through 4th St Manna 
Food Pantry. These funds will also help us be able to provide some assistance for 
temporary living arrangements as well. We are aware that winter is coming and that a lot 
of the homeless population will be at the mercy of the elements and we would like to be 
able to provide them temporary shelter and assistance with finding permanent shelter 
through our Resource Referral office to get them out of the elements and into to a safe 
and dry environment. 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Repairing the Breach Neighborhood Project 
Board of Directors 

 
 
 
 
Rev. Darryl B. Heath,  CEO/Founder 
Mae McNeil, CFO 
Renee Smith, Secretary 
Garvin Arnett, Treasurer 
Vonzell Pugh, Projects Coordinator 
Geneva Griffin, Board  Member 
Mary Hights, Board Member 
Karena Samuel, Board Member 
Arnet Heath, Board Member 
Neecy Doran, Board Member 
Jackie Green, Board Member 
Colleen Bacon, Food Pantry Coordinator 

 

2130 4th Street, Sacramento, CA 95818 Office 916-446-3583 Fax  916-446-7088  







Registrant Details
Entity type: Corporate Class as registered with the Secretary of State or based on founding & registration documents.

Organization Name: REPAIRING THE BREACH NEIGHBORHOOD PROJECT, INC. IRS FEIN: 262082119
Entity Type: Public Benefit SOS/FTB Corporate/Organization Number: 3153441

Registry Status: Current Renewal Due/Exp. Date: 5/15/2020
RCT Registration Number: CT0260598 Issue Date: 10/9/2018
Record Type: Charity Registration Effective Date: 10/9/2018
Date This Status: 10/11/2018 Date of Last Renewal: 10/9/2019

Mailing Address
Street: 2130 4TH ST
Street Line 2:
City, State Zip: SACRAMENTO CA 95818

Filings & Correspondence
Founding Documents Click on Document Type at the left to open PDF

CT-410 Confirmation of Registration Click on Document Type at the left to open PDF

Form RRF-1 2017

Form RRF-1 2013

Form RRF-1 2014

Form RRF-1 2015

Form RRF-1 2016

Form RRF-1 2012

Online Renewal Submission 2018

Annual Renewal Data
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 1/1/2012
Accounting Period End Date: 12/31/2012
Total Assets: $500.00
Total Revenue: $3,000.00
Filing Received Date: 10/11/2018
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): N
Online Submission (Y/N):
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 1/1/2013
Accounting Period End Date: 12/31/2013
Total Assets: $1,000.00
Total Revenue: $7,500.00
Filing Received Date: 10/10/2018
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): N
Online Submission (Y/N):
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 1/1/2014
Accounting Period End Date: 12/31/2014
Total Assets: $1,000.00
Total Revenue: $15,778.00

HOME  ABOUT  MEDIA  CAREERS  REGULATIONS  RESOURCES  PROGRAMS  CONTACT

http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=400628.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80359771
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=CT0260598+.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80355068
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=2017.pdf&document_id=09027b8f803552b8
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=2013.pdf&document_id=09027b8f803552b4
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=2014.pdf&document_id=09027b8f803552b5
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=2015.pdf&document_id=09027b8f803552b6
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=2016.pdf&document_id=09027b8f803552b7
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF+2012.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8035550c
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=OnlineFiling_CT0260598.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8039e439
https://oag.ca.gov/home
https://oag.ca.gov/about
https://oag.ca.gov/media
https://oag.ca.gov/careers
https://oag.ca.gov/meetings/public-participation
https://oag.ca.gov/services-info
https://oag.ca.gov/programs
https://oag.ca.gov/contact


Filing Received Date: 10/10/2018
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): N
Online Submission (Y/N):
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 1/1/2015
Accounting Period End Date: 12/31/2015
Total Assets: $1,000.00
Total Revenue: $7,500.00
Filing Received Date: 10/10/2018
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): N
Online Submission (Y/N):
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 1/1/2016
Accounting Period End Date: 12/31/2016
Total Assets: $1,500.00
Total Revenue: $8,000.00
Filing Received Date: 10/10/2018
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): N
Online Submission (Y/N):
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 1/1/2017
Accounting Period End Date: 12/31/2017
Total Assets: $1,800.00
Total Revenue: $7,500.00
Filing Received Date: 10/10/2018
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): N
Online Submission (Y/N):
Status of Filing: E-Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 1/1/2018
Accounting Period End Date: 12/31/2018
Total Assets: $15,000.00
Total Revenue: $15,000.00
Filing Received Date: 10/8/2019
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): N
Online Submission (Y/N): Y

Related Registrations & Event Reports
The related records shown below depend on the record type being viewed:

Charity Registrations relate to Professional Fundraising Events which relate to Professional Fundraiser Registrations.
Raffle Registrations relate to Raffle Reports.
Click on the RCT Registration No to navigate to the related record.

No Related Records



Submitted Online On: Tue Oct 08 2019 

ANNUAL REGISTRATION RENEWAL FEE REPORT TO ATTORNEY GENERAL OF CALIFORNIA – ONLINE SUBMISSION

Name of Organization and Address

Name: REPAIRING THE BREACH NEIGHBORHOOD PROJECT, INC.

2130 4TH ST
SACRAMENTO, CA 95818
maereader@aol.com
9164989089

Registration Information

Charity Registration Continue

Registration Number: CT0260598 Registration Status: Current

Date Issued: 10/9/2018 Renewal Due Date: 5/15/2019

Annual Registration Renewal Data

Total Assets
Fiscal Year
End Date

Fiscal Year
Begin Date

Gross Annual Revenue

15000 12/31/2018 01/01/2018 15000

Question Response Summary

1. During this reporting period, were there any contracts, loans, leases or other financial
transactions between the organization and any officer, director or trustee thereof either
directly or with an entity in which any such officer, director or trustee had any financial
interest?

N

2. During this reporting period, was there any theft, embezzlement, diversion or misuse of
the organization's charitable property or funds? N

3. During this reporting period, did non-program expenditures exceed 50% of gross
revenues? N

4. During this reporting period, were any organization funds used to pay any penalty, fine
or judgment? If you filed a Form 4720 with the Internal Revenue Service, attach a copy. N

5. During this reporting period, were the services of a commercial fundraiser or fundraising
counsel for charitable purposes used? If "yes," provide an attachment listing the name,
address, and telephone number of the service provider.

N

6. During this reporting period, did the organization receive any governmental funding? If
so, provide an attachment listing the name of the agency, mailing address, contact person,
and telephone number.

N

7. During this reporting period, did the organization hold a raffle for charitable purposes? If
"yes," provide an attachment indicating the number of raffles and the date(s) they
occurred.

N

8. Does the organization conduct a vehicle donation program? If "yes," provide an
attachment indicating whether the program is operatedby the charity or whether the
organization contracts with a commercial fundraiser for charitable purposes.

N

9. Did your organization have prepared an audited financial statement in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles for this reporting period? N

Enter the 4-digit Year of the Fiscal Year End Date for which you are reporting: 2018

Document Upload

Document Name View Delete Type

OnlineFiling_CT0260598.pdf View Delete Online Renewal Submission

By typing your name and title as an authorized officer of the organization in the field below and clicking the Next button
below, you are agreeing to the following attestation:

“I declare under penalty of perjury that I have examined this report, including accompanying documents, and to the best of
my knowledge and belief, it is true correct and complete."

Name and Title of Attester:

Mae McNeil, CFO

ProcessStart.aspx?process=REN&agency_id=1&license_id=2616662&profession_id=9&license_type_id=13&LicenseNo=CT0260598&license_status_id=52
javascript:__doPostBack('attachments$ctl02$ctl00','')
javascript:__doPostBack('attachments$ctl02$ctl01','')










Repairing the Breach Neighborhood Project 
 

Food Pantry Budget – 2020 
 

 
 
 

 
Income:  
St. John Baptist Church $7,500.00  
AL/BH Fund $6,500.00  
Membership Dues $1,500.00  
Individual 
Donations/Grocery Outlet $7,000.00  
  

Grand Total Income $22,500.00  
Prospective Funders (for year-2020): 
Ann Land and Bertha Henschel Memorial Fund (funds - $6,500) 
Weekly Harvest Donation Program (Food donations)/Yard House Restaurant, Pizza Hut 
LLC/McDonalds-, Safeway Stores, Smart and Final Stores(“In-Kind” donations) - $10,000 
St. John Missionary Baptist Church (budgeted line item - $7,500) 
*The Food Pantry Project will  not employ any staff. The pantry is manned and run with volunteers of 
the organization that currently volunteer their time staffing the RBNP Resource Center 

Expenses:  
Personnel * Amount 
Support Staff 0  
Total Personnel 0  
Operating Costs:   
Food $15,000 
Temporary housing assistance  $500 
Clothing purchases 
(socks/blankets) $250 
Packing material/Bags                          $ 1,500 
Pest Control                          $  900 
Cleaning supplies                          $  500 
Transportation costs                         $1,500 
     Total Operating Costs $20,150  
 Equipment & Supply Costs:  
 Telephone                         $  1,200 
 Advertising                          $  250 
Office supplies                          $  250 
 Misc. Supplies                          $  300 
Total Equipment/Supply 
Costs                         $2,000 
Grand Total - Expenses $22,150  



ALBH	Grant	Application	2019
City	of	Sacramento

	Submitted	On:
October	24th,	2019	@	1:43pm

Organization	Name Sacramento	Food	Bank	&	Family	Services

Physcial	Address 3333	Third	Avenue
Sacramento
CA
95817

Mailing	address	different	from
physical	address?

No

Name Jeremiah

Title Rhine

Phone	Number 916-456-1980

E-Mail	Address grants@sacramentofoodbank.org

Name Blake	Young,	President/CEO

Phone	Number 916-456-1980

E-Mail	Address byoung@sacramentofoodbank.org

Name Ayanna	McGee

Title Grants	Coordinator

Phone	Number 916-456-1980

E-Mail	Address amcgee@sacramentofoodbank.org

Please	indicate	below	the
services	you	are	requesting

Food

Indicate	the	dollar	amount
requested	for	Food

$5,000

#	of	clients	that	will	be	served	by
the	Ann	Land	&	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds

4,630

Total	Amount	Requested $5,000.00

The	amount	requested	will	be
applied	to	the	following.

On-going	Program

The	funds	requested	will	be	used
to	serve	the	following	(please
check	all	that	apply)

Families
Women
Men
Children



Will	other	funds	supplement	Ann
Land	and	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds	request	for	this
program?

Yes

Briefly	explain Funders	for	SFBFS’	Food	Bank	Services	in	FY	2019-2020	include	Feeding	America	($185,200),
CalRecycle	($153,562),	Sutter	Health	($150,000),	Wells	Fargo	Foundation	($100,000),	FEMA-
EFSP	($83,000),	and	Kaiser	Permanente	($95,000).

Did	you	lose	any	funding	in	2019
from	any	source?

No

Do	you	anticipate,	or	have	you
been	notified,	that	you	will	lose
funding	in	2020?

No

Are	you	aware	of,	or	do	you
anticipate	receiving,	any	new
sources	of	funding	in	2020,	for
example,	stimulus	or	other
funds?

Yes

Briefly	explain SFBFS	continuously	seeks	funds	from	other	foundations,	donors	and	philanthropic	organizations.
Funding	sources	listed	above	have	been	and	continue	to	be	committed	partners.	The	Food	Bank
Services	budget	for	FY	19/20	is	$4,308,013.	Shortfalls	in	supplemental	funding	are	made	up	with
SFBFS	general	operating	funds.

List	the	hours	that	programs
funded	by	Ann	Land	and	Bertha
Henschel	Memorial	Funds	will	be
available	to	clients.

SFBFS	has	168	partner	agencies	within	Sacramento	City	limits,	providing	emergency	food
assistance	at	various	days	and	times,	Mondays	through	Saturday,	with	a	few	faith-based
organizations	offering	food	distributions	on	Sunday.	Service	times	include	mornings,	afternoons
and	evenings.

In	addition	to	providing	food	to	support	partner	agencies,	SFBFS	will	use	ALBH	funds	to	purchase
produce	for	SFBFS’	Produce	for	All	program,	which	has	10	of	its	15	distribution	sites	within
Sacramento	City	limits.

Describe	the	geographic	service
area,	within	the	City,	when	you
will	spend	the	requested	funds.

SFBFS	will	spend	the	requested	funds	primarily	in	the	neighborhoods	of	Oak	Park,	Central
Sacramento,	North	Sacramento	and	Del	Paso	Heights.	These	are	some	of	the	poorest
neighborhoods	in	Sacramento,	experiencing	multigenerational	levels	of	poverty	and	destitution,
which	go	hand-in-hand	with	food	insecurity.	Approximately	13%	are	low-income	seniors	and	37%
are	children.

Please	upload	a	brief	description
(no	more	than	two	pages)	of	the
program	or	service	for	which	you
are	requesting	funds.	Explain	how
the	program	or	service
addresses	the	mission	and
funding	priorities	of	the	Ann	Land
and	Bertha	Henschel	Memorial
Funds.

https://seam.ly/WzE6323F

Mission	Statement	–
Organizational	Goal

Sacramento	Food	Bank	&	Family	Services	is	dedicated	to	assisting	those	in	need	by	alleviating
their	immediate	pain	and	problems	and	moving	them	toward	self-sufficiency	and	financial
independence.



Date	incorporated	or	otherwise
formed

4
15
1976

Briefly	describe	other	services
and	programs	your	organization
currently	provides.

Clothing	distributes	over	355,000	articles	of	clothing	annually	to	people	in	need.	SMUD
EnergyHELP	Services	helps	1,900	low-income	customers	pay	electric	bills.	Adult	Education
provides	workforce	development	for	over	1,000	adults.	Youth	Education	serves	nearly	500	youth
with	educational	assistance	and	enrichment	activities.	Refugee	Resettlement	Services	resettles
150	refugees	per	year.	Immigration	Legal	Services	helps	over	520	individuals	obtain	legal	status.

Private	or	Corporate	Donations
(Amount)

$4,758,835

Private	or	Corporate	Donations
(%	of	Total	Funding)

56%

United	Way	(Amount) $84,979

United	Way	(%	of	Total	Funding) 1%

SETA	(Amount)

SETA	(%	of	Total	Funding)

Federal	Assistance	(Amount) $934,771

Federal	Assistance	(%	of	Total
Funding)

11%

State	Assistance	(Amount) $254,938

State	Assistance	(%	of	Total
Funding)

3%

City	or	County	Assistance	(not
from	the	Ann	Land	Bertha
Henschel	Memorial	Funds)
(Amount)

$249,938

City	or	County	Assistance	(not
from	the	Ann	Land	Bertha
Henschel	Memorial	Funds)	(%	of
Total	Funding)

3%

Grants	(Amount) $1,614,605

Grants	(%	of	Total	Funding) 19%

Ann	Land	and	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds	(Amount)

$5,000

Ann	Land	and	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds	(%	of	Total
Funding)

0.06%

Other	(briefly	describe	below)
(Amount)

$594,854



Other	(briefly	describe	below)	(%
of	Total	Funding)

7%

Total	Amount $8,497,920.00

Other	Income	Sources Endowment,	recycling,	purchasing	program,	shared	maintenance	fees,	immigration	legal	services
fees

The	names	of	the	members	of
your	organization’s	board	of
directors	and	of	your
organization’s	officers

https://seam.ly/0bhJV2BM

An	organizational	chart	or
description	of	your	organization’s
management	structure

https://seam.ly/tuo1Dxic

Verification	of	your
organization’s	not-for-profit
status	(letter	from	IRS	confirming
§	501(c)(3)	status)

https://seam.ly/ErWPmOWe

Verification	that	your
organization	(1)	is	currently
registered	and	in	good	standing
with	the	Registry	of	Charitable
Trusts	maintained	by	the
California	Attorney	General	or	(2)
is	not	required	to	register.

https://seam.ly/Vn7TLpzP

A	copy	of	your	organization’s
current	business	license	or	a
letter	from	the	City	of
Sacramento	Finance	Department
verifying	your	organization’s
exemption	from	the	City’s
business-operations	tax.	The
Sacramento	City	Code	requires
that	anyone	conducting	business
within	the	City	of	Sacramento
have	a	current	business	license
on	file	with	the	City.	The	City
issues	nonprofit	organizations	a
waiver	letter	in	lieu	of	a	business
license.	A	waiver	letter	can	be
obtained	at	the	Revenue	Counter
in	New	City	Hall,	First	Floor,	Room
1214.	Indicate	your
organization’s	non-profit	status
on	the	application	form.	There	is
no	charge	for	nonprofit
organizations.

https://seam.ly/eVUgQDCz



A	copy	of	your	organization’s
most	recent	audit	and	any
corrective	actions	or
recommendations	suggested	by
the	auditor.	If	you	do	not	have	an
annual	audit,	please	explain	why.
You	must	also	provide	a	copy	of
your	organization’s	most-recent
annual	financial	statements,
signed	by	your	organization’s
treasurer	AND	by	the	preparer,
whether	a	CPA	or	bookkeeper

https://seam.ly/DI52nLZD

A	budget	sheet	showing	how
awarded	funds	will	be	spent

https://seam.ly/dpAoTX19

Signature	Data First	Name:	Jeremiah
Last	Name:	Rhine
Email	Address:	grants@sacramentofoodbank.org

Signed	at:	10/24/2019	10:43AM



 

 

Sacramento Food Bank & Family Services 

Sacramento Food Bank & Family Services (SFBFS) is committed to connecting people in need with services that 
address the socioeconomic issues of our community. As a Feeding America Partner Distribution Organization, SFBFS 
leads a network of 220 partner agencies that feed hungry families throughout Sacramento County. SFBFS distributed 
28 million pounds of food (23 million meals) in 2018. We continue to break the boundaries of traditional food banking 
as a unique provider of wraparound human services that uplift families with education and social support. Altogether, 
SFBFS serves well over 150,000 low-income individuals each month. 

Food Insecurity and Poverty in Our Community 

Food insecurity is a deep-rooted issue linked to poverty, unemployment and limited food access. More than 14.4% of 
Sacramento County’s population—215,570 people—don’t have enough food to maintain an active, healthy lifestyle; 
this compares to 11% statewide and 12.5% nationwide. About 1 in 7 Sacramento households must constantly make 
critical tradeoffs between basic needs such as housing, medical bills and food. When food access is limited, community 
health and quality of life suffer. Food insecurity is linked to obesity, chronic disease, mental illness, school failure, 
limited employability and lower lifetime earnings. It is no coincidence that these same issues are some of our region’s 
biggest challenges.  

A Holistic Approach to Food Access 

After merging with Senior Gleaners, Inc. in 2014, SFBFS took on the tremendous responsibility of coordinating 
Sacramento County’s emergency food system. Prior to this, there was no consistent, coordinated strategy to address 
food insecurity in place. Hunger relief agencies - including SFBFS - conducted well-intentioned work, but generally 
operated in isolation. In just five years, we have achieved a number of firsts for our County: record food distribution; 
record number of people served; record fresh produce distribution; and more engagement and coordination among 
feeding agencies than ever before.  

From our 110,000 square foot Food Bank Services campus in North Sacramento, we collect food from sources ranging 
from local farmers to USDA, and we distribute it to a network of 220 partner agencies who then share it with people in 
need. Our flagship project, the Neighborhood Food Access Network, is a vehicle for collective action that organizes 
these agencies into 11 geographic zones to coordinate food distribution activity, share knowledge and collaborate in 
initiatives that promote food access. In addition to traditional food aid, SFBFS incorporates several special programs 
such as Food for Seniors, No Student Left Hungry, Health & Nutrition, Produce for All and CalFresh that promote good 
health and economic stability among our most vulnerable populations.  

SFBFS is working tirelessly in the fight against hunger and we invite community members to join us in making 
Sacramento County a healthier, more prosperous place where all people can thrive.  

  
 



 

    
 
 

2019 Board of Directors 
 
 
 
Officers 
Chair: Kären Woodruff – Wells Fargo Bank 
Treasurer: Robert Scarlett – Lawyer and Lobbyist, Retired 
Secretary: Linda Meyers – University of California, Davis - School of Medicine, Retired 
 
 
Directors  
Rob Archie – Pangaea Bier Cafe 
Rich Fowler – Retired 
Jeffrey Galvin – Downey Brand 
Keith Ketcher – Deloitte Consulting 
David Shabazian – Sacramento Area Council of Governments 
Krista Snelling – Five Star Bank 
John Watkins – Diocese of Sacramento 
 
 
SFBFS Representatives 
Blake Young – President / CEO 
Jeremiah Rhine – Senior VP of Business Operations & Finance 
 
 
Emeritus 
Patrick McClain (Emeritus) – Allworth Financial 
Chuck Sylva (Emeritus) – Real Estate/Development, Retired 
Tina Thomas (Emeritus) – Thomas Law Group 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Board of Directors

President/CEO

Director of Food 
Bank Services* (Open)

Director of
Human Resources

Director of Volunteer 
Services & Community

Engagement

Director of 
Family Services*

SVP of Business 
Operations & Finance

Grants Coordinator
Communications
Manager (Open)

Communications
Coordinator (Open)

Annual Fund Manager

Volunteer Services 
Assistant Manager

Family Services
Volunteer Coordinator

Graphic
Designer

Development Associate

Development Assistant
(Open)

Volunteer Services 
Assistant

Administrative Assistant
Human Resources
 Assistant (Open)

Senior Accountant

Development Assistant

Accountant

Accounting Clerk Administrative 
Receptionist

Executive Assistant

Director of Development
& Communications

Organizational Chart

(see page 2) (see page 3)

Updated: 07/23/19



Director of Food Bank
Services  (Open)

Agency Relations
Manager

Food Access 
Programs Manager Transportation Manager Warehouse ManagerCalFresh Outreach

Manager
Donation Drive 

Coordinator

Agency Relations 
Assistant Manager

CalFresh Outreach 
Assistant Manager

Food Access Programs
Team Leader

Transportation 
Coordinator (Open)

Inventory Control 
Assistant Manager

Driver

Warehouse Assistant

Driver Assistant Warehouse
Manager

Assistant Warehouse
Manager

Driver Warehouse Assistant

Warehouse Assistant

Warehouse Assistant

Warehouse Assistant

Warehouse Assistant
(Open)

Custodian

Facilities Assistant

Part-Time Custodian

Agency Relations 
Coordinator

CalFresh Outreach 
Coordinator

Nutrition Education 
Coordinator

Partner Agency 
Coordinator–Compliance

Partner Agency 
Coordinator (Open)

CalFresh Outreach 
Assistant

Community Health 
Educator

Food Access  
Program Coordinator

CalFresh Outreach 
Assistant

Community Health 
Educator

Garden Coordinator

Data Coordinator
(Open)

Facilities and Equipment
Manager

Organizational Chart

Transportation & 
Warehouse Assistant

Driver 

Driver 



Organizational Chart
Director of

Family Services

Adult Education Manager

Adult Education 
Coordinator

Playcare & Parent
Education Coordinator

Parent Education & 
Playcare Manager

Cultural Orientation & 
Citizenship Coordinator

Refugee Resettlement 
Coordinator

Refugee Resettlement 
Caseworker

Refugee Resettlement 
Manager

SMUD EnergyHelp
Representative

Technology Lab
Assistant (Open)

Technology Education 
Manager

Clothing & Operations 
Coordinator

Family Services 
Operations Assistant

PT–Temporary
Clothing/Donation 

Assistant

Clothing & Donations 
Receiving Manager

Sr. DOJ Accredited 
Representative

DOJ Accredited 
Representative

DOJ Accredited 
Representative

Law Clerk
(Open)

Office Administrator

Receptionist

Managing Attorney

Family Services
Liasion

PT–Temporary 
Summer Playcare 

Assistant

Playcare Academy
Coordinator



marshall.graves
Rectangle

marshall.graves
Snapshot



Registrant Details
Entity type: Corporate Class as registered with the Secretary of State or based on founding & registration documents.

Organization Name: SACRAMENTO FOOD BANK & FAMILY SERVICES IRS FEIN: 943315566
Entity Type: Public Benefit SOS/FTB Corporate/Organization Number: 2120629

Registry Status: Current Renewal Due/Exp. Date: 11/15/2019
RCT Registration Number: 112711 Issue Date: 6/30/2006
Record Type: Charity Registration Effective Date: 6/30/2006
Date This Status: 10/17/2018 Date of Last Renewal: 6/25/2019

Mailing Address
Street: 3333 THIRD AVE
Street Line 2:
City, State Zip: SACRAMENTO CA 95817

Filings & Correspondence
Delinquency Letter Delinquency Letter

RRF-1 2010 2010 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2010 2010 IRS Form 990

RRF-1 2011 2011 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2011 2011 IRS Form 990

RRF-1 2009 2009 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2009 2009 IRS Form 990

RRF-1 2004 2004 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2004 2004 IRS Form 990

Incomplete Form Notice 2012 Incomplete Form Notice 2012

Miscellaneous Document 2012 Miscellaneous Document 2012

IRS Form 990 Series 2017 - AMENDED

Renewal Filing 2017

Renewal Filing 2018

RRF-1 2012 2012 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2012 2012 IRS Form 990

RRF-1 2013 2013 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2013 2013 IRS Form 990

Incomplete Form Notice 2014 Incomplete Form Notice 2014

Miscellaneous Documents Miscellaneous Documents

RRF-1 2014 2014 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2014 2014 IRS Form 990

2015 RRF-1 2015 RRF-1

2015 IRS Form 990 2015 IRS Form 990

2016 Form RRF-1 2016 Form RRF-1

HOME ABOUT MEDIA CAREERS REGULATIONS RESOURCES PROGRAMS CONTACT

Details http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Details.aspx?result=462ea84f-33d...

1 of 4 9/19/2019, 3:06 PM



2016 IRS Form 990 Series 2016 IRS Form 990 Series

Annual Renewal Data
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2001
Accounting Period End Date: 6/30/2002
Total Assets: $2,271,658.00
Total Revenue: $8,059,882.00
Filing Received Date: 11/14/2002
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N

Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2002
Accounting Period End Date: 6/30/2003
Total Assets: $2,817,191.00
Total Revenue: $7,011,964.00
Filing Received Date: 12/16/2003
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N

Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2003
Accounting Period End Date: 6/30/2004
Total Assets: $3,634,285.00
Total Revenue: $7,502,077.00
Filing Received Date: 5/3/2010
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N

Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2004
Accounting Period End Date: 6/30/2005
Total Assets: $4,501,198.00
Total Revenue: $7,349,739.00
Filing Received Date: 4/12/2006
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N

Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2005
Accounting Period End Date: 6/30/2006
Total Assets: $4,821,804.00
Total Revenue: $7,917,764.00
Filing Received Date: 2/7/2007
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N

Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2006
Accounting Period End Date: 6/30/2007
Total Assets: $4,910,510.00
Total Revenue: $6,902,641.00
Filing Received Date: 3/10/2008
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N

Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2007
Accounting Period End Date: 6/30/2008
Total Assets: $5,738,437.00
Total Revenue: $9,024,461.00
Filing Received Date: 2/27/2009
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N

Details http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Details.aspx?result=462ea84f-33d...

2 of 4 9/19/2019, 3:06 PM



Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2008
Accounting Period End Date: 6/30/2009
Total Assets: $5,450,860.00
Total Revenue: $7,839,700.00
Filing Received Date: 3/22/2010
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N

Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2009
Accounting Period End Date: 6/30/2010
Total Assets: $5,375,831.00
Total Revenue: $9,173,750.00
Filing Received Date: 4/20/2011
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N

Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2010
Accounting Period End Date: 6/30/2011
Total Assets: $5,714,384.00
Total Revenue: $9,091,835.00
Filing Received Date: 5/3/2012
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N

Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2011
Accounting Period End Date: 6/30/2012
Total Assets: $8,097,546.00
Total Revenue: $10,249,920.00
Filing Received Date: 3/25/2013
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N

Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2012
Accounting Period End Date: 6/30/2013
Total Assets: $8,852,184.00
Total Revenue: $11,841,125.00
Filing Received Date: 5/19/2014
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N

Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2013
Accounting Period End Date: 6/30/2014
Total Assets: $8,858,248.00
Total Revenue: $15,019,151.00
Filing Received Date: 5/14/2015
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N

Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2004
Accounting Period End Date: 6/30/2015
Total Assets: $25,869,481.00
Total Revenue: $35,807,868.00
Filing Received Date: 5/18/2016
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N

Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2015
Accounting Period End Date: 6/30/2016
Total Assets: $26,508,700.00
Total Revenue: $33,759,024.00
Filing Received Date: 5/18/2017

Details http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Details.aspx?result=462ea84f-33d...

3 of 4 9/19/2019, 3:06 PM



Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N

Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2016
Accounting Period End Date: 6/30/2017
Total Assets: $26,565,591.00
Total Revenue: $42,392,722.00
Filing Received Date: 5/21/2018
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N

Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2017
Accounting Period End Date: 6/30/2018
Total Assets: $26,979,752.00
Total Revenue: $49,854,252.00
Filing Received Date: 5/16/2019
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N):

Related Registrations & Event Reports
The related records shown below depend on the record type being viewed:

Charity Registrations relate to Professional Fundraising Events which relate to Professional Fundraiser Registrations.
Raffle Registrations relate to Raffle Reports.
Click on the RCT Registration No to navigate to the related record.

Prereq Type: Prerequisite Relationship: Charity
Registrant: ALPHA DOG MARKETING, INC.
Registration No: E0016256 Registration Type: Fundraising Event Registration Status: Complete
Date Established: 3/1/2013 Association Date: 7/1/2012 Expiration Date: 6/30/2013

Prereq Type: Prerequisite Relationship: Charity
Registrant: ALPHA DOG MARKETING, INC.
Registration No: E0019281 Registration Type: Fundraising Event Registration Status: Complete
Date Established: 1/31/2014 Association Date: 7/1/2013 Expiration Date: 6/30/2014

Prereq Type: Prerequisite Relationship: Charity
Registrant: BOB CARTER COMPANIES, LLC
Registration No: E0029595 Registration Type: Fundraising Event Registration Status: Complete
Date Established: 2/13/2017 Association Date: 2/20/2017 Expiration Date: 5/19/2017

Prereq Type: Prerequisite Relationship: Charity
Registrant: GATEWAY COMMUNICATIONS INC
Registration No: E0033729 Registration Type: Fundraising Event Registration Status: Complete
Date Established: 6/18/2018 Association Date: 6/15/2018 Expiration Date: 12/31/2018

Prereq Type: Prerequisite Relationship: Charity
Registrant: ONE & ALL INC.
Registration No: E0036750 Registration Type: Fundraising Event Registration Status: Complete
Date Established: 6/13/2019 Association Date: 6/1/2019 Expiration Date: 5/31/2020

Details http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Details.aspx?result=462ea84f-33d...

4 of 4 9/19/2019, 3:06 PM

























































Income (this request) $5,000.00

Expenses

Purchase ~50,000 pounds of fresh produce $5,000.00

Net $0.00

.

Ann Land and Bertha Henschel Memorial Funds

Budget

Sacramento Food Bank & Family Services

Calendar Year 2020



ALBH	Grant	Application	2019
City	of	Sacramento

	Submitted	On:
October	28th,	2019	@	7:29pm

Organization	Name Sacramento	LGBT	Community	Center

Physcial	Address 2012	K	Street
Sacramento
CA
95811

Mailing	address	different	from
physical	address?

No

Name Jesse	Archer

Title Assistant	Director	of	Youth	Programs

Phone	Number 916-287-7171

E-Mail	Address Jesse.Archer@Saccenter.org

Name Koby

Phone	Number Rodriguez

E-Mail	Address Koby.Rodriguez@Saccenter.org

Name Jesse	Archer

Title Assistant	Director	of	Youth	Programs

Phone	Number 916-287-7171

E-Mail	Address Jesse.Archer@Saccenter.org

Please	indicate	below	the
services	you	are	requesting

Food

Indicate	the	dollar	amount
requested	for	Food

$8,000

#	of	clients	that	will	be	served	by
the	Ann	Land	&	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds

1,000

Total	Amount	Requested $8,000.00

The	amount	requested	will	be
applied	to	the	following.

On-going	Program

The	funds	requested	will	be	used
to	serve	the	following	(please
check	all	that	apply)

Women
Men

Will	other	funds	supplement	Ann
Land	and	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds	request	for	this
program?

Yes



Briefly	explain Our	programs	are	funded	by	grants	but	these	funds	will	be	used	to	enhance	the	nutrition
program	in	them.

Did	you	lose	any	funding	in	2019
from	any	source?

No

Do	you	anticipate,	or	have	you
been	notified,	that	you	will	lose
funding	in	2020?

No

Are	you	aware	of,	or	do	you
anticipate	receiving,	any	new
sources	of	funding	in	2020,	for
example,	stimulus	or	other
funds?

No

List	the	hours	that	programs
funded	by	Ann	Land	and	Bertha
Henschel	Memorial	Funds	will	be
available	to	clients.

Seven	days	a	week	12	–	6	p.m.

Describe	the	geographic	service
area,	within	the	City,	when	you
will	spend	the	requested	funds.

The	Sacramento	LGBT	Community	Center	services	youth	from	Sacramento	and	surrounding
cities	in	Northern	California	because	of	the	lack	of	LGBTQ	specific	services	in	the	area.

Please	upload	a	brief	description
(no	more	than	two	pages)	of	the
program	or	service	for	which	you
are	requesting	funds.	Explain	how
the	program	or	service
addresses	the	mission	and
funding	priorities	of	the	Ann	Land
and	Bertha	Henschel	Memorial
Funds.

https://seam.ly/i7wGQBgE

Mission	Statement	–
Organizational	Goal

The	Sacramento	LGBT	Community	Center	works	to	create	a	region	where	LGBTQ	people	thrive.
We	support	the	health	and	wellness	of	the	most	marginalized,	advocate	for	equality	and	justice,
and	work	to	build	a	culturally	rich	LGBTQ+	community.

Date	incorporated	or	otherwise
formed

6
3
1986

Briefly	describe	other	services
and	programs	your	organization
currently	provides.

The	Center	provides	community	resources	referrals	to	LGBTQ	affirming	organizations,	sexual
health	education	and	testing,	mental	health	support	through	crisis	intervention	and	free	therapy,
advocacy,	training,	and	outreach	to	local	healthcare	providers,	schools,	law	enforcement,	social
services	agencies,	and	faith	communities.

Private	or	Corporate	Donations
(Amount)

$704,766

Private	or	Corporate	Donations
(%	of	Total	Funding)

36%

United	Way	(Amount) $0



United	Way	(%	of	Total	Funding) 0%

SETA	(Amount) $0

SETA	(%	of	Total	Funding) 0%

Federal	Assistance	(Amount) $0

Federal	Assistance	(%	of	Total
Funding)

0%

State	Assistance	(Amount) $235,520

State	Assistance	(%	of	Total
Funding)

11%

City	or	County	Assistance	(not
from	the	Ann	Land	Bertha
Henschel	Memorial	Funds)
(Amount)

$179,520

City	or	County	Assistance	(not
from	the	Ann	Land	Bertha
Henschel	Memorial	Funds)	(%	of
Total	Funding)

9%

Grants	(Amount) $842,646

Grants	(%	of	Total	Funding) 42%

Ann	Land	and	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds	(Amount)

$0

Ann	Land	and	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds	(%	of	Total
Funding)

0%

Other	(briefly	describe	below)
(Amount)

$13,698

Other	(briefly	describe	below)	(%
of	Total	Funding)

Total	Amount $1,982,530.00

Other	Income	Sources Program	revenue

The	names	of	the	members	of
your	organization’s	board	of
directors	and	of	your
organization’s	officers

https://seam.ly/x9OQqLrf

An	organizational	chart	or
description	of	your	organization’s
management	structure

https://seam.ly/8rbgtv71



Verification	of	your
organization’s	not-for-profit
status	(letter	from	IRS	confirming
§	501(c)(3)	status)

https://seam.ly/wsG1dwkn

Verification	that	your
organization	(1)	is	currently
registered	and	in	good	standing
with	the	Registry	of	Charitable
Trusts	maintained	by	the
California	Attorney	General	or	(2)
is	not	required	to	register.

https://seam.ly/eZqguUxL

A	copy	of	your	organization’s
current	business	license	or	a
letter	from	the	City	of
Sacramento	Finance	Department
verifying	your	organization’s
exemption	from	the	City’s
business-operations	tax.	The
Sacramento	City	Code	requires
that	anyone	conducting	business
within	the	City	of	Sacramento
have	a	current	business	license
on	file	with	the	City.	The	City
issues	nonprofit	organizations	a
waiver	letter	in	lieu	of	a	business
license.	A	waiver	letter	can	be
obtained	at	the	Revenue	Counter
in	New	City	Hall,	First	Floor,	Room
1214.	Indicate	your
organization’s	non-profit	status
on	the	application	form.	There	is
no	charge	for	nonprofit
organizations.

https://seam.ly/GNBTu21d

A	copy	of	your	organization’s
most	recent	audit	and	any
corrective	actions	or
recommendations	suggested	by
the	auditor.	If	you	do	not	have	an
annual	audit,	please	explain	why.
You	must	also	provide	a	copy	of
your	organization’s	most-recent
annual	financial	statements,
signed	by	your	organization’s
treasurer	AND	by	the	preparer,
whether	a	CPA	or	bookkeeper

https://seam.ly/J4mFXZbj

A	budget	sheet	showing	how
awarded	funds	will	be	spent

https://seam.ly/mQsmXoAW



Signature	Data First	Name:	Jesse
Last	Name:	Archer
Email	Address:	Jesse.Archer@Saccenter.org

Signed	at:	10/28/2019	04:28PM



The Sacramento LGBT Community Center (The Center) provides nutritious meals to youth (ages 
13-24) through four programs:  
 

1. The Q-Spot: The Center ’s youth drop-in center, for youth ages 13-24, is open seven (7) 
days a week and is the hub for all Center resources related to LGBTQ youth. At the drop-in 
center youth have access to showers, washer/dryer, free therapy, free legal services, food, 
computers, WiFi, a library, art supplies, games and staff to assist them in navigating any 
challenges they may be facing. While at the drop-in Center youth can also get on the wait 
list for our three housing programs.  
2. STEP Shelter: This program provides 24-hour shelter in community with an average 90-
day stay that includes meals, clothing, and transportation assistance for youth ages 18-24 
who have been victims of crime. Youth will receive assistance from case managers and 
advocates to obtain identification documents, access medical and mental health services, 
and navigate next step in their transition to more permanent housing.  
3. Transitional Housing: This program empowers 18-24-year-old youth who have been 
victims of crime with the support and life-skills they need to establish self-sufficiency. Youth 
are provided stable housing in community for up to 24-months that includes meals, 
clothing, transportation assistance, intensive case management, counseling, transportation, 
education and employment services, life skills workshops, and establishment of a support 
system that they can maintain after exiting the program.  
4. Host Homes: This program provides bridge housing for 18-24-year-old youth in homes of 
community hosts. The length of stay is flexible, averaging 4-6 months. Youth are provided 
stable housing, meals, social/emotional support, and case management while making 
progress toward their life goals.  

 



Updated 2/18/17 

   

 

 Board of Directors Appointments & Terms 

The following are appointmented board members at the Sacramento LGBT Community 

Center, as of September 12, 2019. 

 Name Office Affiliation 

1 Todd Koolakian  
Director of Philanthropy, 
Sacramento Children’s Home 

2 George Raya Secretary Retired, Sacramento County 

3 Josh Nisbet  
Director of US Government 
Markets, Deloit 

4 Carlos Marquez President 
Senior Vice President, CA 
Charter Schools Assoc. 

5 Frank Mecca  
Executive Director, County 
Welfare Directors Asoc. 

6 Willie Recht  
Jewish Federation of Sacramento 
& McGeorge School of Law 

7 Patrick Harbison  Principal, Patrick Harbison PR 

8 Grace Lawrence  
President & CEO, Golbal 
Transgender Safety Tasks Force 

9 Jody Nelson  Sacramento State 

10 Natalie Fujikawa Vice President Attorney, Fisher Phillips 

 



Board of Directors

Carlos Marquez, Pres.

Executive Director

David Heitstuman

Bookkeeper 

Joan Purser

Sacramento LGBT Community Center Organizational Chart 10/28/19

Annual & Corporate Giving Director

Lanz Nalagan

Legacy Giving Committee

Community Leadership Council

Volunteer Coordinator

Kelsie Hale

Director of Programs

Koby Rodriguez

Volunteer Leadership

Staff: Leadership Team

Staff

Contractors

Volunteers/Interns

Color Key

Outreach & Training Institute 

Director

Rachel Henry

External Affairs

Patrick Harbison

Internal Affairs

Frank Mecca, Chair

Executive 

Carlos Marquez, Chair

Event Committees

MMB

Pride

Pride Awards

Data Entry Volunteers

Governance

Vacant, Chair

Community Building 

Coordinator

Vacant

Office Coordinator

Rae Billeci

IT Contractor

Fastbreak Tech

Outreach Volunteers

Events Manager

Tyler Bertao

Event Interns/Volunteers

Maintenance Mgr.

Jonathan Williams

Custodial Contractor 

Anago

Office Volunteers

Grants Coordinator

TBH

Community Engagement & 

Marketing Coordinator

Krystal Peak

Director of Development

TBH

Get Centered Ambassadors

VOE Committee

Reception

Monaliza Ibanez

Data Coordinator

Casey Maloney

Professional Interns/Volunteers

YFC Finance Manager

Darlene Sather

Master Trainers

TLP Case Manager

Stephan Thomas

TLP Resident House Manager

Steven Shelly

Social Work Interns

Asst. Dir. for Housing Services

Pixie Pearl

Short-Term Housing Navigator

Mari Wrobi

Housing Advocates:

1. Afure Jemerigbe

2. Lindsay Delehant

3. Joshua Hurtado

4. Matty Higley

Short-Term Housing Case Mgr.

Moe Copeland

Host Home Coordinator

Pixie Pearl (interim)

Host Home Case Mgr 1

Allison Padilla

Host Home Case Mgr 2 (2020)

Youth Advocate

TBA

Youth Prog. Volunteers

Youth Advocate / Project Coord.

Riley Wheeler

Youth Outreach & Bilingual 

Community Resources Coordinator

Ericx Perez

Asst. Dir. for Youth Programs

Jesse Archer

Youth Help Network 

Clinician

Health Educator & Testing 

Coordinator

Matias Castro

Community Resources & 

Respite Coordinator 

Marcy Basila

Group Facilitators 

Health Volunteers

CR & Respite Volunteers

Clinical Director

Dr. Ryan Spielvogel

Asst. Dir. for Health Service

Koby Rodriguez (interim)

PrEP Navigator

Elizah Claborne

Health Interns

Bilingual Outreach 

Coordinator

Christina Arias

Advocacy Coord.

Vacant

Executive Assistant

Robert Portillo







Registrant Details
Entity type: Corporate Class as registered with the Secretary of State or based on founding & registration documents.

Organization Name: SACRAMENTO LGBT COMMUNITY CENTER IRS FEIN: 942502229
Entity Type: Public Benefit SOS/FTB Corporate/Organization Number: 0844286

Registry Status: Current Renewal Due/Exp. Date: 5/15/2019
RCT Registration Number: 036541 Issue Date: 6/30/2006
Record Type: Charity Registration Effective Date: 6/30/2006
Date This Status: 4/4/2017 Date of Last Renewal: 10/26/2018

Mailing Address
Street: 1927 L ST
Street Line 2:
City, State Zip: SACRAMENTO CA 95814

Filings & Correspondence
1st Delinquency Notice 1st Delinquency Notice

Founding Documents Founding Documents

RRF-1 2007 2007 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2007 2007 IRS Form 990

RRF-1 2006 2006 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2006 2006 IRS Form 990

RRF-1 2005 2005 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2005 2005 IRS Form 990

RRF-1 2004 2004 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2004 2004 IRS Form 990

RRF-1 2003 2003 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2003 2003 IRS Form 990

RRF-1 2002 2002 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2002 2002 IRS Form 990

IRS Form 990 2000 2000 IRS Form 990

RRF-1 2001 2001 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2001 2001 IRS Form 990

RRF-1 2000 2000 RRF-1

RRF-1 2008 2008 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2008 2008 IRS Form 990

RRF-1 2009 2009 RRF-1

IRS Form 990-EZ 2009 2009 IRS Form 990-EZ

RRF-1 2009 2009 RRF-1

IRS Form 990-EZ 2009 2009 IRS Form 990-EZ

RRF-1 2010 2010 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2010 2010 IRS Form 990

Incomplete Notice 2011 Incomplete Notice 2011

HOME  ABOUT  MEDIA  CAREERS  REGULATIONS  RESOURCES  PROGRAMS  CONTACT

http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=1st+Delinquency+Notice.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8006a75d
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=Founding+Documents.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8006a75e
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2007.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8006a760
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2007.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8006a761
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2006.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8006a762
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2006.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8006a763
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2005.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8006a764
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2005.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8006a765
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2004.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8006a766
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2004.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8006a767
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2003.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8006a768
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2003.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8006a769
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2002.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8006a76a
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2002.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8006a76b
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2000.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8006a76f
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2001.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8006a76c
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2001.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8006a76d
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2000.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8006a76e
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2008.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8006a770
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2008.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8006a771
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2009.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8006a772
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990-EZ+2009.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8006a773
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2009.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8006a774
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990-EZ+2009.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8006a775
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2010.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8006a776
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2010.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8006a777
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=Incomplete+Notice+2011.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8006a778
https://oag.ca.gov/home
https://oag.ca.gov/about
https://oag.ca.gov/media
https://oag.ca.gov/careers
https://oag.ca.gov/meetings/public-participation
https://oag.ca.gov/services-info
https://oag.ca.gov/programs
https://oag.ca.gov/contact


Incomplete RRF-1 Notice Incomplete RRF-1 Notice

IRS Form 990 2011 2011 IRS Form 990

RRF-1 2012 2012 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2012 2012 IRS Form 990

Return Check Notice 2013 Return Check Notice 2013

RRF-1 2013 2013 RRF-1

Incomplete Fee Notice 2014 Incomplete Fee Notice 2014

IRS Form 990 2013 2013 IRS Form 990

RRF-1 2014 2014 RRF-1

1st Delinquency Letter 1st Delinquency Letter

2016 IRS Form 990 Series 2016 IRS Form 990 Series

Renewal Filing 2017

Incomplete Form Letter Incomplete Form Letter

2015 RRF-1 2015 RRF-1

2014 IRS Form 990 2014 IRS Form 990

2015 IRS Form 990 2015 IRS Form 990

2016 Form RRF-1 2016 Form RRF-1

Annual Renewal Data
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2001
Accounting Period End Date: 6/30/2002
Total Assets: $24,666.00
Total Revenue: $91,429.00
Filing Received Date: 4/14/2003
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2002
Accounting Period End Date: 6/30/2003
Total Assets: $59,941.00
Total Revenue: $102,762.00
Filing Received Date: 11/17/2003
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2003
Accounting Period End Date: 6/30/2004
Total Assets: $42,109.00
Total Revenue: $100,049.00
Filing Received Date: 11/10/2004
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2004
Accounting Period End Date: 6/30/2005
Total Assets: $73,471.00
Total Revenue: $214,195.00
Filing Received Date: 11/6/2006
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2005
Accounting Period End Date: 6/30/2006
Total Assets: $28,647.00
Total Revenue: $166,879.00

http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=Incomplete+RRF-1+Notice.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8006a779
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=1111366.pdf&document_id=09027b8f801af2bc
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=1111369.pdf&document_id=09027b8f801af2bd
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=1111370.pdf&document_id=09027b8f801af2be
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=036541140718Z13250840.pdf&document_id=09027b8f801c8279
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=665138.PDF&document_id=09027b8f80212341
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=036541252057.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8022b8a9
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=872315.PDF&document_id=09027b8f8025d0c5
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=884574.PDF&document_id=09027b8f80263f3e
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=00000155.pdf&document_id=09027b8f802b3032
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=175769.pdf&document_id=09027b8f802f253e
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=412565.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8036070e
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=00000159.pdf&document_id=09027b8f802bc0a8
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=1185473.PDF&document_id=09027b8f802beec0
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=138715.pdf&document_id=09027b8f802d80bd
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=138716.pdf&document_id=09027b8f802d80be
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=175768.pdf&document_id=09027b8f802f253d


Filing Received Date: 11/6/2006
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2006
Accounting Period End Date: 6/30/2007
Total Assets: $16,232.00
Total Revenue: $132,328.00
Filing Received Date: 2/14/2008
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2007
Accounting Period End Date: 6/30/2008
Total Assets: $96,281.00
Total Revenue: $290,255.00
Filing Received Date: 6/15/2011
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2008
Accounting Period End Date: 6/30/2009
Total Assets: $58,176.00
Total Revenue: $281,568.00
Filing Received Date: 6/15/2011
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2009
Accounting Period End Date: 12/31/2009
Total Assets: $27,578.00
Total Revenue: $39,297.00
Filing Received Date: 6/15/2011
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 1/1/2010
Accounting Period End Date: 12/31/2010
Total Assets: $38,310.00
Total Revenue: $283,384.00
Filing Received Date: 6/15/2011
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 1/1/2011
Accounting Period End Date: 12/31/2011
Total Assets: $49,813.00
Total Revenue: $379,586.00
Filing Received Date: 8/9/2013
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 1/1/2012
Accounting Period End Date: 12/31/2012
Total Assets: $63,049.00
Total Revenue: $462,601.00
Filing Received Date: 4/2/2013
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 1/1/2013
Accounting Period End Date: 12/31/2013



Total Assets: $105,341.00
Total Revenue: $382,239.00
Filing Received Date: 7/14/2014
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 1/1/2014
Accounting Period End Date: 12/31/2014
Total Assets: $241,458.00
Total Revenue: $482,212.00
Filing Received Date: 8/18/2015
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 1/1/2015
Accounting Period End Date: 12/31/2015
Total Assets: $279,164.00
Total Revenue: $767,148.00
Filing Received Date: 11/10/2016
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 1/1/2016
Accounting Period End Date: 12/31/2016
Total Assets: $95,706.00
Total Revenue: $1,136,655.00
Filing Received Date: 8/3/2017
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 1/1/2017
Accounting Period End Date: 12/31/2017
Total Assets: $391,689.00
Total Revenue: $1,277,318.00
Filing Received Date: 10/18/2018
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N):

Related Registrations & Event Reports
The related records shown below depend on the record type being viewed:

Charity Registrations relate to Professional Fundraising Events which relate to Professional Fundraiser Registrations.
Raffle Registrations relate to Raffle Reports.
Click on the RCT Registration No to navigate to the related record.

Prereq Type: Prerequisite Relationship: Charity
Registrant: NETZEL GRIGSBY ASSOCIATES, INC.
Registration No: E0026189 Registration Type: Fundraising Event Registration Status: Complete
Date Established: 3/8/2016 Association Date: 11/1/2015 Expiration Date: 3/31/2016

http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Details.aspx?result=ddc85084-0739-4e13-94e8-16cab34b89ac






SACRAMENTO LGBT 
COMMUNITY CENTER 

 and Financial Statements 

Year Ended December 31, 2018



   

SACRAMENTO LGBT COMMUNITY CENTER 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 PAGE(S) 

  Independent Auditor's Report ................................................................................................................ 1-2 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS: 

Statement of Financial Position................................................................................................................. 3 

Statement of Activities .............................................................................................................................. 4 

Statement of Functional Expenses ............................................................................................................ 5 

Statement of Cash Flows ........................................................................................................................... 6 

Notes to Financial Statements .............................................................................................................. 7-14



1

To the Board of Directors of the 
Sacramento LGBT Community Center 
Sacramento, CA 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Sacramento LGBT Community 
Center (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the statement of financial position as of 
December 31, 2018, and the related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows 
for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements. 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this 
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation 
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error. 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.  We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America.  Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures 

assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 

preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 

evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the 
financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion. 



2

Opinion 

In our opinion the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the financial position of the Sacramento LGBT Community Center as of December 31, 2018, and 
the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Certified Public Accountants 
Sacramento, CA 
June 24, 2019 



Assets

Current assets:
   Cash and equivalents 295,293$
   Contributions receivable, short-term 347,986
   Prepaid expenses and other assets 13,026
   Cash held as fiscal agent 8,330

Total current assets 664,635

Fixed assets, net 12,567
Contributions receivable, long-term 369,459
Beneficial interest in community foundation assets 17,644
Security deposits 5,000

Total assets 1,069,305$

Liabilities and Net Assets

Current liabilities:
   Accounts payable 19,725$
   Accrued expenses 48,438
   Deferred revenue 86,102
   Current portion of long-term debt 1,170
   Deposits held as fiscal agent 8,330

Total current liabilities 163,765

Net assets:
   Without donor restrictions 223,712
   With donor restrictions 681,828

Total net assets 905,540

Total liabilities and net assets 1,069,305$

SACRAMENTO LGBT COMMUNITY CENTER
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

DECEMBER 31, 2018

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

3



Without Donor With Donor
Restrictions Restrictions Total

Support and revenue:

   Grant revenue 723,682$            534,004$ 1,257,686$
   Special event revenue 408,448              -                      408,448
      Less: Direct costs of benefits to donors (63,535)               -                      (63,535)
   Contributions 230,875              65,443 296,318
   In-kind donations 165,119              -                      165,119
   Program service revenue 9,001                  -                      9,001
   Other income 4,697                  -                      4,697
   Change in value of beneficial interest -                      (1,137)                 (1,137)
   Net assets released from restrictions 110,076 (110,076) -

      Total support and revenue 1,588,363 488,234 2,076,597

Expenses:

   Program services:
Community engagement 349,744              -                      349,744
Health programs 189,617              -                      189,617
Youth programs 495,156              -                      495,156
Outreach, education, and other programs 173,363 - 173,363

Total program services 1,207,880 - 1,207,880

   Supporting services:
   General and administrative 174,361              -                      174,361
   Fundraising 124,292 - 124,292

Total supporting services 298,653 - 298,653

      Total expenses 1,506,533 - 1,506,533

Change in net assets 81,830                488,234 570,064

Net assets, beginning of year 141,882 193,594 335,476

Net assets, end of year 223,712$ 681,828$ 905,540$

SACRAMENTO LGBT COMMUNITY CENTER
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

4



O
ut

re
ac

h,
T

ot
al

C
om

m
un

ity
H

ea
lth

Y
ou

th
E

du
ca

tio
n 

&
P

ro
gr

am
G

en
er

al
 &

E
ng

ag
em

en
t

P
ro

gr
am

s
P

ro
gr

am
s

O
th

er
 P

ro
gr

am
s

S
er

vi
ce

s
A

dm
in

is
tr

at
iv

e
F

un
dr

ai
si

ng
T

ot
al

S
al

ar
ie

s 
&

 w
ag

es
73

,3
45

$
10

6,
43

5
$ 

   
   

 
23

5,
60

5
$

56
,1

65
$ 

   
   

   
47

1,
55

0
$

57
,3

50
$ 

   
   

   
82

,3
10

$
61

1,
21

0
$ 

   
   

 
P

ay
ro

ll 
ta

xe
s

6,
18

4
8,

97
4

   
   

   
   

  
19

,8
65

4,
73

6
   

   
   

   
  

39
,7

59
4,

83
5

   
   

   
   

  
6,

94
0

51
,5

34
   

   
   

   
E

m
pl

oy
ee

 b
en

ef
its

3,
27

6
4,

75
4

10
,5

23
2,

50
9

21
,0

62
2,

56
2

3,
67

6
27

,3
00

   
  T

ot
al

 p
er

so
nn

el
 c

os
ts

82
,8

05
12

0,
16

3
   

   
   

 
26

5,
99

3
63

,4
10

   
   

   
   

53
2,

37
1

64
,7

47
   

   
   

   
92

,9
26

69
0,

04
4

   
   

   
 

A
dv

er
tis

in
g 

&
 p

ro
m

ot
io

n
1,

71
7

2,
49

2
   

   
   

   
  

5,
51

6
1,

31
5

   
   

   
   

  
11

,0
40

1,
34

3
   

   
   

   
  

1,
92

7
14

,3
10

   
   

   
   

B
an

k 
&

 p
ay

ro
ll 

fe
es

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
2,

32
8

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

2,
32

8
   

   
   

   
  

C
on

tr
ac

t s
er

vi
ce

s
6,

59
3

9,
56

8
   

   
   

   
  

21
,1

80
5,

04
9

   
   

   
   

  
42

,3
90

5,
15

5
   

   
   

   
  

7,
39

9
54

,9
44

   
   

   
   

D
ep

re
ci

at
io

n
1,

03
1

1,
49

6
   

   
   

   
  

3,
31

2
79

0
   

   
   

   
   

  
6,

62
9

(1
6)

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
15

7
7,

77
0

   
   

   
   

  
D

ue
s 

&
 s

ub
sc

ri
pt

io
ns

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
2,

36
4

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

2,
36

4
   

   
   

   
  

E
qu

ip
m

en
t r

en
ta

l
99

,9
94

64
9

   
   

   
   

   
  

90
0

30
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

10
1,

57
3

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

10
1,

57
3

   
   

   
 

E
ve

nt
 f

oo
d 

&
 b

ev
er

ag
e

20
,6

16
51

0
   

   
   

   
   

  
14

,9
96

1,
05

2
   

   
   

   
  

37
,1

74
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
37

,1
74

   
   

   
   

In
-k

in
d 

ex
pe

ns
es

29
,8

74
22

,5
23

   
   

   
   

51
,1

25
61

,6
24

   
   

   
   

16
5,

14
6

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

16
5,

14
6

   
   

   
 

In
su

ra
nc

e
2,

86
8

4,
16

1
   

   
   

   
  

9,
21

2
2,

19
6

   
   

   
   

  
18

,4
37

2,
24

2
   

   
   

   
  

3,
21

8
23

,8
97

   
   

   
   

L
ic

en
se

 &
 p

er
m

its
1,

52
5

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
1,

52
5

16
1

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
1,

68
6

   
   

   
   

  
M

is
ce

lla
ne

ou
s

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
8,

80
4

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

8,
80

4
   

   
   

   
  

O
cc

up
an

cy
4,

82
3

6,
99

9
   

   
   

   
  

15
,4

93
3,

69
3

   
   

   
   

  
31

,0
08

3,
77

1
   

   
   

   
  

5,
41

3
40

,1
92

   
   

   
   

O
ff

ic
e 

ex
pe

ns
es

2,
52

7
3,

66
7

   
   

   
   

  
8,

11
8

1,
93

5
   

   
   

   
  

16
,2

47
30

,9
57

   
   

   
   

2,
83

6
50

,0
40

   
   

   
   

O
th

er
 e

ve
nt

 e
xp

en
se

s
81

,7
67

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
81

,7
67

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
2,

21
7

83
,9

84
   

   
   

   
P

ri
nt

in
g 

&
 p

os
ta

ge
2,

71
6

3,
94

1
   

   
   

   
  

8,
72

5
2,

08
0

   
   

   
   

  
17

,4
62

2,
12

4
   

   
   

   
  

3,
04

8
22

,6
34

   
   

   
   

P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l f
ee

s
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

47
,4

89
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

47
,4

89
   

   
   

   
P

ro
gr

am
 e

xp
en

se
s

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
5,

80
8

   
   

   
   

  
76

,4
08

23
,4

28
   

   
   

   
10

5,
64

4
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
10

5,
64

4
   

   
   

 
R

ep
ai

r 
&

 m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

86
2

1,
25

2
   

   
   

   
  

2,
77

1
66

0
   

   
   

   
   

  
5,

54
5

67
4

   
   

   
   

   
  

96
8

7,
18

7
   

   
   

   
  

S
up

pl
ie

s
7,

19
0

2,
27

2
   

   
   

   
  

2,
29

7
3,

92
9

   
   

   
   

  
15

,6
88

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

15
,6

88
   

   
   

   
T

el
ep

ho
ne

 &
 in

te
rn

et
1,

18
8

1,
72

4
   

   
   

   
  

3,
81

5
91

0
   

   
   

   
   

  
7,

63
7

92
9

   
   

   
   

   
  

1,
33

3
9,

89
9

   
   

   
   

  
T

ra
ve

l
1,

64
8

2,
39

2
5,

29
5

1,
26

2
10

,5
97

1,
28

9
1,

85
0

13
,7

36

T
ot

al
 e

xp
en

se
s

34
9,

74
4

$
18

9,
61

7
$

49
5,

15
6

$
17

3,
36

3
$

1,
20

7,
88

0
$

17
4,

36
1

$
12

4,
29

2
$

1,
50

6,
53

3
$

S
A

C
R

A
M

E
N

T
O

 L
G

B
T

 C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 C
E

N
T

E
R

S
T

A
T

E
M

E
N

T
 O

F
 F

U
N

C
T

IO
N

A
L

 E
X

P
E

N
S

E
S

Y
E

A
R

 E
N

D
E

D
 D

E
C

E
M

B
E

R
 3

1,
 2

01
8

S
up

po
rt

in
g 

S
er

vi
ce

s
P

ro
gr

am
 S

er
vi

ce
s

T
he

 a
cc

om
pa

ny
in

g 
no

te
s 

ar
e 

an
 in

te
gr

al
 p

ar
t o

f 
th

es
e 

fi
na

nc
ia

l s
ta

te
m

en
ts

.

5



Cash flows from operating activities:

     Grants and contributions received 1,031,551$
     Special event receipts 408,448
     Other cash receipts 5,368
     Payments for salaries, benefits, and payroll taxes (685,000)
     Payments to vendors (704,973)

         Net cash provided by operating activities 55,394

Cash flows from financing activities:

     Principal payments on loan payable (2,814)

         Net cash used in financing activities (2,814)

Net increase in cash 52,580

Cash and equivalents, beginning of year 242,713

Cash and equivalents, end of year 295,293$

SACRAMENTO LGBT COMMUNITY CENTER
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

6



7

SACRAMENTO LGBT COMMUNITY CENTER 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF PROGRAM AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES  

Nature of Organization 

The Sacramento LGBT Community Center (Center, we, us, our) is a publicly-supported nonprofit 
organization whose mission is to build a healthy, strong and diverse Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual, 
Transgender, and Intersex community in the greater Sacramento area by providing services, resources, 
support, education and advocacy. We are primarily funded by proceeds from events, government and 
foundation grants, and private donations. 

Basis of Presentation 

Our financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (U.S. GAAP).  
Net assets, revenues, gains, and losses are classified based on the existence or absence of donor-
imposed restrictions.  Accordingly, net assets and changes therein are classified and reported as 
follows: 

Net Assets without Donor Restrictions  Net assets that are available for use in general operations 
and are not subject to donor-imposed restrictions. 

Net Assets with Donor Restrictions  Net assets that are subject to donor-imposed restrictions.  
Some donor-imposed restrictions are temporary in nature, such as those that will be met by the 
passage of time or other events specified by the donor.  Other donor-imposed restrictions are 
perpetual in nature, where the donor stipulates that resources be maintained in perpetuity.  Donor-
imposed restrictions are released when a restriction expires, that is, when the stipulated time has 
elapsed, when the stipulated purpose for which the resource was restricted has been fulfilled, or 
both.   

Cash and Equivalents 

Cash and equivalents consist of cash on hand and highly liquid investments with original or remaining 
maturities of three months or less at the time of purchase. 

Fixed Assets 

Acquisitions of fixed assets in excess of $1,000 are capitalized and stated at cost.  Donated fixed 
assets are reported at fair value at the date of the gift.  Depreciation is calculated on the straight-
line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets.   



8

SACRAMENTO LGBT COMMUNITY CENTER 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

Revenue and Revenue Recognition 

Revenue from events is recognized as revenue when the events are held.  Revenues collected in 
advance are deferred until the events are held.  Government grants are recognized when qualifying 
expenses are incurred. 

Functional Expenses 

The costs of providing the program services and supporting services have been summarized on a 
functional basis in the statement of activities and in the statement of functional expenses.  Indirect 
costs are allocated among programs and supporting services based on personnel, space, and other 
factors. 

Use of Estimates 

The preparation of our financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting 
principles requires our management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 
amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of 
revenue and expenses during the reported period.  Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Financial Instruments and Credit Risk  

We manage deposit concentration risk by placing cash and money market accounts with financial 
institutions believed by us to be creditworthy.  At times, amounts on deposit may exceed insured 
limits or include uninsured investments in money market mutual funds.  To date, we have not 
experienced losses in any of these accounts.  Credit risk associated with accounts receivable and 
contributions receivable is considered to be limited due to high historical collection rates and because 
substantial portions of the outstanding amounts are due from governmental agencies, foundations and 
individuals supportive of our mission. 

Income Tax Status 

We are exempt from income taxes under Internal Revenue Code (IRC) Section 501(c)(3) and related 
California code sections.  We are considered a public charity under Section 170(b)(1)(A) and have 
been classified as an organization that is not a private foundation under IRC Section 509(a)(2).  

Our management has processes presently in place to ensure maintenance of our tax exempt statuses; to 
identify and report unrelated business income; to determine our filing and tax obligations for which 
we have nexus; and to identify and evaluate other matters that may be considered tax positions.  We 
have evaluated the tax positions and related income tax contingencies and do not believe that any 
material uncertain tax positions exist that require recognition or disclosure in the financial statements. 



9

SACRAMENTO LGBT COMMUNITY CENTER 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

Adoption of New Accounting Standards 

We have adopted the financial statement presentation and disclosure standards contained in the 
Financial Accounting Standards Board Accounting Standards Update 2016-14, Presentation of 
Financial Statements for Not-for-Profit Entities, modifying ASC 958.  The change has been applied as 
of January 31, 2019 with no effect on beginning net assets. 

We have also adopted ASU 2018-08 Clarifying the Scope and the Accounting Guidance for 
Contributions Received and Contributions Made.  This standard is intended to clarify and improve the 
scope and accounting guidance for contributions received and contributions made.  It provides 
assistance to not-for-profit entities in (1) evaluating whether transactions should be accounted for as 
contributions (nonreciprocal transactions) or as exchange (reciprocal) transactions subject to other 
guidance; and (2) determining whether a contribution is conditional.

NOTE 2  LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY 

Financial assets available for general expenditures, that is, without donor or other restrictions limiting 
their use, within one year of the statement of financial position date, comprise the following: 

Cash and equivalents $ 303,623
Contributions receivable 347,986
Distributions from beneficial interest in assets held by others 690

Financial assets available to meet cash needs for 
general expenditures within one year $ 652,299

We maintain a liquid cash balance in checking and money market accounts in an amount necessary to 
meet our anticipated expenditures for at least the next 60 days.  Cash in excess of this may be invested 
in short-term investments. 



10

SACRAMENTO LGBT COMMUNITY CENTER 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 

NOTE 3  CONTRIBUTIONS RECEIVABLE 

Contributions receivable are estimated to be collected as follows as of December 31, 2018: 

Restricted to future periods $ 744,199
Less: discount to net present value at the rate of 2.5% (15,758)
Less: allowance for uncollectible amounts (10,996)

Net contributions receivable $ 717,445

Amounts due in:

Less than one year $ 347,986
One to five years 396,213

Total $ 744,199

NOTE 4 FIXED ASSETS 

Fixed assets consisted of the following as of December 31, 2018: 

Software $ 26,513
Equipment 21,378
Vehicles 6,876
Less: accumulated depreciation (42,200)

Total fixed assets $ 12,567

Depreciation expense was $7,770 for the year ended December 31, 2018. 

NOTE 5  BENEFICIAL INTEREST IN ASSETS OF COMMUNITY FOUNDATION 

We have established an agency endowment fund with the Sacramento Region Community 
Foundation (Foundation).  Amounts in the fund include perpetually donor-restricted contributions and 
earnings on those contributions.  The agreement states that the assets are the property of the 
Foundation and that the Foundation will make distributions of income earned on the fund to the 

which allows the Foundation, at its sole discretion and subject to certain conditions, to modify any 
condition or restriction on the distribution of funds.  No distributions were received for the year ended 
December 31, 2018. We have recorded a beneficial interest in assets held by the Foundation totaling 
$17,644 as of December 31, 2018.



11

SACRAMENTO LGBT COMMUNITY CENTER 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 

NOTE 6 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

In accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, we use the following prioritized input 
levels to measure fair value.  The input levels used for valuing instruments are not necessarily an 
indication of risk. 

Level 1  Observable inputs that reflect quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in active 
markets such as stock quotes; 

Level 2  Includes inputs other than Level 1 inputs that are directly or indirectly observable in the 
marketplace such as yield curves or other market data; 

Level 3 
that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability including assumptions 
about risk such as bid/ask spreads and liquidity discounts. 

The beneficial interest is reported at fair value and consists of the following as of December 31, 2018: 

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Beneficial interest in assets held by 

the community foundation $ 17,644 $               -- $               -- $ 17,644

Total assets carried at fair value $ 17,644 $               -- $         -- $ 17,644

The beneficial interest in assets held by the community foundation is valued using Level 3 

investments measured using significant unobservable measurements (Level 3) for the year ended 
December 31, 2018: 

Balance, beginning of year

Change in value

Balance, end of year

$       18,781

(1,137)

$ 17,644



12

SACRAMENTO LGBT COMMUNITY CENTER 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 

NOTE 7  DEBT

We have an interest-free loan, payable in monthly principle payments of $234 and maturing in  
May 2019.  Future minimum payments due under this loan consisted of the following as of  
December 31, 2018: 

2019 $      1,170

Total loan payable $    1,170

We also have a line of credit with Wells Fargo Bank in the amount of $15,000.  Any draws on the line 
of credit will accrue interest at the annual rate of 11.25%.  No amounts were outstanding on this line 
of credit as of December 31, 2018. 

NOTE 8  CONCENTRATION 

Approximately 45% of contributions receivable as of December 31, 2018 were due from a single 
funding source.  

NOTE 9  NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS 

Net assets with donor restrictions consisted of the following as of December 31, 2018: 

Subject to expenditure for specified purpose:

Youth and health programs $ 109,737     

Subject to the passage of time:

Contributions receivable 554,447     

Perpetual in nature, not subject to spending policy or appropriation:

Beneficial interest in assets held by Community Foundation 17,644     

Total net assets with donor restrictions $ 681,828     



13

SACRAMENTO LGBT COMMUNITY CENTER 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 

NOTE 9  NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS (continued) 

Net assets were released from donor restrictions by incurring expenses satisfying the restricted 
purpose or by occurrence of the passage of time or other events specified by the donors as follows for 
the year ended December 31, 2018: 

Expiration of time restriction $          --

Satisfaction of purpose restrictions 110,076

Total assets released from donor restrictions $ 110,076

NOTE 10 COMMITMENTS 

We lease office space and equipment under noncancellable operating leases that expire in 2019 and 
2020, respectfully.  The following is a schedule of future minimum rental payments required under the 
above operating leases for the years ended December 31: 

2019 $ 53,439
2020 1,970

Total future minimum rental payments $ 55,409

We lease other office space under a month to month lease that is not included above.  Total rental 
expense under all leases was $86,227 for the year ended December 31, 2018. 

NOTE 11 DONATED GOODS AND SERVICES 

We received donated services and materials that are included in the accompanying financial 
statements with an estimated value as follows: 

Supplies and miscellaneous $ 39,483
Services 109,383
Office space 16,253

Total $ 165,119

We also received other donated services from a variety of vendors and unpaid volunteers 
assisting in leadership, committees, fundraising activities and program services.  The value of 
this donated time is not reflected in the accompanying financial statements since it does not meet 
the criteria for recognition as a contribution.  



14

SACRAMENTO LGBT COMMUNITY CENTER 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 

NOTE 12  FUNCTIONALIZED EXPENSES 

Our financial statements report certain categories of expenses that are attributable to more than one 
program or supporting function.  Therefore, expenses require an allocation method with a reasonable 
basis that is consistently applied.  The expenses that are allocated include: salaries and wages, benefits, 
payroll taxes, information technology, printing, supplies and insurance which are allocated on the 
basis of estimates of time and effort.  Occupancy, depreciation, and other expenses are allocated on a 
square footage basis.  

NOTE 13  CONTINGENCIES 

We have been awarded certain grants and contracts and are subject to financial and compliance 
requirements of the grantors or their representatives.  The amount of expenses, if any, which may be 
disallowed by the granting agencies cannot be determined at this time although our management does 
not expect such amounts, if any, to materially affect the financial statements.  

NOTE 14 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Our management has reviewed the results of operations for the period of time from our year end, 
December 31, 2018, through June 24, 2019, the date the financial statements were available to be 
issued, and have determined that no adjustments are necessary to the amounts reported in the 
accompanying financial statements nor have any subsequent events occurred, the nature of which 
would require disclosure. 



SAC RA ME NT O LGBT  COM MUN ITY  CE NTE R  
Proposal to the Ann Land and Bertha Henschel Memorial Fund 

 

PROJECT BUDGET – LGBT Center Nutritional Programs 

 

Program Amount Notes 

Youth Drop-in center $4,000 Funds will support one daily meal – seven days 
a week at the youth drop in center (the “Q-
Spot”).  There are generally 10-12 youth 
served. Recent upturns in the number of young 
people have made food a priority.  

Transitional Living Program $4,000 Youth in one of the Center’s housing programs 
aged 18-24 live in the facility/home. They are 
served three meals a day, snacks seven days a 
week. 

TOTAL $8,000  

 



ALBH	Grant	Application	2019
City	of	Sacramento

	Submitted	On:
October	21st,	2019	@	4:51pm

Organization	Name Sacramento	Loaves	&	Fishes

Physcial	Address 1351	North	C	Street
Sacramento
CA
95811

Mailing	address	different	from
physical	address?

Yes

Mailing	Address PO	Box	13495
Sacramento
CA
95813

Name Erika	Prasad

Title Grant	Writer

Phone	Number 9166372435

E-Mail	Address erika@sacloaves.org

Name Noel	Kammermann

Phone	Number 9166372506

E-Mail	Address Noel@sacloaves.org

Name Erika	Prasad

Title Grant	Writer

Phone	Number 9166372435

E-Mail	Address erika@sacloaves.org

Please	indicate	below	the
services	you	are	requesting

Food

Indicate	the	dollar	amount
requested	for	Food

$10,000

#	of	clients	that	will	be	served	by
the	Ann	Land	&	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds

3,000	unduplicated

Total	Amount	Requested $10,000.00

The	amount	requested	will	be
applied	to	the	following.

On-going	Program



The	funds	requested	will	be	used
to	serve	the	following	(please
check	all	that	apply)

Families
Women
Men
Children

Will	other	funds	supplement	Ann
Land	and	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds	request	for	this
program?

Yes

Briefly	explain Loaves	&	Fishes	programs	are	supplemented	through	our	General	Operating	Fund.	This	request
funds	our	Milk	Program	which	supplies	the	milk	for	three	of	our	programs	that	serve	daily	meals.
In	the	event	we	needed	additional	funds,	we	would	assess	available	resources	from	our	general
operating	fund.

Did	you	lose	any	funding	in	2019
from	any	source?

No

Do	you	anticipate,	or	have	you
been	notified,	that	you	will	lose
funding	in	2020?

No

Are	you	aware	of,	or	do	you
anticipate	receiving,	any	new
sources	of	funding	in	2020,	for
example,	stimulus	or	other
funds?

No

List	the	hours	that	programs
funded	by	Ann	Land	and	Bertha
Henschel	Memorial	Funds	will	be
available	to	clients.

Milk	is	made	available	in	our	Dining	Program,	which	serves	a	hot	meal	364	days	a	year	and	is
open	from	11:30am-1:00pm.	Maryhouse	Program,	a	women''s	daytime	drop-in	center,	serves
milk	to	women	and	families	as	part	of	morning	breakfast	on	weekdays	from	7:00am-9:00am.
Mustard	Seed	School,	an	emergency	school	for	children	impacted	by	homelessness	serves	milk
with	their	morning	breakfast	and	afternoon	snack	on	weekdays.

Describe	the	geographic	service
area,	within	the	City,	when	you
will	spend	the	requested	funds.

Loaves	&	Fishes	is	a	4.5	acre	campus	in	downtown	Sacramento:	North	C	Street/Ahern
Boulevard/Between	12	&	16th.

Please	upload	a	brief	description
(no	more	than	two	pages)	of	the
program	or	service	for	which	you
are	requesting	funds.	Explain	how
the	program	or	service
addresses	the	mission	and
funding	priorities	of	the	Ann	Land
and	Bertha	Henschel	Memorial
Funds.

https://seam.ly/ylnaFaWq

Mission	Statement	–
Organizational	Goal

Mission:	In	an	environment	of	welcome,	hospitality,	safety,	and	cleanliness,	we	seek	to	provide	an
oasis	for	homeless	men,	women,	and	children	seeking	survival	services.	Our	organizational	goal	is
to	provide	survival	services	to	improve	the	health	and	well-being	of	our	guests.	In	the	spirit	of
love,	we	ensure	that	our	guests	are	treated	with	dignity,	respect,	and	without	judgment.



Date	incorporated	or	otherwise
formed

5
1
1985

Briefly	describe	other	services
and	programs	your	organization
currently	provides.

Daily	we	serve	a	hot	midday	meal	and	breakfast,	showers,	mail	services,	and	survival	supplies	on
weekdays.	Guests	have	access	to	16	Loaves	&	Fishes	programs	and	community	services	to
address	their	physical/mental	health,	substance	use	disorders,	children''s	educational	needs,	legal
issues,	community	service	options,	housing	navigation,	or	basic	money	management	assistance.
For	many,	this	may	be	their	only	connection	to	nutrition,	basic	survival	services,	and	the	caring
attention	of	our	team.

Private	or	Corporate	Donations
(Amount)

$4,014,829

Private	or	Corporate	Donations
(%	of	Total	Funding)

85%

United	Way	(Amount) $122,387

United	Way	(%	of	Total	Funding) 2.6%

SETA	(Amount) 0.00

SETA	(%	of	Total	Funding) 0%

Federal	Assistance	(Amount) 0.00

Federal	Assistance	(%	of	Total
Funding)

0%

State	Assistance	(Amount) 0.00

State	Assistance	(%	of	Total
Funding)

0%

City	or	County	Assistance	(not
from	the	Ann	Land	Bertha
Henschel	Memorial	Funds)
(Amount)

0

City	or	County	Assistance	(not
from	the	Ann	Land	Bertha
Henschel	Memorial	Funds)	(%	of
Total	Funding)

0%

Grants	(Amount) $436,360

Grants	(%	of	Total	Funding) 9.3%

Ann	Land	and	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds	(Amount)

$8,500

Ann	Land	and	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds	(%	of	Total
Funding)

.18%

Other	(briefly	describe	below)
(Amount)

$124,448



Other	(briefly	describe	below)	(%
of	Total	Funding)

2.6%

Total	Amount $4,706,524.00

Other	Income	Sources Other	income	sources	include:	fundraising	events,	reimbursements,	rental	income,	interest	and
miscellaneous.

The	names	of	the	members	of
your	organization’s	board	of
directors	and	of	your
organization’s	officers

https://seam.ly/osOhl3dT

An	organizational	chart	or
description	of	your	organization’s
management	structure

https://seam.ly/V9AutW5V

Verification	of	your
organization’s	not-for-profit
status	(letter	from	IRS	confirming
§	501(c)(3)	status)

https://seam.ly/kgQNqPx2

Verification	that	your
organization	(1)	is	currently
registered	and	in	good	standing
with	the	Registry	of	Charitable
Trusts	maintained	by	the
California	Attorney	General	or	(2)
is	not	required	to	register.

https://seam.ly/Dh3hfATy

A	copy	of	your	organization’s
current	business	license	or	a
letter	from	the	City	of
Sacramento	Finance	Department
verifying	your	organization’s
exemption	from	the	City’s
business-operations	tax.	The
Sacramento	City	Code	requires
that	anyone	conducting	business
within	the	City	of	Sacramento
have	a	current	business	license
on	file	with	the	City.	The	City
issues	nonprofit	organizations	a
waiver	letter	in	lieu	of	a	business
license.	A	waiver	letter	can	be
obtained	at	the	Revenue	Counter
in	New	City	Hall,	First	Floor,	Room
1214.	Indicate	your
organization’s	non-profit	status
on	the	application	form.	There	is
no	charge	for	nonprofit
organizations.

https://seam.ly/NLcJWys5



A	copy	of	your	organization’s
most	recent	audit	and	any
corrective	actions	or
recommendations	suggested	by
the	auditor.	If	you	do	not	have	an
annual	audit,	please	explain	why.
You	must	also	provide	a	copy	of
your	organization’s	most-recent
annual	financial	statements,
signed	by	your	organization’s
treasurer	AND	by	the	preparer,
whether	a	CPA	or	bookkeeper

https://seam.ly/V5bXqX8q

A	budget	sheet	showing	how
awarded	funds	will	be	spent

https://seam.ly/X2sI8b7d

Signature	Data First	Name:	Erika
Last	Name:	Prasad
Email	Address:	erika@sacloaves.org

Signed	at:	10/21/2019	01:15PM



2020 Ann Land & Bertha Henschel Memorial Fund –  
2-Page Milk Program Narrative for Sacramento Loaves & Fishes  
 
Funding Request and Mission Alignment 
We respectfully request $10,000 from the Ann Land and Bertha Henschel Memorial Fund to 
provide continued support of the Loaves & Fishes Milk Program.  This program provides milk to 
three of our meal providing programs: Dining Room Services, Maryhouse and Mustard Seed 
School. Annually we serve nearly 200,000 meals to approximately 3,000 unduplicated men, 
women, and children, experiencing extreme poverty and homelessness in Sacramento. The 
Loaves & Fishes Milk Program addresses and aligns well with the mission and funding priorities 
of the Ann Land Bertha Henschel Memorial funds to benefit destitute men, women and children 
in our city. 
 
Organization History 
Established in 1983, we began as a Catholic ministry serving the poor and hungry. Today, we are 
a private charitable organization on a 4.5-acre urban campus providing critical services to those 
in our community with the greatest need. Our purpose is to create an environment of welcome, 
hospitality, safety, and cleanliness to all who seek survival services.  Located in the heart of 
downtown Sacramento, we are the only program providing these services without barrier or 
restrictions.   
 
Community Need 
There is a daunting need for immediate and consistent survival services in Sacramento. 
According to the 2019 Sacramento County Homeless Point-in-Time Count, an estimated 5,570 
people experience homelessness on any given night—a 19% increase of nightly homelessness 
since 2017. Approximately 70% of those counted are unsheltered and tend to have higher or 
more immediate needs. Sacramento County is in a structural crisis with the extreme lack of 
affordable or supportive permanent housing. This is amplifying the other vulnerabilities our 
guests experience. The issue is visibly evident. The individuals or families we serve come from 
nearby homeless shelters, camps along our river banks, and increasingly in cars or along 
buildings and sidewalks adjacent to the Loaves & Fishes campus. Hunger, the need for rest, 
clean restrooms, and shower facilities are the doorway for our guests to seek other services. For 
this reason, our three meal providing programs are critical to helping guests improve their overall 
well-being, so they may acquire the tools needed to rebuild their lives.  
 
Program Descriptions 
The Loaves & Fishes Milk Program was implemented to provide one serving of milk during 
specific meal times and one snack for three of our survival service programs. A grant of $10,000 
would provide the programs listed below with 1,675 cases (2-gallon containers), of milk 
annually.  
 
Dining Room Services Program 
This program provides a full course, hot meal daily, 364 days a year. Thanksgiving is the only 
day our dining room is closed. Every meal is planned by following the USDA guidelines for 
nutrition and includes one serving of milk.  Food is prepared and served by 25+ volunteers daily. 
Preparation begins at 7:00am and service begins at 11:30am. While the kitchen is busy 



preparing, our guests request lunch tickets at our guest services counter in Friendship Park.  
Access to our dining room on weekdays is from the park and on weekends from our North C 
Street entrance, including a wheelchair access. Our staff members and volunteers greet each 
guest, provide cafeteria service, and assist guests to tables as needed.  By serving balanced and 
healthy hot meals seven days a week, we are helping guests to improve their overall wellbeing, 
so they may acquire the tools needed to rebuild their lives. 
 
Maryhouse 
Serving women and single-parent-led families since 1986, we have addressed the immediate 
needs of women and families with children, often in crisis, seeking survival services. Today we 
are an extensive day shelter and resource center providing hot breakfast, showers, mail/message 
services, and essential survival supplies that include feminine hygiene, infant formula and all 
sizes of diapers. Each weekday morning, volunteers prepare and serve a hot breakfast in a private 
dining room specifically for women and families with children. Maryhouse guests receive 
counseling to link them with on-campus or community services that address physical/mental 
health concerns, substance use disorders, lack of self-esteem, housing assistance, children’s 
educational needs, legal issues, or basic financial assistance. Through the Maryhouse program, 
relationships are built, trust is established, and new opportunities are embraced to improve 
physical and emotional health, self-esteem and improve overall well-being of each guest we 
serve. 
 
 
Mustard Seed School 
An emergency school for children and their families experiencing homelessness, our school is a 
safe haven of hope for children ages 3-15 years old. Children experiencing homelessness 
change schools often, or have large gaps in attendance. Our dedicated team provides basic 
survival services (food, clothing, supplies), in addition to boosting self-esteem and developing 
healthy coping skills as their family and home situations stabilize. While attending our Mustard 
Seed School, children are surrounded with care and important role models. Through the 
Montessori Method, they learn how to form positive relationships with other children and with 
teachers, a key component for school success. They receive medical and dental screenings, 
academic assessments, and mental health support as needed.  Milk is served daily on weekdays 
as part of a nutritious breakfast and afternoon snack. By addressing each child’s 
physical/nutritional health, along with their academic, social/emotional health, we can reach our 
ultimate goal of children reintegrating successfully back into their school community.  
 
Closing 
We are deeply grateful for the continued support we have received through the years from the 
Ann Land and Bertha Henschel Memorial Fund. Thank you for your thoughtful consideration of 
our current request. Please feel free to reach out to us at any time if you have questions or need 
additional information. 
 



P.O. Box 1349, Sacramento, CA  95813-3495 | 916 446-0874 | www.sacloaves.org 

 
 
 
 

 In an environment of welcome, hospitality, safety, and cleanliness, we seek to provide an oasis for 
homeless men, women and children seeking survival services 

 
2019 Board of Directors 

 
 

Officers           
Ron Blubaugh, President  Retired Judge     2011 
Dr. Glennah Trochet, Vice President Retired Dir Public Health   2011 
Dorothy Smith, Treasurer  Real Estate Broker    1987 
Rev. Don Fado, Secretary  Retired United Methodist Pastor  1994 
 
Directors 
Karen Banker    Retired Teacher/Founder Mustard Seed 1992 
Paula Lamazzi    Exec Dir/Sacto Homeless Org. Comm. 2014 
Brother Mark Schroeder, OFM Franciscan Brother    2013 
Sue Supple    Retired Teacher    2012 
Ja'net Blea     Longtime Volunteer/ 

Loaves & Fishes Dining Room   2018 
Amy Chatfield-Cameron  California Dept. of Education   2018 
Angela Hassell    Teacher, Social Worker, Former 

Director of Mustard Seed   2018 
Tim Blaine    Lawyer, Sacramento County    2018 
     Public Defender 
Becky Reed    Management Consultant   2019 
 
Honorees 
Chris Delany    Co-Founder Loaves & Fishes   1986 
Geraldine Baskerville   Former Jail Visitation Program Director 2008 
Leroy Chatfield   Former Executive Director   1988 
Tim Brown    Former Executive Director   2000 
Sister Libby Sanchez   Former Executive Director   2006 
 
 
Executive Leadership 
Noel Kammermann   Executive Director    2017 
Rudy Ahumada   Chief Financial Officer    1998 



 
Sacramento Loaves & Fishes  
Organizational Chart 2018 
          

                    
                  
                         
                  
                  
                  
                  
                  
                  
                  
                       
                  
                              
                  
                  
                  
                              
                  
                  
                              
                  
                  
                  
        

Board of Directors 

Executive Director 

Dining Room 
Services 

Friendship Park 
Library 

Street Monitors 

Genesis 
Mental 
Health 

Services 

Jail Visitation 

 

Maryhouse  
Mustard 

Seed School 
Sister Nora’s 

Place  

Men’s 
Washhouse & 

Laundry 

Animal 
Emergency 

Services 

Chief 
Financial 
Officer 

Controller & 
Human 

Resources  

Warehouse & 
Procurement 

 

Maintenance, 
Security, 
Grounds 

Keeping & 
Cottages 

 

 

Information 
Technology Advocacy 

Fund 
Development 

Volunteer 
Services 

  

 

Community 
Services & 
Legal Clinic 

Community 
Outreach 





Registrant Details
Entity type: Corporate Class as registered with the Secretary of State or based on founding & registration documents.

Organization Name: SACRAMENTO LOAVES & FISHES IRS FEIN: 680189897
Entity Type: Religious SOS/FTB Corporate/Organization Number: 1639924

Registry Status: Exempt - Religious Renewal Due/Exp. Date:
RCT Registration Number: CT0208355 Issue Date: 6/25/2014
Record Type: Charity Registration Effective Date: 6/25/2014
Date This Status: 9/6/2016 Date of Last Renewal:

Mailing Address
Street: 1321 NORTH C ST
Street Line 2:
City, State Zip: SACRAMENTO CA 95814

Filings & Correspondence
Exemption Letter - Shred Exemption Letter - Shred

Notice to Register Notice to Register

Dissolution Documents Click on Document Type at the left to open PDF

Exemption Documents Exemption Documents

Exemption Documents Exemption Documents

Annual Renewal Data
No Annual Renewal Data

Related Registrations & Event Reports
The related records shown below depend on the record type being viewed:

Charity Registrations relate to Professional Fundraising Events which relate to Professional Fundraiser Registrations.
Raffle Registrations relate to Raffle Reports.
Click on the RCT Registration No to navigate to the related record.

No Related Records

HOME  ABOUT  MEDIA  CAREERS  REGULATIONS  RESOURCES  PROGRAMS  CONTACT

http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=140625Z16120436.pdf&document_id=09027b8f801c45af
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=1400004586323.pdf&document_id=09027b8f801c19ae
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=535091.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8039eaa2
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=98670.pdf&document_id=09027b8f801cffdd
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=85040.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8028dc1b
https://oag.ca.gov/home
https://oag.ca.gov/about
https://oag.ca.gov/media
https://oag.ca.gov/careers
https://oag.ca.gov/meetings/public-participation
https://oag.ca.gov/services-info
https://oag.ca.gov/programs
https://oag.ca.gov/contact










Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

PHONE:916.646.6464   FAX:916.929.6836   GilbertCPA.com         

2880 GATEWAY OAKS DRIVE, SUITE 100, SACRAMENTO, CA 95833     101 PARKSHORE DRIVE, SUITE 100, FOLSOM, CA 95630



Opinion

















Presentation of Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Entities









Sacramento Loaves & Fishes - 2020

Total Milk Program 
Budget 

Amount Requested from Ann 
Land Bertha Henschel

1,675 Cases of Milk  for the following:
Dining Room Services Program $7,900 $7,900

Maryhouse Program $1,800 $1,800
Mustard Seed School $300 $300

Total Program Expense: $10,000 $10,000

The Milk Fund budget & proposed allocation Ann Land Bertha Henschel Memorial Fund Grant
Funding period: January 1, 2020 - December 31, 2020



ALBH	Grant	Application	2019
City	of	Sacramento

	Submitted	On:
October	25th,	2019	@	3:54pm

Organization	Name Sacramento	Self-help	Housing

Physcial	Address 1010	Hurley	Way	Suite	500
Sacramento
CA
95383

Mailing	address	different	from
physical	address?

Yes

Mailing	Address PO	Box	188445
Sacramento
CA
95383

Name Derek	Corea

Title Development	Specialist

Phone	Number 4407595797

E-Mail	Address dcorea@sacselfhelp.org

Name Ken	Bennett

Phone	Number 916-508-7616

E-Mail	Address kbennett@sacselfhelp.org

Name Derek	Corea

Title Development	Specialist

Phone	Number 4407595797

E-Mail	Address dcorea@sacselfhelp.org

Please	indicate	below	the
services	you	are	requesting

Shelter

Indicate	the	dollar	amount
requested	for	Shelter

$6,000

#	of	clients	that	will	be	served	by
the	Ann	Land	&	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds

1,112

Total	Amount	Requested $6,000.00

The	amount	requested	will	be
applied	to	the	following.

On-going	Program



The	funds	requested	will	be	used
to	serve	the	following	(please
check	all	that	apply)

Families
Women
Men
Children

Will	other	funds	supplement	Ann
Land	and	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds	request	for	this
program?

No

Did	you	lose	any	funding	in	2019
from	any	source?

No

Do	you	anticipate,	or	have	you
been	notified,	that	you	will	lose
funding	in	2020?

No

Are	you	aware	of,	or	do	you
anticipate	receiving,	any	new
sources	of	funding	in	2020,	for
example,	stimulus	or	other
funds?

Yes

Briefly	explain County	and	City	-	Sacramento	County	and	City	are	expanding	our	Scattered	Sight	Interim
Housing	Program	by	10	houses.	

HUD	-	The	federal	Government	is	Expanding	our	Permanent	Supportive	Housing	Program	by	50
beds.

List	the	hours	that	programs
funded	by	Ann	Land	and	Bertha
Henschel	Memorial	Funds	will	be
available	to	clients.

Tuesday:	9am	-	12pm	
Thursday:	9am	-	12pm	
Friday:	9am	-	12pm	(or	later	if	necessary)

Describe	the	geographic	service
area,	within	the	City,	when	you
will	spend	the	requested	funds.

The	Friendship	Park	Housing	Counseling	Program	provides	free	no	barrier	housing	counseling	to
homeless	individuals	and	families	located	at	Friendship	Park,	Loves	and	Fishes.	The	funds	will	be
spent	here	to	serve	the	local	homeless	populations.

Please	upload	a	brief	description
(no	more	than	two	pages)	of	the
program	or	service	for	which	you
are	requesting	funds.	Explain	how
the	program	or	service
addresses	the	mission	and
funding	priorities	of	the	Ann	Land
and	Bertha	Henschel	Memorial
Funds.

https://seam.ly/1WvjEHlj

Mission	Statement	–
Organizational	Goal

Sacramento	Self	Help	Housing	assists	persons	who	are	homeless	or	at	risk	of	becoming
homeless	to	find	and	retain	stable	and	affordable	housing.

Date	incorporated	or	otherwise
formed

1
1
2000



Briefly	describe	other	services
and	programs	your	organization
currently	provides.

Interim	Housing	-	Provide	temporary	shelter	to	recently	homeless	clients.	
Permanent	Supportive	Housing	-	Provide	permanent	shelter	to	recently	chronically	homeless
disabled	individuals.	
Housing	Services	-	Provide	homeless	outreach	and	navigation	services	to	homeless	individuals
and	families	across	the	region.	
HART	-	Organize	community	members	to	support	the	expansion	of	local	homeless	resources.

Private	or	Corporate	Donations
(Amount)

$234,728

Private	or	Corporate	Donations
(%	of	Total	Funding)

3%

United	Way	(Amount) 0

United	Way	(%	of	Total	Funding) 0

SETA	(Amount) 0

SETA	(%	of	Total	Funding) 0

Federal	Assistance	(Amount) 0

Federal	Assistance	(%	of	Total
Funding)

0

State	Assistance	(Amount) 0

State	Assistance	(%	of	Total
Funding)

0

City	or	County	Assistance	(not
from	the	Ann	Land	Bertha
Henschel	Memorial	Funds)
(Amount)

0

City	or	County	Assistance	(not
from	the	Ann	Land	Bertha
Henschel	Memorial	Funds)	(%	of
Total	Funding)

0

Grants	(Amount) 6,077565

Grants	(%	of	Total	Funding) 96%

Ann	Land	and	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds	(Amount)

$1,800

Ann	Land	and	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds	(%	of	Total
Funding)

1%

Other	(briefly	describe	below)
(Amount)

Rental	Income	(469,882)

Other	(briefly	describe	below)	(%
of	Total	Funding)

Rental	Income	(7%)

Total	Amount $6,782,175.00



Other	Income	Sources None

The	names	of	the	members	of
your	organization’s	board	of
directors	and	of	your
organization’s	officers

https://seam.ly/chfSyUZa

An	organizational	chart	or
description	of	your	organization’s
management	structure

https://seam.ly/ulvZ4Auu

Verification	of	your
organization’s	not-for-profit
status	(letter	from	IRS	confirming
§	501(c)(3)	status)

https://seam.ly/clfreq9u

Verification	that	your
organization	(1)	is	currently
registered	and	in	good	standing
with	the	Registry	of	Charitable
Trusts	maintained	by	the
California	Attorney	General	or	(2)
is	not	required	to	register.

https://seam.ly/bxt9FbfM

A	copy	of	your	organization’s
current	business	license	or	a
letter	from	the	City	of
Sacramento	Finance	Department
verifying	your	organization’s
exemption	from	the	City’s
business-operations	tax.	The
Sacramento	City	Code	requires
that	anyone	conducting	business
within	the	City	of	Sacramento
have	a	current	business	license
on	file	with	the	City.	The	City
issues	nonprofit	organizations	a
waiver	letter	in	lieu	of	a	business
license.	A	waiver	letter	can	be
obtained	at	the	Revenue	Counter
in	New	City	Hall,	First	Floor,	Room
1214.	Indicate	your
organization’s	non-profit	status
on	the	application	form.	There	is
no	charge	for	nonprofit
organizations.

https://seam.ly/qvg5K7Ji



A	copy	of	your	organization’s
most	recent	audit	and	any
corrective	actions	or
recommendations	suggested	by
the	auditor.	If	you	do	not	have	an
annual	audit,	please	explain	why.
You	must	also	provide	a	copy	of
your	organization’s	most-recent
annual	financial	statements,
signed	by	your	organization’s
treasurer	AND	by	the	preparer,
whether	a	CPA	or	bookkeeper

https://seam.ly/v1H9pTaI

A	budget	sheet	showing	how
awarded	funds	will	be	spent

https://seam.ly/Mw93TZ14

Signature	Data First	Name:	Derek
Last	Name:	Corea
Email	Address:	dcorea@sacselfhelp.org

Signed	at:	10/25/2019	12:56PM



Ann Land and Bertha Henschel Memorial Funds Application 
Sacramento Self-Help Housing  

Sacramento Self-Help Housing proposes to commit any Ann Land and Bertha Henschel 
Memorial Funds to the training and expansion of housing counselors at Friendship Park located 
in downtown Sacramento. 

Housing Counseling at Friendship Park  

This project addresses our housing counseling efforts at Friendship Park, a popular location for 
Sacramento residents experiencing homelessness, and would cover training costs for our housing 
counselors. Sacramento Self-Help Housing has 12 housing counseling sites in Sacramento 
County where homeless and low-income men, women, and families seek assistance with locating 
housing. All of these sites are funded by various grants, cities, and other non-profits, except for 
Friendship Park in the Loaves and Fishes Complex. Since 2000, our outreach efforts at 
Friendship Park have been completely staffed by volunteers and funded by our general agency 
funds. The Ann Land and Bertha Henschel Memorial Fund will allow for us to devote greater 
attention, care, and time to housing counseling at Friendship Park, the site that receives the 
greatest quantity of clients every week. 

Addressing the Mission and Funding Priorities of the Ann Land and Bertha Henschel 
Memorial Funds 

Housing counseling at Friendship Park directly assists the most destitute men, women, and 
families in the City of Sacramento who are experiencing homelessness or are at risk of 
homelessness.  

Friendship Park is a safe place where homeless guests visit for food, shelter, and services. It is a 
welcoming, one-stop center for over 500 guests a day. According to Loaves and Fishes' 2015 
survey, over half of guests are aged 50 and older and 53% reported psychiatric disabilities. At all 
of our housing counseling sites, the populations we serve are very low-income individuals or 
households. Many are unemployed, on fixed incomes, underemployed, or employed in low-wage 
jobs. Many of our clients also have bad credit and/or evictions, adding to their challenges in 
locating stable housing. This population has insufficient resources and needs assistance in 
securing stable and affordable housing. The most common barriers to obtaining housing for this 
population are a lack of access to supportive services and an inability to effectively address 
barriers. Many of our clients do not know about the documentation required to rent an apartment 
or room, much less how to navigate the complicated and competitive housing/rental market. 
 
This project aims to address the lack of affordable housing in Sacramento and the barriers that 
prevent homeless and low-income individuals to access existing housing. Our volunteer housing 
counselors are available at the Outreach Office in the Friendship Park complex every Tuesday, 
Thursday, and Friday 9AM-12PM. On average, our counselors are assist 15-20 clients per day of 



service. This amounts to 3,100 clients each year. Starting in May of 2017, Loaves and Fishes has 
also provided additional workspace at the Delany Center right behind Friendship Park so that our 
housing counselors can also provide services for women or men with children, since minor 
children are not allowed inside the park. 
 
Especially at a time when Sacramento has one of the fastest growing housing prices in 
California, there is an exceedingly important for our agency's attentive services to be available at 
Friendship Park for Sacramento’s most vulnerable clients. 
 
The Housing Counseling Process 

When clients come to see us, our Housing Counselors complete an in-depth intake to assess 
clients' barriers and to provide tangible housing referrals. We gather information about rental and 
credit histories, any disabilities, debt load, and other relevant history that may affect clients' 
ability to rent. Once we have gathered this information, we research the rental market to find 
places that will work to fit each client's needs and capacity to rent. Our Housing Counselors give 
clients a list of referrals and follow up with clients after some time to check on their housing 
search status. Moreover, participants are educated on the current rental/housing climate, the 
documentation needed, and the process of applying and becoming a tenant. 

This housing location procedure is extremely beneficial to the individuals and families that reach 
out to us for help. We help clients develop a plan and teach them how to implement it in order to 
find and maintain housing. We also embrace the Housing First model to ensure the lowest 
barriers for our clients. Regardless of their background and needs, all clients receive tailored 
assistance from our Housing Counselors so that they can navigate the housing market with a 
sense of direction and greater success.  

The main benchmark used to measure our program's capacity and success is the intake form 
provided by our agency. We use this form for the purposes of documentation and identification 
for our follow-up and success measures. During each intake, the client discloses their income, 
racial and ethnic identification, family size, age, disability status, and relevant housing 
background and barriers. With the collection of intake forms, we are able to evaluate the details 
of the population we serve. 
 



SACRAMENTO SELF-HELP HOUSING, INC. 
Post office Box 188445      Sacramento, California 95818 

www.Sacselfhelp.org 
Board of Directors  

    
TED COBB, Chairperson 2018-2019  
1213 Noonan Drive   
Sacramento, CA 95822 
441-1919 (h), 764-5265  
Theodore.cobb@gmail.com  
(retired) 
Committee: Internal  
 
Karen Edwards Secretary 2018-2019 
7954 Kyle Court 
Citrus Heights, CA 95610 
722-4717(h), 201-4633 © 
kledwards58@gmail.com 
Sun River Church, women&outreach 
Committee: Program 
 
BRUCE LOFGREN, Treasurer 2018-2019 
2999 Douglas Blvd., Suite 160 
Roseville, CA 95661 
859-2553, 832-8014  
Bruce.Lofgren@cvcb.com  
Central Valley Community Bank 
Committee: Internal 
 
Tim Stoecklein  2018-2019 
2721 Harbor View Lane 
Elk Grove, CA 95758 
691-0477 (h), 402-4633 © 
timstoecklein@gmail.com 
Cal. Dept. of Housing & Community 
Development 
Committee: Internal 

 RON JAVOR     2017-2018 
4617 Cabana Way   
Sacramento, CA  95822    
718-4664    
rjavor@earthlink.net 
California Department of Housing and 
Community Development (retired) 
Committee: Program 
 
JIM SWANSON, Vice Chairperson 2017-2018 
3481 22nd Street 
Sacramento, CA 95818 
743-1454 
jim@saccityhomes.com 
Better Homes&Garden Real Estate/Mason 
McDuffie 
Committee: Program 
 
REGINA VASQUEZ 2017-2018 
5321 Stockton Blvd. 
Sacramento, CA 95820 
544-0000 
Gina.vasquez916@gmail.com 
 
ANNE BROWN 2017-2018 
6828 Susanna Ct. 
Citrus Heights, CA 95621 
595-3423 
Committee: Development 
Abrown742003@yahoo.com 
 
 

 
DANA MITCHELL 2018-2019 
Chief Consultant Assembly 
Committee on Arts 
2241 Cable Court 
West Sacramento, CA 95691 
319-3453, cell 397-6368 
Dana.mitchell@asm.ca.gov 
 
RACHAEL TAYLOR 2018-2019 
Project Advisor, Civitas 
1102 Corporate Way, Ste. 140 
Sacramento, Ca 95831 
(916) 437-4300, cell (530) 355-1328 
rtaylor@civitasadvisors.com 

 
RICH WILKS 2017-2018 
 Better Homes & Gardens Real Estate 
1015 Ice Cream Lane 
Sacramento, CA 95814 
826-8449 
richwilksre@gmail.com 
 
 
JOSH ALBERT 2017-2018 
Financial Advisor, Northwestern Mutual 
1425 River Park Dr., Suite 100 
Sacramento, CA 95815 
(916) 648-6438 
 
August 28, 2018 
 
 

mailto:kledwards58@gmail.com
mailto:timstoecklein@gmail.com
mailto:rjavor@earthlink.net
mailto:jim@saccityhomes.com
mailto:Gina.vasquez916@gmail.com
mailto:Abrown742003@yahoo.com
mailto:Dana.mitchell@asm.ca.gov


 

2 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
 

  
 
 

  
 



Organization Chart Sacramento Self Help Housing 
 

 

 

 

 

  

  

  

 

   

Permanent Program Director 
Annie Hooper 

Interim Program Director  
Jeremy Baird 

 

Supervisor of Rental Housing Services 
Tahirih Kraft 

 

Administrative 
Operations Manager 

Amelia Clarke 

Community Outreach 
Director   

Ken Bennett          

Executive Director 
John Foley 

 

Board of Directors 
Ted Cobb, President 

Jim Swanson, Vice President 
Karen Edwards, Secretary 
Bruce Lofgren, Treasurer 

Ron Javor, Tim Stoecklein, Ann Brown 
 Dana Mitchel, Regina Vasquez 

Rich Wilks 
 

Housing Counseling Supervisor 
Fatemah Bradley-Martinez 

Accounting Assistant 
Michael Mensah 

 

Consultants 
HR 

Tech Support 

Case Managers 
Mike Kennedy 

Kerri Jones 
Rene Bayardo 

 

Housing Specialist 
Bryan Kenney 

House 
Leaders 

11 

Renters Help Line 
Olga Tulyadan 
Jessica Whitley 

Santiago Ramirez 

Property Management 
Michelle Ward 
Keoki Uehara 
Sean Whitley 

 

Housing Counselors 
Melissa Orellana 

 

Volunteers 
 

AARP 
 

Office Manager   
Nancy Ozsvath 

Navigators 
Toni Morgan 

Randy Skelton 

Case Managers 
Latisha Maniord 

Azzie Thomas 
Kate Schroeder 

Luiz Ruiz 
Latonya Burns 

Pam Salinas 
 

House 
Leaders 

32 

Consultants 
Development Consultant 

PR Consultant 

Friendship 
Park Volunteers 

 
Americorp VISTA 

Anna Lam 

CSUS 
Interns 

 
Investigator 

Mark Schroeder 
 

Patti Uplinger 

Admin Assistant 
Jessica Delgado 

 







Registrant Details
Entity type: Corporate Class as registered with the Secretary of State or based on founding & registration documents.

Organization Name: SACRAMENTO SELF-HELP HOUSING, INC. IRS FEIN: 680217383
Entity Type: Public Benefit SOS/FTB Corporate/Organization Number: 1662320

Registry Status: Current Renewal Due/Exp. Date: 5/15/2020
RCT Registration Number: 078071 Issue Date: 12/31/2006
Record Type: Charity Registration Effective Date: 12/31/2006
Date This Status: Date of Last Renewal: 8/19/2019

Mailing Address
Street: P.O. BOX 188445
Street Line 2:
City, State Zip: SACRAMENTO CA 95818

Filings & Correspondence
RRF-1 2010 2010 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2010 2010 IRS Form 990

Founding Documents Founding Documents

RRF-1 2008 2008 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2008 2008 IRS Form 990

RRF-1 2007 2007 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2007 2007 IRS Form 990

RRF-1 2006 2006 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2006 2006 IRS Form 990

RRF-1 2005 2005 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2005 2005 IRS Form 990

IRS Form 990 2004 2004 IRS Form 990

RRF-1 2003 2003 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2003 2003 IRS Form 990

RRF-1 2002 2002 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2002 2002 IRS Form 990

RRF-1 2001 2001 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2001 2001 IRS Form 990

IRS Form 990 2009 2009 IRS Form 990

RRF-1 2011 2011 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2011 2011 IRS Form 990

RRF-1 2009 2009 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 Series 2017

Form RRF-1 2017

RRF-1 2012 2012 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2012 2012 IRS Form 990

RRF-1 2013 2013 RRF-1

HOME  ABOUT  MEDIA  CAREERS  REGULATIONS  RESOURCES  PROGRAMS  CONTACT

http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2010.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80093b22
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2010.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80093b23
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=Founding+Documents.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80093b24
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2008.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80093b26
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2008.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80093b27
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2007.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80093b28
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2007.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80093b29
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2006.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80093b2a
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2006.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80093b2b
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2005.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80093b2c
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2005.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80093b2d
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2004.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80093b2e
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2003.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80093b2f
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2003.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80093b30
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2002.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80093b31
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2002.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80093b32
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2001.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80093b33
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2001.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80093b34
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2009.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80093b39
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2011.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80093b35
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2011.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80093b36
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2009.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80093b38
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=370419.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8035376a
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=370418.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80353769
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=110530.pdf&document_id=09027b8f801b0654
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=110531.pdf&document_id=09027b8f801b0655
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=649395.PDF&document_id=09027b8f80210ab2
https://oag.ca.gov/home
https://oag.ca.gov/about
https://oag.ca.gov/media
https://oag.ca.gov/careers
https://oag.ca.gov/meetings/public-participation
https://oag.ca.gov/services-info
https://oag.ca.gov/programs
https://oag.ca.gov/contact


IRS Form 990 2013 2013 IRS Form 990

RRF-1 2014 2014 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2014 2014 IRS Form 990

2015 RRF-1 2015 RRF-1

2015 IRS Form 990 2015 IRS Form 990

2016 IRS Form 990 2016 IRS Form 990

2016 Form RRF-1 2016 Form RRF-1

Renewal Filing 2018

Annual Renewal Data
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 1/1/2000
Accounting Period End Date: 12/31/2001
Total Assets: $56,108.00
Total Revenue: $143,105.00
Filing Received Date: 11/25/2002
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 1/1/2001
Accounting Period End Date: 12/31/2002
Total Assets: $26,133.00
Total Revenue: $126,083.00
Filing Received Date: 10/28/2003
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 1/1/2002
Accounting Period End Date: 12/31/2003
Total Assets: $13,369.00
Total Revenue: $135,209.00
Filing Received Date: 11/8/2004
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 1/1/2004
Accounting Period End Date: 12/31/2004
Total Assets: $23,684.00
Total Revenue: $146,473.00
Filing Received Date: 8/8/2005
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 1/1/2005
Accounting Period End Date: 12/31/2005
Total Assets: $41,785.00
Total Revenue: $205,248.00
Filing Received Date: 5/17/2006
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 1/1/2006
Accounting Period End Date: 12/31/2006
Total Assets: $41,970.00
Total Revenue: $287,925.00
Filing Received Date: 5/18/2007
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted

http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=649396.PDF&document_id=09027b8f80210ab3
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=840798.PDF&document_id=09027b8f80253544
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=840799.PDF&document_id=09027b8f80253545
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=1111897.PDF&document_id=09027b8f8029ad3d
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=1111898.PDF&document_id=09027b8f8029ad3e
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=144152.pdf&document_id=09027b8f802e0afb
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=144153.pdf&document_id=09027b8f802e0afc
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=538990.pdf&document_id=09027b8f803a0ed2


Accounting Period Begin Date: 1/1/2007
Accounting Period End Date: 12/31/2007
Total Assets: $66,971.00
Total Revenue: $540,937.00
Filing Received Date: 5/15/2008
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 1/1/2008
Accounting Period End Date: 12/31/2008
Total Assets: $131,526.00
Total Revenue: $910,569.00
Filing Received Date: 6/29/2009
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 1/1/2009
Accounting Period End Date: 12/31/2009
Total Assets: $167,589.00
Total Revenue: $1,360,767.00
Filing Received Date: 6/10/2010
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 1/1/2010
Accounting Period End Date: 12/31/2010
Total Assets: $164,327.00
Total Revenue: $1,533,289.00
Filing Received Date: 6/21/2011
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 1/1/2011
Accounting Period End Date: 12/31/2011
Total Assets: $172,669.00
Total Revenue: $1,142,966.00
Filing Received Date: 6/22/2012
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 1/1/2012
Accounting Period End Date: 12/31/2012
Total Assets: $164,988.00
Total Revenue: $976,247.00
Filing Received Date: 6/27/2013
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 1/1/2013
Accounting Period End Date: 12/31/2013
Total Assets: $170,050.00
Total Revenue: $1,017,561.00
Filing Received Date: 6/18/2014
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 1/1/2014
Accounting Period End Date: 12/31/2014
Total Assets: $182,781.00
Total Revenue: $1,253,751.00
Filing Received Date: 6/5/2015
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y



Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 1/1/2015
Accounting Period End Date: 12/31/2015
Total Assets: $355,172.00
Total Revenue: $1,964,124.00
Filing Received Date: 6/27/2016
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 1/1/2016
Accounting Period End Date: 12/31/2016
Total Assets: $452,250.00
Total Revenue: $2,598,756.00
Filing Received Date: 4/21/2017
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 1/1/2017
Accounting Period End Date: 12/31/2017
Total Assets: $641,013.00
Total Revenue: $3,225,222.00
Filing Received Date: 7/2/2018
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 1/1/2018
Accounting Period End Date: 12/31/2018
Total Assets: $1,681,865.00
Total Revenue: $6,692,644.00
Filing Received Date: 7/24/2019
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N):

Related Registrations & Event Reports
The related records shown below depend on the record type being viewed:

Charity Registrations relate to Professional Fundraising Events which relate to Professional Fundraiser Registrations.
Raffle Registrations relate to Raffle Reports.
Click on the RCT Registration No to navigate to the related record.

No Related Records



IN

MAIL TO:

Registry of Charitable Trusts
P.O. Box 903447

Sacramento, CA 942034470

Telephone: (916) 445-2021

WEBSITE ADDRESS:

http://ag.ca.gov/charities/

ANNUAL

REGISTRATION RENEWAL FEE REPORT

TO ATTORNEY GENERAL OF CALIFORNIA
Sections 12586 and 12587, California Government Code

11 Cal. Code Regs. sections 301-307, 311 and 312

Failure to submit this report annually no later than four months and fifteen days after the
end of the organization's accounting period may result in the loss of tax exemption and
the assessment of a minimum tax of $800, plus interest, and/or fines or filing penalties as
defined in Government Code Section 12586.1. IRS extensions will be honored.

State Charity Registration Number 78071

SACRAMENTO SELF-HELP HOUSING, INC.
Name of Organization

PO BOX 188445

Address (Number and Street)

SACRAMENTO, CA 95818
City or Town State ZIP Code

Check if:

El Change of address
E Amended report

liberty
and justice

• under law

CEIVED
Attorney Gei nural's Office

JUL 0 2 ?018

Registry of Chantable Trusts
Corporate or Organization No. 1662320

Federal Employer I.D. No. 68-0217383

ANNUAL REGISTRATION RENEWAL FEE SCHEDULE (11 Cal. Code Regs. sections 301-307, 311 and 312)
Make Check Payable to Attorney General's Registry of Charitable Trusts

Gross Annual Revenue

Less than $25,000

Between $25,000 and $100,000

PART A - ACTIVITIES

Fee

0

$25

Gross Annual Revenue

Between $100,001 and $250,000

Between $250,001 and $1 million

For your most recent full accounting period (beginning 1/01/17 ending

Gross annual revenue $ 3,225,222. Total assets $

Fee

$50

$75

Gross Annual Revenue Fee

Between $1,000,001 and $10 million $150
Between $10,000,001 and $50 million $225

Greater than $50 million $300

12/31/17 ) list:

641,013.

PART B - STATEMENTS REGARDING ORGANIZATION DURING THE PERIOD OF THIS REPORT

Note: If you answer'yes' to any of the questions below, you must attach a separate sheet providing an explanation and details for each
'yes' response. Please review RRF-1 instructions for information required.

Yes No

1 During this reporting period, were there any contracts, loans, leases or other financial transactions between the
organization and any officer, director or trustee thereof either directly or with an entity in which any such officer, ®0director or trustee had any financial interest? SEE STATEMENT 1

2 During this reporting period, was there any theft, embezzlement, diversion or misuse of the organization's charitable
property or funds?

3 During this reporting period, did non-program expenditures exceed 50% of gross revenues?

4 During this reporting period, were any organization funds used to pay any penalty, fine or judgment? If you filed a
Form 4720 with the Internal Revenue Service, attach a copy.

5 During this reporting period, were the services of a commercial fundraiser or fundraising counsel for charitable
purposes used? If 'yes,' provide an attachment listing the name, address, and telephone number of the service
provider. SEE STATEMENT 2

6 During this reporting period, did the organization receive any governmental funding? If so, provide an attachment listing .-.
the name of the agency, mailing address, contact person, and telephone number. SEE STATEMENT 3

7 During this reporting period, did the organization hold a raffle for charitable purposes? If 'yes,' provide an attachment
indicating the number of raffles and the date(s) they occurred.

8 Does the organization conduct a vehicle donation program? If 'yes,' provide an attachment indicating whether
the program is operated by the charity or whether the organization contracts with a commercial fundraiser for
charitable purposes.

9 Did your organization have prepared an audited financial statement in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles for this reporting period?

Organization's area code and telephone number 916 341-0593

Organization's e-mail address JFOLEY@SACSELFHELP. ORG

I decl re under penalty of perjury that I have examined this report, including accompanying documents, and to the best of my knowledge
and b 'ef, it i true, correct and complete.

Signature 4 forized ofcer 
JOHN FOLEY
Printed Name

CAEA9801 L 11/30/15

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Title

960 641

52 A, 11-0 L g

0

®

®

0

RRF-1 (3-05)

$190

0

®



2017

Client 401

5/08/18

Statement 1

Form RRF-1, Part B, line 1
Financial Transactions

California Statements

Sacramento Self-Help Housing, Inc.

During the year ended December 31, 2017, the Organization leased real property
owned by a board member for the purpose of providing housing to chronically
homeless individuals. The total rent paid under the lease agreement for the year
was $30,180. The lease term was for a period of one-year.

Page 1

68-0217383

During the year ended December 31, 2017, one Board member lent $30,000 to the
Organization for the purpose of providing operating cash flow. The loan was
non-interest bearing, made at no cost to the Organization, and was repaid in full
by year end.

Statement 2

Form RRF-1, Part B, Line 5
Fundraisers Used

Danielle Collins

407 Heron Place

Davis, CA 95616
530-902-1486

Statement 3

Form RRF-1, Part B, Line 6
Government Agency That Provided Funding

County of Sacramento
2433 Marconi Avenue
Sacramento, CA 95821
916.875.0940

City of Citrus Heights
6237 Fountain Square Drive
Citrus Heights, CA 95621
916.725.2448

City of Elk Grove
8401 Laguna Palms Way
Elk Grove, CA 95858
916.683.7111

City of Rancho Cordova
2729 Prospect Park Drive
Rancho Cordova, CA 95670
916.851.8700

Sacramento Employment and Training Agency
925 Del Paso Boulevard

Sacramento, CA 95815
916.263.3800

Sacramento Steps Forward
1331 Garden Highway, Suite 100
Sacramento, CA 95833
916.577.9770

09:44AM



2017

Client 401

5/08/18

California Statements

Sacramento Self-Help Housing, Inc.

Statement 3 (continued)
Form RRF-1, Part B, Line 6
Government Agency That Provided Funding

Sacramento Housing and Redevelopment Agency
630 I Street

Sacramento, CA 95814
916.444.9210

Housing Authority of the County of San Joaquin
Carena Lane, Administrative Analyst
448 S. Center Street
PO Box 447

Stockton, CA 95201

Page 2

68-0217383

09:44AM













































































Note 1 - Basis of Presentation

Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Note 3 - Federal Loans





















Ann Land and Bertha Henschel Memorial Funds Application 

Sacramento Self-Help Housing – Housing Counseling at Friendship Park 

Annual Project Budget Summary 

 

Item Description Total Costs 

General Training Once a 

Month  

Required to train, educate, and 

update housing counselors with 

resources and housing opportunities 

in the city of Sacrament. 

$2,000 

Senior Councilor Specialist 

Training Twice a Quarter 

SHH sees a great increase in need 

for housing services from those that 

are seniors due to rent increase. 

This training will be focused on 

bringing in outside, partner, senior 

focused resources to train our 

volunteers.   

$1,800 

Family Councilor Specialist 

Training Twice a Quarter  

SSHH sees a great increase in need 

for housing services and 

homelessness navigation resources 

for families in the region. This 

training will be focused on bringing 

in outside, partner, family resources 

to train our volunteer. 

$1,800 

Supplies 

Documents and supplies are used by 

trainers/supervisor as well as by our 

housing counselors for each client. 

$400 

Housing Counseling Location, 

Outreach Office 3 days a week, 

Delany Center 1 day a week, 

Satellite Office and Outreach 

Events as needed.  

The offices at which our housing 

counselors assist clients are donated 

by Loaves and Fishes, the location 

of our satellite offices are rotating 

based on community need donated 

by local churches, businesses, and 

agencies.  

In-Kind Donation 

Computer 

Our computers are donated by 

Loaves and Fishes for housing 

counseling use. 

In-Kind Donation 

   

Total  $6,000 

 



ALBH	Grant	Application	2019
City	of	Sacramento

	Submitted	On:
October	28th,	2019	@	7:00pm

Organization	Name Stanford	Settlement	Neighborhood	Center

Physcial	Address 450	W	El	Camino	Ave
Sacramento
CA
95833

Mailing	address	different	from
physical	address?

No

Name Julie	Rhoten

Title Executive	Director

Phone	Number 916-927-1303

E-Mail	Address julie@stanfordsettlement.org

Name Julie	Rhoten

Phone	Number 916-927-1303

E-Mail	Address julie@stanfordsettlement.org

Name Julie	Rhoten

Title Executive	Director

Phone	Number 916-927-1303

E-Mail	Address julie@stanfordsettlement.org

Please	indicate	below	the
services	you	are	requesting

Food

Indicate	the	dollar	amount
requested	for	Food

$10,000

#	of	clients	that	will	be	served	by
the	Ann	Land	&	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds

7,500	(duplicated)	meals	and	snacks	to	be	served	to	300+	individual	participants

Total	Amount	Requested $10,000.00

The	amount	requested	will	be
applied	to	the	following.

On-going	Program

The	funds	requested	will	be	used
to	serve	the	following	(please
check	all	that	apply)

Families
Women
Children

Will	other	funds	supplement	Ann
Land	and	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds	request	for	this
program?

Yes



Briefly	explain We	will	continue	to	pursue	other	grant	funding	for	food	for	participants	in	the	Children''s	Program
and	Teen	Center,	as	our	number	of	participants	increase	and	the	cost	of	food	increases.

Did	you	lose	any	funding	in	2019
from	any	source?

No

Do	you	anticipate,	or	have	you
been	notified,	that	you	will	lose
funding	in	2020?

No

Are	you	aware	of,	or	do	you
anticipate	receiving,	any	new
sources	of	funding	in	2020,	for
example,	stimulus	or	other
funds?

Yes

Briefly	explain We	continue	to	pursue	new	funding	sources	for	agency	programs	year-round.

List	the	hours	that	programs
funded	by	Ann	Land	and	Bertha
Henschel	Memorial	Funds	will	be
available	to	clients.

Monday-Friday,	9:00	am-7:00	pm

Describe	the	geographic	service
area,	within	the	City,	when	you
will	spend	the	requested	funds.

All	program	participants	must	be	residents	of	zip	codes	95815,	95833,	95834,	or	95835.

Please	upload	a	brief	description
(no	more	than	two	pages)	of	the
program	or	service	for	which	you
are	requesting	funds.	Explain	how
the	program	or	service
addresses	the	mission	and
funding	priorities	of	the	Ann	Land
and	Bertha	Henschel	Memorial
Funds.

https://seam.ly/XkCinWn8

Mission	Statement	–
Organizational	Goal

Our	mission	is	to	help	build	healthy	communities	through	individual,	family,	and	neighborhood
services.	The	agency	impacts	the	overall	health,	well-being,	and	functioning	of	those	we	serve.
Specifically,	seniors	are	able	to	avoid	isolation	while	maintaining	their	independence;	teens	have
support	to	stay	in	school	and	stay	out	of	trouble;	children	are	able	to	bounce	back	from	the
effects	of	abuse	and	neglect,	demonstrating	resiliency.

Date	incorporated	or	otherwise
formed

7
1
1936

Briefly	describe	other	services
and	programs	your	organization
currently	provides.

Emergency	Assistance	provides	food	and	crisis	intervention	on	an	immediate/shortterm
basis.	The	Teen	Center	provides	youth	development	and	delinquency	prevention
services	to	youth	ages	12-17	years.	The	Children''s	Program	serves	children	ages	5-
11	years,	by	offering	social	development	groups.	The	Senior	Center	provides	healthy
aging	activities	to	prevent	isolation	and	early	institutionalization	for	elderly.	Community
Development	offers	linkages	for	residents	to	improve	community	conditions.

Private	or	Corporate	Donations
(Amount)

$346,949



Private	or	Corporate	Donations
(%	of	Total	Funding)

46%

United	Way	(Amount) $8,021

United	Way	(%	of	Total	Funding) 1%

SETA	(Amount) 0

SETA	(%	of	Total	Funding) 0

Federal	Assistance	(Amount) $73,688

Federal	Assistance	(%	of	Total
Funding)

10%

State	Assistance	(Amount) 0

State	Assistance	(%	of	Total
Funding)

0

City	or	County	Assistance	(not
from	the	Ann	Land	Bertha
Henschel	Memorial	Funds)
(Amount)

$275,000

City	or	County	Assistance	(not
from	the	Ann	Land	Bertha
Henschel	Memorial	Funds)	(%	of
Total	Funding)

37%

Grants	(Amount) $48,000

Grants	(%	of	Total	Funding) 6%

Ann	Land	and	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds	(Amount)

$8,600

Ann	Land	and	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds	(%	of	Total
Funding)

1%

Other	(briefly	describe	below)
(Amount)

Other	(briefly	describe	below)	(%
of	Total	Funding)

Total	Amount $751,658.00

Other	Income	Sources

The	names	of	the	members	of
your	organization’s	board	of
directors	and	of	your
organization’s	officers

https://seam.ly/S56EcJ8o



An	organizational	chart	or
description	of	your	organization’s
management	structure

https://seam.ly/4qC27wQ2

Verification	of	your
organization’s	not-for-profit
status	(letter	from	IRS	confirming
§	501(c)(3)	status)

https://seam.ly/U97CKIiR

Verification	that	your
organization	(1)	is	currently
registered	and	in	good	standing
with	the	Registry	of	Charitable
Trusts	maintained	by	the
California	Attorney	General	or	(2)
is	not	required	to	register.

https://seam.ly/saJ2VcHu

A	copy	of	your	organization’s
current	business	license	or	a
letter	from	the	City	of
Sacramento	Finance	Department
verifying	your	organization’s
exemption	from	the	City’s
business-operations	tax.	The
Sacramento	City	Code	requires
that	anyone	conducting	business
within	the	City	of	Sacramento
have	a	current	business	license
on	file	with	the	City.	The	City
issues	nonprofit	organizations	a
waiver	letter	in	lieu	of	a	business
license.	A	waiver	letter	can	be
obtained	at	the	Revenue	Counter
in	New	City	Hall,	First	Floor,	Room
1214.	Indicate	your
organization’s	non-profit	status
on	the	application	form.	There	is
no	charge	for	nonprofit
organizations.

https://seam.ly/olOAnPZj

A	copy	of	your	organization’s
most	recent	audit	and	any
corrective	actions	or
recommendations	suggested	by
the	auditor.	If	you	do	not	have	an
annual	audit,	please	explain	why.
You	must	also	provide	a	copy	of
your	organization’s	most-recent
annual	financial	statements,
signed	by	your	organization’s
treasurer	AND	by	the	preparer,
whether	a	CPA	or	bookkeeper

https://seam.ly/HgnJTtWY
https://seam.ly/7gfgJN40



A	budget	sheet	showing	how
awarded	funds	will	be	spent

https://seam.ly/ZTevadKF

Signature	Data First	Name:	Julie
Last	Name:	Rhoten
Email	Address:	julie@stanfordsettlement.org

Signed	at:	10/28/2019	04:00PM



 
 

 

Helping to build healthy communities through individual, family and neighborhood services  
FOR OVER 80 YEARS 

STANFORD SETTLEMENT NEIGHBORHOOD CENTER 
450 West El Camino Avenue ● Sacramento, CA  95833 

916-927-1303 office ● 916-922-1694 fax 
www.stanfordsettlement.org 

 
 
 
 

Description of Program Request for ALBH Funds 
 
 
Our request for funds is directly related to the Ann Land and Bertha Henschel Memorial 
Fund's mission and funding priorities by providing direct food aid to children and teens.  
 
Meals and snacks are a critical program component, especially for those who are living 
at or below poverty level. Children and teens arrive hungry after school, even if they had 
breakfast and lunch at school. Most of our teen participants stay at the Teen Center 
through the dinner hour, and will not have dinner when they get home. Finally, snacks 
and meals are critical during the summer months when youth lack access to meals 
provided at school. 
 
Program participants have been impacted by adverse childhood experiences including 
poverty, child abuse/neglect, parents with mental illness or addiction, and/or loss of a 
parent through separation, divorce, incarceration, or death. These experiences put 
youth at greater risk for getting into trouble and dropping out of school. 
 
Stanford Settlement specifically reaches out to young people whose behavior is 
preventing them from being successful at home, at school, or in the community. We 
increase protective factors and foster resiliency by providing a safe place to be, with 
meaningful ways to participate, and caring adults.  
 
Those who participate increase their self-esteem, learn how to avoid risk and conflict, 
develop problem-solving skills, and learn to work cohesively with a group. 
 
Our programs for children and teens also provide supportive social services to 
participants and their families, including transportation, crisis intervention, and 
advocacy. 
 
Requested funds will provide meals and snacks for over 300 children and teens ages 
5-17 years for one year, through our Children's Program, Teen Center, and Summer 
Day Camp. 
 



 
 

 

Helping to build healthy communities through individual, family and neighborhood services  

FOR OVER 80 YEARS 

STANFORD SETTLEMENT NEIGHBORHOOD CENTER 
450 West El Camino Avenue ● Sacramento, CA  95833 

916-927-1303 office ● 916-922-1694 fax 
www.stanfordsettlement.org 

 
Board of Trustees Roster 

2019-2020 

 
President Jim Bellotti Retired 
1st Vice President Alice Welborn Classy Glass Garden Art 
2nd Vice President Jackie Garman Attorney at Law, California Hospital Association 
Treasurer Omar Bardales Certified Public Accountant 
Secretary Kate Willcox Attorney, Boutin Jones 

 
 Ryan Abernethy Attorney, Weintraub Tobin 
 Courtney Beal Community Resource Liaison, SMUD 
 Tiffany Bellingrath Director of Sales, FOX40 
 Sue Brown Realtor, Coldwell Banker 
 Kayla Buck Business Solutions Manager, Roth Staffing 

Companies 
 Lisa Cameron Finance Specialist, SMUD 
 Edward Condon Executive Director, Region IX Headstart Association 
 Tom Dekker Retired, Bank of America 
 Beth Eldridge Branch Manager, Roth Staffing Companies 
 Barbara Geiger CFO, Parasec 
 Linda Gilbert Retired 
 Monica Haulman Program Manager, Sacramento Region Community 

Foundation 
 Sally Hite Marriage & Family Therapist 
 Frances Huizar Medical Office Service Coordinator, UCD Medical 

Center 
 Jake Ice Principal, Ice Insurance Agency, LLC 
 Christina Jordan Bank of America Merrill Lynch  
 Craig Kielborn Sacramento County Sherriff’s Department 
 Ken Luttrell CYS Structural Engineers 
 George Pounders VP Branch Manager, California Bank & Trust 
 Tracey Wiltshire Child Welfare & Attendance Coordinator,  

Twin Rivers Unified School District 
 
Revised October 25, 2019 



Stanford Settlement Neighborhood Center

Board of Trustees

Executive Director

Assistant Director

Childrens' Program Social Workers (2)

Estephany Ibarra and Daniella Ortega

Senior Center Activities Assistants (2)

Teen Center Social Workers (3)

Jolanna Araujo, Porscha Hightower, and Alejandra Juarez

Senior Center Activities Director

Melissa Corona

ExecutiveAssistant

Katrina Cainglet
Bookkeeper

Housekeeper

Maria Martinez

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

 

 

 

  19-20 Agency Org Chart 

Julie Rhoten 

Megumi Storms 

Rick Sprague and Dianne Washington 

Vacant 



 







Registrant Details
Entity type: Corporate Class as registered with the Secretary of State or based on founding & registration documents.

Organization Name: STANFORD SETTLEMENT, INC. IRS FEIN: 941550842
Entity Type: Public Benefit SOS/FTB Corporate/Organization Number: 0764271

Registry Status: Current Renewal Due/Exp. Date: 11/15/2019
RCT Registration Number: 018529 Issue Date: 6/30/2006
Record Type: Charity Registration Effective Date: 6/30/2006
Date This Status: 4/3/2019 Date of Last Renewal: 4/3/2019

Mailing Address
Street: 450 WEST EL CAMINO AVE
Street Line 2:
City, State Zip: SACRAMENTO CA 95833-2299

Filings & Correspondence
CT-550 2009 CT-550 2009

CT-550 2010 CT-550 2010

Founding Documents Founding Documents

RRF-1 2009 2009 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2009 2009 IRS Form 990

RRF-1 2008 2008 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2008 2008 IRS Form 990

RRF-1 2007 2007 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2007 2007 IRS Form 990

RRF-1 2006 2006 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2006 2006 IRS Form 990

RRF-1 2005 2005 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2006 2006 IRS Form 990

RRF-1 2004 2004 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2004 2004 IRS Form 990

RRF-1 2003 2003 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2003 2003 IRS Form 990

RRF-1 2002 2002 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2002 2002 IRS Form 990

RRF-1 2011 2011 RRF-1

RRF-1 2001 2001 RRF-1

RRF-1 2000 2000 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2000 2000 IRS Form 990

RRF-1 2012 2012 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2012 2012 IRS Form 990

RRF-1 2010 2010 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2010 2010 IRS Form 990

HOME  ABOUT  MEDIA  CAREERS  REGULATIONS  RESOURCES  PROGRAMS  CONTACT

http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=CT-550+2009.pdf&document_id=09027b8f800e91cf
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=CT-550+2010.pdf&document_id=09027b8f800e91d0
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=Founding+Documents.pdf&document_id=09027b8f800e91d1
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2009.pdf&document_id=09027b8f800e91d2
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2009.pdf&document_id=09027b8f800e91d3
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2008.pdf&document_id=09027b8f800e91d4
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2008.pdf&document_id=09027b8f800e91d5
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2007.pdf&document_id=09027b8f800e91d6
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2007.pdf&document_id=09027b8f800e91d7
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2006.pdf&document_id=09027b8f800e91d8
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2006.pdf&document_id=09027b8f800e91d9
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2005.pdf&document_id=09027b8f800e91da
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2006.pdf&document_id=09027b8f800e91db
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2004.pdf&document_id=09027b8f800e91dc
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2004.pdf&document_id=09027b8f800e91dd
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2003.pdf&document_id=09027b8f800e91de
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2003.pdf&document_id=09027b8f800e91df
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2002.pdf&document_id=09027b8f800e91e0
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2002.pdf&document_id=09027b8f800e91e1
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2011.pdf&document_id=09027b8f800e91e5
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2001.pdf&document_id=09027b8f800e91e2
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2000.pdf&document_id=09027b8f800e91e3
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2000.pdf&document_id=09027b8f800e91e4
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2012.pdf&document_id=09027b8f800e91e6
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2012.pdf&document_id=09027b8f800e91e7
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2010.pdf&document_id=09027b8f800e91e8
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2010.pdf&document_id=09027b8f800e91e9
https://oag.ca.gov/home
https://oag.ca.gov/about
https://oag.ca.gov/media
https://oag.ca.gov/careers
https://oag.ca.gov/meetings/public-participation
https://oag.ca.gov/services-info
https://oag.ca.gov/programs
https://oag.ca.gov/contact


Fee Notice Fee Notice

RRF-1 2013 2013 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2013 2013 IRS Form 990

Incomplete Form Notice 2015 Incomplete Form Notice 2015

RRF-1 2014 2014 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2014 2014 IRS Form 990

Miscellaneous Documents Miscellaneous Documents

IRS Form 990 2011 2011 IRS Form 990

RRF-1 2015 2015 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2015 2015 IRS Form 990

2016 Incomplete Form Notice 2016 Incomplete Form Notice

2016 RRF-1 2016 RRF-1

2016 IRS Form 990 2016 IRS Form 990

CT-550 Form RRF-1 Incomplete 2018

Form RRF-1 2018

Renewal Filing 2018

2016 RRF-1 2016 RRF-1

Form RRF-1 2017

CT-550 Form RRF-1 Incomplete 2017

IRS Form 990 Series 2017

Annual Renewal Data
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2001
Accounting Period End Date: 6/30/2002
Total Assets: $806,722.00
Total Revenue: $799,748.00
Filing Received Date: 11/5/2004
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2002
Accounting Period End Date: 6/30/2003
Total Assets: $829,361.00
Total Revenue: $737,607.00
Filing Received Date: 11/5/2004
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2003
Accounting Period End Date: 6/30/2004
Total Assets: $1,015,106.00
Total Revenue: $643,074.00
Filing Received Date: 10/8/2008
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2004
Accounting Period End Date: 6/30/2005
Total Assets: $1,027,185.00
Total Revenue: $664,317.00
Filing Received Date: 10/8/2008
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted

http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=Fee+Notice.pdf&document_id=09027b8f800e91ea
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=558019.PDF&document_id=09027b8f801fba3e
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=558020.PDF&document_id=09027b8f801fba3f
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=018529281547.pdf&document_id=09027b8f802372c0
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=764412.PDF&document_id=09027b8f8022e1f6
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=764413.PDF&document_id=09027b8f8022e1f7
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=42384.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80255465
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=868608.PDF&document_id=09027b8f8025cfd3
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=882736.PDF&document_id=09027b8f8025f8fe
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=889881.PDF&document_id=09027b8f80263c16
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=018529101197.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80294511
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=1169128.PDF&document_id=09027b8f802b326b
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=1169129.PDF&document_id=09027b8f802b326c
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=018529.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8037a798
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=471655.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80382952
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=465972.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8038006d
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=96773.pdf&document_id=09027b8f802bca29
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=282544.pdf&document_id=09027b8f803278d4
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=018529.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8031e179
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=2017+IRS+Form+990.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80349464


Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2005
Accounting Period End Date: 6/30/2006
Total Assets: $1,081,119.00
Total Revenue: $704,256.00
Filing Received Date: 1/19/2007
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2006
Accounting Period End Date: 6/30/2007
Total Assets: $1,037,627.00
Total Revenue: $574,911.00
Filing Received Date: 12/12/2007
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2007
Accounting Period End Date: 6/30/2008
Total Assets: $986,018.00
Total Revenue: $557,593.00
Filing Received Date: 11/18/2008
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2008
Accounting Period End Date: 6/30/2009
Total Assets: $2,298,889.00
Total Revenue: $1,238,223.00
Filing Received Date: 1/13/2010
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2009
Accounting Period End Date: 6/30/2010
Total Assets: $2,991,183.00
Total Revenue: $1,729,889.00
Filing Received Date: 1/26/2011
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2010
Accounting Period End Date: 6/30/2011
Total Assets: $2,615,089.00
Total Revenue: $726,901.00
Filing Received Date: 4/12/2012
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2011
Accounting Period End Date: 6/30/2012
Total Assets: $2,572,990.00
Total Revenue: $869,546.00
Filing Received Date: 12/11/2012
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2012
Accounting Period End Date: 6/30/2013
Total Assets: $2,426,554.00
Total Revenue: $655,260.00
Filing Received Date: 2/27/2014
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y



Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2013
Accounting Period End Date: 6/30/2014
Total Assets: $2,281,288.00
Total Revenue: $664,151.00
Filing Received Date: 12/1/2014
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2014
Accounting Period End Date: 6/30/2015
Total Assets: $2,197,708.00
Total Revenue: $706,943.00
Filing Received Date: 10/9/2015
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2015
Accounting Period End Date: 6/30/2016
Total Assets: $2,176,708.00
Total Revenue: $751,695.00
Filing Received Date: 10/17/2016
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2016
Accounting Period End Date: 6/30/2017
Total Assets: $2,341,831.00
Total Revenue: $972,132.00
Filing Received Date: 1/16/2018
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2017
Accounting Period End Date: 6/30/2018
Total Assets: $2,311,922.00
Total Revenue: $778,333.00
Filing Received Date: 1/17/2019
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N):

Related Registrations & Event Reports
The related records shown below depend on the record type being viewed:

Charity Registrations relate to Professional Fundraising Events which relate to Professional Fundraiser Registrations.
Raffle Registrations relate to Raffle Reports.
Click on the RCT Registration No to navigate to the related record.

Prereq Type: Prerequisite Relationship: Charity
Registrant: AUTOMOTIVE RECOVERY SERVICES INC
Registration No: E0009435 Registration Type: Fundraising Event Registration Status: Complete
Date Established: 12/30/2010 Association Date: 1/1/2011 Expiration Date: 12/31/2011
Prereq Type: Prerequisite Relationship: Charity
Registrant: AUTOMOTIVE RECOVERY SERVICES INC
Registration No: E0012840 Registration Type: Fundraising Event Registration Status: Complete
Date Established: 3/2/2012 Association Date: 1/1/2012 Expiration Date: 12/31/2012
Prereq Type: Prerequisite Relationship: Charity
Registrant: AUTOMOTIVE RECOVERY SERVICES INC
Registration No: E0019821 Registration Type: Fundraising Event Registration Status: Complete
Date Established: 3/10/2014 Association Date: 1/1/2014 Expiration Date: 12/31/2014
Prereq Type: Prerequisite Relationship: Charity
Registrant: AUTOMOTIVE RECOVERY SERVICES INC

http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Details.aspx?result=4872f0f1-31f5-46e8-be36-07fb3e0f1fc3
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Details.aspx?result=af0ad05a-bd1e-41c5-8f74-b9fa61e8ba1c
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Details.aspx?result=362dc746-972d-4890-a181-50e717723af2


Registration No: E0023410 Registration Type: Fundraising Event Registration Status: Complete
Date Established: 4/7/2015 Association Date: 1/1/2015 Expiration Date: 12/31/2015
Prereq Type: Prerequisite Relationship: Charity
Registrant: AUTOMOTIVE RECOVERY SERVICES INC
Registration No: E0027704 Registration Type: Fundraising Event Registration Status: Complete
Date Established: 7/14/2016 Association Date: 1/1/2016 Expiration Date: 12/31/2016
Prereq Type: Prerequisite Relationship: Charity
Registrant: AUTOMOTIVE RECOVERY SERVICES INC
Registration No: E0029105 Registration Type: Fundraising Event Registration Status: Complete
Date Established: 1/18/2017 Association Date: 1/1/2017 Expiration Date: 12/31/2017
Prereq Type: Prerequisite Relationship: Charity
Registrant: AUTOMOTIVE RECOVERY SERVICES INC
Registration No: E0031717 Registration Type: Fundraising Event Registration Status: Complete
Date Established: 12/22/2017 Association Date: 1/1/2018 Expiration Date: 12/31/2018
Prereq Type: Prerequisite Relationship: Charity
Registrant: AUTOMOTIVE RECOVERY SERVICES INC
Registration No: E0034755 Registration Type: Fundraising Event Registration Status: Awaiting Reporting
Date Established: 1/4/2019 Association Date: 1/1/2019 Expiration Date: 12/31/2019
Prereq Type: Prerequisite Relationship: Charity
Registrant: CAR PROGRAM INC.
Registration No: E0002074 Registration Type: Fundraising Event Registration Status: Complete
Date Established: 4/18/2008 Association Date: 1/1/2007 Expiration Date: 12/31/2007
Prereq Type: Prerequisite Relationship: Charity
Registrant: CAR PROGRAM INC.
Registration No: E0004927 Registration Type: Fundraising Event Registration Status: Complete
Date Established: 4/21/2009 Association Date: 1/1/2008 Expiration Date: 12/31/2008
Prereq Type: Prerequisite Relationship: Charity
Registrant: CAR PROGRAM INC.
Registration No: E0006008 Registration Type: Fundraising Event Registration Status: Complete
Date Established: 9/11/2009 Association Date: 1/1/2009 Expiration Date: 12/31/2009
Prereq Type: Prerequisite Relationship: Charity
Registrant: CAR PROGRAM INC.
Registration No: E0006810 Registration Type: Fundraising Event Registration Status: Complete
Date Established: 2/19/2010 Association Date: 1/1/2010 Expiration Date: 12/31/2010

http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Details.aspx?result=be1c8ab4-830d-4f13-a002-037a89531ed9
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Details.aspx?result=06f47b39-d03b-481b-b997-55e6f5d61778
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Details.aspx?result=7f0f5c1f-6615-4adc-b8bf-355609e5d9bb
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Details.aspx?result=48508efd-6f1f-4c9d-971b-1a4a2c7962c6
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Details.aspx?result=f85c04de-a5ae-4e48-9fcb-df086d988ff1
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Details.aspx?result=d3782c15-3e61-4949-bc3a-d267c1c31511
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Details.aspx?result=9ec8c8f0-9ab0-4fe7-a9a7-9cc97e606e13
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Details.aspx?result=b593819b-5335-4a4a-9054-4b3538619fa1
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Details.aspx?result=987f47d7-4cdc-4b0b-979d-e4c3970316a1


































 
 

 

Helping to build healthy communities through individual, family and neighborhood services  

FOR OVER 80 YEARS 

STANFORD SETTLEMENT NEIGHBORHOOD CENTER 
450 West El Camino Avenue ● Sacramento, CA  95833 

916-927-1303 office ● 916-922-1694 fax 
www.stanfordsettlement.org 

 
Stanford Settlement, INC 

Proposed Emergency Assistance Budget 
FY 2019-2020 

 
Revenues, Gains, and Other Support       
Restricted Contributions (ALBH)   $         10,000.00  
Unrestricted Contributions   

 Fund Raising   

 

General 
Support   $         15,000.00  

Total Revenue    $         25,000.00  

     
Expenses     
Salaries     $           9,866.00  
Payroll Tax    $               650.00  
Health Insurance    $               755.00  
State Unemployment   $                 40.00  
Workers Comp    $               130.00  

Total Salaries & Benefits   $         11,441.00  

     
Audit Fees    $               242.00  
D&O Insurance    $                 85.00  
Dues & Subscriptions   $                 80.00  
Equipment Rental & Maintenance   $               235.00  
General Liability Insurance   $               960.00  
Internet & Telephone   $                 10.00  
Maintenance & Janitorial Supplies   $               310.00  
Postage     $               105.00  
Printing & Publications   $               100.00  
Professional Fees    $               761.00  
Program Supplies - Food   $         10,000.00  
Property Tax    $               125.00  
Supplies & Duplication   $               190.00  
Utilities     $           1,095.00  

Total Operating Expenses   $         14,298.00  

Total Expenses    $         25,739.00  

Change in Asset    $             (739.00) 



ALBH	Grant	Application	2019
City	of	Sacramento

	Submitted	On:
October	28th,	2019	@	3:04pm

Organization	Name The	Salvation	Army

Physcial	Address 2550	Alhambra	Boulevard
Sacramento
CA
95817

Mailing	address	different	from
physical	address?

Yes

Mailing	Address P.O.	Box	340699
Sacramento
CA
95834

Name Jo	Anne	Bucsko

Title Director,	ELEV8	After	School	Program

Phone	Number 916.469.4639

E-Mail	Address Joanne.bucsko@usw.salvationarmy.org

Name Major	Ivan	Wild,	Del	Oro	Division	Commander

Phone	Number 916.563.3701

E-Mail	Address Ivan.wild@usw.salvationarmy.org

Name Karen	Hassler

Title Assistant	Controller

Phone	Number 916.563.3749

E-Mail	Address karen.hassler@usw.salvationarmy.org

Please	indicate	below	the
services	you	are	requesting

Food

Indicate	the	dollar	amount
requested	for	Food

$7000.00

#	of	clients	that	will	be	served	by
the	Ann	Land	&	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds

115	[	55	average	daily	After	School;	60	average	Summer	Day	Camp]

Total	Amount	Requested $7,000.00

The	amount	requested	will	be
applied	to	the	following.

On-going	Program

The	funds	requested	will	be	used
to	serve	the	following	(please
check	all	that	apply)

Children



Will	other	funds	supplement	Ann
Land	and	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds	request	for	this
program?

Yes

Briefly	explain TSA	ELEV8	After	School	Program	participates	in	California’s	Child	and	Adult	Care	Food	Program
[CACFP].	These	reimbursements	are	limited	to	those	qualified	to	receive	Free	and	Reduced
Lunches.	The	costs	of	providing	fresh	and	healthy	food	choices	to	our	students	continue	to	rise.
The	Salvation	Army	After	School	Program	is	committed	to	building	healthy	eating	habits,	and
continues	to	seek	out	opportunities	to	raise	additional	funding	for	the	additional	operational	costs.

Did	you	lose	any	funding	in	2019
from	any	source?

Yes

Briefly	explain Direct	donations	fell	10%	in	2019	while	expenditures	increased	by	12%.	TSA	is	struggling	to
financially	support	critical	programs	while	continuing	to	provide	the	level	of	care	our	children	and
families	deserve.

Do	you	anticipate,	or	have	you
been	notified,	that	you	will	lose
funding	in	2020?

Yes

Briefly	explain The	Salvation	Army	has	continued	to	experience	a	decrease	in	donations	as	with	many	other
Non-Profit	Organizations	in	the	last	few	years.	We	remain	cautiously	optimistic	that	the	economy
will	continue	to	rebound	and	faithful	donors	will	remain	committed.	Nonetheless,	even	our	most
stalwart	donors	often	do	not	donate	at	their	previous	level	and	new	burdens	are	placed	upon
limited	financial	resources.

Are	you	aware	of,	or	do	you
anticipate	receiving,	any	new
sources	of	funding	in	2020,	for
example,	stimulus	or	other
funds?

No

List	the	hours	that	programs
funded	by	Ann	Land	and	Bertha
Henschel	Memorial	Funds	will	be
available	to	clients.

After	School	Program	:	3:30	pm	–	6:00	pm	M,T,Th,F	;	Weds	1:00	pm	-	6:00	pm
Summer	Day	Camp:	7:30	pm	–	4	:30	pm	M-Th	in	June/July	[	5	weeks]

Describe	the	geographic	service
area,	within	the	City,	when	you
will	spend	the	requested	funds.

90%	of	our	After	School	Program	students	live	in	the	Oak	Park	Neighborhood;	however,	we	also
draw	students	from	both	Southeast	and	Downtown	Sacramento,	CA.

Please	upload	a	brief	description
(no	more	than	two	pages)	of	the
program	or	service	for	which	you
are	requesting	funds.	Explain	how
the	program	or	service
addresses	the	mission	and
funding	priorities	of	the	Ann	Land
and	Bertha	Henschel	Memorial
Funds.

https://seam.ly/3Am9qCFz



Mission	Statement	–
Organizational	Goal

Mission	Statement	:	The	Salvation	Army,	an	international	movement,	is	an	evangelical	part	of
the	Universal	Christian	Church.	Its	message	is	based	on	the	Bible.	Its	ministry
is	motivated	by	the	love	of	God.	Its	mission	is	to	preach	the	gospel	of	Jesus	Christ	and	to	meet
human	needs	in	His	name	without	discrimination.	

Date	incorporated	or	otherwise
formed

10
19
1914

Briefly	describe	other	services
and	programs	your	organization
currently	provides.

The	Alhambra	Pre	School	Program:	144	license	programs	for	low-income	families,	Social	Service
Programs:	Shelter	Services	124	bed	program;	32	apartment	Transitional	Housing;	Family	Service
&	Disaster	Services;	food,	rental	utilities,	est.	Adult	Rehabilitation	Center:	Drug	&	Alcohol
addictions	treatment	program;	Worship	Centers:	Three	church	centers	in	the	Sacramento	area.

Private	or	Corporate	Donations
(Amount)

$4,133,816

Private	or	Corporate	Donations
(%	of	Total	Funding)

61.68%

United	Way	(Amount) 0

United	Way	(%	of	Total	Funding) 0

SETA	(Amount) $60,500

SETA	(%	of	Total	Funding) .90%

Federal	Assistance	(Amount) $682,000

Federal	Assistance	(%	of	Total
Funding)

10.18%

State	Assistance	(Amount) 562,000

State	Assistance	(%	of	Total
Funding)

8.39%

City	or	County	Assistance	(not
from	the	Ann	Land	Bertha
Henschel	Memorial	Funds)
(Amount)

$301,000

City	or	County	Assistance	(not
from	the	Ann	Land	Bertha
Henschel	Memorial	Funds)	(%	of
Total	Funding)

4.49%

Grants	(Amount) $200,000

Grants	(%	of	Total	Funding) 2.98%

Ann	Land	and	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds	(Amount)

$6,100

Ann	Land	and	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds	(%	of	Total
Funding)

.09%



Other	(briefly	describe	below)
(Amount)

$3,000

Other	(briefly	describe	below)	(%
of	Total	Funding)

.04%

Total	Amount $6,701,630.00

Other	Income	Sources This	amount	reflects	sale	of	miscellaneous	equipment	and	supplies.

The	names	of	the	members	of
your	organization’s	board	of
directors	and	of	your
organization’s	officers

https://seam.ly/jHpPbBj1

An	organizational	chart	or
description	of	your	organization’s
management	structure

https://seam.ly/OgEca5qG

Verification	of	your
organization’s	not-for-profit
status	(letter	from	IRS	confirming
§	501(c)(3)	status)

https://seam.ly/BAQUV0EI

Verification	that	your
organization	(1)	is	currently
registered	and	in	good	standing
with	the	Registry	of	Charitable
Trusts	maintained	by	the
California	Attorney	General	or	(2)
is	not	required	to	register.

https://seam.ly/ld9GqCsD

A	copy	of	your	organization’s
current	business	license	or	a
letter	from	the	City	of
Sacramento	Finance	Department
verifying	your	organization’s
exemption	from	the	City’s
business-operations	tax.	The
Sacramento	City	Code	requires
that	anyone	conducting	business
within	the	City	of	Sacramento
have	a	current	business	license
on	file	with	the	City.	The	City
issues	nonprofit	organizations	a
waiver	letter	in	lieu	of	a	business
license.	A	waiver	letter	can	be
obtained	at	the	Revenue	Counter
in	New	City	Hall,	First	Floor,	Room
1214.	Indicate	your
organization’s	non-profit	status
on	the	application	form.	There	is
no	charge	for	nonprofit
organizations.

https://seam.ly/Trt0s7Mb



A	copy	of	your	organization’s
most	recent	audit	and	any
corrective	actions	or
recommendations	suggested	by
the	auditor.	If	you	do	not	have	an
annual	audit,	please	explain	why.
You	must	also	provide	a	copy	of
your	organization’s	most-recent
annual	financial	statements,
signed	by	your	organization’s
treasurer	AND	by	the	preparer,
whether	a	CPA	or	bookkeeper

https://seam.ly/KqDLGoMM

A	budget	sheet	showing	how
awarded	funds	will	be	spent

https://seam.ly/F8rg8UxF

Signature	Data First	Name:	Jo	Anne
Last	Name:	Bucsko
Email	Address:	Joanne.bucsko@usw.salvationarmy.org

Signed	at:	10/28/2019	12:01PM



  

 

 For nearly 25 years, The Salvation Army’s ELEV8 After School Program has provided a consistent, safe 
environment for students from Pre-Kindergarten through Eighth Grade. Paramount to the Program’s success 
is its strength in building connections to students’ wellness socially, emotionally and academically. The 
essential ingredient is our seasoned staff that is committed to providing nutritious meals and snacks, 
homework support, as well as physical fitness and Performing Arts Opportunities. ELEV8 ASP consistently 
builds equity in the Oak Park and surrounding Neighborhoods via partnerships between students, families and 
community resources to challenge and empower future problem-solvers.  

Daily schedules and consistent expectations within the classroom that are reinforced by staff and 
administration are the capstone to our safe harbor.  Developing relationships between staff, students and 
families provides a reliable foundation for students to flourish onsite as well as at home. By modeling a 
structured, dedicated time to schoolwork, not only good habits developed, but life skills are established.  
Additionally, a predictable classroom ecology enables students to focus on academic success as well as 
explore their interests within Visual and Performing Arts and Physical Education.  
   
Currently, more than 62% of the children enrolled at ELEV8 ASP qualify for the Free/ Reduced State of CA Food 
Program.  This statistic is a humbling reminder that that many of our students and families are products of 
many challenges including limited incomes from low-wage positions, homelessness, supporting multi-
generational homes and foster children. Noting that nearly two-thirds of our population may not receive 
another meal beyond our program aligns with providing and essential, daily need for a known, high-risk 
population as well as addressing the mission of the Ann Land and Bertha Henschel Memorial Fund. Further, 
these factors reinforce our vital role in providing a reliable, safe place for all children before, during and after 
the work and/or school day as well as summer hours. 

 

As one might notice from the location of our facility, The Salvation Army’s Alhambra Campus has been the 
physical cornerstone for the children of the Oak Park Neighborhood by providing safe, extended care before, 
during and after school for children that might otherwise be latch key or unsupervised daily for more than two 
decades. At the time, in response to the critical need for high quality, affordable alternatives for childcare 
neighborhood, The Salvation Army designed multi-dimensional After School and Summer Day Camp Programs 
in Oak Park. Although the Census demonstrates slow, steady improvements, the community remains 
impoverished and crime-ridden.  Our reality is our services will never be proportionate with our needs, as many 
children in our community are hungry, afraid to play outside, struggling academically and are not often 
exposed to opportunities for constructive use of their time out of school. 

 

Currently we lean into our well-constructed daily schedule to empower our students to embrace strategies for 
academic success alongside healthy lifestyle habits. Our curriculum includes Technology, Visual and 
Performing Arts as well as Physical Fitness and Recreation. We dedicate, on average, 30 to 40 minutes to 
Homework Support/ Reading to build background knowledge and strategies for future academic success.  
Furthermore, we incorporate classroom rotations that address Digital Learning and web-based applications 
within our Computer Lab, Physical Fitness/ Sportsmanship at our Community Center and Guided, productive 
game playing strategy for an additional 40 minutes at least three times weekly. Throughout the calendar year, 
we enrich and challenge our staff and students to demonstrate their Gifts and Talents via our ‘Electives.’ Our 
staff members creatively design, practice and deliver everything from Ribbon Dancing to Bucket Drums 
Percussion to Devotional Dance intermingled with outstanding choral performances. The students, staff and 
families invest months of dedication to develop a passion for performance with nearly every student. 
Foundational to our ELEV8 ASP success is being mindful of the need to connect our student demographic to 
a myriad of unexplored opportunities in learning whether digitally, physically, creatively and/or spiritually. 



 

Our Afterschool Program is currently licensed through the state of California under Title 22. The motivated 
staff and administration at ELEV8 ASP have decades of experience with children and background knowledge 
in education. Licensure mandates all staff to regularly renew policies and procedures that impact those who 
interface with children. Staff and Administration have First Aid/CPR Training, current immunizations, 
Mandated Reporter Training as well as certificates in a multitude of TSA policies and procedures to reinforce 
and prioritize safety for the entire community we serve. 

 

  
 

In 2019,  research conducted by Afterschool Alliance Organization [http://www.afterschoolalliance.org], 
suggests that, “..Adolescent years are a highly important developmental period and the second most critical 
period of brain development ... Young people need a continuous system of support through adolescence … 
creating the conditions that help them thrive and build the skills and attributes that will have a positive 
influence… Afterschool and summer learning programs are a part of this continuous system.” The assets 
beyond providing a safe place when school ends can be a gateway to reducing high risk behaviors such as 
crime, drug and alcohol abuse, absenteeism from school. Positive factors highlighted by the Afterschool 
Alliance research suggested the designing a, “Culture of compassion, acceptance and inclusivity…will foster 
increased self-esteem, positive peer relationships and, furthermore, greater engagement in school...” 
By engaging students within their own learning and modeling great habits of work ethic and courtesy, the 
children connect to assets of continuing their education and being a vital contributor to community at large in 
the future. ELEV8 After School Program aspires to challenge themselves to rise upon the shoulders of the 
community to ‘Do the most Good!’  

 
   

http://www.afterschoolalliance.org/


DAVID E. HUDSON
CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD
615 SLATERS LANE
ALEXANDRIA, VA 22313

KENNETH G. HODDER
180 E OCEAN BLVD
LONG BEACH, CA 90802

DOUGLAS RILEY
180 E OCEAN BLVD
LONG BEACH, CA 90802

DOUGLAS TOLLERUD
180 E OCEAN BLVD
LONG BEACH, CA 90802

STEPHEN C. SMITH
180 E OCEAN BLVD
LONG BEACH, CA 90802

LISA SMITH
180 E OCEAN BLVD
LONG BEACH, CA 90802

JOLENE K. HODDER
180 E OCEAN BLVD
LONG BEACH, CA 90802

THE SALVATION ARMY
(a California corporation)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS











  
 

The Salvation Army USA, 
Western Territory, 
Del Oro Division 
Financial Statements as of and for the Years Ended 
September 30, 2018 and 2017 and Supplemental 
Schedule for the Year Ended September 30, 2018, and  
Independent Auditors� Report, Independent Auditors� 
Report on Internal Control and Compliance, and 
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards for the Year 
Ended September 30, 2018 

 



THE SALVATION ARMY USA, WESTERN TERRITORY,  
DEL ORO DIVISION 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Page 

FINANCIAL SECTION: 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS� REPORT 1�2 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2018 AND 2017: 
 
Statements of Financial Position 3�4 
 
Statements of Activities 5�8 
 
Statements of Cash Flows 9 
 
Statements of Functional Expenses 10�11 
 
Notes to Financial Statements 12�19 

SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE:  
 
COUNTY OF ALAMEDA�SOCIAL SERVICES AGENCY�DEPARTMENT OF WORKFORCE  
 AND BENEFITS ADMINISTRATION�SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF  
 COUNTY OF ALAMEDA PROGRAM 21 
 
NOTES TO SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE 22�23 

COMPLIANCE SECTION: 

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS AND  
UNIFORM GUIDANCE COMPLIANCE REPORTS:  
 
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS� REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL  
 REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN  
 AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH  
 GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 25�26 
 
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS� REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR  
 FEDERAL PROGRAM; REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE; AND  
 REPORT ON SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS REQUIRED  
 BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE 27�29 
 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 30�32 
 
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 33�34 
 



SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 35�41 
 
CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN 42�43 
 
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS 44 



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS� REPORT 

The Salvation Army USA, Western Territory 
Del Oro Division: 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of The Salvation Army USA, 
Western Territory, Del Oro Division (the �Division�) (a division of the Western Territory of 
The Salvation Army, a California Corporation), which comprise the statements of financial 
position as of September 30, 2018 and 2017, and the related statements of activities, cash 
flows, and functional expenses for the years then ended and the related notes to the 
financial statements. 

Management�s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial 
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States 
of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control 
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditors� Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our 
audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in 
the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. 
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor�s 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the Division�s preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Division�s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide 
a basis for our audit opinion. 



- 2 - 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material 
respects, the financial position of the Division as of September 30, 2018 and 2017, and the 
changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Emphasis of Matter 

As discussed in Note 9 to the financial statements, the Division receives significant financial 
support from and has significant transactions with The Salvation Army USA, Western 
Territory, a related party. Accordingly, the accompanying financial statements may not 
necessarily be indicative of the financial position, changes in net assets, or cash flows that 
would have existed if the Division had operated as an unaffiliated entity. Our opinion is not 
modified with respect to this matter. 

Report on Supplemental Schedule 

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial 
statements as a whole. The supplemental schedule listed in the table of contents on 
page 21 is presented for the purpose of additional analysis as required by County of 
Alameda contract, Exhibit D, and is not a required part of the financial statements. This 
supplemental schedule is the responsibility of the Division�s management and was derived 
from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the 
financial statements. Such schedule has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied 
in our audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including 
comparing and reconciling such schedule directly to the underlying accounting and other 
records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, 
and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in 
the United States of America. In our opinion, such schedule is fairly stated in all material 
respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated 
February 11, 2019 on our consideration of the Division�s internal control over financial 
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to 
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over 
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Division�s internal 
control over financial reporting and compliance. 

 

February 11, 2019 



   

- 
3
 -

 



   

- 
4
 -

 



   

- 
5
 -

 

 



   

- 
6
 -

 



   

- 
7
 -

 

 



   

- 
8
 -

 



- 9 - 

THE SALVATION ARMY USA, WESTERN TERRITORY,
DEL ORO DIVISION

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018 AND 2017

2018 2017

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
  Change in net assets (1,399,769)$  3,880,653$   
  Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to
    net cash provided by (used in) operating activities:
    Depreciation and amortization 405,264       331,533       
    Provision for doubtful pledges receivable                  46,098         
    Gain on sale of vehicles and equipment (33,601)        (58,032)        
    Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
      Funds on deposit at Western Territory
        Headquarters 2,462,267     (5,082,998)   
      Accounts receivable (155,646)      31,192         
      Inventory 4,308           7,191           
      Prepaid expenses and deferred charges (25,410)        (124,273)      
      Accounts payable and accrued expenses (93,501)        604,012       
      Other liabilities 79,310         90,341         
      Payable to Western Territory Headquarters
        and Units (25)              (46,073)        

           Net cash provided by (used in)
             operating activities 1,243,197     (320,356)      

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
  Change in restricted cash 65,871         (13,695)        
  Purchase of vehicles and equipment (605,928)      (382,183)      
  Proceeds from sale of vehicles and equipment 40,006         7,755          

           Net cash used in investing activities (500,051)      (388,123)      

CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 743,146       (708,479)      

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS�Beginning of year 1,316,091     2,024,570    

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS�End of year 2,059,237$   1,316,091$  

SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION�
  Donations in-kind and contributed services 14,858,919$ 15,186,259$ 

See notes to financial statements.  



   

- 
1
0
 -

 

 



   

- 
1
1
 -

 

 



- 12 - 

THE SALVATION ARMY USA, WESTERN TERRITORY,  
DEL ORO DIVISION 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018 AND 2017 

1. PURPOSE AND ORGANIZATION 

The Salvation Army, founded in 1865, is a not-for-profit international religious organization 
and charitable movement organized and operated on a quasi-military pattern and is a 
branch of the Christian Church. Its membership includes officers (clergy); soldiers and 
adherents (laity); members of varied activity groups; and volunteers who serve as 
advisors, associates, and committed participants in its service functions. 

The Salvation Army USA, a California corporation (the �Territory�) is an organization 
exempt from income taxation under Section 501(a) as an entity described in 
Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and is exempt from 
state income taxes under related state provisions. 

The accompanying financial statements include all programs and operations of the Del Oro 
Division (the �Division�), which is one of 9 divisions in the Territory. The Territory is 
incorporated in the state of California with corporate headquarters (�THQ� or �Western 
Territory Headquarters�) located in Rancho Palos Verdes, California. The Territory�s centers 
of operation include adult rehabilitation programs, divisional headquarters, institutions, 
corps community centers, and service extension units. Each center has been authorized by 
corporate authority to maintain accounting records on a standardized financial system and 
to issue such reports and financial statements, as may be appropriate, locally. Because 
ownership, control, and fiduciary responsibility are maintained at the corporate level, the 
statements of financial position of the Division exclude the costs of land and buildings and 
related depreciation, charitable remainder trusts, legacies, and bequests designated for the 
Division. 

The Division conducts the operations of The Salvation Army in the states of California and 
Nevada. The Division operates a variety of programs, including corps community centers 
that provide spiritual, educational, and recreational services; homeless and emergency 
shelters; senior citizens� residences; children�s day care centers; adult rehabilitation 
centers and substance abuse centers; emergency disaster services; assistance for the 
poor, disabled, and retired; jail and hospital visitation; and camping activities. 

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Basis of Presentation�The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in 
accordance with the national accounting policies of The Salvation Army. These policies are 
consistent with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 



- 13 - 

In order to observe restrictions which donors place on grants and other gifts, as well as 
designations made by the Board of Directors, all assets, liabilities, and activities are 
accounted for in the following net asset classifications: 

Unrestricted Net Assets�Not subject to donor-imposed restrictions. Unrestricted net 
assets may be designated for specific purposes or locations by action of the Board of 
Directors. 

Temporarily Restricted Net Assets�Subject to donor-imposed stipulations that may be 
fulfilled by actions of the Division to meet the stipulations or become unrestricted at the 
date specified by the donor. 

Permanently Restricted Net Assets�Subject to donor-imposed stipulations that they 
be retained and invested permanently by The Salvation Army. The donors require The 
Salvation Army to use all or part of the investment return on these net assets for specified 
or unspecified purposes. At September 30, 2018 and 2017, there were no permanently 
restricted net assets in the accompanying financial statements. All permanently restricted 
funds received and pledged in 2018 or 2017 were transferred, or would be transferred, to 
THQ upon receipt (see Note 9). 

Cash and Cash Equivalents�For purposes of these financial statements, cash 
equivalents are defined as short-term, highly liquid investments that are both readily 
convertible to known amounts of cash and have maturities of three months or less at the 
date of purchase. 

Restricted Cash�Restricted cash represents funds received from the San Francisco 
Chronicle, Sacramento Municipal Utilities District, Southwest Gas Corporation, and Pacific 
Power through the Season of Sharing, SMUD, SHARE, and Project Help programs 
administered by the Division on behalf of the San Francisco Chronicle, Sacramento 
Municipal Utilities District, Southwest Gas Corporation, and Pacific Power. These programs 
serve to provide assistance to low-income households in California, which have financial 
difficulties in paying their utility bills or rent. 

Under the agreements for these programs, funds solicited for these programs are required 
to be maintained in a separate bank account and not comingled with other funds of the 
Division. 

Inventory�Inventory for goods purchased for resale is stated at the lower of 
weighted-average cost or market. Inventory for goods donated for resale is based on 
estimated fair value. 

Vehicles and Equipment�Vehicles and equipment are recorded at cost or, if donated, at 
fair market value at the date of donation, net of accumulated depreciation. 

Support and Revenue�All items of support and revenue are stated on an accrual basis. 
Contributions subject to donor-imposed restrictions are recorded as temporarily restricted 
support and are reclassified as unrestricted when the donor-imposed restriction has been 
fulfilled or the stipulated time period has elapsed. Contributions with restrictions that are 
met during the fiscal year are recorded as unrestricted support. Fees and grants from 
government agencies are recognized as the services and other conditions as outlined in the 
related grants are performed. Support and revenue are reported as increases in 
unrestricted net assets, unless use of the related assets is limited by donor-imposed 
restrictions that are not fulfilled in the accounting period. Gains and losses on investments 



- 14 - 

and other assets or liabilities are reported as increases or decreases in unrestricted net 
assets, unless their use is restricted by explicit donor stipulations or by law. All expenses 
are reported as decreases in unrestricted net assets. Expirations of temporary restrictions 
on net assets, that is, the expiration of the donor-imposed stipulated purpose or the 
elapsing of the specified time period, are reported as reclassifications of net assets. 

Pledges receivable that are scheduled to be received after the end of the reporting period 
are shown as increases in temporarily restricted net assets and are reclassified to 
unrestricted net assets when the purpose or time restriction is met. Pledges receivable 
subject to donor-imposed stipulations that the corpus be maintained permanently are 
recognized as increases in permanently restricted net assets. 

Donations in-Kind and Contributed Services�Material donations in-kind items used in 
Salvation Army Corps and unit programs and services (e.g., vehicles, free rent, equipment, 
etc.) and donated goods distributed (e.g., clothing, furniture, food stuffs, etc.) are 
recorded at their estimated fair market value as income and expense at the time the items 
are distributed. 

Contributed vehicles and equipment are recorded at fair value at the date of donation as 
unrestricted support and revenue, unless the use of such contributed assets is limited by a 
donor-imposed restriction. 

Contributed services are reported as contributions at their fair value if such services create 
or enhance nonfinancial assets, would have been purchased if not provided by 
contribution, require specialized skills, and are provided by individuals possessing such 
specialized skills. In addition, the appropriate value of donated services of individuals is 
recorded as an expense when such services qualify for cost reimbursement from 
third-party providers. The Division received contributed services for its various programs or 
activities that are provided by The Salvation Army. These contributed services do not meet 
the requirements; therefore, they are excluded from the statements of activities. 

Expenses�All expenses are stated on the accrual basis and presented in the statements 
of activities and statements of functional expenses. 

Depreciation�Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the 
estimated service lives of 5 years to 10 years. Depreciation is charged on a monthly 
convention as assets are acquired and disposed. 

Depreciation is also provided on equipment used in cost reimbursement programs that 
provide for reimbursement of depreciation by a third-party payer. 

Use of Estimates�The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to 
make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial 
statements and accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from these estimates. 

Recent Accounting Pronouncement�In August 2016, the Financial Accounting 
Standards Board issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2016-14, Not-for-Profit 
Entities (Topic 958). The objective of this update is to improve the presentation of financial 
statements of not-for-profit entities in order to provide more useful information to donors, 
grantors, and other users. The standard requires not-for-profit entities to present two 
classes of net assets (net assets with and without donor restrictions) on the face of the 
financial statements and requires enhanced disclosures about board-designated amounts, 



- 15 - 

composition of net assets with donor restrictions, the availability of financial assets to meet 
cash needs for general expenditures, amounts of expenses both by their natural 
classification and their functional expense, and underwater endowment funds. The 
provisions of ASU No. 2016-14 are effective for annual periods beginning after 
December 15, 2018. The Division is currently evaluating the impact on the financial 
statements. 

3. VEHICLES AND EQUIPMENT 

Vehicles and equipment are summarized by major classification as follows at 
September 30, 2018 and 2017: 

2018 2017

Vehicles 3,708,597$  3,478,886$  
Equipment 2,080,529    1,863,449

           Total vehicles and equipment 5,789,126    5,342,335    

Less accumulated depreciation (4,283,608)   (4,031,076)   

Total vehicles and equipment�net 1,505,518$  1,311,259$   

4. NET ASSET CLASSIFICATIONS 

Temporarily restricted net assets will become available for use based on the following at 
September 30, 2018 and 2017: 

2018 2017

Social programs 3,898,165$ 749,313$  

5. NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM RESTRICTIONS 

Net assets were released from donor restriction by incurring expenses satisfying the 
restricted purposes or by occurrence of other events specified by the donors during the 
years ended September 30, 2018 and 2017, as follows: 

2018 2017

Purpose restrictions accomplished�social programs 749,313$ 326,056$  

6. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 

Legal Proceedings�From time to time, the Division is involved in various claims and 
legal actions arising in the ordinary course of business. In the opinion of management, the 
ultimate disposition of these matters will not have a material adverse effect on the 
Division�s financial position, changes in net assets, or cash flows, as financial responsibility 
remains with THQ. 



- 16 - 

7. LEASES 

The Division is committed under noncancelable operating leases (with initial or remaining 
lease terms in excess of one year), principally for its thrift store operations and other 
program operations. Total rent expense associated with these leases was $337,863 and 
$268,305 for the years ended September 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively. 

Future minimum lease payments at September 30, 2018 and 2017, are as follows: 

Years Ending
September 30

2019 316,874$ 
2020 136,360  
2021 73,000    
2022 85,000    
2023 88,000   

Total 699,234$  

8. CONCENTRATIONS OF CREDIT RISK 

Certain financial instruments potentially subject the Division to concentrations of credit 
risk. Those financial instruments consist primarily of cash and cash equivalents, restricted 
cash, and receivables. The Division places its cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash 
with high-credit-quality financial institutions. Concentrations of credit risk with respect to 
receivables are generally diversified due to the large number of entities, government 
agencies, and individuals composing the Division�s program and donor base. The Division 
performs credit evaluations and writes off uncollectible amounts as they become known. 

9. TRANSACTIONS WITH WESTERN TERRITORY HEADQUARTERS 

Funds on Deposit at Western Territory Headquarters�The receipt of donations is 
centralized at Western Territory Headquarters. These funds are deposited daily into 
divisional accounts at Western Territory Headquarters and are available to be transferred 
to the Division, as needed. Income is earned and distributed to the Divisional accounts 
based on the monthly account balances for these funds. Interest is paid on these fund 
balances based on an interest rate formula approved by the board of directors. During the 
year ended September 30, 2018, the interest rate ranged from 1.232% to 2.114% and 
was 2.114% at September 30, 2018. During the year ended September 30, 2017, the 
interest rate ranged from 0.531% to 1.232% and was 1.232% at September 30, 2017. 



- 17 - 

Other Funds Controlled by Western Territory Headquarters�Each constituent unit of 
The Salvation Army raises funds from various sources, including bequests, trusts, and 
donor-restricted contributions. These funds are controlled, and invested by the Board of 
Directors of the Territory in accordance with applicable donor restrictions and distributed in 
accordance with such restrictions. Accordingly, the funds are not reflected in the 
accompanying financial statements. While not legally bound to return these funds to the 
operating units, this has been the practice of the Territory. At September 30, 2018 and 
2017, assets held in trust for the Division consist of the following: 

2018 2017

Unrestricted 31,266,996$ 22,355,202$ 
Temporarily restricted 6,878,529     7,848,250     
Permanently restricted 12,958,374   12,758,275   

Total 51,103,899$ 42,961,727$  

Income earned on assets is distributed to the operating command unit accounts on the 
basis of a stated percentage of the monthly account balances during the years ended 
September 30, 2018 and 2017. Capital trust and special board-designated program trusts 
earned 2% and 0% during the years ended September 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively. 
Board-designated trust income reserves (program trusts) earned 4.5% and 2% during the 
years ended September 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively. Program reserves/support funds 
earned 4.5% and 2% during the years ended September 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively. 
Permanently restricted trusts earned 4.5% during the years ended September 30, 2018 
and 2017. These rates are determined annually by the board of directors. 

Funds held at Western Territory Headquarters are invested in various investment vehicles, 
including domestic and international equities, real assets, and fixed income. Such 
investments are exposed to various risks, including interest rate risk, credit risk, and 
overall market volatility. Accordingly, it is possible that changes in the value of these 
investments will occur in the near term and such changes could materially impact the 
value of these amounts held at Western Territory Headquarters and their intent and ability 
to return such funds to the Division. 

Land and Buildings�Title to land and buildings is held by Western Territory 
Headquarters. These assets are made available to the Division, which has responsibility for 
control and maintenance, but are not included in the statements of financial position of the 
Division. 



- 18 - 

Land and buildings held on behalf of the Division by Western Territory Headquarters are 
summarized by major classifications as follows at September 30, 2018 and 2017: 

2018 2017

Land 17,845,788$   17,922,818$   
Buildings 121,771,261   114,960,222  

           Total land and buildings 139,617,049   132,883,040   

Less accumulated depreciation (31,726,065)   (29,490,015)  

Total land and buildings�net 107,890,984$ 103,393,025$  

Income from Western Territory Headquarters�Income from Western Territory 
Headquarters includes funding for capital projects, programs and administrative costs, and 
interest income and other distributions from funds held at Western Territory Headquarters. 
Funds for capital projects are transferred to the Division after formal approval has been 
received from Western Territory Headquarters. Donor-restricted contributions are 
distributed to the Division as donor-restricted funds are expended for a specified program 
or purpose. 

During the years ended September 30, 2018 and 2017, the Division received income from 
Western Territory Headquarters related to the following: 

2018 2017

Income for capital projects and other distributions 643,892$    469,935$      
Income for programs and administrative needs 2,973,034   9,870,929     
Interest income on funds held at THQ 3,286,344   6,924,229     

Total 6,903,270$ 17,265,093$  

The Division leases certain vehicles through a master lease agreement maintained by the 
Territory. The Territory provides the Division with a vehicle replacement grant to help 
cover the costs of leasing the vehicles under this agreement, which is recorded as income 
for programs and administrative needs in the table above. Total grants associated with 
these leases were $84,404 and $138,744 for the years ended September 30, 2018 and 
2017, respectively. The Division recorded expenses associated with these vehicle leases 
totaling $743,597 and $759,224 for the years ended September 30, 2018 and 2017, 
respectively, which are included in program and supporting services expenses in the 
accompanying statements of activities and travel and transportation expenses in the 
statements of functional expenses. 

Transfer to Western Territory Headquarters�Transfer to Western Territory 
Headquarters includes restricted contributions received by the Division for future capital 
projects and other contributions. During the years ended September 30, 2018 and 2017, 
the Division transferred $644,053 and $1,054,635, respectively, of capital contributions. 



- 19 - 

Transactions with Western Territory Headquarters�The Division is required to share 
10% of certain unrestricted revenues as dictated by The Salvation Army policy with 
Western Territory Headquarters to fund administrative support and supervisory costs for 
this Division. In addition, Western Territory Headquarters assesses the Division for various 
expenses, which are allocated throughout the Territory. All such expenses are included in 
the statements of activities. For the years ended September 30, 2018 and 2017, the 
assessments to the Division totaled: 

2018 2017

Employee pension assessment 1,221,179$ 1,244,178$

Officer assessments 5,361,679$ 5,093,729$

Workers� compensation insurance 792,344$    823,119$    
Automobile insurance 210,010      234,009      
General and other insurance 1,231,333   1,213,701  

Total insurance 2,233,687$ 2,270,829$

Communication assessment 244,056$    -     $  

Information technology assessment 461,592$    369,996$  

NHQ/IHQ assessment 573,012$    735,400$  

CFOT assessment 382,008$    378,843$  

Fundraising initiatives assessment 965,973$    835,682$   

10. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

The Division has evaluated subsequent events through February 11, 2019, the date the 
financial statements were available to be issued. 

* * * * * *  



- 20 - 

SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE 

COUNTY OF ALAMEDA�SOCIAL SERVICES AGENCY 
DEPARTMENT OF WORKFORCE AND BENEFITS ADMINISTRATION 

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF COUNTY OF ALAMEDA PROGRAM 



- 21 - 

THE SALVATION ARMY USA, WESTERN TERRITORY,
DEL ORO DIVISION

SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE
COUNTY OF ALAMEDA�SOCIAL SERVICES AGENCY
DEPARTMENT OF WORKFORCE AND BENEFITS ADMINISTRATION
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF COUNTY OF ALAMEDA PROGRAM
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

Grantor/Program Pass-Through County
CFDA# Title Pass-Through Grantor Grantor # Expenditures

COUNTY OF ALAMEDA:
N/A   Shelter Program and

    Support Services County of Alameda�Social Services Agency 900701 261,649$ 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES
  OF COUNTY OF
  ALAMEDA AWARDS 261,649$ 

See notes to supplemental schedule.  



- 22 - 

THE SALVATION ARMY USA, WESTERN TERRITORY, 
DEL ORO DIVISION 

NOTES TO SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018 

1. PURPOSE OF THE SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE 

The accompanying County of Alameda�Social Services Agency�Department of Workforce 
and Benefits Administration (�County of Alameda�) Schedule of Expenditures of County of 
Alameda Program (the �Schedule�) is a supplementary schedule to the financial statements 
of The Salvation Army USA, Western Territory, Del Oro Division (the �Division�), and is 
presented for the purpose of additional analysis. The Schedule includes the pass through 
grant activity of the Division under the contract with the County of Alameda for the year 
ended September 30, 2018. The information in this Schedule is presented in accordance 
with the requirements of Exhibit D to the contract dated September 19, 2017 with the 
County of Alameda (the �Contract�). Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion 
of the activities of the Division, it is not intended to, and does not, present either the 
financial position, changes in net assets, or cash flows of the Division. 

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Basis of Presentation: Financial Statements�The accompanying financial statements 
have been prepared in accordance with the national accounting policies of The Salvation 
Army. These policies are consistent with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America. 

Basis of Presentation: Schedule�The Expenditures reported on the Schedule are 
prepared on the accrual basis of accounting. Such expenditures are recognized following 
the cost principles contained in the Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) 
Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements 
for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance), wherein certain types of expenditures are not 
allowable or are limited as to reimbursement. The Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance 
and pass-through grantor identifying numbers are presented. 

The County of Alameda funds are not reported in the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal 
Awards. 



- 23 - 

3. ROLLFORWARD OF EXPENDITURES 

The following is our reconciliation of contract revenue and contract expenditures recorded 
under the Contract in the Division�s audited financial statements for the year ended 
September 30, 2018 to the grant period ended June 30, 2018. 

Total contract revenue included in audited financial statements for the
  year ended September 30, 2018 261,649$ 
Less contract revenue from July 1, 2018, through September 30, 2018 38,269     

             
Add contract revenue from July 1, 2017, through September 30, 2017              

Total contract revenue for July 1, 2017, through June 30, 2018 223,380$ (1)

Total contract expenses included in audited financial statements for the
  year ended September 30, 2018 261,649$ 
Less contract expenses from July 1, 2018, through September 30, 2018 38,269     
Add contract expenses from July 1, 2017, through September 30, 2017             

Contract expenses for the year ended June 30, 2018 223,380$ 

(1) Contract revenue for the year ended June 30, 2018:
       County of Alameda�Social Services Agency: Shelter Services Contract #900701 223,380$  



- 24 - 

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS AND 
UNIFORM GUIDANCE COMPLIANCE REPORTS 



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS� REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT 
AUDITING STANDARDS 

The Salvation Army USA, Western Territory, 
Del Oro Division: 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the 
financial statements of The Salvation Army USA, Western Territory, Del Oro Division (the 
�Division�) (a division of the Western Territory of The Salvation Army, a California 
Corporation), which comprise the statement of financial position as of September 30, 2018, 
and the related statements of activities, cash flows, and functional expenses for the year 
then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report 
thereon dated February 11, 2019. 

Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the 
Division�s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our 
opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Division�s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on 
the effectiveness of the Division�s internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not 
allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material 
weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there 
is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity�s financial statements 
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is 
a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a 
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with 
governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control 
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, 
during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to 
be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been 
identified. 



- 26 - 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Division�s financial statements 
are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain 
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which 
could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. 
However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of 
our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests 
disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported 
under Government Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control 
and compliance and the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Division�s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral 
part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in 
considering the Division�s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication 
is not suitable for any other purpose. 

 

February 11, 2019 



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS� REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL 
PROGRAM; REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE; AND REPORT 
ON SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS REQUIRED BY THE 
UNIFORM GUIDANCE

The Salvation Army USA, Western Territory, 
Del Oro Division: 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 

We have audited The Salvation Army USA, Western Territory, Del Oro Division�s (the 
�Division�) (a division of the Western Territory of The Salvation Army, a California 
Corporation) compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in the U.S. 
Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Compliance Supplement that could have a direct 
and material effect on each of the Division�s major federal programs for the year ended 
September 30, 2018. The Division�s major federal programs are identified in the summary 
of auditor�s results section of the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. 

Management�s Responsibility 

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms 
and conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs. 

Auditors� Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the Division�s major 
federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to 
above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial 
audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of 
the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations 
(CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit 
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform 
Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that 
could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit 
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Division�s compliance with those 
requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the 
circumstances. 

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for 
each major federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of 
the Division�s compliance. 



- 28 - 

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

In our opinion, the Division complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance 
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its 
major federal programs for the year ended September 30, 2018. 

Other Matters 

The results of our auditing procedures disclosed instances of noncompliance, which are 
required to be reported in accordance with the Uniform Guidance and which are described in 
the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs as items 2018-001 to 2018-
005. Our opinion on each major federal program is not modified with respect to these 
matters. 

The Division�s responses to the noncompliance findings identified in our audit are described 
in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. The Division�s responses 
were not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, 
accordingly, we express no opinion on the responses. 

Report on Internal Control over Compliance 

Management of the Division is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal 
control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In 
planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered the Division�s internal 
control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and 
material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on 
compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over 
compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not 
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Division�s internal control over compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a 
control over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of 
performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a 
type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness 
in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material 
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be 
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal 
control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control 
over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less 
severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough 
to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described 
in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in 
internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant 
deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that 
have not been identified. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, we identified certain 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance, described in the accompanying Schedule of 
Findings and Questioned Costs as items 2018-001 and 2018-005, that we consider to be 
significant deficiencies. 



- 29 - 

The Division�s responses to the internal control over compliance findings identified in our 
audit are described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. The 
Division�s responses were not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of 
compliance and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the responses. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope 
of our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on 
the requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any 
other purpose. 

Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by the Uniform 
Guidance 

We have audited the financial statements of the Division as of and for the year ended 
September 30, 2018, and have issued our report thereon dated February 11, 2019, which 
contained an unmodified opinion on those financial statements. Our audit was conducted for 
the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole. The 
accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of 
additional analysis as required by the Uniform Guidance and is not a required part of the 
financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived 
from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the 
financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied 
in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including 
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other 
records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, 
and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in 
the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditure of federal awards 
is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole. 

 

March 14, 2019 



   

- 
3
0
 -

 

 



   

- 
3
1
 -

 



   

- 
3
2
 -

 



- 33 - 

THE SALVATION ARMY USA, WESTERN TERRITORY,  
DEL ORO DIVISION 

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018 

1. PURPOSE OF THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (the �Schedule�) is a 
supplementary schedule to the financial statements of The Salvation Army USA, Western 
Territory, Del Oro Division (the �Division�), and is presented for the purpose of additional 
analysis. The Schedule includes the federal grant activity of the Division under programs of 
the federal government for the year ended September 30, 2018. The information in this 
Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirement of Office of Management and 
Budget (OMB) Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform 
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards 
(Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the activities 
of the Division, it is not intended to, and does not, present either the financial position, 
changes in net assets, or cash flows of the Division. 

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. 
Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform 
Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to 
reimbursement. Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) numbers are presented for 
those federal programs for which numbers are available. Pass-through entity identifying 
numbers are presented where available. 

3. BASIS OF PRESENTATION�FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the 
national accounting policies of The Salvation Army. These policies are consistent with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

4. SUB-RECIPIENT 

The Division is the sub-recipient of federal funds, which have been reported as 
expenditures and listed as federal pass-through funds. 

5. NONCASH FEDERAL AWARDS 

During the year ended September 30, 2018, the Division did not receive nonmonetary 
assistance. 



- 34 - 

6. RELATIONSHIP TO FEDERAL AND STATE FINANCIAL REPORTS 

The regulations and guidelines governing the preparation of Federal and state financial 
reports vary by state and Federal agency and among programs administered by the same 
agency. Accordingly, the amounts reported in the Federal and state financial reports do not 
necessarily agree with the amounts reported in the accompanying Schedule of 
Expenditures of Federal Awards, which is prepared as explained in Notes 1 and 2 above. 

7. INDIRECT RATE 

The Division has not elected to use the 10% de minimis indirect cost rate. 

* * * * * *  



- 35 - 

THE SALVATION ARMY USA, WESTERN TERRITORY,  
DEL ORO DIVISION 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018 

SECTION I�SUMMARY OF AUDITORS� RESULTS 

Financial Statements 

Type of auditors� report issued: Unmodified 

Internal control over financial reporting: 

� Material weakness(es) identified? __ yes _X no 

� Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are not  
considered to be material weaknesses? __ yes _X none reported 

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? __ yes _X no 

Federal Awards 

Internal control over major federal programs: 

� Material weakness(es) identified? __ yes _X no 

� Significant deficiency (ies) identified that are 
not considered to be material weaknesses? _X yes __ none reported 

Type of auditors� report issued on compliance for 
major federal programs: Unmodified 

� Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in accordance with the 
Uniform Guidance, at 2 CFR Part 
200.516(a)? _X yes __ no 

Identification of major federal programs: 

CFDA
Name of Federal Program or Cluster Number

VA Homeless Veterans Providers Grant and Per Diem 64.024
Child Care Development Fund Cluster 93.575, 93.596  

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and  
type B programs: $_750,000_________ 

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? _X yes __ no 



- 36 - 

SECTION II�FINDINGS RELATING TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS REPORTED IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

No matters were reportable. 

SECTION III�FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS RELATING TO FEDERAL AWARDS 

See accompanying pages 37 through 41. 



- 37 - 

REFERENCE: 2018-001 (SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCY) 
CHILD CARE AND DEVELOPMENT FUND CLUSTER (CFDA # 93.575, 93.596) 
FEDERAL AGENCY: U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 
STATE AGENCY: STATE OF CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION (�CDE�) 
LOCATIONS: SACRAMENTO CHILD DEVELOPMENT CENTER (�SACRAMENTO�) 

Criteria�Eligibility and Recertification Process�Family files should contain all required 
elements to support eligibility verification, including the information collected and documented 
to determine that the family and/or child meets the eligibility criteria. The signature of the 
program director on an application for services attests that the criteria has been met. Family 
files shall be recertified at least once each contract period and at intervals not to exceed 
12 months (or six months for children who are deemed to be �at risk�). 

Condition/Cause�The program directors are required to collect information and 
documentation to determine that the family and/or child meets the eligibility criteria. The 
program directors are also required to sign the documentation/application to attest that the 
eligibility criteria has been met and recertify the eligibility periodically, as specified above. 
During the course of our audit, of the 23 randomly selected family files, we identified three 
family files related to Sacramento in which the family files did not contain certain required 
documentation and/or were missing the signature of the program director attesting that the 
eligibility criteria had been met. We also identified two family files related to Sacramento in 
which the family files were not recertified within 12 months of the original certification date (or 
six months for children who are deemed to be �at risk�). Exceptions were due to improper 
monitoring and tracking of family files. 

A similar finding was included in the prior year audit report (Reference: 2017-002). 

Effect�This deficiency may result in an incomplete family file to support that the family and/or 
child has met the eligibility criteria, and therefore, the Federal and state agencies may not 
reimburse for the attendance days claimed for the family and/or child in question. 

Questioned Costs�Questioned costs cannot be determined. 

Recommendation�The program directors should enhance existing internal controls over the 
review and retention of required documents to ensure the family files are complete, reviewed, 
and certified. Further, the program directors should enhance internal control over the tracking 
of upcoming recertification due dates to ensure recertification is performed timely. 

Views of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Actions�Management of 
Sacramento will emphasize the importance of ensuring that recipient eligibility is properly 
determined and documented on a timely basis, and that only eligible recipients receive services 
under the contract. On a monthly basis, management of Sacramento will review family files for 
completeness and make any needed adjustments or corrections on a timely basis as well as 
maintain a log of when family files were certified to ensure recertification is performed timely. 
Division management will oversee this process to ensure it is being completed by management 
of Sacramento. 

Also see �Corrective Action Plan�.  



- 38 - 

REFERENCE: 2018-002 (DEFICIENCY) 
CHILD CARE AND DEVELOPMENT FUND CLUSTER (CFDA # 93.575, 93.596) 
FEDERAL AGENCY: U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 
STATE AGENCY: STATE OF CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION (�CDE�) 
LOCATIONS: BOOTH MEMORIAL CHILD DAY CARE CENTER (�BOOTH�) 

Criteria�Attendance Tracking and Reporting Process�The Division receives 
reimbursement from the CDE based on the accuracy of their reporting of attendance and 
expenditure reports. The monthly attendance schedule should agree to the daily sign-in/sign-
out sheets, which are the primary source document for audit and reimbursement purposes. The 
daily sign-in/sign-out sheets must document the child�s arrival and departure via authorized 
signatures. Further, the attendance and expenditure reports submitted to the CDE should agree 
to the monthly attendance schedule. 

Condition/Cause�Two main documents are used in the process of tracking attendance for all 
students. The first document is a daily sign-in/sign-out sheet and the second document is a 
monthly attendance schedule, which is generated from the daily sign-in/sign-out sheets and is 
used for reporting purposes by administration. During the course of our audit, of the 
40 non-statistically selected daily sign-in/sign-out sheets, we identified two instances related to 
Booth in which there were differences between the daily sign-in/sign-out sheets and the 
recorded and reported attendance figures per the monthly attendance schedule. Inconsistencies 
existed between these two documents due to errors in transferring the attendance figures from 
the daily sign-in/sign-out sheets to the monthly attendance schedule. 

A similar finding was included in the prior year audit report (Reference: 2017-003). 

Effect�The Federal and state agencies may disallow the attendance recorded and reported, 
and therefore, may reduce reimbursement. 

Questioned Costs�Questioned costs cannot be determined. 

Recommendation�The program directors should enhance existing internal controls over the 
preparation and review of the required monthly attendance schedule against the daily sign-
in/sign-out sheets to ensure that the monthly attendance schedule is accurate and complete. 

Views of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Actions�Management of Booth 
will emphasize the importance of ensuring that the daily sign-in/sign-out sheets are accurate 
and match the records that are recorded in the monthly attendance schedule. On a monthly 
basis, management of Booth will review the daily sign-in/sign-out sheets and monthly 
attendance schedule to ensure the records match. Division management will oversee this 
process to ensure it is being completed by management of Booth. 

Also see �Corrective Action Plan�. 



- 39 - 

REFERENCE: 2018-003 (DEFICIENCY) 
CHILD CARE AND DEVELOPMENT FUND CLUSTER (CFDA # 93.575, 93.596) 
FEDERAL AGENCY: U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 
STATE AGENCY: STATE OF CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION (�CDE�) 
LOCATIONS: SACRAMENTO AND BOOTH  

Criteria�Excused Absences Verification and Tracking Process�The Division receives 
reimbursement from the CDE based on the accuracy of their reporting of attendance and 
expenditure reports. Excused absences are allowed to be claimed as attendance days for 
reimbursement. Excused absences must be due to illness or quarantine of the child or parent, 
family emergency, court-ordered visitations or a reason that is clearly in the best interest of the 
child. Further, no more than 10 excused absences �in the best interest of the child� (�best 
interest absences�) can be claimed during the CDE contract period (July 1, 2017 to June 30, 
2018). 

Condition/Cause�An excused absence must be due to a reason identified above. The 
excused absence must also be verified and documented by the parent or the Division�s program 
staff. During the course of our audit, of the 25 non-statistically selected excused absences for 
the CDE contract period, we identified one instance related to Sacramento and one instance 
related to Booth in which the number of best interest absences exceeded 10 days and were 
claimed. Exceptions above were identified due to improper documentation retention and 
improper tracking and recording of best interest absences in the monthly attendance report. 

A similar finding was included in the prior year audit report (Reference: 2017-001). 

Effect�The Federal and state agencies may disallow the excused absences recorded and 
reported, and therefore, may reduce reimbursement. 

Questioned Costs�Questioned costs cannot be determined. 

Recommendation�The program directors should enhance existing internal controls over the 
tracking, recording, and reporting of the excused absences to ensure that no more than 10 best 
interest absences are claimed during the CDE contract period. 

Views of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Actions�Management of Booth 
and Sacramento will emphasize the importance of ensuring that the excused absences are 
verified in the daily sign-in/sign-out sheets and are recorded in the monthly attendance 
schedule. On a monthly basis, management of Booth and Sacramento will review the daily sign-
in/sign-out sheets and monthly attendance schedule to ensure each excused absence was 
appropriately verified and monitor any child with best interest absences that may exceed 
10 days. Division management will oversee this process to ensure it is being completed by 
management of Booth and Sacramento. 

Also see �Corrective Action Plan�. 



- 40 - 

REFERENCE: 2018-004 (DEFICIENCY) 
CHILD CARE AND DEVELOPMENT FUND CLUSTER (CFDA # 93.575, 93.596) 
FEDERAL AGENCY: U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 
STATE AGENCY: STATE OF CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION (�CDE�) 
LOCATION: SACRAMENTO 

Criteria�Program Income Assessment Process�Family fees charged should be based on 
the rates stated in the CDE�s Family Fee Schedule based on the child�s family size and income 
level. Actual center expenses should first be charged against the family fees collected, and then 
any excess in actual center qualifying expenses can be claimed for reimbursement under the 
contracts. 

Condition/Cause�Management has designed and implemented controls to ensure the family 
fees are accurately calculated based on family size and income. However, during the course of 
our audit, of the 24 randomly selected family files, we identified one family file related to 
Sacramento, for which the family fees were not accurately calculated. This deficiency resulted 
in family fees charged in the year ended September 30, 2018 being different from the amount 
stated within the CDE�s Family Fee Schedule. This deficiency did not result in an actual 
misstatement as the actual qualifying expenses for the center, less the appropriate family fees, 
were in excess of the minimum required for full reimbursement under the contracts. The 
amount associated with the finding for Sacramento for the selected family for the month 
selected was $16. This exception was due to personnel inputting the incorrect family income or 
household size or using the incorrect CDE Family Fee Schedule to calculate the family fees to be 
charged. 

A similar finding was included in the prior year audit report (Reference: 2017-005). 

Effect�This deficiency may result in the Division having to reimburse the federal and state 
agencies for the reimbursable expenses that were claimed that could have been covered by the 
difference in family fee rates. 

Questioned Costs�Questioned costs cannot be determined. 

Recommendation�The program directors should enhance existing internal controls over 
review and maintenance of documentation of assessment of family fees to ensure family fees 
are charged accurately and documentation supports the family fees assessed. 

Views of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Actions�Management of 
Sacramento will emphasize the importance of ensuring family fees are appropriately calculated 
in accordance with the CDE�s Family Fee Schedule. On a monthly basis, management of 
Sacramento will review the family fee calculations to ensure they are calculated accurately. 
Division management will oversee this process to ensure it is being completed by management 
of Sacramento. 

Also see �Corrective Action Plan�. 



- 41 - 

REFERENCE: 2018-005 (SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCY) 
VA HOMELESS VETERANS PROVIDERS GRANT AND PER DIEM (CFDA # 64.024) 
FEDERAL AGENCY: U.S. DEPARTMENT OF VETERAN AFFAIRS 

Criteria�Allowable Activities and Bed Days Tracking and Reporting Process�The 
Division receives per diem reimbursement based on the accuracy of their reporting of bed days 
(allowable activities). The monthly attendance spreadsheets should agree to the daily sign-
in/bed-check sheets, which are the primary source documents for audit and reimbursement 
purposes of allowable activities. Further, the Per Diem Payment Vouchers submitted should 
agree to the monthly attendance spreadsheets. 

Condition/Cause�Two main documents are used in the process of tracking bed days for all 
veterans. The first document is a daily sign-in sheet and the second document is a monthly 
attendance spreadsheet, which is generated from the daily sign-in/bed-check sheets and is 
used for reporting purposes by administration. During the course of our audit, we identified 
eight instances of the 40 non-statistically selected daily sign-in/bed-check sheets, in which 
there were differences between the daily sign-in/bed-check sheets and the recorded and 
reported bed day figures per the monthly attendance spreadsheet. The number of bed days 
(allowable activities) per the daily sign-in/bed-check sheets were less than the recorded and 
reported bed day figures per the monthly attendance spreadsheet. The amounts associated 
with the findings for the selected daily sign-in/bed-check sheets are $770. Inconsistencies 
existed between these two documents due to errors in transferring the attendance figures from 
the daily sign-in/bed-check sheets to the monthly attendance spreadsheet. 

A similar finding was included in the prior year audit report (Reference: 2017-006). 

Effect�This deficiency may result in the Division having to reimburse the agency for the bed 
days claimed that were not supported by daily sign-in/bed-check sheets. 

Questioned Costs�Questioned costs cannot be determined. 

Recommendation�The program directors should enhance existing internal controls over the 
preparation and review of the required monthly attendance spreadsheet against the daily sign-
in/bed-check sheets to ensure that the monthly attendance spreadsheet is accurate and 
complete. 

Views of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Actions�Management will 
emphasize the importance of ensuring that the daily sign-in/bed-check sheets are accurate and 
match the records that are recorded in the monthly attendance spreadsheet. On a monthly 
basis, management will review the daily sign-in/bed-check sheets and monthly attendance 
spreadsheet to ensure the records match. Division management will oversee this process to 
ensure it is being completed by management. 

Also see �Corrective Action Plan�. 



- 42 - 

 

THE SALVATION ARMY USA, WESTERN TERRITORY,  
DEL ORO DIVISION 

CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018 

REFERENCE: 2018-001 (SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCY) 
CHILD CARE AND DEVELOPMENT FUND CLUSTER (CFDA # 93.575, 93.596) 
FEDERAL AGENCY: U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 
STATE AGENCY: STATE OF CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION (�CDE�) 
LOCATIONS: SACRAMENTO CHILD DEVELOPMENT CENTER (�SACRAMENTO�) 

Planned Corrective Actions�Management of Sacramento will emphasize the importance of 
ensuring that recipient eligibility is properly determined and documented on a timely basis, and 
that only eligible recipients receive services under the contract. On a monthly basis, 
management of Sacramento will review family files for completeness and make any needed 
adjustments or corrections on a timely basis as well as maintain a log of when family files were 
certified to ensure recertification is performed timely. Division management will oversee this 
process to ensure it is being completed by management of Sacramento. 

REFERENCE: 2018-002 (DEFICIENCY) 
CHILD CARE AND DEVELOPMENT FUND CLUSTER (CFDA # 93.575, 93.596) 
FEDERAL AGENCY: U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 
STATE AGENCY: STATE OF CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION (�CDE�) 
LOCATIONS: BOOTH MEMORIAL CHILD DAY CARE CENTER (�BOOTH�) 

Planned Corrective Actions�Management of Booth will emphasize the importance of 
ensuring that the daily sign-in/sign-out sheets are accurate and match the records that are 
recorded in the monthly attendance schedule. On a monthly basis, management of Booth will 
review the daily sign-in/sign-out sheets and monthly attendance schedule to ensure the records 
match. Division management will oversee this process to ensure it is being completed by 
management of Booth. 



- 43 - 

 

THE SALVATION ARMY USA, WESTERN TERRITORY,  
DEL ORO DIVISION 

CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 

REFERENCE: 2018-003 (DEFICIENCY) 
CHILD CARE AND DEVELOPMENT FUND CLUSTER (CFDA # 93.575, 93.596) 
FEDERAL AGENCY: U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 
STATE AGENCY: STATE OF CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION (�CDE�) 
LOCATIONS: SACRAMENTO AND BOOTH  

Planned Corrective Actions�Management of Booth and Sacramento will emphasize the 
importance of ensuring that the excused absences are verified in the daily sign-in/sign-out 
sheets and are recorded in the monthly attendance schedule. On a monthly basis, management 
of Booth and Sacramento will review the daily sign-in/sign-out sheets and monthly attendance 
schedule to ensure each excused absence was appropriately verified and monitor any child with 
best interest absences that may exceed 10 days. Division management will oversee this 
process to ensure it is being completed by management of Booth and Sacramento. 

REFERENCE: 2018-004 (DEFICIENCY) 
CHILD CARE AND DEVELOPMENT FUND CLUSTER (CFDA # 93.575, 93.596) 
FEDERAL AGENCY: U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 
STATE AGENCY: STATE OF CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION (�CDE�) 
LOCATION: SACRAMENTO 

Planned Corrective Actions�Management of Sacramento will emphasize the importance of 
ensuring family fees are appropriately calculated in accordance with the CDE�s Family Fee 
Schedule. On a monthly basis, management of Sacramento will review the family fee 
calculations to ensure they are calculated accurately. Division management will oversee this 
process to ensure it is being completed by management of Sacramento. 

REFERENCE: 2018-005 (SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCY) 
VA HOMELESS VETERANS PROVIDERS GRANT AND PER DIEM (CFDA # 64.024) 
FEDERAL AGENCY: U.S. DEPARTMENT OF VETERAN AFFAIRS 

Planned Corrective Actions�Management will emphasize the importance of ensuring that 
the daily sign-in sheets are accurate and match the records that are recorded in the monthly 
attendance spreadsheet. On a monthly basis, management will review the daily sign-in/bed-
check sheets and monthly attendance spreadsheet to ensure the records match. Division 
management will oversee this process to ensure it is being completed by management. 



- 44 - 

 

THE SALVATION ARMY USA, WESTERN TERRITORY, 
DEL ORO DIVISION 

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018 

Year Current
Finding Year
Initially Finding

Number Finding Occurred Status Number Contact

2017-001 Significant Deficiency�Excused Absences 2016 Uncorrected 2018-003 Al Agpoon
  Verification and Tracking Process at Divisional Controller
  Booth Memorial Child Day Care Center (916) 563-3776
  ("Booth") and Sacramento Child
  Development Center ("Sacramento")
  (CFDA #93.575 and #93.596)

2017-002 Significant Deficiency�Eligibility and 2016 Uncorrected 2018-001 Al Agpoon
  Recertification Process at Booth Divisional Controller
  and Sacramento (916) 563-3776
  (CFDA #93.575 and #93.596)

2017-003 Significant Deficiency�Attendance 2015 Uncorrected 2018-002 Al Agpoon
  Tracking and Reporting Process at Divisional Controller
  Booth and Sacramento (916) 563-3776
  (CFDA #93.575 and #93.596)

2017-005 Deficiency�Program Income Assessment 2014 Uncorrected 2018-004 Al Agpoon
  Process at Sacramento Divisional Controller
  (CFDA #93.575 and #93.596) (916) 563-3776

2017-004 Deficiency�Program Income 2016 Corrected N/A Al Agpoon
  Collecting and Recording Process at Divisional Controller
  Booth (916) 563-3776
  (CFDA #93.575 and #93.596)

2017-006 Significant Deficiency�Allowable Activities 2016 Uncorrected 2018-005 Al Agpoon
  and Bed Days Tracking and Reporting Divisional Controller
  Process (CFDA #64.024) (916) 563-3776

2017-007 Deficiency�Eligibility Verification Process 2016 Corrected N/A Al Agpoon
  (CFDA #64.024) Divisional Controller

(916) 563-3776

* * * * * *  



The Salvation Army
After School Budget 2020

Budget Ann Land /

This Year Bertha Henschel

2020 Grant

INCOME:
4609 Special Appeals Appropriations 186,000
4600 Associated Organizations 0
5000 Fees & Grants - Government Agencies 12,100 6,100
6200 Program Service Fees 32,000
6900 Miscellaneous Revenue 0
TOTAL INCOME 230,100 6,100

EXPENSE
7000 Salaries & Allowances 150,000
7100 Officer & Employee Benefits 29,000
7200 Employment Taxes 20,000
8000 Professional Fees 3,625
8100 Supplies 9,193 6,100
8200 Telecommunications 0
8400 Occupancy 7,200
8500 Equipment/Furnishings 2,900
8700 Transportation/Meals 372
9400 Miscellaneous Expense 1,900
969? Indirect/Agency Support Service 4,410
         Expenses Before Admin Allocation 228,600 6,100
9800 Administration Allocation 1,500
TOTAL EXPENSE 230,100
Current Surplus / (Deficit) 0

Prior Year Surplus Deficit 0
Accumulated Surplus / Deficit 0

10/30/2019 1After School Budget 2020  Current Mo, YTD, Budget_Old



ALBH	Grant	Application	2019
City	of	Sacramento

	Submitted	On:
October	28th,	2019	@	6:19pm

Organization	Name Travelers	Aid	Emergency	Assistance	Agency

Physcial	Address 2251	Florin	Road	#124
Sacramento
CA
95822

Mailing	address	different	from
physical	address?

No

Name Wanda	Williams

Title Executive	Director

Phone	Number 916-804-6133

E-Mail	Address ww1007@aol.com

Name Barbara	Yonemura

Phone	Number 916-399-9646

E-Mail	Address taeaa@lanset.com

Name Diane	Gillmore

Title Program	Specialist

Phone	Number 916-290-2860

E-Mail	Address taeaa@lanset.com

Please	indicate	below	the
services	you	are	requesting

Shelter
Utilities
Transportation

Indicate	the	dollar	amount
requested	for	Shelter

$9,000

#	of	clients	that	will	be	served	by
the	Ann	Land	&	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds

80	individuals	(20	vouchers	@	$450	ea)

Indicate	the	dollar	amount
requested	for	Utilities

$1,000

#	of	clients	that	will	be	served	by
the	Ann	Land	&	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds

40	individuals	(max	utility	assistance	is	$200	per	family	;	Avg	is	$75)

Indicate	the	dollar	amount
requested	for	Transportation

$500



#	of	clients	that	will	be	served	by
the	Ann	Land	&	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds

80	(	$10	gas	cards	/	Daily	bus	passes	to	offset	client	expense	and	ensure	transp	to	motel,	job
interviews,	etc

Total	Amount	Requested $10,500.00

The	amount	requested	will	be
applied	to	the	following.

On-going	Program

The	funds	requested	will	be	used
to	serve	the	following	(please
check	all	that	apply)

Families
Women
Men
Children

Will	other	funds	supplement	Ann
Land	and	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds	request	for	this
program?

Yes

Briefly	explain Funds	from	private	donations	and	a	SMUD	grant.	Private	donations	help	to	provide	emergency
shelter	(via	motel	voucher)	to	families	and	funds	from	SMUD	help	in	preventing	disconnection	of
electrical	services	or	restoring	those	services.	We	serve	families,	individuals,	seniors,	veterans
that	are	homeless,	in	transition	and	the	working	poor.

Did	you	lose	any	funding	in	2019
from	any	source?

No

Do	you	anticipate,	or	have	you
been	notified,	that	you	will	lose
funding	in	2020?

No

Are	you	aware	of,	or	do	you
anticipate	receiving,	any	new
sources	of	funding	in	2020,	for
example,	stimulus	or	other
funds?

No

List	the	hours	that	programs
funded	by	Ann	Land	and	Bertha
Henschel	Memorial	Funds	will	be
available	to	clients.

Intake	hours	Fridays	between	10	–	12.	
All	others	by	appointment	
Mon,	Tues,	Wed	&	Fri	between	6	–	8	pm	and	on	Saturday	between	12	-	3	pm.	

I	don’t	know	if	you	want	to	list	those	hours	or	not.

Describe	the	geographic	service
area,	within	the	City,	when	you
will	spend	the	requested	funds.

City/county	of	Sacramento



Please	upload	a	brief	description
(no	more	than	two	pages)	of	the
program	or	service	for	which	you
are	requesting	funds.	Explain	how
the	program	or	service
addresses	the	mission	and
funding	priorities	of	the	Ann	Land
and	Bertha	Henschel	Memorial
Funds.

https://seam.ly/IgyQxtvp

Mission	Statement	–
Organizational	Goal

Travelers	Aid	Emergency	Assistance	Agency’s	mission	is	to	provide	human	services	throughout
the	greater	Sacramento	area	to	individuals	and	families,	especially	to	those	where	minor
dependent	children	and	other	protected	populations	are	at	risk.	Our	definitive	goal	is	to	stabilize
individuals	and/or	the	family	unit,	and	return	them	back	into	the	mainstream	of	a	self-sufficient,
healthy	and	productive	environment.

Date	incorporated	or	otherwise
formed

1
11
1944

Briefly	describe	other	services
and	programs	your	organization
currently	provides.

We	provided	motel	vouchers	for	homeless	families	with	minor	children	for	five	nights	–	Monday
through	Friday.	The	program	is	designed	to	assist	destitute	families	that	are	in	the	process	of
entering	other	programs	or	are	waiting	on	housing.	The	families	selected	are	actively	working	at
ending	their	homeless	situation	and	need	just	an	extra	bit	of	assistance	We	also	assist	homeless
families	who	are	experiencing	medical	issues.	The	program	is	offering	a	hand	up	not	a	hand	out

Private	or	Corporate	Donations
(Amount)

5000

Private	or	Corporate	Donations
(%	of	Total	Funding)

6%

United	Way	(Amount) 150

United	Way	(%	of	Total	Funding) 0

SETA	(Amount)

SETA	(%	of	Total	Funding)

Federal	Assistance	(Amount)

Federal	Assistance	(%	of	Total
Funding)

State	Assistance	(Amount) 0

State	Assistance	(%	of	Total
Funding)

0

City	or	County	Assistance	(not
from	the	Ann	Land	Bertha
Henschel	Memorial	Funds)
(Amount)

0



City	or	County	Assistance	(not
from	the	Ann	Land	Bertha
Henschel	Memorial	Funds)	(%	of
Total	Funding)

0

Grants	(Amount) 75000

Grants	(%	of	Total	Funding) 84%

Ann	Land	and	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds	(Amount)

$6,800

Ann	Land	and	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds	(%	of	Total
Funding)

7%

Other	(briefly	describe	below)
(Amount)

$2,000

Other	(briefly	describe	below)	(%
of	Total	Funding)

3%

Total	Amount $89,000.00

Other	Income	Sources Big	Day	of	Giving	Campaign

The	names	of	the	members	of
your	organization’s	board	of
directors	and	of	your
organization’s	officers

https://seam.ly/Rsztt5nw

An	organizational	chart	or
description	of	your	organization’s
management	structure

https://seam.ly/wFg3cUz2

Verification	of	your
organization’s	not-for-profit
status	(letter	from	IRS	confirming
§	501(c)(3)	status)

https://seam.ly/073Mqynd

Verification	that	your
organization	(1)	is	currently
registered	and	in	good	standing
with	the	Registry	of	Charitable
Trusts	maintained	by	the
California	Attorney	General	or	(2)
is	not	required	to	register.

https://seam.ly/7hos9G3k



A	copy	of	your	organization’s
current	business	license	or	a
letter	from	the	City	of
Sacramento	Finance	Department
verifying	your	organization’s
exemption	from	the	City’s
business-operations	tax.	The
Sacramento	City	Code	requires
that	anyone	conducting	business
within	the	City	of	Sacramento
have	a	current	business	license
on	file	with	the	City.	The	City
issues	nonprofit	organizations	a
waiver	letter	in	lieu	of	a	business
license.	A	waiver	letter	can	be
obtained	at	the	Revenue	Counter
in	New	City	Hall,	First	Floor,	Room
1214.	Indicate	your
organization’s	non-profit	status
on	the	application	form.	There	is
no	charge	for	nonprofit
organizations.

https://seam.ly/ksT5RXqd

A	copy	of	your	organization’s
most	recent	audit	and	any
corrective	actions	or
recommendations	suggested	by
the	auditor.	If	you	do	not	have	an
annual	audit,	please	explain	why.
You	must	also	provide	a	copy	of
your	organization’s	most-recent
annual	financial	statements,
signed	by	your	organization’s
treasurer	AND	by	the	preparer,
whether	a	CPA	or	bookkeeper

https://seam.ly/8xt7JwYm
https://seam.ly/jmYqryne
https://seam.ly/fhWYhFAD

A	budget	sheet	showing	how
awarded	funds	will	be	spent

https://seam.ly/4B4diGCM

Signature	Data First	Name:	Wanda
Last	Name:	Williams
Email	Address:	ww1007@aol.com

Signed	at:	10/28/2019	03:18PM



Travelers Aid Emergency Assistance Agency 
Program Description 

 

 Travelers Aid Emergency Assistance Agency requests funds for two programs.  The majority of 
the funds (90%) are for the Motel Voucher program.  We provided motel vouchers for homeless families 
with minor children for five nights – Monday through Friday.  The program is designed to assist destitute 
families that are in the process of entering other programs or are waiting on housing.    The families 
selected are actively working at ending their homeless situation and need just an extra bit of assistance 
to achieve their goal.  We also assist homeless families who are experiencing medical issues.  The 
program is offering a hand up not a hand out. 

 We are a community partner of SMUD.  We work with their Energy Help program in preventing 
disconnection of electrical services or restoring those services.  At times, families need just a little bit 
more to hold off the disconnection or to get reconnected.  The funds provided allow the household to 
maintain their electrical services.  We serve families, individuals, seniors, veterans.  In other words, this 
program is available to the entire community.  Current funding does not allow us to meet the needs of 
those requesting assistance.   

 Travelers Aid Emergency Assistance Agency’s mission is to provide human services throughout 
the greater Sacramento area to individuals and families, especially to those where minor dependent 
children and other protected populations are at risk.  Our definitive goal is to stabilize individuals and/or 
the family unit, and return them back into the mainstream of a self-sufficient, healthy and productive 
environment.   

 35-40% of clients have difficulty with transportation, providing a gas card or daily bus pass will 
assist with their ability to get to the intake appointment and to job interviews. 

Travelers Aid Emergency Assistance Agency offers the following programs:  

Holiday Food Boxes – TAEAA partners with a local church and another nonprofit agency to provide 
holiday food boxes for Thanksgiving and Christmas.  The boxes provide a family of four with food for 3 to 
4 days – a holiday weekend. 

Rental Assistance - If an individual/family receive a 3-day notice to Pay or Quit, TAEAA will assist by 
paying the final $200 owed in rent.  

Intakes are taken between 10 - 12.  The rest of the process is completed by appointment.  Requests 
taken in person, by phone, via voice mail, email and Facebook.   

 

The agency is physically located in South Sacramento at 24th Street and Florin Road.  The agency uses 
the Sky Rider Motel located across from Executive Airport at 6100 Freeport Blvd, Sacramento, CA  
95822.  Bus services are available in front of our building.   



Travelers Aid-Emergency Assistance Agency 
Board of Directors 

June 2019            
 

 
 1 

 

 

 
Secretary/Treasurer 
Crim, Dorothie J. 
 

 
Retired 

CSUS Faculty Member 
 

 
8191 La Rivera Drive 
Sacramento, CA 95826 

 
H:  916-381-4537 
F:  916-388-1756 
C:  916-206-3084 

 
JeanCrim946@yahoo.com 

 

 
 
Member 
King,Bertha 

 
Retired State of California 

 
27 Rambleoak Circle 
Sacramento, CA 95831 

 
H:  916-427-2360 
C: 916-799-8949 

 
Berthakng@cs.com     

 
 
Executive Director-
Interim 
Wanda Williams 

 
Executive Director 

2251 Florin Road, Suite 124 
Sacramento, CA 95822 

 
7568 Pocket Road 
Sacramento, CA 95831 
 

 
O:  916-399-9646 
F:  916-399-9649 
C:   916-804-6133   

ww1007@aol.com 

 

President 
Yonemura, Barbara 
 

Attorney at Law 
Retired 

 

P.O. Box 22425 
Sacramento, CA 95822 

C: 916-261-6045 
 

byonemura@sbcglobal.net 

          
Member 
Sykes,Velma 
 

      Sacramento Area Women’s 
        Chamber of Commerce 

7200 Havenside Dr 
Sacramento, CA 95831 

 
C: 916-271-2286 

sykesv1@yahoo.com 

Member 
Lewis, Kendra 
 

Elk Grove Police Activities 
League 

6635 Rio Oso Dr 
Rancho Murieta, 95683 

H: 916-234-9372 
C: 916-416-1371 
W: 916-714-9834 
F: 916-714-3589 

fundraiserknl@gmail.com 

mailto:ww1007@aol.com
mailto:sykesv1@yahoo.com


TRAVELERS AID EMERGENCY ASSISTANCE AGENCY

Organizational Chart

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Wanda Williams

SUPPORT STAFF
Jill Mori

Diane Gillmore

Community Volunteer
Elizabeth Gillmore

SOCIAL WORKER
Vacant

CSUS STUDENT INTERN
Vacant







Registrant Details
Entity type: Corporate Class as registered with the Secretary of State or based on founding & registration documents.

Organization Name: TRAVELERS AID-EMERGENCY ASSISTANCE AGENCY IRS FEIN: 941167423
Entity Type: Public Benefit SOS/FTB Corporate/Organization Number: 0194887

Registry Status: Current Renewal Due/Exp. Date: 11/15/2019
RCT Registration Number: 002362 Issue Date: 6/30/2006
Record Type: Charity Registration Effective Date: 6/30/2006
Date This Status: 10/31/2019 Date of Last Renewal:

Mailing Address
Street: 2251 FLORIN ROAD, SUITE 124
Street Line 2:
City, State Zip: SACRAMENTO CA 95822

Filings & Correspondence
Delinquency Letter (2nd Request) 2003 Fee Delinquency Letter (2nd Request) 2003 Fee

RRF-1 Fee Request RRF-1 Fee Request

CT-550 2009 CT-550 2009

RRF-1 2011 2011 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2011 2011 IRS Form 990

Fee Notice 2011 Fee Notice 2011

Delinquency Letter (2nd Request) Delinquency Letter (2nd Request)

1st Delinquency Notice 1st Delinquency Notice

Fee Notice 2012 Fee Notice 2012

Incomplete Notice Incomplete Notice

Founding Documents Founding Documents

RRF-1 2010 2010 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2010 2010 IRS Form 990

RRF-1 2009 2009 RRF-1

RRF-1 2008 2008 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2008 2008 IRS Form 990

RRF-1 2007 2007 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2007 2007 IRS Form 990

RRF-1 2006 2006 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2006 2006 IRS Form 990

RRF-1 2005 2005 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2005 2005 IRS Form 990

RRF-1 2004 2004 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2004 2004 IRS Form 990

RRF-1 2003 2003 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2003 2003 IRS Form 990

RRF-1 2012 2012 RRF-1

HOME  ABOUT  MEDIA  CAREERS  REGULATIONS  RESOURCES  PROGRAMS  CONTACT

http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=Delinquency+Letter+(2nd+Request)+2003+Fee.pdf&document_id=09027b8f800dcc21
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+Fee+Request.pdf&document_id=09027b8f800dcc22
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=CT-550+2009.pdf&document_id=09027b8f800dcc23
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2011.pdf&document_id=09027b8f800dcc24
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2011.pdf&document_id=09027b8f800dcc25
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=Fee+Notice+2011.pdf&document_id=09027b8f800dcc26
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=Delinquency+Letter+(2nd+Request).pdf&document_id=09027b8f800dcc27
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=1st+Delinquency+Notice.pdf&document_id=09027b8f800dcc28
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=Fee+Notice+2012.pdf&document_id=09027b8f800dcc29
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=Incomplete+Notice.pdf&document_id=09027b8f800dcc2a
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=Founding+Documents.pdf&document_id=09027b8f800dcc2b
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2010.pdf&document_id=09027b8f800dcc2c
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2010.pdf&document_id=09027b8f800dcc2d
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2009.pdf&document_id=09027b8f800dcc2e
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2008.pdf&document_id=09027b8f800dcc2f
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2008.pdf&document_id=09027b8f800dcc30
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2007.pdf&document_id=09027b8f800dcc31
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2007.pdf&document_id=09027b8f800dcc32
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2006.pdf&document_id=09027b8f800dcc33
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2006.pdf&document_id=09027b8f800dcc34
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2005.pdf&document_id=09027b8f800dcc35
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2005.pdf&document_id=09027b8f800dcc36
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2004.pdf&document_id=09027b8f800dcc37
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2004.pdf&document_id=09027b8f800dcc38
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2003.pdf&document_id=09027b8f800dcc39
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2003.pdf&document_id=09027b8f800dcc3a
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=1110766.pdf&document_id=09027b8f801b2ab8
https://oag.ca.gov/home
https://oag.ca.gov/about
https://oag.ca.gov/media
https://oag.ca.gov/careers
https://oag.ca.gov/meetings/public-participation
https://oag.ca.gov/services-info
https://oag.ca.gov/programs
https://oag.ca.gov/contact


IRS Form 990 2012 2012 IRS Form 990

RRF-1 2002 2002 RRF-1

RRF-1 2001 2001 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2009 2009 IRS Form 990

2016 IRS Form 990 Series 2016 IRS Form 990

Form RRF-1 2017

IRS Form 990 Series 2017 - IRS Form 990

RRF-1 2013 2013 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2013 2013 IRS Form 990

Incomplete RRF-1 Letter Incomplete RRF-1 Letter

1st Delinquency Letter 1st Delinquency Letter

Missing Reports Letter Missing Reports Letter

2014 RRF-1 2014 RRF-1

2015 RRF-1 2015 RRF-1

2015 IRS Form 990 2015 IRS Form 990

2016 RRF-1 2016 RRF-1

1st Delinquency Letter 1st Delinquency Letter

2014 IRS Form 990 Series 2014 IRS Form 990

Annual Renewal Data
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2001
Accounting Period End Date: 6/30/2002
Total Assets: $141,100.00
Total Revenue: $557,006.00
Filing Received Date: 11/18/2002
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): N
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2002
Accounting Period End Date: 6/30/2003
Total Assets: $150,000.00
Total Revenue: $575,000.00
Filing Received Date: 10/9/2009
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2003
Accounting Period End Date: 6/30/2004
Total Assets: $250,000.00
Total Revenue: $750,000.00
Filing Received Date: 11/16/2004
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2004
Accounting Period End Date: 6/30/2005
Total Assets: $273,191.00
Total Revenue: $581,247.00
Filing Received Date: 5/11/2006
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2005
Accounting Period End Date: 6/30/2006
Total Assets: $201,874.00

http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=1110129.pdf&document_id=09027b8f801b2ab6
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2002.pdf&document_id=09027b8f800dcc3b
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2001.pdf&document_id=09027b8f800dcc3c
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2009.pdf&document_id=09027b8f800dcc3d
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=2016+IRS+Form+990.pdf&document_id=09027b8f802f1d9f
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=247888.pdf&document_id=09027b8f803147db
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=2017+-+IRS+Form+990.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8035b241
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=610133.PDF&document_id=09027b8f80205d04
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=610134.PDF&document_id=09027b8f80205d05
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=00000159.pdf&document_id=09027b8f802a7780
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=00000155.pdf&document_id=09027b8f802b0013
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=00000157.pdf&document_id=09027b8f802c7352
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=1259575.PDF&document_id=09027b8f802d2de8
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=1259576.PDF&document_id=09027b8f802d2de9
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=1259577.PDF&document_id=09027b8f802d2dea
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=1259578.PDF&document_id=09027b8f802d2deb
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=00000155.pdf&document_id=09027b8f802d4d7e
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=2014+IRS+Form+990.pdf&document_id=09027b8f802f1d3b


Total Revenue: $495,545.00
Filing Received Date: 2/16/2007
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2006
Accounting Period End Date: 6/30/2007
Total Assets: $158,005.00
Total Revenue: $599,198.00
Filing Received Date: 2/22/2008
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2007
Accounting Period End Date: 6/30/2008
Total Assets: $158,520.00
Total Revenue: $574,241.00
Filing Received Date: 5/19/2009
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2008
Accounting Period End Date: 6/30/2009
Total Assets: $130,562.00
Total Revenue: $576,902.00
Filing Received Date: 5/19/2010
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2009
Accounting Period End Date: 6/30/2010
Total Assets: $70,596.00
Total Revenue: $726,238.00
Filing Received Date: 2/2/2011
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2010
Accounting Period End Date: 6/30/2011
Total Assets: $40,413.00
Total Revenue: $610,056.00
Filing Received Date: 9/20/2012
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2011
Accounting Period End Date: 6/30/2012
Total Assets: $81,280.00
Total Revenue: $593,537.00
Filing Received Date: 5/15/2013
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2012
Accounting Period End Date: 6/30/2013
Total Assets: $99,999.00
Total Revenue: $655,949.00
Filing Received Date: 5/7/2014
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2013



Accounting Period End Date: 6/30/2014
Total Assets: $53,239.00
Total Revenue: $585,354.00
Filing Received Date: 1/11/2017
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2014
Accounting Period End Date: 6/30/2015
Total Assets: $68,921.00
Total Revenue: $548,920.00
Filing Received Date: 4/12/2017
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2015
Accounting Period End Date: 6/30/2016
Total Assets: $52,972.00
Total Revenue: $100,672.00
Filing Received Date: 4/12/2017
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2016
Accounting Period End Date: 6/30/2017
Total Assets: $62,838.00
Total Revenue: $82,563.00
Filing Received Date: 11/13/2017
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2017
Accounting Period End Date: 6/30/2018
Total Assets: $80,105.00
Total Revenue: $84,044.00
Filing Received Date: 10/29/2019
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N):
Status of Filing: In Process
Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2018
Accounting Period End Date: 6/30/2019
Total Assets: $74,236.00
Total Revenue: $88,531.00
Filing Received Date: 10/29/2019
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N):

Related Registrations & Event Reports
The related records shown below depend on the record type being viewed:

Charity Registrations relate to Professional Fundraising Events which relate to Professional Fundraiser Registrations.
Raffle Registrations relate to Raffle Reports.
Click on the RCT Registration No to navigate to the related record.

No Related Records































Travelers Aid Emergency Assistance Agency 
2019 Proposed Budget Sheet 

 
$9,000 for motel vouchers = 20 vouchers @ $450 each* 

$1,000 for utility assistance = Maximum of $200 per family.  Average is $75 

$10,000  

 

 

*Motel voucher provides shelter for 5 nights 



ALBH	Grant	Application	2019
City	of	Sacramento

	Submitted	On:
October	22nd,	2019	@	6:44pm

Organization	Name Women	Escaping	A	Violent	Environment,	Inc.	(WEAVE)

Physcial	Address 1900	K	Street
Sacramento
CA
95670

Mailing	address	different	from
physical	address?

No

Name Casie	Pauley

Title Grants	&	Contracts	Manager

Phone	Number (916)	319-4974

E-Mail	Address cpauley@weaveinc.org

Name Beth	Hassett

Phone	Number 916-319-4923

E-Mail	Address bhassett@weaveinc.org

Name Casie	Pauley

Title Grants	&	Contracts	Manager

Phone	Number 916-319-4974

E-Mail	Address cpauley@weaveinc.org

Please	indicate	below	the
services	you	are	requesting

Utilities

Indicate	the	dollar	amount
requested	for	Utilities

$8,000.00

#	of	clients	that	will	be	served	by
the	Ann	Land	&	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds

250

Total	Amount	Requested $8,000.00

The	amount	requested	will	be
applied	to	the	following.

On-going	Program

The	funds	requested	will	be	used
to	serve	the	following	(please
check	all	that	apply)

Families
Women
Men
Children



Will	other	funds	supplement	Ann
Land	and	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds	request	for	this
program?

Yes

Briefly	explain WEAVE	will	leverage	additional	state,	federal	and	county	funds	and	private	fundraising	revenue
to	fund	our	emergency	shelter	and	transitional	housing	programs.

Did	you	lose	any	funding	in	2019
from	any	source?

No

Do	you	anticipate,	or	have	you
been	notified,	that	you	will	lose
funding	in	2020?

Yes

Briefly	explain Our	FY20	Domestic	Violence	Assistance	Program	(DVAP)	funding	from	the	state	was	reduced;
therefore	we	have	less	money	available	for	our	residential	programs	as	the	DVAP	funding	is
primarily	to	support	victims	of	domestic	violence	with	emergency	shelter	needs.	Additionally	we
have	been	notified	that	we	will	lose	funding	from	the	Co.	of	Sacramento	for	Children''s	services,
which	means	that	funds	that	used	be	available	for	infrastructure	such	as	utilities,	must	now	be
used	to	fill	the	gap.

Are	you	aware	of,	or	do	you
anticipate	receiving,	any	new
sources	of	funding	in	2020,	for
example,	stimulus	or	other
funds?

No

List	the	hours	that	programs
funded	by	Ann	Land	and	Bertha
Henschel	Memorial	Funds	will	be
available	to	clients.

WEAVE''s	emergency	shelter	and	transitional	housing	programs	operate	24	hours	a	day/7	days	a
week.	Victims	needing	safe	shelter	are	screened	through	the	agency''s	24/hour	support	and
information	line	and	are	admitted	at	all	hours.	The	emergency	shelter	programs	are	staffed	356
days	per	year.

Describe	the	geographic	service
area,	within	the	City,	when	you
will	spend	the	requested	funds.

WEAVE	operates	an	emergency	Domestic	Violence	shelter	and	a	transitional	housing	program	on
two	separate	sites,	both	of	which	are	located	within	Sacramento	City	limits.	Both	have	easy
access	to	public	transportation	and	other	supportive	services.	The	locations	are	confidential	due
to	strict	state/federal	funding	regulations	and	for	the	safety	of	our	clients;	however	WEAVE
would	be	happy	to	arrange	for	tours	of	both	shelter	locations	upon	request	and	receipt	of	signed
confidentiality	agreement.

Please	upload	a	brief	description
(no	more	than	two	pages)	of	the
program	or	service	for	which	you
are	requesting	funds.	Explain	how
the	program	or	service
addresses	the	mission	and
funding	priorities	of	the	Ann	Land
and	Bertha	Henschel	Memorial
Funds.

https://seam.ly/zXYjOQW5

Mission	Statement	–
Organizational	Goal

WEAVE’s	mission	is	to	promote	safe	and	healthy	relationships	and	support	survivors	of	sexual
assault,	domestic	violence	and	sex	trafficking.	WEAVE’s	vision	is	a	community	free	of	violence
and	abuse.



Date	incorporated	or	otherwise
formed

1
26
1978

Briefly	describe	other	services
and	programs	your	organization
currently	provides.

WEAVE	operates	a	24-hour	support	&	information	line;	transitional	housing	for	victims	of	DV;
walk-in/triage	and	safety	planning	services	for	victims;	trauma-informed,	therapeutic	individual
and	psycho-educational	group	counseling	services;	supportive	services	for	victims	of	sex
trafficking	and	commercially	sexually	exploited	children;	legal	services	for	victims;	sexual	assault,
domestic	violence	and	anti-trafficking	response	teams;	prevention	and	community	education
programs.

Private	or	Corporate	Donations
(Amount)

$2,026,600

Private	or	Corporate	Donations
(%	of	Total	Funding)

25%

United	Way	(Amount) $0

United	Way	(%	of	Total	Funding) 0%

SETA	(Amount) $0

SETA	(%	of	Total	Funding) 0%

Federal	Assistance	(Amount) $0

Federal	Assistance	(%	of	Total
Funding)

0%

State	Assistance	(Amount) $0

State	Assistance	(%	of	Total
Funding)

0%

City	or	County	Assistance	(not
from	the	Ann	Land	Bertha
Henschel	Memorial	Funds)
(Amount)

$0

City	or	County	Assistance	(not
from	the	Ann	Land	Bertha
Henschel	Memorial	Funds)	(%	of
Total	Funding)

0%

Grants	(Amount) $4,306,277

Grants	(%	of	Total	Funding) 54%

Ann	Land	and	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds	(Amount)

$3,500

Ann	Land	and	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds	(%	of	Total
Funding)

.04%

Other	(briefly	describe	below)
(Amount)

$1,624,842



Other	(briefly	describe	below)	(%
of	Total	Funding)

20%

Total	Amount $7,961,219.00

Other	Income	Sources Other	sources	of	income	include:	thrift	store	retail	sales,	service	and	training	fees,	and
interest/dividend	income.

The	names	of	the	members	of
your	organization’s	board	of
directors	and	of	your
organization’s	officers

https://seam.ly/vZm0nBwB

An	organizational	chart	or
description	of	your	organization’s
management	structure

https://seam.ly/YiSV3bsw

Verification	of	your
organization’s	not-for-profit
status	(letter	from	IRS	confirming
§	501(c)(3)	status)

https://seam.ly/6LLA7Gcl

Verification	that	your
organization	(1)	is	currently
registered	and	in	good	standing
with	the	Registry	of	Charitable
Trusts	maintained	by	the
California	Attorney	General	or	(2)
is	not	required	to	register.

https://seam.ly/h07Llwaj

A	copy	of	your	organization’s
current	business	license	or	a
letter	from	the	City	of
Sacramento	Finance	Department
verifying	your	organization’s
exemption	from	the	City’s
business-operations	tax.	The
Sacramento	City	Code	requires
that	anyone	conducting	business
within	the	City	of	Sacramento
have	a	current	business	license
on	file	with	the	City.	The	City
issues	nonprofit	organizations	a
waiver	letter	in	lieu	of	a	business
license.	A	waiver	letter	can	be
obtained	at	the	Revenue	Counter
in	New	City	Hall,	First	Floor,	Room
1214.	Indicate	your
organization’s	non-profit	status
on	the	application	form.	There	is
no	charge	for	nonprofit
organizations.

https://seam.ly/ydXSBfsd



A	copy	of	your	organization’s
most	recent	audit	and	any
corrective	actions	or
recommendations	suggested	by
the	auditor.	If	you	do	not	have	an
annual	audit,	please	explain	why.
You	must	also	provide	a	copy	of
your	organization’s	most-recent
annual	financial	statements,
signed	by	your	organization’s
treasurer	AND	by	the	preparer,
whether	a	CPA	or	bookkeeper

https://seam.ly/oxPgyPiz

A	budget	sheet	showing	how
awarded	funds	will	be	spent

https://seam.ly/PY5iqUdp

Signature	Data First	Name:	Beth
Last	Name:	Hassett
Email	Address:	bhassett@weaveinc.org

Signed	at:	10/22/2019	03:43PM



WEAVE – ALBH Program/Services Description 2019-20 

Page 1 of 1 
 

WEAVE offers a comprehensive array of services to victims of domestic violence, 
sexual assault, stalking, and human trafficking. WEAVE provides more than 18,500 bed 
nights of safe and confidential shelter to approximately 250-275 adults and children 
annually through its confidential Safehouse program. The 12,000 square foot facility 
includes three residential wings featuring eighteen family suites with a shared kitchen 
and bathroom space. At the Safehouse, survivors receive all services onsite within the 
safety of the residential campus. Survivors are provided with safety planning, case 
management emergency transportation, food and clothing, housing advocacy, 
therapeutic counseling, psycho-educational support groups, legal assistance, and 
children’s services. The campus includes an onsite charter school, children’s 

counseling, and Play Care. 

Additionally, WEAVE is the only organization in Sacramento County providing 
transitional housing designed for victims of domestic violence and sex trafficking. The 
agency currently operates six units of transitional housing and is finishing up construction 
of two additional units to be completed by the end of October 2019. In FY18/19 WEAVE 
provided 7,255 bed nights of transitional housing. 

In 2016 WEAVE opened a second confidential shelter for victims – Open House. 
Open House includes five one-bedroom, one-bathroom apartments appropriate for 
individuals or families who face unique barriers to safety and are better served in a 
different location and/or non-communal environment including victims who live too near 
the existing Safehouse to maintain confidentiality, victims with service animals, victims 
with medical conditions requiring a sterile environment and male and transgender 
victims. Victims receive onsite support and access to safety planning, case 
management, legal assistance, emergency food, clothing, and transportation, housing 
advocacy, therapeutic counseling and psycho educational support groups through 
WEAVE’s Counseling Center locations. 

WEAVE expects to serve more than 250 adults and children through the two 
locations in 2019/20. All services are provided at no charge to the victims. While each 
victim of domestic violence requiring safe shelter faces unique challenges and barriers, 
trends do exist. The average family that stays at the shelter is a woman in her mid- 
thirties with two children. The average family income per year is well below the Federal 
Poverty Level threshold for 2018, with more than 85% of the victims being unemployed 
when entering the Safehouse. In 2018/19 the average length of stay was 84 days. 

The $8,000 in funds requested by WEAVE will be used to cover a portion of the 
utility costs at the two residential locations. Utility costs of the two programs are $70,000 
per year to operate 24 hour per day facilities. Unlike emergency shelters for the 
homeless that are reimbursed per each individual housed, WEAVE does not receive 
any HUD or emergency shelter funding. Instead WEAVE must rely on small foundation 
grants and philanthropic giving to keep our shelters operating 24/7. 



Updated 10/22/2019 

 
Board of Director’s Roster and Contact Information 

 

Board Member Contact Information Mailing Address Employment/Affiliation       

Officers     

Ashley West, President 
Committee(s):  
Executive, Board 
Development, Fund 
Development, Legislative 

Bus: 916-930-0921 
Cell: 916-346-8099* 
Fax: 916-258-0058 
ashley@carterwestlaw.com 
Asst: Kristen LaForm 
kristen@carterwestlaw.com  

2600 Capitol Ave., Suite 320 
Sacramento, CA 95816 
 
 

Carter West 

Rebecca J. Rawson, Vice 
President 
Committee(s): Executive, 
Human Resources, Facilities 

Bus: 916-608-2078 
Cell: 916-337-6406* 
rebecca.j.rawson@wellsfargo.com 

1110 Iron Point Rd 
2nd Floor, Suite 250 
Folsom, CA 95630 

Wells Fargo Bank, 
Senior Vice President,  
Consumer Banking 

Jill Ragsdale, Secretary 
Committee(s): Executive, 
Human Resources  

Bus: 916-286-6606* 
Work Cell: 916-835-5596 
Personal Cell: 507-254-5951 
ragsdaj@sutterhealth.org 
Asst: Lynne Carpenter 
carpenl@sutterhealth.org 
Bus: 916-286-6794 
Cell: 916-500-8204 

Sutter Health 
2200 River Plaza Drive 
Sacramento, CA 95833 

Sutter Health 
SVP and Chief People and 
Culture Officer 

Matthew G. Jacobs, Treasurer 
Committee(s):  Executive, 
Finance, Fund Development  

Bus: (916) 795-3739* 
Cell: 916-397-3730 
jacobsx6@gmail.com 

400 Q Street  
Sacramento, CA 95811 

CalPERS 
General Counsel  

Garry Maisel,  
Committee(s): Executive, 
Board Development Chair, 
Fund Development Chair, 
Audit, Finance 

Bus:  916-563-3184 
Fax:  916-563-3182 
Cell:  916-804-8232 
g.maisel@westernhealth.com 

Western Health Advantage 
2349 Gateway Oaks Drive, 
Suite 100 
Sacramento, CA  95833 

Western Health 
Advantage, President 

    

    
    

Remaining Directors 
In Alphabetical Order 

    

Phyllis Baltz 
Committee(s): Finance 

Bus: 916-423-6062 
Cell: 559-281-5280* 
Phyllis.Baltz@dignityhealth.org 

7500 Hospital Drive 
Sacramento, CA 95823 

Dignity Health Methodist 
Hospital, President 

Priya Batra, Psy.D,  
Committee(s): Program Chair, 
Board Development   

Bus: 916-614-4740 
Cell: 916-505-3311* 
Priya.x.batra@kp.org 

Kaiser Permanente 
Women’s Health 
1650 Response Road 
Sacramento, CA 95815 

Kaiser Permanente 
Sacramento, 
Women’s Health 
Psychologist 

Delilah Clay 
Committee(s): Legislative, 
Audit  

Bus: 916-552-2300 
Cell: 916-743-0570 
dclay@manatt.com 

1215 K Street, Suite 1900 
Sacramento, CA 95818 

Manatt, Phelps & Phillips, 
LLP, Legislative Advisor  

Donna Davis 
Committee(s):  
Fund Development, WAM 

Bus: 916-341-3444 
Cell: 916-502-4083 
donna.davis.1@att.com 

AT&T 
1215 K Street 
Suite 1800 
Sacramento, CA 95814 

AT&T, Area Director – 
External Affairs 

Soyla Fernández 
Committee(s): 
Fund Development, Legislative 

Bus: (916) 448-7567 
Cell: (916) 995-4278 
sfernandez@fernandezgov.com 
Assistant@fernandezgov.com 

Fernandez Cervantes 
Government Affairs 
1414 K Street, Suite 200 
Sacramento, CA 95814 

Fernandez Cervantes 
Government Affairs 
Owner 



Updated 10/22/2019 

Board Member Contact Information Mailing Address Employment/Affiliation       

Thomas Ford 
Committee(s):  
Facilities Chair 

Bus: 916-928-7474 
Cell: 916-660-6796* 
tford@m1b.com 

MarketOne Builders 
1200 R Street, Suite 150 
Sacramento, CA 95811 

MarketOne Builders, 
Partner 

Neil Forester 
Committee(s): Program, Legal 
Chair 

Bus: 916-293-4000 
Cell:  916-342-2414 
Fax: 916-293-4001 
neil@foresterpurcell.com 

620 Coolidge Drive,  
Suite 325 
Folsom, CA 95630 

Forester Purcell Stowell 
Family Law Attorneys  

Patrick Harbison  
Committee(s): WRAB, WAM 
Chair, Board Development 

Bus & Cell: 916-747-9143 
patrickharbison@gmail.com 

2219 C Street 
Sacramento, CA 95816 

Patrick Harbison Public 
Relations (PHPR), Owner 

Phyllis Marshall 
Committee(s): Legislative, 
Program 

Cell: 916-690-4220 
Phyllismarshall61@gmail.com 

9316 Newington Way 
Elk Grove, CA 95758 

Los Angeles County 
Counsel, Chief Legislative 
Counsel 

Bryan Merica 
Committee(s): Audit Chair  

Cell: 916-204-00945 
Fax: 925-666-2151 
bryan@unearthcampaigns.com 

Unearth 
555 Capitol Mall, Suite 640 
Sacramento, CA 95814 

Unearth, CEO 
 

Arlen Orchard 
Committee(s): Program, Audit 

Bus: 916-732-5830* 
Cell: 916-730-7398 
Arlen.Orchard@smud.org 
Arlen.Orchard@gmail.com 

SMUD 
6301 S Street, Mail Stop A312, 
Sacramento, CA 95817 

SMUD 
Chief Executive Officer and 
General Manager 

Lori Rianda 
Committee(s): Board 
Development, Finance 
 

Bus: 916-326-3107 
Cell: 916-225-1908 
Pers Cell: 916-508-1139 
Lori.rianda@bankofamerica.com 
 

555 Capitol Mall, Suite 490 
Sacramento, CA 95814 

Bank of America, 
Senior Vice President- 
Enterprise Business and 
Community 

Ben Rogers 
Committees(s): IT, WAM, 
Facilities 
 

Bus: 808-600-4495* 
Cell: 916-696-9724 
ben@alexaninnovation.com 

1232 Q Street, 2nd Floor 
Sacramento, CA 95811 

Alexan Innovation LLC, 
CEO 

Linda White 
Committees(s): Legislative 

Bus: 916-476-5891 
Cell: 916-667-2827 
Linda.white@bmwna.com 
LMWhite99@yahoo.com 

980 9th Street, Suite 950 
Sacramento, CA 95814 

BMW of North America 
Manager – Government 
and External Affairs 

 

WEAVE STAFF 
 

 

Staff Member Contact Information E-mail Address Title 

Julie Bornhoeft Bus: 916-319-4911 jbornhoeft@weaveinc.org Chief Strategy & Sustainability 
Officer 

Beth Hassett 
 

Bus: 916-319-4923 
Res: 916-359-1333 
Cell: 916-812-8258 

bhassett@weaveinc.org  Chief Executive Officer 

Kelly Chavez Bus: 916-319-4921 kchavez@weaveinc.org Chief Financial Officer  

DeWana Ljung Bus: 916-643-4606 dljung@weaveinc.org Director of Retail Operations  

Marnie Shuey Bus: 916-319-4975 mshuey@weaveinc.org Director of Human Resources 

Gina Roberson Bus: 916-319-4951 groberson@weaveinc.org Chief Program Officer – 
Advocacy & Intervention 

Jaime Gerigk 
 

Bus: 916-319-4992 
Cell: 916-801-9804 

jgerigk@weaveinc.org Chief Program Officer – 
Counseling & Outreach 

Paula delPozo Bus: 916-319-4941 
Cell: 443-545-6312  

pdelpozo@weaveinc.org Residential Services Director 

Allison Kephart Bus: 916-319-4912 akephart@weaveinc.org Director of Legal Services 

 

mailto:akephart@weaveinc.org


Board of Directors

Chief Executive Officer/ ED
Beth Hassett

(1 FTE)

Chief Strategy & Sustainability 
Officer

Julie Bornhoeft
(1 FTE)

Philanthropy 
Director

TBD
(1 FTE)

Individual Giving 
Manager

Jordyn Pruitt
(1 FTE)

Philanthropy
Assistant

TBA
(0.5 FTE)

Director of Residential 
Services

Paula Del Pozo
(1 FTE)

Residential 
Services Mgr
Lilia Chavez

(1 FTE)

CPO- Advocacy & Intervention
Gina Roberson

(1 FTE)

Anti-Trafficking 
Program Manager

Timiza Wash
(1 FTE)

Intervention 
Services Manager

Jennica Sinor
(1 FTE)

Anti-Trafficking 
Case Manager

Tyffanie Wedding
(1 FTE)

Human 
Trafficking Case 

Worker
Josie Feemster

(1 FTE)

CSEC Advocates
Lou Vang

(0.983 FTE)
Sheila Cox

 (1 FTE)
Cynthia Andrade

(1 FTE)
TBA (  )

CSEC YIA 
Advocate

TBA
(1 FTE)

CSEC CT Liaison
TBD (  )

Lead Support Line 
Specialist

Calla Gilligan (1 FTE)

Support Line Advocate
Mimi Abero (1 FTE)

Intervention Advocate
Arima Kozina (1 FTE)

On-Call SART Advocates
(0.9 FTE)

Tara Stowbunenko
Bridget Hanson
Christina McGirt
Katheryn Roberts

Lindsey Pavao
Kelsey Roloff

Dominique Jackson
Tara Neavins
Brooke Zwald

Elk Grove PD 
DVRT 

Advocate
Jessica Garcia 

(1 FTE)

CHPD VRT 
Adv.

Elicia Your
(1 FTE)

DVRT 
Advocate
Elyse Polis

(1 FTE)

On-Call CDBG 
Crisis 

Response 
Advocate

Ashley 
Gallegos

CPO-Counseling & 
Outreach

Jaime Gerigk
(1 FTE)

Campus Violence 
Prevention 
Coordinator
Shelby Vice

  (1 FTE)

Community 
Educator

Stewart Kingdon
 (1 FTE)

LRCCD Adv
Emily Z Aguilar

(.8 FTE)

CSUS Confidential 
Advocate

Laura Swartzen
(1 FTE)

HT Training 
Specialist

Rebecca Soliday 
(.4 FTE)

Counseling Services 
Manager

Laurie Fitzgerald 
(0.8 FTE)

Legal Director
Allison Kepart

(1 FTE)

Bilingual Family 
Law Attorney

Eric Rivera-Jurado
 (1 FTE)

Family Law 
Attorney

Stephen Mulnick
(1 FTE)

Bilingual 
Immigration Law 

Attorney
TBA

 (0.8 FTE)

Bilingual Legal 
Advocates

Stephanie Castro
(1 FTE)

Bilingual Legal 
Adv/Paralegal

 Nayeli M 
Rodriguez

(1 FTE)

Bilingual Legal 
Services Admin. 

Asst.
Sandra Arias-Ortiz

(0.8 FTE)

Director of Retail Operations
DeWana Ljung(1 FTE)

Residential 
Services Rep
TBD (1 FTE)

Bilingual
T-Housing Mgr

Nathalie 
Aparicio (1 FTE)

Director of Training 
& Education
Brittany Bray

1 FTE

Health Outreach 
Manager/
Counselor

Jesse Sanchez
1 FTE

Client Services & 
Ops Supervisor

Monica McDonald 
(1 FTE)

Client Services 
Advocate
Canh Le 
(1 FTE)

Maintenance 
Technician

Alexander Ilyushin
(0.8 FTE)

Elder Abuse 
Specialist 

Eliza Garbutt
(1 FTE)

AI/AN Victim 
Advocate

Joshina Cuff
(1 FTE)

Violence 
Prevention 
Navigator

Sebastian Zuniga 
(1 FTE)

Advocate
TBH

(0.5 FTE)

VRT Manager
Marci Bridgeford

(1 FTE)

Communications 
Manager

Caity Heim
(1 FTE)

Special Events & 
Community Partnership 

Manager
TBD

(1 FTE)

PREA 
Advocate

Daniel 
Milewski
(0.5 FTE)

Lead Sexual 
Assault Adv.
Sam Soriano 

(1 FTE)

SART Lead 
Advocate

Rebecca Elmer
(1 FTE)

Crisis 
Response 
Advocate
Various

(.75 FTE)

Patient 
Advocate

Alicia Stoddard
(1.0 FTE)

Lead Safehouse 
Advocate

TBD
(1 FTE)

Support Line 
Advocate

Quily Morales 
(0.75 FTE)

Kendra Barnes
(0.75 FTE)

Safehouse 
Advocates (1 FTE)

Mario Ortiz
Jennifer Potts
Jessica Tinoco

Susan Yang
TBA

Various On-Call
(1 FTE)

Nikki Myres
Valeria R Del Rios

Emily Z Aguilar
Amy Aitken

Natalie Antolin
Ami Ithurburn
Crystal Brooks

Overnight 
Advocate

Candace Davis
(1 FTE)

Weekend SH 
Advocate

Tatiana Daniels 
(0.4 FTE)

Housing First 
Adv.

Pam Hoyt
(1 FTE)

Financial 
Assistance Adv.

Shalene 
Richards (1 FTE)

Childcare 
Advocates

Cynthia McFall
(1 FTE)

Khaalis Jalal
(.5 FTE)

Ana Mosqueda-
Acevedo

(0.25 FTE)

Grants & Contracts 
Manager

Casie Pauley
(.8 FTE)

Grants and 
Contract Assistant

Ashley Owens
 (1 FTE)





10/16/2019 Details

rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Details.aspx?result=ba936ad8-ae93-4c7b-a88d-1abef1ab19d9 1/6

Registrant Details
Entity type: Corporate Class as registered with the Secretary of State or based on founding & registration documents.

Organization Name: WEAVE INC. IRS FEIN: 942493158
Entity Type: Public Benefit SOS/FTB Corporate/Organization Number: 0837265

Registry Status: Current Renewal Due/Exp. Date: 11/15/2019
RCT Registration Number: 033494 Issue Date: 6/30/2006
Record Type: Charity Registration Effective Date: 6/30/2006
Date This Status: 9/13/2018 Date of Last Renewal: 7/24/2019

Mailing Address
Street: 1900 K ST
Street Line 2:
City, State Zip: SACRAMENTO CA 95811

Filings & Correspondence
Founding Documents Founding Documents

RRF-1 2009 2009 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2009 2009 IRS Form 990

RRF-1 2008 2008 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2008 2008 IRS Form 990

RRF-1 2007 2007 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2007 2007 IRS Form 990

RRF-1 2006 2006 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2006 2006 IRS Form 990

RRF-1 2005 2005 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2005 2005 IRS Form 990

RRF-1 2004 2004 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2004 2004 IRS Form 990

RRF-1 2003 2003 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2003 2003 IRS Form 990

IRS Form 990 2001 2001 IRS Form 990

RRF-1 2002 2002 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2002 2002 IRS Form 990

RRF-1 2001 2001 RRF-1

RRF-1 2000 2000 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2000 2000 IRS Form 990

RRF-1 2011 2011 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2011 2011 IRS Form 990

RRF-1 2012 2012 RRF-1

HOME  ABOUT  MEDIA  CAREERS  REGULATIONS  RESOURCES  PROGRAMS  CONTACT

http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=Founding+Documents.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80067dd8
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2009.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80067de4
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2009.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80067de5
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2008.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80067de6
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2008.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80067de7
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2007.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80067de8
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2007.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80067de9
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2006.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80067dea
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2006.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80067deb
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2005.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80067dec
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2005.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80067ded
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2004.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80067dee
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2004.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80067def
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2003.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80067df0
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2003.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80067df1
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2001.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80067df5
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2002.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80067df2
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2002.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80067df3
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2001.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80067df4
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2000.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80067df6
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2000.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80067df7
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2011.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80067df8
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2011.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80067df9
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2012.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80067dfa
https://oag.ca.gov/home
https://oag.ca.gov/about
https://oag.ca.gov/media
https://oag.ca.gov/careers
https://oag.ca.gov/meetings/public-participation
https://oag.ca.gov/services-info
https://oag.ca.gov/programs
https://oag.ca.gov/contact


10/16/2019 Details

rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Details.aspx?result=ba936ad8-ae93-4c7b-a88d-1abef1ab19d9 2/6

IRS Form 990 2012 2012 IRS Form 990

RRF-1 2010 2010 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2010 2010 IRS Form 990

RRF-1 2014 2014 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2014 2014 IRS Form 990

Correspondence from Registry 2013 IRS Form 990

Renewal Filing 2017

Renewal Filing 2018

RRF-1 2013 2013 RRF-1

Incomplete Form Notice 2014 Incomplete Form Notice 2014

Miscellaneous Documents Miscellaneous Documents

2015 RRF-1 2015 RRF-1

2015 IRS Form 990 2015 IRS Form 990

2016 Form RRF-1 2016 Form RRF-1

2016 IRS Form 990 Series 2016 IRS Form 990 Series

Annual Renewal Data
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2001
Accounting Period End Date: 6/30/2002
Total Assets: $3,300,576.00
Total Revenue: $4,647,355.00
Filing Received Date: 11/20/2002
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2002
Accounting Period End Date: 6/30/2003
Total Assets: $3,064,907.00
Total Revenue: $4,468,896.00
Filing Received Date: 2/3/2004
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2003
Accounting Period End Date: 6/30/2004
Total Assets: $3,939,940.00
Total Revenue: $5,143,539.00
Filing Received Date: 12/10/2004
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2004
Accounting Period End Date: 6/30/2005
Total Assets: $4,424,088.00
Total Revenue: $4,430,028.00
Filing Received Date: 5/12/2006
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2005
Accounting Period End Date: 6/30/2006
Total Assets: $4,188,555.00

http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2012.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80067dfb
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2010.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80067dfc
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2010.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80067dfd
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=817722.PDF&document_id=09027b8f8024a201
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=820195.PDF&document_id=09027b8f8024a202
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=2013+IRS+Form+990.pdf&document_id=09027b8f802f5c37
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=362471.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8034c8c8
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=528193.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8039ad2f
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=613968.PDF&document_id=09027b8f80209819
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=033494210255.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8020e70c
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=42408.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8025548c
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=1019911.PDF&document_id=09027b8f8027fc87
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=1019912.PDF&document_id=09027b8f8027fc88
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=1297324.PDF&document_id=09027b8f802ed2e2
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=1297325.PDF&document_id=09027b8f802ed2e3


10/16/2019 Details

rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Details.aspx?result=ba936ad8-ae93-4c7b-a88d-1abef1ab19d9 3/6

Total Revenue: $4,186,508.00
Filing Received Date: 3/2/2007
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2006
Accounting Period End Date: 6/30/2007
Total Assets: $4,305,054.00
Total Revenue: $4,106,050.00
Filing Received Date: 5/16/2008
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2007
Accounting Period End Date: 6/30/2008
Total Assets: $4,306,067.00
Total Revenue: $3,960,829.00
Filing Received Date: 2/5/2009
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2008
Accounting Period End Date: 6/30/2009
Total Assets: $6,582,446.00
Total Revenue: $3,330,435.00
Filing Received Date: 5/17/2010
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2009
Accounting Period End Date: 6/30/2010
Total Assets: $6,294,383.00
Total Revenue: $3,001,850.00
Filing Received Date: 2/4/2011
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2010
Accounting Period End Date: 6/30/2011
Total Assets: $6,589,679.00
Total Revenue: $3,252,532.00
Filing Received Date: 2/9/2012
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2011
Accounting Period End Date: 6/30/2012
Total Assets: $6,646,375.00
Total Revenue: $3,142,432.00
Filing Received Date: 1/17/2013
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2012
Accounting Period End Date: 6/30/2013
Total Assets: $7,595,645.00
Total Revenue: $3,191,840.00
Filing Received Date: 5/8/2014



10/16/2019 Details

rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Details.aspx?result=ba936ad8-ae93-4c7b-a88d-1abef1ab19d9 4/6

Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2013
Accounting Period End Date: 6/30/2014
Total Assets: $8,602,325.00
Total Revenue: $3,498,714.00
Filing Received Date: 5/15/2015
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2014
Accounting Period End Date: 6/30/2015
Total Assets: $8,185,877.00
Total Revenue: $3,432,176.00
Filing Received Date: 5/6/2016
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2015
Accounting Period End Date: 6/30/2016
Total Assets: $7,824,971.00
Total Revenue: $4,397,374.00
Filing Received Date: 5/17/2017
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2016
Accounting Period End Date: 6/30/2017
Total Assets: $7,393,260.00
Total Revenue: $5,963,780.00
Filing Received Date: 5/21/2018
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2017
Accounting Period End Date: 6/30/2018
Total Assets: $7,422,118.00
Total Revenue: $6,875,074.00
Filing Received Date: 5/20/2019
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N):

Related Registrations & Event Reports
The related records shown below depend on the record type being viewed:

Charity Registrations relate to Professional Fundraising Events which relate to Professional Fundraiser Registrations.
Raffle Registrations relate to Raffle Reports.
Click on the RCT Registration No to navigate to the related record.

Prereq Type: Prerequisite Relationship: Charity
Registrant: ALEXANDER FLYNN COMPANY, INC.
Registration No: E0028621 Registration Type: Fundraising Event Registration Status: Complete
Date Established: 12/16/2016 Association Date: 12/31/2016 Expiration Date: 12/31/2017
Prereq Type: Prerequisite Relationship: Charity
Registrant: ALEXANDER FLYNN COMPANY, INC.
Registration No: E0029647 Registration Type: Fundraising Event Registration Status: Complete
Date Established: 2/17/2017 Association Date: 6/1/2016 Expiration Date: 12/31/2016
Prereq Type: Prerequisite Relationship: Charity

http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Details.aspx?result=80ba2a3f-5300-466e-a37c-c16bd4eaf065
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Details.aspx?result=5c0d5617-fb49-48f9-8269-26b98f52012e


10/16/2019 Details

rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Details.aspx?result=ba936ad8-ae93-4c7b-a88d-1abef1ab19d9 5/6

Registrant: AUTO DONATIONS, INC.
Registration No: 1503-2845 Registration Type: Fundraising Event Registration Status: Complete
Date Established: Association Date: 1/1/2007 Expiration Date: 12/31/2007
Prereq Type: Prerequisite Relationship: Charity
Registrant: AUTO DONATIONS, INC.
Registration No: E0001654 Registration Type: Fundraising Event Registration Status: Complete
Date Established: 3/4/2008 Association Date: 2/1/2008 Expiration Date:
Prereq Type: Prerequisite Relationship: Charity
Registrant: AUTO DONATIONS, INC.
Registration No: E0004541 Registration Type: Fundraising Event Registration Status: Complete
Date Established: 4/2/2009 Association Date: 3/1/2009 Expiration Date: 2/28/2010
Prereq Type: Prerequisite Relationship: Charity
Registrant: AUTO DONATIONS, INC.
Registration No: E0007331 Registration Type: Fundraising Event Registration Status: Complete
Date Established: 3/19/2010 Association Date: 3/1/2010 Expiration Date: 2/28/2011
Prereq Type: Prerequisite Relationship: Charity
Registrant: AUTO DONATIONS, INC.
Registration No: E0010050 Registration Type: Fundraising Event Registration Status: Complete
Date Established: 3/9/2011 Association Date: 3/1/2011 Expiration Date: 2/28/2012
Prereq Type: Prerequisite Relationship: Charity
Registrant: AUTOMOTIVE RECOVERY SERVICES INC
Registration No: E0019774 Registration Type: Fundraising Event Registration Status: Complete
Date Established: 3/6/2014 Association Date: 1/1/2014 Expiration Date: 12/31/2014
Prereq Type: Prerequisite Relationship: Charity
Registrant: AUTOMOTIVE RECOVERY SERVICES INC
Registration No: E0023442 Registration Type: Fundraising Event Registration Status: Complete
Date Established: 4/8/2015 Association Date: 1/1/2015 Expiration Date: 12/31/2015
Prereq Type: Prerequisite Relationship: Charity
Registrant: AUTOMOTIVE RECOVERY SERVICES INC
Registration No: E0027725 Registration Type: Fundraising Event Registration Status: Complete
Date Established: 7/15/2016 Association Date: 1/1/2016 Expiration Date: 12/31/2016
Prereq Type: Prerequisite Relationship: Charity
Registrant: AUTOMOTIVE RECOVERY SERVICES INC
Registration No: E0029122 Registration Type: Fundraising Event Registration Status: Complete
Date Established: 1/19/2017 Association Date: 1/1/2017 Expiration Date: 12/31/2017
Prereq Type: Prerequisite Relationship: Charity
Registrant: AUTOMOTIVE RECOVERY SERVICES INC
Registration No: E0031858 Registration Type: Fundraising Event Registration Status: Complete
Date Established: 12/27/2017 Association Date: 1/1/2018 Expiration Date: 12/31/2018
Prereq Type: Prerequisite Relationship: Charity
Registrant: AUTOMOTIVE RECOVERY SERVICES INC
Registration No: E0034736 Registration Type: Fundraising Event Registration Status: Awaiting Reporting
Date Established: 1/4/2019 Association Date: 1/1/2019 Expiration Date: 12/31/2019
Prereq Type: Prerequisite Relationship: Charity
Registrant: CATHERINE M. CONNOLLY
Registration No: E0024685 Registration Type: Fundraising Event Registration Status: Complete
Date Established: 8/11/2015 Association Date: 7/1/2015 Expiration Date: 6/30/2016
Prereq Type: Prerequisite Relationship: Charity
Registrant: CATHERINE M. CONNOLLY
Registration No: E0028079 Registration Type: Fundraising Event Registration Status: Complete
Date Established: 8/25/2016 Association Date: 7/1/2016 Expiration Date: 6/30/2017
Prereq Type: Prerequisite Relationship: Charity
Registrant: DONATE LOCAL
Registration No: E0014514 Registration Type: Fundraising Event Registration Status: Complete
Date Established: 6/13/2012 Association Date: 7/1/2011 Expiration Date: 12/1/2011

http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Details.aspx?result=88e575bc-bf44-470b-980d-33c38fc9b3b3
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Details.aspx?result=99efe6c0-b372-48f2-ac8b-c5f6e7415250
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Details.aspx?result=d401ca6f-e44c-49f3-b4b9-f8cd5d1a2e44
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Details.aspx?result=19b9715e-c92b-413a-badd-9319350d00d6
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Details.aspx?result=fb9de1c9-5883-40f3-b20f-d17608155d41
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Details.aspx?result=e511ffc6-bbf9-4c16-a31a-7c5b38c6a710
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Details.aspx?result=e70ebd86-5609-4c0e-81a9-5475c047e839
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Details.aspx?result=b633a00f-84c1-47ef-9cee-7fa28e19b7e7
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Details.aspx?result=8a4c68a8-b27a-427e-8bbe-8b326c887f5d
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Details.aspx?result=3869b8c5-7c3f-4ea0-8dc7-7a62406eddc5
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Details.aspx?result=56f5232e-8b3c-466c-b2d1-cf79b9233460
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Details.aspx?result=acd2b39a-a227-44eb-8046-b4b5d5f99082
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Details.aspx?result=200ae421-4e8b-4784-96f2-ae595591c8bc
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Details.aspx?result=4295914c-c02f-433a-b306-9d22e124516a


10/16/2019 Details

rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Details.aspx?result=ba936ad8-ae93-4c7b-a88d-1abef1ab19d9 6/6

Prereq Type: Prerequisite Relationship: Charity
Registrant: DONATE LOCAL
Registration No: E0017390 Registration Type: Fundraising Event Registration Status: Complete
Date Established: 5/28/2013 Association Date: 1/1/2012 Expiration Date: 12/31/2012
Prereq Type: Prerequisite Relationship: Charity
Registrant: DONATE LOCAL
Registration No: E0019743 Registration Type: Fundraising Event Registration Status: Complete
Date Established: 3/3/2014 Association Date: 1/1/2013 Expiration Date: 10/1/2013
Prereq Type: Prerequisite Relationship: Charity
Registrant: DONATE LOCAL
Registration No: E0022926 Registration Type: Fundraising Event Registration Status: Complete
Date Established: 3/2/2015 Association Date: 1/1/2014 Expiration Date: 12/31/2014
Prereq Type: Prerequisite Relationship: Charity
Registrant: DONATE LOCAL
Registration No: E0024984 Registration Type: Fundraising Event Registration Status: Complete
Date Established: 10/5/2015 Association Date: 7/15/2015 Expiration Date: 7/15/2019
Prereq Type: Prerequisite Relationship: Charity
Registrant: DONATE LOCAL
Registration No: E0029623 Registration Type: Fundraising Event Registration Status: Complete
Date Established: 2/15/2017 Association Date: 1/1/2016 Expiration Date: 12/31/2016
Prereq Type: Prerequisite Relationship: Charity
Registrant: DONATE LOCAL
Registration No: E0032579 Registration Type: Fundraising Event Registration Status: Complete
Date Established: 2/16/2018 Association Date: 1/1/2017 Expiration Date: 12/31/2017
Prereq Type: Prerequisite Relationship: Charity
Registrant: DONATE LOCAL
Registration No: E0035650 Registration Type: Fundraising Event Registration Status: Complete
Date Established: 2/28/2019 Association Date: 1/1/2018 Expiration Date: 12/31/2018

http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Details.aspx?result=53e136e4-7dd5-4fba-8c72-05aee8840ff1
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Details.aspx?result=8ea4e639-7bea-4a08-9509-db4a9da60878
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Details.aspx?result=51db2aca-fa16-4180-82dd-597a68e63ee3
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Details.aspx?result=56ff7036-f6d2-4830-99f6-a1104fe89a8b
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Details.aspx?result=a768bfd4-78e7-47ee-b0ef-bf630ca5ce54
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Details.aspx?result=0d72b0c1-d6d0-414f-8da3-d5bd79a22e93
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Details.aspx?result=ecad6ccf-7644-4781-89fd-cc3b46c2c06a




W.E.A.V.E. Incorporated 
 

Financial Statements  
(With Supplementary Information)  
and Independent Auditor's Report 

 
June 30, 2018 and 2017 



W.E.A.V.E. Incorporated 
 

Index 
 
 

1 

Page 

Independent Auditor's Report 2 

Financial Statements 

Statements of Financial Position 4 

Statements of Activities and Changes in Net Assets 5 

Statements of Functional Expenses 7 

Statements of Cash Flows 9 

Notes to Financial Statements 10 

Supplementary Information 

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 21 

Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 23 

Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance 
and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance 
with Government Auditing Standards 24 

Independent Auditor's Report on Compliance for the Major Federal Program and on Internal 
Control over Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance 26 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 28 

Schedule of Expenditures - California Emergency Management Agency (Criminal Justice 
Programs) 30 



 

2 

Independent Auditor's Report 

To the Board of Directors 
W.E.A.V.E. Incorporated 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of W.E.A.V.E. Incorporated, (a nonprofit 
organization) which comprise the statements of financial position as of June 30, 2018 and 2017, and 
the related statements of activities and changes in net assets, functional expenses and cash flows for 
the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes 
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We 
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from 
material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the 
financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of W.E.A.V.E. Incorporated as of June 30, 2018 and 2017, and the changes in its net 
assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America. 

 



 

3 

Other Matters 

Other Information 

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a 
whole. The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards on page 21 is presented for 
purposes of additional analysis as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations ("CFR") Part 
200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal 
Awards, and is not a required part of the financial statements. The accompanying Schedule of 
Expenditures for the California Emergency Management Agency (Criminal Justice Programs) 
("CalEMA") for the year ended June 30, 2018 on page 30, is presented for purposes of additional 
analysis as required by CalEMA, and is also not a required part of the financial statements. Such 
information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has 
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain 
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements 
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted 
in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in 
relation to the financial statements as a whole. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 
19, 2018, on our consideration of W.E.A.V.E. Incorporated's internal control over financial reporting and 
on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant 
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing 
of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to 
provide an opinion on the effectiveness of W.E.A.V.E. Incorporated's internal control over financial 
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering W.E.A.V.E. Incorporated's internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance. 

 
Sacramento, California 
December 19, 2018 
 



W.E.A.V.E. Incorporated 
 

Statements of Financial Position 
June 30, 2018 and 2017 

 
 

See Notes to Financial Statements. 
4 

2018 2017
Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 629,182$           220,303$           
Accounts receivable 666,166             714,267             
Inventories 195,932             169,611             
Prepaid expenses 61,201               48,650               

Total current assets 1,552,481          1,152,831          

Noncurrent assets
Investments 816,025             832,877             
Property and equipment, net 4,644,342          4,809,307          
Deposits 12,840               12,907               
Charitable remainder trust assets 396,430             585,338             

Total noncurrent assets 5,869,637          6,240,429          

Total assets 7,422,118$        7,393,260$        

Current liabilities
Accounts payable 90,673$             122,347$           
Accrued liabilities 269,647             261,829             
Current portion of long-term debt 87,203               83,296               

Total current liabilities 447,523             467,472             

Noncurrent liabilities
Long-term debt, net of current portion 4,129,274          4,216,542          
Deferred interest payable 596,226             506,226             

Total liabilities 5,173,023          5,190,240          

Net assets
Unrestricted 1,722,781          1,388,209          
Temporarily restricted 526,314             814,811             

Total net assets 2,249,095          2,203,020          

Total liabilities and net assets 7,422,118$        7,393,260$        

Assets

Liabilities and Net Assets

 



W.E.A.V.E. Incorporated 
 

Statements of Activities and Changes in Net Assets 
Year Ended June 30, 2018 

 
 

5 

Temporarily 

Unrestricted Restricted
Net Assets Net Assets Total

Revenues
Government grants 3,834,228$          -$                     3,834,228$          
Contributions 1,982,079            304,702               2,286,781            
Thrift store income including in-kind contributions, 

  net of cost of sales 816,370               -                       816,370               
Interest and investment income 57,103                 -                       57,103                 
Service fees 371,580               -                       371,580               
Other income 1,351                   -                       1,351                   
Change in value of charitable remainder trust assets -                       (188,908)              (188,908)              
Net assets released from restriction -                       (404,291)              (404,291)              

Total revenues 7,062,711            (288,497)              6,774,214            

Expenses
Intervention programs

Domestic violence services 1,124,699            -                       1,124,699            
Sexual assault services 1,118,787            -                       1,118,787            
Legal services 509,984               -                       509,984               
Victims of trafficking services 718,865               -                       718,865               
Residential services 1,210,427            -                       1,210,427            

Other programs
Prevention services 379,786               -                       379,786               
Community education 9,127                   -                       9,127                   

Total program services 5,071,675            5,071,675            

Supporting services
Thrift stores 605,300               -                       605,300               
Fund development 703,446               -                       703,446               
Management and general 347,718               -                       347,718               

Total expenses 6,728,139            -                       6,728,139            

Increase (decrease) in net assets 334,572               (288,497)              46,075                 

Net assets, beginning of year 1,388,209            814,811               2,203,020            

Net assets, end of year 1,722,781$          526,314$             2,249,095$          



W.E.A.V.E. Incorporated 
 

Statements of Activities and Changes in Net Assets 
Year Ended June 30, 2017 

 
 

See Notes to Financial Statements. 
6 

Temporarily 

Unrestricted Restricted
Net Assets Net Assets Total

Revenues
Government grants 3,321,939$        -$                   3,321,939$        
Contributions 1,622,088          314,533             1,936,621          
Thrift store income including in-kind contributions, 

  net of cost of sales 716,313             -                     716,313             
Interest and investment income 76,463               -                     76,463               
Service fees 298,861             -                     298,861             
Other income 10,600               -                     10,600               
Change in value of charitable remainder trust assets -                     (54,492)              (54,492)              
Net assets released from restriction -                     (346,878)            (346,878)            

Total revenues 6,046,264          (86,837)              5,959,427          

Expenses
Intervention programs

Domestic violence services 948,085             -                     948,085             
Sexual assault services 1,001,991          -                     1,001,991          
Legal services 587,565             -                     587,565             
Victims of trafficking services 699,279             -                     699,279             
Residential services 1,319,094          -                     1,319,094          

Other programs
Prevention services 373,140             -                     373,140             
Community education 6,347                 -                     6,347                 

Total program services 4,935,501          4,935,501          

Supporting services
Thrift stores 549,794             -                     549,794             
Fund development 710,797             -                     710,797             
Management and general 187,138             -                     187,138             

Total expenses 6,383,230          -                     6,383,230          

Increase (decrease) in net assets (336,966)            (86,837)              (423,803)            

Net assets, beginning of year 1,725,175          901,648             2,626,823          

Net assets, end of year 1,388,209$        814,811$           2,203,020$        

 



W.E.A.V.E. Incorporated 
 

Statements of Functional Expenses 
Year Ended June 30, 2018 

 
 

7 

Domestic 

Violence 

Services

Sexual Assault 

Services Legal Services

Victims of 

Trafficking 

Services

Residential 

Services

Prevention 

Services

Community 

Education Thrift Stores

Fund 

Development

Management 

and General Total

Personnel 942,139$       864,348$       411,070$       344,088$       640,805$       299,447$       -$               412,817$       307,231$       276,531$       4,498,476$    

Cost of sales -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 790,235         -                 -                 790,235         

Occupancy 32,274           20,165           8,462             9,500             150,144         11,957           -                 88,058           5,138             11,862           337,560         

Professional services 27,903           39,440           32,916           8,526             22,601           9,996             -                 3,551             77,125           15,739           237,797         

Depreciation 13,099           10,076           5,039             2,519             198,531         5,039             -                 16,655           -                 7,053             258,011         

Interest expense 20,370           11,653           5,827             13                  90,040           8,727             -                 -                 2,900             8,737             148,267         

Telecommunications 28,318           23,655           8,169             4,024             28,687           12,415           -                 8,743             5,731             11,555           131,297         

Business insurance and taxes 3,920             2,859             5,348             771                12,124           1,551             -                 5,345             849                2,692             35,459           

Supplies and materials 19,867           49,151           9,485             122,224         19,229           3,215             1,544             7,792             39,851           3,677             276,035         

Printing and photocopying 7,630             5,368             5,608             1,227             5,209             5,610             108                106                5,844             1,028             37,738           

Furniture and equipment 147                16,667           221                2,075             10,280           193                -                 6,124             37,762           222                73,691           

Travel 5,409             9,804             4,051             12,609           4,778             6,541             446                1,334             2,618             1,032             48,622           

Public relations 23                  17                  9                    4                    13                  109                2,687             270                8,163             12                  11,307           

Computer hardware/software 9,931             8,111             2,478             2,539             6,447             2,476             -                 3,460             6,232             579                42,253           

Merchant credit card fees 1,261             970                485                288                727                485                -                 17,529           17,563           722                40,030           

Meetings and events 1,046             5,341             444                345                1,037             553                26                  894                28,943           551                39,180           

Postage and delivery 380                487                1,550             53                  160                191                167                8                    5,365             1,373             9,734             

Volunteer and employee appreciation 1,743             1,308             654                327                981                756                -                 402                -                 916                7,087             

Client emergency expenses 867                30,608           300                200,106         11,646           300                -                 26,002           -                 420                270,249         

Membership dues and subscriptions 1,492             1,411             2,267             578                938                588                3,915             674                9,515             570                21,948           

Seminar fees and related travel 2,103             14,493           4,323             6,310             4,134             8,184             234                1,428             1,369             659                43,237           

Board expense 756                581                291                145                436                291                -                 113                -                 407                3,020             

Outreach 77                  359                30                  115                44                  205                -                 3,995             141,247         41                  146,113         

Recruitment 2,519             1,915             957                479                1,436             957                -                 -                 -                 1,340             9,603             

Bad debt expense 1,425             -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 1,425             

Total functional expenses 1,124,699      1,118,787      509,984         718,865         1,210,427      379,786         9,127             1,395,535      703,446         347,718         7,518,374      

Less cost of sales offset against 

thrift store income on the statement 

of activities and changes in net 

assets -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 (790,235)        -                 -                 (790,235)        

Total expenses on the statement 

of activities 1,124,699$    1,118,787$    509,984$       718,865$       1,210,427$    379,786$       9,127$           605,300$       703,446$       347,718$       6,728,139$    

Supporting ServicesOther ProgramsIntervention Programs

 



W.E.A.V.E. Incorporated 
 

Statements of Functional Expenses 
Year Ended June 30, 2017 

 
 

See Notes to Financial Statements. 
8 

Domestic 

Violence 

Services

Sexual Assault 

Services Legal Services

Victims of 

Trafficking 

Services

Residential 

Services

Prevention 

Services

Community 

Education Thrift Stores

Fund 

Development

Management 

and General Total

Personnel 754,442$       834,981$       476,897$       331,694$       719,970$       297,103$       -$               404,334$       327,812$       115,975$       4,263,208$    

Cost of sales -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 679,621         -                 -                 679,621         

Occupancy 57,003           31,067           10,590           13,113           130,021         8,103             -                 74,846           13,741           10,334           348,818         

Professional services 31,995           31,080           29,349           12,500           31,200           11,632           450                1,558             85,269           18,872           253,905         

Depreciation 12,759           6,870             6,870             4,907             202,193         2,454             -                 16,348           -                 7,852             260,253         

Interest expense 14,922           11,170           6,848             6,832             90,061           5,577             -                 -                 9,261             7,472             152,143         

Telecommunications 22,814           19,252           8,399             10,427           27,180           7,359             -                 7,796             11,152           8,403             122,782         

Business insurance and taxes 3,758             2,165             4,332             1,463             11,328           836                -                 4,851             1,440             2,172             32,345           

Supplies and materials 9,891             10,832           11,841           187,483         27,295           15,214           600                7,815             30,300           4,684             305,955         

Printing and photocopying 10,217           10,255           6,474             9,893             6,245             3,775             206                1,946             4,350             1,866             55,227           

Furniture and equipment 2,075             9,722             490                4,208             8,140             2,553             -                 1,127             27,143           508                55,966           

Travel 3,568             8,069             4,980             12,889           5,562             4,945             356                731                2,433             525                44,058           

Public relations 111                60                  60                  11,192           80                  71                  578                1,164             8,896             68                  22,280           

Computer hardware/software 9,993             9,131             3,816             2,148             2,332             781                -                 174                13,382           771                42,528           

Merchant credit card fees 1,950             995                781                558                961                279                -                 15,400           12,815           893                34,632           

Meetings and events 1,068             3,233             689                680                30,346           1,326             233                1,521             15,111           643                54,850           

Postage and delivery 906                644                1,618             274                560                250                -                 97                  4,463             419                9,231             

Volunteer and employee appreciation 3,763             2,015             1,972             1,408             2,134             783                65                  -                 114                2,253             14,507           

Client emergency expenses 35                  161                113                67,648           14,030           -                 -                 9,696             -                 -                 91,683           

Membership dues and subscriptions 1,182             1,673             4,743             703                630                257                3,241             -                 10,857           590                23,876           

Seminar fees and related travel 1,678             4,514             4,988             8,195             6,989             8,021             588                -                 2,166             878                38,017           

Board expense 652                351                351                251                376                125                -                 90                  -                 401                2,597             

Outreach 350                2,207             -                 9,839             -                 1,209             30                  300                130,092         -                 144,027         

Recruitment 2,533             1,364             1,364             974                1,461             487                -                 -                 -                 1,559             9,742             

Bad debt expense 420                180                -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 600                

Total functional expenses 948,085         1,001,991      587,565         699,279         1,319,094      373,140         6,347             1,229,415      710,797         187,138         7,062,851      

Less cost of sales offset against 

thrift store income on the statement 

of activities and changes in net 

assets -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 (679,621)        -                 -                 (679,621)        

Total expenses on the statement 

of activities 948,085$       1,001,991$    587,565$       699,279$       1,319,094$    373,140$       6,347$           549,794$       710,797$       187,138$       6,383,230$    

Intervention Programs Supporting ServicesOther Programs

 



W.E.A.V.E. Incorporated 
 

Statements of Cash Flows 
Years Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 

 
 

See Notes to Financial Statements. 
9 

2018 2017
Cash flows from operating activities

Change in net assets 46,075$             (423,803)$         

Reconciliation of change in net assets to net cash provided by 

(used in) operating activities
Net realized and unrealized gain on investments (43,851)             (60,488)             
Depreciation 258,011             260,253             
Changes in

Accounts receivable 48,101               (332,462)           
Inventories (26,321)             (32,416)             
Prepaid expenses (12,551)             (19,020)             
Deposits 67                      (4,425)               
Charitable remainder trust assets 188,908             54,492               
Accounts payable (31,674)             9,657                 
Accrued liabilities 7,818                 (27,942)             
Accrued interest 90,000               90,000               

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 524,583             (486,154)           

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchases of investments (282,617)           (83,630)             
Proceeds from sale of investments 343,320             443,724             
Purchases of property and equipment (93,046)             (37,063)             

Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities (32,343)             323,031             

Cash flows from financing activities
Principal payments on long-term debt (83,361)             (79,623)             

Net cash used in financing activities (83,361)             (79,623)             

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 408,879             (242,746)           

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 220,303             463,049             

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 629,182$           220,303$           

Supplemental cash flow information
Cash paid for interest 58,001$             62,144$             

 



W.E.A.V.E. Incorporated 
 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2018 and 2017 

 
 

10 

Note 1 - Organization and nature of operations 

W.E.A.V.E. Incorporated ("W.E.A.V.E.") is a nonprofit corporation established in 1978 to bring an 
end to domestic violence and sexual assault in partnership with the community. W.E.A.V.E.'s 
programs and services include the following: 

24-hour Support and Information Line 
W.E.A.V.E. operates a 24-hour Support and Information Line to provide support and referrals to 
victims of domestic violence, sexual assault and their families/friends as well as screen victims for 
entry into the Safehouse program. During the fiscal year ended 2018, W.E.A.V.E. answered 13,410 
calls on the 24-hour Support and Information Line. 

Domestic violence services 
W.E.A.V.E. provides crisis intervention, therapeutic counseling, advocacy, and supportive services 
to domestic violence victims through its 24-hour Support and Information Line and counseling 
programs. 998 domestic violence victims received individual counseling and 568 survivors received 
group counseling. 3,913 individuals received referrals and information during the fiscal year ended 
2018. 

Residential services 
W.E.A.V.E. operates a 12,000 square foot, 24-hour, 80 bed safe and confidential shelter for adult 
and child victims of domestic violence. In fiscal year 2018, W.E.A.V.E.'s Safehouse provided 17,177 
bed nights of safe shelter to 154 adults and 122 children. The Safehouse campus expanded in 
2013 with the addition of four transitional housing cottages capable of housing up to sixteen victims 
who graduate from the Safehouse program and still require safe and confidential housing. In the fall 
of 2015, W.E.A.V.E. received an Office of Violence Against Women ("OVW") transitional housing 
grant, which funds the cottages and partially funds a new 8 unit apartment complex for emergency 
transitional housing. 

Sexual assault services 
W.E.A.V.E. offers therapeutic counseling services to sexual assault victims and operates a 24-hour 
Sexual Assault Response Team ("SART"). The SART team dispatches a trained advocate to the 
hospital to provide support to every sexual assault victim undergoing an evidentiary examination. 
During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, W.E.A.V.E.'s SART team responded to 293 victims and 
W.E.A.V.E.'s counseling program provided individual counseling to 288 sexual assault victims. 

Youth prevention education services 
W.E.A.V.E. works with youth to provide a range of educational programs designed to challenge 
attitudes of gender, masculinity/femininity, and to help youth understand healthy relationships and 
indicators of abusive relationships. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, W.E.A.V.E. 
impacted more than 5,123 youth through 133 presentations and implemented a yearlong immersion 
program with three local schools. 

Legal services 
W.E.A.V.E. Legal offers affordable and accessible legal services by leveraging a Staff Attorney to 
supervise pro bono attorneys and law students to provide victims with the legal advocacy, 
information, and limited scope representation. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, 
W.E.A.V.E. Legal provided legal assistance to 989 domestic violence victims, including assistance 
with protection orders and referrals to outside agencies. 



W.E.A.V.E. Incorporated 
 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2018 and 2017 

 
 

11 

Community education 
W.E.A.V.E. builds awareness through community outreach, presentations, and proactive media 
engagement to inform the community of the impact of domestic violence and sexual assault. During 
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, W.E.A.V.E. reached more than 16,217 adults through 247 
educational presentations and 73 informational fairs. 

Victims of trafficking services 
W.E.A.V.E. provides community outreach activities to raise awareness regarding human trafficking 
in the region and in April 2017 received a grant to run a Human Trafficking Victim Assistance 
Program. Since the beginning of the program, W.E.A.V.E. has provided temporary safe shelter via 
our partner agency run facility, Lotus House and Wind Youth Shelter to 189 adult and youth victims 
of domestic sex trafficking. Additionally, W.E.A.V.E. provides supportive services to Commercially 
Sexually Exploited Children ("CSEC") that includes crisis intervention and stabilization, case 
management and advocacy. W.E.A.V.E. has provided services to 136 CSEC clients between July 
1, 2016 and June 30, 2018. 

As a result of this additional funding, W.E.A.V.E. now operates the only 24/7 Anti-Trafficking 
Response Team ("ART") supporting child and adult victims of sex trafficking in Sacramento County. 

Note 2 - Summary of significant accounting policies 

Basis of presentation 
The financial statements are presented in conformity with Accounting Standards Codification 
("ASC") 958-205, Not-for-Profit Entities - Presentation of Financial Statements. Under ASC 958-
205, W.E.A.V.E. reports information regarding its financial position and activities according to three 
classes of net assets: unrestricted, temporarily restricted, and permanently restricted. W.E.A.V.E. 
does not have any permanently restricted net assets. 

Cash and cash equivalents 
For financial statement purposes, W.E.A.V.E. considers all investments with a maturity at purchase 
of three months or less to be cash equivalents. 

Accounts receivable 
Accounts receivable are reported net of an allowance for doubtful accounts. Management's 
estimate of the allowance is based on historical collection experience and a review of the current 
status of accounts receivable. It is reasonably possible that management's estimate of the 
allowance will change. As of June 30, 2018 and 2017, there is no allowance for doubtful accounts. 

Inventories 
Inventories consist primarily of donated thrift store goods and are stated at estimated market value 
at time of donation. 

Charitable remainder trust 
The charitable remainder interests receivable from third parties are calculated at the present value 
of future cash flows and are based on little or no market data and require management to develop 
their own assumptions. 

Investments 
Investments are stated at fair value based on quoted market prices or set interest rates. 
Investments are intended to be held long-term. 



W.E.A.V.E. Incorporated 
 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2018 and 2017 

 
 

12 

Property and equipment 
Property and equipment are stated at cost or, if donated, at fair market value as of the date of 
donation and depreciated using the straight-line method over estimated useful lives of five to 30 
years. W.E.A.V.E. capitalizes all expenditures of property and equipment in excess of $5,000. 

Impairment of long-lived assets  
W.E.A.V.E. reviews its property and equipment for impairment whenever events or changes in 
circumstances indicate that the carrying value of an asset may not be recoverable. If the fair value 
is less than the carrying amount of the asset, an impairment loss is recognized for the difference. 
No impairment losses have been recognized during the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017. 

Revenue recognition 
Contributions, including fundraiser proceeds and private foundation grants, are recognized in full 
when received or unconditionally promised, in accordance with ASC 958-605, Not-for-Profit Entities 
- Revenue Recognition. Donated goods and services, including thrift store contributions, are 
recorded at their estimated fair market value. 

Contributions accompanied by donor restrictions are initially reported as increases in temporarily 
restricted net assets. When a restriction expires (generally, as payments are made to fulfill the 
donor-imposed purpose of the contribution), temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to 
unrestricted net assets and reported in the statement of activities as net assets released from 
restrictions. 

Grants received from governments are recognized as revenue when the qualifying costs are 
incurred.  

Income taxes 
W.E.A.V.E. has applied for and received a determination letter from the Internal Revenue Service 
("IRS") to be treated as a tax exempt entity pursuant to Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue 
Code and did not have any unrelated business income for the years ended June 30, 2018 and 
2017. Due to its tax exempt status, W.E.A.V.E. is not subject to income taxes. W.E.A.V.E is 
required to file tax returns with the IRS and other taxing authorities. Accordingly, these financial 
statements do not reflect a provision for income taxes and the organization has no other tax 
positions which must be considered for disclosure. W.E.A.V.E is subject to routine audits by taxing 
jurisdictions; however, there are currently no audits for any tax periods in progress. Management 
believes it is no longer subject to income tax examinations for years prior to 2015. 

Functional allocation of expenses 
Expenses have been summarized on a functional basis in the statements of functional expenses. 
Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated between the functional areas based on management 
estimates of employees' time incurred and on resource usage. 

Use of estimates 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of America require management to make estimates and assumptions that 
affect certain reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and 
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses 
during the reporting period. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates. 



W.E.A.V.E. Incorporated 
 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2018 and 2017 

 
 

13 

Note 3 - Accounts receivable 

Accounts receivable consist of the following at June 30: 

2018 2017

Government grants 657,518$           685,312$           

Other services 8,648                 28,955               

Total 666,166$           714,267$           

 
Note 4 - Investments 

Investments recorded at fair value consist of the following at June 30: 

2018 2017

Sacramento Region Community Foundation 7,880$               7,298$               

Corporate bonds 297,148             125,180             

Equity securities 510,997             700,399             

Total 816,025$           832,877$           

 
Interest and net investment income consist of the following at June 30: 

2018 2017

Interest and dividends 13,252$             15,975$             

Net realized and unrealized gains 43,851               60,488               

Total 57,103$             76,463$             

 
Note 5 - Property and equipment, net 

Property and equipment consist of the following as of June 30: 

2018 2017

Land 435,000$           435,000$           
Buildings and improvements 6,462,406          6,414,649          
Furniture and equipment 252,407             252,407             
Vehicles 90,978               45,691               

7,240,791          7,147,747          
Less accumulated depreciation (2,596,449)        (2,338,440)        

Property and equipment, net 4,644,342$        4,809,307$        

 



W.E.A.V.E. Incorporated 
 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2018 and 2017 

 
 

14 

Note 6 - Charitable remainder trust assets 

Charitable remainder trust assets reflect the estimated fair value of two irrevocable charitable trusts, 
held by third-party trustees, for which W.E.A.V.E. is a remainder beneficiary. The trust agreements 
provide payments to designated lead beneficiaries equaling the lesser of 5% of trust net assets or 
total trust net income, with catch-up provisions. After each trust's specified term, W.E.A.V.E.'s share 
of the remainder of trust net assets will be distributed. The net present value of these assets was 
determined using an investment return consistent with the composition of the asset portfolio, life 
expectancies of the lead beneficiaries, and a discount rate of 3.4% and 2.4% at June 30, 2018 and 
2017, respectively. The donors did not impose any purpose restrictions on W.E.A.V.E.'s use of the 
funds when eventually received. The trusts and their significant terms are as follows as of June 30: 

  2018  2017  Difference 

  

 

  

 

 

 

  Hansen CRT-10% remainder interest 
in a unitrust established in 2000; term 
is the lesser of 20 years from 
establishment (2020) or the lives of 
both lead beneficiaries; term is 
assumed to be 20 years, based on 
actuarial estimates. 

 
$ 396,430 

 
$ 420,233 

 

$ 23,803 

  

 

  

 

 

 

  Harvey CRT-100% remainder 
interest in a unitrust, of which 
W.E.A.V.E. was named beneficiary in 
2000; term was the lives of both lead 
beneficiaries, assumed to be five 
years from 2018 based on actuarial 
estimates. The Harvey trust was 
disbursed during the year ended 
June 30, 2018. 

 

 

- 
 

 

165,105 

 

 
165,105 

  

 

  

 

 

 

  Total 
 

$ 396,430 
 

$ 585,338  $ 188,908 
          

 
Note 7 - Fair value measurements and disclosures 

W.E.A.V.E. measures the fair value of its investments and charitable remainder trust assets on a 
recurring basis in the financial statements. The following summarizes the three levels of inputs and 
hierarchy of fair value W.E.A.V.E. uses when measuring fair value: 

 Level 1 inputs utilize quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or 
liabilities that W.E.A.V.E. has the ability to access; 

 Level 2 inputs may include quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets, 
as well as interest rates and yield curves that are observable at commonly quoted intervals; 
and 

 Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability that are typically based on an 
entity's own assumptions as there is little, if any, related market activity. 



W.E.A.V.E. Incorporated 
 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2018 and 2017 

 
 

15 

In instances where the determination of the fair value measurement is based on inputs from 
different levels of the fair value hierarchy, the fair value measurement will fall within the lowest level 
input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety. 

W.E.A.V.E.'s assets subject to fair value measurements and disclosures are classified as follows: 

  

June 30, 2018 

  

Level 1  Level 2  Level 3 

  

 

  

 

 

 

  Investments* 
 

$ 518,877 
 

$ -  $ - 

Corporate bonds 
 

 - 
 

 297,148  

 
- 

Charitable remainder interests 
from third parties 

 

 
- 

 

 
- 

 

 
396,430 

  

 

  

 

 

 

  Total 
 

$ 518,877 
 

$ 297,148  $ 396,430 
  

 

  

 

 

 

  

  

 

  

 

 

 

  

  

June 30, 2017 

  

Level 1  Level 2  Level 3 

  

 

  

 

 

 

  Investments* 
 

$ 707,697 
 

$ -  $ - 

Corporate bonds 
 

 - 
 

 125,180  

 
- 

Charitable remainder interests 
from third parties 

 

 
- 

 

 
- 

 

 
585,338 

  

 

  

 

 

 

  Total 
 

$ 707,697 
 

$ 125,180  $ 585,338 
  

 

  

 

 

 

  

 
*Investments include stocks and mutual funds. 

W.E.A.V.E.'s charitable remainder interests receivable from third parties are classified within Level 
3 of the hierarchy because determination of the present value of future cash flows is based on little 
or no market data and requires management to develop their own assumptions. 

Changes in the Level 3 charitable remainder interest for the fiscal year end consist of the following: 

2018 2017

July 1 585,338$           639,830$           

Unrealized increase (decrease) in fair value (38,015)             (54,492)             

Receipt of disbursed funds (150,893)           -                    

June 30 396,430$           585,338$           

 



W.E.A.V.E. Incorporated 
 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2018 and 2017 

 
 

16 

Note 8 - Long-term debt 

Long-term debt consists of the following at June 30: 

  2018  2017 

     
Fixed-rate mortgage payable, secured by the 1900 K 
Street building, payable in $11,980 monthly installments 
including interest at 4.78% per annum, maturing June 
18, 2029. For the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, 
interest expense was $58,001 and $61,739, 
respectively.  $ 1,217,152  $ 1,300,513 
       
Mortgage note payable to Department of Housing and 
Community Development Emergency Housing and 
Assistance Program ("EHAP"), secured by the 
Safehouse, with simple interest of 3% per annum. No 
monthly payments through maturity in July 2019, at 
which time all outstanding principal and accrued interest 
will be forgiven provided that W.E.A.V.E. continues to 
operate the Safehouse as an emergency shelter, a 
transitional housing facility, or a safe haven throughout 
the term. For each of the years ended June 30, 2018 
and 2017, interest expense totaled $30,000. Accrued 
interest as of June 30, 2018 and 2017 is $267,500 and 
$237,500, respectively.   1,000,000   1,000,000 
       
Mortgage note payable to EHAP, secured by the Open 
House Emergency Shelter, with simple interest of 3% 
per annum. No monthly payments through maturity in 
October 2023, at which time all outstanding principal and 
accrued interest will be forgiven provided that 
W.E.A.V.E. continues to operate the Open House 
Emergency Shelter as an emergency shelter, a 
transitional housing facility, or a safe haven throughout 
the term. For each of the years ended June 30, 2018 
and 2017, interest expense totaled $30,000. Accrued 
interest as of June 30, 2018 and 2017 is $142,500 and 
$112,500, respectively.   1,000,000   1,000,000 
       



W.E.A.V.E. Incorporated 
 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2018 and 2017 

 
 

17 

  2018  2017 

     
Mortgage note payable in the amount of $1,000,000 to 
EHAP, secured by the transitional housing cottages, with 
simple interest of 3% per annum. No monthly payments 
through maturity in May 2021, at which time all 
outstanding principal and accrued interest will be 
forgiven provided that W.E.A.V.E. continues to operate 
the Cottages as an emergency shelter, a transitional 
housing facility, or a safe haven throughout the term. For 
each of the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, 
interest expense totaled $30,000. Accrued interest as of 
June 30, 2018 and 2017 is $186,226 and $156,226, 
respectively.   999,325   999,325 

       
Subtotal   4,216,477   4,299,838 

Less current portion   (87,203)   (83,296) 

       

Long-term debt, net  $   4,129,274  $ 4,216,542 

        
Future annual maturities of long-term debt over each of the next five years and thereafter 
subsequent to June 30, 2018 are as follows: 

2019 87,203$             

2020 1,091,157          

2021 1,094,895          

2022 100,053             

2023 1,104,748          

Thereafter 738,421             

4,216,477$        

 
For the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, interest expense was $148,267 and $152,143, 
respectively. 

Note 9 - Temporarily restricted net assets 

Temporarily restricted net assets consist of the following at June 30: 

2018 2017

Charitable remainder trust assets, unconditionally 

promised but not received (time restriction only) 396,430$           585,338$           

Other time restricted contributions 129,884             229,473             

Total 526,314$           814,811$           

 



W.E.A.V.E. Incorporated 
 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2018 and 2017 

 
 

18 

Note 10 - Operating lease obligations 

W.E.A.V.E. leases its thrift store building and some office equipment under non-cancelable 
operating lease agreements expiring in 2018 through 2020. 

Rental expenses for the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 are $157,369 and $170,546, 
respectively. 

Future minimum lease payments for each of the next five years subsequent to June 30, 2018 are as 
follows: 

2019 132,453$           

2020 84,697               

2021 53,631               

2022 51,703               
2023 44,237               

366,721$           

 
Note 11 - Contributed goods and services 

W.E.A.V.E. receives donated clothing and household items for resale or for use in the shelter. As of 
June 30, 2018 and 2017, corresponding estimated values of $790,235 and $679,621, respectively, 
are recognized as contributions and once sold is recorded as thrift store income in the financial 
statements. 

Volunteers donated approximately 19,637 hours during the fiscal year to W.E.A.V.E. to assist in 
administration, fundraising, and program activities. The value of this donated time is not recognized 
in the accompanying financial statements because it does not meet the criteria for recognition under 
ASC 958-605. 

Note 12 - Retirement plan 

W.E.A.V.E. sponsors an employee retirement plan under IRC §401(k). All employees of at least 21 
years of age, who have completed at least one year of service, including at least 1,000 hours, are 
eligible to participate. Employer contributions are discretionary and vest at 20% per year beginning 
with completion of one year of service. Employee contributions are subject to limits by the IRC. 
Total plan costs were $1,875 and $1,755 for 2018 and 2017, respectively. Employer contributions to 
the employee retirement plan for 2018 and 2017 were $21,928 and $18,449, respectively. 



W.E.A.V.E. Incorporated 
 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2018 and 2017 

 
 

19 

Note 13 - Overhead percentage 

W.E.A.V.E. measures the ratio of its supporting service expenses to its total revenues, exclusive of 
thrift store activities, as of June 30, 2018 and 2017 are as follows: 

Amounts

% of Total 

Revenues Amounts

% of Total 

Revenues

Supporting service expenses
Fund development 703,446$        11.4% 710,797$        13.4%
Management and general 347,718          5.7% 187,138          3.5%

Total supporting services, net 1,051,164$     17.1% 897,935$        16.9%

Total revenues
Total unrestricted revenues 7,062,711$     6,046,264$     
Temporarily restricted 

contributions 304,702          314,533          
Less releases temporarily 

restricted contributions (404,291)        (346,878)        
Less net thrift store income (816,370)        (716,313)        

Total revenues, net 6,146,752$     5,297,606$     

2018 2017

 
Note 14 - Concentration of credit risk 

W.E.A.V.E. maintains its cash balances in bank deposit accounts. At times, these balances may 
exceed the federal insurance limits; however, W.E.A.V.E. has not experienced any losses with 
respect to its bank balances in excess of government provided insurance. Management believes 
that no significant concentration of credit risk exists with respect to these cash balances at June 30, 
2018. 

Note 15 - Contingency 

W.E.A.V.E.'s government funding is subject to audit by granting agencies. Although such audits 
could generate expense disallowances under terms of the grants, management believes that any 
required reimbursements would not be material to W.E.A.V.E.'s financial statements as a whole. 

Note 16 - Subsequent events 

Events that occur after the statement of financial position date but before the financial statements 
were available to be issued must be evaluated for recognition or disclosure. The effects of 
subsequent events that provide evidence about conditions that existed at the statement of financial 
position date are recognized in the accompanying statement of financial position. Subsequent 
events which provide evidence about conditions that existed after the balance sheet date, require 
disclosure in the accompanying notes. Management evaluated the activity of the W.E.A.V.E. 
through December 19, 2018, the date the financial statements were available to be issued, and 
concluded that no subsequent events have occurred that would require recognition in the financial 
statements or disclosure in the notes to financial statements. 

 



 

 

Supplementary Information



W.E.A.V.E. Incorporated 
 

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
Year ended June 30, 2018 

 
 

 
21 

Federal Grantor/ Federal Agency or

(Pass-through Grantor)/ CFDA Pass-through Federal

Program Title Number Number Expenditures

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services 

Passed through from the California Department of 

Public Health

Prevention and Control Research (IPV/SA) 93.136 14-10673 46,102$             

Prevention and Control Research (IPV/SA) 93.136 14-10673 23,703               

Total CFDA 93.136 69,805               

Passed through: International Rescue Committee
Look Beneath the Surface Regional Anti-

Trafficking Program
93.598

HHS-2017-ACF-

IOAS-OTIP-ZV- 14,302               

Total U.S. Department of Health and Human Services 84,107$             

U.S. Department of Homeland Security

Passed through from the Sacramento Regional 

Emergency Food and Shelter Board

Emergency Food and Shelter Program ("EFSP") 97.024 32-0824-00-023 31,370$             

Total U.S. Department of Homeland Security 31,370$             

U.S. Department of Justice
Passed through from the California Emergency 

Management Agency

Federal Victims of Crime Act 16.575 * DV 16 31 1196 21,546$             

Federal Victims of Crime Act 16.575 * DV 17 32 1196 249,369             

Federal Victims of Crime Act 16.575 * RC 16 29 1196 126,614             

Federal Victims of Crime Act 16.575 * RC 17 30 1196 352,021             

Federal Victims of Crime Act 16.575 * XV 15 01 1196 206,222             

Federal Victims of Crime Act 16.575 * XS 16 01 1196 103,313             

Federal Victims of Crime Act 16.575 * XL 16 01 1196 198,419             

Federal Victims of Crime Act 16.575 * KU 16 01 1196 91,681               

Federal Victims of Crime Act 16.575 * KD 17 01 1196 153,137             

Federal Victims of Crime Act 16.575 * KA 17 01 1196 94,647               

Total CFDA 16.575 1,596,969          

 Passed through from Office of Violence Against Women

OVW Transitional Housing 16.736 2015-WH-AX-0065 137,255             

OVW Training 16.529 2017-FW-AX-K007 65,699               

OVW Legal 16.524 2015-WL-AX-0022 226,409             

429,363             



W.E.A.V.E. Incorporated 
 

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
Year ended June 30, 2018 

 
 

See Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards. 
 

22 

Federal Grantor/ Federal Agency or

(Pass-through Grantor)/ CFDA Pass-through Federal

Program Title Number Number Expenditures

Passed through from the City of Elk Grove

Protection Orders Program 16.590 C-13-473 61,784               

Total U.S. Department of Justice 2,088,116$        

Total federal expenditures 2,203,593$        

* Tested as a major program



W.E.A.V.E. Incorporated 
 

Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
June 30, 2018 

 
 

23 

Note 1 - Basis of presentation 

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards ("Schedule") includes the federal 
grant activity of W.E.A.V.E. Incorporated ("W.E.A.V.E.") and is presented on the accrual basis of 
accounting. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of 
Title 2 U.S. code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, 
Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards ("Uniform Guidance"). Because the 
Schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of W.E.A.V.E., the amounts presented 
in this Schedule may differ from the amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the basic 
financial statements of W.E.A.V.E. 

Note 2 - Summary of significant accounting policies 

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such 
expenditures are recognized following the costs principles contained in the Uniform Guidance, 
wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement. 
W.E.A.V.E. has elected to use the 10-percent de minimis cost rate allowed under the Uniform 
Guidance when applicable. 



 

24 

Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and  
on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements  

Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards 

To the Board of Directors 
W.E.A.V.E. Incorporated 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of W.E.A.V.E. 
Incorporated ("W.E.A.V.E."), which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2018, 
and the related statements of activities and changes in net assets, functional expenses and cash flows 
for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report 
thereon dated December 19, 2018.  

Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered W.E.A.V.E.'s internal 
control over financial reporting ("internal control") to determine the audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, 
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of W.E.A.V.E.'s internal control. 
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of W.E.A.V.E.'s internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material 
misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a 
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control 
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged 
with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control, that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material 
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether W.E.A.V.E.'s financial statements are free of 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on 
the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with 
those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. 
The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to 
be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

 



 

25 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
entity's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and 
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

 
Sacramento, California 
December 19, 2018  



 

26 

Independent Auditor's Report on Compliance for the Major Federal Program and  
on Internal Control over Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance 

To the Board of Directors 
W.E.A.V.E. Incorporated 

Report on Compliance for the Major Federal Program 

We have audited W.E.A.V.E. Incorporated's ("W.E.A.V.E.") compliance with the types of compliance 
requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material 
effect on W.E.A.V.E.'s major federal program for the year ended June 30, 2018. W.E.A.V.E.'s major 
federal program is identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule 
of findings and questioned costs. 

Management's Responsibility  

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and 
grants applicable to its federal programs. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for W.E.A.V.E.'s major federal program based 
on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of 
compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; 
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal 
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements 
for Federal Awards ("Uniform Guidance"). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the 
types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a 
major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about 
W.E.A.V.E.'s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we 
considered necessary in the circumstances.  

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for the major 
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of W.E.A.V.E.'s 
compliance. 

Opinion on the Major Federal Program 

In our opinion, W.E.A.V.E. complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements 
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on its major federal program for the year 
ended June 30, 2018. 



 

27 

Report on Internal Control over Compliance 

Management of W.E.A.V.E. is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control 
over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and 
performing our audit of compliance, we considered W.E.A.V.E.'s internal control over compliance with 
the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on the major federal program to 
determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on compliance for the major federal program and to test and report on internal 
control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not 
express an opinion on the effectiveness of W.E.A.V.E.'s internal control over compliance.  

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their 
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance 
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over 
compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that 
there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 
federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant 
deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe 
than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by 
those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, 
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of our testing based on the requirements of 
the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 

 
Sacramento, California 
December 19, 2018 



W.E.A.V.E. Incorporated 
 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 
June 30, 2018 

 
 

28 

A. Summary of Auditor's Results 
 

Financial Statements 

1. Type of report the auditor issued on whether the financial 
statements audited were prepared in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles: Unmodified 

2. Internal control over financial reporting: 

a. Material weakness(es) 
identified?   Yes X No 

b. Significant deficiency(ies) 
identified?  Yes X None reported 

3. Noncompliance material to financial 
statements noted?  Yes X No 

 
Federal Awards 

4. Internal control over major federal programs: 

a. Material weakness(es) 
identified?  Yes X No 

b. Significant deficiency(ies) 
identified?  Yes X None reported 

5. Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major 
federal programs: Unmodified 

6. Any audit findings disclosed that are 
required to be reported in accordance 
with 2 CFR Section 200.516(a)?  Yes X No 

 
7. Identification of major federal programs: 

 
CFDA Numbers(s)  Name of Federal Program or Cluster 

16.575  Federal Victims of Crime Act 
 

8. Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and 
Type B programs: $750,000 

9. Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee X Yes  No 



W.E.A.V.E. Incorporated 
 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 
June 30, 2018 

 
 

29 

 
B. Findings - Financial Statements Audit 
 
  NONE 
  
C. Findings and Questioned Costs - Major Federal Award Programs Audit 
 
  NONE 
 



W.E.A.V.E. Incorporated 
 

Schedule of Expenditures 
California Emergency Management Agency (Criminal Justice Programs) 

Year Ended June 30, 2018  
 
 

30 

Grant Number Grant Period

Personnel 

Services

Operating 

Expenses Cash Total 

Less State 

Portion Federal Portion Match Portion

Total

Cash + Match

DV 16 31 1196 7/1/2017 - 9/30/2017 32,480$             5,124$               37,604$             (16,058)$           21,546$             -$                  37,604$             

DV 17 32 1196 10/1/2017-9/30/2018 315,398             99,640               415,038             (165,669)           249,369             10,552               425,590             

RC 16 29 1196 9/1/2016-9/30/2017 114,550             26,934               141,484             (14,870)             126,614             1,201                142,685             

RC 17 30 1196 10/1/2017-9/30/2018 287,496             65,833               353,329             (1,308)               352,021             21,134               374,463             

XV 15 01 1196 4/1/2016 - 3/31/2018 158,353             47,869               206,222             -                    206,222             40,870               247,092             

XS 16 01 1196 7/1/2016 - 6/30/2018 53,925               49,388               103,313             -                    103,313             14,068               117,381             

XL 16 01 1196 7/1/2016 - 12/31/2019 157,386             41,033               198,419             -                    198,419             79,543               277,962             

KU 16 01 1196 4/1/2017 - 8/31/2018 65,214               26,467               91,681               -                    91,681               21,672               113,353             

KD 17 01 1196 10/1/2017-12/31/2019 79,298               73,839               153,137             -                    153,137             34,673               187,810             

KA 17 01 1196 10/1/2017-9/30/2019 69,417               25,230               94,647               -                    94,647               8,409                103,056             

1,333,517$        461,357$           1,794,874$        (197,905)$         1,596,969$        232,122$           2,026,996$        

 
 





WEAVE ALBH Program Budget 2019/20

Budget FY 2019-2020 Safehouse

Transitional 

Housing Open House

Residential 

Programs Total ALBH Request

Government grant revenues      1,114,965.35                333,461.72           12,009.56 1,460,436.63 8000.00
1,114,965.35 333,461.72 12,009.56 1,460,436.63 8000.00

Salaries & wages 671,326.95 108,206.29 0.00 779,533.24 -$                
Salaries accrued: vacation 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

671,326.95 108,206.29 0.00 779,533.24 0.00

Payroll taxes 51,356.51 8,277.78 0.00 59,634.29
CA SUI PR Taxes 15,377.25 1,590.75 0.00 16,968.00
Workers compensation 18,039.03 2,877.45 0.00 20,916.47
Health insurance 60,122.04 10,394.95 0.00 70,516.99
Opt-out expense 450.00 0.00 0.00 450.00
Health - medical care reimbursements 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Dental Insurance 7,555.14 1,333.26 0.00 8,888.40
Disability & life insurance 816.30 459.90 0.00 1,276.20
EAP Plus Plan 236.86 37.53 0.00 274.39
Vision insurance 1,719.72 303.48 0.00 2,023.20

155,672.85 25,275.09 0.00 180,947.94
14 15 16 960,481.18 0.00

Recruiting expenses - advertising                         -                                  -                           -   0.00
Recruiting expenses - other                         -                                  -                           -   0.00
401k 2%                         -                                  -                           -   0.00
Board expenses                         -                                  -                           -   0.00
Staff meetings                 125.71                                -                           -   125.71
Business meals/entertainment                         -                                  -                           -   0.00
Seminar registration                 690.00                                -                           -   690.00
Seminar travel-expense             2,741.53                    2,370.08                         -   5,111.61
Staff Development & Training             2,074.01                                -                           -   2,074.01
Subscriptions                         -                                  -                           -   0.00
Memberships, Dues & Fees                 445.92                       649.91                         -   1,095.83
Volunteer parties, awards & gifts                         -                                  -                           -   0.00
Employee recognition awards/rewards                        -                                  -                           -   0.00
Pension admin costs                         -                                  -                           -   0.00
Holiday parties/picnics/retreat                         -                                  -                           -   0.00

6,077.17 3,019.99 0.00 9,097.16 0.00
833,076.97 136,501.37 0.00 969,578.34 0.00

Consultants & professional fees           15,257.06                  73,190.00                         -   88,447.06
Security services                 300.00                       495.00                         -   795.00
Audit & tax preparation fees             4,221.00                       837.00                         -   5,058.00
Temporary Help                         -                                  -                           -   0.00
Payroll service                         -                                  -                           -   0.00
Other services 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

19,778.06 74,522.00 0.00 94,300.06 -$                

Rent expense                         -                                  -                           -   0.00
Utilities expense           37,321.78                  16,008.49           16,567.49 69,897.76 8000.00
Janitorial services                         -                                  -                           -   0.00
Janitorial supplies             4,597.32                       299.67                         -   4,896.99



WEAVE ALBH Program Budget 2019/20

Landscaping services             8,068.96                    1,810.38             3,510.50 13,389.84
Heating/Air Ventilation expenses             1,294.22                          83.76                         -   1,377.98
Repair & maintenance-building           21,158.11                    1,743.94             4,217.17 27,119.22
Property insurance             2,420.91                    1,937.17             1,386.99 5,745.07
Real property taxes             3,111.22                       294.87           10,296.56 13,702.65
Elevator/phone services                         -                                  -                           -   0.00
Security system                   77.69                                -                           -   77.69
K Street Remodel 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

78,050.21 22,178.28 35,978.71 136,207.20 8,000.00

Office supplies             2,447.55                          97.94                         -   2,545.49
program supplies           37,268.65                  17,086.12                         -   54,354.77
Computer hardware                 969.69                       739.11                         -   1,708.80
Computer software                         -                                  -                           -   0.00
Database Services             4,462.20                       281.07                         -   4,743.27
Furniture & equipment expensed           21,751.67                                -               7,337.23 29,088.90
Outside printing                 152.74                                -                           -   152.74
cell phone expense                         -                                  -                           -   0.00
Telephone expense           33,521.27                    1,650.06                 179.57 35,350.90
Internet fees                         -                                  -               1,581.51 1,581.51
Equipment rentals                 609.80                    2,767.95                 658.67 4,036.42
Copier lease & maintenance             2,583.21                       168.19                         -   2,751.40
Postage machine lease                   69.22                            2.93                         -   72.15
Repair & maintenance - F & E                 147.00                                -                   123.43 270.43
Repair & maintenance - vehicles             1,905.22                                -                           -   1,905.22
business property taxes                         -                                  -                           -   0.00
Postage & shipping                 131.98                            6.06                         -   138.04
Liability insurance             4,872.41                       378.92             1,475.00 6,726.33
Taxes, licenses, fees                 621.00                                -                   169.00 790.00
Travel - mileage & parking             4,433.14                       284.76                 106.72 4,824.62
Travel - gas: WEAVE vehicles             3,092.81                                -                           -   3,092.81
Moving/Hauling/Storage expenses             6,185.52                       259.74                         -   6,445.26
Direct Mail & Outreach expense                         -                                  -                           -   0.00
Public relations/Cultivation                         -                                  -                           -   0.00
Food & Beverage Expense                 613.73                                -                           -   613.73
Third Party Expense                         -                                  -                           -   0.00
In-Kind Donations Expense 0.00
Cost of Sales-In Kind Donations 0.00
Merchant /Bank Fees                         -                                  -                           -   0.00
Late Fees                         -                                  -                           -   0.00
Miscellaneous other                         -                                  -                           -   0.00
Client emergency expenses           19,819.22                                -                           -   19,819.22
Travel - client bus & cabs             4,235.90                                -                           -   4,235.90
Client Housing Assistance           46,285.87                    2,300.00                         -   48,585.87

196,179.80 26,022.85 11,631.13 233,833.78 0.00

Administrative cost allocation 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Realized gain/loss - Investment sales                        -                                  -                           -   0.00
Unrealized gain/loss on Investments                        -                                  -                           -   0.00
Change in value of CRT assets 0.00
Mortgage interest expense                         -                                  -                           -   0.00
Interest & finance charges                         -                    30,000.00           30,000.00 60,000.00
Purchase discounts lost 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00



WEAVE ALBH Program Budget 2019/20

0.00 30,000.00 30,000.00 60,000.00 0.00

Depreciation expense           90,272.64                  50,274.23           27,244.20 167,791.07
Bad Debt Expense 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

90,272.64 50,274.23 27,244.20 167,791.07

Cap Cam Revenues-Board&Others 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Total expenses 1,217,357.68 339,498.73 104,854.04 1,661,710.45 8,000.00

Operating Surplus/(deficit) (102,392.33) (6,037.01) (92,844.48) (201,273.82) 0.00



ALBH	Grant	Application	2019
City	of	Sacramento

	Submitted	On:
October	25th,	2019	@	3:58pm

Organization	Name Wellspring	Women''s	Center

Physcial	Address 3414	4th	Avenue
Sacramento
CA
95817

Mailing	address	different	from
physical	address?

Yes

Mailing	Address PO	Box	5728
Sacramento
CA
95817

Name Genelle	Smith

Title Executive	Director

Phone	Number 9164549688

E-Mail	Address genelle.wellspring@comcast.net

Name Genelle	Smith

Phone	Number 916-454-9688

E-Mail	Address genelle.wellspring@comcast.net

Name Genelle	Smith

Title Executive	Director

Phone	Number 916-454-9688

E-Mail	Address genelle.wellspring@comcast.net

Please	indicate	below	the
services	you	are	requesting

Transportation

Indicate	the	dollar	amount
requested	for	Transportation

$8,400.00

#	of	clients	that	will	be	served	by
the	Ann	Land	&	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds

3,200

Total	Amount	Requested $8,400.00

The	amount	requested	will	be
applied	to	the	following.

On-going	Program

The	funds	requested	will	be	used
to	serve	the	following	(please
check	all	that	apply)

Women
Children



Will	other	funds	supplement	Ann
Land	and	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds	request	for	this
program?

No

Did	you	lose	any	funding	in	2019
from	any	source?

No

Do	you	anticipate,	or	have	you
been	notified,	that	you	will	lose
funding	in	2020?

No

Are	you	aware	of,	or	do	you
anticipate	receiving,	any	new
sources	of	funding	in	2020,	for
example,	stimulus	or	other
funds?

No

List	the	hours	that	programs
funded	by	Ann	Land	and	Bertha
Henschel	Memorial	Funds	will	be
available	to	clients.

Monday-Friday	7:30am-11:30am

Describe	the	geographic	service
area,	within	the	City,	when	you
will	spend	the	requested	funds.

Primarily	Oak	Park	Community	(95817	zip	code)	and	and	some	from	95820/95824	zip	codes

Please	upload	a	brief	description
(no	more	than	two	pages)	of	the
program	or	service	for	which	you
are	requesting	funds.	Explain	how
the	program	or	service
addresses	the	mission	and
funding	priorities	of	the	Ann	Land
and	Bertha	Henschel	Memorial
Funds.

https://seam.ly/Ui6lKWnP

Mission	Statement	–
Organizational	Goal

Wellspring	Women’s	Center	in	the	Oak	Park	community	nurtures	the	innate	goodness	and
personal	self-esteem	of	women	and	their	children.	Our	drop-in	center	provides	respite	services
based	on	“hospitality	with	dignity	and	love.”

Date	incorporated	or	otherwise
formed

6
1
1987

Briefly	describe	other	services
and	programs	your	organization
currently	provides.

Wellspring	Women’s	Center	is	a	drop-in	center	in	the	Oak	Park	community	of	Sacramento,
established	in	1987.	Wellspring	Women’s	Center’s	mission	is	to	nurture	the	innate	goodness	and
personal	self-esteem	of	women	and	their	children.	Our	drop-in	center	provides	respite	services
based	on	“hospitality	with	dignity	and	love.”	We	are	open	weekday	mornings	from	7:30am-
11:30am.	We	are	open	by	appointment	in	the	afternoon	for	counseling,	case-management	and
scheduled	groups.

Private	or	Corporate	Donations
(Amount)

$352,583



Private	or	Corporate	Donations
(%	of	Total	Funding)

69%

United	Way	(Amount) $7,373.00

United	Way	(%	of	Total	Funding) 1.4%

SETA	(Amount) 0

SETA	(%	of	Total	Funding) 0

Federal	Assistance	(Amount) 0

Federal	Assistance	(%	of	Total
Funding)

0

State	Assistance	(Amount) CA

State	Assistance	(%	of	Total
Funding)

CA

City	or	County	Assistance	(not
from	the	Ann	Land	Bertha
Henschel	Memorial	Funds)
(Amount)

Sacramento

City	or	County	Assistance	(not
from	the	Ann	Land	Bertha
Henschel	Memorial	Funds)	(%	of
Total	Funding)

United	States

Grants	(Amount) $99,503.00

Grants	(%	of	Total	Funding) 19.5%

Ann	Land	and	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds	(Amount)

$8,000.00

Ann	Land	and	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds	(%	of	Total
Funding)

1.6%

Other	(briefly	describe	below)
(Amount)

$43,121.00

Other	(briefly	describe	below)	(%
of	Total	Funding)

8.5%

Total	Amount $510,580.00

Other	Income	Sources Cell	Tower	income;	Interest;	Investment/Dividend	Income

The	names	of	the	members	of
your	organization’s	board	of
directors	and	of	your
organization’s	officers

https://seam.ly/ShFmHVDC



An	organizational	chart	or
description	of	your	organization’s
management	structure

https://seam.ly/unUmYzb6

Verification	of	your
organization’s	not-for-profit
status	(letter	from	IRS	confirming
§	501(c)(3)	status)

https://seam.ly/VnkMbp7V

Verification	that	your
organization	(1)	is	currently
registered	and	in	good	standing
with	the	Registry	of	Charitable
Trusts	maintained	by	the
California	Attorney	General	or	(2)
is	not	required	to	register.

https://seam.ly/J0dKk9Fy

A	copy	of	your	organization’s
current	business	license	or	a
letter	from	the	City	of
Sacramento	Finance	Department
verifying	your	organization’s
exemption	from	the	City’s
business-operations	tax.	The
Sacramento	City	Code	requires
that	anyone	conducting	business
within	the	City	of	Sacramento
have	a	current	business	license
on	file	with	the	City.	The	City
issues	nonprofit	organizations	a
waiver	letter	in	lieu	of	a	business
license.	A	waiver	letter	can	be
obtained	at	the	Revenue	Counter
in	New	City	Hall,	First	Floor,	Room
1214.	Indicate	your
organization’s	non-profit	status
on	the	application	form.	There	is
no	charge	for	nonprofit
organizations.

https://seam.ly/MfKPN9u8

A	copy	of	your	organization’s
most	recent	audit	and	any
corrective	actions	or
recommendations	suggested	by
the	auditor.	If	you	do	not	have	an
annual	audit,	please	explain	why.
You	must	also	provide	a	copy	of
your	organization’s	most-recent
annual	financial	statements,
signed	by	your	organization’s
treasurer	AND	by	the	preparer,
whether	a	CPA	or	bookkeeper

https://seam.ly/RuILuQz5



A	budget	sheet	showing	how
awarded	funds	will	be	spent

https://seam.ly/5yV0SiQ4

Signature	Data First	Name:	Genelle
Last	Name:	Smith
Email	Address:	genelle.wellspring@comcast.net

Signed	at:	10/25/2019	12:57PM



 

DESCRIPTION AND BUDGET 

All funds awarded to Wellspring Women’s Center will be spent for bus/light rail one-way passes.  

Currently, we distribute passes to our guests Monday, Wednesday, and Friday for essential 

transportation needs.  These needs include, but are not limited to, a variety of appointments:  doctor, 

dental, courts, meetings with probation officers, family visits through CPS, job searches/interviews, and 

referrals to other agencies.   The bus passes are one of the most requested services that Wellspring 

provides.   We never have enough to supply the demand and we limit each individual so that she can 

only receive a bus pass every other week.  We keep a small supply available for those in need of 

“emergency” transportation and for those who are working on a plan with a case-manager. 

For this year (2019) we continued our agreement with Francis House and have been receiving tickets at 

a 50% discount.  Francis House has continued to add a processing fee (which increased from 1.5% to 5%) 

to each order.  The increase in processing fee impacted our budget (used other funding sources) but we 

tried to continue to serve as many as possible. 

From your 2019 grant assistance of $8000.00 we purchased: 

 640 books of one-way ($2.50) tickets = $16,000.00 (50% discount) = $8,000.00 

 5% fee = $400.00 

 Total $8,400.00  (Wellspring paid $400.00) 

 

This amount served approximately 3,200 individuals in the community with some duplication.   

For 2020, we are requesting the amount that would allow us to serve the same number of individuals as 

2019.  That amount has increased based on Francis House fee increase - $8,400.00.  

On a yearly basis: 640 books of one-way ($2.50) tickets = $16,000.00 (50% discount) = $8,000.00 

                             5% fee =$400.00 

                                                                                                                                                    Total $8,400.00  

Of course, we will continue to promote the need for bus pass funds and hopefully receive additional 

donations.  We are so grateful for all the assistance you have given our guests.  We cannot overstate the 

demand for bus tickets at Wellspring.  On the days we give out tickets our supply for that day is usually 

gone within the first 5 minutes and guests arrive before the doors open at 7:30am in an effort to receive 

a bus ticket.  Every day many guests in need are turned away.  In the current housing climate, the cost of 

bus/light rail transportation is beyond the means of most of the guests we serve.  We are very thankful 

for any assistance you continue to provide in order to meet this vital need in our community! 









Registrant Details
Entity type: Corporate Class as registered with the Secretary of State or based on founding & registration documents.

Organization Name: WELLSPRING WOMEN'S CENTER IRS FEIN: 911752615
Entity Type: Public Benefit SOS/FTB Corporate/Organization Number: 1954130

Registry Status: Current Renewal Due/Exp. Date: 2/15/2020
RCT Registration Number: 100750 Issue Date: 9/30/2006
Record Type: Charity Registration Effective Date: 9/30/2006
Date This Status: Date of Last Renewal: 4/23/2019

Mailing Address
Street: 3414 4TH AVENUE
Street Line 2:
City, State Zip: SACRAMENTO CA 95817

Filings & Correspondence
RRF-1 2011 2011 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2011 2011 IRS Form 990

RRF-1 2010 2010 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2010 2010 IRS Form 990

Founding Documents Founding Documents

RRF-1 2008 2008 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2008 2008 IRS Form 990

RRF-1 2007 2007 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2007 2007 IRS Form 990

RRF-1 2006 2006 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2006 2006 IRS Form 990

RRF-1 2005 2005 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2005 2005 IRS Form 990

RRF-1 2004 2004 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2004 2004 IRS Form 990

RRF-1 2003 2003 RRF-1

RRF-1 2001 2001 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2003 2003 IRS Form 990

RRF-1 2002 2002 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2002 2002 IRS Form 990

IRS Form 990 2001 2001 IRS Form 990

IRS Form 990 2000 2000 IRS Form 990

RRF-1 2009 2009 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2009 2009 IRS Form 990

IRS Form 990 2012 2012 IRS Form 990

RRF-1 2012 2012 RRF-1

RRF-1 2013 2013 RRF-1

HOME  ABOUT  MEDIA  CAREERS  REGULATIONS  RESOURCES  PROGRAMS  CONTACT

http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2011.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80001bdc
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2011.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80001bdd
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2010.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80001bde
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2010.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80001be0
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=Founding+Documents.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80001be1
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2008.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80001be2
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2008.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80001be3
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2007.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80001be4
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2007.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80001be5
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2006.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80001be6
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2006.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80001be7
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2005.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80001be8
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2005.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80001be9
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2004.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80001bea
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2004.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80001beb
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2003.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80001bec
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2001.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80001bf0
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2003.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80001bed
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2002.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80001bee
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2002.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80001bef
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2001.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80001bf1
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2000.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80001bf2
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2009.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80001bf3
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2009.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80001bf4
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=84706.pdf&document_id=09027b8f801abb2d
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=84729.pdf&document_id=09027b8f801abb2e
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=11965.pdf&document_id=09027b8f801eee80
https://oag.ca.gov/home
https://oag.ca.gov/about
https://oag.ca.gov/media
https://oag.ca.gov/careers
https://oag.ca.gov/meetings/public-participation
https://oag.ca.gov/services-info
https://oag.ca.gov/programs
https://oag.ca.gov/contact


IRS Form 990 2013 2013 IRS Form 990

RRF-1 2014 2014 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2014 2014 IRS Form 990

2015 RRF-1 2015 RRF-1

2015 IRS Form 990 2015 IRS Form 990

2016 RRF-1 2016 RRF-1

2016 IRS Form 990 2016 IRS Form 990

IRS Form 990 Series 2017

Form RRF-1 2017

Renewal Filing 2018

Annual Renewal Data
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 10/1/2000
Accounting Period End Date: 9/30/2001
Total Assets: $700,807.00
Total Revenue: $523,667.00
Filing Received Date: 12/13/2001
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 10/1/2001
Accounting Period End Date: 9/30/2002
Total Assets: $740,257.00
Total Revenue: $505,756.00
Filing Received Date: 2/20/2003
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 10/1/2002
Accounting Period End Date: 9/30/2003
Total Assets: $834,976.00
Total Revenue: $512,429.00
Filing Received Date: 2/19/2004
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 10/1/2003
Accounting Period End Date: 9/30/2004
Total Assets: $832,165.00
Total Revenue: $527,001.00
Filing Received Date: 5/12/2005
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 10/1/2004
Accounting Period End Date: 9/30/2005
Total Assets: $867,518.00
Total Revenue: $690,562.00
Filing Received Date: 1/23/2006
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 10/1/2005
Accounting Period End Date: 9/30/2006
Total Assets: $999,024.00
Total Revenue: $618,229.00
Filing Received Date: 2/27/2007
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y

http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=11966.pdf&document_id=09027b8f801eee81
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=782990.PDF&document_id=09027b8f80232edf
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=782991.PDF&document_id=09027b8f80232ee0
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=939755.PDF&document_id=09027b8f80270d9e
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=939756.PDF&document_id=09027b8f80270d9f
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=1255038.PDF&document_id=09027b8f802d2110
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=1255039.PDF&document_id=09027b8f802d2111
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=299829.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8032d9a6
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=299833.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8032d9a7
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=486634.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80387cdd


Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 10/1/2006
Accounting Period End Date: 9/30/2007
Total Assets: $1,017,494.00
Total Revenue: $650,194.00
Filing Received Date: 3/10/2008
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 10/1/2007
Accounting Period End Date: 9/30/2008
Total Assets: $1,172,856.00
Total Revenue: $902,897.00
Filing Received Date: 2/13/2009
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 10/1/2008
Accounting Period End Date: 9/30/2009
Total Assets: $1,156,609.00
Total Revenue: $760,636.00
Filing Received Date: 5/17/2010
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 10/1/2009
Accounting Period End Date: 9/30/2010
Total Assets: $1,182,298.00
Total Revenue: $926,285.00
Filing Received Date: 5/18/2011
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 10/1/2010
Accounting Period End Date: 9/30/2011
Total Assets: $1,093,259.00
Total Revenue: $508,591.00
Filing Received Date: 5/9/2012
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 10/1/2011
Accounting Period End Date: 9/30/2012
Total Assets: $1,027,096.00
Total Revenue: $631,968.00
Filing Received Date: 2/15/2013
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 10/1/2012
Accounting Period End Date: 9/30/2013
Total Assets: $928,134.00
Total Revenue: $576,182.00
Filing Received Date: 2/13/2014
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 10/1/2013
Accounting Period End Date: 9/30/2014
Total Assets: $882,251.00
Total Revenue: $649,506.00



Filing Received Date: 2/19/2015
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 10/1/2014
Accounting Period End Date: 9/30/2015
Total Assets: $782,713.00
Total Revenue: $612,391.00
Filing Received Date: 2/12/2016
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 10/1/2015
Accounting Period End Date: 9/30/2016
Total Assets: $912,625.00
Total Revenue: $773,208.00
Filing Received Date: 2/13/2017
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 10/1/2016
Accounting Period End Date: 9/30/2017
Total Assets: $1,128,159.00
Total Revenue: $802,696.00
Filing Received Date: 2/21/2018
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 10/1/2017
Accounting Period End Date: 9/30/2018
Total Assets: $1,090,000.00
Total Revenue: $712,352.00
Filing Received Date: 3/21/2019
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N):

Related Registrations & Event Reports
The related records shown below depend on the record type being viewed:

Charity Registrations relate to Professional Fundraising Events which relate to Professional Fundraiser Registrations.
Raffle Registrations relate to Raffle Reports.
Click on the RCT Registration No to navigate to the related record.

Prereq Type: Prerequisite Relationship: Charity
Registrant: DONATE FOR CHARITY, INC.
Registration No: E0036715 Registration Type: Fundraising Event Registration Status: Complete
Date Established: 6/3/2019 Association Date: 1/1/2018 Expiration Date: 12/31/2018

http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Details.aspx?result=7f2557b6-a592-4a04-9a82-31d28d0f1c1a












































 

DESCRIPTION AND BUDGET 

All funds awarded to Wellspring Women’s Center will be spent for bus/light rail one-way passes.  

Currently, we distribute passes to our guests Monday, Wednesday, and Friday for essential 

transportation needs.  These needs include, but are not limited to, a variety of appointments:  doctor, 

dental, courts, meetings with probation officers, family visits through CPS, job searches/interviews, and 

referrals to other agencies.   The bus passes are one of the most requested services that Wellspring 

provides.   We never have enough to supply the demand and we limit each individual so that she can 

only receive a bus pass every other week.  We keep a small supply available for those in need of 

“emergency” transportation and for those who are working on a plan with a case-manager. 

For this year (2019) we continued our agreement with Francis House and have been receiving tickets at 

a 50% discount.  Francis House has continued to add a processing fee (which increased from 1.5% to 5%) 

to each order.  The increase in processing fee impacted our budget (used other funding sources) but we 

tried to continue to serve as many as possible. 

From your 2019 grant assistance of $8000.00 we purchased: 

 640 books of one-way ($2.50) tickets = $16,000.00 (50% discount) = $8,000.00 

 5% fee = $400.00 

 Total $8,400.00  (Wellspring paid $400.00) 

 

This amount served approximately 3,200 individuals in the community with some duplication.   

For 2020, we are requesting the amount that would allow us to serve the same number of individuals as 

2019.  That amount has increased based on Francis House fee increase - $8,400.00.  

On a yearly basis: 640 books of one-way ($2.50) tickets = $16,000.00 (50% discount) = $8,000.00 

                             5% fee =$400.00 

                                                                                                                                                    Total $8,400.00  

Of course, we will continue to promote the need for bus pass funds and hopefully receive additional 

donations.  We are so grateful for all the assistance you have given our guests.  We cannot overstate the 

demand for bus tickets at Wellspring.  On the days we give out tickets our supply for that day is usually 

gone within the first 5 minutes and guests arrive before the doors open at 7:30am in an effort to receive 

a bus ticket.  Every day many guests in need are turned away.  In the current housing climate, the cost of 

bus/light rail transportation is beyond the means of most of the guests we serve.  We are very thankful 

for any assistance you continue to provide in order to meet this vital need in our community! 



ALBH	Grant	Application	2019
City	of	Sacramento

	Submitted	On:
October	28th,	2019	@	6:07pm

Organization	Name Women''s	Civic	Improvement	Club

Physcial	Address 3555	3rd	Avenue
Sacramento
CA
95817

Mailing	address	different	from
physical	address?

No

Name Dorothy	Benjamin

Title Member

Phone	Number 916	346-4767

E-Mail	Address info@allensworth5krunwalk.org

Name Ms.	Edenausegboye	Davis

Phone	Number 916-451-8870

E-Mail	Address edavis@dons.usfca.edu

Name Dorothy	Benjamin

Title Member

Phone	Number 916-346-4767

E-Mail	Address info@allensworth5krunwalk.org

Please	indicate	below	the
services	you	are	requesting

Food
Shelter
Utilities

Indicate	the	dollar	amount
requested	for	Food

$1650

#	of	clients	that	will	be	served	by
the	Ann	Land	&	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds

30

Indicate	the	dollar	amount
requested	for	Shelter

$3950

#	of	clients	that	will	be	served	by
the	Ann	Land	&	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds

35

Indicate	the	dollar	amount
requested	for	Utilities

$3100



#	of	clients	that	will	be	served	by
the	Ann	Land	&	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds

25

Total	Amount	Requested $8,700.00

The	amount	requested	will	be
applied	to	the	following.

On-going	Program

The	funds	requested	will	be	used
to	serve	the	following	(please
check	all	that	apply)

Families
Women
Men
Children

Will	other	funds	supplement	Ann
Land	and	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds	request	for	this
program?

No

Did	you	lose	any	funding	in	2019
from	any	source?

No

Do	you	anticipate,	or	have	you
been	notified,	that	you	will	lose
funding	in	2020?

No

Are	you	aware	of,	or	do	you
anticipate	receiving,	any	new
sources	of	funding	in	2020,	for
example,	stimulus	or	other
funds?

No

List	the	hours	that	programs
funded	by	Ann	Land	and	Bertha
Henschel	Memorial	Funds	will	be
available	to	clients.

Thursday''s,	5:00-7:00	p.m.	and	Saturday''s	(times	vary)

Describe	the	geographic	service
area,	within	the	City,	when	you
will	spend	the	requested	funds.

Oak	Park,	downtown	Sacramento,	Colonel	Heights	and	South	Sacramento

Please	upload	a	brief	description
(no	more	than	two	pages)	of	the
program	or	service	for	which	you
are	requesting	funds.	Explain	how
the	program	or	service
addresses	the	mission	and
funding	priorities	of	the	Ann	Land
and	Bertha	Henschel	Memorial
Funds.

https://seam.ly/lpdS0r21

Mission	Statement	–
Organizational	Goal

To	meet	the	needs	of	low	income	disadvantaged	families,	women,	men	and	children	by	providing
services	and	programs	geared	toward	meeting	their	documented	needs.



Date	incorporated	or	otherwise
formed

1
15
1936

Briefly	describe	other	services
and	programs	your	organization
currently	provides.

Our	organization	currently	provides	the	following	programs:	Senior	Program:	Assists	low	income
seniors	to	pay	their	rent,	utilities	and	food.	Playmate	Head	Start	Program:	Serves	children	in	the
Oak	Park	and	surrounding	areas	between	the	ages	of	three	to	five	since	1965.	Its	primary	focus
is	the	intellectual,	emotional,	social	and	physical	development	of	the	child.

Private	or	Corporate	Donations
(Amount)

35,409

Private	or	Corporate	Donations
(%	of	Total	Funding)

0.02

United	Way	(Amount) 805

United	Way	(%	of	Total	Funding) 0%

SETA	(Amount) 1,414,786

SETA	(%	of	Total	Funding) 95%

Federal	Assistance	(Amount) 0

Federal	Assistance	(%	of	Total
Funding)

0

State	Assistance	(Amount) 0

State	Assistance	(%	of	Total
Funding)

0

City	or	County	Assistance	(not
from	the	Ann	Land	Bertha
Henschel	Memorial	Funds)
(Amount)

0

City	or	County	Assistance	(not
from	the	Ann	Land	Bertha
Henschel	Memorial	Funds)	(%	of
Total	Funding)

0

Grants	(Amount) 0

Grants	(%	of	Total	Funding) 0

Ann	Land	and	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds	(Amount)

8,000

Ann	Land	and	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds	(%	of	Total
Funding)

0.01

Other	(briefly	describe	below)
(Amount)

26,857



Other	(briefly	describe	below)	(%
of	Total	Funding)

0.02

Total	Amount $1,485,857.00

Other	Income	Sources

The	names	of	the	members	of
your	organization’s	board	of
directors	and	of	your
organization’s	officers

https://seam.ly/HWBRKhln

An	organizational	chart	or
description	of	your	organization’s
management	structure

https://seam.ly/h8GzX1ZO

Verification	of	your
organization’s	not-for-profit
status	(letter	from	IRS	confirming
§	501(c)(3)	status)

https://seam.ly/Vn0Wz1rU

Verification	that	your
organization	(1)	is	currently
registered	and	in	good	standing
with	the	Registry	of	Charitable
Trusts	maintained	by	the
California	Attorney	General	or	(2)
is	not	required	to	register.

https://seam.ly/68Jj9ndY

A	copy	of	your	organization’s
current	business	license	or	a
letter	from	the	City	of
Sacramento	Finance	Department
verifying	your	organization’s
exemption	from	the	City’s
business-operations	tax.	The
Sacramento	City	Code	requires
that	anyone	conducting	business
within	the	City	of	Sacramento
have	a	current	business	license
on	file	with	the	City.	The	City
issues	nonprofit	organizations	a
waiver	letter	in	lieu	of	a	business
license.	A	waiver	letter	can	be
obtained	at	the	Revenue	Counter
in	New	City	Hall,	First	Floor,	Room
1214.	Indicate	your
organization’s	non-profit	status
on	the	application	form.	There	is
no	charge	for	nonprofit
organizations.

https://seam.ly/MH9YIaoI



A	copy	of	your	organization’s
most	recent	audit	and	any
corrective	actions	or
recommendations	suggested	by
the	auditor.	If	you	do	not	have	an
annual	audit,	please	explain	why.
You	must	also	provide	a	copy	of
your	organization’s	most-recent
annual	financial	statements,
signed	by	your	organization’s
treasurer	AND	by	the	preparer,
whether	a	CPA	or	bookkeeper

https://seam.ly/8TFEvSeb

A	budget	sheet	showing	how
awarded	funds	will	be	spent

https://seam.ly/JxPG40dQ

Signature	Data First	Name:	Dorothy
Last	Name:	Benjamin
Email	Address:	info@allensworth5krunwalk.org

Signed	at:	10/28/2019	03:06PM



                               Ann Land and Bertha Henschel 2020 Application – Grant Purposes

This grant request is to aid low income indigent seniors who reside within the City of Sacramento.  It will 
be used to assist them with their food, rent and utility bills.  Due to the severe economic downturn and 
its effects especially on our most vulnerable populations, (namely, seniors, the homeless. Grandparents 
raising grandchildren, those who have lost their jobs and homes, etc,.) this grant will assist indigent 
seniors meet their document needs.  WCIC continues to receive requests from low-income seniors in 
need of additional funding to help support their increasing rental rates, utility bills and food expenses 
and thus the Ann Land and Bertha Henschel Memorial funds are much needed and appreciated!

We feel WCIC’s mission is in align with that of the Ann Land Bertha Henschel Memorial Fund, which is to 
meet the needs of low income and disadvantaged families by providing services and programs geared to
meet their documented needs.

WCIC’s program emphasis has and continues to be directed toward the development of responsible 
citizens through community participation, by the following:

1.  Provide a community center in which emphasis is directed toward underprivileged group 
participation.

2. To foster and promote programs and service to increase the economic, cultural educational and 
social levels of the community regardless of race, age, religion, or gender, etc,.

3. Expand opportunities available to low-income community to obtain low-cost housing with 
special emphasis on the elderly, disabled and low-income women and children.

4. Expand opportunities to low-income residents to manage and operate business enterprises.

                                               



 

 

Women’s Civic Improvement Club of Sacramento, Inc. 
3555 3

rd
 Avenue 

Sacramento, CA  95817 

(916) 457-8661 
 

2019-2020 Board of Directors – Roster: 
     

  Board of Directors Names/Officers:                       Address:                                   

 

Dale McKinney, President                        7409 Lidia Court, Sacramento, CA 95828 

 

Tongela Bremmium, 1
st
 Vice                    701 Fairgrounds Drive #303, Sacramento, CA  95820 

 

 Lauren Hammond, Secretary                    1128 35
th

 Avenue, Sacramento, CA  95822 

 

 Amos Nugent 111, Treasurer/                   P.O. Box 15317, Sacramento, CA  95851 

                       Youth Rep. 

                   

 Jamila Land, PC Chair/                             7909 Walerga Road 112-138, Antelope, CA 95843 

                    Board Rep. 

 

 Yolanda Price, Board Member/                17 Sun Shower Pl, Sacramento, CA  95823 

                          Senior Rep.   

 

Pastor Alice Baber-Banks, Bd. Member   8917 Palmerson Drive, Antelope, CA  95843 

 

Emon Usher, Board Member                     P.O. Box 5965, Sacramento, CA 95817 

 

Dr. Nathaniel White, Bd. Member            7560 Collingwood St., Sacramento, CA 95822 

 

 

                        

 

 

 

 

 



WOMEN’S CIVIC IMPROVEMENT CLUB OF SACRAMENTO, INC./ 

PLAYMATE CHILD DEVELOPMENT CENTER HEAD START PROGRAMS 

ORGANIZATIONAL CHART 2019-2020 

 
 
 

Board of Directors 

Dale McKinney, President 

Executive Director/Head Start 

Edenausegboye Davis 

Policy Committee 

Jamila Land, Chair/Bd. Rep. 

Staff Management Functions: 

Janet Wong-Acorda and Dao Thao (Education, Disabilities, Mental Health, and Transition) 

Zong Kao Vue, Ja’Nice Carley, Dorothy Paleka, and Clarisa Jones: (Health, and Nutrition) 

Zong Kao Vue and Brenda Tamayo: (ERSEA, and Safe Environments) 

Moua Moua: (Family and Community Engagement, and Child Plus) 

Elder Accountancy/Bookkeeping: (Fiscal Management) 

Edenausegboye Davis: (Program Design and Management, and Human Resources) 

Family Services Workers (2) 

Brenda Tamayo 

Zong Kao Vue 

Program Assistants (2) 

Ja’Nice Carley 

Dorothy Paleka 

Volunteers 

Associate Teachers (7) 

Marlene Beltram         Eliza Deed 

Ana Gonzalez             Claudia Murillo      

Maria Rodriguez         Meuy Saeteurn 

Mariana White 

        

Head Teacher, Janet Wong-Acorda 

Teacher/Site Supervisor, Dao Thao 

 

Teachers (6) 

Dolores Guzman 

Holly Mar 

Dionnellyn Del Rosario 

Dao Thao 

Thien Tran 

Janet Wong-Acorda  

        

        
        

 

        

 

Program Specialist (1) 

Clarisa Jones 

Data Champion/ 

Program Support (1) 

Moua Moua 







10/24/2019 Details

rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Details.aspx?result=da21b2c2-d6db-4090-ad0d-9ea8e1c8aef9 1/4

Registrant Details
Entity type: Corporate Class as registered with the Secretary of State or based on founding & registration documents.

Organization Name: WOMEN'S CIVIC IMPROVEMENT CLUB OF SACRAMENTO IRS FEIN: 941179480
Entity Type: Mutual Benefit SOS/FTB Corporate/Organization Number: 0200827

Registry Status: Current Renewal Due/Exp. Date: 11/15/2019
RCT Registration Number: 003745 Issue Date: 6/30/2006
Record Type: Charity Registration Effective Date: 6/30/2006
Date This Status: 6/17/2019 Date of Last Renewal: 6/17/2019

Mailing Address
Street: 3555 3RD AVE
Street Line 2:
City, State Zip: SACRAMENTO CA 95817

Filings & Correspondence
CT-550 CT-550

RRF-1 2011 2011 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2011 2011 IRS Form 990

Founding Documents Founding Documents

RRF-1 2009 2009 RRF-1

RRF-1 2008 2008 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2008 2008 IRS Form 990

RRF-1 2007 2007 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2007 2007 IRS Form 990

RRF-1 2006 2006 RRF-1

RRF-1 2005 2005 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2005 2005 IRS Form 990

RRF-1 2004 2004 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2004 2004 IRS Form 990

RRF-1 2003 2003 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2003 2003 IRS Form 990

RRF-1 2001 2001 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2001 2001 IRS Form 990

RRF-1 2002 2002 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2002 2002 IRS Form 990

IRS Form 990 2000 2000 IRS Form 990

IRS Form 990 2008 2008 IRS Form 990

RRF-1 2010 2010 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2010 2010 IRS Form 990

HOME  ABOUT  MEDIA  CAREERS  REGULATIONS  RESOURCES  PROGRAMS  CONTACT

http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=CT-550.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8004d321
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2011.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8004d322
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2011.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8004d323
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=Founding+Documents.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8004d328
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2009.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8004d329
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2008.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8004d32a
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2008.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8004d32b
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2007.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8004d32c
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2007.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8004d32d
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2006.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8004d32e
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2005.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8004d330
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2005.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8004d331
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2004.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8004d332
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2004.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8004d333
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2003.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8004d334
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2003.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8004d335
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2001.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8004d338
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2001.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8004d339
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2002.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8004d336
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2002.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8004d337
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2000.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8004d33a
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2008.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8004d33e
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2010.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8004d33f
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2010.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8004d340
https://oag.ca.gov/home
https://oag.ca.gov/about
https://oag.ca.gov/media
https://oag.ca.gov/careers
https://oag.ca.gov/meetings/public-participation
https://oag.ca.gov/services-info
https://oag.ca.gov/programs
https://oag.ca.gov/contact


10/24/2019 Details

rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Details.aspx?result=da21b2c2-d6db-4090-ad0d-9ea8e1c8aef9 2/4

1st Delinquency Notice 1st Delinquency Notice

RRF-1 2012 2012 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2012 2012 IRS Form 990

2015 RRF-1 2015 RRF-1

2015 IRS Form 990 2015 IRS Form 990

1st Delinquency Letter 1st Delinquency Letter

IRS Form 990 Series 2017

RRF-1 2013 2013 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2013 2013 IRS Form 990

RRF-1 2014 2014 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2014 2014 IRS Form 990

RRF-1 2009 2009 RRF-1

2016 Form RRF-1 2016 Form RRF-1

2016 IRS Form 990 Series 2016 IRS Form 990 Series

Exemption Documents 2018

Renewal Filing 2018

CT-550 Form RRF-1 Incomplete 2018

CT-550 Form RRF-1 Incomplete 2017

Renewal Filing 2017

Annual Renewal Data
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2001
Accounting Period End Date: 6/30/2002
Total Assets: $1,003,033.00
Total Revenue: $987,829.00
Filing Received Date: 11/18/2002
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2002
Accounting Period End Date: 6/30/2003
Total Assets: $1,090,267.00
Total Revenue: $1,095,538.00
Filing Received Date: 11/17/2003
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2003
Accounting Period End Date: 6/3/2004
Total Assets: $1,076,022.00
Total Revenue: $903,035.00
Filing Received Date: 5/17/2005
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2004
Accounting Period End Date: 6/30/2005
Total Assets: $1,260,187.00
Total Revenue: $974,304.00
Filing Received Date: 5/16/2006
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y

http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=1st+Delinquency+Notice.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8004d342
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=1110793.pdf&document_id=09027b8f801ae422
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=1110796.pdf&document_id=09027b8f801ae423
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=977857.PDF&document_id=09027b8f8027d499
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=977858.PDF&document_id=09027b8f8027d49a
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=00000155.pdf&document_id=09027b8f802389cc
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=341727.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80342f7c
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=592568.PDF&document_id=09027b8f80205d56
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=592569.PDF&document_id=09027b8f80205d57
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=809423.PDF&document_id=09027b8f80239f5d
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=809424.PDF&document_id=09027b8f80239f5e
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=895210.PDF&document_id=09027b8f802639a1
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=1298197.PDF&document_id=09027b8f802ed039
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=1298198.PDF&document_id=09027b8f802ed03a
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=504098.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8038ec42
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=504106.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8038ec4a
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=003745.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8038bee5
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=003745.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8033f69d
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=351270.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8034a66b


10/24/2019 Details

rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Details.aspx?result=da21b2c2-d6db-4090-ad0d-9ea8e1c8aef9 3/4

Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2005
Accounting Period End Date: 6/30/2006
Total Assets: $1,234,617.00
Total Revenue: $808,445.00
Filing Received Date: 4/26/2007
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Rejected
Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2006
Accounting Period End Date: 6/30/2007
Total Assets: $1,362,880.00
Total Revenue: $912,621.00
Filing Received Date: 1/31/2008
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Rejected
Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2007
Accounting Period End Date: 6/30/2008
Total Assets: $1,463,061.00
Total Revenue: $929,131.00
Filing Received Date: 4/23/2009
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2008
Accounting Period End Date: 6/30/2009
Total Assets: $989,293.00
Total Revenue: $729,528.00
Filing Received Date: 2/5/2010
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2009
Accounting Period End Date: 6/30/2010
Total Assets: $1,086,791.00
Total Revenue: $1,022,170.00
Filing Received Date: 4/14/2011
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2010
Accounting Period End Date: 6/30/2011
Total Assets: $1,001,903.00
Total Revenue: $984,141.00
Filing Received Date: 2/21/2012
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2011
Accounting Period End Date: 6/30/2012
Total Assets: $902,813.00
Total Revenue: $855,590.00
Filing Received Date: 5/20/2013
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2012



10/24/2019 Details

rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Details.aspx?result=da21b2c2-d6db-4090-ad0d-9ea8e1c8aef9 4/4

Accounting Period End Date: 6/30/2013
Total Assets: $874,141.00
Total Revenue: $939,615.00
Filing Received Date: 4/11/2014
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2013
Accounting Period End Date: 6/30/2014
Total Assets: $829,182.00
Total Revenue: $859,103.00
Filing Received Date: 5/18/2015
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2014
Accounting Period End Date: 6/30/2015
Total Assets: $733,802.00
Total Revenue: $895,138.00
Filing Received Date: 4/8/2016
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2015
Accounting Period End Date: 6/30/2016
Total Assets: $387,023.00
Total Revenue: $824,940.00
Filing Received Date: 5/18/2017
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2016
Accounting Period End Date: 6/30/2017
Total Assets: $637,713.00
Total Revenue: $1,275,064.00
Filing Received Date: 5/16/2018
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2017
Accounting Period End Date: 6/30/2018
Total Assets: $1,038,220.00
Total Revenue: $1,739,496.00
Filing Received Date: 5/8/2019
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N):

Related Registrations & Event Reports
The related records shown below depend on the record type being viewed:

Charity Registrations relate to Professional Fundraising Events which relate to Professional Fundraiser Registrations.
Raffle Registrations relate to Raffle Reports.
Click on the RCT Registration No to navigate to the related record.

No Related Records





 

 

WOMEN'S CIVIC IMPROVEMENT CLUB 
OF SACRAMENTO, INC. 

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AND COMPLIANCE REPORTS 

JUNE 30, 2018 
 



WOMEN’S CIVIC IMPROVEMENT CLUB 
OF SACRAMENTO, INC. 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 

Page 

Independent Auditor's Report .................................................................................................................. 1-2 

Financial Statements 
Statement of Financial Position  ................................................................................................................ 3 
Statement of Activities  ............................................................................................................................. 4 
Statement of Functional Expenses  ............................................................................................................ 5 
Statement of Cash Flows  .......................................................................................................................... 6 
Notes to the Financial Statements  ........................................................................................................ 7-10 

Supplementary Information 

Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control over Financial 
Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit 
of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government 
Auditing Standards ............................................................................................................................. 11-12 

Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance for Each Major 
Program and on Internal Control over Compliance Required by the 
Uniform Guidance .............................................................................................................................. 13-14 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs ............................................................................................... 15 
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards ............................................................................................. 16 
Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards .............................................................................. 17 
 



550 Howe Avenue, Suite 210 
Sacramento, California 95825 

Telephone: (916) 564-8727 
FAX: (916) 564-8728 

1 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Board of Directors of 
Women's Civic Improvement Club of Sacramento, Inc. 
Sacramento, California 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Women's Civic Improvement Club of 
Sacramento, Inc. (WCIC), which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2018, and the 
related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related 
notes to the financial statements. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the 
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation 
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted 
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of 
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those 
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation 
of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but 
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, 
we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used 
and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the 
overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion. 



 

2 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of Women's Civic Improvement Club of Sacramento, Inc. as of June 30, 2018, and the changes in 
its net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America. 

Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole. The 
accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal 
Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit 
Requirements for Federal Awards, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part 
of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from 
and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. 
The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial 
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the 
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all 
material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March 27, 2019 
on our consideration of Women's Civic Improvement Club of Sacramento, Inc.'s internal control over 
financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, 
and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to 
provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Women’s Civic Improvement Club of Sacramento, Inc.’s internal 
control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Women's Civic Improvement Club of 
Sacramento, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

 
March 27, 2019 
 



WOMEN'S CIVIC IMPROVEMENT CLUB 
OF SACRAMENTO, INC. 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

JUNE 30, 2018 

3 

ASSETS 
2018 

Current Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents $       47,967  
Grants receivable 53,492 
Prepaid expenses  9,358 

Total current assets 110,817 

Property and equipment, net 927,403 
Total Assets $        1,038,220  

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

Current Liabilities 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $       34,962  
Compensated absence liability 14,045 
Deferred revenue 786 

Total Liabilities 49,793 

Net Assets 
Unrestricted net assets 988,427 

Total Net Assets 988,427 

Total Liabilities and Net Assets  $       1,038,220  

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



WOMEN'S CIVIC IMPROVEMENT CLUB 
OF SACRAMENTO, INC. 

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 

4 

Support and Revenue 
Unrestricted 

Grants   $     1,414,786 
In-kind donations 277,058 
Contributions 36,089 
Rental income 26,857 
Membership dues 125 
Interest 8 

Total Support and Revenue 1,754,923 

Expenses 
Program Services 
   Head Start 1,226,983 
   Community service 50,084 
   Senior assistance 9,241 

1,286,308 
Support Services 

Management and general 55,150 

Total Expenses 1,341,458 

Change in Net Assets 413,465 

Net Assets, June 30, 2017 574,962 

Net Assets, June 30, 2018 $       988,427     

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 



WOMEN'S CIVIC IMPROVEMENT CLUB 
OF SACRAMENTO, INC. 

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 

5 

Personnel Expenses 

Head Start 
 Community 

Service  
Senior 

Assistance 
Total 

Program 
Management 

& General Total 

Salaries $    503,977 $       1,299 $   - $      505,276 $  50,917  $    556,193  
Payroll taxes and fringe benefits 193,350 155 - 193,505 4,233 197,738 

697,327 1,454 - 698,781 55,150 753,931 

Other Expenses 
In-kind and other services 248,678 - - 248,678 - 248,678
Occupancy 61,598 1,407 - 63,005 - 63,005
Maintenance and utilities 79,534 23,801 - 103,335 - 103,335

Professional services 63,246 5,208 300 68,754 - 68,754

Depreciation 23,750 15,427 - 39,177 - 39,177

Supplies 26,548 607 - 27,155 - 27,155
Nutrition and assistance - -  8,941 8,941 - 8,941
Insurance 15,239 1,847 - 17,086 - 17,086

Travel and conferences 1,962 - - 1,962 - 1,962

Office expense 9,101 333 - 9,434 - 9,434

529,656 48,630 9,241 587,527 - 587,527

Total Expenses $ 1,226,983 $     50,084 $     9,241  $   1,286,308 $    55,150  $ 1,341,458 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 



WOMEN'S CIVIC IMPROVEMENT CLUB 
OF SACRAMENTO, INC. 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 

6 

Cash Flows From Operating Activities 

Cash received from: 

2018 

Grants $         1,385,460 

Contributions and fundraising     37,064 

Rental income 27,644 

Membership dues 125 

Interest income 8 

Cash paid to suppliers (297,716)
Cash paid to employees (758,257)

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 394,328 

Cash Flows from Investing Activities 

Cash paid for fixed assets (407,345) 

Net Cash Used by Investing Activities (407,345) 

Net Decrease in Cash (13,017) 

Cash July 1, 2017 60,984 

Cash June 30, 2018 $   47,967 

Reconciliation of Change in Net Assets to Net Cash Provided by 

Operating Activities 

Change in net assets $             413,465

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets  

to net cash provided by operating activities 

Depreciation 39,177 

(Increase) Decrease in: 

Grants receivable (29,325)

Accounts receivable 975 

Prepaid expenses (1,264)

Increase (Decrease) in: 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (32,354)

Deferred revenue 786 

Compensated absence liability 2,868 

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities $  394,328 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 



WOMEN'S CIVIC IMPROVEMENT CLUB 
OF SACRAMENTO, INC. 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 

7 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Organization - Women's Civic Improvement Club (WCIC) is a California nonprofit organization incorporated 
in 1945. WCIC provides programs and services aimed at assisting low income and disadvantage families and 
children. During the year ended June 30, 2018, WCIC received funding for the Child Development (Head Start) 
Program. The Head Start program provides preschool training for children of low income families.  Other 
programs of WCIC include activities of the Club itself (community service) and the senior assistance program, 
through which seniors can socialize, participate in community service and enjoy nutritious meals. 

Basis of Accounting - The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of 
accounting in accordance with principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Basis of Presentation - Financial statement presentation follows the recommendations of the Financial 
Accounting Standards Board in its Statement of Financial Accounting Standards ASC 958 (formerly SFAS 
No. 117, Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Organizations). Under SFAS ASC 958, the Organization 
is required to report information regarding its financial position and activities according to three classes of 
net assets: unrestricted net assets, temporarily restricted net assets, and permanently restricted net assets.  
WCIC does not have temporarily or permanently restricted net assets. 

Contributions - WCIC accounts for contributions in accordance with the recommendations of the Financial 
Accounting Standards Board in FASB ASB 958-605-50-1, (formerly FASB No. 116) Accounting for 
Contribution Received and Contributions Made. In accordance with FASB ASB 958-605-50-1, 
contributions received are recorded as unrestricted, temporarily restricted, or permanently restricted 
support, depending on the existence or nature of any donor restrictions. Contributions are recognized as 
revenue when they are received or unconditionally pledged. Donor restricted contributions whose 
restrictions are met in the same fiscal year are reported as unrestricted contributions. When a restriction 
expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished, temporarily 
restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the statement of activities as 
net assets released from restrictions. 

Grant Revenue - Revenue from governmental contracts is recognized to the extent of incurred expenses, 
up to the grant or contract ceiling. Any excess of expenses incurred over cash received is recorded as a 
grants receivable; any excess of cash received over expenses incurred is recorded as deferred revenue. 

Income Tax Status - The Organization has been determined to be exempt from federal and state income 
taxes under Section 501 (c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and Section 23701(d) of the California 
Revenue and Taxation Code and is not classified as a private foundation. Management of WCIC has 
evaluated the tax positions and related income tax contingencies. Management does not believe that any 
material uncertain tax positions exist. As of June 30, 2018, WCIC’s tax years for 2013, 2014, 2015 and 
2016 are subject to examination by the taxing authorities. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents - For financial statement purposes, WCIC considers all highly liquid 
investments with a maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents, if any. 

Functional Allocation of Expenses - The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have 
been summarized on a functional basis in the statement of activities. Accordingly, certain costs have been 
allocated among the programs and supporting services benefitted. 

Accumulated Vacation and Sick Leave - Accumulated unpaid employee vacation benefits are recognized 
as liabilities of WCIC. 



WOMEN'S CIVIC IMPROVEMENT CLUB 
OF SACRAMENTO, INC. 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 

8 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

Sick Leave benefits are accumulated for each employee. The employees do not gain a vested right to 
accumulated sick leave. Accumulated employee sick leave benefits are not recognized as liabilities of 
WCIC since payment of such benefits are not probable. Therefore, sick leave benefits are recorded as 
expenditures in the period that sick leave is taken. 

Use of Estimates - The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect 
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the 
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual 
results could differ from the estimates. 

Grant and Other Receivables - Grant and receivables are stated at the amount management expects to 
collect from outstanding balances. As of June 30, 2018, management believes grant and other receivables 
to be fully collectible. 

Property and Equipment - Property and equipment are stated at cost or fair value at date of donation. 
Depreciation is provided using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets as 
follows: 

Building and improvements 5- 40 years 
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 7 -10 years 

Additions and betterments of $250 or more are capitalized, while maintenance and repairs that do not 
improve or extend the useful lives of the respective assets are expensed currently. 

Subsequent Events - Subsequent events have been evaluated through March 27, 2019, which is the date 
the financial statements were issued. During this period, WCIC did not have any recognizable or 
nonrecognizable subsequent events. 

New Pronouncements - In August 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued ASU No. 2016-
14 that will simplify and improve how not-for-profit entities classify net assets as well as the information 
presented in financial statements and notes about liquidity, financial performance and cash flows.  This 
statement will be effective for the year ended June 30, 2019. 

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842) intended to improve financial 
reporting regarding leasing transactions.  The new standard affects all companies and organizations that 
lease assets. The standard will require organizations to recognize on the statement of financial condition 
the assets and liabilities for the rights and obligations created by those leases if the lease terms are more 
than 12 months. The guidance also will require qualitative and quantitative disclosures providing additional 
information about the amounts recorded in the financial statements.  The amendments in this update are 
effective for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020. WCIC is in the process of determining the impact of the 
implementation of these ASU’s. 



WOMEN'S CIVIC IMPROVEMENT CLUB 
OF SACRAMENTO, INC. 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 

9 

NOTE 2 - OPERATING LEASES 

WCIC has leases for a child care facility through August 31, 2021 and equipment through November 1, 
2023. At June 30, 2018 future minimum lease payments are as follows: 

  
Child Care 

Facility  Equipment  Total 

2019 $        26,400     $         3,112     $        29,512   

2020   26,400   3,112      29,512 

2021  26,400  3,112     29,512 

2022  4,400  3,112     7,512 

2023  -  3,112     3,112 

Thereafter  -  1,036  1,036 
    $      83,600     $      16,596    $     100,196   

Rent paid for the child care facility was $26,400 for the year ended June 30, 2018. Lease payments for 
equipment were $3,584 for the year ended June 30, 2018. 

NOTE 3 - EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLAN 

Employees of WCIC are eligible to be covered by a SIMPLE IRA plan at date of hire.  WCIC makes non-
elective contributions to the plan of 2% of total compensation, subject to maximum allowed by law, which 
the employee vests in immediately.  Contribution expense for the year ended June 30, 2018 totals $12,884. 

NOTE 4 - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 

  Cost  
Accumulated 
Depreciation  Net 

Land $         51,190     $                 -  $        51,190   

Head start improvements   744,689   405,684   339,005 

Buildings and improvements  984,172  448,016  536,156 

Head start furniture and fixtures  145,388  145,388  - 

Furniture, fixtures, and equipment  150,668  149,616  1,052 
    $    2,076,107    $    1,148,704  $      927,403   

The granting agency has a reversionary interest in the property purchased with Head Start grant monies, as 
well as the right to determine the use of any proceeds from the sale of these assets. WCIC agrees to be 
responsible for the proper care and custody of all grant property and agrees not to sell, transfer, encumber 
or otherwise dispose of property acquired with grant funds without permission from the governmental 
agency providing grant funding. 



WOMEN'S CIVIC IMPROVEMENT CLUB 
OF SACRAMENTO, INC. 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 

10 

NOTE 4 - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 

Depreciation of property and equipment was $39,177 for the year ended June 30, 2018. 

NOTE 5 - DONATED SERVICES, MATERIALS, AND FACILITIES 

WCIC receives contributed services which meet the criteria for recognition under FASB ASB 958-605-50-1, 
(formerly FASB No. 116), Accounting for Contributions Received and Contributions Made. These services are 
an integral part of its Child Development (Head Start) Program. These services are recorded as unrestricted in-
kind revenue and expenses using volunteer time sheets for the hours worked at a rate approved by the grantor. 
Additionally, WCIC received donated services from a variety of unpaid volunteers assisting the organization in 
its administration. For the year ending June 30, 2018, contributing services based on the hours worked at a rate 
approved by the grantor amounted to $228,996. 

The Child Development (Head Start) program rents space at 3930 Eighth Avenue in Sacramento. A portion 
of the rent is paid by the organization and a portion is donated. The City has estimated the approximate fair 
value of the annual contributed rental to be $28,380 and is included as in-kind revenue and occupancy 
expenses in the statement of activities. 

WCIC receives various supplies, materials, equipment and services from individuals and other 
organizations that are used in the day-to-day operations of the Child Development (Head Start) program 
which are included in the statement of activities as in-kind revenue and expenses. For the year ended June 
30, 2018, there were $19,682 in contributed supplies, materials, equipment or services. 

NOTE 6 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

WCIC has received state and federal funds for specific purposes that are subject to review and audit by the 
grantor agencies. Such audits could result in the grantor agency’s request for reimbursement for 
expenditures disallowed under the terms and conditions of the contracts. Management is of the opinion that 
no material liabilities will result from such potential audits. 

NOTE 7 – CONCENTRATIONS 

WCIC received a substantial amount of revenue from a grant from the Department of Health and Human 
Services, through the Sacramento Employment and Training Agency (SETA).  Approximately 80% of 
WCIC’s revenue was derived from this grant.  The current grant expires on July 31, 2019.  A significant 
reduction in the level of this revenue, if this were to occur, may have a significant effect on the WCIC’s 
programs and activities. 
 



 

 

COMPLIANCE REPORTS 
 



550 Howe Avenue, Suite 210 
Sacramento, California 95825 

Telephone: (916) 564-8727 
FAX: (916) 564-8728 

11 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL 

STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

To the Board of Directors of 
Women's Civic Improvement Club of Sacramento, Inc. 
Sacramento, CA 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Women's Civic 
Improvement Club, Inc. (WCIC) (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the statement of financial 
position as of June 30, 2018, and the related statements of activities and cash flows for the year then ended, 
and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated March 27, 2019. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered WCIC’s internal control 
over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose 
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of WCIC’s internal control.  Accordingly, we do not express 
an opinion on the effectiveness of WCIC’s internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management 
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis.  A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's 
financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.  A significant 
deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a 
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies.  Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.  However, material weaknesses 
may exist that have not been identified. 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether WCIC's financial statements are free from material 
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, 
and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the  
 



 

12 

determination of financial statement amounts.  However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.  The 
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported 
under Government Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of WCIC's internal control 
or on compliance.  This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government 
Auditing Standards in considering the organization's internal control and compliance.  Accordingly, this 
communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

 
March 27, 2019 

 



550 Howe Avenue, Suite 210 
Sacramento, California 95825 

Telephone: (916) 564-8727 
FAX: (916) 564-8728 

13 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND 
ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE 

To the Board of Directors of 
Women's Civic Improvement Club of Sacramento, Inc. 
Sacramento, CA 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 

We have audited Women's Civic Improvement Club, Inc.'s (WCIC) compliance with the types of 
compliance requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and 
material effect on each of WCIC's major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2018.  WCIC's major 
federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule 
of findings and questioned costs. 

Management's Responsibility 

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions 
of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of WCIC’s major federal programs based 
on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above.  We conducted our audit of 
compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal 
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for 
Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance).  Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of 
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal 
program occurred.  An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about WCIC’s compliance with 
those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. 

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for my opinion on compliance for each major federal 
program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of WCIC’s compliance. 

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

In our opinion, WCIC complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred 
to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year 
ended June 30, 2018. 



 

14 

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 

Management of WCIC is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over 
compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above.  In planning and performing our 
audit of compliance, we considered WCIC’s internal control over compliance with the types of 
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the 
auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on 
compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in 
accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of internal control over compliance.  Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of WCIC’s internal control over compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 
federal program on a timely basis.  A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, 
or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will 
not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.  A significant deficiency in internal control 
over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with 
a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in 
internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies.  We did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, 
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing 
of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform 
Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 

 
March 27, 2019 



WOMEN'S CIVIC IMPROVEMENT CLUB 
OF SACRAMENTO, INC. 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 

15 

SECTION I - SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’S RESULTS 

Financial Statements   

1. Type of auditor’s report issued:  Unmodified 

2. Internal controls over financial reporting:   
a. Material weaknesses identified?  No 
b. Significant deficiencies identified not 

considered to be material weaknesses?  None reported 

3. Noncompliance material to financial statements 
noted?  No 

Federal Awards   

1. Internal control over major programs:   
a. Material weaknesses identified?  No 
b. Significant deficiencies identified not 

considered to be material weaknesses?  None reported 

2. Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for 
major programs:  Unmodified 

3. Any audit findings disclosed that are required to 
be reported in accordance with 2 CFR, Section 
200.516(a)?  No 

4. Identification of major programs:   

CFDA Number  Name of Federal Program 

93.600  Head Start 

5. Dollar Threshold used to distinguish between 
Type A and Type B programs?  $750,000 

6. Auditee qualified as a low-risk auditee under 2 
CFR, Section 200.516(a)?  Yes 

SECTION II - FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS 

None 

SECTION III - FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS FOR FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS  

None 

SECTION IV – STATUS OF CORRECTIVE ACTION ON PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS  

There were no findings in the prior year



WOMEN'S CIVIC IMPROVEMENT CLUB 
OF SACRAMENTO, INC. 

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 

16 

Grantor/Pass-Through  
Grantor/Program Title 

Federal  
CFDA  

Number 
Grantor's  
Number Expenditures 

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services       
Passed through Sacramento Employment & Training 
Agency 

      

           Head Start 93.600 17C4351S0 $        73,881 
           Head Start Duration 93.600 17C4351S0 2,939 
           Head Start   93.600 18C4351S0 885,721 
           Head Start Duration 93.600 18C4351S0 437,540 
           Head State Training and Technical Assistance 93.600 18C4351S0 1,810 
Total U.S. Department of Health and Human Services    1,401,891 

TOTAL FEDERAL AWARDS    $    1,401,891 
 
The accompanying notes to the schedule of expenditures of federal awards are an integral part of this schedule. 
 



WOMEN'S CIVIC IMPROVEMENT CLUB 
OF SACRAMENTO, INC. 

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 

17 

NOTE A - BASIS OF PRESENTATION 

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards includes the federal grant activity of 
Women's Civic Improvement Club of Sacramento, Inc. under programs of the federal government for the 
year ended June 30, 2018. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements 
of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost 
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule 
presents only a selected portion of the Authority’s operations, it is not intended to be and does not present 
the financial position, changes in net position, or cash flows of WCIC. Therefore, some amounts presented 
in this schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the basic financial 
statements. 

NOTE B – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Expenses reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such expenses are 
recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of 
expenses are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement. 

NOTE C – INDIRECT COSTS 

WCIC did not elect to use the 10% de minimus indirect cost rate as covered in 2 CFR §200.414. 

NOTE D – SUBRECIPIENTS 

There were no subrecipients of WCIC’s programs during the year ended June 30, 2018. 

NOTE E – PROGRAM COSTS/MATCHING CONTRIBUTIONS 

The amounts shown as current year expenses represent only the (federal/state/local) grant portion of the 
program costs.  Entire program costs, including WCIC’s portion, may be more than shown. 

NOTE F – NONCASH AWARDS 

No noncash awards existed in the current year. 



                                          Ann Land and Bertha Henschel Memorial Fund 

                                     Women’s Civic Improvement Club 2020 Application 

 

 

                                                                    Budget   Sheet 

 

 

                                             Utilities                              3100 

 

                                             Rent                                   3950 

 

                                            Food                                   1650        

                                                                                       ______ 

                                                                      Total        $8700 

                                                        

                                                                                                         



ALBH	Grant	Application	2019
City	of	Sacramento

	Submitted	On:
October	28th,	2019	@	5:33pm

Organization	Name Women''s	Empowerment

Physcial	Address 1590	North	A	Street
Sacramento
CA
95811-0600

Mailing	address	different	from
physical	address?

No

Name Lisa	Culp

Title Executive	Director

Phone	Number 916-669-2307

E-Mail	Address lisa@womens-empowerment.org

Name Lisa	Culp

Phone	Number 916-669-2307

E-Mail	Address lisa@womens-empowerment.org

Name Lisa	Culp

Title Executive	Director

Phone	Number 916-669-2307

E-Mail	Address lisa@womens-empowerment.org

Please	indicate	below	the
services	you	are	requesting

Food
Utilities
Transportation

Indicate	the	dollar	amount
requested	for	Food

$2,000

#	of	clients	that	will	be	served	by
the	Ann	Land	&	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds

300

Indicate	the	dollar	amount
requested	for	Utilities

$2,000

#	of	clients	that	will	be	served	by
the	Ann	Land	&	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds

20

Indicate	the	dollar	amount
requested	for	Transportation

$2,000



#	of	clients	that	will	be	served	by
the	Ann	Land	&	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds

250

Total	Amount	Requested $6,000.00

The	amount	requested	will	be
applied	to	the	following.

On-going	Program

The	funds	requested	will	be	used
to	serve	the	following	(please
check	all	that	apply)

Families
Women
Children

Will	other	funds	supplement	Ann
Land	and	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds	request	for	this
program?

Yes

Briefly	explain Yes.	We	are	grateful	to	have	other	community	grantors	and	individuals	contributing	to	our
program.

Did	you	lose	any	funding	in	2019
from	any	source?

Yes

Briefly	explain Yes.	We	were	planning	to	receive	funding	from	The	California	Wellness	Foundation	in	the	last
quarter	of	2019	but	were	asked	to	wait	to	apply	until	2020.	Funding	would	have	provided	for
general	operating	support,	including	money	for	food,	transportation	and	utility	assistance.

Do	you	anticipate,	or	have	you
been	notified,	that	you	will	lose
funding	in	2020?

No

Are	you	aware	of,	or	do	you
anticipate	receiving,	any	new
sources	of	funding	in	2020,	for
example,	stimulus	or	other
funds?

Yes

Briefly	explain We	are	conducting	a	feasibility	study	for	a	capital	campaign	to	build	housing	for	destitute	women
and	children.	If	we	move	forward	with	the	campaign,	we	anticipate	receiving	new	sources	of
funding	in	2020.

List	the	hours	that	programs
funded	by	Ann	Land	and	Bertha
Henschel	Memorial	Funds	will	be
available	to	clients.

Monday	–	Friday,	8:30	am	–	3:30	pm

Describe	the	geographic	service
area,	within	the	City,	when	you
will	spend	the	requested	funds.

Women’s	Empowerment	is	located	in	downtown	Sacramento	at	the	corner	of	16th	Street	and
North	A	Street	in	an	industrial	district	where	streets	are	lined	with	the	tents	of	people	who	are
homeless.	We	provide	services	to	women	and	children	who	are	homeless	in	the	greater
Sacramento	area.	For	those	who	are	not	within	walking	distance	of	our	facility,	we	provide
transportation	assistance	so	women	can	still	access	our	services.



Please	upload	a	brief	description
(no	more	than	two	pages)	of	the
program	or	service	for	which	you
are	requesting	funds.	Explain	how
the	program	or	service
addresses	the	mission	and
funding	priorities	of	the	Ann	Land
and	Bertha	Henschel	Memorial
Funds.

https://seam.ly/7lOapodU

Mission	Statement	–
Organizational	Goal

Our	mission	is	to	educate	and	empower	women	who	are	homeless	with	the	skills	and	confidence
necessary	to	secure	a	job,	create	a	healthy	lifestyle,	and	regain	a	home	for	themselves	and	their
children.

We	offer	the	most	comprehensive	job-readiness	program	in	the	Sacramento	area	designed
specifically	for	women	who	are	homeless	or	recently	homeless.	We	are	one	of	the	only	nonprofits
in	Sacramento	providing	paid	job	training	for	homeless	women.

Date	incorporated	or	otherwise
formed

1
1
2001

Briefly	describe	other	services
and	programs	your	organization
currently	provides.

As	part	of	our	graduate	services,	we	offer	paid	training	through	our	Get	A	Job	Kit	and	REstart
training	programs.	The	Get	A	Job	Kit	is	our	social	enterprise	supporting	paid	on-the-job	assembly
training	for	our	graduates	with	critical	barriers	to	employment.	We	partner	with	the	Institute	of
Real	Estate	Management	Sacramento	to	provide	paid	training	to	graduates	in	property
management	through	our	REstart	program.	We	are	the	only	organization	in	Sacramento
providing	training	connected	to	housing.

Private	or	Corporate	Donations
(Amount)

$361,986

Private	or	Corporate	Donations
(%	of	Total	Funding)

34.6%

United	Way	(Amount) $19,624

United	Way	(%	of	Total	Funding) 1.9%

SETA	(Amount) 0

SETA	(%	of	Total	Funding) 0

Federal	Assistance	(Amount) 0

Federal	Assistance	(%	of	Total
Funding)

0

State	Assistance	(Amount) 0

State	Assistance	(%	of	Total
Funding)

0

City	or	County	Assistance	(not
from	the	Ann	Land	Bertha
Henschel	Memorial	Funds)
(Amount)

0



City	or	County	Assistance	(not
from	the	Ann	Land	Bertha
Henschel	Memorial	Funds)	(%	of
Total	Funding)

0

Grants	(Amount) $375,264

Grants	(%	of	Total	Funding) 35.9%

Ann	Land	and	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds	(Amount)

$3,000

Ann	Land	and	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds	(%	of	Total
Funding)

0.29%

Other	(briefly	describe	below)
(Amount)

$287,828

Other	(briefly	describe	below)	(%
of	Total	Funding)

27.31%

Total	Amount $1,047,702.00

Other	Income	Sources Special	Events:	$256,741
Earned	Revenue	(Loss):	$(23,165)
The	Get	A	Job	Kit	Sales:	$54,252

The	names	of	the	members	of
your	organization’s	board	of
directors	and	of	your
organization’s	officers

https://seam.ly/iDO3pR7E

An	organizational	chart	or
description	of	your	organization’s
management	structure

https://seam.ly/wIaLnDIr

Verification	of	your
organization’s	not-for-profit
status	(letter	from	IRS	confirming
§	501(c)(3)	status)

https://seam.ly/UB41kxQZ

Verification	that	your
organization	(1)	is	currently
registered	and	in	good	standing
with	the	Registry	of	Charitable
Trusts	maintained	by	the
California	Attorney	General	or	(2)
is	not	required	to	register.

https://seam.ly/5nujvtUX



A	copy	of	your	organization’s
current	business	license	or	a
letter	from	the	City	of
Sacramento	Finance	Department
verifying	your	organization’s
exemption	from	the	City’s
business-operations	tax.	The
Sacramento	City	Code	requires
that	anyone	conducting	business
within	the	City	of	Sacramento
have	a	current	business	license
on	file	with	the	City.	The	City
issues	nonprofit	organizations	a
waiver	letter	in	lieu	of	a	business
license.	A	waiver	letter	can	be
obtained	at	the	Revenue	Counter
in	New	City	Hall,	First	Floor,	Room
1214.	Indicate	your
organization’s	non-profit	status
on	the	application	form.	There	is
no	charge	for	nonprofit
organizations.

https://seam.ly/BeeydWGS

A	copy	of	your	organization’s
most	recent	audit	and	any
corrective	actions	or
recommendations	suggested	by
the	auditor.	If	you	do	not	have	an
annual	audit,	please	explain	why.
You	must	also	provide	a	copy	of
your	organization’s	most-recent
annual	financial	statements,
signed	by	your	organization’s
treasurer	AND	by	the	preparer,
whether	a	CPA	or	bookkeeper

https://seam.ly/Q7iPoVra
https://seam.ly/ZgUdw3L8

A	budget	sheet	showing	how
awarded	funds	will	be	spent

https://seam.ly/V8d419sc

Signature	Data First	Name:	Lisa
Last	Name:	Culp
Email	Address:	lisa@womens-empowerment.org

Signed	at:	10/28/2019	02:32PM



1590 North A Street   Sacramento, CA 95811   PH: 916.669.2307 
 FX: 916.341.0730    www.womens-empowerment.org   United Way #3243 

	
	
	
	
	

Ann	Land	and	Bertha	Henschel	Memorial	Fund	
Empowering	Sacramento	Women	and	Children	to	Overcome	Homelessness	

Program	Description	
	

Background	
Women’s	Empowerment	was	founded	in	2001	when	executive	director	Lisa	Culp	was	
working	with	homeless	women	and	children.	Despairing	and	struggling,	they	were	trapped	
in	a	generational	cycle	of	poverty	and	homelessness	without	a	pathway	toward	economic	
independence.	Lisa	knew	there	must	be	a	solution	to	breaking	this	cycle	of	homelessness.	
In	focus	groups,	she	listened	to	homeless	women,	who	shared	their	stories,	needs	and	
desires	for	a	better	life	–	not	only	for	themselves,	for	their	children.	She	worked	with	
homeless	women	and	community	leaders	to	create	a	curriculum	that	would	empower	
women	to	rise	from	homelessness	to	financial	stability.		
	
In	2004,	Women’s	Empowerment	became	an	independent	nonprofit	dedicated	to	ending	
homelessness	one	woman	–	one	family	–	at	a	time.	We	have	grown	from	a	grassroots,	
volunteer-run	program	to	an	award-winning	organization	with	17	staff	members,	a	10,000-
square-foot	campus	and	paid	job	training	for	homeless	women.	We	offer	the	most	
comprehensive	job-readiness	program	in	the	Sacramento	area	designed	specifically	for	
women	who	are	homeless	or	recently	homeless.	Since	2001,	1,611	women	have	graduated	
from	Women’s	Empowerment	with	their	3,701	children.	In	2018,	87	women	once	homeless	
graduated	from	our	initial	nine-week	job-readiness	program	–	82%	found	homes	and	76%	
found	jobs	or	enrolled	in	school	or	training.	641	unduplicated	women	received	life-
changing	services,	and	174	job	placements	were	achieved.	127	children	received	care	in	
our	onsite	child	development	center.	
	
Empowering	Sacramento’s	Homeless	Women	and	Children	
We	are	requesting	$6,000	to	support	our	comprehensive	job-readiness	program	for	
homeless	women	through	food,	transportation	and	utility	assistance.	We	recognize	that	
homelessness	is	not	a	simple	problem	–	a	multi-pronged	solution	is	critical	for	women	to	
overcome	the	enormous	barriers	to	steady	employment	and	a	stable	home.	Most	lack	
reliable	transportation	and	childcare,	and	they	struggle	with	food	insecurity,	poor	health	
and	trauma	from	domestic	violence,	sexual	abuse	and	human	trafficking.	These	barriers	
make	it	nearly	impossible	to	access	the	training	and	work	experience	employers	require.	
We	provide	homeless	women	and	children	with	a	safe	place	to	overcome	these	barriers	
and	change	their	lives.	Women	are	empowered	to	rebuild	their	health,	self-esteem	and	
family	stability	so	they	can	achieve	their	employment	and	education	goals.	
	
Our	initial	nine-week	job-readiness	program	targets	the	barriers	homeless	women	face	so	
they	can	secure	a	safe	home	and	a	steady	job.	We	lead	with	empowerment	and	build	
confidence	in	a	safe	space	where	women	work	on	their	personal	growth,	physically	and	
mentally.	Each	woman	accepted	into	the	program	receives	free	onsite	childcare	in	our	child	
development	center	and	transportation	assistance.	She	works	one-on-one	with	a	master’s	

 



1590 North A Street   Sacramento, CA 95811   PH: 916.669.2307 
 FX: 916.341.0730    www.womens-empowerment.org   United Way #3243 

level	social	worker,	employment	specialist	and	volunteer	career	mentor	while	attending	a	
wide	range	of	classes	on	job-readiness,	financial	literacy,	computer	skills,	empowerment	
and	more	–	many	taught	by	skilled	volunteers	from	the	community.	She	receives	health	
services,	can	join	support	groups	for	recovery	and	domestic	violence,	and	receive	legal	help	
with	record	expungement,	credit	repair	and	eviction.	She	receives	emergency	assistance	
through	food	cards	and	other	help	to	ensure	she	and	her	children	can	continue	in	the	
program.	In	our	onsite	child	development	center,	her	children	receive	early	intervention	
and	prevention	of	abuse	and	trauma	along	with	clothing,	formula,	healthy	meals,	diapers	
and	connections	to	medical	and	dental	care.	Women	enter	our	program	feeling	isolated	and	
paralyzed,	but	over	nine	weeks	they	form	a	support	network	that	lasts	for	many	years.		
	
Each	woman	who	graduates	from	our	initial	program	can	enroll	in	our	graduate	services	at	
any	point	when	she	finds	herself	in	need.	We	offer	these	customized	services	to	ensure	our	
graduates	continue	to	have	long-term	success:	paid	job	training;	vocational	certifications	in	
food	service,	security,	CPR	and	more;	emergency	assistance	with	food	and	utility	bills	if	
needed;	counseling	with	social	workers,	employment	specialists	and	our	financial	coach;	
professional	clothing	closet;	and	job	retention	services	for	our	employer	partners	and	our	
graduates	working	for	them.			
	
Alignment	with	Ann	Land	and	Bertha	Henschel	Memorial	Fund	
Our	mission	aligns	perfectly	with	the	mission	of	the	Ann	Land	and	Bertha	Henschel	
Memorial	Fund	by	assisting	destitute	women	and	children	living	in	Sacramento	County.	For	
more	than	18	years,	Women’s	Empowerment	has	been	providing	life-changing	programs	
for	thousands	of	homeless	women	and	children.		
	
Each	year,	we	serve	more	than	600	women	of	all	ethnicities	who	are	homeless	or	formerly	
homeless,	ages	18	and	up	and	living	in	the	greater	Sacramento	area,	as	well	as	their	120	
children.	The	women	and	children	we	serve	face	monumental	barriers,	including	health	
disparities,	racial	injustice	and	the	effects	of	chronic	poverty.	61%	of	our	students	are	
women	of	color	and	75%	are	mothers.	80%	are	survivors	of	domestic	violence	and	40%	
have	survived	childhood	abuse.	65%	experience	mental	illness	and	60%	are	in	recovery	
from	substance	abuse.	Less	than	half	of	the	women	we	serve	eat	three	regular	meals	a	day.		
	
Sacramento’s	homeless	and	housing	crises	continue	to	add	barriers	for	the	women	and	
children	we	serve.	The	Sacramento	County	Office	of	Education	reports	more	than	13,000	
school-aged	children	are	experiencing	homelessness	in	Sacramento	County.	Housing	
affordability	has	hit	a	decade-long	low	after	Sacramento	experienced	the	fastest	growing	
rent	in	the	nation	in	2017,	according	to	ABC10.	The	Sacramento	Bee	recently	reported	that	
only	41%	of	Sacramento	residents	are	able	to	afford	the	median-home	price.	Though	news	
reports	show	people	living	on	the	streets,	women	and	their	families	comprise	the	largest	
and	fastest	–	yet	hidden	–	growing	segment	of	the	homeless	population.		
	
We	would	be	proud	to	once	again	partner	with	the	Ann	Land	and	Bertha	Henschel	
Memorial	Fund	to	help	homeless	women	access	food,	transportation	and	utility	assistance	
as	they	work	to	secure	employment,	regain	a	home	and	create	a	bright	future	for	their	
children.		



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2019	Board	of	Directors	
 
Paula	Clarkson,	Board	President	
Senior	Vice	President,	Specialty/Middle	Market	Operations,	State	Compensation	Insurance	
Fund	
	
Kellie	England,	Immediate	Past	Board	President	
Senior	Vice	President,	Regional	Retail	Executive,	Umpqua	Bank	
	
Leslie	Medina,	Vice	President	
Co-Founder	and	Partner,	Capitol	Advocacy	LLC	(Retired)	
	
Susan	Gower,	Board	Treasurer	
Chief	Financial	Officer,	Sutter	Health	Sacramento	Sierra	Region	(Retired)	
	
Jonathan	Kaufman,	Board	Secretary	
Co-Founder	and	Principal,	Third	Plateau	Social	Impact	Strategies	
	
Frank	Apgar,	MD	
Regional	Medical	Director,	Health	Net	of	California	(Retired)	
Consultant,	Apgar	Healthcare	Consulting	
	
Jessica	Cook	
Assistant	Vice	President,	Product	Manager,	US	Bank	
	
Jennifer	Davidson	
Chief	Financial	Officer,	SMUD	
	
Natoshi	DuBose,	Women’s	Empowerment	Graduate	
California	State	University	Sacramento	Master’s	Program	
	
Bob	Erlenbusch	
Executive	Director,	Sacramento	Regional	Coalition	to	End	Homelessness	
	
Hedy	Govenar	
Founder,	Governmental	Advocates	(Retired)	
	
Robin	Kelly-Dunton,	Women’s	Empowerment	Graduate	



District	Representative,	California	State	Assembly	
	
Preet	Kuar	
Executive	Recruiter/Business	Development	Manager,	Pacific	Staffing	&	Pacific	ExecSearch	
	
Jessica	Leeson	
Regional	Vice	President,	Global	Business	Development,	Vision	Service	Plan	(VSP)	
	
Nikky	Mohanna	
Principal/Real	Estate	Developer,	Mohanna	Development	Co.	
	
Fimy	Sahaida	
Senior	Product	Quality	and	Reliability	Engineer,	Intel	
	
Marisa	Sharkey	
Co-Founder	and	CEO,	Birdies	Slippers	
	



 

 

Board of 
Directors 

Executive 
Director-FT 

SE/CI Manager 
Social Enterprise 

Manager 

AmeriCorps 
VISTA 

Director of 
Administration-

FT 

Safety Monitor -
PT 

Safety Monitor -
PT 

Accounting 
Assistant PT 

Program 
Director-FT 

Employment 
Specialist -FT 

Employment 
Specialist/Job 
Developer -FT 

Social Worker -
FT 

Child 
Development 

Coordinator-PT 

Childcare 
Assistant-PT 

Flex Childcare 
Asst-PT 

Flex Childcare 
Asst-PT 

Social Worker/ 
Housing 

Coordinator - FT 

Program 
Services 

Coordinator 

Development 
Director 

 FT 

Development & 
Admin  

Asssociate-FT 

Community 
Partnerships 

Coordinator FT 

 

Women’s Empowerment 

Organizational Chart 

2019 

 





	











































1590 North A Street   Sacramento, CA 95811   PH: 916.669.2307 
 FX: 916.341.0730    www.womens-empowerment.org   United Way #3243 

	
	
	
	
	

		
Category	 Amount	Requested	 Budget	Explanation	
Healthy	Food	 $2,000	

	
	

This	will	purchase	healthy	snacks	and	lunches	for	
the	women	in	our	program	and	their	children	
enrolled	in	our	onsite	child	development	center,	
as	well	as	emergency	food	cards	when	students	
and	graduates	are	in	need.		

Transportation	Assistance	 $2,000	 This	provides	bus	passes	and	gas	vouchers	to	
students	and	graduates	so	they	may	attend	
classes,	health	appointments,	and	job	interviews.		
	
	

Utility	Assistance	 $2,000	 This	provides	emergency	financial	assistance	
toward	utility	bills	when	students	and	graduates	
are	in	need.	

Total	 $6,000	 	
	

 



INCOMPLETE 
APPLICATIONS 
ALBHMF 2020 

• ACC Senior Services
• Active 20-30 Club of Greater Sacramento
• First Step Communities*
• Fresher Sacramento
• Mercy Pedalers Inc
• River City Food Bank*
• Saint John’s Program for Real Change
• South Sacramento Christian Center*
• South Sacramento Interfaith Partnership Food 

Closet
• UC Davis Health Division Cardiology Heart Failure

* Submitted corrective documents by 11.6.2019



1

Janelle Oishi

From: Janelle Oishi
Sent: Friday, November 1, 2019 9:22 AM
To: vwieneke@accsv.org
Subject: ALBHMF Grant – Notification of Incomplete Application
Attachments: 06-City Tax Correct.pdf; 05-AG Reg Status Correct.pdf

Hello, 
This notice is to confirm receipt of an application for the 2020 Ann Land and Bertha Henschel Memorial Fund Grant. In 
accordance with the guidelines of the application, you are receiving this notice for the following reason(s): 
 

 You are missing the following document(s) as your attachment(s) did not reflect the required document: 
o Verification that your organization (1) is currently registered and in good standing with the Registry of Charitable 

Trusts maintained by the California Attorney General or (2) is not required to register. 
 

 Attached you will find a printout of the correct page from the California Attorney General’s website Registry 
Verification Search (http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Search.aspx?facility=Y) 

 Your status shows current standing, so no further action is required. 
 

o A copy of your organization’s current business license or a letter from the City of Sacramento Finance 
Department verifying your organization’s exemption from the City’s business-operations tax. The Sacramento 
City Code requires that anyone conducting business within the City of Sacramento have a current business license 
on file with the City. The City issues nonprofit organizations a waiver letter in lieu of a business license. A waiver 
letter can be obtained at the Revenue Counter in New City Hall, First Floor, Room 1214. Indicate your organization’s 
non-profit status on the application form. There is no charge for nonprofit organizations. 

 A letter from our records in a previous application was located and is attached here. Please update 
your records; no further action is required. 

 
 

The Commission is unable to fund agencies submitting incomplete applications. If the missing item(s) listed 
above are received by Wednesday, November 6, it will be provided to the Commission for review and 
possible consideration as a late submission.  
If you wish to be considered for funding, your attendance is required at the annual funding meeting on 
Wednesday, November 13, 2019 at 9:00am in the City of Sacramento Council Chambers, City Hall, 915 I 
Street. 
Thank you; please reply to this email if you have any questions. 
 
 
Thank you, 
Janelle Oishi 
Program Specialist 
Department of Youth, Parks and Community Enrichment 
915 I Street, 3rd floor, 
Sacramento, CA 95814 
916.808.1016 

       



ALBH	Grant	Application	2019
City	of	Sacramento

	Submitted	On:
October	24th,	2019	@	3:45pm

Organization	Name Asian	Community	Center	DBA	ACC	Senior	Services

Physcial	Address 7334	Park	City	Drive
Sacramento
CA
95831

Mailing	address	different	from
physical	address?

No

Name Virginia	Wieneke

Title Program	Manager

Phone	Number 916	393-9026

E-Mail	Address vwieneke@accsv.org

Name Darrick	Lam,	MSW,	MBA

Phone	Number 916	394-6399

E-Mail	Address dlam@accsv.org

Name Virginia	Wieneke

Title Program	Manager

Phone	Number 916	393-9026

E-Mail	Address vwieneke@accsv.org

Please	indicate	below	the
services	you	are	requesting

Transportation

Indicate	the	dollar	amount
requested	for	Transportation

$10,000

#	of	clients	that	will	be	served	by
the	Ann	Land	&	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds

52	shoppers	(once	a	week;	twice	a	month;	once	a	month)	56	nutrition	attendees	(daily;	three
times-week;	once	a	week)	=	108

Total	Amount	Requested $10,000.00

The	amount	requested	will	be
applied	to	the	following.

On-going	Program

The	funds	requested	will	be	used
to	serve	the	following	(please
check	all	that	apply)

Families
Women
Men
Children



Will	other	funds	supplement	Ann
Land	and	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds	request	for	this
program?

Yes

Briefly	explain ACC	Rides	receives	$160,467	in	funds	from	Agency	on	Aging	Area	4	and	$200,000	in	grants	from
Caltrans	annually	and	that	helps	cover	all	types	of	transportation	services.	ACC	Rides	provides
4,200	one-way	trips	monthly	to	over	3625	seniors	residing	in	our	service	area.

Did	you	lose	any	funding	in	2019
from	any	source?

No

Do	you	anticipate,	or	have	you
been	notified,	that	you	will	lose
funding	in	2020?

No

Are	you	aware	of,	or	do	you
anticipate	receiving,	any	new
sources	of	funding	in	2020,	for
example,	stimulus	or	other
funds?

No

List	the	hours	that	programs
funded	by	Ann	Land	and	Bertha
Henschel	Memorial	Funds	will	be
available	to	clients.

ACC	Rides	provides	transportation	for	Meals	on	Wheels	participants	to	attend	the	lunch	program
Monday	-	Friday	250	days/year.	Pick	up	time	starts	at	9:00am	to	make	sure	clients	arrive	to	the
meal	site	no	later	than	10:30am.	The	program	ends	at	1:00pm.	Occasionally,	when	there	is	an
event	participants	would	like	attend,	the	pick-	up	time	is	adjusted	as	needed.	
For	shoppers	going	to	the	West	Sacramento	Walmart,	9:00am	is	the	pick–up	time	for	the	first
group	and	10:00am	for	the	second	group.	They	shop	for	about	an	hour	and	a	half.	The	shoppers
from	the	South	Sacramento	location	are	picked	up	at	10:00am	and	taken	home	between
11:30am	–	12	noon,	depending	on	the	time	scheduled	to	return	home.

Describe	the	geographic	service
area,	within	the	City,	when	you
will	spend	the	requested	funds.

Seniors	60	and	older	residing	in	zip	codes:	95814,	95818,	95820,	95822,	95823,	95824,	95828,
95831,	and	95832	can	attend	the	following	café	sites:	Sam	Pannell	Center,	Fruitridge	Center,
Eskaton	Jefferson	Manor	Apartment,	Sacramento	Japanese	Methodist	Church,	or	Buddhist
Church	of	Sacramento.	
Shoppers	who	reside	at	the	following	senior	apartments:	Gibson	Oaks,	Washington	Plaza,
Riverview,	Edgewater,	Comstock,	Capitol	Terrace,	Russell	Manor,	and	Greenhaven	Terrace
Senior	Apartments.

Please	upload	a	brief	description
(no	more	than	two	pages)	of	the
program	or	service	for	which	you
are	requesting	funds.	Explain	how
the	program	or	service
addresses	the	mission	and
funding	priorities	of	the	Ann	Land
and	Bertha	Henschel	Memorial
Funds.

https://seam.ly/bLLlgaJN



Mission	Statement	–
Organizational	Goal

ACC	Senior	Service’s	mission	is,	“To	promote	the	general	welfare	and	enhance	the	quality	of	life
for	our	community	by	identifying,	developing	and	providing	culturally	sensitive	health	and	social
services	for	older	adults.”	
ACC	Programs	in	which	ACC	Rides	Transportation	Services	is	a	part	of,	has	a	vision	of,
“Redefining	active	aging,”	with	a	mission,	“To	inspire	lifelong	learning	and	wellness.”
ACC	Senior	Services	programs	are	open	to	all	seniors.

Date	incorporated	or	otherwise
formed

4
3
1972

Briefly	describe	other	services
and	programs	your	organization
currently	provides.

ACC	Senior	Services	has	a	99	bed	nursing	facility,	a	146	bed	independent/assisted	living	facility,
and	Memory	Care.	ACC	Rides	serve	3265	clients	providing	over	4000	one-way	trips/month.	ACC
community	programs	including	wellness	classes/workshops,	caregiver	support,	friendly	visitor,
Utilities	Education	and	Assistance,	Volunteer	Program,	Senior	Community	Services	Employment
Program	serve	2200	people	a	year.
Meals	on	Wheels	by	ACC	under	ACC	umbrella	provides	senior	lunch	program	to	23	café	sites

Private	or	Corporate	Donations
(Amount)

$535,667.00

Private	or	Corporate	Donations
(%	of	Total	Funding)

40%

United	Way	(Amount) 0

United	Way	(%	of	Total	Funding) 0

SETA	(Amount) 0

SETA	(%	of	Total	Funding) 0

Federal	Assistance	(Amount) 0

Federal	Assistance	(%	of	Total
Funding)

0

State	Assistance	(Amount) CA

State	Assistance	(%	of	Total
Funding)

CA

City	or	County	Assistance	(not
from	the	Ann	Land	Bertha
Henschel	Memorial	Funds)
(Amount)

California

City	or	County	Assistance	(not
from	the	Ann	Land	Bertha
Henschel	Memorial	Funds)	(%	of
Total	Funding)

United	States

Grants	(Amount) $769,603.000

Grants	(%	of	Total	Funding) 59%

Ann	Land	and	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds	(Amount)

$10,000.00



Ann	Land	and	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds	(%	of	Total
Funding)

1%

Other	(briefly	describe	below)
(Amount)

0

Other	(briefly	describe	below)	(%
of	Total	Funding)

0

Total	Amount $1,315,270.00

Other	Income	Sources ACC	Rides	does	not	have	other	source	of	income.

The	names	of	the	members	of
your	organization’s	board	of
directors	and	of	your
organization’s	officers

https://seam.ly/L4ypsvLu

An	organizational	chart	or
description	of	your	organization’s
management	structure

https://seam.ly/wSCX4Jjz

Verification	of	your
organization’s	not-for-profit
status	(letter	from	IRS	confirming
§	501(c)(3)	status)

https://seam.ly/oWQUh9fp

Verification	that	your
organization	(1)	is	currently
registered	and	in	good	standing
with	the	Registry	of	Charitable
Trusts	maintained	by	the
California	Attorney	General	or	(2)
is	not	required	to	register.

https://seam.ly/x9aTSEIG



A	copy	of	your	organization’s
current	business	license	or	a
letter	from	the	City	of
Sacramento	Finance	Department
verifying	your	organization’s
exemption	from	the	City’s
business-operations	tax.	The
Sacramento	City	Code	requires
that	anyone	conducting	business
within	the	City	of	Sacramento
have	a	current	business	license
on	file	with	the	City.	The	City
issues	nonprofit	organizations	a
waiver	letter	in	lieu	of	a	business
license.	A	waiver	letter	can	be
obtained	at	the	Revenue	Counter
in	New	City	Hall,	First	Floor,	Room
1214.	Indicate	your
organization’s	non-profit	status
on	the	application	form.	There	is
no	charge	for	nonprofit
organizations.

https://seam.ly/KRiAOasB

A	copy	of	your	organization’s
most	recent	audit	and	any
corrective	actions	or
recommendations	suggested	by
the	auditor.	If	you	do	not	have	an
annual	audit,	please	explain	why.
You	must	also	provide	a	copy	of
your	organization’s	most-recent
annual	financial	statements,
signed	by	your	organization’s
treasurer	AND	by	the	preparer,
whether	a	CPA	or	bookkeeper

https://seam.ly/teZNqQLl

A	budget	sheet	showing	how
awarded	funds	will	be	spent

https://seam.ly/Ioxe4LYq

Signature	Data First	Name:	Darrick
Last	Name:	Lam
Email	Address:	dlam@accsv.org

Signed	at:	10/24/2019	12:40PM



























Registrant Details
Entity type: Corporate Class as registered with the Secretary of State or based on founding & registration documents.

Organization Name: ASIAN COMMUNITY CENTER OF SACRAMENTO VALLEY, INC. IRS FEIN: 942271380
Entity Type: Public Benefit SOS/FTB Corporate/Organization Number: 0648479

Registry Status: Current Renewal Due/Exp. Date: 5/15/2019
RCT Registration Number: 015994 Issue Date: 12/31/2005
Record Type: Charity Registration Effective Date: 12/31/2005
Date This Status: 4/30/2019 Date of Last Renewal: 12/13/2018

Mailing Address
Street: 7334 PARK CITY DRIVE
Street Line 2:
City, State Zip: SACRAMENTO CA 95831

Filings & Correspondence
RRF-1 2010 2010 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2010 2010 IRS Form 990

Founding Documents Founding Documents

RRF-1 2009 2009 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2009 2009 IRS Form 990

RRF-1 2008 2008 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2008 2008 IRS Form 990

RRF-1 2007 2007 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2007 2007 IRS Form 990

RRF-1 2006 2006 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2006 2006 IRS Form 990

RRF-1 2005 2005 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2005 2005 IRS Form 990

RRF-1 2004 2004 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2004 2004 IRS Form 990

RRF-1 2003 2003 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2003 2003 IRS Form 990

RRF-1 2002 2002 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2002 2002 IRS Form 990

RRF-1 2001 2001 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2001 2001 IRS Form 990

RRF-1 2000 2000 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2000 2000 IRS Form 990

RRF-1 2011 2011 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2011 2011 IRS Form 990

Form RRF-1 2016

IRS Form 990 Series 2016

HOME  ABOUT  MEDIA  CAREERS  REGULATIONS  RESOURCES  PROGRAMS  CONTACT

http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2010.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8005b0dd
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2010.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8005b0de
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=Founding+Documents.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8005b0df
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2009.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8005b0eb
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2009.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8005b0ec
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2008.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8005b0ed
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2008.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8005b0ee
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2007.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8005b0ef
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2007.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8005b0f0
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2006.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8005b0f1
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2006.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8005b0f2
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2005.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8005b0f3
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2005.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8005b0f4
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2004.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8005b0f5
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2004.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8005b0f6
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2003.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8005b0f7
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2003.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8005b0f8
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2002.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8005b0f9
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2002.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8005b0fa
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2001.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8005b0fb
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2001.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8005b0fc
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2000.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8005b0fd
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2000.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8005b0fe
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2011.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8005b0ff
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2011.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8005b100
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=273925.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80322b72
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=273926.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80322b73
https://oag.ca.gov/home
https://oag.ca.gov/about
https://oag.ca.gov/media
https://oag.ca.gov/careers
https://oag.ca.gov/meetings/public-participation
https://oag.ca.gov/services-info
https://oag.ca.gov/programs
https://oag.ca.gov/contact
joishi
Highlight



RRF-1 2012 2012 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2012 2012 IRS Form 990

IRS Form 990 2013 2013 IRS Form 990

RRF-1 2013 2013 RRF-1

Miscellaneous Documents Miscellaneous Documents

RRF-1 2014 2014 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2014 2014 IRS Form 990

2015 Incomplete RRF-1 2015 Incomplete RRF-1

2015 RRF-1 2015 RRF-1

2015 IRS Form 990 2015 IRS Form 990

Renewal Filing 2017

IRS Form 990 Series 2017

Annual Renewal Data
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 1/1/2001
Accounting Period End Date: 12/31/2001
Total Assets: $7,678,267.00
Total Revenue: $5,353,939.00
Filing Received Date: 5/21/2002
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 1/1/2002
Accounting Period End Date: 12/31/2002
Total Assets: $7,709,051.00
Total Revenue: $6,505,695.00
Filing Received Date: 6/17/2003
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 1/1/2003
Accounting Period End Date: 12/31/2003
Total Assets: $8,144,679.00
Total Revenue: $6,422,512.00
Filing Received Date: 5/20/2004
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 1/1/2004
Accounting Period End Date: 12/31/2004
Total Assets: $8,597,920.00
Total Revenue: $7,583,569.00
Filing Received Date: 7/22/2005
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 1/1/2005
Accounting Period End Date: 12/31/2005
Total Assets: $9,009,416.00
Total Revenue: $8,845,883.00
Filing Received Date: 8/17/2006
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 1/1/2006
Accounting Period End Date: 12/31/2006
Total Assets: $10,379,845.00

http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=96296.pdf&document_id=09027b8f801cb0d7
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=96297.pdf&document_id=09027b8f801cb0d9
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=744607.PDF&document_id=09027b8f8022562a
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=744606.PDF&document_id=09027b8f80225629
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=42465.pdf&document_id=09027b8f802554c9
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=905311.PDF&document_id=09027b8f80267dec
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=905312.PDF&document_id=09027b8f80267ded
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=015994445533.pdf&document_id=09027b8f802ab2b5
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=1227682.PDF&document_id=09027b8f802d5e25
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=1227683.PDF&document_id=09027b8f802d5e26
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=432947.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8036a7a3
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=484490.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8038776e


Total Revenue: $7,784,989.00
Filing Received Date: 10/10/2007
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): N
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 1/1/2007
Accounting Period End Date: 12/31/2007
Total Assets: $31,007,853.00
Total Revenue: $8,621,676.00
Filing Received Date: 7/23/2008
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 1/1/2008
Accounting Period End Date: 12/31/2008
Total Assets: $31,825,242.00
Total Revenue: $9,833,191.00
Filing Received Date: 9/15/2009
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 1/1/2009
Accounting Period End Date: 12/31/2009
Total Assets: $33,205,650.00
Total Revenue: $10,000,427.00
Filing Received Date: 11/29/2010
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 1/1/2010
Accounting Period End Date: 12/31/2010
Total Assets: $34,664,167.00
Total Revenue: $11,106,519.00
Filing Received Date: 9/1/2011
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 1/1/2011
Accounting Period End Date: 12/31/2011
Total Assets: $35,364,210.00
Total Revenue: $11,354,153.00
Filing Received Date: 11/2/2012
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 1/1/2012
Accounting Period End Date: 12/31/2012
Total Assets: $37,471,188.00
Total Revenue: $10,466,586.00
Filing Received Date: 11/5/2013
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 1/1/2013
Accounting Period End Date: 12/31/2013
Total Assets: $38,118,449.00
Total Revenue: $12,001,910.00
Filing Received Date: 11/14/2014
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 1/1/2014



Accounting Period End Date: 12/31/2014
Total Assets: $39,076,169.00
Total Revenue: $13,151,770.00
Filing Received Date: 11/18/2015
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 1/1/2015
Accounting Period End Date: 12/31/2015
Total Assets: $37,564,051.00
Total Revenue: $13,202,265.00
Filing Received Date: 11/28/2016
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 1/1/2016
Accounting Period End Date: 12/31/2016
Total Assets: $36,272,040.00
Total Revenue: $13,936,360.00
Filing Received Date: 11/20/2017
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 1/1/2017
Accounting Period End Date: 12/31/2017
Total Assets: $37,761,436.00
Total Revenue: $14,757,755.00
Filing Received Date: 11/16/2018
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N):

Related Registrations & Event Reports
The related records shown below depend on the record type being viewed:

Charity Registrations relate to Professional Fundraising Events which relate to Professional Fundraiser Registrations.
Raffle Registrations relate to Raffle Reports.
Click on the RCT Registration No to navigate to the related record.

Prereq Type: Prerequisite Relationship: Charity
Registrant: AUTOMOTIVE RECOVERY SERVICES INC
Registration No: E0009461 Registration Type: Fundraising Event Registration Status: Complete
Date Established: 12/30/2010 Association Date: 1/1/2011 Expiration Date: 12/31/2011
Prereq Type: Prerequisite Relationship: Charity
Registrant: AUTOMOTIVE RECOVERY SERVICES INC
Registration No: E0012685 Registration Type: Fundraising Event Registration Status: Complete
Date Established: 1/20/2012 Association Date: 1/1/2012 Expiration Date: 12/31/2012
Prereq Type: Prerequisite Relationship: Charity
Registrant: AUTOMOTIVE RECOVERY SERVICES INC
Registration No: E0020160 Registration Type: Fundraising Event Registration Status: Complete
Date Established: 3/20/2014 Association Date: 1/1/2014 Expiration Date: 12/31/2014
Prereq Type: Prerequisite Relationship: Charity
Registrant: AUTOMOTIVE RECOVERY SERVICES INC
Registration No: E0021925 Registration Type: Fundraising Event Registration Status: Complete
Date Established: 11/20/2014 Association Date: 1/1/2013 Expiration Date: 12/31/2013
Prereq Type: Prerequisite Relationship: Charity
Registrant: AUTOMOTIVE RECOVERY SERVICES INC
Registration No: E0023117 Registration Type: Fundraising Event Registration Status: Complete
Date Established: 3/25/2015 Association Date: 1/1/2015 Expiration Date: 12/31/2015
Prereq Type: Prerequisite Relationship: Charity
Registrant: AUTOMOTIVE RECOVERY SERVICES INC
Registration No: E0027244 Registration Type: Fundraising Event Registration Status: Complete
Date Established: 5/19/2016 Association Date: 5/13/2016 Expiration Date: 12/31/2016

http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Details.aspx?result=52f110ce-3822-44a0-bb7a-9d36f4651916
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Details.aspx?result=610ac743-093c-4d47-9ddc-3885bce9d161
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Details.aspx?result=00ea48e0-25e3-4e2d-94e0-6e4891f25acb
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Details.aspx?result=70b2c48a-cca9-48b6-a8dd-49039c5adf55
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Details.aspx?result=9c769a75-8796-4336-ac4d-6e0f63f99ee4
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Details.aspx?result=1b3df67b-c1d2-4403-bcaf-8e8fa97bd726


Prereq Type: Prerequisite Relationship: Charity
Registrant: AUTOMOTIVE RECOVERY SERVICES INC
Registration No: E0029212 Registration Type: Fundraising Event Registration Status: Complete
Date Established: 1/23/2017 Association Date: 1/1/2017 Expiration Date: 12/31/2017
Prereq Type: Prerequisite Relationship: Charity
Registrant: AUTOMOTIVE RECOVERY SERVICES INC
Registration No: E0031748 Registration Type: Fundraising Event Registration Status: Complete
Date Established: 12/26/2017 Association Date: 1/1/2018 Expiration Date: 12/31/2018
Prereq Type: Prerequisite Relationship: Charity
Registrant: AUTOMOTIVE RECOVERY SERVICES INC
Registration No: E0034955 Registration Type: Fundraising Event Registration Status: Awaiting Reporting
Date Established: 1/11/2019 Association Date: 1/1/2019 Expiration Date: 12/31/2019
Prereq Type: Prerequisite Relationship: Charity
Registrant: CAR PROGRAM INC.
Registration No: E0001991 Registration Type: Fundraising Event Registration Status: Complete
Date Established: 4/10/2008 Association Date: 1/1/2007 Expiration Date: 12/31/2007
Prereq Type: Prerequisite Relationship: Charity
Registrant: CAR PROGRAM INC.
Registration No: E0004870 Registration Type: Fundraising Event Registration Status: Complete
Date Established: 4/20/2009 Association Date: 1/1/2008 Expiration Date: 12/31/2008
Prereq Type: Prerequisite Relationship: Charity
Registrant: CAR PROGRAM INC.
Registration No: E0005898 Registration Type: Fundraising Event Registration Status: Complete
Date Established: 9/9/2009 Association Date: 1/1/2009 Expiration Date: 12/31/2009
Prereq Type: Prerequisite Relationship: Charity
Registrant: CAR PROGRAM INC.
Registration No: E0006898 Registration Type: Fundraising Event Registration Status: Complete
Date Established: 2/25/2010 Association Date: 1/1/2010 Expiration Date: 12/31/2010

http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Details.aspx?result=1e47c9b1-38db-4208-b6d5-f71de5c6a684
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Details.aspx?result=f1b9b2c7-859c-47c0-af1b-a63d3d3f310a
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Details.aspx?result=b21bd022-0520-43e5-827d-3f4d4daaf093
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Details.aspx?result=6ec212f1-ec2a-4d9a-aaec-2695a8f3a64d
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Details.aspx?result=5068f502-6f71-46f3-b475-f931b1883b14
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Details.aspx?result=81c8347d-989c-4919-98df-251ae2ac3f54
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Details.aspx?result=a4f91a99-a8eb-4c1e-a268-84599a2f869c
































































1

Janelle Oishi

From: Janelle Oishi
Sent: Friday, November 1, 2019 9:41 AM
To: melissa.planas@gmail.com; heather_hunter@sbcglobal.net
Subject: ALBHMF Grant – Notification of Incomplete Application
Attachments: 05-AG Reg Status Correct.pdf

Hello, 
This notice is to confirm receipt of an application for the 2020 Ann Land and Bertha Henschel Memorial Fund Grant. In 
accordance with the guidelines of the application, you are receiving this notice for the following reason(s): 
 

 You are missing the following document(s) as your application’s attachments did not reflect the required document: 
 

o Verification that your organization (1) is currently registered and in good standing with the Registry of Charitable 
Trusts maintained by the California Attorney General or (2) is not required to register. 

 
 Attached you will find a printout of the correct page from the California Attorney General’s website Registry 

Verification Search (http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Search.aspx?facility=Y) 
 Your status does not show current standing; please connect with the California Attorney General’s 

Office to take corrective action and provide documentation of your updated status. 
 

o A copy of your organization’s current business license or a letter from the City of Sacramento Finance 
Department verifying your organization’s exemption from the City’s business-operations tax. The Sacramento 
City Code requires that anyone conducting business within the City of Sacramento have a current business license 
on file with the City. The City issues nonprofit organizations a waiver letter in lieu of a business license. A waiver 
letter can be obtained at the Revenue Counter in New City Hall, First Floor, Room 1214. Indicate your organization’s 
non-profit status on the application form. There is no charge for nonprofit organizations. 

 You did not include the required letter. Please follow the steps outlined in our FAQ page 
(http://www.cityofsacramento.org/Clerk/Legislative-Bodies/Boards-and-
Commissions/AnnLandandBerthaHenschelMemorialFundCommission/ALBH-FAQ)  to obtain the 
required documentation. Please provide the required document. 

 
The Commission is unable to fund agencies submitting incomplete applications. If the missing item(s) listed 
above are received by Wednesday, November 6, it will be provided to the Commission for review and 
possible consideration as a late submission.  
 
If you wish to be considered for funding, your attendance is required at the annual funding meeting on 
Wednesday, November 13, 2019 at 9:00am in the City of Sacramento Council Chambers, City Hall, 915 I 
Street. 
Thank you; please reply to this email if you have any questions. 
 
 
Thank you, 
Janelle Oishi 
Program Specialist 
Department of Youth, Parks and Community Enrichment 
915 I Street, 3rd floor, 
Sacramento, CA 95814 
916.808.1016 



2

       
E-mail correspondence with the City of Sacramento (and attachments, if any) may be subject to the California Public Records Act, and as 
such may therefore be subject to public disclosure unless otherwise exempt under the Act. 
 



ALBH	Grant	Application	2019
City	of	Sacramento

	Submitted	On:
October	28th,	2019	@	4:47pm

Organization	Name Active	20-20	Club	of	Greater	Sacramento	#1032

Physcial	Address PO	Box	214933
Sacramento
CA
95821

Mailing	address	different	from
physical	address?

No

Name Melissa	Planas

Title Board	Director

Phone	Number 9167684519

E-Mail	Address melissa.planas@gmail.com

Name Heather	Hunter

Phone	Number 9169521686

E-Mail	Address heather_hunter@sbcglobal.net

Name Melissa	Planas

Title Board	Director

Phone	Number 9167684519

E-Mail	Address melissa.planas@gmail.com

Please	indicate	below	the
services	you	are	requesting

Food
Clothing

Indicate	the	dollar	amount
requested	for	Food

$1,000

#	of	clients	that	will	be	served	by
the	Ann	Land	&	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds

50

Indicate	the	dollar	amount
requested	for	Clothing

$5,000

#	of	clients	that	will	be	served	by
the	Ann	Land	&	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds

25

Total	Amount	Requested $6,000.00

The	amount	requested	will	be
applied	to	the	following.

On-going	Program



The	funds	requested	will	be	used
to	serve	the	following	(please
check	all	that	apply)

Families
Children

Will	other	funds	supplement	Ann
Land	and	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds	request	for	this
program?

Yes

Briefly	explain Our	current	budget	has	funds	in	order	to	implement	these	projects,	but	the	projects	are
subjective	to	the	funds	we	receive	in	donations	and	grants	yearly.	If	we	are	only	able	to	receive
some	of	the	funds,	we	will	supplement	with	other	donations.

Did	you	lose	any	funding	in	2019
from	any	source?

No

Do	you	anticipate,	or	have	you
been	notified,	that	you	will	lose
funding	in	2020?

No

Are	you	aware	of,	or	do	you
anticipate	receiving,	any	new
sources	of	funding	in	2020,	for
example,	stimulus	or	other
funds?

No

List	the	hours	that	programs
funded	by	Ann	Land	and	Bertha
Henschel	Memorial	Funds	will	be
available	to	clients.

These	projects	that	will	be	funded	have	various	times.	For	example,	our	Friendsgiving	for	children
and	their	family	will	be	held	5:00PM	to	8:00PM,	while	our	holiday	project	will	be	held	when	ever
the	family	is	available	(gifts	are	delivered	to	the	family	when	it	is	most	convenient	for	them).
Other	projects	and	events	are	usually	held	after	hours	(after	5PM)	due	to	our	membership
working	hours.

Describe	the	geographic	service
area,	within	the	City,	when	you
will	spend	the	requested	funds.

Our	organization	serves	the	Greater	Sacramento	area,	but	can	also	benefit	outside	our	region
depending	on	events	impacting	our	community	(fires).	We	plan	on	utilizing	these	funds	in	the
greater	Sacramento	are	including	Elk	Grove,	Sacramento,	Citrus	Heights,	Rancho	Cordova,
Folsom,	Natomas,	and	other	neighboring	areas.	We	plan	on	utilizing	these	funds	during	our	fiscal
year	of	2020-2021	to	hope	fund	our	holiday	project	and	other	projects	benefiting	children	with
special	needs	in	these	areas.

Please	upload	a	brief	description
(no	more	than	two	pages)	of	the
program	or	service	for	which	you
are	requesting	funds.	Explain	how
the	program	or	service
addresses	the	mission	and
funding	priorities	of	the	Ann	Land
and	Bertha	Henschel	Memorial
Funds.

https://seam.ly/XttPsaWg

Mission	Statement	–
Organizational	Goal

Active	20-30	is	a	non-profit	organization	that	provides	adults	between	the	ages	of	20	and	39	with
an	opportunity	for	personal	growth,	friendships	and	leadership	development	while	improving	the
quality	of	life	for	the	special	needs	of	children	in	our	communities.	Mission:	"Providing	young
adults	an	opportunity	for	personal	growth,	friendships,	and	leadership	development	while
improving	the	quality	of	life	for	the	special	needs	of	children	in	its	community."



Date	incorporated	or	otherwise
formed

12
11
1990

Briefly	describe	other	services
and	programs	your	organization
currently	provides.

We	provide	volunteer	based	projects	for	a	variety	of	non	profits	in	the	Sacramento	Area
engaging	children	and	their	families	in	a	quality	event/activity	(pumpkin	patch,	Easter	egg	hunt,
Shriner''s	Hospital	arts	and	craft).	We	also	organize	and	host	a	Crab	Feed	and	Sactown	Urban
Dash	(5k	run)	to	support	our	project	and	fund	other	non	profits.	We	also	have	a	variety	of
leadership	opportunities	for	our	membership	to	grow	as	community	leaders.

Private	or	Corporate	Donations
(Amount)

$5,006.40

Private	or	Corporate	Donations
(%	of	Total	Funding)

10%

United	Way	(Amount) 0

United	Way	(%	of	Total	Funding) 0

SETA	(Amount) 0

SETA	(%	of	Total	Funding) 0

Federal	Assistance	(Amount) 0

Federal	Assistance	(%	of	Total
Funding)

0

State	Assistance	(Amount) 0

State	Assistance	(%	of	Total
Funding)

0

City	or	County	Assistance	(not
from	the	Ann	Land	Bertha
Henschel	Memorial	Funds)
(Amount)

0

City	or	County	Assistance	(not
from	the	Ann	Land	Bertha
Henschel	Memorial	Funds)	(%	of
Total	Funding)

0

Grants	(Amount) 0

Grants	(%	of	Total	Funding) 0

Ann	Land	and	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds	(Amount)

0

Ann	Land	and	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds	(%	of	Total
Funding)

0

Other	(briefly	describe	below)
(Amount)

$45,146.34



Other	(briefly	describe	below)	(%
of	Total	Funding)

90%

Total	Amount $50,152.74

Other	Income	Sources 90%	of	raffle	earning,	proceeds	from	Crab	Feed	2019	and	Sactown	Urban	Dash	2019,	nonprofit
insurance	dividends	$162.48;	$2000	transferred	from	closing	convention	acct	for	comfort	cases
project,	interest	income	accrued	in	benevolent	acct	during	18-19

The	names	of	the	members	of
your	organization’s	board	of
directors	and	of	your
organization’s	officers

https://seam.ly/3N5KiDwv

An	organizational	chart	or
description	of	your	organization’s
management	structure

https://seam.ly/Rt9y26wH

Verification	of	your
organization’s	not-for-profit
status	(letter	from	IRS	confirming
§	501(c)(3)	status)

https://seam.ly/4HyKqr5g

Verification	that	your
organization	(1)	is	currently
registered	and	in	good	standing
with	the	Registry	of	Charitable
Trusts	maintained	by	the
California	Attorney	General	or	(2)
is	not	required	to	register.

https://seam.ly/IqFi71ix

A	copy	of	your	organization’s
current	business	license	or	a
letter	from	the	City	of
Sacramento	Finance	Department
verifying	your	organization’s
exemption	from	the	City’s
business-operations	tax.	The
Sacramento	City	Code	requires
that	anyone	conducting	business
within	the	City	of	Sacramento
have	a	current	business	license
on	file	with	the	City.	The	City
issues	nonprofit	organizations	a
waiver	letter	in	lieu	of	a	business
license.	A	waiver	letter	can	be
obtained	at	the	Revenue	Counter
in	New	City	Hall,	First	Floor,	Room
1214.	Indicate	your
organization’s	non-profit	status
on	the	application	form.	There	is
no	charge	for	nonprofit
organizations.

https://seam.ly/mu0qNCN6



A	copy	of	your	organization’s
most	recent	audit	and	any
corrective	actions	or
recommendations	suggested	by
the	auditor.	If	you	do	not	have	an
annual	audit,	please	explain	why.
You	must	also	provide	a	copy	of
your	organization’s	most-recent
annual	financial	statements,
signed	by	your	organization’s
treasurer	AND	by	the	preparer,
whether	a	CPA	or	bookkeeper

https://seam.ly/UTYfFAW2

A	budget	sheet	showing	how
awarded	funds	will	be	spent

https://seam.ly/aT1Eq99Y
https://seam.ly/tF4HLyot

Signature	Data First	Name:	Melissa
Last	Name:	Planas
Email	Address:	melissa.planas@gmail.com

Signed	at:	10/28/2019	01:15PM



 
 
10/28/2019 
 
Request for Funds 
 
The Active 20-30 Club of Greater Sacramento is innovative and impactful in our service to the 
community.  We have been fortunate enough to benefit many destitute children and their families in a 
variety of ways including hands on events which can support these children and families in accessing 
basic needs or a quality moments in their lives. 
 
For this year’s request for funding, we would like to utilize these funds to support our efforts to continue 
an annual Holiday Project and Friendsgiving event. Both of these events will be focused on providing 
children and families who are struggling with basic needs to bring joy and relief for at least one night. 
 
During our Friendsgiving event, we provide a thanksgiving meal, with all the sides included, and offer a 
chance for children and their families to spend quality time with one another without having to worry 
about the meal.  During this time, we also provided activities for families and children to enhance their 
enjoyable evening and be sure to be a holiday memory to share in the future.  These funds will support 
the purchasing of the dinner, activities, and supplies needed to ensure this event is successful.  
 
The holiday project is an event we are attempting to bring back to our organization. We adopt families 
with children who have been identified by their agency to be destitute and in need of holiday cheer. The 
agency working with the family (usually a community based nonprofit) will ask the children to write a 
letter to Santa which will be provided to our organization.  With these letter, our organization shops for 
the children, and the caregivers, wrap each gift, and then deliver the presents to the family’s home (in 
Santa and elf suits) either on Christmas Eve or Christmas Day in order to brighten the families’ holiday 
with a little cheer.  We as an organization would like to take on this project and bring it back to our 
community.  We not only saw the benefit in the families served, but also in the volunteering by our 
membership making it one of the most enjoyable and rewarding events.  
 
We hope we can be considered for the funding by Ann Land and Bertha Henschel Memorial Funds as we 
believe our mission and values are very connected and similar.  We look forward to hearing the decision 
of the committee.  Thank you. 
 
Active 20-30 Club of Greater Sacramento #1032 
 
Melissa Planas 
Board Director 
Grant Committee 
 
Melissa.planas@gmail.com 
 

https://www.sacwomens2030.org/


 
2019-2020 Board Members  

 

Heather Hunter 
President  

Jaci McAleer 
Vice President   

Linda Abdelbaki 
Immediate Past President  

 

Danielle Haener 
Treasurer  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Colleen Anthonisen 
Recording Secretary 

  

Kelsey Cowin 
Corresponding Secretary 

 

 

Stacie Anderson 
Board Director  

Hilary Grider 
Board Director  

McKenna Peterson 
Board Director  

Melissa Planas 
Board Director  

Amanda Rambo 
Board Director 

 

https://www.sacwomens2030.org/


 
 

President 

Vice President 

Recording Secretary Corresponding Secretary Treasurer 

Board Directors 

Active Members: 

Active member are able to volunteer their time to be on committees which include Ways and Means, Major 

Event Co-Chairs, Fall and Spring Project, Charity Research, and Scholarship.  These committee assignments 

are made by the President and is encouraged for each member to participate.  

https://www.sacwomens2030.org/












Registrant Details
Entity type: Corporate Class as registered with the Secretary of State or based on founding & registration documents.

Organization Name: ACTIVE 20-30 FOUNDATION, INC. IRS FEIN: 237046335
Entity Type: Public Benefit SOS/FTB Corporate/Organization Number: 0530465

Registry Status: Delinquent Renewal Due/Exp. Date: 11/15/2016
RCT Registration Number: 009507 Issue Date: 7/5/1968
Record Type: Charity Registration Effective Date: 7/5/1968
Date This Status: 5/6/2015 Date of Last Renewal: 2/10/2016

Mailing Address
Street: 65 ENTERPRISE
Street Line 2:
City, State Zip: ALISO VIEJO CA 92656

Filings & Correspondence
RRF-1 2011 2011 RRF-1

Founding Documents Founding Documents

RRF-1 2010 2010 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2010 2010 IRS Form 990

RRF-1 2009 2009 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2009 2009 IRS Form 990

RRF-1 2008 2008 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2008 2008 IRS Form 990

RRF-1 2007 2007 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2007 2007 IRS Form 990

RRF-1 2006 2006 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2006 2006 IRS Form 990

RRF-1 2005 2005 RRF-1

RRF-1 2004 2004 RRF-1

RRF-1 2003 2003 RRF-1

RRF-1 2002 2002 RRF-1

RRF-1 2012 2012 RRF-1

IRS Form 990-PF 2012 2012 IRS Form 990-PF

1st Delinquency Notice 1st Delinquency Notice

Renewal Filing 2017

Renewal Filing 2018

IRS Form 990-PF 2013 2013 IRS Form 990-PF

2015 RRF-1 2015 RRF-1

RRF-1 2014 2014 RRF-1

IRS Form 990-PF 2014 2014 IRS Form 990-PF

RRF-1 2013 2013 RRF-1

HOME  ABOUT  MEDIA  CAREERS  REGULATIONS  RESOURCES  PROGRAMS  CONTACT

http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2011.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80138960
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=Founding+Documents.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80138961
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2010.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80138962
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2010.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80138963
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2009.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80138964
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2009.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80138967
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2008.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80138968
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2008.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80138969
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2007.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8013896a
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2007.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8013896b
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2006.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8013896c
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2006.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8013896d
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2005.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8013896e
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2004.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8013896f
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2003.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80138970
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2002.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80138971
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2012.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80138972
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990-PF+2012.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80138973
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=1st+Delinquency+Notice.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80138974
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=440499.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8036ee2a
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=440498.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8036ee29
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=812311.PDF&document_id=09027b8f8024a004
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=930172.PDF&document_id=09027b8f8026e1aa
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=786404.PDF&document_id=09027b8f8023275c
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=786405.PDF&document_id=09027b8f8023275d
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=812310.PDF&document_id=09027b8f8024a003
https://oag.ca.gov/home
https://oag.ca.gov/about
https://oag.ca.gov/media
https://oag.ca.gov/careers
https://oag.ca.gov/meetings/public-participation
https://oag.ca.gov/services-info
https://oag.ca.gov/programs
https://oag.ca.gov/contact


Annual Renewal Data
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2001
Accounting Period End Date: 6/30/2002
Total Assets: $0.00
Total Revenue: $0.00
Filing Received Date: 9/30/2009
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): N
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2002
Accounting Period End Date: 6/30/2003
Total Assets: $0.00
Total Revenue: $0.00
Filing Received Date: 9/30/2009
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): N
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2003
Accounting Period End Date: 6/30/2004
Total Assets: $0.00
Total Revenue: $0.00
Filing Received Date: 9/30/2009
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): N
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2004
Accounting Period End Date: 6/30/2005
Total Assets: $0.00
Total Revenue: $0.00
Filing Received Date: 12/7/2009
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): N
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2005
Accounting Period End Date: 6/30/2006
Total Assets: $20,513.00
Total Revenue: $25,689.00
Filing Received Date: 11/14/2006
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2006
Accounting Period End Date: 6/30/2007
Total Assets: $2,920.00
Total Revenue: $2,442.00
Filing Received Date: 2/19/2008
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2007
Accounting Period End Date: 6/30/2008
Total Assets: $113,450.00
Total Revenue: $124,877.00
Filing Received Date: 5/19/2009
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2008
Accounting Period End Date: 6/30/2009
Total Assets: $103,913.00



Total Revenue: ($9,652.00)
Filing Received Date: 5/10/2010
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2009
Accounting Period End Date: 6/30/2010
Total Assets: $112,332.00
Total Revenue: $15,365.00
Filing Received Date: 10/1/2010
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2010
Accounting Period End Date: 6/30/2011
Total Assets: $128,007.00
Total Revenue: $2,528.00
Filing Received Date: 2/14/2012
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): N
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2011
Accounting Period End Date: 6/30/2012
Total Assets: $138,387.00
Total Revenue: $14,607.00
Filing Received Date: 2/7/2013
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2012
Accounting Period End Date: 6/30/2013
Total Assets: $170,535.00
Total Revenue: $733.00
Filing Received Date: 5/5/2015
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2013
Accounting Period End Date: 6/30/2014
Total Assets: $118,315.00
Total Revenue: $124.00
Filing Received Date: 2/18/2015
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2014
Accounting Period End Date: 6/30/2015
Total Assets: $122,338.00
Total Revenue: $4,523.00
Filing Received Date: 11/30/2015
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): N
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Not Submitted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2015
Accounting Period End Date: 6/30/2016
Total Assets:
Total Revenue:
Filing Received Date:
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): N
Online Submission (Y/N):
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2016



Accounting Period End Date: 6/30/2017
Total Assets: $148,956.00
Total Revenue: $5,223.00
Filing Received Date: 11/19/2018
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N):
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 7/1/2017
Accounting Period End Date: 6/30/2018
Total Assets: $150,513.00
Total Revenue: $3,779.00
Filing Received Date: 11/19/2018
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N):

Related Registrations & Event Reports
The related records shown below depend on the record type being viewed:

Charity Registrations relate to Professional Fundraising Events which relate to Professional Fundraiser Registrations.
Raffle Registrations relate to Raffle Reports.
Click on the RCT Registration No to navigate to the related record.

No Related Records



Registrant Details
Entity type: Corporate Class as registered with the Secretary of State or based on founding & registration documents.

Organization Name: ACTIVE 20/30 CLUB OF GREATER SACRAMENTO NO. 1032 IRS FEIN: 942900108
Entity Type: Mutual Benefit SOS/FTB Corporate/Organization Number: 0484802

Registry Status: Current Renewal Due/Exp. Date: 12/15/2019
RCT Registration Number: 026136 Issue Date: 7/31/2006
Record Type: Charity Registration Effective Date: 7/31/2006
Date This Status: 8/11/2017 Date of Last Renewal: 4/23/2019

Mailing Address
Street: PO BOX 214933
Street Line 2:
City, State Zip: SACRAMENTO CA 95821

Filings & Correspondence
Good Standing Letter Good Standing Letter

RRF-1 2010 2010 RRF-1

Founding Documents Founding Documents

RRF-1 2009 2009 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2009 2009 IRS Form 990

RRF-1 2008 2008 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2008 2008 IRS Form 990

RRF-1 2007 2007 RRF-1

RRF-1 2006 2006 RRF-1

RRF-1 2004 2004 RRF-1

RRF-1 2002 2002 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2002 2002 IRS Form 990

RRF-1 2001 2001 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2001 2001 IRS Form 990

RRF-1 2000 2000 RRF-1

IRS Form 990-EZ 2010 2010 IRS Form 990-EZ

RRF-1 2011 2011 RRF-1

IRS Form 990-EZ 2011 2011 IRS Form 990-EZ

1st Delinquency Notice 1st Delinquency Notice

IRS Form 990-EZ 2004 2004 IRS Form 990-EZ

IRS Form 990-EZ 2006 2006 IRS Form 990-EZ

IRS Form 990-EZ 2007 2007 IRS Form 990-EZ

RRF-1 2011 Questions RRF-1 2011 Questions

RRF-1 2012 2012 RRF-1

SERVICE DISRUPTION - Site will be unavailable intermittently from Thursday, November 14th 2019 11:30 PM to
Friday, November 15th 2019 1:30 AM

HOME  ABOUT  MEDIA  CAREERS  REGULATIONS  RESOURCES  PROGRAMS  CONTACT

http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=Good+Standing+Letter.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8006340a
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2010.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8006340c
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=Founding+Documents.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8006340d
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2009.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8006340e
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2009.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8006340f
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2008.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80063410
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2008.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80063411
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2007.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80063412
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2006.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80063413
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2004.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80063414
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2002.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80063415
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2002.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80063416
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2001.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80063417
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2001.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80063418
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2000.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80063419
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990-EZ+2010.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8006341a
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2011.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8006341b
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990-EZ+2011.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8006341c
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=1st+Delinquency+Notice.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8006341e
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990-EZ+2004.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8006341f
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990-EZ+2006.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80063420
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990-EZ+2007.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80063421
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2011+Questions.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80063422
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=115804.pdf&document_id=09027b8f801aefb5
https://oag.ca.gov/home
https://oag.ca.gov/about
https://oag.ca.gov/media
https://oag.ca.gov/careers
https://oag.ca.gov/meetings/public-participation
https://oag.ca.gov/services-info
https://oag.ca.gov/programs
https://oag.ca.gov/contact


IRS Form 990-EZ 2012 2012 IRS Form 990-EZ

Incomplete Notice 2013 Incomplete Notice 2013

RRF-1 2013 2013 RRF-1

IRS Form 990-EZ 2013 2013 IRS Form 990-EZ

Miscellaneous Documents Miscellaneous Documents

2015 RRF-1 2015 RRF-1

1st Delinquency Letter 1st Delinquency Letter

Cleared Intent to Suspend Letter Cleared Intent to Suspend Letter

Notice of Intent to Suspend - PO Box 214933 Notice of Intent to Suspend - PO Box 214933

Notice of Intent to Suspend - 1872 53rd Street Notice of Intent to Suspend - 1872 53rd Street

Late Fees Invoice Late Fees Invoice

2016 Form RRF-1 Click on Document Type at the left to open PDF

2014 Form RRF-1 Click on Document Type at the left to open PDF

2014 IRS Form 990-EZ Click on Document Type at the left to open PDF

CT-712 Raffle Notice to Register 2016

Form RRF-1 2017

Renewal Filing 2018

Annual Renewal Data
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 8/1/2001
Accounting Period End Date: 7/31/2002
Total Assets: $9,200.00
Total Revenue: $28,000.00
Filing Received Date: 12/18/2002
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): N
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 8/1/2002
Accounting Period End Date: 7/31/2003
Total Assets: $11,479.00
Total Revenue: $104,510.00
Filing Received Date: 7/19/2004
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 8/1/2003
Accounting Period End Date: 7/31/2004
Total Assets: $30,228.00
Total Revenue: $32,878.00
Filing Received Date: 8/30/2010
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 8/1/2004
Accounting Period End Date: 7/31/2005
Total Assets: $27,164.00
Total Revenue: $69,635.00
Filing Received Date: 3/15/2006
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 8/1/2005
Accounting Period End Date: 7/31/2006
Total Assets: $34,297.00
Total Revenue: $52,638.00

http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=115880.pdf&document_id=09027b8f801aefb6
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=026136010Z09454242.pdf&document_id=09027b8f801d922d
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=723888.PDF&document_id=09027b8f8021fe1b
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=737216.PDF&document_id=09027b8f80222337
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=1103134.PDF&document_id=09027b8f802951d6
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=1103133.PDF&document_id=09027b8f802951d7
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=00000155.pdf&document_id=09027b8f802aefdf
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=00000179.pdf&document_id=09027b8f802e410a
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=00000164.pdf&document_id=09027b8f802d8eb3
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=00000164.pdf&document_id=09027b8f802d8ec2
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=00000171.pdf&document_id=09027b8f802e3a3c
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=1340336.PDF&document_id=09027b8f802f5d53
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=201606.pdf&document_id=09027b8f802feb73
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=201607.pdf&document_id=09027b8f802feb74
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=10124544.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80334dfd
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=365425.pdf&document_id=09027b8f803522d5
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=486370.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80387bd6


Filing Received Date: 11/17/2006
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 8/1/2006
Accounting Period End Date: 7/31/2007
Total Assets: $41,838.00
Total Revenue: $43,121.00
Filing Received Date: 8/30/2010
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 8/1/2007
Accounting Period End Date: 7/31/2008
Total Assets: $62,588.00
Total Revenue: $49,123.00
Filing Received Date: 8/6/2010
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 8/1/2008
Accounting Period End Date: 7/31/2009
Total Assets: $66,311.00
Total Revenue: $34,469.00
Filing Received Date: 8/6/2009
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 8/1/2009
Accounting Period End Date: 7/31/2010
Total Assets: $30,303.00
Total Revenue: $44,806.00
Filing Received Date: 9/13/2011
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 8/1/2010
Accounting Period End Date: 7/31/2011
Total Assets: $77,270.00
Total Revenue: $78,285.00
Filing Received Date: 1/24/2012
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 8/1/2011
Accounting Period End Date: 7/31/2012
Total Assets: $3,313.00
Total Revenue: $57,377.00
Filing Received Date: 8/22/2013
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 8/1/2012
Accounting Period End Date: 7/31/2013
Total Assets: $11,125.00
Total Revenue: $55,053.00
Filing Received Date: 9/22/2014
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 8/1/2013
Accounting Period End Date: 7/31/2014



Total Assets: $52,859.00
Total Revenue: $46,261.00
Filing Received Date: 7/13/2017
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 8/1/2014
Accounting Period End Date: 7/31/2015
Total Assets: $47,444.00
Total Revenue: $38,947.00
Filing Received Date: 5/31/2016
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): N
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 8/1/2015
Accounting Period End Date: 7/31/2016
Total Assets: $50,170.00
Total Revenue: $32,674.00
Filing Received Date: 6/23/2017
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): N
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 8/1/2016
Accounting Period End Date: 7/31/2017
Total Assets: $46,048.00
Total Revenue: $35,315.00
Filing Received Date: 6/15/2018
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): N
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 8/1/2017
Accounting Period End Date: 7/31/2018
Total Assets: $38,587.00
Total Revenue: $54,829.00
Filing Received Date: 3/29/2019
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): N
Online Submission (Y/N):

Related Registrations & Event Reports
The related records shown below depend on the record type being viewed:

Charity Registrations relate to Professional Fundraising Events which relate to Professional Fundraiser Registrations.
Raffle Registrations relate to Raffle Reports.
Click on the RCT Registration No to navigate to the related record.

No Related Records



 

 

Below is the detailed data for the licensee 

you selected. 
You may CLOSE this window to return to the 

Search Results and choose another license. 

Facility Information 

 Organization Name: ACTIVE 20-30 FOUNDATION, INC. IRS FEIN: 237046335 
 Entity Type: Public Benefit   SOS/FTB Corporate/Organization Number: 0530465 
 

 

License Information 

Registry Status: Complete  Renewal Due/Exp. Date: 8/31/2006 
RCT Registration Number: 4800-2006-1  Issue Date: 3/18/2006 
Record Type: Raffle Report  Effective Date: 3/18/2006 
Date This Status:   Date of Last Renewal:  
 

 

Address Information 

 Street: 915 L ST STE 1000 
 Street Line 2:  
 City, State Zip: SACRAMENTO CA 95814 
 

No Related Documents 
 

Prerequisite Information 

 Prereq Type: Prerequisite User Relationship: Self Automatic 
 Registrant: ACTIVE 20-30 FOUNDATION, INC. 
 Registration No: 4800 Registration Type: Raffle Registration Registration Status: Expired 
 Date Established:  Association Date:  Expiration Date:  
 

 

Related Documents 

No Related Documents 
 

Raffle Event Data 

 Aggregate Gross Receipts: $2,006.00 
 Aggregate Expenses:  
 Funds from Other Sources:  
 Proceeds to Other Organization:  
 C1 90 Percent to Charity:  
 C2 No Funds to Internal Member:  
 C3 No Involved Person Comp:  
 C4 No Gaming Machine:  
 C5 No Financial Interest:  
 C6 Not Conducted at Gaming Estab:  
 C7 Not on Internet:  
 C8 Funds out of State:  
 90/10 Letter Sent:  
 Other Violation Letter Sent:  
 

 

 

 

http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Details.aspx?result=599e41e8-e710-4c77-a4e7-30168be2a63b


 9:06 AM

 10/17/19

 Cash Basis

 ACTIVE 20-30 CLUB OF GREATER SACRAMENTO #1032

 Budget vs. Actual - Scholarship Account
 August 2019 through July 2020

Aug '19 - Jul 20 Budget $ Over Budget

Ordinary Income/Expense

1 Expense

2 Crosbie Scholarship Award 0.00 2,000.00 -2,000.00

3 Scholarship Awards 0.00 4,000.00 -4,000.00

4 Total Expense 0.00 6,000.00 -6,000.00

5 Net Ordinary Income 0.00 -6,000.00 6,000.00

6 Restricted Funds Used 0.00 6,000.00 6,000.00
7 Net Income 0.00 0.00 0.00

 Page 1 of 1



 9:28 AM

 10/17/19

 Cash Basis

 ACTIVE 20-30 CLUB OF GREATER SACRAMENTO #1032

 Budget vs. Actual - Benevolent Account
 August 2019 through July 2020

Aug '19 - Jul 20 Budget $ Over Budget

Ordinary Income/Expense

1 Income

2 Donations

3 Ambassador Program 0.00 0.00 0.00

4 Holiday Project 0.00 0.00 0.00

5 Misc. Donations to Benevolent 30.00 500.00 -470.00

6 Raffle Donation from General 0.00 500.00 -500.00

7 Total Donations 30.00 1,000.00 -970.00

8 Interest Income 0.00 0.00 0.00

9 Misc. Benevolent Income 0.00 0.00 0.00

10 Proceeds from Major Events

11 Crab Feed 0.00 25,000.00 -25,000.00

12 Fall Event 0.00 2,000.00 -2,000.00

13 Total Proceeds from Major Events 0.00 27,000.00 -27,000.00

14 Total Income 30.00 28,000.00 -27,970.00

15 Gross Profit 30.00 28,000.00 -27,970.00

16 Expense

17 Bank Fees 0.00 0.00 0.00

18 Distribution to Beneficiaries

19 Crab Feed 0.00 23,000.00 -23,000.00

20 Fall Event 0.00 1,800.00 -1,800.00

21 Other 0.00 0.00 0.00

22 Total Distribution to Beneficiaries 0.00 24,800.00 -24,800.00

23 Fall/Spring Projects 0.00 3,600.00 -3,600.00

24 Holiday Project Expense 0.00 4,500.00 -4,500.00

25 National Pennies-A-Day

26 Natl Pennies-A-Day Expense 0.00 556.86 -556.86

27 Natl Pennies-A-Day Reimb. -35.00 -556.86 521.86

28 Total National Pennies-A-Day -35.00 0.00 -35.00

29 Prior Term Charity Disbursement 0.00 0.00 0.00

30 Scholarship

31 Scholarship Expenses 0.00 0.00 0.00

32 Scholarship Reimbursement 0.00 0.00 0.00

33 Total Scholarship 0.00 0.00 0.00

34 Shopping Spree

35 Shopping Spree Expenses 16,310.21 16,329.23 -19.02

36 Shopping Spree Reimb. -9,600.00 -7,000.00 -2,600.00

37 Shopping Spree - Other 325.85

38 Total Shopping Spree 7,036.06 9,329.23 -2,293.17

39 Ways & Means Expense 0.00 1,500.00 -1,500.00

40 Total Expense 7,001.06 43,729.23 -36,728.17

41 Net Ordinary Income -6,971.06 -15,729.23 8,758.17

41 Restricted Funds Used 11,729.23 11,729.23 0.00

42 Bank Funds Used** 4,256.86 0.00 0.00

 Page 1 of 2



 9:28 AM

 10/17/19

 Cash Basis

 ACTIVE 20-30 CLUB OF GREATER SACRAMENTO #1032

 Budget vs. Actual - Benevolent Account
 August 2019 through July 2020

Aug '19 - Jul 20 Budget $ Over Budget

43 Net Income 9,015.03 -4,000.00 4,758.17

**Bank Funds Used: Holiday Project $3500; Ways and Means $500; Pennies a day $256.86

*Pennies a day cancels out as a line item

 Page 2 of 2



 10:20 AM

 09/07/19

 Cash Basis

 ACTIVE 20-30 CLUB OF GREATER SACRAMENTO #1032

 Budget vs. Actual General Acct
 August 2018 through July 2019

Aug '18 - Jul 19 Budget $ Over Budget Notes

1 Ordinary Income/Expense

2 Income

3 Ambassador Program Revenue 520.50 0.00 520.50 Fall donations for BVM for Ambassador; all other ambassdors were event 
sponsors for CF and SUD which were accounted in the event budgets

4 Contribution from Major Events

5 Crab Feed 3,500.00 3,500.00 0.00 Transfer from 2019 Crab Feed to General for operating costs
6 Fall Event 1,011.10 150.00 861.10 Transfer from 2019 SUD to General for operating costs
7 Total Contribution from Major Events 4,511.10 3,650.00 861.10

8 Fundraising Projects Income** 9,872.93 2,000.00 7,872.93 Fundraising  deposit for SacRepublic $100 (cancelled event and refunded 
$100 in line item 45); Bar tips/Flocking $173.60, Tough Mudder $9599.33   

9 Interest Income 4.41 0.00 4.41 Interest earned on General Checking Acct 18-19 Term
10 Membership Dues

11 Active Member Dues 7,075.02 9,250.00 -2,174.98

Total of 39 members: 37 members at $185 = $6845; 1 leave of absence 
members = $100; 1 honorary life member (does not pay local dues $85 
portion) = $100; 1 member started a payment plan with 1 payment made in 
January and then decided to drop $30.02 (we reimbursed that member her 
partial payment, see line item 67) 

12 New Members (Prorated) Dues 1,054.00 751.00 303.00 9 new members this term
13 Total Membership Dues 8,129.02 10,001.00 -1,871.98
14 Misc. General Income 235.00 0.00 235.00 $210 convention acct income transfer to general; $25 late report fee
15 New Member Initiation Fees 306.00 640.00 -334.00 9 new members at $34 new member initiation fee = $306

16 Raffle Income 88.50 0.00 88.50 10% of the holiday dinner and AB raffle stays in the General acct for operating 
costs

17 Roster Ad Income 75.00 100.00 -25.00 1 roster ad at $50, and 1 roster ad at $25
18 Total Income 23,742.46 16,391.00 7,351.46
19 Gross Profit 23,742.46 16,391.00 7,351.46
20 Expense

21 Ambassador Program Expenses 468.45 0.00 468.45 Transfer for 90% of Ambassador income from line item 3 to Benevolent Acct

22 Anniversary Brunch

23 Anniversary Brunch Expenses 3,501.01 0.00 3,501.01 Programs $11.28, invites $47.93, thank yous $25, photobooth $80, food, 
facility, parking and flowers $3336.80

24 Anniversary Brunch Ticket Reimb -3,308.00 0.00 -3,308.00 $188 for scholarship recipients; $3120 for guests; $500 from 17-18 term 
accounted in line item 92

25 Total Anniversary Brunch 193.01 0.00 193.01

26 Awards 716.19 800.00 -83.81 2 Nat'l PA Life $200; ROTY $66.47; Pins $85.43; WOTY $280.34; PSA 
$32.23; LOTY $51.72

27 Cocktail Party

28 Cocktail Party Expenses 123.25 0.00 123.25 Food expenses
29 Cocktail Party Ticket Reimb. -129.00 0.00 -129.00 17 attendees and $10 donation from men's club
30 Total Cocktail Party -5.75 0.00 -5.75
31 Convention Delegates 600.00 600.00 0.00 $200 for delegate, alternate delegate and speech contestant
32 Convention Pins

33 Convention Pins Expense 235.72 350.00 -114.28 convention pins costs
34 Convention Pins Reimb. -26.00 0.00 -26.00 sold $26 pins
35 Total Convention Pins 209.72 350.00 -140.28
36 Convention T-Shirts

37 Convention T-Shirt Expenses 483.77 0.00 483.77 convention hats and tshirt expense
38 Convention T-Shirt Reimb. -483.77 0.00 -483.77 member's reimbursement
39 Total Convention T-Shirts 0.00 0.00 0.00
40 Cookie Exchange

41 Cookie Exchange Expenses 206.71 0.00 206.71 drinks and venue $199.30; best cookie prizes $7.41
42 Cookie Exchange Ticket Reimb. -230.00 0.00 -230.00 23 attendees at $10 each
43 Total Cookie Exchange -23.29 0.00 -23.29
44 Courtesy 325.46 375.00 -49.54 courtesy expenses

45 Fundraising Projects Expenses** 8,180.43 8,100.00 80.43 Tough Mudder expenses/taxes/insurance $8080.43; $100 sacrepublic 
fundraiser refund

46 Gifts 798.57 850.00 -51.43
Committee/event co-chair gifts $316.22; board gifts end of term $129.84; 4 
aging out gifts $90.51; installation new board gifts $82.23; President necklace 
$179.77

47 Historian 150.00 150.00 0.00 scrapbook expense
48 Holiday Dinner

49 Holiday Dinner Expeneses 1,513.27 0.00 1,513.27 $18.95 bad santa gifts; $1494.32 venue, dinner, centerpieces

50 Holiday Dinner Ticket Reimb. -1,020.00 0.00 -1,020.00 68 attendees; line item 95 has $500 from 17-18 term accounted for in line item 
92

 Page 1 of 4



 10:20 AM

 09/07/19

 Cash Basis

 ACTIVE 20-30 CLUB OF GREATER SACRAMENTO #1032

 Budget vs. Actual General Acct
 August 2018 through July 2019

Aug '18 - Jul 19 Budget $ Over Budget Notes

51 Total Holiday Dinner 493.27 0.00 493.27
52 Installation Dinner

53 Installation Dinner Expenses 1,868.61 0.00 1,868.61 venue, food, dessert expenses
54 Installation Ticket Reimb. -1,551.00 0.00 -1,551.00 47 attendees

55 Total Installation Dinner 317.61 0.00 317.61 $310 reallocated from other line items (AB, Convention Pins, and gifts) that 
had surplus to cover a portion of the costs of installation

56 Insurance

57 Directors & Officers 1,017.00 1,087.00 -70.00
58 General Liability 650.00 800.00 -150.00
59 Property Insurance 265.00 266.00 -1.00
60 Total Insurance 1,932.00 2,153.00 -221.00
61 July Board Retreat

62 July Board Retreat Expenses 4,380.01 0.00 4,380.01 food $248.61; JBR house expense $4131.40
63 July Board Retreat Reimb. -2,020.00 0.00 -2,020.00 $660 2018 deposit returned; $1360 members reimbursement
64 President Fines -690.00 -500.00 -190.00 23 bellringers 

65 Total July Board Retreat 1,670.01 -500.00 2,170.01
$500 from 17-18 term accouted for in line item 92; $300 reallocated from other 
line items (AB); 2019 $700 deposit was returned in August 2019 and is 
accounted for in 2019-2020 budget

66 Meeting Room Rental 3,900.00 4,095.00 -195.00 21 meetings at Evan's Kitchen 

67 Misc. General Expeneses 30.02 0.00 30.02 refund to member who started a payment plan and then decided to drop

68 National Dues

69 Active Members 4,600.00 4,500.00 100.00 payment to nationals for 46 members from the prior term
70 New Members (Prorated) 430.00 900.00 -470.00 9 new members national pro-rated dues payment to nationals
71 Total National Dues 5,030.00 5,400.00 -370.00
72 Natl New Member Initiation Fee 306.00 340.00 -34.00 9 members payment of the new member initiation fee to nationals
73 New Members Committee 0.00 400.00 -400.00 nothing expensed this term
74 Office Supplies 27.69 36.60 -8.91 president office supplies
75 Past Active Relations 111.00 111.00 0.00 PA gifts at Holiday Dinner $32.43; PA BBQ Party $78.57
76 Post Office Box 112.00 108.00 4.00 PO Box expense
77 President's Last Board Mtg 50.00 25.00 25.00 dessert and drinks
78 Promotions

79 Promotions Expenses 203.97 0.00 203.97 new member tshirts and badge replacements
80 Promotions Reimb. -203.97 0.00 -203.97 member's reimbursement for those costs
81 Total Promotions 0.00 0.00 0.00
82 Public Relations 125.00 100.00 25.00 2018 Chalk It Up expense
83 Roster 254.56 300.00 -45.44 roster expenses
84 Scholarship Committee 0.00 50.00 -50.00 nothing expensed this term
85 Storage 126.00 116.00 10.00 two months of storage payment once prior contract ended (June/July)
86 Taxes, Licenses & Fees 1,010.00 1,010.00 0.00 taxes/fees
87 Treasurer 50.00 100.00 -50.00 purchase of quickbooks
88 Voice Mail 168.00 168.00 0.00 voicemail expense
89 Web Page 299.88 400.00 -100.12 webpage expense
90 Total Expense 27,625.83 25,637.60 1,988.23
91 Net Ordinary Income -3,883.37 -9,246.60 5,363.23
92 Income from 17-18 Term Surplus* 2,636.60 2,636.60
93 Net Income*** -1,246.77 -6,610.00 5,363.23

BUDGET NOTES:

*Income from 17-18 Term Surplus **Fundraising Net Profit

For July Board Retreat Total Profit from Tough Mudder
For Anniversary Brunch Total Profit from Flocking/tips
Holiday Dinner Total Fundraising Profits

Convention Pins *** Net Income

Installation Dinner 
Conventon Delegates
Office Supplies
Total in line item 92$2,636.60

$1,518.90
$173.60

$1,692.50

The end of term General Acct balance is 
$14,068.52. The net income of -$1,246.77 will be 

deducted from the General Acct balance. 

$310.00

$36.60

$800.00
$139.01
$500.00
$250.99

$600.00

 Page 2 of 4



 1:12 PM

 09/07/19

 Cash Basis

 ACTIVE 20-30 CLUB OF GREATER SACRAMENTO #1032

 Budget vs. Actual - Benevolent Account

 August 2018 through July 2019

Aug '18 - 

Jul 19
Budget

$ Over 

Budget
Notes

Ordinary Income/Expense

1 Income
2 Donations
3 Ambassador Program 468.45 0.00 468.45 90% of the ambassador income to benevolent acct
4 Holiday Project 2,000.00 0.00 2,000.00 $2000 donation from Griffith Family Trust

5 Misc. Donations to Benevolent 2,537.95 500.00 2,037.95 Donations to Benevolent: Facebook donations, IBM donations, 
AmazonSmile

6 Raffle Donation from General 796.50 500.00 296.50 90% of the holiday dinner and AB raffle income to benevolent acct

7 Total Donations 5,802.90 1,000.00 4,802.90

8 Interest Income 25.93 0.00 25.93 interest income accrued in benevolent acct during 18-19 term

9 Misc. Benevolent Income 2,162.48 0.00 2,162.48 nonprofit insurance dividends $162.48; $2000 transferred from 
closing convention acct for comfort cases project

10 Proceeds from Major Events
11 Crab Feed 33,561.51 25,000.00 8,561.51 proceeds from 2019 CF
12 Fall Event 8,599.92 1,500.00 7,099.92 proceeds from 2019 SUD
13 Total Proceeds from Major Events 42,161.43 26,500.00 15,661.43
14 Total Income 50,152.74 27,500.00 22,652.74
15 Gross Profit 50,152.74 27,500.00 22,652.74
16 Expense
17 Distribution to Beneficiaries
18 Crab Feed 20,836.51 21,500.00 -663.49 Distribution to 2019 CF Beneficiaries
19 Fall Event 7,588.82 1,350.00 6,238.82 Distribution to 2019 SUD Beneficiary
20 Other 2,500.00 2,500.00 0.00 Distribution to 2018 Comfort Case Project
21 Total Distribution to Beneficiaries 30,925.33 25,350.00 5,575.33
22 Fall/Spring Projects 1,940.41 2,650.00 -709.59 2019 Easter Egg Hunt Spring Project expenses
23 Garden Project 0.00 0.00 0.00 no garden project this term
24 Holiday Project Expense 6,540.01 7,000.00 -459.99 $100 for 66 individuals for holiday shopping
25 National Pennies-A-Day
26 Natl Pennies-A-Day Expense 450.55 491.05 -40.50 National Pennies-a-Day distribution at 2019 Convention

27 Natl Pennies-A-Day Reimb. -371.86 -491.05 119.19 2018-19 sargent-at-arms and penny can income from members 
($91.05 allocated from 17-18 term accounted from in line item 41)

28 Total National Pennies-A-Day 78.69 0.00 78.69
29 Scholarship
30 Scholarship Expenses 6,500.00 6,500.00 0.00 Distributions for scholarship recipients
31 Scholarship Reimbursement -6,500.00 -6,500.00 0.00 Transfer from scholarship saving acct for 2019 scholarships
32 Total Scholarship 0.00 0.00 0.00
33 Shopping Spree

34 Shopping Spree Expenses 19,997.97 12,978.15 7,019.82 Buses/transportation; paul mitchell hair cuts, kid shopping; 
breakfast 

35 Shopping Spree Reimb. -9,900.00 -12,978.15 3,078.15 Income received from Mens Club, Sponsors Trainor Fairbrook, 
CalTex, Lincoln Financial Foundation

36 Total Shopping Spree 10,097.97 0.00 10,097.97

37 Ways & Means Expense 823.04 2,000.00 -1,176.96 Activity expenses with Schriners, Ronald McDonald, CCHAT, 
Keaton's Cancer Alliance

38 Total Expense 50,405.45 37,000.00 13,405.45
39 Net Ordinary Income -252.71 -9,500.00 9,247.29

40 Funds in Acct Used For 18/19 Expenses 3,091.05 3,091.05 3,091.05 2018 Holiday Project: $2000; 2018 Fall Project: $500; 17/18 
Surplus: $591.05 ($500 Little Library/$91.05 Pennies A Day) 

41 Restricted Funds Used for 2018 SS 12,978.15 12,978.15 12,978.15

42 Restricted Funds Used for W/M & SP 2,500.00 2,500.00 2,500.00 $2000 for 18-19 Term Ways and Means; $500 for 2019 Spring 
Project

43 Has Been Restricted For Future Use for SS 12,673.08 12,673.08 12,673.08 2019 Crab Feed SS Allocation: $9225; 2018 SS Surplus: $3448.08

44 Net Income 5,643.41 3,478.15 2,165.26
 Page 3 of 4



 1:03 PM

 09/07/19

 Cash Basis

 ACTIVE 20-30 CLUB OF GREATER SACRAMENTO #1032

 Budget vs. Actual - Scholarship Account
 August 2018 through July 2019

Aug '18 - Jul 

19
Budget $ Over Budget Notes

1 Ordinary Income/Expense

2 Income

3 Crosbie Family Memorial Donation 2,525.00 0.00 2,525.00 Donations from Pas for Crosbie; $500 transferred from 17-
18 General Budget for Crosbie Scholarship Fund

4 Garage Sale Proceeds 0.00 200.00 -200.00 no garage sale this year

5 Misc. Donation to Scholarship 742.00 0.00 742.00 Fundraising Legacy Night tips $242; 2019 SUD Scholarship 
Donation $500 transferred from Event Acct

6 Total Income 3,267.00 200.00 3,067.00
7 Gross Profit 3,267.00 200.00 3,067.00
8 Expense

9 Anniversary Brunch

10 Anniversary Brunch Expenses 188.00 200.00 -12.00 4 scholarship guests at AB
11 Total Anniversary Brunch 188.00 200.00 -12.00
12 Crosbie Scholarship Award 2,500.00 2,500.00 0.00 Distribution of Crosbie Scholarship Recipients
13 Scholarship Awards 4,000.00 4,000.00 0.00 Distribution of #1032 Scholarship Recipients
14 Total Expense 6,688.00 6,700.00 -12.00
15 Net Ordinary Income -3,421.00 -6,500.00 3,079.00

16 Restricted Funds 6,000.00 6,000.00 2015, 2016, and 2017 Crab Feed Scholarship Allocations 
Used 

17 Net Income 2,579.00 -500.00 3,079.00

 Page 4 of 4



1

Janelle Oishi

From: Janelle Oishi
Sent: Friday, November 1, 2019 10:15 AM
To: swwh2os@gmail.com
Subject:  ALBHMF Grant – Notification of Incomplete Application
Attachments: 05-AG Reg Status Correct.pdf

Hello, 
This notice is to confirm receipt of an application for the 2020 Ann Land and Bertha Henschel Memorial Fund Grant. In 
accordance with the guidelines of the application, you are receiving this notice for the following reason(s): 
You are missing the following document(s) as your application’s attachments did not reflect the required document: 

 
o Verification that your organization (1) is currently registered and in good standing with the Registry of Charitable 

Trusts maintained by the California Attorney General or (2) is not required to register. 
 

 Attached you will find a printout of the correct page from the California Attorney General’s website Registry 
Verification Search (http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Search.aspx?facility=Y)  The correct “Record 
Type” on the site is the “Charity Registration”. 

 Your status does not show current standing; please connect with the California Attorney General’s 
Office to take corrective action and provide documentation of your updated status. 

 
 

 

The Commission is unable to fund agencies submitting incomplete applications. If the missing item(s) listed 
above are received by Wednesday, November 6, it will be provided to the Commission for review and 
possible consideration as a late submission.  
 
If you wish to be considered for funding, your attendance is required at the annual funding meeting on 
Wednesday, November 13, 2019 at 9:00am in the City of Sacramento Council Chambers, City Hall, 915 I 
Street. 
Thank you; please reply to this email if you have any questions. 
 
 
Thank you, 
Janelle Oishi 
Program Specialist 
Department of Youth, Parks and Community Enrichment 
915 I Street, 3rd floor, 
Sacramento, CA 95814 
916.808.1016 

       
E-mail correspondence with the City of Sacramento (and attachments, if any) may be subject to the California Public Records Act, and as 
such may therefore be subject to public disclosure unless otherwise exempt under the Act. 
 



ALBH	Grant	Application	2019
City	of	Sacramento

	Submitted	On:
October	25th,	2019	@	8:11pm

Organization	Name First	Step	Communities

Physcial	Address 1400	North	A	Street,	Building	A
Sacramento
CA
95814

Mailing	address	different	from
physical	address?

Yes

Mailing	Address PO	Box	188228
Sacramento
CA
95818

Name Stephen	Watters

Title Executive	Director

Phone	Number 916.769.8877

E-Mail	Address swwh2os@gmail.com

Name Stephen	W	Watters

Phone	Number 916.769.8877

E-Mail	Address swwh2os@gmail.com

Name Stephen	Watters

Title Executive	Director

Phone	Number 916.769.8877

E-Mail	Address swwh2os@gmail.com

Please	indicate	below	the
services	you	are	requesting

Clothing
Shelter
Utilities
Transportation

Indicate	the	dollar	amount
requested	for	Clothing

$1,000.00

#	of	clients	that	will	be	served	by
the	Ann	Land	&	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds

400

Indicate	the	dollar	amount
requested	for	Shelter

$5,500.00



#	of	clients	that	will	be	served	by
the	Ann	Land	&	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds

400

Indicate	the	dollar	amount
requested	for	Utilities

$	2000.00

#	of	clients	that	will	be	served	by
the	Ann	Land	&	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds

1,400

Indicate	the	dollar	amount
requested	for	Transportation

$3,500.00

#	of	clients	that	will	be	served	by
the	Ann	Land	&	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds

400

Total	Amount	Requested $12,000.00

The	amount	requested	will	be
applied	to	the	following.

On-going	Program

The	funds	requested	will	be	used
to	serve	the	following	(please
check	all	that	apply)

Women

Will	other	funds	supplement	Ann
Land	and	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds	request	for	this
program?

Yes

Briefly	explain We	are	funded	to	administer	the	North	A	Street	Campus,	an	emergency	shelter	and	case
management	rehousing	services	center.	The	North	A	Street	shelter	will	convert	to	a	Women''s
Emergency	Shelter	funded	by	Sacramento	County	DHA	on	01/01/2020.	We	have	a	Kaiser
Permanente	grant	for	$15,000.00	in	2019	and	anticipate	an	increased	Kaiser	amount	in	2020.

Did	you	lose	any	funding	in	2019
from	any	source?

No

Do	you	anticipate,	or	have	you
been	notified,	that	you	will	lose
funding	in	2020?

No

Are	you	aware	of,	or	do	you
anticipate	receiving,	any	new
sources	of	funding	in	2020,	for
example,	stimulus	or	other
funds?

Yes

Briefly	explain We	also	have	a	state	funded	ESG	grant	to	supplement	case	management	services	in	2020	for
$123,000.00.	We	anticipate	adding	specialists	to	our	case	management	team	to	address	both
domestic	violence	and	alcohol	and	other	drug	(AOD)	issues.



List	the	hours	that	programs
funded	by	Ann	Land	and	Bertha
Henschel	Memorial	Funds	will	be
available	to	clients.

The	North	A	Street	Emergency	shelter	will	operate	24	hours	per	day,	365	days	per	year.	The
services	center	on	campus	will	operate	8	hours	per	day,	Monday	through	Friday	with	special
additional	hours	for	a	sanitation	program	that	provides	restrooms	to	men	and	women	7	days	per
week.

Describe	the	geographic	service
area,	within	the	City,	when	you
will	spend	the	requested	funds.

The	contractual	focus	for	the	North	A	Street	Campus	-	Shelter	and	Services	Center	-	is	the	River
District.	This	is	located	in	District	3.	It	is	a	heavily	populated	by	unsheltered	homeless	individuals.
Some	of	these	individuals	migrate	to	the	River	District	from	other	Sacramento	neighborhoods
since	services	are	also	concentrated	in	the	River	District	and	adjoining	areas.

Please	upload	a	brief	description
(no	more	than	two	pages)	of	the
program	or	service	for	which	you
are	requesting	funds.	Explain	how
the	program	or	service
addresses	the	mission	and
funding	priorities	of	the	Ann	Land
and	Bertha	Henschel	Memorial
Funds.

https://seam.ly/LZM9T8YY

Mission	Statement	–
Organizational	Goal

First	Step	Communities	will	create	interim	housing	and	emergency	shelter	for	people
experiencing	homelessness.	Here	they	will	live	in	safety	and	dignity,	receive	the	services	they
require,	and	take	a	first-step	away	from	homelessness	toward	self-sufficiency	and	permanent
housing.

Date	incorporated	or	otherwise
formed

5
20
2015

Briefly	describe	other	services
and	programs	your	organization
currently	provides.

From	2016	to	2019,	FSC	administered	the	Sacramento	County	Winter	Sanctuary	and	Pilgrimage
shelter	programs.	Both	programs	were	administered	on	a	rotating	church	model.	Starting
01.01.2020	the	county	has	agreed	to	replace	that	model	with	a	permanent	site	model	and
services.	This	will	be	located	in	the	North	A	Street	Campus	facility.	We	are	also	working	with	the
city	at	the	newly	reorganized	North	5th	Street	Campus	-	Shelter	and	Services.	

Private	or	Corporate	Donations
(Amount)

$12,500.00

Private	or	Corporate	Donations
(%	of	Total	Funding)

1%

United	Way	(Amount) $0.00

United	Way	(%	of	Total	Funding) 0%

SETA	(Amount) $0.00

SETA	(%	of	Total	Funding) 0%

Federal	Assistance	(Amount) $0.00

Federal	Assistance	(%	of	Total
Funding)

0%

State	Assistance	(Amount) $0.00



State	Assistance	(%	of	Total
Funding)

0%

City	or	County	Assistance	(not
from	the	Ann	Land	Bertha
Henschel	Memorial	Funds)
(Amount)

$1,181,300.00

City	or	County	Assistance	(not
from	the	Ann	Land	Bertha
Henschel	Memorial	Funds)	(%	of
Total	Funding)

97%

Grants	(Amount) $12,500.00

Grants	(%	of	Total	Funding) 1%

Ann	Land	and	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds	(Amount)

$8,500.00

Ann	Land	and	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds	(%	of	Total
Funding)

Other	(briefly	describe	below)
(Amount)

$10,500.00

Other	(briefly	describe	below)	(%
of	Total	Funding)

Total	Amount $1,205,800.00

Other	Income	Sources Other	is	private	donations	from	individuals	and	fundraising	event.

The	names	of	the	members	of
your	organization’s	board	of
directors	and	of	your
organization’s	officers

https://seam.ly/6AeJ0CiW

An	organizational	chart	or
description	of	your	organization’s
management	structure

https://seam.ly/bODGtpV6

Verification	of	your
organization’s	not-for-profit
status	(letter	from	IRS	confirming
§	501(c)(3)	status)

https://seam.ly/79xedrJI

Verification	that	your
organization	(1)	is	currently
registered	and	in	good	standing
with	the	Registry	of	Charitable
Trusts	maintained	by	the
California	Attorney	General	or	(2)
is	not	required	to	register.

https://seam.ly/WUZRurwE



A	copy	of	your	organization’s
current	business	license	or	a
letter	from	the	City	of
Sacramento	Finance	Department
verifying	your	organization’s
exemption	from	the	City’s
business-operations	tax.	The
Sacramento	City	Code	requires
that	anyone	conducting	business
within	the	City	of	Sacramento
have	a	current	business	license
on	file	with	the	City.	The	City
issues	nonprofit	organizations	a
waiver	letter	in	lieu	of	a	business
license.	A	waiver	letter	can	be
obtained	at	the	Revenue	Counter
in	New	City	Hall,	First	Floor,	Room
1214.	Indicate	your
organization’s	non-profit	status
on	the	application	form.	There	is
no	charge	for	nonprofit
organizations.

https://seam.ly/GfxbtzS0

A	copy	of	your	organization’s
most	recent	audit	and	any
corrective	actions	or
recommendations	suggested	by
the	auditor.	If	you	do	not	have	an
annual	audit,	please	explain	why.
You	must	also	provide	a	copy	of
your	organization’s	most-recent
annual	financial	statements,
signed	by	your	organization’s
treasurer	AND	by	the	preparer,
whether	a	CPA	or	bookkeeper

https://seam.ly/gPLeg2fU
https://seam.ly/GjrxAAxw

A	budget	sheet	showing	how
awarded	funds	will	be	spent

https://seam.ly/3xnRJhI4

Signature	Data First	Name:	Stephen
Last	Name:	Watters
Email	Address:	swatters@firststepcommunities.com

Signed	at:	10/25/2019	04:25PM



 
 

   

a  b r i d g e  o u t  o f  h o m e l e s s n e s s 
 

www.firststepcommunities.org 

October 25, 2019 
 
Ann Land Bertha Henschel Evaluation Team, 
 
Below you will find a program narrative and scope of work for the FSC North A Street Campus – Emergency Shelter 
and Services taken directly from the County of Sacramento Department of Human Assistance (DHA) RFP document. 
First Step Communities has been awarded this contract effective 10.24.2019 by meeting and surpassing these 
requirements.  
 
REQUIRED PROGRAM AND SERVICE COMPONENTS  

  
1. Emergency Shelter Operations  
Proposer shall provide basic onsite sheltering services in a County Owned facility located at 1400 North A 

Street (Building B) Sacramento, CA 95811. The Proposer will be required to enter into a lease with County 

General Services. Sheltering services include sleeping and hygiene accommodations, three meals per day, 

laundry, mail services, pet accommodation and storage facilities. Detail on basic onsite services are as follows:  

  
i.                                          Sleeping accommodations  

 
ii.                                        Hygiene Accommodations  

 
iii.                                       Meals  

 
iv.                                       Laundry   

  

v.                           Mail Service  

  

vi.                           Pet Accommodation  

 

vii.                           Storage Facilities  

 

viii.                           Well maintained facility  

    

2. Sanitation Services  

Proposer shall offer sanitation services, Monday through Sunday; 7 am to 7 pm within the County owned facility 

located at 1400 North A Street (Building A) Sacramento, CA 95814. Sanitation services will be available by walk-in. 

Proposer can limit the number of guest using the restroom facilities at one time, to ensure safety and security of the 

building and guest. These services will help address the needs of the homeless population in the immediate vicinity 

which currently lacks public restrooms.     

  

3. Re-housing and Support Services  

a. Intake and Assessment: Upon shelter entry, all participants will receive a needs assessment relative 

to:  

• Immediate health and safety needs pertinent to providing appropriate shelter 

accommodations.  

• Interview with each participant to gather required information; identify 

strengths, skills and needs to set goals.  



 
 

   

a  b r i d g e  o u t  o f  h o m e l e s s n e s s 
 

www.firststepcommunities.org 

• Obtain information relevant to securing housing, such as preference and factors 

that directly relate to housing instability (e.g. factors that would cause a landlord 

to reject a participants application for housing)  

   

b. Case Management: Proposer shall provide housing focused case management services.  

i. Within seven (7) days from shelter entry, all participants are assisted with a housing-based 

service plan designed to meet the unique needs of the participant and the shortest possible 

shelter stay is facilitated.  

 

ii. Assistance in obtaining vital paperwork necessary for employment and housing:  

• California I.D  

• Birth Certificates  

• Social Security cards  

• Document Chronicity  

• Housing History  

  

iii. Referral to Continuum of Care resources  

   

c. Referrals and Coordination of Services: Proposer shall help participants identify and access services 

that meet specific needs or support progress towards identified goals. This may include providing 

information about services, calling to establish appointment, assisting with application, providing 

appointment reminders and follow up.  

  

d. Exit Planning: When a participant is leaving the program, Proposer shall engage participants in exit 

planning and support successful transition from the program. The plan may also include establishing 

access to services in the community.  

  
FSC would like to add the following brief notes: 
 
The redesign of the Winter Sanctuary Program into a 24-hour shelter with case management and rehousing 
services is a great step forward. This allows us to achieve our concept of an emergency seasonal shelter by 
providing extensive case management and rehousing services aimed at providing successful outcomes for our 
clients.  This will include rehousing in permanent housing, long-term shelters, and through family reconciliations, 
as well as, medical primary healthcare and referrals and mental health counseling. We will continue to provide 
additional services including legal services, free phone program support, insurance acquisition, 
DHA benefits acquisition support and housing counseling, etc.  
 
ALBH support in 2020 will allow us to enhance our program budget to provide mailroom services, transportation to 
medical, legal and services appointments, emergency supplemental laundry services for shelter clients, and 
additional first aid kits, emergency clothing, incontinence supplies and additional sanitation supplies such as toilet 
paper and paper towels supporting additional hours of operation.  
 
 
 
 



 
 

   

a  b r i d g e  o u t  o f  h o m e l e s s n e s s 

 
First Step Communities Executive Board: 

 Bill Knowlton, Board President, Executive Director, Mack Road Partnership. 

 Bob Erlenbusch, Board VP, Executive Director, Sacramento Regional Coalition to End 
Homelessness. 

 Brian Ridgeway, Board CFO, Housing Professional , State of CA. 

 Kerrin West, Board Secretary, President, Studio 81 International. 

 Vacant board position held for WellSpace Health/Healthcare Partner 

 
First Step Communities Advisory Board members: 
 

 Jeff Carpenter, P.E., LEED® AP Principal, Wood Rodgers, Inc. 

 Ken Cross, former CEO, Sacramento Habitat for Humanity 

 John Foley, Executive Director, Sacramento Self Help Housing. 

 Anthony Gallardo, Homeless Advocate-Leader. 

 Ron Javor, Attorney and Sacramento Self Help Housing board member. 

 Howard Lawrence, Community Organizer. 

 Jim MacFarland, Retired State Official, Program Volunteer. 

 Rob Penrod, VP of Engineering at Villara Building Systems, Emeritus Board Chair of HomeAid. 

 Jonathan Porteus, CEO WellSpace Health. 

 Forrest Reed, Fundraising professional. 

 Todd Reiners, McKesson Corporation and Executive Director Homeless Outreach Program Effort  

 Bryce Robicheau, Account Executive, Citadel Solar and Roofing. 

 Greg Sparks, Housing Consultant, former Mercy Housing executive. 

 Kim Tucker, VP at 3Fold Communications. 

 Pastor Bryant Wyatt, Mount Calvary Baptist Church. 
 
Additional support from: 

 John Davis, legal counsel, Legal Services of Northern CA. 

 Mike and Lola Acosta, Woodlake Neighborhood Creative Transparency Association 

 Rick Watson, CPA 

 Holly Wonder Stiles, Mutual Housing California 

 Jake Meehan, Northern California Construction Training 

 Steve Heath, Executive Director, Capitol Health Network 

 Rachel Wickland, Vice President, Workforce Development, Goodwill Industries 

 Vic Wurston, Pride Industries 

 



Organization Chart First Step Communities  

 

 

 

 

 

  

  

  

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Leadership Team 

   

 

 

Attorney 

John Davis, LSNC 

Financial Consultant 

Taxes, Audits 

Rick Watson, CPA 

Board of Directors 

Bill Knowlton, President 

Bob Erlenbusch, Vice President 

Kerrin West, Secretary 

Brian Ridgway, CFO 

Open Seat 

 

Accounting – SOP Support 

Desli Beckman 

Elise Beckman 

 

IT Support 

Ryan Rossiter 

TransPac Consulting 

 

Advisory Board 

Jeff Carpenter, Wood Rodgers 

Ken Cross, Consultant 

John Foley, SSHH 

Ron Javor, Attorney 

Howard Lawrence, ACT 

Rob Penrod, Villara Building Sys. 

Jonathan Porteus, CEO, WellSpace Health 

Forrest Reed 

Todd Reiners, Project HOPE 

Bryce Robicheau, Citadel Solar 

Meghan Stanton, ED, Consumer Self Help 

Kim Tucker, 3Fold Communication 

Holly Wonder-Stiles, Mutual Housing 
 

 

North A Street Campus Program 

Shelter Administration 
Shelter Staff (15+)   
Case Managers (3) 

Outreach (2) 
Sanitation Team (8+) 

CEO/Executive Director/Founder 

Stephen Watters 
 

North 5th Street Campus Program 

 
Shelter Administration   

Volunteers (10+) 
Case Manager (4) 

Outreach (1) 

Pilgrimage Shelter Program  
 

Midtown Churches 

Rebekah Turnbaugh 

Volunteer Team 

Sacramento Food Bank 

Collaborative Service Providers 
 
Volunteers of America 

Women’s Empowerment 
Loaves & Fishes  
Maryhouse/Sister Nora’s 
Elica Health  
One Community Health,  
Legal Services of Northern CA,  
Sac Self Help Housing,  
DHA, DHS, County Immunization  
Others 

 

FSC Program Planning Team 

Studio 81 International 
 

Northern CA Construction Training 
 

HomeAid 
 

WellSpace Health 
 
 

Program Referral Support 

City PD Impact Team 

County Rangers 

SSF Navigators 

Sacramento Covered 

HR Support 

Laura Cox, HR-to-Go 



INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE 
P. O. BOX 2508 
CINCINNATI, OH 45201 

Date: 
FIRST STEP HOUSING 
C/O RICHARD E WATSON JR 
8 METRO LN 
SACRAMENTO, CA 95816-4396 

DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY 

Employer I d e n t i f i c a t i o n Number: 
35-2537631 
DLN: 
17053282317005 

Contact Person: 
KIMBERLY L KITCHENS ID# 31457 

Contact Telephone Number: 
(877) 829-5500 

Accounting Period Ending: 
December 31 

Public Charity Status: 
170(b)(1)(A)(vi) 
Form 990/990-EZ/990-N Required: 
Yes 

Effective Date of Exemption: 
May 20, 2015 

Contribution D e d u c t i b i l i t y : 
Yes 
Addendum Applies: 
No 

Dear Applicant: 
We're pleased to t e l l you we determined you're exen^t from federal income tax 
iinder Internal Revenue Code (IRC) Section 501(c)(3). Donors can deduct 
contributions they make to you under IRC Section 170. You're also q u a l i f i e d 
to receive tax deductible bequests, devises, transfers or g i f t s under 
Section 2055, 2106, or 2522, This l e t t e r could help resolve questions on your 
exempt status. Please keep i t for your records. 

Organizations exempt under IRC Section 501(c)(3) are further c l a s s i f i e d as 
either public c h a r i t i e s or private foundations. We determined you're a public 
charity under the IRC Section l i s t e d at the top of t h i s l e t t e r . 

I f we indicated at the top of t h i s l e t t e r that you're required to f i l e Form 
990/990-EZ/990-N, our records show you're required to f i l e an annual 
information return (Form 990 or Form 990-EZ) or electronic notice (Form 990-N, 
the e-Postcard). I f you don't f i l e a required return or notice f o r three 
consecutive years, your exempt status w i l l be automatically revoked. 

I f we indicated at the top of t h i s l e t t e r that an addendimi applies, the 
enclosed addendum i s an inte g r a l part of t h i s l e t t e r . 

For important information about your r e s p o n s i b i l i t i e s as a tax-exempt 
organization, go to www.irs.gov/charities. Enter "4221-PC" i n the search bar 
to view Publication 4221-PC, Compliance Guide for 501(c)(3) Public Charities, 
which, describes your recordkeeping, reporting, and disclosure requirements. 

Letter 947 



-2-

FIRST STEP HOUSING 

We sent a copy of t h i s l e t t e r to your 
power of attorney. 

representative as indicated i n your 

Sincerely, 

Jeffrey I . Cooper 
Director, Exempt Organizations 

Letter 947 



Registrant Details
Entity type: Corporate Class as registered with the Secretary of State or based on founding & registration documents.

Organization Name: FIRST STEP HOUSING IRS FEIN: 352537631
Entity Type: Public Benefit SOS/FTB Corporate/Organization Number: 3789847

Registry Status: Delinquent Renewal Due/Exp. Date: 5/15/2018
RCT Registration Number: CT0226828 Issue Date: 12/3/2015
Record Type: Charity Registration Effective Date: 12/3/2015
Date This Status: 2/19/2019 Date of Last Renewal: 11/29/2017

Mailing Address
Street: PO BOX 188228
Street Line 2:
City, State Zip: SACRAMENTO CA 95818

Filings & Correspondence
Confirmation of registration letter Confirmation of registration letter

IRS Form 1023 IRS Form 1023

Bylaws Bylaws

Response to Confirmation Response to Confirmation

Founding Documents Founding Documents

Form RRF-1 2015

Form RRF-1 2016

IRS Form 990 Series 2016

Annual Renewal Data
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 1/1/2015
Accounting Period End Date: 12/31/2015
Total Assets: $3,020.00
Total Revenue: $4,850.00
Filing Received Date: 11/20/2017
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): N
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 1/1/2016
Accounting Period End Date: 12/31/2016
Total Assets: $39,045.00
Total Revenue: $125,789.00
Filing Received Date: 11/20/2017
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N

Related Registrations & Event Reports
The related records shown below depend on the record type being viewed:

Charity Registrations relate to Professional Fundraising Events which relate to Professional Fundraiser Registrations.
Raffle Registrations relate to Raffle Reports.
Click on the RCT Registration No to navigate to the related record.

HOME  ABOUT  MEDIA  CAREERS  REGULATIONS  RESOURCES  PROGRAMS  CONTACT

http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=151204Z12233714.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8023f342
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=0226828_1211151259.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80240532
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=0226828_121115100.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80240536
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=0226828_121115101.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80240537
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=858806.PDF&document_id=09027b8f8025b693
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=227307.pdf&document_id=09027b8f803083f6
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=227308.pdf&document_id=09027b8f803083f7
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=227306.pdf&document_id=09027b8f803083f5
https://oag.ca.gov/home
https://oag.ca.gov/about
https://oag.ca.gov/media
https://oag.ca.gov/careers
https://oag.ca.gov/meetings/public-participation
https://oag.ca.gov/services-info
https://oag.ca.gov/programs
https://oag.ca.gov/contact


No Related Records













 
 

   

a  b r i d g e  o u t  o f  h o m e l e s s n e s s 
 

www.firststepcommunities.org 

 

 

October 25, 2019 

 

Ann Land Bertha Henschel Memorial Fund 

 

Memo Regarding Financial Reports 

 

 

 

 

Dear Review Team, 

 

Thank you for the opportunity to apply again this year to the An Land Bertha Henschel 

Memorial Fund. The ALBH fund again plays a critical role in our ability to deliver a successful 

shelter and services program to those most in need in Sacramento. 

 

Last year we upgraded our accounting system due to our substantial growth and in order to 

properly handle the requirements of large projects for our funders, the City of Sacramento and 

Sacramento County. During 2019, our contract accountant, Desli Beckman, finished the upgrade 

and conversion to our new accounting system. Rick Watson, CPA specializing in nonprofits in 

Sacramento, has completed the FSC 2018 Federal Income Taxes. Rick has advised us not to 

complete an audit until 2020 when we will audit the 2019 financials. 

 

I will attach a copy of the 2018 Federal Income Tax filing.   

 

I have asked Desli Beckman to run several reports on 2018 financials but she is unable to send 

them today due to a network issue. I am concerned that I cannot find a way to save what I have 

produced for this grant and am afraid that if I don’t submit it today I will lose it. I am also unable 

to reach Janelle Oishi for further instructions. 

 

Therefore, I will submit everything except the financial statement today, Friday, October 25, 

2019 and forward the signed financial statement on Monday, October 28, 2019 before 5:00pm. 

We would be happy to review these with you in person if you require. I can be reached at 916-

769-8877 or by email at swatters@firststepcommunities.org if needed. 

 

 

Best Regards, 
 

 
Stephen Watters, Executive Director 

First Step Communities 

mailto:swatters@firststepcommunities.org














ALBH Budget Plan

Kaiser Budget Plan
First Step Communities Winter Sanctuary/Rehousing Program

Financial Enhancements

BUDGET CATEGORY SUMMARY ALBH FUNDS KAISER FUNDS ESG - SHRA NOTES - DETAIL

SALARIES & PERSONNEL EXP. $0.00 $15,000.00 $123,000.00 Enhanced - specialized staffing funded.

Clothes $1,000.00 $0.00 $0.00

Emergency and job interview/work clothes for 

clients

TRANSPORTATION RT & OTHER $3,500.00 $0.00 $0.00

Enhanced shuttle services, bus passes,  for client 

appointments

PROGRAM SUPPLIES $5,500.00 $0.00 $0.00

Shelter/services suplies, TP and paper towels,  

cleaning supplies, first aid kits, etc.

FACILITIES/UTILITIES $2,000.00 $0.00 $0.00

Emergency laundry services for clients, 

establishment of mailroom services

INSURANCE $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 n/a

PHONES - INTERNET $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 n/a

ADMINISTRATIVE 4.5% $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 n/a

TOTAL FUNDING REQUEST $12,000.00 $15,000.00 $123,000.00

Kaiser grant awarded, ESG - SHRA awarded - ALBH 

requested  



1

Janelle Oishi

From: Janelle Oishi
Sent: Friday, November 1, 2019 10:51 AM
To: rabbidavid1818@gmail.com
Subject: ALBHMF Grant – Notification of Incomplete Application
Attachments: Fresh Producers 2018 990 draft.PDF

Hello, 
This notice is to confirm receipt of an application for the 2020 Ann Land and Bertha Henschel Memorial Fund Grant. In 
accordance with the guidelines of the application, you are receiving this notice for the following reason(s): 
You are missing the following document(s) as your application’s attachments did not reflect the required document: 

 
o A copy of your organization’s most recent audit and any corrective actions or recommendations suggested by the auditor. If you do 

not have an annual audit, please explain why. OR provide a copy of your organization’s most-recent annual financial statements, 
signed by your organization’s treasurer AND by the preparer, whether a CPA or bookkeeper. 

 You have included your organization’s 990; you are still required to provide signed copies of your organization’s 
most recent annual financial statements. 

 
The Commission is unable to fund agencies submitting incomplete applications. If the missing item(s) listed 
above are received by Wednesday, November 6, it will be provided to the Commission for review and 
possible consideration as a late submission.  
 
If you wish to be considered for funding, your attendance is required at the annual funding meeting on 
Wednesday, November 13, 2019 at 9:00am in the City of Sacramento Council Chambers, City Hall, 915 I 
Street. 
Thank you; please reply to this email if you have any questions. 
 
 
Thank you, 
Janelle Oishi 
Program Specialist 
Department of Youth, Parks and Community Enrichment 
915 I Street, 3rd floor, 
Sacramento, CA 95814 
916.808.1016 

       
E-mail correspondence with the City of Sacramento (and attachments, if any) may be subject to the California Public Records Act, and as 
such may therefore be subject to public disclosure unless otherwise exempt under the Act. 
 



ALBH	Grant	Application	2019
City	of	Sacramento

	Submitted	On:
October	28th,	2019	@	5:08pm

Organization	Name Fresh	Producers	(dba	Fresher	Sacramento)

Physcial	Address c/o	Goodwill	Industries	8001	Folsom	Blvd
Sacramento
CA
95826

Mailing	address	different	from
physical	address?

Yes

Mailing	Address 2450	Meadowview	Rd.
Sacramento
CA
95832

Name David	Azen

Title Executive	Director

Phone	Number 916-267-4464

E-Mail	Address rabbidavid1818@gmail.com

Name David	Azen

Phone	Number 916-267-4464

E-Mail	Address rabbidavid@freshersacramento.com

Name David	Azen

Title Executive	Director

Phone	Number 916-267-4464

E-Mail	Address rabbidavid@freshproducers.org

Please	indicate	below	the
services	you	are	requesting

Food

Indicate	the	dollar	amount
requested	for	Food

$2.50

#	of	clients	that	will	be	served	by
the	Ann	Land	&	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds

4,000

Total	Amount	Requested $10,000.00

The	amount	requested	will	be
applied	to	the	following.

New	Program



The	funds	requested	will	be	used
to	serve	the	following	(please
check	all	that	apply)

Families
Women
Men
Children

Will	other	funds	supplement	Ann
Land	and	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds	request	for	this
program?

Yes

Briefly	explain 1,000	Strong	as	well	as	Sacramento	Employment	Training	Agency	grants	for	student	interns,	as
well	as	subsidies	from	other	sales	of	food	will	cover	labor	and	overhead	costs	for	production	of
nutritious	meals.

Did	you	lose	any	funding	in	2019
from	any	source?

No

Do	you	anticipate,	or	have	you
been	notified,	that	you	will	lose
funding	in	2020?

No

Are	you	aware	of,	or	do	you
anticipate	receiving,	any	new
sources	of	funding	in	2020,	for
example,	stimulus	or	other
funds?

Yes

Briefly	explain Goodwill	Industries	has	brought	Fresher	on	board	as	part	of	its	family	of	non-profits	and	provided
some	initial	funding.

List	the	hours	that	programs
funded	by	Ann	Land	and	Bertha
Henschel	Memorial	Funds	will	be
available	to	clients.

Tuesday-Saturday	12-6pm,	Sundays	at	noon

Describe	the	geographic	service
area,	within	the	City,	when	you
will	spend	the	requested	funds.

Meadowview	neighborhood

Please	upload	a	brief	description
(no	more	than	two	pages)	of	the
program	or	service	for	which	you
are	requesting	funds.	Explain	how
the	program	or	service
addresses	the	mission	and
funding	priorities	of	the	Ann	Land
and	Bertha	Henschel	Memorial
Funds.

https://seam.ly/gzLL9dfy

Mission	Statement	–
Organizational	Goal

Fresher	Sacramento	aims	to	make	sure	everybody	goes	to	bed	well	fed,	by	enabling
neighborhoods	to	develop	meal	plans	for	families	and	individuals	in	need	of	healthier,	affordable,
accessible	food	options.	Ordering	ahead,	purchasing	collectively,	and	distributing	through	local
institutions	such	as	congregations,	housing	complexes	and	schools	creates	economies	of	scale
and	convenient	distribution	points	to	make	good	nutrition	available	to	everyone.



Date	incorporated	or	otherwise
formed

3
8
2007

Briefly	describe	other	services
and	programs	your	organization
currently	provides.

We	train	youth	apprentices	in	nutrition,	cooking	and	entrepreneurship	to	help	run	Fresher	as	a
social	enterprise	while	providing	workforce	skills	development	and	a	career	pathway	as	a
community	chef.

Private	or	Corporate	Donations
(Amount)

Private	or	Corporate	Donations
(%	of	Total	Funding)

United	Way	(Amount)

United	Way	(%	of	Total	Funding)

SETA	(Amount)

SETA	(%	of	Total	Funding)

Federal	Assistance	(Amount)

Federal	Assistance	(%	of	Total
Funding)

State	Assistance	(Amount) $177,772

State	Assistance	(%	of	Total
Funding)

44.6%

City	or	County	Assistance	(not
from	the	Ann	Land	Bertha
Henschel	Memorial	Funds)
(Amount)

City	or	County	Assistance	(not
from	the	Ann	Land	Bertha
Henschel	Memorial	Funds)	(%	of
Total	Funding)

Grants	(Amount) $179,870

Grants	(%	of	Total	Funding) 45.1%

Ann	Land	and	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds	(Amount)

Ann	Land	and	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds	(%	of	Total
Funding)

Other	(briefly	describe	below)
(Amount)

$41,306

Other	(briefly	describe	below)	(%
of	Total	Funding)

10.3%



Total	Amount $398,898.00

Other	Income	Sources Food	Sales

The	names	of	the	members	of
your	organization’s	board	of
directors	and	of	your
organization’s	officers

https://seam.ly/t7OOjl8p

An	organizational	chart	or
description	of	your	organization’s
management	structure

https://seam.ly/6KmlWiuJ

Verification	of	your
organization’s	not-for-profit
status	(letter	from	IRS	confirming
§	501(c)(3)	status)

https://seam.ly/emcW9SRl

Verification	that	your
organization	(1)	is	currently
registered	and	in	good	standing
with	the	Registry	of	Charitable
Trusts	maintained	by	the
California	Attorney	General	or	(2)
is	not	required	to	register.

https://seam.ly/GVg2vjiE

A	copy	of	your	organization’s
current	business	license	or	a
letter	from	the	City	of
Sacramento	Finance	Department
verifying	your	organization’s
exemption	from	the	City’s
business-operations	tax.	The
Sacramento	City	Code	requires
that	anyone	conducting	business
within	the	City	of	Sacramento
have	a	current	business	license
on	file	with	the	City.	The	City
issues	nonprofit	organizations	a
waiver	letter	in	lieu	of	a	business
license.	A	waiver	letter	can	be
obtained	at	the	Revenue	Counter
in	New	City	Hall,	First	Floor,	Room
1214.	Indicate	your
organization’s	non-profit	status
on	the	application	form.	There	is
no	charge	for	nonprofit
organizations.

https://seam.ly/TJCjqZBN



A	copy	of	your	organization’s
most	recent	audit	and	any
corrective	actions	or
recommendations	suggested	by
the	auditor.	If	you	do	not	have	an
annual	audit,	please	explain	why.
You	must	also	provide	a	copy	of
your	organization’s	most-recent
annual	financial	statements,
signed	by	your	organization’s
treasurer	AND	by	the	preparer,
whether	a	CPA	or	bookkeeper

https://seam.ly/iXTjQ47a

A	budget	sheet	showing	how
awarded	funds	will	be	spent

https://seam.ly/z2vfQ2qu

Signature	Data First	Name:	David
Last	Name:	Azen
Email	Address:	rabbidavid@freshersacramento.com

Signed	at:	10/28/2019	02:06PM



Fresher Sacramento is creating a network for distribution of delicious, nutritious, 
accessible and affordable ready-made meals as well as ingredients for cooking healthier 
meals, especially in historically underserved, food desert neighborhoods. Having restored 
the Pannell Center Pool Kitchen in Meadowview, a certified food desert with limited 
access to nutritious food options, we have initiated production of meals selling for $5, 
with a $2.50 cost basis for goods and packaging. We are now distributing at the Pannell 
Center, as well as Genesis Church, Glendale Apartments housing complex and Rosa Parks 
K-8 school and are applying for funding to be able to provide free meals to those who 
cannot even afford the lower-priced meals. With full funding of $10,000 we will be able 
to provide 4,000 free meals, or approximately 77/week across our different locations.  

Meadowview also has one of the highest rates of food insecurity (defined by residents 
who at some point in the month do not know where their next meal is coming from) in 
the city – nearly 1 in 4 residents. Persistent hunger remains a serious challenge in 
America as many continue to be uncertain where their next meal will come from. One 
measure of food insecurity in America is the number of people relying on food 
assistance programs – over 44 million people, or 14 percent of the population. That does 
not include the millions more who are eligible but haven’t enrolled. Groups living at or 
below the poverty line include children, veterans, disabled, elderly, unemployed, 
homeless, and also low-paid working poor.   

Even those who may be deemed food secure can be malnourished as a result of a diet 
high in empty carbohydrates, fats and sugars, lacking in fresh fruits and vegetables. The 
impacts of this nutritional imbalance can be seen in many lower income, food desert 
areas in terms of obesity, diabetes and hypertension rates. Of even more concern, 
African-American infants die at a much higher rate, with lower birth weights often due 
to lack of healthier food options. Poor nutrition in the earliest stages of life, through age 
three, can also impact brain development, cognition, future education, earning power 
and emotional stability.  

These households and individuals need well-rounded food choices at affordable prices 
on a daily basis. For children in particular, who depend on free and reduced school 
meals, weekends and school vacations often mean persistent hunger.  Filling in those 
gaps and making better food accessible, especially in neighborhoods currently without 
many healthy food options, remains a priority. Many households also have numerous 
challenges to preparing good food on a regular basis; for them ready-made meals are 
essential.  

Despite annual outlays of over $70 billion in the SNAP program, with average funds of 
$125.51 a person per month, malnutrition continues as fresh produce and healthier 
meals cost too much or are not available. Food banks and other charities are working 
hard to fill in the gaps. The need, however, outpaces their resources. Even those who 
receive supplemental funds often are not able to figure out how to make their dollars 
last throughout the month. 

Fresher exists in order to provide assistance to any in need of nutritional support who 
may not have the time, skills or resources to put healthy food on the table regularly: 
Pregnant and nursing mothers, young families, foster children, veterans, disabled, those 
suffering dietary related illnesses, and the working poor living at or below the poverty 



line. By pooling resources we can purchase with economies of scale that bring price 
down; by prepping for those who can’t, we make the healthy choice the easy choice; by 
delivering where people are picking up their children or heading home from work, we 
make good food accessible and more convenient than other less healthy options. We are 
developing a model for community meal plans that aim to support everyone in making 
sure their food funds last through the month, and to provide options for those without 
funds to get meals either in trade for sweat equity or through subsidies from grants, 
contributions and sales.  

Chef Mike Harris runs our kitchen. He is a local resident with four children at Rosa 
Parks. We procure ingredients locally to the greatest degree possible, and have eight 
teen interns currently training and working with him. These interns will be working to 
bring other youth on board to form multiple catering crews for the neighborhood, with 
the ability to offer buffet meals at communal tables on a regular basis. By enabling our 
partners to identify those who are in the greatest need for free meals, we can expand our 
ability to serve everyone in the area.  

 



Fresh Producers Board October 2019 

 

Nathan Ulsh, Chair 

Eileen Thomas, Vice Chair 

Doni Curkendall, Secretary 

Jared Ingraham, Treasurer 

Richard Abrusci, member at large 

 

 



Fresher Management Structure 

 

Fresher Sacramento recently became a member of Goodwill Industries Family of Non-profits. We remain 
an autonomous organization from a governance perspective, with a separate board, yet operationally, 
report to and coordinate with Goodwill. Our HR and accounting and insurance are all handled by 
Goodwill, while day-to-day operations are in the hands of the Executive Director (David Azen) and 
Executive Chef (Mike Harris).  

















Fresh Producers Budget Plan for Land/Henschel Grant 

 

$2.50 per meal Cost of Goods (including packaging) 

X 4,000 meals 

= $10,000  



1

Janelle Oishi

From: Janelle Oishi
Sent: Friday, November 1, 2019 11:07 AM
To: Lfernandez@mercywmw.org
Subject: ALBHMF Grant – Notification of Incomplete Application
Attachments: 05-AG Reg Status Correct.pdf

Hello, 
This notice is to confirm receipt of an application for the 2020 Ann Land and Bertha Henschel Memorial Fund Grant. In 
accordance with the guidelines of the application, you are receiving this notice for the following reason(s): 
You are missing the following document(s) as your application’s attachments did not reflect the required document: 

 
o Verification that your organization (1) is currently registered and in good standing with the Registry of Charitable Trusts maintained 

by the California Attorney General or (2) is not required to register. 
 

 Attached you will find a printout of the correct page from the California Attorney General’s website Registry Verification 
Search (http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Search.aspx?facility=Y)  The correct “Record Type” on the site is the 
“Charity Registration”. 

 Your status shows current standing, so no further action is required. 
 

o A copy of your organization’s current business license or a letter from the City of Sacramento Finance Department verifying 
your organization’s exemption from the City’s business-operations tax. The Sacramento City Code requires that anyone 
conducting business within the City of Sacramento have a current business license on file with the City. The City issues nonprofit 
organizations a waiver letter in lieu of a business license. A waiver letter can be obtained at the Revenue Counter in New City Hall, 
First Floor, Room 1214. Indicate your organization’s non-profit status on the application form. There is no charge for nonprofit 
organizations. 

 A letter from our records in a previous application was located and is attached here. Please update your records; 
no further action is required. 

 You did not include the required letter. Please follow the steps outlined in our FAQ page 
(http://www.cityofsacramento.org/Clerk/Legislative-Bodies/Boards-and-
Commissions/AnnLandandBerthaHenschelMemorialFundCommission/ALBH-FAQ)  to obtain the required 
documentation. Please provide the required document. 

 
o A copy of your organization’s most recent audit and any corrective actions or recommendations suggested by the auditor. OR 

provide a copy of your organization’s most-recent annual financial statements, signed by your organization’s treasurer AND by the 
preparer, whether a CPA or bookkeeper. 

 
The Commission is unable to fund agencies submitting incomplete applications. If the missing item(s) listed 
above are received by Wednesday, November 6, it will be provided to the Commission for review and 
possible consideration as a late submission.  
 
If you wish to be considered for funding, your attendance is required at the annual funding meeting on 
Wednesday, November 13, 2019 at 9:00am in the City of Sacramento Council Chambers, City Hall, 915 I 
Street. 
Thank you; please reply to this email if you have any questions. 
 
 
Thank you, 



2

Janelle Oishi 
Program Specialist 
Department of Youth, Parks and Community Enrichment 
915 I Street, 3rd floor, 
Sacramento, CA 95814 
916.808.1016 

       
E-mail correspondence with the City of Sacramento (and attachments, if any) may be subject to the California Public Records Act, and as 
such may therefore be subject to public disclosure unless otherwise exempt under the Act. 
 



ALBH	Grant	Application	2019
City	of	Sacramento

	Submitted	On:
October	11th,	2019	@	2:17pm

Organization	Name Mercy	Pedalers,	Inc.

Physcial	Address 2419	L	Street,	#6
Sacramento
CA
95816

Mailing	address	different	from
physical	address?

No

Name Sister	Libby	Fernandez,	RSM

Title Director

Phone	Number 9168795581

E-Mail	Address Lfernandez@mercywmw.org

Name Sister	Libby	Fernandez,	RSM

Phone	Number 9168795581

E-Mail	Address Lfernandez@mercywmw.org

Name Libby	Fernandez

Title Director

Phone	Number 9168795581

E-Mail	Address lfernandez@mercywmw.org

Please	indicate	below	the
services	you	are	requesting

Food
Clothing
Transportation

Indicate	the	dollar	amount
requested	for	Food

$2000

#	of	clients	that	will	be	served	by
the	Ann	Land	&	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds

1,000

Indicate	the	dollar	amount
requested	for	Clothing

$2000

#	of	clients	that	will	be	served	by
the	Ann	Land	&	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds

1000

Indicate	the	dollar	amount
requested	for	Transportation

$1000



#	of	clients	that	will	be	served	by
the	Ann	Land	&	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds

1000

Total	Amount	Requested $5,000.00

The	amount	requested	will	be
applied	to	the	following.

On-going	Program

The	funds	requested	will	be	used
to	serve	the	following	(please
check	all	that	apply)

Women
Men

Will	other	funds	supplement	Ann
Land	and	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds	request	for	this
program?

Yes

Briefly	explain Mercy	Pedalers,	Inc.	is	supported	by	many	other	grants	and	Foundations:	Dignity	Health	Grant,
Mercy	Foundation,	Catholic	Charities.

Did	you	lose	any	funding	in	2019
from	any	source?

No

Do	you	anticipate,	or	have	you
been	notified,	that	you	will	lose
funding	in	2020?

No

Are	you	aware	of,	or	do	you
anticipate	receiving,	any	new
sources	of	funding	in	2020,	for
example,	stimulus	or	other
funds?

No

List	the	hours	that	programs
funded	by	Ann	Land	and	Bertha
Henschel	Memorial	Funds	will	be
available	to	clients.

1,456	hours	per	year.
4	hours	daily,	M-S.

Describe	the	geographic	service
area,	within	the	City,	when	you
will	spend	the	requested	funds.

Many	Sacramento	neighborhoods:	Downtown,	Mid-town,	Oak	Park,	East	Sacramento,	and	North
Sacramento.

Please	upload	a	brief	description
(no	more	than	two	pages)	of	the
program	or	service	for	which	you
are	requesting	funds.	Explain	how
the	program	or	service
addresses	the	mission	and
funding	priorities	of	the	Ann	Land
and	Bertha	Henschel	Memorial
Funds.

https://seam.ly/kl7B9Ohw



Mission	Statement	–
Organizational	Goal

Mercy	Pedalers	mission	is	for	bicyclers	and	tricyclers	to	reach	out	to	men	and	women
experiencing	homelessness	on	the	streets.	It	is	a	ministry	of	presence	and	action	based	on	the
“Works	of	Mercy”	and	emphasizing	“Welcoming	the	Stranger”.	Its	motto	is:	“Bringing	Mercy	to
the	Streets”.
Mercy	Pedalers	goal	is	to	connect	with	men	and	women	experiencing	homelessness	on	the
streets	with	passion	and	care,	develop	trust	over	time,	and	to	offer	resources	(food,	clothing,	and
support).

Date	incorporated	or	otherwise
formed

9
1
2017

Briefly	describe	other	services
and	programs	your	organization
currently	provides.

Other	services	are	to	collaborate	and	establish	a	network	of	Mercy	Pedalers	covering	every	day
from	dawn	to	dusk,	and	collaborate	with	other	agencies	such	as	Sacramento	Steps	Forward,
Police	Impact	Team,	Supportive	Housing	Programs	to	help	make	a	systemic	change	and
lessening	the	crisis	of	homelessness	on	the	streets	in	the	Sacramento.	

Private	or	Corporate	Donations
(Amount)

$150,000

Private	or	Corporate	Donations
(%	of	Total	Funding)

85%

United	Way	(Amount) N/A

United	Way	(%	of	Total	Funding)

SETA	(Amount) N/A

SETA	(%	of	Total	Funding)

Federal	Assistance	(Amount) N/A

Federal	Assistance	(%	of	Total
Funding)

State	Assistance	(Amount) CA

State	Assistance	(%	of	Total
Funding)

CA

City	or	County	Assistance	(not
from	the	Ann	Land	Bertha
Henschel	Memorial	Funds)
(Amount)

Sacramento

City	or	County	Assistance	(not
from	the	Ann	Land	Bertha
Henschel	Memorial	Funds)	(%	of
Total	Funding)

United	States

Grants	(Amount) $10,000

Grants	(%	of	Total	Funding) 10%

Ann	Land	and	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds	(Amount)

$5,000



Ann	Land	and	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds	(%	of	Total
Funding)

5%

Other	(briefly	describe	below)
(Amount)

Other	(briefly	describe	below)	(%
of	Total	Funding)

9168795581

Total	Amount $165,000.00

Other	Income	Sources none

The	names	of	the	members	of
your	organization’s	board	of
directors	and	of	your
organization’s	officers

https://seam.ly/v5PzSAt1

An	organizational	chart	or
description	of	your	organization’s
management	structure

https://seam.ly/oApGrWfV

Verification	of	your
organization’s	not-for-profit
status	(letter	from	IRS	confirming
§	501(c)(3)	status)

https://seam.ly/11CKBr0S
https://seam.ly/GXDUf68i

Verification	that	your
organization	(1)	is	currently
registered	and	in	good	standing
with	the	Registry	of	Charitable
Trusts	maintained	by	the
California	Attorney	General	or	(2)
is	not	required	to	register.

https://seam.ly/tWX9r3eW
https://seam.ly/ENhm39PI



A	copy	of	your	organization’s
current	business	license	or	a
letter	from	the	City	of
Sacramento	Finance	Department
verifying	your	organization’s
exemption	from	the	City’s
business-operations	tax.	The
Sacramento	City	Code	requires
that	anyone	conducting	business
within	the	City	of	Sacramento
have	a	current	business	license
on	file	with	the	City.	The	City
issues	nonprofit	organizations	a
waiver	letter	in	lieu	of	a	business
license.	A	waiver	letter	can	be
obtained	at	the	Revenue	Counter
in	New	City	Hall,	First	Floor,	Room
1214.	Indicate	your
organization’s	non-profit	status
on	the	application	form.	There	is
no	charge	for	nonprofit
organizations.

https://seam.ly/zjg5ikKM

A	copy	of	your	organization’s
most	recent	audit	and	any
corrective	actions	or
recommendations	suggested	by
the	auditor.	If	you	do	not	have	an
annual	audit,	please	explain	why.
You	must	also	provide	a	copy	of
your	organization’s	most-recent
annual	financial	statements,
signed	by	your	organization’s
treasurer	AND	by	the	preparer,
whether	a	CPA	or	bookkeeper

https://seam.ly/C8ZxtqHp

A	budget	sheet	showing	how
awarded	funds	will	be	spent

https://seam.ly/0l2VXouF

Signature	Data First	Name:	Sister	Libby
Last	Name:	Fernandez
Email	Address:	Lfernandez@mercywmw.org

Signed	at:	10/11/2019	11:17AM



 

I. Background Information 
Mercy Pedalers, Inc. has established itself as a new Non-Profit in September 2017.  Its 
official EIN #83-0699074. 
The mission is for bicyclers and tricyclers to reach out to men and women experiencing 
homelessness on the streets.  It is a ministry of presence and action based on the “Works of 
Mercy” and emphasizing “Welcoming the Stranger”.  Its motto is: “Bringing Mercy to the 
Streets”. 
 
Mercy Pedalers believe that by welcoming and reaching out to men and women 
experiencing homelessness on the streets with a sense of dignity, respect and love that 
God’s mercy will be present.  The philosophy of “Welcoming the Stranger” is one of the 
Corporal Works of Mercy which has evolved over thousands of years deriving from the 
Gospel of Matthew 25:31-40—   
       
   For I was hungry and you gave me food  
      I was thirsty and you gave me drink 
      I was a stranger and you welcomed me 
      I was naked and you clothed me 
      I was sick and you cared for me 
      I was in prison and you visited me 
 
When we “Welcome the Stranger” we bring our openness to be and grow in relationship 
with the other.  We approach someone’s space, or allow someone to enter our space, in a 
non-judgmental, warm and hospitable manner.  We become present to each other, share our 
thoughts and concerns, and enjoy a comfortable cup of coffee or a cool glass of water. By 
our presence together, God’s mercy will be revealed. 
 

II. Organizational Structure 
Mercy Pedalers, Inc. has an official Board of Directors consisting of a Sister of Mercy, 
business representatives, faith-based representatives, and other community members. The 
Board Members are very passionate and contribute often by talking to various businesses, 
congregations, media and gathering support and education about Mercy Pedalers and the 
reality of homelessness in our community. It has an In-Kind Committee which helps gather 
in-kind donations such as coffee, snacks, nutritional bars, hygiene items, hats, gloves, socks, 
etc. that the Mercy Pedalers give out as they connect bicycling in the City of Sacramento. 
There are currently 75 Mercy Pedalers who are all volunteers and committed to at least two 
hours a week pedaling and connecting with men and women experiencing homelessness on 
the streets.  There are no paid employees.  However, Sister Libby Fernandez, RSM, Founder 
and Director, works full time overseeing the entire program.  She receives an annual Stipend 
of $50,000 to give back to the Sisters of Mercy Community. 
 

III. Proposal Request, Expected Impact/Outcomes, Evaluation and Financing 



Mercy Pedalers is seeking funding to provide food (nutritional snacks, water, coffee, ensure 
drinks), clothing (hats, gloves, socks, shoes, coats), and transportation (bus passes).  
 
Mercy Pedalers is a ministry of presence.  As Henri Nouwen, a Catholic Theologian once 
said: “Welcoming a stranger is not to change the person, but to offer the person space where 
change can happen”. It takes time and commitment to build a sense of trust between the 
Pedaler and the person experiencing homelessness.  Once trust is established and the 
individual has a sense of their own dignity and worth, then the Pedaler can build on the 
relationship and offer resources that may help the individual get off the streets.  
Mercy Pedalers objectives are to connect one-on-one with passion and care, develop trust 
over time, and to offer resources (food, shelter, housing, mental health, healthcare, and 
addiction services).  According to the County of Sacramento Point in Time Homeless Count 
2017, homelessness on the streets has increased 85% in the past two years. On any given 
night, there are over 2,000 men and women sleeping outside. We are in a crisis, with the 
lack of permanent supportive housing, mental health and addiction services. The need for 
outreach to those experiencing homelessness on the streets is vital in these difficult times. 
Mercy Pedalers collaborate with the City and County of Sacramento efforts in addressing 
the issue of homelessness. Mercy Pedalers connect with local businesses, places of worship, 
residents, and other non-profits affected by men and women sleeping on the streets.  Mercy 
Pedalers bring a sense of hope, care and immediate services to address the crisis of 
“homelessness”.  

The ideal short term results are to have each Pedaler connect and build a trusting 
relationship with at least one person experiencing homelessness, to provide essential 
survival items, and to assist the person with immediate options off the streets.  Mercy 
Pedalers has already established a short Resource List with contacts from Wind Youth 
Services, Clean & Sober Recovery and TLCS Respite.  All of the agencies are able and 
willing to pick-up and place the individual in a safe place immediately. 

The ideal long term results are to reach out and connect with hundreds of people 
experiencing homelessness on the streets, to establish a network of Pedalers covering every 
day from dawn to dust, and collaborate with other agencies such as Sacramento Steps 
Forward, Police Impact Team, Supportive Housing Programs to make a great impact in 
lessoning the crisis of homelessness on the streets in the Sacramento.  

Mercy Pedalers success will be measured at different levels.  Each Pedaler will track who 
and how they connected on a daily basis.  Success may be as simple as an individual on the 
streets finally saying “yes” in wanting to share a cup of coffee with a Pedaler after many 
months and many encounters. Success may be connecting the individual with the Clean & 
Sober Recovery to begin the process of healing and sobriety in a safe environment off the 
streets. 

The Pedalers will meet monthly as a group to process their experiences and to evaluate 
different levels of success. The Director of Mercy Pedalers will collaborate with other 
outreach programs, law enforcement and Sacramento Steps Forward to evaluate the impact 
on all of our efforts to address “homelessness” together.  Mercy Pedalers Advisory Board 
will meet monthly to help evaluate it success and direction.   

          



 

Board of Directors                      January 2019 

Name Title Business Address Cell Phone # 
1.Virginia Varela  
   President 

CEO, Golden Pacific Bank 980 9th St. Ste 100 
Sacramento, Ca 95814 

415-672-9642 

2. Richard Hernandez 
   Vice- President 

Outreach Coordinator, St. 
Francis of Assisi Parish 

1066 26th St.  
Sacramento, Ca 95816 

916-801-8787 

3. Dorothy R. Smith 
   Treasurer 

Realtor, Dorothy R. Smith 
Real Estate 

1919 21st St. Ste. 204 
Sacramento, Ca 95811 

916-216-2376 

4. Paula Lomazzi 
    Secretary 

Executive Director, SHOC 505 10th St. #21 
Sacramento, Ca 95814 

916-862-8649 

5. Michelle Gorman, RSM 
 

Chaplain of the State 
Senate 

3920 W. Land Park Dr. 
Sacramento, Ca 95822 

916204-3142 

6. John McIntyre Philanthropist, Mercy 
Foundation 

3400 Data Dr. 
Rancho Cordova, Ca 95670 

916-420-0153 

7. Kristen Stauss Event/Project Coordinator, 
Uptown Studios 

2415 23rd St. 
Sacramento, Ca 95818 

916-612-5900 

8. Tony Rego 
 

Insurance Agency Owner 6311 Hidden Stream Ct. 
Citrus Heights, Ca 95621 

916-750-1814 

9. Barbara Rego 
 

Retired 6311 Hidden Stream Ct. 
Citrus Heights, Ca 95621 

916-804-1814 

10. Dennis Luther Retired 319 Claydon Way. 
Sacramento, Ca  95864 

916-265-3585 

11. Gale Filter Retired Attorney 42 Porto Santo Ct. 
Sacramento, Ca  95831 

916-601-7822 

 

*Libby Fernandez, RSM Director       2419 L St. #6      916-879-5581 
            Sacramento, Ca  95816 
 

 

*Linda Bratcher   Advisory Board Member             916-247-7161 

*Cat Williams & Mark Merin  Advisory Board Members      916-801-4672 

 

 



Structure: 

I. Organizational Structure 
Mercy Pedalers, Inc. now has an official Board of Directors consisting of a Sister of Mercy, a Mercy 
Associate, business representatives, faith-based representatives, and other community members. 
The Board Members are very passionate and contribute often by talking to various businesses, 
congregations, media and gathering support and education about Mercy Pedalers and the reality of 
homelessness in our community.  Mercy Pedalers, Inc. also has a very active In-Kind Committee 
which gathers in-kind donations (coffee, snacks, nutritional bars, hygiene items, hats, gloves, socks, 
etc.) from individuals, corporations, businesses, schools, clubs, and other affiliations who support 
the mission.  All of these items are then given to those who are in needs living on the streets. The 
organization is directed by one full- time Sister of Mercy, Sister Libby Fernandez, RSM.  Her salary is 
compensated through an Independent Contract between Mercy Pedalers, Inc. and the Sisters of 
Mercy WMW Community.  
The entire ministry consists of volunteers. When we launched 18 months ago, we started out with 
25 Mercy Pedalers. Today, we have over 70 Mercy Pedalers who commit to at least two hours a 
week pedaling and connecting with men and women experiencing homelessness on the streets.   
 

 





Registrant Details
Entity type: Corporate Class as registered with the Secretary of State or based on founding & registration documents.

Organization Name: MERCY PEDALERS, INC. IRS FEIN:
Entity Type: Public Benefit SOS/FTB Corporate/Organization Number: 4108587

Registry Status: Current Renewal Due/Exp. Date: 5/15/2020
RCT Registration Number: CT0259721 Issue Date: 8/27/2018
Record Type: Charity Registration Effective Date: 8/27/2018
Date This Status: 8/27/2018 Date of Last Renewal: 10/1/2019

Mailing Address
Street: 2419 L ST #6
Street Line 2:
City, State Zip: SACRAMENTO CA 95816

Filings & Correspondence
CT-470 Confirmation of Registration Click on Document Type at the left to open PDF

Founding Documents Click on Document Type at the left to open PDF

Founding Documents Click on Document Type at the left to open PDF

Annual Renewal Data
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 1/1/2018
Accounting Period End Date: 12/31/2018
Total Assets: $100,118.00
Total Revenue: $110,965.00
Filing Received Date: 9/18/2019
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N

Related Registrations & Event Reports
The related records shown below depend on the record type being viewed:

Charity Registrations relate to Professional Fundraising Events which relate to Professional Fundraiser Registrations.
Raffle Registrations relate to Raffle Reports.
Click on the RCT Registration No to navigate to the related record.

No Related Records

HOME  ABOUT  MEDIA  CAREERS  REGULATIONS  RESOURCES  PROGRAMS  CONTACT

http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=CT-470+MERCY+PEDALERS%2c+INC._180827Z12243304.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80348c8d
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=365174.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8035216c
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=469535.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80381166
https://oag.ca.gov/home
https://oag.ca.gov/about
https://oag.ca.gov/media
https://oag.ca.gov/careers
https://oag.ca.gov/meetings/public-participation
https://oag.ca.gov/services-info
https://oag.ca.gov/programs
https://oag.ca.gov/contact


Personnel Request $

Volunteer MP M-F, 2 hours -$                                        

Operating Supplies Request $

Food Supplies 2,000.00$                              

Clothing 2,000.00$                              

Transportation 1,000.00$                              

Total Expenses 5,000.00$                              

Budget Grant



1

Janelle Oishi

From: Janelle Oishi
Sent: Friday, November 1, 2019 12:10 PM
To: efatula@rivercityfoodbank.org; amccarthy@rivercityfoodbank.org; 

pjenkins@rivercityfoodbank.org
Subject: ALBHMF Grant – Notification of Incomplete Application
Attachments: 05-AG Reg Status Correct.pdf; 06-City Tax Correct.pdf

Hello, 
This notice is to confirm receipt of an application for the 2020 Ann Land and Bertha Henschel Memorial Fund Grant. In 
accordance with the guidelines of the application, you are receiving this notice for the following reason(s): 
You are missing the following document(s) as your application’s attachments did not reflect the required document: 

 
o Verification that your organization (1) is currently registered and in good standing with the Registry of Charitable Trusts maintained 

by the California Attorney General or (2) is not required to register. 
 Attached you will find a printout of the correct page from the California Attorney General’s website Registry Verification 

Search (http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Search.aspx?facility=Y)  The correct “Record Type” on the site is the 
“Charity Registration”. 

 Your status shows current standing, so no further action is required. 
 

o A copy of your organization’s current business license or a letter from the City of Sacramento Finance Department verifying 
your organization’s exemption from the City’s business-operations tax. The Sacramento City Code requires that anyone 
conducting business within the City of Sacramento have a current business license on file with the City. The City issues nonprofit 
organizations a waiver letter in lieu of a business license. A waiver letter can be obtained at the Revenue Counter in New City Hall, 
First Floor, Room 1214. Indicate your organization’s non-profit status on the application form. There is no charge for nonprofit 
organizations. 

 A letter from our records in a previous application was located and is attached here. Please update your records; 
no further action is required. 

 
o A copy of your organization’s most recent audit and any corrective actions or recommendations suggested by the auditor. OR 

provide a copy of your organization’s most-recent annual financial statements, signed by your organization’s treasurer AND by the 
preparer, whether a CPA or bookkeeper. 

 You have included your organization’s audit from 2016 and 2017; your most recent audit or annual financial 
statements (signed) are required. Please provide the required document. 

 

The Commission is unable to fund agencies submitting incomplete applications. If the missing item(s) listed 
above are received by Wednesday, November 6, it will be provided to the Commission for review and 
possible consideration as a late submission.  
 
If you wish to be considered for funding, your attendance is required at the annual funding meeting on 
Wednesday, November 13, 2019 at 9:00am in the City of Sacramento Council Chambers, City Hall, 915 I 
Street. 
Thank you; please reply to this email if you have any questions. 
 
 
Thank you, 
Janelle Oishi 
Program Specialist 
Department of Youth, Parks and Community Enrichment 



2

915 I Street, 3rd floor, 
Sacramento, CA 95814 
916.808.1016 

       
E-mail correspondence with the City of Sacramento (and attachments, if any) may be subject to the California Public Records Act, and as 
such may therefore be subject to public disclosure unless otherwise exempt under the Act. 
 



ALBH	Grant	Application	2019
City	of	Sacramento

	Submitted	On:
October	28th,	2019	@	1:46pm

Organization	Name River	City	Food	Bank

Physcial	Address 1800	28th	St.
Sacramento
CA
95816

Mailing	address	different	from
physical	address?

Yes

Mailing	Address P.O.	Box	160204
Sacramento
CA
95816

Name Erika	Fatula

Title Director	of	Fund	Development

Phone	Number 916-217-1951

E-Mail	Address efatula@rivercityfoodbank.org

Name Amanda	McCarthy

Phone	Number 916-705-1096

E-Mail	Address amccarthy@rivercityfoodbank.org

Name Paula	Jenkins

Title Operations	Administrator

Phone	Number 916-533-4090

E-Mail	Address pjenkins@rivercityfoodbank.org

Please	indicate	below	the
services	you	are	requesting

Food

Indicate	the	dollar	amount
requested	for	Food

$10,000.00

#	of	clients	that	will	be	served	by
the	Ann	Land	&	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds

54,000

Total	Amount	Requested $10,000.00

The	amount	requested	will	be
applied	to	the	following.

On-going	Program



The	funds	requested	will	be	used
to	serve	the	following	(please
check	all	that	apply)

Families
Women
Men
Children

Will	other	funds	supplement	Ann
Land	and	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds	request	for	this
program?

Yes

Briefly	explain RCFB''s	income	is	comprised	of	a	diverse	mixture	of	funding	sources.	This	program	will	be
supported	through	in-kin	donations,	individual	gifts,	as	well	as	corporate	and	foundation	grants.

Did	you	lose	any	funding	in	2019
from	any	source?

No

Do	you	anticipate,	or	have	you
been	notified,	that	you	will	lose
funding	in	2020?

No

Are	you	aware	of,	or	do	you
anticipate	receiving,	any	new
sources	of	funding	in	2020,	for
example,	stimulus	or	other
funds?

No

List	the	hours	that	programs
funded	by	Ann	Land	and	Bertha
Henschel	Memorial	Funds	will	be
available	to	clients.

RCFB	is	open	for	distribution	at	the	Midtown	location	Monday	through	Friday	from	11:30am-
3pm.	Staff	are	at	the	Midtown	location	from	8am-5pm	and	can	be	reached	by	phone	during	that
time,	or	in	person	for	CalFresh	by	appointment.	We	are	located	next	to	the	light	rail	station	at
29th	and	R	streets,	and	across	from	the	County	Office	of	the	Department	of	Human	Assistance
on	Q	St.	RCFB	is	easily	accessibly	by	train,	bus	and	car	via	three	major	highways.

Describe	the	geographic	service
area,	within	the	City,	when	you
will	spend	the	requested	funds.

RCFB	serves	Sacramento	County	in	its	entirety,	with	no	zip	code	restrictions.	The	emergency
food	aid	program	has	distribution	sites	in	two	locations:	Midtown	and	Arden-Arcade.	These
locations	were	chosen	because	of	the	large	population	of	low-income	households	experiencing
food	insecurity.	All	residents	of	Sacramento	County	can	access	services	at	either	of	these
locations.

Please	upload	a	brief	description
(no	more	than	two	pages)	of	the
program	or	service	for	which	you
are	requesting	funds.	Explain	how
the	program	or	service
addresses	the	mission	and
funding	priorities	of	the	Ann	Land
and	Bertha	Henschel	Memorial
Funds.

https://seam.ly/q274t3Hd

Mission	Statement	–
Organizational	Goal

Established	in	1968,	River	City	Food	Bank	(RCFB)	is	the	oldest,	continuously	serving	food	bank	in
Sacramento.	Our	organization	is	unique	in	that	it	is	open	six	days	per	week	to	anyone
experiencing	food	insecurity	in	Sacramento.	RBFB’s	mission	is	to	alleviate	hunger	in	Sacramento
County	by	providing	healthy,	emergency	food	and	other	assistance,	offering	referrals	and
promoting	self-sufficiency	through	a	variety	of	support	services.



Date	incorporated	or	otherwise
formed

8
14
1997

Briefly	describe	other	services
and	programs	your	organization
currently	provides.

Emergency	Food	Distribution:	Provides	individuals	in	need	with	a	three-day	supply	of	nutritionally
balanced	food/non-food	items.
Most	Important	Meal:	Supplies	low-income	seniors	with	a	weekly	bag	of	healthy	breakfast	foods
to	improve	or	stabilize	the	health.
BackSnacks:	Provides	schools	with	healthy	snacks	to	help	thousands	of	children	who	would
otherwise	remain	hungry.
CalFresh:	Outreach	and	enrollment	assistance.
Cooking	Classes:	Nutritional	counseling	and	education.

Private	or	Corporate	Donations
(Amount)

$408,000

Private	or	Corporate	Donations
(%	of	Total	Funding)

37.3%

United	Way	(Amount) $6,500

United	Way	(%	of	Total	Funding) 0.6%

SETA	(Amount) $37,000

SETA	(%	of	Total	Funding) 3.3%

Federal	Assistance	(Amount) $0

Federal	Assistance	(%	of	Total
Funding)

0%

State	Assistance	(Amount) $0

State	Assistance	(%	of	Total
Funding)

0%

City	or	County	Assistance	(not
from	the	Ann	Land	Bertha
Henschel	Memorial	Funds)
(Amount)

$0

City	or	County	Assistance	(not
from	the	Ann	Land	Bertha
Henschel	Memorial	Funds)	(%	of
Total	Funding)

$0

Grants	(Amount) $345,000

Grants	(%	of	Total	Funding) 31.5%

Ann	Land	and	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds	(Amount)

$10,000

Ann	Land	and	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds	(%	of	Total
Funding)

0.7%



Other	(briefly	describe	below)
(Amount)

$290,000

Other	(briefly	describe	below)	(%
of	Total	Funding)

26.6%

Total	Amount $1,094,500.00

Other	Income	Sources $290,000-	fundraising	event

The	names	of	the	members	of
your	organization’s	board	of
directors	and	of	your
organization’s	officers

https://seam.ly/AESmZxEI

An	organizational	chart	or
description	of	your	organization’s
management	structure

https://seam.ly/uJHCSb1p

Verification	of	your
organization’s	not-for-profit
status	(letter	from	IRS	confirming
§	501(c)(3)	status)

https://seam.ly/6NUm3Kxc

Verification	that	your
organization	(1)	is	currently
registered	and	in	good	standing
with	the	Registry	of	Charitable
Trusts	maintained	by	the
California	Attorney	General	or	(2)
is	not	required	to	register.

https://seam.ly/AwqzH7bF

A	copy	of	your	organization’s
current	business	license	or	a
letter	from	the	City	of
Sacramento	Finance	Department
verifying	your	organization’s
exemption	from	the	City’s
business-operations	tax.	The
Sacramento	City	Code	requires
that	anyone	conducting	business
within	the	City	of	Sacramento
have	a	current	business	license
on	file	with	the	City.	The	City
issues	nonprofit	organizations	a
waiver	letter	in	lieu	of	a	business
license.	A	waiver	letter	can	be
obtained	at	the	Revenue	Counter
in	New	City	Hall,	First	Floor,	Room
1214.	Indicate	your
organization’s	non-profit	status
on	the	application	form.	There	is
no	charge	for	nonprofit
organizations.

https://seam.ly/J6n1mEmi



A	copy	of	your	organization’s
most	recent	audit	and	any
corrective	actions	or
recommendations	suggested	by
the	auditor.	If	you	do	not	have	an
annual	audit,	please	explain	why.
You	must	also	provide	a	copy	of
your	organization’s	most-recent
annual	financial	statements,
signed	by	your	organization’s
treasurer	AND	by	the	preparer,
whether	a	CPA	or	bookkeeper

https://seam.ly/nFdggORH

A	budget	sheet	showing	how
awarded	funds	will	be	spent

https://seam.ly/G0RGPOqz

Signature	Data First	Name:	Erika
Last	Name:	Fatula
Email	Address:	efatula@rivercityfoodbank.org

Signed	at:	10/28/2019	10:50AM



 

 

River City Food Bank: Emergency Food Aid Program 
 

River City’s Food Bank’s Emergency Food Program is in direct alliance with the Ann Land and 

Bertha Henschel Commission’s mission to provide “direct aid and assistance” to “destitute men, 

women and children of the City of Sacramento.” Nothing is more fundamental for the well-being 

and stabilization of families and individuals in crisis than healthy and nutritious food.  RCFB’s 

main goal is to provide emergency food to Sacramento County residents.  

 

Many of the households served by RCFB are one emergency away from a crisis such as 

homelessness. Families are having to make impossible decisions between paying for food or 

childcare, rent or medicine.  In 2018, RCFB distributed 2.5 million pounds of nutritious food to 

more than 157,000 men, women and children through our emergency food services. Food 

security currently impacts more than 215,000 people in Sacramento County. To address the 

growing need, we anticipate serving more than 200,000 guests in 2020. 

 

RCFB focuses on nutritious, healthy food and does not distribute items heavily processed or high 

in sugar, salt, or empty calories. RCFB has been able to increase the amount of fresh fruits and 

vegetables it offers to clients. Combined with USDA commodities and purchased, RCFB 

sustains a variety of nutritious food items. The following are regularly available: canned and/or 

fresh fruits and vegetables, fresh salad greens, 100% fruit juice, oatmeal, cereal, whole grain 

bread, pasta, rice, canned or dried beans, canned or fresh tomatoes, tuna, frozen meat, peanut 

butter, soups, eggs and fresh or shelf stable dairy products. For guests who are unsheltered, or 

have no kitchen access, RCFB often provides sandwiches, hard boiled eggs, or deli items that are 

ready for consumption. 

 

One objective of the emergency food program is to serve 50% fresh fruits and vegetables. In 

addition, both sites utilize a “Food Choice Distribution” model which allows guests to select  

the foods that best meets the needs of their family and avoids food waste. RCFB’s goals are 

guided by our core values that all people deserve healthy, nutritious food options and should be 

served with dignity, compassion and respect. 



 

RCFB serves the entirety of Sacramento County, 6 days per week, year-round. All guests 

receiving services live well below the poverty line and experience food insecurity, meaning they 

lack access to affordable, nutritious food options that are essential to a healthy life. The 

emergency food distribution sites in Midtown and Arden-Arcade provides a 3-day supply of 

produce, protein, canned goods, dairy and grains to guests, including families, children, seniors, 

working poor, refugees, those experiencing homelessness and individuals with disabilities. 

RCFB serves people of all races, ages, religious affiliations and sexual orientations, as hunger 

does not discriminate. 

 



updated  10/8/19 Mike Wiley, President 16 Blue Feather Court
new members mrwiley53@gmail.com Sacramento, CA 95834

 (cell) 916-869-1296

Sara Floor,  Vice President 27 Megan Court
Communications Manager Sacramento, CA 95838
California State Association of Counties (cell) 916-212-1919
sarasfloored@gmail.com

Michael Finn, Treasurer 3219 Osuna Way
EVP & CFO Sacramento, CA 95833
River Valley Community Bank (cell) 916- 675-2486
mfinn@myrvcb.com

Laura Knauss, Secretary 2733 11th Avenue
Architect Sacramento, CA 95818
Lionakis (cell) 916-425-7854
laura.knauss@lionakis.com

Amanda McCarthy, ex officio 2123 36th Street
Executive Director Sacramento, CA 95817
River City Food Bank (cell) 916-705-1096
amccarthy@rivercityfoodbank.org

Brie Boutin 2448 Barona Street Roger Gaskin 2940 Sierra Mills Lane
Attorney West Sacramento, CA 95691 Regional Sales Manager Sacramento, CA 95864
State of CA. / Attorney Generals Office (cell) 916-712-7238 Wells Fargo (cell) 916-765-5567
brieboutin@gmail.com r.gaskin@comcast.net

Joel Gray TVR Mary Claugus,  Immediate Past President 629 Laurel Dr
Executive Director Rector Sacramento, CA 95864
Anthem Blue Cross (818) 600-2229 St. Michael's Episcopal Church (wk) 916-488-3550 ext 15 or 
joel.gray@outlook.com revmary@stmichaelscarmichael.org (cell) 925-330-0490

Manny Leon 1720 N. Street #25 Brian Lim 3706 Abaco Road
Principal Consultant, Senate Transportation/Housing Committee Sacramento, CA 95811 Senior Corporate Counsel West Sacramento, CA 95691
California State Assembly (h) 909-289-1208 Raley's (cell) 707-386-6821 
mannysleon@gmail.com Brian.Lim1983@gmail.com

Kate Malmgren 1465 27th Avenue Leslie Pratt 1425 Robertson Way
Content Specialist Sacramento, CA 95822 Director of Clinical Operations Sacramento 95818
VSP (h) 916-851-5065, (cell) 707-364-5937 Sutter Medical Foundation (wk) 916-454-6983 or (cell) 916-849-1754
katelmcintyre@gmail.com prattl@sutterhealth.org

Erin Teague Khanh-Nhat Tran-Viet 2200 Sherman Way 
Director of Governmental Affairs Director, Community Hospital Partnerships and Affiliations Sacramento, CA 95817
Sacramento Association of Realtors (916) 801-6056 UC Davis (wk) 916-734-8108 or (cell) 916-717-7156
erinlteague@gmail.com ktranviet23@gmail.com
eteague@sacrealtor.org

Paula Jenkins, Operations Administrator Erika Fatula, Director of Fund Development Fred Gorsira, Program Coordinator Thomas Pearson, III, Operations Coordinator
pjenkins@rivercityfoodbank.org efatula@rivercityfoodbank.org fgorsira@rivercityfoodbank.org tpearson@rivercityfoodbank.org
(cell) 916-533-4090 (cell) 916-217-1951 (cell) 415-725-7051 (cell) 862-888-5166

Denver Symister, Program Coordinator Jena Robinson, Program & Operation Manager Amy Dierlam, CalFresh Outreach Director
dsymister@rivercityfoodbank.org jrobinson@rivercityfoodbank.org adierlam@rivercityfoodbank.org
(cell) 916-419-7733 (cell) 407-421-7934 (wk) 916-233-4075

Board Members

River City Food Bank - Staff

Board Officers

Board of Directors 2019-2020



River City Food Bank 
Organizational Chart 

 

Updated 9/25/2019 
 

 

Amanda McCarthy 
Executive 
Director 

Paula Jenkins 
 

Operations 
Administrator 

Midtown 

Erika Fatula 
Director of Fund 

Development 

Amy Dierlam 
 

CalFresh 
Outreach 
Director 

Jena Robinson 
 

Program and 
Operations 
Manager 
St. Matthews 

 

Yee Her 
 

CalFresh 
Outreach 
Assistant 

Fred Gorsira  
 

Operations 
Coordinator  

St. Matthews 

Alex Lee 
 

Program and 

Operations Assistant 
Midtown  

 
 

 

Denver Symister 
 

Program 
Coordinator 

Midtown  

 
Thomas Pearson III 

 
Operations 
Coordinator 

Midtown 

 

Donnie Salgado 
 

Driver and  
Operations Assistant 

Midtown  
 





Registrant Details
Entity type: Corporate Class as registered with the Secretary of State or based on founding & registration documents.

Organization Name: RIVER CITY FOOD BANK IRS FEIN: 911851398
Entity Type: Public Benefit SOS/FTB Corporate/Organization Number: 2032882

Registry Status: Current Renewal Due/Exp. Date: 5/15/2019
RCT Registration Number: 108114 Issue Date: 12/31/2005
Record Type: Charity Registration Effective Date: 12/31/2005
Date This Status: 9/28/2016 Date of Last Renewal: 2/5/2019

Mailing Address
Street: PO BOX 160204
Street Line 2:
City, State Zip: SACRAMENTO CA 95816

Filings & Correspondence
RRF-1 2010 2010 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2010 2010 IRS Form 990

RRF-1 2011 2011 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2011 2011 IRS Form 990

RRF-1 2009 2009 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2009 2009 IRS Form 990

Founding Documents Founding Documents

RRF-1 2007 2007 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2007 2007 IRS Form 990

RRF-1 2006 2006 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2006 2006 IRS Form 990

RRF-1 2005 2005 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2005 2005 IRS Form 990

RRF-1 2004 2004 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2004 2004 IRS Form 990

RRF-1 2003 2003 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2003 2003 IRS Form 990

RRF-1 2002 2002 RRF-1

RRF-1 2001 2001 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2001 2001 IRS Form 990

Miscellaneous Document Miscellaneous Document

Miscellaneous Documents Miscellaneous Documents

RRF-1 2008 2008 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2008 2008 IRS Form 990

IRS Form 990 2012 2012 IRS Form 990

Renewal Filing 2017

Miscellaneous Documents Miscellaneous Documents

HOME  ABOUT  MEDIA  CAREERS  REGULATIONS  RESOURCES  PROGRAMS  CONTACT

http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2010.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8000c2bd
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2010.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8000c2be
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2011.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8000c2bf
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2011.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8000c2c1
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2009.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8000c2c2
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2009.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8000c2c3
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=Founding+Documents.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8000c2c4
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2007.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8000c2c5
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2007.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8000c2c6
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2006.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8000c2c7
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2006.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8000c2c8
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2005.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8000c2c9
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2005.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8000c2ca
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2004.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8000c2cb
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2004.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8000c2cc
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2003.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8000c2cd
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2003.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8000c2ce
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2002.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8000c2cf
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2001.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8000c2d0
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2001.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8000c2d1
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=Miscellaneous+Document.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8000c2d6
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=Miscellaneous+Documents.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8000c2d2
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2008.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8000c2d4
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2008.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8000c2d5
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=2947.pdf&document_id=09027b8f801e6143
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=450640.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80377024
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=2948.pdf&document_id=09027b8f801e6144
https://oag.ca.gov/home
https://oag.ca.gov/about
https://oag.ca.gov/media
https://oag.ca.gov/careers
https://oag.ca.gov/meetings/public-participation
https://oag.ca.gov/services-info
https://oag.ca.gov/programs
https://oag.ca.gov/contact


Form RRF-1 2016

Incomplete Fee Notice 2012 Incomplete Fee Notice 2012

RRF-1 2012 2012 RRF-1

RRF-1 2013 2013 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2013 2013 IRS Form 990

RRF-1 2014 2014 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2014 2014 IRS Form 990

2015 Incomplete Fee Notice 2015 Incomplete Fee Notice

2015 IRS Form 990 2015 IRS Form 990

2015 RRF-1 2015 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 Series 2016

Annual Renewal Data
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 1/1/2001
Accounting Period End Date: 12/31/2001
Total Assets: $38,455.00
Total Revenue: $130,790.00
Filing Received Date: 5/10/2002
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 1/1/2002
Accounting Period End Date: 12/31/2002
Total Assets: $50,411.00
Total Revenue: $155,075.00
Filing Received Date: 8/6/2003
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): N
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 1/1/2003
Accounting Period End Date: 12/31/2003
Total Assets: $82,803.00
Total Revenue: $134,048.00
Filing Received Date: 4/1/2009
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 1/1/2004
Accounting Period End Date: 12/31/2004
Total Assets: $102,867.00
Total Revenue: $181,454.00
Filing Received Date: 11/3/2005
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 1/1/2005
Accounting Period End Date: 12/31/2005
Total Assets: $117,220.00
Total Revenue: $168,868.00
Filing Received Date: 11/16/2006
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 1/1/2006
Accounting Period End Date: 12/31/2006
Total Assets: $141,541.00
Total Revenue: $205,345.00

http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=280640.pdf&document_id=09027b8f803271a1
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=10811486805242313.pdf&document_id=09027b8f801ac231
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=1165299.pdf&document_id=09027b8f801e175a
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=745343.PDF&document_id=09027b8f8022605d
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=745344.PDF&document_id=09027b8f8022605e
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=905526.PDF&document_id=09027b8f8026868b
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=905527.PDF&document_id=09027b8f8026868c
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=108114080826.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8028fa48
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=1139690.PDF&document_id=09027b8f802a2714
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=1161943.PDF&document_id=09027b8f802b18c1
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=280639.pdf&document_id=09027b8f803271a0


Filing Received Date: 12/5/2007
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 1/1/2007
Accounting Period End Date: 12/31/2007
Total Assets: $166,378.00
Total Revenue: $434,319.00
Filing Received Date: 11/7/2008
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 1/1/2008
Accounting Period End Date: 12/31/2008
Total Assets: $175,532.00
Total Revenue: $460,258.00
Filing Received Date: 11/17/2009
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 1/1/2009
Accounting Period End Date: 12/31/2009
Total Assets: $317,441.00
Total Revenue: $734,529.00
Filing Received Date: 11/16/2010
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 1/1/2010
Accounting Period End Date: 12/31/2010
Total Assets: $643,097.00
Total Revenue: $1,115,931.00
Filing Received Date: 11/17/2011
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 1/1/2011
Accounting Period End Date: 12/31/2011
Total Assets: $1,063,177.00
Total Revenue: $1,499,561.00
Filing Received Date: 11/16/2012
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 1/1/2012
Accounting Period End Date: 12/31/2012
Total Assets: $1,205,288.00
Total Revenue: $1,532,601.00
Filing Received Date: 11/18/2013
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 1/1/2013
Accounting Period End Date: 12/31/2013
Total Assets: $1,256,706.00
Total Revenue: $1,737,655.00
Filing Received Date: 11/17/2014
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 1/1/2014
Accounting Period End Date: 12/31/2014



Total Assets: $1,261,653.00
Total Revenue: $2,201,668.00
Filing Received Date: 11/18/2015
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N):
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 1/1/2015
Accounting Period End Date: 12/31/2015
Total Assets: $1,189,064.00
Total Revenue: $1,844,196.00
Filing Received Date: 8/19/2016
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 1/1/2016
Accounting Period End Date: 12/31/2016
Total Assets: $1,239,538.00
Total Revenue: $2,179,098.00
Filing Received Date: 11/22/2017
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 1/1/2017
Accounting Period End Date: 12/31/2017
Total Assets: $1,648,008.00
Total Revenue: $2,537,404.00
Filing Received Date: 11/26/2018
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N):

Related Registrations & Event Reports
The related records shown below depend on the record type being viewed:

Charity Registrations relate to Professional Fundraising Events which relate to Professional Fundraiser Registrations.
Raffle Registrations relate to Raffle Reports.
Click on the RCT Registration No to navigate to the related record.

No Related Records



















  

1040 Lincoln Road, Ste. A,131 
Yuba City, CA 95991 

Phone: 916-930-0777 Fax: 916-721-2761 
 

 
Creating Answers  
1040 Lincoln Road, Ste. A, 131  
Yuba City, CA 95991 
 
November 2, 2019 
 
 
Amanda McCarthy, Executive Director 
River City Food Bank 
1800 28th Street 
Sacramento CA 95816 
 
SUBJECT: Financial Statements for the year ending December 31, 2018: 
 
Please find attached the Statements of Financial Position and Statements of Activities for the years 
ending December 31, 2018 and 2017.  These financial statements have been prepared as 
supporting documentation for grant applications. 
 
These financial statements were prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles. They have been subjected to an audit. However, the final audit report has not yet been 
issued.  
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Stacey Powell 
External Chief Financial Officer 
 



2018 2017

Support and Revenue
Contributions Income 448,923                     716,727                
Fundraising 284,313                     356,363                
Grants & Programs 342,831                     250,382                
In-Kind Contributions 1,461,434                  1,335,752             
Other Sources:

Gain/(Loss) on Investments (27,231)                     5,522                    
Total Support and Revenue 2,510,270                  2,664,746             

Expenses
General & Administrative 139,774                     127,162                
Human Resources 640,348                     552,934                
Program Expenses 162,789                     129,836                
In-Kind Expenses 1,461,434                  1,312,002             
Building Expenses 91,658                       71,764                  
Fundraising & PR 74,106                       75,730                  

Total Expenses 2,570,109                  2,269,428             

Change in Net Assets (59,839)                     395,318                

River City Food Bank
Statement of Activities

Years Ended December 31, 2018 and 2017



2018 2017
Assets

Current Assets
Cash 251,077          541,919          
Investments 433,057          326,522          
Accounts Receivable -                  18,522            
Grants Receivable 66,947            3,931              
Prepaid Expenses 6,754              31,788            

Total Current Assets 757,835          922,682          

Fixed Assets, Net 794,924          725,326          

Total Assets 1,552,759       1,648,008       

Liabilities and Net Assets

Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses 71,525            62,662            
Deferred Revenue 26,690            40,040            

Total Current Liabilities 98,215            102,702          

Net Assets
Without Donor Restrictions 1,338,106       1,343,334       
With Donor Restrictions 116,438          201,972          

Total Net Assets 1,454,544       1,545,306       

Total Liabilities and Net Assets 1,552,759       1,648,008       

River City Food Bank
Statement of Financial Position

December 31, 2018 and 2017







CliftonLarsonAllen LLP
CLAconnect.com

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Auditors’ Responsibility 



Opinion



See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements. 



See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements. 



See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements. 



See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements. 



See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements. 



See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements. 



Unrestricted Net Assets

Temporarily Restricted Net Assets 

Permanently Restricted Net Assets







FASB ASC Topic 740, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes







Midtown- Emergency Food Aid Budgeted Requested from ALBH

Income

Total Contribution Income $0 $0

Fundraising

Total Empty Bowls $0 $0

Total Grants & Programs

$0 $10,000

Total Income $0 $10,000

Expense

Total General & Administrative $117,200 $0

Total Human Resource $282,900 $0

Program Expenses

Total Food $0 $0

Food Transport $0 $0

Other $0 $0

Total Building Expenses $0

Total Fundraising & PR $80,300 $0

Total Expense $480,400 $0

Net Ordinary Income (480,400.00)$        $0

Total Requested $10,000



Budget Narrative

The funds requested from this grant will be used to purhase healthy, 

nutritious food to be distributed at the Midtown location to 

thousands of men, women and children experiencing hunger. Non-

food items such as diapers, wipes, formula and hygene products will 

also be puchased.



1

Janelle Oishi

From: Janelle Oishi
Sent: Friday, November 1, 2019 12:26 PM
To: grants@saintjohnsprogram.org; mcawdrey@saintjohnsprogram.org
Subject: ALBHMF Grant – Notification of Incomplete Application
Attachments: 05-AG Reg Status Correct.pdf

Hello, 
This notice is to confirm receipt of an application for the 2020 Ann Land and Bertha Henschel Memorial Fund Grant. In 
accordance with the guidelines of the application, you are receiving this notice for the following reason(s): 
You are missing the following document(s) as your application’s attachments did not reflect the required document: 

 
o Verification that your organization (1) is currently registered and in good standing with the Registry of Charitable Trusts maintained 

by the California Attorney General or (2) is not required to register. 
 

 You did not submit an attachment for this requirement. Attached you will find a printout of the correct page from the 
California Attorney General’s website Registry Verification Search 
(http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Search.aspx?facility=Y)  The correct “Record Type” on the site is the “Charity 
Registration”. 

 Your status shows current standing, so no further action is required. 
 

 
If you wish to be considered for funding, your attendance is required at the annual funding meeting on 
Wednesday, November 13, 2019 at 9:00am in the City of Sacramento Council Chambers, City Hall, 915 I 
Street. 
Thank you; please reply to this email if you have any questions. 
 
 
Thank you, 
Janelle Oishi 
Program Specialist 
Department of Youth, Parks and Community Enrichment 
915 I Street, 3rd floor, 
Sacramento, CA 95814 
916.808.1016 

       
E-mail correspondence with the City of Sacramento (and attachments, if any) may be subject to the California Public Records Act, and as 
such may therefore be subject to public disclosure unless otherwise exempt under the Act. 
 



ALBH	Grant	Application	2019
City	of	Sacramento

	Submitted	On:
October	28th,	2019	@	7:36pm

Organization	Name Saint	John’s	Program	for	Real	Change

Physcial	Address 8401	Jackson	Rd.
Sacramento
CA
95826

Mailing	address	different	from
physical	address?

Yes

Mailing	Address 2443	Fair	Oaks	Blvd.,	#369
Sacramento
CA
95825

Name Sasha	Wirth

Title Vice	President,	Chief	Development	Officer

Phone	Number 916-453-1482

E-Mail	Address grants@saintjohnsprogram.org

Name Marc	Cawdrey

Phone	Number 916-453-1482

E-Mail	Address mcawdrey@saintjohnsprogram.org

Name Sasha	Wirth

Title Vice	President,	Chief	Development	Officer

Phone	Number 916-453-1482

E-Mail	Address grants@saintjohnsprogram.org

Please	indicate	below	the
services	you	are	requesting

Food

Indicate	the	dollar	amount
requested	for	Food

$10,000.00

#	of	clients	that	will	be	served	by
the	Ann	Land	&	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds

9

Total	Amount	Requested $10,000.00

The	amount	requested	will	be
applied	to	the	following.

On-going	Program

The	funds	requested	will	be	used
to	serve	the	following	(please
check	all	that	apply)

Families
Women
Children



Will	other	funds	supplement	Ann
Land	and	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds	request	for	this
program?

Yes

Briefly	explain Our	total	food	budget	is	$313,000	and	is	comprised	of	funding	from	several	other	funders.

Did	you	lose	any	funding	in	2019
from	any	source?

No

Do	you	anticipate,	or	have	you
been	notified,	that	you	will	lose
funding	in	2020?

No

Are	you	aware	of,	or	do	you
anticipate	receiving,	any	new
sources	of	funding	in	2020,	for
example,	stimulus	or	other
funds?

Yes

Briefly	explain Yes.	In	October	2019,	we	were	awarded	$715,	711	(one-year	funding)	from	the	City	of
Sacramento	for	Women	and/or	Women	with	Families	Shelter	Program	Operations,	and	in
September	2019,	we	were	awarded	$296,180	(three-year	funding)	from	the	Governor’s	Office
of	Business	Development	resulting	from	the	California	Community	Reinvestment	Grant,	monies
slated	to	support	individuals	adversely	affected	by	the	War	On	Drugs.	This	funding	has	allowed	us
to	fill	empty	beds	not	previously	funded.

List	the	hours	that	programs
funded	by	Ann	Land	and	Bertha
Henschel	Memorial	Funds	will	be
available	to	clients.

Saint	John’s	Program	for	Real	Change	is	the	largest	residential	program	for	homeless	women
and	children	in	Sacramento,	and	is	open	24	hours	per	day,	7	days	a	week.	Saint	John’s	provides
three	healthy	meals	and	snacks	each	day	for	each	individual.	With	our	expansion	in	the	summer
of	2018,	we	are	now	able	to	serve	up	to	270	women	and	children	per	day,	and	up	to	700	women
and	children	per	year.

Describe	the	geographic	service
area,	within	the	City,	when	you
will	spend	the	requested	funds.

Saint	John’s	is	located	in	District	6,	within	the	city	limits	of	Sacramento.	We	also	serve	the	greater
Sacramento	region.	In	South	Sacramento,	where	our	facility	is	located,	36.8%	of	families	with
children	under	the	age	18	live	in	poverty.	100%	of	the	mothers	in	our	program	live	at	or	below
the	poverty	line.	Our	Program	serves	women	mostly	from	the	following	ZIP	codes:	95822,
95823,	95824,	95838,	95608,	95817,	95815,	and	95660.

Please	upload	a	brief	description
(no	more	than	two	pages)	of	the
program	or	service	for	which	you
are	requesting	funds.	Explain	how
the	program	or	service
addresses	the	mission	and
funding	priorities	of	the	Ann	Land
and	Bertha	Henschel	Memorial
Funds.

https://seam.ly/nz3O0Joh

Mission	Statement	–
Organizational	Goal

Our	mission	is	to	unleash	the	potential	of	women	and	children	in	crisis	by	breaking	the	cycle	of
poverty	and	dependence,	one	family	at	a	time.	Our	goal	is	to	break	the	cycle	of	homelessness	by
addressing	the	root	causes	in	addition	to	the	symptoms	associated	with	single-mother-led
homeless	families.	Our	up-to-18-month	residential	program	addresses	the	educational,
emotional,	vocational,	medical	and	logistical	needs	of	both	the	women	and	their	children.



Date	incorporated	or	otherwise
formed

1
1
1985

Briefly	describe	other	services
and	programs	your	organization
currently	provides.

Our	comprehensive,	up-to-18-month	residential	program	supports	the	WHOLE	PERSON	from	a
point	of	crisis	to	a	point	of	self-sustainability.	With	an	average	of	675	hours	of	service	hours	per
month/per	family,	our	“all-under-one-roof”	program	provides:	Level	1,	Stabilization	(Month	1);
Level	2,	Employment	Training	(Months	2-4);	Level	3,	Advanced	Employment	Training	(Months	5-
6);	Level	4,	Self-reliance	(Months	7-8);	and	Level	5,	Self-development	and	Family	Sustainability
(Months	9+).

Private	or	Corporate	Donations
(Amount)

1,501,662

Private	or	Corporate	Donations
(%	of	Total	Funding)

21.30%

United	Way	(Amount) 20,000

United	Way	(%	of	Total	Funding) 0.28%

SETA	(Amount) 27,950

SETA	(%	of	Total	Funding) 0.40%

Federal	Assistance	(Amount) 41,100

Federal	Assistance	(%	of	Total
Funding)

0.58%

State	Assistance	(Amount) 1,721,571

State	Assistance	(%	of	Total
Funding)

13.71%

City	or	County	Assistance	(not
from	the	Ann	Land	Bertha
Henschel	Memorial	Funds)
(Amount)

966,314

City	or	County	Assistance	(not
from	the	Ann	Land	Bertha
Henschel	Memorial	Funds)	(%	of
Total	Funding)

12.57%

Grants	(Amount) 741,205

Grants	(%	of	Total	Funding) 10.52%

Ann	Land	and	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds	(Amount)

8,700

Ann	Land	and	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds	(%	of	Total
Funding)

0,12%

Other	(briefly	describe	below)
(Amount)

2,019,934



Other	(briefly	describe	below)	(%
of	Total	Funding)

28.66%

Total	Amount $7,048,436.00

Other	Income	Sources Other	Income	is	comprised	of	$1,287,789	in	program	revenue,	$677,157	in	special	events	(net),
and	$54,979	in	Expense	Reimbursements	and	Refunds.

The	names	of	the	members	of
your	organization’s	board	of
directors	and	of	your
organization’s	officers

https://seam.ly/osoBfxnC

An	organizational	chart	or
description	of	your	organization’s
management	structure

https://seam.ly/aD83IIab

Verification	of	your
organization’s	not-for-profit
status	(letter	from	IRS	confirming
§	501(c)(3)	status)

https://seam.ly/3TfiVuKw

Verification	that	your
organization	(1)	is	currently
registered	and	in	good	standing
with	the	Registry	of	Charitable
Trusts	maintained	by	the
California	Attorney	General	or	(2)
is	not	required	to	register.

https://seam.ly/6VwmYTsu

A	copy	of	your	organization’s
current	business	license	or	a
letter	from	the	City	of
Sacramento	Finance	Department
verifying	your	organization’s
exemption	from	the	City’s
business-operations	tax.	The
Sacramento	City	Code	requires
that	anyone	conducting	business
within	the	City	of	Sacramento
have	a	current	business	license
on	file	with	the	City.	The	City
issues	nonprofit	organizations	a
waiver	letter	in	lieu	of	a	business
license.	A	waiver	letter	can	be
obtained	at	the	Revenue	Counter
in	New	City	Hall,	First	Floor,	Room
1214.	Indicate	your
organization’s	non-profit	status
on	the	application	form.	There	is
no	charge	for	nonprofit
organizations.

https://seam.ly/NDgMdcio



A	copy	of	your	organization’s
most	recent	audit	and	any
corrective	actions	or
recommendations	suggested	by
the	auditor.	If	you	do	not	have	an
annual	audit,	please	explain	why.
You	must	also	provide	a	copy	of
your	organization’s	most-recent
annual	financial	statements,
signed	by	your	organization’s
treasurer	AND	by	the	preparer,
whether	a	CPA	or	bookkeeper

https://seam.ly/BCjhQCEa

A	budget	sheet	showing	how
awarded	funds	will	be	spent

https://seam.ly/yJaMNeST

Signature	Data First	Name:	Marc
Last	Name:	Cawdrey
Email	Address:	mcawdrey@saintjohnsprogram.org

Signed	at:	10/28/2019	04:35PM



Ann Land Bertha Henschel Memorial Fund – Program Description 

 

Since 1985, Saint John’s Program for Real Change has lifted more than 30,000 women and children 
experiencing homelessness up and out of poverty to self-sustainability by providing them with the 
essential tools to make REAL, transformative change in their lives.  Saint John’s is Sacramento’s largest 
residential program focusing exclusively on the needs of homeless women and their children, the most 
vulnerable and rapidly-growing segment of the homeless population in our region and nationwide.  

The families we serve come to us overwhelmed and in a state of crisis. Many utilize our emergency 
supply warehouse for basic needs: a change of clothes, new socks, undergarments, diapers, toiletries 
and food. The women average 34 years old with two children (35% were teen mothers). All of them 
(100%) live below the poverty level and are dealing with multiple and complex issues that are barriers to 
employment and their ability to become self-sustaining: 100% lack a stable work history or have never 
held a job, 69% have survived domestic violence, 77% battle addiction, 52% have a criminal history, 50% 
lack basic reading and math skills and a high school diploma, and 58% struggle with mental illness.   

Many women also have physical health problems, unaddressed dental/vision needs, a lack of money 
management skills, and limited, if any, knowledge of how to access community services. Saint John’s 
offers immediate stabilization services, including housing, meals, therapy, and counseling, as well as 
longer-term services, including financial literacy classes, parenting education and a hands-on 
Employment Training Program at one of our three social enterprises: Plates Café and Catering, Plates 
Midtown and First Steps Child Development Center. All services are provided on-site and designed to 
support women in taking responsibility for themselves and their families.  

Saint John’s cost to move one person from homelessness to family sustainability is $16,300, roughly one 
third of the $50,000 it takes for Sacramento County to carry a homeless individual in its system for one 
year.  The long-term, generational, social and financial impact of Saint John’s “teaching them to fish” 
approach is a demonstrated and objectively measured model, documented in a yearlong study 
conducted on behalf of the County Supervisors Association of California (CSAC) and the League of 
California Cities, concluding that Saint John’s is a BEST PRACTICE for homeless families: Pages 22-23: 
www.saintjohnsprogram.org/csacreport.  

Access to nutritious food is crucial for the women and children we serve while they work to achieve self-
sustainability – the primary goal of Saint John’s Program for Real Change. In addition to individualized 
case management, mental health and addiction counseling, educational assistance, on-the-job training, 
transportation, childcare and children’s after-school enrichment, we provide families three nutritious 
meals and two snacks per day, served in our community dining spaces. We also provide nutrition 
education among other tools to ensure healthy living.  

Meals are prepared and served each day by our staff chef and food preparation volunteers. Women in 
our program are encouraged to participate in meal planning and preparation. Education topics and our 
healthy cooking classes include topics such as understanding food labels and the health benefits of 
fresh, whole foods. Nutrition classes include discussion on common preventable chronic diseases 
related to food and exercise, including: cardiovascular disease, diabetes, hypertension, cancer and 
obesity. Fitness classes include: yoga, dance, aerobics, basketball, and meditation. Through our meal 

http://www.saintjohnsprogram.org/csacreport


program and healthy living classes, we help our families create the good habits they need to maintain a 
healthy lifestyle beyond their time at Saint John’s. 

Providing healthy meals for women and children experiencing homelessness is strongly aligned with the 
Ann Land and Bertha Henschel Memorial Fund’s mission to provide direct aid and assistance to the 
destitute women and children of the City of Sacramento. Without immediate needs (food and housing) 
for themselves and their children satisfied, mothers at Saint John’s could not focus on the challenging 
work of becoming self-sustaining and transforming their lives.  

Our funding request for $10,000 will provide three nutritious meals per day and snacks for nine (9) 
women and children for 12 months.  

 



 

 

1 | P a g e  

 
 

 

 
 

Board of Directors 
  

Phillip Telgenhoff, Board Chair/Secretary 
Allstate Insurance Co.  
10877 White Rock Rd. Suite 300  
Rancho Cordova, CA 95670  
916-813-1604, Phil.Telgenhoff@allstate.com 
Start Date October 2014, Last Term October 2022  
Committee:  Executive, Finance, Governance 
 
Kevin F. Ramos, Vice Chair  
Buzz Oates Company  
2048 Banner Mine Court  
Gold River, CA 95670  
916-638-4074/916-379-3822, 
kevinramos@buzzoates.com 
Start Date: August 2013, Last Term: August 2021 
Committee:  Executive, Finance 
 
Mark A. Wiese, Finance Chair 
Pacific Housing, Inc. 
2115 J Street Suite 201 
Sacramento, CA 95816 
916-835-3131, mwiese@pacifichousing.org 
Start Date June 2016, Last Term June 2024 
Committee: Executive, Finance Chair 
 
Erin Cabelera, R.Ph., Pharm.D. 
Area Pharmacy Director 
South Sacramento Kaiser Permanente  

6600 Bruceville Road 

OSS Building Room G703 

Sacramento, CA 95823 

916-628-4845, Erin.M.Cabelera@kp.org 
Start Date: March 2019, Last Term: March 2027 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Marc Cawdrey, Interim CEO 
Saint John’s Program for Real Change  
2443 Fair Oaks Boulevard #369  
Sacramento, CA 95825  
916-453-1482, mcawdrey@saintjohnsprogram.org 
 
Dave Cloninger  
The Cloninger Group  
1435 River Park Drive  
#100 Sacramento, CA 95825  
916-648-6388, dave_cloninger@ml.com 
Start Date: May 2009, Last Term: May 2017  
Committee: Development 
 
Maren Conrad 
Artist 
2215 23rd Street 
Sacramento, CA  95818 
916-717-9948, marenconrad@aol.com 
Start Date:  July 2017, Last Term: July 2025 
Committee:  Marketing  
 
Ian B. Cornell 
Cornell Group  
1835 Iron Point Road, Suite 140 
Folsom, CA  95630 
916-965-1805/916-224-2676, 
icornell@cornellgroup.com 
Start Date:  March 2017, Last Term: March 2025 
Committee:  PR, Development 
 
Rick Cwynar  
Community Leader 
63 Constitution Dr  
Chico, CA 95973 
916-801-6128, rickcwynar@gmail.com 
Start Date: June 2012, Last Term: June 2020 
 
 
 
 

Updated 10/15/2019 

mailto:Phil.Telgenhoff@allstate.com
mailto:kevinramos@buzzoates.com
mailto:mwiese@pacifichousing.org
mailto:Erin.M.Cabelera@kp.org
mailto:mcawdrey@saintjohnsprogram.org
mailto:dave_cloninger@ml.com
mailto:marenconrad@aol.com
mailto:icornell@cornellgroup.com
mailto:rickcwynar@gmail.com


 

 

2 | P a g e  

 
 
 
 
 
Dawn S. Davison 
3401 Durello Circle 
Rancho Cordova, CA  95670 
951-236-8787, dsdavison10@gmail.com 
Start Date: November 2017, Last Term: November 
2025 
Committee: 
 
David Flanagan  
Misfit Agency  
1013 7th Street  
Sacramento, CA 95811  
916-290-9660, 916-212-8943, 
dflanagan@agencymisfit.com 
Start Date: January 2014, Last Term: January 2022  
Committee: Marketing Chair, PR 
 
Laura Hewitt 
3890 12th Street 
Sacramento, CA 95822 
(916) 917-0033, laurahewitt96@comcast.net 
Start Date: March 2019, Last Term: March 2027 
 
Carolyn Hubbert 

Public Consulting Group 

11837 Old Eureka Way  

Gold River, CA 95670 

(916) 591-7802, chubbert68@gmail.com  

Start Date: October 2017, Last Term: October 2025 

Committee: Development, Audit   
 
Edward P. Manning  
KP Public Affairs 
621 Capitol Mall, Suite 1900 
Sacramento, CA 95814 
916-448-2162, emanning@ka-pow.com 
Start Date June 2016, Last Term June 2024 
Committee: PR Chair 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
Joaquin McPeek 
Edelman 
921 11th St 
Suite 250 
Sacramento, CA 95814 
(916) 599-4166, jcmcpeek@gmail.com   
Start Date: October 2018, Last Term: October 2026 
Committee: Development 
 
Paul Mitchell 
VP Political Data Inc, Owner, Redstricting Partners 
2207 G Street 
Sacramento, CA  95816 
916-612-8686, paul@politicaldata.com 
Start Date:  March 2017, Last Term:  March 2025 
Committee:  Fund Development, PR 
 
Kevin Peterson 
Kaiser Permanente 

6600 Bruceville Road, OSS Building #152 

Sacramento, CA 95823 

916-261-6287, kevin.peterson.411@gmail.com 
Start Date June 2016, Last Term June 2024 

Committee:  Fund Development Chair 
 
Minnie Santillan 
Santillan & Devlin, LLC 
1818 L Street, Ste 409 
Sacramento, CA  95811 
916-319-2010/916-752-4080, 
Minnie.santillan@gmail.com 
Start Date:  July 2017, Last Term:  July 2025 
Committee:  Fund Development  
 
Brad Simmons 
UC Davis Medical Center, Interim Chief Executive 
Officer/Chief Operating Officer  
2315 Stockton Blvd. Suite 1501 
Sacramento, CA 95817 
916-734-0750, bsimmons@ucdavis.edu 
Start Date: March 2019, Last Term: March 2027 
 
 

mailto:dsdavison10@gmail.com
mailto:dflanagan@agencymisfit.com
mailto:laurahewitt96@comcast.net
mailto:chubbert68@gmail.com
mailto:emanning@ka-pow.com
mailto:jcmcpeek@gmail.com
mailto:paul@politicaldata.com
mailto:kevin.peterson.411@gmail.com
mailto:Minnie.santillan@gmail.com
mailto:bsimmons@ucdavis.edu


 

 

3 | P a g e  

 
 
 
 
 
Mikki Bako Sorensen 
AT&T Retiree 
1619 Los Molinos Way 
Sacramento, CA  95864 
916-601-1759, mikkibako@me.com 
Start Date:  June 2016, Last Term June 2024  
Committee:   
 
Michele Steeb, Former CEO  
Saint John’s Program For Real Change 
1610 Tokalaun Court 
Lucas, TX  75002 
916-832-7626 
msteeb@saintjohnsprogram.org 

Start Date: May 2019, Last Term: May 2027 

Committee:  
 

 
 

 
 
 
Peter Thompson 
Rubicon Partners, Inc., President 
7843 Michael Court,  
Granite Bay, CA 95746 

(916) 240-3744, pthompson59@mac.com   
Start Date: October 2018, Last Term: October 2026 
Committee: Audit 
 
Michele C. Wong/President CEO 
CleanWorld, Synergex International Corporation 
2330 Gold Meadow Way 
Gold River, CA  95670 
916-853-0304/916-730-6372, 
michele.wong@synergex.com 
Start Date:  July 2017, Last Term:  July 2025 
Committee:  Board Governance Chair, PR/Policy, 
Development

**Last available term to serve  
*Bylaws Article IV, Section 4: 
Term of Office. The term of office of all members of the Board shall be 2 year(s). No person may serve more than 4 consecutive terms on 
the Board but may be elected to the Board again after a one year absence. Each director, including a director elected to fill a vacancy, 
shall hold office until the expiration of the term for which elected and until his or her successor has been elected and qualified. 

 

SAINT JOHN’S MANAGEMENT TEAM 

Marc Cawdrey, Interim CEO 

Sasha Wirth, Vice President and Chief Development Officer 

Scot Sorensen, Director, Custody to Community Transitional Reentry Program 

Susan Barron, Director of Integrated Health Services 

Abra Ruthenbeck, Children’s Program Director 

If you’d like to contact a member of our staff, please email us or call us at (916) 453-1482. 

 

mailto:mikkibako@me.com
mailto:msteeb@saintjohnsprogram.org
mailto:pthompson59@mac.com
mailto:michele.wong@synergex.com
mailto:info@saintjohnsprogram.org


1

Organizational Chart 
September 2019

Scot Sorensen
Dir. CCTRP

Clinical Director
Quinta Davenport

Clinician
Jocelyn Wilson

Certified Counselors
Sharea Thomas
Erica Soria (Voc)
Andrea Scanlon

Amy Shultz
TBH

Client Services
Stephanie Nevin (lead)

Jane Dihn (lead)
Easter Kitiona
Deiree Almeda

Aashiana Munaf
Renee Henry
Latasha Hives

Gretchen Gantz
Samira Monriham

Karen Loving-Bourland
Shalita Ellis

Food Service
Ramona Richardson

Imani O’Neal
Kwame Brown

Facilities Maintenance
Michael Brown

Bookkeeper

Nicole Matu’u

Nicole Brock
Dir. Operations

Front Office
Trina Martinez
Bridget Stalker 

Keysia Bell-On Call

Donations Intake
Sherry Valdez

Client Services 
Supervisor

Thomasina Collins
Client Service 
Coordinators

Stacey Cisneros (lead)
Frankie Cook

Jessica Hendrickson
Betty Jefferson

Georgia Duran

Carol Crawford-Merz

Bernadette Robles

Dionne Williams

Mariama Hill 

Melissa Amy
Chauvan Bess

Shalimar Watkins
Denver Galloway

Susan Barron
Dir. Integrated Health

SUD Counselors
Jo Greene, Mgr. SUD 

Christina Cecil 
Shannon Morgan

Data Collection & 
Analysis

Margaret  Morris (V)
Carol Hood (V)

Clinicians/Case
Managers

Anastasiya Hernandez
Linda Riley (PT)

Donna Duncan (PT)
Brandyn Davis (PT)
Jessica Swaney (PT)
Tyler Miller (I, PT)

Jenny Seegmiller (I, PT)
Shannon Morgan (I, PT)

Anjali Chandra (I, PT)

Abra Ruthenbeck
Children’s Programs

Jackson 
Ajonae Cain

(Assistant Director)

Childcare Teachers
Cameron Cain
Angel Lam-PT

LaTera Saunders-PT
Clarissa DeLaCruz-PT

Ariya Sum-PT
Tamara Ricks

Vanessa Roush
Paige Poulin

Carolyn Flores-PT
Anthony Moreno
Cherelle Bluford

Cassandra Hoover
Kendra Martinez-On Call

First Steps
Rosalyn Cain

(Assistant Director)

Childcare Teachers
Irina Kravchuk 

Cathy Portner 

Amber Boykin-Hudson

Samka Muhic

Namka Fazlic

Shay Bagley

Cindy Risse

TBH-(Saeteurn rplcmt)

Courtney Marx
Food Services Mgr.

Plates Catering Manager 
- Trainer

Erin Landreth

Catering Assistant -
Trainers

Nicholle Cox - FT
Natalie Spencer - FT

Irais Ramirez-PT
Bridgette Boudreux – On 

Call
Deanna Spittles- On call

Kitchen Mgr.-Trainer
Courtney Marx

Front of House - Trainer
Soraya Gardizi

Food Service, Mgr.
Scott Davidson

Plates Midtown-Trainer

Susan Romac

Marc Cawdrey
Chief Executive Officer 

Sasha Wirth
Vice President & Chief 
Development  Officer

Instructor
Peter Schoen

Med. Data Specialist
Charisse Douglass

Clinical Director
Tasha DeLeon Lee

Dir Events & Corp 
Relations

Stacey Scholz

Board of Directors

Grants & Comm Mgr.
Sue Cawdrey

Vol. & Comm. 
Engagement Mgr.

Karen Edwards

Community Outreach
Angela Edwards

Data Coordinator
Morgan McIntyre

Career Education & 
Placement Mgr./HR

Karen O’Hara

Development Officer
Bethany Knudsen

Executive Assistant
Michelle Maclellan

Bookkeeper
Melissa Smith

Creative Services and 
Communication.

Mary Hastings

Accountant
Fiorella Leon

Pam Horan
Finance Mgr.

Clinical Assessment 
Manager

AnnaMaria Boullion







Registrant Details
Entity type: Corporate Class as registered with the Secretary of State or based on founding & registration documents.

Organization Name: SAINT JOHN'S PROGRAM FOR REAL CHANGE IRS FEIN: 680132934
Entity Type: Public Benefit SOS/FTB Corporate/Organization Number: 1624992

Registry Status: Current Renewal Due/Exp. Date: 5/15/2020
RCT Registration Number: 069715 Issue Date: 12/31/2005
Record Type: Charity Registration Effective Date: 12/31/2005
Date This Status: 1/29/2019 Date of Last Renewal: 8/14/2019

Mailing Address
Street: 2443 FAIR OAKS BLVD #369
Street Line 2:
City, State Zip: SACRAMENTO CA 95825

Filings & Correspondence
RRF-1 Fee Request RRF-1 Fee Request

CT-550 CT-550

Founding Documents Founding Documents

IRS Form 990 2008 2008 IRS Form 990

RRF-1 2007 2007 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2007 2007 IRS Form 990

RRF-1 2007 2007 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2007 2007 IRS Form 990

RRF-1 2006 2006 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2006 2006 IRS Form 990

RRF-1 2006 2006 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2006 2006 IRS Form 990

RRF-1 2005 2005 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2005 2005 IRS Form 990

RRF-1 2004 2004 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2004 2004 IRS Form 990

IRS Form 990 2004 2004 IRS Form 990

RRF-1 2003 2003 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2003 2003 IRS Form 990

RRF-1 2002 2002 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2002 2002 IRS Form 990

RRF-1 2000 2000 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2000 2000 IRS Form 990

RRF-1 2001 2001 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2001 2001 IRS Form 990

RRF-1 2010 2010 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2010 2010 IRS Form 990

HOME  ABOUT  MEDIA  CAREERS  REGULATIONS  RESOURCES  PROGRAMS  CONTACT

http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+Fee+Request.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8008a6ad
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=CT-550.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8008a6ae
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=Founding+Documents.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8008a6af
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2008.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8008a6b0
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2007.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8008a6b1
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2007.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8008a6b3
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2007.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8008a6b4
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2007.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8008a6b5
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2006.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8008a6b6
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2006.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8008a6b7
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2006.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8008a6b8
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2006.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8008a6b9
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2005.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8008a6ba
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2005.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8008a6bb
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2004.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8008a6bc
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2004.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8008a6bd
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2004.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8008a6be
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2003.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8008a6bf
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2003.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8008a6c0
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2002.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8008a6c1
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2002.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8008a6c2
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2000.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8008a6c5
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2000.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8008a6c6
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2001.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8008a6c3
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2001.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8008a6c4
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2010.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8008a6c7
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2010.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8008a6c8
https://oag.ca.gov/home
https://oag.ca.gov/about
https://oag.ca.gov/media
https://oag.ca.gov/careers
https://oag.ca.gov/meetings/public-participation
https://oag.ca.gov/services-info
https://oag.ca.gov/programs
https://oag.ca.gov/contact


RRF-1 2011 2011 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2011 2011 IRS Form 990

RRF-1 2009 2009 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2009 2009 IRS Form 990

RRF-1 2009 2009 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2009 2009 IRS Form 990

Fee notice 2011 Fee notice 2011

RRF-1 2008 2008 RRF-1

RRF-1 2012 2012 RRF-1

Fee Notice Fee Notice

Incomplete Fee Notice 2012 Incomplete Fee Notice 2012

IRS Form 990 2012 2012 IRS Form 990

IRS Form 990 2012 2012 IRS Form 990

IRS Form 990 2013 2013 IRS Form 990

RRF-1 2013 2013 RRF-1

RRF-1 2012 2012 RRF-1

IRS Form 990 2014 2014 IRS Form 990

Incomplete Form Notice 2014 Incomplete Form Notice 2014

Renewal Filing 2017

Renewal Filing 2018

RRF-1 2014 2014 RRF-1

2015 Incomplete Form Notice 2015 Incomplete Form Notice

2015 IRS Form 990 2015 IRS Form 990

Miscellaneous Documents Miscellaneous Documents

2015 RRF-1 2015 RRF-1

2016 Incomplete RRF-1 2016 Incomplete RRF-1

Audited Financial Statement Click on Document Type at the left to open PDF

2016 Form RRF-1 Click on Document Type at the left to open PDF

IRS Form 990 Series 2016

CT-550 Form RRF-1 Incomplete 2017

Renewal Filing 2017

Annual Renewal Data
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 1/1/2001
Accounting Period End Date: 12/31/2001
Total Assets: $130,000.00
Total Revenue: $481,731.00
Filing Received Date: 4/30/2002
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): N
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 1/1/2002
Accounting Period End Date: 12/31/2002
Total Assets: $74,979.00
Total Revenue: $382,375.00
Filing Received Date: 12/31/2002
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 1/1/2003
Accounting Period End Date: 12/31/2003

http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2011.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8008a6c9
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2011.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8008a6ca
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2009.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8008a6cb
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2009.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8008a6cc
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2009.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8008a6cd
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=IRS+Form+990+2009.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8008a6ce
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=Fee+notice+2011.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8008a6cf
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=RRF-1+2008.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8008a6d0
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=3683.pdf&document_id=09027b8f801e6c94
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=069715243748.pdf&document_id=09027b8f801b01cb
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=06971585393203224.pdf&document_id=09027b8f801b01cc
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=3684.pdf&document_id=09027b8f801e6c95
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=102414.pdf&document_id=09027b8f801d7a79
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=725814.PDF&document_id=09027b8f80220468
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=725813.PDF&document_id=09027b8f80220467
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=1177850.pdf&document_id=09027b8f801ee3d8
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=884140.PDF&document_id=09027b8f80264402
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=069715094721.pdf&document_id=09027b8f802387ce
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=440476.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8036ee13
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=538163.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8039f272
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=906409.PDF&document_id=09027b8f8026819e
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=069715392000.pdf&document_id=09027b8f802a535d
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=1228059.PDF&document_id=09027b8f802d62ad
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=1228060.PDF&document_id=09027b8f802d62ab
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=1228061.PDF&document_id=09027b8f802d62ac
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=069715082172.pdf&document_id=09027b8f802e2a79
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=189842.pdf&document_id=09027b8f802f8a75
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=189843.pdf&document_id=09027b8f802f8a76
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=0697152016.pdf&document_id=09027b8f803131ba
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=069715.pdf&document_id=09027b8f8036b6cd
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Download.aspx?saveas=447730.pdf&document_id=09027b8f80373be8


Total Assets: $90,180.00
Total Revenue: $531,015.00
Filing Received Date: 5/17/2004
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 1/1/2004
Accounting Period End Date: 12/31/2004
Total Assets: $354,358.00
Total Revenue: $1,189,262.00
Filing Received Date: 11/14/2005
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 1/1/2005
Accounting Period End Date: 12/31/2005
Total Assets: $325,282.00
Total Revenue: $1,194,268.00
Filing Received Date: 11/17/2006
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 1/1/2006
Accounting Period End Date: 12/31/2006
Total Assets: $289,274.00
Total Revenue: $1,436,816.00
Filing Received Date: 10/4/2007
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 1/1/2007
Accounting Period End Date: 12/31/2007
Total Assets: $532,639.00
Total Revenue: $1,772,893.00
Filing Received Date: 11/17/2008
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 1/1/2008
Accounting Period End Date: 12/31/2008
Total Assets: $745,590.00
Total Revenue: $2,241,281.00
Filing Received Date: 11/18/2009
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 1/1/2009
Accounting Period End Date: 12/31/2009
Total Assets: $748,982.00
Total Revenue: $2,174,344.00
Filing Received Date: 11/16/2010
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 1/1/2010
Accounting Period End Date: 12/31/2010
Total Assets: $843,832.00
Total Revenue: $2,889,816.00
Filing Received Date: 6/8/2012
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted



Accounting Period Begin Date: 1/1/2011
Accounting Period End Date: 12/31/2011
Total Assets: $1,174,896.00
Total Revenue: $3,465,461.00
Filing Received Date: 11/13/2012
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 1/1/2012
Accounting Period End Date: 12/31/2012
Total Assets: $1,450,289.00
Total Revenue: $3,770,480.00
Filing Received Date: 11/15/2013
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 1/1/2013
Accounting Period End Date: 12/31/2013
Total Assets: $4,799,794.00
Total Revenue: $5,917,140.00
Filing Received Date: 10/16/2014
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 1/1/2014
Accounting Period End Date: 12/31/2014
Total Assets: $5,257,682.00
Total Revenue: $3,587,345.00
Filing Received Date: 10/22/2015
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 1/1/2015
Accounting Period End Date: 12/31/2015
Total Assets: $4,542,050.00
Total Revenue: $4,042,429.00
Filing Received Date: 11/15/2016
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 1/1/2016
Accounting Period End Date: 12/31/2016
Total Assets: $6,980,021.00
Total Revenue: $5,419,028.00
Filing Received Date: 6/9/2017
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N): N
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 1/1/2017
Accounting Period End Date: 12/31/2017
Total Assets: $7,813,888.00
Total Revenue: $6,330,208.00
Filing Received Date: 11/19/2018
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y
Online Submission (Y/N):
Status of Filing: Accepted
Accounting Period Begin Date: 1/1/2018
Accounting Period End Date: 12/31/2018
Total Assets: $8,214,683.00
Total Revenue: $7,569,917.00
Filing Received Date: 7/15/2019
Complete IRS Form 990 Received (Y/N): Y



Online Submission (Y/N):

Related Registrations & Event Reports
The related records shown below depend on the record type being viewed:

Charity Registrations relate to Professional Fundraising Events which relate to Professional Fundraiser Registrations.
Raffle Registrations relate to Raffle Reports.
Click on the RCT Registration No to navigate to the related record.

Prereq Type: Prerequisite Relationship: Charity
Registrant: ALPHA DOG MARKETING, INC.
Registration No: E0019294 Registration Type: Fundraising Event Registration Status: Complete
Date Established: 1/31/2014 Association Date: 11/1/2013 Expiration Date: 12/31/2014
Prereq Type: Prerequisite Relationship: Charity
Registrant: LYNN UPCHURCH
Registration No: E0007985 Registration Type: Fundraising Event Registration Status: Complete
Date Established: 6/3/2010 Association Date: 5/1/2010 Expiration Date: 7/30/2010
Prereq Type: Prerequisite Relationship: Charity
Registrant: LYNN UPCHURCH
Registration No: E0008704 Registration Type: Fundraising Event Registration Status: Complete
Date Established: 9/8/2010 Association Date: 9/1/2010 Expiration Date: 12/31/2010
Prereq Type: Prerequisite Relationship: Charity
Registrant: LYNN UPCHURCH
Registration No: E0009655 Registration Type: Fundraising Event Registration Status: Complete
Date Established: 1/27/2011 Association Date: 1/1/2011 Expiration Date: 3/31/2011
Prereq Type: Prerequisite Relationship: Charity
Registrant: MIRIAM HOUGHTON DBA EXPRESSIONS
Registration No: E0003116 Registration Type: Fundraising Event Registration Status: Complete
Date Established: 7/30/2008 Association Date: 7/24/2008 Expiration Date: 8/31/2008
Prereq Type: Prerequisite Relationship: Charity
Registrant: MIRIAM HOUGHTON DBA EXPRESSIONS
Registration No: E0003453 Registration Type: Fundraising Event Registration Status: Complete
Date Established: 10/3/2008 Association Date: 9/30/2008 Expiration Date: 10/31/2008
Prereq Type: Prerequisite Relationship: Charity
Registrant: MIRIAM HOUGHTON DBA EXPRESSIONS
Registration No: E0004013 Registration Type: Fundraising Event Registration Status: Complete
Date Established: 2/26/2009 Association Date: 1/8/2009 Expiration Date: 12/31/2009
Prereq Type: Prerequisite Relationship: Charity
Registrant: MIRIAM HOUGHTON DBA EXPRESSIONS
Registration No: E0007111 Registration Type: Fundraising Event Registration Status: Complete
Date Established: 3/9/2010 Association Date: 1/25/2010 Expiration Date: 12/31/2010
Prereq Type: Prerequisite Relationship: Charity
Registrant: MIRIAM HOUGHTON DBA EXPRESSIONS
Registration No: E0010159 Registration Type: Fundraising Event Registration Status: Complete
Date Established: 3/23/2011 Association Date: 2/28/2011 Expiration Date: 12/31/2011
Prereq Type: Prerequisite Relationship: Charity
Registrant: MIRIAM HOUGHTON DBA EXPRESSIONS
Registration No: E0013153 Registration Type: Fundraising Event Registration Status: Complete
Date Established: 3/16/2012 Association Date: 1/9/2012 Expiration Date: 12/31/2012
Prereq Type: Prerequisite Relationship: Charity
Registrant: MIRIAM HOUGHTON DBA EXPRESSIONS
Registration No: E0014550 Registration Type: Fundraising Event Registration Status: Complete
Date Established: 6/15/2012 Association Date: 6/11/2012 Expiration Date: 12/31/2013
Prereq Type: Prerequisite Relationship: Charity
Registrant: MIRIAM HOUGHTON DBA EXPRESSIONS
Registration No: E0018691 Registration Type: Fundraising Event Registration Status: Complete
Date Established: 10/29/2013 Association Date: 2/5/2013 Expiration Date: 12/31/2013
Prereq Type: Prerequisite Relationship: Charity
Registrant: MIRIAM HOUGHTON DBA EXPRESSIONS
Registration No: E0021512 Registration Type: Fundraising Event Registration Status: Complete

http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Details.aspx?result=649791ac-5438-466d-9e56-f7048bd7a0cd
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Details.aspx?result=fd4fb316-355e-48ac-88b7-1ed99c677da4
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Details.aspx?result=889e1b5f-0b63-4146-813b-de28e4b6b2f3
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Details.aspx?result=f6fbde92-bca6-4137-a824-fccd5fce4884
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Details.aspx?result=9a1d85ed-94fe-4729-ae02-341c13c1aac6
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Details.aspx?result=dc486ed6-98b3-48de-954f-f7fc9af304a3
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Details.aspx?result=5e87aec2-ca20-4761-8f1f-a05a535c6757
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Details.aspx?result=94f3aa1c-928c-4943-bb25-76142976f984
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Details.aspx?result=4c72cb6a-bc0e-4e73-8ca5-9693e69b313a
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Details.aspx?result=b3320b4c-99a4-4a02-9e3f-15330e0b5fa4
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Details.aspx?result=e6be247b-2e98-474f-a42a-c68877a65a98
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Details.aspx?result=3a44834a-24e3-4bc5-8eaa-61569519e66b
http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Details.aspx?result=acdebcab-3adc-45c2-a72c-04ccce5eb6e9


Date Established: 9/12/2014 Association Date: 1/6/2014 Expiration Date: 12/31/2014
Prereq Type: Prerequisite Relationship: Charity
Registrant: MIRIAM HOUGHTON DBA EXPRESSIONS
Registration No: E0024563 Registration Type: Fundraising Event Registration Status: Complete
Date Established: 7/27/2015 Association Date: 7/24/2015 Expiration Date: 12/31/2015

http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Details.aspx?result=af37c91b-53b1-4244-8559-2ecb884321f0




 

 

SAINT JOHN’S PROGRAM FOR 
REAL CHANGE 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS WITH 
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

YEAR ENDED  
DECEMBER 31, 2018 



SAINT JOHN’S PROGRAM FOR REAL CHANGE 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
DECEMBER 31, 2018 

 
 
 

 

 PAGE

Independent Auditor’s Report  1

Financial Statements: 

Statement of Financial Position  3

Statement of Activities  4

Statement of Functional Expenses  5

Statement of Cash Flows  6

Notes to the Financial Statements  7

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 14

Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 15

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting 
and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an 
Audit of Financial Statements Performed in 
Accordance with Government Auditing Standards 16

Report on Compliance For Each Major Program and on 
Internal Control Over Compliance Required by the 
Uniform Guidance 18

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 20

 



2880 Gateway Oaks Drive, Suite 100, Sacramento, CA 95833 

Phone 916.646.6464  •  Fax 916.929.6836  •  GilbertCPA.com 

Tax. Audit . Advisory.

2880 Gateway Oaks Drive, Suite 100, Sacramento, CA 95833 

Phone 916.646.6464  •  Fax 916.929.6836  •  GilbertCPA.com  •  Relax. We got this.  SM

Relax. We got this.SM

 
 
 
 
 

1 

 
 
 

 
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

 
 
 
 
 
Board of Directors 
Saint John’s Program for Real Change 
Sacramento, California 
 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Saint John’s Program for Real Change (Saint 
John’s), which comprise the statement of financial position as of December 31, 2018, and the related 
statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes 
to the financial statements.   

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes 
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material 
misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation 
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s 
internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates 
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.



Board of Directors 
Saint John’s Program for Real Change 
Page two 
 
 

2 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion. 
 
Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of Saint John’s Program for Real Change, as of December 31, 2018, and the changes in 
its net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America. 

Other Matters 

Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole. 
The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of 
Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit 
Requirements for Federal Awards, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required 
part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived 
from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial 
statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the 
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such 
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial 
statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is 
fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated May 21, 2019, 
on our consideration of Saint John’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other 
matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over 
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the 
effectiveness of Saint John’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an 
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering 
Saint John’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 
 
 
 
 
GILBERT ASSOCIATES, INC.  
Sacramento, California 

May 21, 2019 



ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents 1,192,139$       
Investments 11,459              
Inventory 20,824              
Accounts and grants receivable 641,137            
Pledges receivable, current 55,598              
Prepaid expenses and deposits 61,348              

Total current assets 1,982,505         

PLEDGES RECEIVABLE, Net 226,500            

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, Net 6,005,678         

TOTAL ASSETS 8,214,683$       

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable 606,951$          
Accrued expenses 325,412            
Deferred revenue 1,540                
Notes payable, current 75,351              

Total current liabilities 1,009,254         

NOTES PAYABLE, Net 5,137,627         

TOTAL LIABILITIES 6,146,881         

NET ASSETS:
Without donor restrictions 1,025,704         
With donor restrictions 1,042,098         

Total net assets 2,067,802         

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 8,214,683$       

SAINT JOHN'S PROGRAM FOR REAL CHANGE

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
DECEMBER 31, 2018

       The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 3      



NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS:
REVENUES:

Government grants and contracts 2,765,635$       
Contributions 2,262,867         
Program revenues 1,287,798         
Special events, net of direct benefit to donors of $199,090 677,157            
Other income 54,979              
Net assets released from restrictions 249,105            

Total revenues 7,297,541         

EXPENSES:
Program services:

Housing and Continuum of Care 3,709,273         
Plates 1,348,305         
First Steps 527,596            

Total program services 5,585,174         
Supporting services:

General and administrative 896,137            
Fundraising 737,888            

Total supporting services 1,634,025         
Total expenses 7,219,199         

INCREASE IN NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS 78,342              

NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS:
Contributions 807,000            
Net assets released from restrictions (249,105)           

INCREASE IN NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS 557,895            

INCREASE IN NET ASSETS 636,237            

NET ASSETS, Beginning of year 1,431,565         

NET ASSETS, End of year 2,067,802$       

SAINT JOHN'S PROGRAM FOR REAL CHANGE

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

       The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 4      



Housing & Total Total 
Continuum of First Program General and Supporting

Care Plates Steps Services Administrative Fundraising Services Total

Personnel 2,379,463$  503,067$    351,465$    3,233,995$  457,915$       513,307$   971,222$     4,205,217$  
Costs of goods sold                     232,514                         232,514                                                                   232,514       
Supplies and maintenance 522,885       262,694      122,723      908,302       7,274             8,307         15,581         923,883       
Facilities 173,625       190,694      36,410        400,729       6,382             13,712       20,094         420,823       
Special events 199,090     199,090       199,090       
Business insurance 1,442           13,832        2,305          17,579         44,909                             44,909         62,488         
Professional services 72,721         24,909                           97,630         155,794         37,140       192,934       290,564       
Depreciation 199,756       10,998        500             211,254       61,969                             61,969         273,223       
Operations 317,962       102,438      14,193        434,593       101,622         164,068     265,690       700,283       
Interest and other expenses 41,419         7,159                             48,578         60,272           1,354         61,626         110,204       
   Total functional expenses 3,709,273    1,348,305   527,596      5,585,174    896,137         936,978     1,833,115    7,418,289    

Less direct expenses of
  special events                                                                                                     (199,090)    (199,090)     (199,090)      

Total expenses reported on 
  statement of activities 3,709,273$  1,348,305$ 527,596$    5,585,174$  896,137$       737,888$   1,634,025$  7,219,199$  

Program Services

SAINT JOHN'S PROGRAM FOR REAL CHANGE

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

Supporting Services

       The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 5      



CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Increase in net assets 636,237$          
Reconciliation to net cash provided by operating activities:

Net loss on investments 1,328                
Donated investments (16,636)             
Depreciation 273,223            
Accrual of interest on notes payable 30,000              
Changes in:

Inventory 1,657                
Accounts and grants receivable 542,153            
Pledges receivable (282,098)           
Prepaid expenses and deposits (15,026)             
Accounts payable (241,409)           
Accrued expenses 39,799              
Deferred revenue (91,007)             

Net cash provided by operating activities 878,221            

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchases of property and equipment (16,309)             
Proceeds from sale of investments 3,849                

Net cash used by investing activities (12,460)             

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Payments on notes payable (65,600)             
Draws on line of credit 1,619,548         
Payments on line of credit (1,526,774)        

Net cash provided by financing activities 27,174              

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 892,935            

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, Beginning of year 299,204            

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, End of year 1,192,139$       

SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION:
Cash paid for interest 32,026$            

NONCASH FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Conversion of line of credit to note payable 257,506$          

SAINT JOHN'S PROGRAM FOR REAL CHANGE

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

       The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 6      



SAINT JOHN'S PROGRAM FOR REAL CHANGE 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
DECEMBER 31, 2018 

 
 
 

7 

1. ORGANIZATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Saint John’s Program for Real Change (Saint John’s) is a charitable nonprofit organization with a 
mission to unleash the potential of women and children in crisis to support them to permanently 
exit the cycle of poverty, abuse and homelessness. Since 1985, Saint John’s demonstrated and 
objectively measured model has helped over 30,000 women and children change the trajectory of 
their lives, at a minimum of 1/3 the cost of the current public system. 

In 2016, the American Enterprise Institute and the Brookings Institute issued a joint report on how 
to most effectively lift families out of poverty. The report included two unequivocal assertions: 

1. The most important criteria for any social program is to strengthen people’s ability to 
take care of themselves and their children. 

2. Employment must be at the center of any strategy to reduce poverty and increase 
economic mobility. 

Saint John’s 18-month program is the largest residential employment-training program for formerly 
homeless women and children in the Sacramento region. Utilizing an evidence-based approach to 
apply principles and interventions for trauma-informed care, the women and children living at Saint 
John’s receive an average of 675 hours of on-site services per month including: mental health 
therapy, alcohol and drug counseling, parenting education, high school diploma acquisition, 
budgeting classes, healthy relationship and life skills education and hands-on employment training 
to support real and permanent change in their lives. While the mothers are working on themselves, 
a dedicated and trained staff works with their children to ensure they get them on track 
academically, socially, physically and emotionally. 

Saint John’s has intentionally and significantly diversified its funding over the past decade. With 
less than 40% of its total revenue coming from government contracts—versus 70%+ 10 years 
ago—Saint John’s has built a robust community outreach and fund-raising department to support 
our growth in both volunteer contributions and in individual, corporate and foundation 
contributions.  Accordingly, in 2017, Saint John’s was able to survive a $730K reduction in public 
funding due to its ongoing commitment to accountability and sobriety—which public funding no 
longer allows for—as well as a subsequent and significant public funding cut in 2018.   

Serving up to 270 women and children daily, and with a daily waiting list of 200-250 women and 
children, Saint John’s is re-doubling its efforts to both diversify and grow its funding base. This 
includes the pursuit of strategic partners and donors that are philosophically in-line with Saint 
John’s proven approach: a hand up for families struggling with addiction, domestic violence and 
trauma is far more effective than a hand out.  

96% of the women who complete Saint John’s Employment Training Program secure non-
subsidized employment at an average beginning wage of $14.50/hour. 

Basis of presentation – The financial statements are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting 
and in conformity with professional standards applicable to not-for-profit entities.  Saint John’s 
reports information regarding its financial position and activities according to the following net 
asset classifications: net assets without donor restrictions and net assets with donor restrictions. 



SAINT JOHN'S PROGRAM FOR REAL CHANGE 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
DECEMBER 31, 2018 

 
 
 

8 

Revenue recognition – Program fees are recognized in the period earned. Government grants and 
contracts are recognized when qualifying expenses are incurred. Special events revenue is 
recognized when the related event occurs. Contributions and grants from private foundations or 
individuals are recognized in full when received or unconditionally promised, in accordance with 
professional standards. All contributions are considered available for unrestricted use unless 
specifically restricted by donors for future periods or specific purposes. Donor-restricted amounts 
are reported as increases in net assets with donor restrictions. Net assets with donor restrictions 
become unrestricted and are reported in the statement of activities as net assets released from 
restrictions when the time restrictions expire, or the contributions are used for the donor-restricted 
purpose. 

Donated goods and services are reflected as contributions in the accompanying statements at their 
fair market values as of the date of receipt or the date the service is performed. 

Cash and cash equivalents – For financial statement purposes, investments with maturity at 
purchase of three months or less are considered to be cash equivalents. Saint John’s minimizes 
credit risk associated with cash by periodically evaluating the credit quality of its primary financial 
institution. The balance at times may exceed federally insured limits. Saint John’s deposits held 
with financial institutions in excess of federal depository insurance limits totaled $619,941 as of 
December 31, 2018. Saint John’s has not experienced any losses in such accounts and management 
believes they are not exposed to any significant credit risk related to cash. 

Investments are stated at fair value. Saint John’s investment balance of $11,459 at December 31, 
2018 consisted of common stocks which are categorized within level 1 of the fair value hierarchy 
because they are valued based on quoted market prices for identical assets in active markets. 

Accounts and grants receivable – Accounts receivable and grants receivable include amounts due 
from grantor agencies under reimbursement grant agreements. It also includes amounts due for 
program services. Management has assessed the collectability of accounts receivable, and at 
December 31, 2018, accounts receivable is presented net of an allowance for doubtful accounts of 
$33,668. 

Inventory consists of food for the Plates program and is stated at cost. 

Property and equipment – Property and equipment are stated at cost or, if donated, at the 
approximate fair value at the date of the donation, and depreciated using the straight-line method 
over estimated useful lives of 5 to 39 years. Saint John’s policy is to capitalize purchases of $2,000 
or more. 

Use of estimates – The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures.  Accordingly, actual results could 
differ from those estimates. 



SAINT JOHN'S PROGRAM FOR REAL CHANGE 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
DECEMBER 31, 2018 

 
 
 

9 

Fair value measurements – Fair value is a market-based measurement, not an entity-specific 
measurement. For some assets and liabilities, observable market transactions or market information 
might be available. For other assets and liabilities, observable market transactions and market 
information might not be available.  However, the objective of a fair value measurement in both 
cases is the same – to estimate the price at which an orderly transaction to sell the asset or to 
transfer the liability would take place between market participants at the measurement date under 
current market conditions (that is, an exit price at the measurement date from the perspective of a 
market participant that holds the asset or owes the liability).   

In order to increase consistency and comparability in fair value measurements, a fair value 
hierarchy that prioritizes observable and unobservable inputs is used to measure fair value into 
three broad levels, as follows: 

Level 1 Inputs Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets that are accessible at the 
measurement date for identical assets or liabilities. 

Level 2 Inputs Inputs other than quoted prices in active markets that are observable either 
directly or indirectly.

Level 3 Inputs Unobservable inputs for the assets or liabilities.

Income taxes – Saint John’s is publicly supported and exempt from income taxes under Internal 
Revenue Code Section 501(c)(3). Saint John’s has applied the accounting principles related to 
accounting for uncertainty in income taxes and has determined that there is no material impact on 
the financial statements. 

Functional allocation of expenses – The costs of providing the program and supporting services 
have been summarized on a functional basis in the statements of activities and of functional 
expenses. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated based on employees’ time incurred and 
management’s estimate of the usage of resources. The expenses that are allocated include salaries 
which are allocated based on time and effort; employee benefits and payroll taxes, which are 
allocated based on salaries; all other expense are allocated based on salaries, head count, or specific 
identification of expenses, whichever best approximates usage of resources. 

Recent accounting pronouncements – In August 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board 
(FASB) issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2016-14, Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic 958), 
Presentation of Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Entities. The update addresses the 
complexity and understandability of net asset classification, information about liquidity and 
availability of resources, and the consistency in the type of information provided about expenses 
and investment return.  Saint John’s has adjusted the presentation of these statements accordingly.   

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 
606). The new accounting standard develops a common standard that will remove inconsistencies 
in revenue requirements, improve comparability of revenue recognition practices, provide more 
useful information to users of financial statements and simplify the preparation of financial 
statements. Application of this statement is effective for the year ending December 31, 2019. Saint 
John’s is currently evaluating the impact this pronouncement will have on the financial statements. 

 



SAINT JOHN'S PROGRAM FOR REAL CHANGE 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
DECEMBER 31, 2018 

 
 
 

10 

In June 2018, the FASB issued ASU 2018-08, Topic 958, Clarifying the Scope and the Accounting 
Guidance for Contributions Received and Contributions Made. The new accounting standard 
clarifies and improves the guidance for (1) evaluating whether transactions should be accounted for 
as contributions within the scope of Topic 958 or as exchange transactions subject to other 
guidance and (2) determining whether a contribution is conditional. Application of this statement is 
effective for transactions in which the entity serves as the resource recipient for the year ending 
December 31, 2019. For transactions in which the entity serves as the resource provider, the 
statement is effective for the year ending December 31, 2020. Saint John’s is currently evaluating 
the impact this pronouncement will have on the financial statements. 

Subsequent events have been reviewed through May 21, 2019, the date the financial statements 
were available to be issued.  Management concluded that no material subsequent events have 
occurred since December 31, 2018 that require recognition or disclosure in the financial statements. 
 

2. LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY OF RESOURCES 

Saint John’s financial assets available within one year of the statement of financial position date for 
general expenditure are as follows: 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,192,139
Investments  11,459
Accounts and grants receivable  641,137
Pledges receivable  282,098
  
Total financial assets  2,126,833
  
Less:  
Amounts unavailable for general expenditures within one year, due to:  

Restrictions by donors for purpose or time  (986,500)

Total financial assets available to management  
for general expenditure within one year $ 1,140,333

As part of Saint John’s liquidity management, it has a policy to structure its financial assets to be 
available as its general expenditures, liabilities, and other obligations come due.  

3. PLEDGES RECEIVABLE  

Pledges receivable as of December 31, 2018 are as follows: 
  
Less than one year $ 55,598
One to five years  226,500

Total pledges receivable $ 282,098



SAINT JOHN'S PROGRAM FOR REAL CHANGE 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
DECEMBER 31, 2018 

 
 
 

11 

4. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 

Saint John’s property and equipment consist of the following at December 31, 2018: 
 
Land and land improvements $ 1,863,681
Building and improvements  4,235,600 
Furniture and equipment  892,438
Vehicles  92,138

Total  7,083,857
Less accumulated depreciation   (1,078,179)

Property and equipment, net $ 6,005,678

5. NOTES PAYABLE 

Saint John’s notes payable consists of the following as of December 31, 2018: 
  
Note payable to California Department of Housing and Community Development. 
The loan term is 10 years and matures May 19, 2024. Date of occupancy was 
received on March 7, 2014 and the promissory note is secured by a deed of trust 
against the 8401-11 Jackson Road property. Interest on the note accrues at a 
simple rate of 3% annually. Repayment of the loan shall be deferred as long as the 
property is used as an emergency shelter or safe haven. Upon completion of the 
initial loan term of 10 years, the principal on the loan and all accrued interest shall 
be forgiven. $ 1,158,500

 

  
Note payable to Buzz Oates Enterprises II. The loan term is 15 years and matures 
September 30, 2028. The promissory note is secured by a deed of trust against the 
8401-11 Jackson Road property. Interest on the note accrues at a simple rate of 
4% annually and is required to be paid during the first five years of the loan; 
although Saint John’s has received waivers of interest payments and accrual from 
January 1, 2018 through December 31, 2019. Repayment of the loan shall be 
deferred through 2019. Beginning February 1, 2020, the principal and interest will 
be paid in 105 equal monthly installments. 1,353,819

 

  
Note payable to Wells Fargo Financial National Bank. The loan term is 15 years 
and matures December 1, 2029. The promissory note is secured by a second deed 
of trust against the 8401-11 Jackson Road property. Interest does not accrue on the 
note and repayment shall be deferred as long as the property is used as an 
emergency shelter or a safe haven. Upon completion of the initial loan term of 15 
years, the principal on the loan shall be forgiven. 1,000,000

 

  
Note payable to Wells Fargo Financial National Bank. The loan term is 15 years 
and matures August 14, 2031. The promissory note is secured by a deed of trust 
against the 8395 Jackson Road property. Interest does not accrue on the note and 
repayment shall be deferred as long as the property is used as an emergency 
shelter or safe haven. Upon completion of the initial loan term of 15 years, the 
principal on the loan shall be forgiven. 900,000

 



SAINT JOHN'S PROGRAM FOR REAL CHANGE 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
DECEMBER 31, 2018 

 
 
 

12 

  
Note payable to the City of Sacramento. The loan term is 15 years and matures 
January 1, 2034. The promissory note is secured by the Deed of Trust against the 
8395 Jackson Road property. Interest does not accrue on the note. Annual 
repayments of $40,000 are scheduled for January 1 of each year beginning 
January 1, 2019 which shall be forgiven annually as long as the property is used as 
an emergency shelter or safe haven in accordance with the terms of the loan. Saint 
John’s was determined to be in compliance as of January 1, 2019 and received 
notification that the first payment of $40,000 due January 1, 2019 was forgiven. 600,000

 

 
Note payable to Five Star Bank. On July 23, 2018, the balance on Saint John’s 
line of credit with Five Star Bank was converted to a note payable with a maturity 
date of December 23, 2021. The note accrues interest monthly at the prime rate 
plus 2.00%. Beginning August 23, 2018, payments of principal and interest are 
due monthly in the amount of $3,500 each January through November and 
$50,000 each December until repaid in full. 200,659

 

Subtotal 5,212,978
  
Current portion (75,351)

Notes payable, net of current portion $ 5,137,627

Saint John’s believes it will continue to conduct its operations in the manner required to meet the 
criteria for loan forgiveness as described above. It has therefore, calculated the scheduled required 
annual principal payments on notes payable to exclude those subject to loan forgiveness. The 
known required principal payments on notes payable are as follows: 

 
2019 $ 75,351
2020 201,484
2021 181,305
2022 142,368
2023 148,168
Thereafter 805,804

 $ 1,554,480

6. OPERATING LEASE OBLIGATIONS 

Saint John’s leases facilities and equipment under long-term and month-to-month operating lease 
agreements, expiring at various time between 2019 and 2021.  Total expenses under operating 
leases were $198,807 for the year ended December 31, 2018.  Future minimum lease payments 
under long-term leases are as follows: 

2019 $ 80,825
2020 8,825
2021 2,942

Total $ 92,592



SAINT JOHN'S PROGRAM FOR REAL CHANGE 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
DECEMBER 31, 2018 

 
 
 

13 

7. NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS 

Net assets with donor restrictions include unexpended contributions restricted by donors as follows: 

Capital Campaign  $ 750,000
Parenting Program for Families  10,000
Time restricted  282,098

Total  $ 1,042,098

8. RETIREMENT PLAN 

Saint John’s sponsors a 403(b) plan for eligible employees.  All employees working over 20 hours 
per week, excluding seasonal employees, who are at least 21 years of age are eligible to participate.  
Employer contributions are discretionary and vest immediately.  Plan contributions totaled $32,838 
in 2018.   

9. DONATED SERVICES 

During 2018, Saint John’s recognized contributions for the following donated materials, supplies 
and services received: 

Rent $ 197,508
Legal services  87,147
Supplies, materials and marketing  5,230

Total $ 289,885

10. CONCENTRATION 

One Capital Campaign contribution totaling $1,000,000 provided 13% of Saint John’s revenue for       
2018. 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

 

 



Pass-Through Federal 
Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/Program Title CFDA Number Expenditures

U.S. Department of Agriculture
Passed Through Sacramento County Department of Human Assistance:

CalFRESH - SNAP to Skills Employment Training Program 10.561 DHA-SJ-01-19 449,122$      

Passed Through California Department of Education:
Child & Adult Care Food Program 10.558 05257-CACFP-34-NP-CS 239,632        

Total U.S. Department of Agriculture 688,754        

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services:
Passed Through Sacramento Employment and Training Agency:

Community Services Block Grant 93.569 18C168FSS 27,950          

U.S. Department of Homeland Security - FEMA
Emergency Food & Shelter Program 97.024 N/A 41,000          

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards 757,704$      

SAINT JOHN'S PROGRAM FOR REAL CHANGE

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

 14      



SAINT JOHN'S PROGRAM FOR REAL CHANGE 

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 
DECEMBER 31, 2018 

 
 
 

15 

1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION 
 

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards of Saint John’s Program for Real 
Change is presented on the accrual basis of accounting. The information in this schedule is 
presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 
200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal 
Awards (Uniform Guidance). 

 
 
2. INDIRECT COST RATE 
 

Saint John’s Program for Real Change did not elect to use the 10% de minimis indirect cost rate as 
they received indirect costs at varying rates as determined by the granting agencies. 

 
 
 
 



2880 Gateway Oaks Drive, Suite 100, Sacramento, CA 95833 

Phone 916.646.6464  •  Fax 916.929.6836  •  GilbertCPA.com 

Tax. Audit . Advisory.

2880 Gateway Oaks Drive, Suite 100, Sacramento, CA 95833 

Phone 916.646.6464  •  Fax 916.929.6836  •  GilbertCPA.com  •  Relax. We got this.  SM

Relax. We got this.SM

 
 
 
 
 

16 

 
 

 
 

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT 
OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH 

GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 
 

Independent Auditor’s Report 
 
 
 

Board of Directors of 
Saint John’s Program for Real Change 
Sacramento, California 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Saint John’s Program 
for Real Change (Saint John’s), which comprise the statement of financial position as of December 31, 
2018, and the related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, 
and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated May 21, 2019. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Saint John’s internal 
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Saint John’s internal control. Accordingly, we do 
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Saint John’s internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination 
of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement 
of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A 
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less 
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with 
governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses 
may exist that have not been identified. 



Board of Directors of 
Saint John’s Program for Real Change 
Page two 
 
 

17 

Compliance and Other Matters  

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Saint John’s financial statements are free from 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The 
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be 
reported under Government Auditing Standards.  

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the organizations’ 
internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the organizations’ internal control and compliance. 
Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 
 
 
 
GILBERT ASSOCIATES, INC.  
Sacramento, California 

May 21, 2019 

 



2880 Gateway Oaks Drive, Suite 100, Sacramento, CA 95833 

Phone 916.646.6464  •  Fax 916.929.6836  •  GilbertCPA.com 

Tax. Audit . Advisory.

2880 Gateway Oaks Drive, Suite 100, Sacramento, CA 95833 

Phone 916.646.6464  •  Fax 916.929.6836  •  GilbertCPA.com  •  Relax. We got this.  SM

Relax. We got this.SM

 
 
 
 
 
 

18 

 
 
 
 
 

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON 
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE 

UNIFORM GUIDANCE 
 

Independent Auditor’s Report 
 
 
 

Board of Directors of 
Saint John’s Program for Real Change 
Sacramento, California 

Report on Compliance for the Major Federal Program 

We have audited Saint John’s Program for Real Change’s (Saint John’s) compliance with the types of 
compliance requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and 
material effect on their major federal program for the year ended December 31, 2018.  Saint John’s major 
federal program is identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of 
findings and questioned costs.  

Management’s Responsibility 

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and 
grants applicable to their federal program.  

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for Saint John’s major federal program based 
on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above.  We conducted our audit of 
compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal 
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for 
Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance).  Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan 
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of 
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on the major 
federal program occurred.  An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Saint John’s 
compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in 
the circumstances. 

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for the major federal 
program.  However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Saint John’s compliance with 
those requirements. 



Board of Directors of 
Saint John’s Program for Real Change 
Page two 
 
 

19 

Opinion on the Major Federal Program 

In our opinion, Saint John’s complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements 
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on its major federal program for the year 
ended December 31, 2018. 

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 

Management of Saint John’s is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over 
compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our 
audit of compliance, we considered Saint John’s internal control over compliance with the types of 
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on the major federal program to determine the 
auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on 
compliance for the major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in 
accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of internal control over compliance.  Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of Saint John’s internal control over compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 
federal program on a timely basis.  A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a 
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a 
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal 
program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.  A significant deficiency in 
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over 
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material 
weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged 
with governance.  

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses.  However, 
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.  

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the 
Uniform Guidance.  Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 
 
 
 
GILBERT ASSOCIATES, INC.  
Sacramento, California 

May 21, 2019



SAINT JOHN'S PROGRAM FOR REAL CHANGE 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 

20 

SECTION I – SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’S RESULTS 

Financial Statements 

Type of auditor’s report issued: Unmodified

Internal control over financial reporting: 

 Material weakness(es) identified?  Yes  No

 Significant deficiency(ies) identified?  Yes  None reported

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?  Yes  No

Federal Awards 

Internal control over major programs: 

 Material weakness(es) identified?  Yes  No

 Significant deficiency(ies) identified?  Yes  None reported

Type of auditor’s report issued: Unmodified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be 
reported in accordance with section 2 CFR 
200.516(a)?  Yes  No

Identification of major programs: 

Name of Federal Program or Cluster CFDA Number

SNAP to Skills Employment Training Program 10.561

Dollar threshold used to identify Type A programs: $750,000

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?  Yes  No

SECTION II – FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS 

None noted. 

SECTION III – FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

None noted. 



SAINT JOHN'S PROGRAM FOR REAL CHANGE 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 

21 

SECTION IV – STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS 

Recommendation 
Current 
Status 

Organization 
Explanation 

If Not 
Implemented 

2017-1 – FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDING 
– SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCY

Condition: As the Organization has grown and the needs 
have become more complex, the Organization has been 
unable to sustain consistency at the CFO or Controller 
level. This adds risk of error to the closing of the 
accounting records and processing of the day to day 
operations. During the close of the audit for the year ended 
December 31, 2017, it was noted that a journal entry was 
proposed by the client that was incorrect. The incorrect 
entry increased accounts receivable and revenue instead of 
the opposite. 

Saint John’s 
management has 
taken and 
continues to take 
steps to improve 
attraction and 
retention of 
competent and 
qualified 
accounting and 
finance personnel. 

N/A 



ALBH Memorial Fund Grant Budget 2020 
 

EXPENSES TOTAL COST AMOUNT ALLOCATED FROM 
PROPOSED ALBH MEMORIAL 
FUND GRANT 

Daily meals and snacks for a 12-
month period:  Food Costs 

313,000 10,000 

TOTAL 313,000 10,000 
 



1

Janelle Oishi

From: Janelle Oishi
Sent: Friday, November 1, 2019 12:35 PM
To: debessim@yahoo.com; esimmons52@icloud.com; Pamjohnsonsscc@gmail.com
Subject: ALBHMF Grant – Notification of Incomplete Application
Attachments: 05-AG Reg Status Correct.pdf

Hello, 
This notice is to confirm receipt of an application for the 2020 Ann Land and Bertha Henschel Memorial Fund Grant. In 
accordance with the guidelines of the application, you are receiving this notice for the following reason(s): 
You are missing the following document(s) as your application’s attachments did not reflect the required document: 
o The names of the members of your organization’s board of directors and of your organization’s officers. 

 You have attached a second copy of your organizational chart instead of the required document. Please 
provide the required document. 

 
o Verification that your organization (1) is currently registered and in good standing with the Registry of Charitable Trusts maintained 

by the California Attorney General or (2) is not required to register. 
 

 Attached you will find a printout of the correct page from the California Attorney General’s website Registry Verification 
Search (http://rct.doj.ca.gov/Verification/Web/Search.aspx?facility=Y)  The correct “Record Type” on the site is the 
“Charity Registration”. 

 Your status shows current standing, so no further action is required. 
 
 

o A copy of your organization’s most recent audit and any corrective actions or recommendations suggested by the auditor. OR 
provide a copy of your organization’s most-recent annual financial statements, signed by your organization’s treasurer AND 
by the preparer, whether a CPA or bookkeeper. 

 You have included your organization’s most recent financial statements; however they are unsigned and not for 
the most recent completed year (2018). Please provide the required document. 

 

The Commission is unable to fund agencies submitting incomplete applications. If the missing item(s) listed 
above are received by Wednesday, November 6, it will be provided to the Commission for review and 
possible consideration as a late submission.  
 
If you wish to be considered for funding, your attendance is required at the annual funding meeting on 
Wednesday, November 13, 2019 at 9:00am in the City of Sacramento Council Chambers, City Hall, 915 I 
Street. 
Thank you; please reply to this email if you have any questions. 
 
 
Thank you, 
Janelle Oishi 
Program Specialist 
Department of Youth, Parks and Community Enrichment 
915 I Street, 3rd floor, 
Sacramento, CA 95814 
916.808.1016 



2

       
E-mail correspondence with the City of Sacramento (and attachments, if any) may be subject to the California Public Records Act, and as 
such may therefore be subject to public disclosure unless otherwise exempt under the Act. 
 



ALBH	Grant	Application	2019
City	of	Sacramento

	Submitted	On:
October	22nd,	2019	@	5:47pm

Organization	Name South	Sacramento	Christian	Center

Physcial	Address 7710	Stockton	Blvd.
Sacramento
CA
95823

Mailing	address	different	from
physical	address?

No

Name Deborah	Simmons

Title Co-Pastor

Phone	Number 916-835-6791

E-Mail	Address debessim@yahoo.com

Name Bishop	Esley	Simmons

Phone	Number 916-718-4294

E-Mail	Address esimmons52@icloud.com

Name Pamela	Johnson

Title Bookkeeper

Phone	Number 916-681-6791

E-Mail	Address Pamjohnsonsscc@gmail.com

Please	indicate	below	the
services	you	are	requesting

Food

Indicate	the	dollar	amount
requested	for	Food

$10,000

#	of	clients	that	will	be	served	by
the	Ann	Land	&	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds

12,000-15,000	clients

Total	Amount	Requested $10,000.00

The	amount	requested	will	be
applied	to	the	following.

On-going	Program

The	funds	requested	will	be	used
to	serve	the	following	(please
check	all	that	apply)

Families
Women
Men
Children



Will	other	funds	supplement	Ann
Land	and	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds	request	for	this
program?

Yes

Briefly	explain We	will	seek	funds	through	donations	of	cash,	canned	goods	and	other	non-perishable	items.	We
ask	restaurants	(e.g.	Panera	Bread,	Starbucks,	etc.),	grocers	and	farmers	for	donations	of	fruits
and	vegetables.

Did	you	lose	any	funding	in	2019
from	any	source?

No

Do	you	anticipate,	or	have	you
been	notified,	that	you	will	lose
funding	in	2020?

No

Are	you	aware	of,	or	do	you
anticipate	receiving,	any	new
sources	of	funding	in	2020,	for
example,	stimulus	or	other
funds?

No

List	the	hours	that	programs
funded	by	Ann	Land	and	Bertha
Henschel	Memorial	Funds	will	be
available	to	clients.

The	food	dispensing	service	will	be	open	on	Saturdays	and	Wednesdays	between	11am	and	1pm
five	days	a	week.	Hours	will	expand	as	the	need	and	resources	dictate.

Describe	the	geographic	service
area,	within	the	City,	when	you
will	spend	the	requested	funds.

South	Sacramento	Christian	Center’s	dispensing	facility	is	in	the	95822,	95823,	95824	and	95828
zip	codes.	The	facility	serves	any	destitute	or	needy	person	who	shows	up	in	need	of	food.	This
area	has	high	rates	of	homelessness,	and	unemployment.

Please	upload	a	brief	description
(no	more	than	two	pages)	of	the
program	or	service	for	which	you
are	requesting	funds.	Explain	how
the	program	or	service
addresses	the	mission	and
funding	priorities	of	the	Ann	Land
and	Bertha	Henschel	Memorial
Funds.

https://seam.ly/EaFQUuRR

Mission	Statement	–
Organizational	Goal

SSCC’s	mission	is	to	is	a	church	for	all	regardless	of	language,	culture,	ethnicity	or	background.
We	aim	to	nourish	our	spirits,	souls	and	bodies	and	have	meaningful	relationships	with	our
members	and	the	community.	
SSCC	is	a	family	church	with	a	teaching	mission.

Our	goal	is	to	build	a	strong	ministry	of	inclusion	that	has	a	Godly	and	positive	effect	on	its
people.	We	do	this	through	teaching	and	hands	on	interactions.	We	strive	to	a	persons,	faith,	trust
and	confidence.

Date	incorporated	or	otherwise
formed

11
5
1989



Briefly	describe	other	services
and	programs	your	organization
currently	provides.

Healthy	Eating	and	Living	campaign	which	we	call	“Fitness	Sundays.	We	educate	members	on
fitness,	healthy	eating	including	beverages.
“Building	On	Spiritual	Substance”	trains	Youth	how	to	prosper	spiritually	and	economically	by
birthing	their	dreams	and	visions.	
“Men	of	Valor”	ministry	develops	men	spiritually/morally.	
Women	by	Design	women’s	ministry	builds	a	woman’s	spirit,	soul,	mind	and	body.
Our	Multidisciplinary	team	assists	people	in	finding	housing,	jobs,	food,	and	social	services

Private	or	Corporate	Donations
(Amount)

$0

Private	or	Corporate	Donations
(%	of	Total	Funding)

0

United	Way	(Amount) $0

United	Way	(%	of	Total	Funding) 0

SETA	(Amount) $0

SETA	(%	of	Total	Funding) 0

Federal	Assistance	(Amount) $0

Federal	Assistance	(%	of	Total
Funding)

0

State	Assistance	(Amount) $0

State	Assistance	(%	of	Total
Funding)

0

City	or	County	Assistance	(not
from	the	Ann	Land	Bertha
Henschel	Memorial	Funds)
(Amount)

$0

City	or	County	Assistance	(not
from	the	Ann	Land	Bertha
Henschel	Memorial	Funds)	(%	of
Total	Funding)

0

Grants	(Amount) $0

Grants	(%	of	Total	Funding) 0

Ann	Land	and	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds	(Amount)

$10,000

Ann	Land	and	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds	(%	of	Total
Funding)

95%

Other	(briefly	describe	below)
(Amount)

$500

Other	(briefly	describe	below)	(%
of	Total	Funding)

5%



Total	Amount $10,500.00

Other	Income	Sources Donations	of	cash,	canned	goods	and	other	non-perishable	items.	We	ask	restaurants	(e.g.
Panera	Bread,	Starbucks,	etc.),	grocers	and	farmers	for	donations	of	fruits	and	vegetables.

The	names	of	the	members	of
your	organization’s	board	of
directors	and	of	your
organization’s	officers

https://seam.ly/8WBIitEg

An	organizational	chart	or
description	of	your	organization’s
management	structure

https://seam.ly/1RswjdKN

Verification	of	your
organization’s	not-for-profit
status	(letter	from	IRS	confirming
§	501(c)(3)	status)

https://seam.ly/T1WnVOL1

Verification	that	your
organization	(1)	is	currently
registered	and	in	good	standing
with	the	Registry	of	Charitable
Trusts	maintained	by	the
California	Attorney	General	or	(2)
is	not	required	to	register.

https://seam.ly/1RwyOxH5
https://seam.ly/bbpq543j
https://seam.ly/BjgKG87R
https://seam.ly/RAh3Sagm
https://seam.ly/OFiPLfSe
https://seam.ly/Ywvfgflj
https://seam.ly/3OiE7Nfv
https://seam.ly/OCWVERYP

A	copy	of	your	organization’s
current	business	license	or	a
letter	from	the	City	of
Sacramento	Finance	Department
verifying	your	organization’s
exemption	from	the	City’s
business-operations	tax.	The
Sacramento	City	Code	requires
that	anyone	conducting	business
within	the	City	of	Sacramento
have	a	current	business	license
on	file	with	the	City.	The	City
issues	nonprofit	organizations	a
waiver	letter	in	lieu	of	a	business
license.	A	waiver	letter	can	be
obtained	at	the	Revenue	Counter
in	New	City	Hall,	First	Floor,	Room
1214.	Indicate	your
organization’s	non-profit	status
on	the	application	form.	There	is
no	charge	for	nonprofit
organizations.

https://seam.ly/ODVZUP2c



A	copy	of	your	organization’s
most	recent	audit	and	any
corrective	actions	or
recommendations	suggested	by
the	auditor.	If	you	do	not	have	an
annual	audit,	please	explain	why.
You	must	also	provide	a	copy	of
your	organization’s	most-recent
annual	financial	statements,
signed	by	your	organization’s
treasurer	AND	by	the	preparer,
whether	a	CPA	or	bookkeeper

https://seam.ly/MYzf6uH9

A	budget	sheet	showing	how
awarded	funds	will	be	spent

https://seam.ly/9D1Bxh4s

Signature	Data First	Name:	Deborah
Last	Name:	Simmons
Email	Address:	debessim@yahoo.com

Signed	at:	10/22/2019	02:37PM



Description of Program Services 2020 

Sacramento Christian Center currently provides food through its food and 
clothing distribution program from its facility at 7710 Stockton Boulevard, 
to 1500 – 2000 homeless and underserved, poor, and destitute individuals 
and families each month in the South Sacramento area. Our goal is to 
maintain and enhance our current offering of canned and nonperishable 
food, bread, dairy and other fresh fruits, vegetables along with other 
components of a balanced nutritious meal. Our program also educates 
recipients on healthy eating. We provide nutrition information and eating 
suggestions at our distribution center and our Multidisciplinary Social 
Services Team office. This includes educating our recipients on the 
selection and consumption of healthy meals and beverages.  

Research notes that in order to maintain a healthy lifestyle, it is important 
to consume four to five fruit and vegetables per day. Fresh fruit and 
vegetables can be expensive. We will continue to provide the components 
for balanced meals by selecting and distributing nutritious items through 
our food distribution program. 

Consider the choice of spending $1 to buy fruit and vegetables in 
comparison to spending it for a value meal. This does not make sense for 
a destitute person struggling to make ends meet. Each week that we 
distribute food, we will make sure that the items given out help make as 
many components of a balanced meal as possible. The information given 
will pertain to the items included in the meal container. 

 













Registrant Details
Entity type: Corporate Class as registered with the Secretary of State or based on founding & registration documents.

Organization Name: SOUTH SACRAMENTO CHRISTIAN CENTER CHURCH IRS FEIN: 680186235
Entity Type: Religious SOS/FTB Corporate/Organization Number: 1652600

Registry Status: Exempt - Religious Renewal Due/Exp. Date:
RCT Registration Number: Issue Date: 12/31/1990
Record Type: Charity Registration Effective Date: 12/31/1990
Date This Status: Date of Last Renewal:

Mailing Address
Street: 8017 - 35TH AVE
Street Line 2:
City, State Zip: SACRAMENTO CA 95824

Filings & Correspondence
No Related Documents

Annual Renewal Data
No Annual Renewal Data

Related Registrations & Event Reports
The related records shown below depend on the record type being viewed:

Charity Registrations relate to Professional Fundraising Events which relate to Professional Fundraiser Registrations.
Raffle Registrations relate to Raffle Reports.
Click on the RCT Registration No to navigate to the related record.

No Related Records

HOME  ABOUT  MEDIA  CAREERS  REGULATIONS  RESOURCES  PROGRAMS  CONTACT

https://oag.ca.gov/home
https://oag.ca.gov/about
https://oag.ca.gov/media
https://oag.ca.gov/careers
https://oag.ca.gov/meetings/public-participation
https://oag.ca.gov/services-info
https://oag.ca.gov/programs
https://oag.ca.gov/contact












Pastors 
Bishop Esley B. Simmons, Sr. 

Dr. Deborah C. Simmons 
 

    
                                                                                                                                                                                     
 

7710 Stockton Blvd 
Sacramento, CA 95823 
Phone:  (916) 681-6791   
Email: info@southsacchristiancenter.org 

 
 

 
GO YE THEREFORE, AND TEACH   ALL NATIONS, BAPTIZING THEM IN THE NAME OF THE FATHER AND OF THE SON AND OF THE HOLY SPIRIT.”   
MATTHEW 28:19                                                                                                                                                                                           
 

October 22, 2019 
 
To Who It May Concern: 
 
South Sacramento Christian Center is not required to have annual audits. So we have not included a copy 
with this application. 
 
Should you have further questions or concerns, please contact me at the number above. 
 
Thank you,  
 
 
Deborah Simmons 
Co-Pastor 
 
 







South Sacramento Christian Center 
Ann Land Grand Grant 

Monthly Operating Costs 
2020 

 
Description Cost Total 
EXPENSES MONTHLY ANNUAL 

Food $834 $10,000 
   

PERSONNEL   
2 Staff (Volunteers) $0 $0 
GRAND TOTAL $834 $10,000 

 



ALBH	Grant	Application	2019
City	of	Sacramento

	Submitted	On:
October	28th,	2019	@	1:53pm

Organization	Name South	Sacramento	Interfaith	Partnership	Food	Closet

Physcial	Address 5625	24th	Street
Sacramento
CA
95822

Mailing	address	different	from
physical	address?

No

Name Lori	Sugar

Title Food	Closet	Manager

Phone	Number 916-428-5290

E-Mail	Address lsugar@ssipfoodcloset.org

Name Lorretta	Fransham

Phone	Number 916-428-5290

E-Mail	Address retfransham@gmail.com

Name Lori	Sugar

Title Food	Closet	Manager

Phone	Number 916-428-5290

E-Mail	Address lsugar@ssipfoodcloset.org

Please	indicate	below	the
services	you	are	requesting

Food

Indicate	the	dollar	amount
requested	for	Food

$12,000.00

#	of	clients	that	will	be	served	by
the	Ann	Land	&	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds

Approximately	60,000	plus	per	year

Total	Amount	Requested $12,000.00

The	amount	requested	will	be
applied	to	the	following.

On-going	Program

The	funds	requested	will	be	used
to	serve	the	following	(please
check	all	that	apply)

Families
Women
Men
Children



Will	other	funds	supplement	Ann
Land	and	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds	request	for	this
program?

Yes

Briefly	explain We	receive	monetary	support	from	our	member	churches	and	we	have	a	number	of	fundraisers
throughout	the	year

Did	you	lose	any	funding	in	2019
from	any	source?

No

Do	you	anticipate,	or	have	you
been	notified,	that	you	will	lose
funding	in	2020?

No

Are	you	aware	of,	or	do	you
anticipate	receiving,	any	new
sources	of	funding	in	2020,	for
example,	stimulus	or	other
funds?

No

List	the	hours	that	programs
funded	by	Ann	Land	and	Bertha
Henschel	Memorial	Funds	will	be
available	to	clients.

SSIP	Food	Closet	is	open	Monday	through	Friday	from	9am	to	11:30am.	We	are	the	only	one
open	five	days.

Describe	the	geographic	service
area,	within	the	City,	when	you
will	spend	the	requested	funds.

The	geographical	boundaries	of	operation	of	the	Partnership	are	as	follows:	within	City	and
County	of	Sacramento,	south	of	Broadway,	east	of	the	Sacramento	River,	west	of	Elk
Grove/Florin	Road	and	north	of	Sheldon	Road.	We	serve	ten	zip	codes:	95817,	95818,	95820,
95822,	95823,	95824,	95826,	95828,	95831,	95832.

Please	upload	a	brief	description
(no	more	than	two	pages)	of	the
program	or	service	for	which	you
are	requesting	funds.	Explain	how
the	program	or	service
addresses	the	mission	and
funding	priorities	of	the	Ann	Land
and	Bertha	Henschel	Memorial
Funds.

https://seam.ly/wzkJedwt

Mission	Statement	–
Organizational	Goal

The	primary	mission	of	the	SSIP	Food	Closet	is	to	maintain	and	operate	an	emergency	food
distribution	program	to	help	alleviate	food	insecurity	for	South	Sacramento	area	residents.
Partner	faith-based	organizations,	with	assistance	from	local	businesses	and	other	community
members,	provide	the	support	and	resources	for	the	Food	Closet’s	mission.

Date	incorporated	or	otherwise
formed

6
18
1969

Briefly	describe	other	services
and	programs	your	organization
currently	provides.

SSIP	provides	referrals	to	other	food	programs.	We	participate	in	the	Kids	Can	Drive	and	have
an	additional	Thanksgiving	food	distribution	in	collaboration	with	Sacramento	Food	Bank	and
Family	Services.	We	maintain	a	second-hand	book	and	magazine	cart	for	the	clients	use.	We	are
a	USDA	commodities	distribution	site.	We	also	are	the	site	for	an	additional	food	distribution
program	for	the	senior	population.



Private	or	Corporate	Donations
(Amount)

56,121.83

Private	or	Corporate	Donations
(%	of	Total	Funding)

0.55

United	Way	(Amount) 664.23

United	Way	(%	of	Total	Funding) 0.01

SETA	(Amount) 0

SETA	(%	of	Total	Funding) 0

Federal	Assistance	(Amount) 0

Federal	Assistance	(%	of	Total
Funding)

0

State	Assistance	(Amount) 0

State	Assistance	(%	of	Total
Funding)

0

City	or	County	Assistance	(not
from	the	Ann	Land	Bertha
Henschel	Memorial	Funds)
(Amount)

0

City	or	County	Assistance	(not
from	the	Ann	Land	Bertha
Henschel	Memorial	Funds)	(%	of
Total	Funding)

0

Grants	(Amount) 7,025.21

Grants	(%	of	Total	Funding) 0.07

Ann	Land	and	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds	(Amount)

9,200.00

Ann	Land	and	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds	(%	of	Total
Funding)

0.09

Other	(briefly	describe	below)
(Amount)

28,112.76

Other	(briefly	describe	below)	(%
of	Total	Funding)

0.28

Total	Amount $101,124.03

Other	Income	Sources Other	income	is	from	fundraisers	done	during	the	year

The	names	of	the	members	of
your	organization’s	board	of
directors	and	of	your
organization’s	officers

https://seam.ly/YaJrQeto



An	organizational	chart	or
description	of	your	organization’s
management	structure

https://seam.ly/yij0faCT

Verification	of	your
organization’s	not-for-profit
status	(letter	from	IRS	confirming
§	501(c)(3)	status)

https://seam.ly/No3RRKC7

Verification	that	your
organization	(1)	is	currently
registered	and	in	good	standing
with	the	Registry	of	Charitable
Trusts	maintained	by	the
California	Attorney	General	or	(2)
is	not	required	to	register.

https://seam.ly/6Y5OJI6s

A	copy	of	your	organization’s
current	business	license	or	a
letter	from	the	City	of
Sacramento	Finance	Department
verifying	your	organization’s
exemption	from	the	City’s
business-operations	tax.	The
Sacramento	City	Code	requires
that	anyone	conducting	business
within	the	City	of	Sacramento
have	a	current	business	license
on	file	with	the	City.	The	City
issues	nonprofit	organizations	a
waiver	letter	in	lieu	of	a	business
license.	A	waiver	letter	can	be
obtained	at	the	Revenue	Counter
in	New	City	Hall,	First	Floor,	Room
1214.	Indicate	your
organization’s	non-profit	status
on	the	application	form.	There	is
no	charge	for	nonprofit
organizations.

https://seam.ly/98p58n1m

A	copy	of	your	organization’s
most	recent	audit	and	any
corrective	actions	or
recommendations	suggested	by
the	auditor.	If	you	do	not	have	an
annual	audit,	please	explain	why.
You	must	also	provide	a	copy	of
your	organization’s	most-recent
annual	financial	statements,
signed	by	your	organization’s
treasurer	AND	by	the	preparer,
whether	a	CPA	or	bookkeeper

https://seam.ly/p4jxXo10



A	budget	sheet	showing	how
awarded	funds	will	be	spent

https://seam.ly/hot9wVe1

Signature	Data First	Name:	Georgianne
Last	Name:	Becker
Email	Address:	becker4ever@att.net

Signed	at:	10/28/2019	10:50AM



SSIP Food Closet is celebrating fifty (50) years of continuous service to the 
food insecure in the South Sacramento area. Our mission has always been 
to provide enough food for a family for three meals a day for three days.  
 
We do not turn anyone away. Individuals, families, homeless are all able to 
come to the food closet and receive food. USDA products are available to 
clients every day if needed. In addition we have a truck from Sacramento 
Food Bank and Family Services that gives out an additional forty pound 
bag of groceries to eligible senior citizens living in the area served.  
 
We are supported by eleven (11) area churches.  In addition, we have 
developed a strong and supportive relationship with the Sacramento Food 
Bank and Family Services.  This has allowed us to use the funds we 
receive to purchase nutritionally dense food for pennies on the dollar thus 
providing families with more healthier food choices. 
 
We’ve cultivated a very strong relationship with several area grocery stores 
that schedule us to pick up a variety of foods five days a week. These 
donations add a variety to the food we hand out and sometimes allowing 
for specific requests i.e. diapers, milk, pet food, etc. 
 
If selected for the Land/Henschel grant the monies will support the monthly 
purchase of food we continue to need to make thus freeing up other 
monetary donations to be allocated for long range planning for the food 
closet.  As much as we’d like to be out of business due to no need for our 
services we don’t see that happening. In fact, the need continues to 
increase particularly in the homeless population.  This group requires some 
planning as their ability to store and/or prepare food can be limited making 
the ability to provide for their needs a little more unique.  We are 
strategically planning for the future of the food closet to insure the mission 
continues and that we are able to adapt and meet the needs of the growing 
food insecure population.  



SOUTH SACRAMENTO INTERFAITH PARTNERSHIP 
ROSTER OF BOARD REPRESENTATIVES 

 

Revised 9/1/2019 

FOOD CLOSET 5625 24TH STREET  95822 916-428-5290 
 www.ssipfoodcloset.org  
   Lori Sugar lsugar@ssipfoodcloset.org 916-425-1567 Cell 
   Manager   
   
BETHANY PRESBYTERIAN 5625 24TH STREET   95822 916-428-5281 
   Rev.Bill McGuinness  1-408-242-9338 Cell 
   Kathy McGuinness Kathymcg1101 1-408-242-9377 
 Kathymeg1101@yahoo.com  
   
CENTENNIAL UMC 5401 FREEPORT BLVD.  95822 916-452-4477 
   Rev.Renae Extrum Fernandez pastorrenae@centennial.com  
   James Chew 77 Parkshore Circle. 95831 916-395-8622 
 jameschew@sbcglobal.net  
   Loretta Fransham 7220 Sunsweet Lane.  95828 916-844-4081 
   Board Chair retfransham@gmail.com  
   Yvonne Correa 699 Rivergate Way  95831 916-421-8642 
 taichi699@yahoo.com  
   
FAITH PRESBYTERIAN 625 FLORIN RD.   95831 916-428-3439 
   Georgianne Becker 2358 Cork Circle.  95822 916-601-6171 cell 
   Fund Development Chair becker4ever@att.net  
   Sally Ravas 843 Klein Way.  95831 916-428-7432 
 sally.ravas@gmail.com  
   Tom Busch 740 Westlite Circle 95831 916-712-3162 cell 
   Finance Committee Chair tabusch46@gmail.com   
   
FLORIN UMC 7560 FLORIN RD.  95628 916-421-1876 
   Rev.Gail Chiew pastorgailchiewcomcast.net  
   Chuck Snyder 9625 Gage Street Elk Grove 95624 916-835-6268 cell 
   Food Closet Operations Co-chair lcdksnyder@gmailcom  
   
FRUITRIDGE CHRISTIAN CHURCH 4445 FRUITRIDGE RD. 95820 916-456-4700 
   Rev.Eva Bray eva.L.Bray@gmail.com 209-400-1255 cell 
   
   
HOPE UMC 6161 VALLEY HIGH DR.  95823 916-395-0237 
   Rev.Tikiko Lesuma hopeunited@att.net  
   Mrs.Joyce Forrest 7459 Villajoy Way.  95823 916-422-9114 
 (no email address)  
   
LUTHERAN CHURCH OF THE MASTER 1900 POTRERO WAY.  95822 916-452-5536 
   Rev.Linda Boston leboston6@gmail.com       or  
 office@LCMsacramento.org  

mailto:Kathymeg1101@yahoo.com
mailto:tabusch46@gmail.com
mailto:leboston6@gmail.com


SOUTH SACRAMENTO INTERFAITH PARTNERSHIP 
ROSTER OF BOARD REPRESENTATIVES 

 

Revised 9/1/2019 

PARKSIDE COMMUNITY UCC 5700 S.LAND PARK DR.   95822 916-421-0492 
   Rev. Elizabeth Griswold elizabeth.parkside@gmail.com  
   Pastor-at-Large   
   Rev. Bonnie Rambob bonnierambob.parkside@gmail.com  
   Margaret Brown 2707 14th. Street.  95818 916-443-2971 
   Communications Chair   
   
PRINCE OF PEACE 7501 FLEMING BLVD.  95823 916-422-2350 
   Rev.Mary Fleming pop2@att.net  
   Arthur Crane 8304 Briarcliff Way.  95826 916-383-3936 
   
SACRAMENTO JAPANESE UMC 6929 FRANKLIN BLVD.  95823 916-832-1055 
   Rev.Motoe Yamada Foor revmotoe@sacjumc.com  
   Shigeko Shibata 31 Southlite Circle.  95831 916-395-2550 
   Treasurer Shigekos@comcast.net  
   Wayne Shimizu 112 Arbusto Circle 916-208-6231 
   Long Range Planning Chair w.shimizu@att.net  
   Kimi Ronay 784 Bell Russell Way   95831 916-427-3729 
 kimironay@icloud.com  
   
ST ANTHONY CATHOLIC CHURCH 660 FLORIN RD.  95831 916-428-5678 
   Leonor Alvarez 18 El Morro Ct. , 95831 916-531-6815 
 Leonormedina44@netscape.net  
  Pat Aguiar Ramirez 19 Bliss River Court.  95831 916-384-7254 
   al2pat@sbcglobal.net  
   
WESLEY UMC 5010 15TH. AVE.  95820 916-456-4029 
   
   
   Agnes Buell  916-455-5984 
   Secretary Ralph.buell@gmail.com  
   
   Bob Becker 2358 Cork Circle 916-425-6894 
   Food Closet Operations Co-chair alwaysabecker@att.net  
   
   
   
   
   

 

mailto:w.shimizu@att.net
mailto:Ralph.buell@gmail.com






















FOOD PURCHASES FOR 2019 COST

January 1,004.36
February 1,463.18
March 2,852.82
April 626.31
May 628.26
June 697.80
July 536.73
August 1,543.63
September 487.88

Total to date 9,840.97

Our purchases average about $1,000 per month to date.  Monthly expenses
vary due to product availability and cost through the Sacramento
Food Bank & Family Services.  We strive to provide the most
nutritiously dense food available. In November our cost will increase
as we have an extra distribution for Thanksgiving that includes turkeys and all
the "fixins". Last year we were able to supply this holiday dinner for over
500 families.
If chosen for the Land Henschel Grant the funds would 
continue to be spent on nutritious foods incorporating fresh
vegetables, fruits, dairy and meats as available.  This additional
funding specifically dedicated for food will allow SSIP to continue 
long range planning to insure the food insecure needs will continue to be met



1

Janelle Oishi

From: Janelle Oishi
Sent: Friday, November 1, 2019 12:55 PM
To: ssoroya@ucla.edu; mcadeiras@ucdavis.edu
Subject: ALBHMF Grant – Notification of Incomplete Application

Hello, 
This notice is to confirm receipt of an application for the 2020 Ann Land and Bertha Henschel Memorial Fund Grant. In 
accordance with the guidelines of the application, you are receiving this notice for the following reason(s): 
You are missing the following document(s) as your application’s attachments did not reflect the required document: 

 
o A copy of your organization’s current business license or a letter from the City of Sacramento Finance Department verifying 

your organization’s exemption from the City’s business-operations tax. The Sacramento City Code requires that anyone 
conducting business within the City of Sacramento have a current business license on file with the City. The City issues nonprofit 
organizations a waiver letter in lieu of a business license. A waiver letter can be obtained at the Revenue Counter in New City Hall, 
First Floor, Room 1214. Indicate your organization’s non-profit status on the application form. There is no charge for nonprofit 
organizations. 

 You did not include the required letter. Please follow the steps outlined in our FAQ page 
(http://www.cityofsacramento.org/Clerk/Legislative-Bodies/Boards-and-
Commissions/AnnLandandBerthaHenschelMemorialFundCommission/ALBH-FAQ)  to obtain the required 
documentation. Please provide the required document. 

 
The Commission is unable to fund agencies submitting incomplete applications. If the missing item(s) listed 
above are received by Wednesday, November 6, it will be provided to the Commission for review and 
possible consideration as a late submission.  
 
If you wish to be considered for funding, your attendance is required at the annual funding meeting on 
Wednesday, November 13, 2019 at 9:00am in the City of Sacramento Council Chambers, City Hall, 915 I 
Street. 
Thank you; please reply to this email if you have any questions. 
 
 
Thank you, 
Janelle Oishi 
Program Specialist 
Department of Youth, Parks and Community Enrichment 
915 I Street, 3rd floor, 
Sacramento, CA 95814 
916.808.1016 

       
E-mail correspondence with the City of Sacramento (and attachments, if any) may be subject to the California Public Records Act, and as 
such may therefore be subject to public disclosure unless otherwise exempt under the Act. 
 



ALBH	Grant	Application	2019
City	of	Sacramento

	Submitted	On:
October	28th,	2019	@	7:51pm

Organization	Name UC	Davis	Health	Division	of	Cardiology	Heart	Failure

Physcial	Address 2315	Stockton	Blvd
Sacramento
CA
95817

Mailing	address	different	from
physical	address?

Yes

Mailing	Address 4860	Y	Street,	Ste	0200
Sacramento
CA
95817

Name Saad	Soroya

Title Consultant

Phone	Number 9168930157

E-Mail	Address ssoroya@ucla.edu

Name Dr.	Martin	Cadeiras

Phone	Number 9167470407

E-Mail	Address mcadeiras@ucdavis.edu

Name Saad	Soroya

Title Consultant

Phone	Number 9168930157

E-Mail	Address ssoroya@ucla.edu

Please	indicate	below	the
services	you	are	requesting

Healthcare

Indicate	the	dollar	amount
requested	for	Healthcare

20,000

#	of	clients	that	will	be	served	by
the	Ann	Land	&	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds

350-500	people	in	direct	consults.	Education	and	mental	health	program	will	be	free	for	the	larger
public.	There	is	no	cap	on	that	limit	as	it	will	be	perpetually	available	at	end	of	development	of	the
platform

Total	Amount	Requested $20,000.00

The	amount	requested	will	be
applied	to	the	following.

New	Program



The	funds	requested	will	be	used
to	serve	the	following	(please
check	all	that	apply)

Families
Women
Men
Children

Will	other	funds	supplement	Ann
Land	and	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds	request	for	this
program?

Yes

Briefly	explain UC	Davis	Health	will	match	the	funding	amount	requested

Did	you	lose	any	funding	in	2019
from	any	source?

No

Do	you	anticipate,	or	have	you
been	notified,	that	you	will	lose
funding	in	2020?

No

Are	you	aware	of,	or	do	you
anticipate	receiving,	any	new
sources	of	funding	in	2020,	for
example,	stimulus	or	other
funds?

No

List	the	hours	that	programs
funded	by	Ann	Land	and	Bertha
Henschel	Memorial	Funds	will	be
available	to	clients.

400	Hours	of	cardiology	E-consults	along	with	an	ongoing	education	and	monitoring	support
program	post	consult.	

Describe	the	geographic	service
area,	within	the	City,	when	you
will	spend	the	requested	funds.

We	aim	to	provide	consults	through	with	~15	free	community	clinics	spread	throughout
Sacramento	along	with	15	UC	Davis	Health	affiliated	clinics	for	homeless	and	low	income
populations.	They	are	divided	by	zones	based	on	studies	conducted	by	the	city	determining	the
populous	zones.	
Hot	Zones:	Carmichael,	Rancho	Cordova,	Arden-Arcade,	Downtown	Sacramento,	Midtown-East
Sacramento,	South	Sacramento,	and	areas	near	the	American	River
Warm	Zones:	Tahoe	Park,	Oak	Park,	Land	Park,	Del	Paso	Heights,	Ro

Please	upload	a	brief	description
(no	more	than	two	pages)	of	the
program	or	service	for	which	you
are	requesting	funds.	Explain	how
the	program	or	service
addresses	the	mission	and
funding	priorities	of	the	Ann	Land
and	Bertha	Henschel	Memorial
Funds.

https://seam.ly/sWXz7CDI

Mission	Statement	–
Organizational	Goal

UC	Davis	Health	is	improving	lives	and	transforming	health	care	by	providing	excellent	patient
care,	conducting	groundbreaking	research,	fostering	innovative,	interprofessional	education,	and
creating	dynamic,	productive	partnerships	with	the	community.

Date	incorporated	or	otherwise
formed

5
3
1950



Briefly	describe	other	services
and	programs	your	organization
currently	provides.

UC	Davis	Health	is	an	academic	medical	center	that	provides	various	clinical	services	that	include:
UC	Davis	Comprehensive	Cancer	Center,	one	of	only	41	National	Cancer	Institute-designated
comprehensive	centers	nationwide
State-of-the-art	emergency	departments	that	include	the	region''s	only	Level	I	adult	and
pediatric	trauma	centers
The	internationally	recognized	UC	Davis	MIND	Institute,	devoted	to	finding	treatments	and	cures
for	neurodevelopmental	disorders
UC	Davis	Children''s	Hospital,	a	nat

Private	or	Corporate	Donations
(Amount)

40,000

Private	or	Corporate	Donations
(%	of	Total	Funding)

16%

United	Way	(Amount) 0

United	Way	(%	of	Total	Funding) 0

SETA	(Amount) 0

SETA	(%	of	Total	Funding) 0

Federal	Assistance	(Amount) 0

Federal	Assistance	(%	of	Total
Funding)

0

State	Assistance	(Amount) 0

State	Assistance	(%	of	Total
Funding)

0

City	or	County	Assistance	(not
from	the	Ann	Land	Bertha
Henschel	Memorial	Funds)
(Amount)

0

City	or	County	Assistance	(not
from	the	Ann	Land	Bertha
Henschel	Memorial	Funds)	(%	of
Total	Funding)

0

Grants	(Amount) 200,000

Grants	(%	of	Total	Funding) 84%

Ann	Land	and	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds	(Amount)

0

Ann	Land	and	Bertha	Henschel
Memorial	Funds	(%	of	Total
Funding)

0

Other	(briefly	describe	below)
(Amount)

0



Other	(briefly	describe	below)	(%
of	Total	Funding)

0

Total	Amount $240,000.00

Other	Income	Sources We	are	describing	our	particular	labs/divisions	funding	amount	above.	As	a	hospital	we	have
significantly	more	but	that	isn''t	accessible	directly	by	us.	All	monies	coming	in	to	the	health
system	is	attached	below	in	our	Annual	Financial	Report.

The	names	of	the	members	of
your	organization’s	board	of
directors	and	of	your
organization’s	officers

https://seam.ly/KxLbpXGi

An	organizational	chart	or
description	of	your	organization’s
management	structure

https://seam.ly/TwEEmxMd

Verification	of	your
organization’s	not-for-profit
status	(letter	from	IRS	confirming
§	501(c)(3)	status)

https://seam.ly/OdbS1QAf

Verification	that	your
organization	(1)	is	currently
registered	and	in	good	standing
with	the	Registry	of	Charitable
Trusts	maintained	by	the
California	Attorney	General	or	(2)
is	not	required	to	register.

https://seam.ly/RwXxDa7f

A	copy	of	your	organization’s
current	business	license	or	a
letter	from	the	City	of
Sacramento	Finance	Department
verifying	your	organization’s
exemption	from	the	City’s
business-operations	tax.	The
Sacramento	City	Code	requires
that	anyone	conducting	business
within	the	City	of	Sacramento
have	a	current	business	license
on	file	with	the	City.	The	City
issues	nonprofit	organizations	a
waiver	letter	in	lieu	of	a	business
license.	A	waiver	letter	can	be
obtained	at	the	Revenue	Counter
in	New	City	Hall,	First	Floor,	Room
1214.	Indicate	your
organization’s	non-profit	status
on	the	application	form.	There	is
no	charge	for	nonprofit
organizations.

https://seam.ly/OMq9HT4Z



A	copy	of	your	organization’s
most	recent	audit	and	any
corrective	actions	or
recommendations	suggested	by
the	auditor.	If	you	do	not	have	an
annual	audit,	please	explain	why.
You	must	also	provide	a	copy	of
your	organization’s	most-recent
annual	financial	statements,
signed	by	your	organization’s
treasurer	AND	by	the	preparer,
whether	a	CPA	or	bookkeeper

https://seam.ly/ocHqcyPx

A	budget	sheet	showing	how
awarded	funds	will	be	spent

https://seam.ly/I25VUZTk

Signature	Data First	Name:	Saad
Last	Name:	Soroya
Email	Address:	ssoroya@ucla.edu

Signed	at:	10/28/2019	02:58PM



Our division focuses on treating patients with heart disease.  However patients that fall through 

the safety net are primarily homeless or those on medi-cal/medicaid or low income who are 

unable to see specialists on time if ever. With this funding amount, our team plans to pilot a low 

cost E-consult program for specialist services to the community offering same day specialist 

services for free. In accordance with the foundations mission of benefiting of destitute men, 

women and children of the city, this program is intended to bridge the gap between marginalized 

communities and specialist care, education and preventative programs. Through the funding, 

we aim to provide:  

1. E-consults to individuals directly for cardiology with the intent to expand to other service 

specialties. 

2. Specialist to Primary Care e-consults 

3. Education program development for preventative care including nutrition, behavioral and 

mental health accessible to everyone at the conclusion of the program.  

4. In person support programs ( this phase is undefined, but will be expanded on amount of 

funding) 

 



2019-2020 Community Advisory Board 

Leadership 

○ Chris Seward – Chair 
○ Jose Altamirano – Vice Chair 
○ Terri Galvan – Secretary 
○ Monica Norton Miller – Past Chair 

Members 

○ Neptaly Aguilera 
○ Greg Asher 
○ David Banuelos 
○ Kevron Bryant 
○ Gina Castillon 
○ Simi Claire 
○ Catherine Curran 
○ Tera Flores Hannah 
○ Ryan Harrison 
○ Yasaman Kavousi 
○ Bill Knowlton 
○ Patrick Le 
○ Frank Louie  
○ David Nelson 
○ Kate Ross 
○ Matt Van Donsel 
○ Ta-Chen Wang 

 



UC Davis Health Executive Leadership 

 

David Lubarsky, M.D., M.B.A. 
Vice Chancellor, Human Health Sciences 
Chief Executive Officer, UC Davis Health 
Lubarsky oversees UC Davis Health’s academic, research and clinical programs, including the 
School of Medicine, the Betty Irene Moore School of Nursing, the 1,000-member physician 
practice group, and UC Davis Medical Center. 

 

Lars Berglund, M.D., Ph.D. 
On sabbatical, will return December 2019 
Associate Vice Chancellor, Biomedical Research 
Vice Dean, Research 
Berglund oversees all aspects of the School of Medicine’s research portfolio, with responsibility 
for strategic planning and representing the school at the institutional and national level. 

https://health.ucdavis.edu/leadership/bios/lubarsky_bio.html
https://health.ucdavis.edu/leadership/bios/berglund_bio.html


 
Allison Brashear, M.D., M.B.A. 
Dean, School of Medicine 
Brashear was appointed dean of the UC Davis School of Medicine in April 2019. She oversees 
one of the nation’s top research, academic and medical training institutions, with 761 full-time 
faculty and approximately 450 students. 

 
Stephen J. Cavanagh, Ph.D., M.P.A., R.N. 
Dean, Betty Irene Moore School of Nursing 
Cavanagh was appointed dean of the Betty Irene Moore School of Nursing at UC Davis in July 
2019. He oversees one of the nation’s top 50 graduate nursing schools, with approximately 40 
full-time faculty and more than 320 students. 

 
Colleen E. Clancy, Ph.D. 
Associate Vice Chancellor, Academic Personnel 
Clancy oversees academic recruitment, appointment, onboarding, merit and promotion review, 
faculty development and mentoring. 

https://health.ucdavis.edu/leadership/bios/brashear_bio.html
https://health.ucdavis.edu/leadership/bios/cavanagh_bio.html
https://health.ucdavis.edu/leadership/bios/clancy_bio.html


 
Tim Maurice, M.B.A. 
Chief Financial Officer, UC Davis Health 
Maurice is responsible for overall financial operations of the health system. 

 
Chong Porter 
Associate Vice Chancellor, Health Sciences Development and Alumni Relations 
Porter is responsible for enhancing the culture of philanthropy at UC Davis Health and 
expanding the base of donor support through alumni relations and community engagement. 

 
Mark E. Servis, M.D. 
Vice Dean, Medical Education 
Servis leads the Office of Medical Education and is responsible for all aspects of undergraduate 
medical education, including admissions and student support services. He works collaboratively 
with faculty on medical school curriculum. 

https://health.ucdavis.edu/leadership/bios/maurice_bio.html
https://health.ucdavis.edu/leadership/bios/porter_bio.html
https://health.ucdavis.edu/leadership/bios/servis_bio.html


 
Brad Simmons 
Interim Chief Executive Officer, UC Davis Medical Center 
Simmons joined UC Davis in 2016 as chief operating officer of the medical center, with 
responsibilities for a wide variety of operational, logistical and patient support services. 

 
Steven Telliano 
Assistant Vice Chancellor, Strategic Communications 
Telliano is the academic health system’s chief communications officer, responsible for strategy 
and professional staff in media relations, marketing, brand management, digital outreach, 
internal communications and related areas. 

 
Hendry Ton, M.D., M.S. 
Interim Associate Vice Chancellor, Diversity and Inclusion 
Ton is responsible for creating, promoting and fostering an organization that values 
development, diversity and growth opportunities for all employees at UC Davis Health. 

https://health.ucdavis.edu/leadership/bios/simmons_bio.html
https://health.ucdavis.edu/leadership/bios/telliano_bio.html
https://health.ucdavis.edu/leadership/bios/ton_bio.html


 
David Wisner, M.D. 
Associate Dean, Clinical Affairs 
Director, Practice Management Board 
Wisner is responsible for designing the structure, rules, responsibilities, funding needs and 
physician medical practice goals for UC Davis Health. 
 

 

 

Our Path Forward 

At the end of 2015, UC Davis Health launched a comprehensive and inclusive process 
to tap into the broad, diverse knowledge of the entire community to stimulate new and 
unique ideas for its next strategic plan. 

Throughout 2016, hundreds of members of the UC Davis Health family, as well as 
external friends and partners, took part in conversations and provided valuable input 
into charting a long-term course for the future that will continue the momentum 
underway to solidify UC Davis Health’s position as a top-tier health care organization. In 
January 2017, UC Davis Health launched six new strategic plan goals: 

1. Lead Person-Centered Care in the best way, at the best time, in the best place, 
and with the best team 

2. Reimagine Education by cultivating diverse, transdisciplinary, life-long learners 
who will lead transformation in health care to advance well-being and equity for 
all 

3. Accelerate Innovative Research to improve lives and reduce the burden of 
disease through the discovery, implementation and dissemination of new 
knowledge 

4. Improve Population Health through the use of big data and precision health 
5. Transform Our Culture by engaging everyone with compassion and inclusion, 

by inspiring innovative ideas, and by empowering each other 

https://health.ucdavis.edu/leadership/bios/wisner.html


6. Promote Sustainability through shared goals, balanced priorities and 
investments in our workforce and in our community 

 









 



17/18  

Medical  
Centers
Report



UC Health is rooted in its 
three missions of patient 
care, teaching and research. 
They come together in a 
powerful way to improve the 
lives of people in California 
and beyond. From medical 
innovations and clinical 
trials to the high-quality, 
compassionate health care  
in our hospitals and clinics,  
UC pushes the boundaries  
of medicine forward.



 U N I V E R S I T Y  O F  C A L I F O R N I A

 Medical Centers  
 17/18 Annual Financial Report

 T A B L E  O F  C O N T E N T S

 3  Letter from the Executive Vice President

  Medical Centers
 4 The University of California, Davis Medical Center

 8  The University of California, Irvine Medical Center

 12 The University of California, Los Angeles Medical Center

 16   The University of California, San Diego Medical Center

 20   The University of California, San Francisco Medical Center 

 and Children’s Hospital and Research Center Oakland

 26 Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

 52  Report of Independent Auditors

  Financial Statements, University of California Medical Centers
 54 Statements of Net Position

 56   Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

 58   Statements of Cash Flows

 62  Notes to Financial Statements

 110 Required Supplementary Information

 116 University of California Regents and Officers





 U N I V E R S I T Y  O F  C A L I F O R N I A  M E D I C A L  C E N T E R S  1 7 / 1 8  A N N U A L  F I N A N C I A L  R E P O R T           3

Letter from the  
Executive Vice President

UC Health is remarkable in its breadth and depth. 

Our six health systems, including five nationally ranked 
academic medical centers, not only admit almost 175,000 
inpatients annually but also handle more than 4.7 million 
outpatient visits. Our 18 health profession schools have 
nearly 15,000 students enrolled, generating nearly half 
of the state’s graduates in dentistry, medicine, nursing, 
optometry, pharmacy, public health and veterinary medicine. 
By every metric, UC Health continues to grow year-over-year. 

Even with this impressive scale, these are worrisome times 
in health care. Actions at the federal level are gradually 
reducing the number of Americans with health insurance, 
scaling back payments to safety net facilities under 
Medicare’s Disproportionate Share Hospital (DSH) program, 
threatening the 340B Drug Program that makes expensive 
drugs more affordable, and offering little relief from the 
growing costs of residency programs or debt forgiveness  
for students. 

Although we remain concerned about these macroeconomic 
forces, we salute the notable achievements across the 
enterprise. 

• All UC academic medical centers are among the nation’s 
best hospitals, as recognized by U.S. News & World Report 
in its 2018-2019 rankings. Two of our medical centers are 
in the top 10 nationally, UCSF (6) and UCLA (7). And in 
California, each UC academic medical center is in the  
top 11: UCSF (1), UCLA (2), UC Davis (5), UC San Diego (9) 
and UC Irvine (11).

• We are a leader in supporting the health of Medi-Cal 
enrollees. Although comprising less than 6% of the acute  
care beds in California, we are Medi-Cal’s third-largest 
provider of inpatient services. Systemwide, 36% of 
inpatient days are attributed to Medi-Cal, and at Davis 
and Irvine, it is as high as 41% and 45%, respectively.

• The Leveraging Scale for Value initiative (LSfV) continues  
to wring efficiencies in supply chain, revenue cycle,  
and information technology producing cumulative savings 
of more than $729 million.

• UC medical centers, which do not receive direct state 
funds for clinical care, have worked hard to achieve 
financial stability. As a result, they can provide financial 
support to our health profession schools, which in turn 
train the medical professionals so desperately needed  
in the state.

• Our efforts to share best clinical practices continues to 
advance, as UC medical centers enter into affiliations with 
physician groups, community hospitals, specialty clinics 
and Federally Qualified Health Centers (FQHCs). 

• And we continue to expand our outpatient care capacity, 
with the opening of the Koman Family Outpatient Pavilion 
at UC San Diego Health and the new Berkeley Outpatient 
Center in San Francisco’s East Bay, a collaboration between 
UCSF Health and John Muir Health. 

These are the types of accomplishments that will propel  
UC Health forward, for the benefit of California, the nation 
and beyond. 

 

 

JOHN D. STOBO, EXECUTIVE VICE PRESIDENT 

UC HEALTH, UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA



4    

The University of California, Davis Medical Center  
Service Area and Market Share
The following table presents certain historical utilization statistics for  
the primary and secondary service areas for the 12-month period ended 
December 31, 2016. Data for the 12-month period ended December 31, 2016,  
is the most current data available from the state of California Office of 
Statewide Health Planning and Development. 

MARKET  
AREA COUNTIES

# OF  
ZIP CODES POPULATION

% OF 
DISCHARGES

MARKET 
SHARE

Primary Sacramento,
Placer,
Yolo

83 2,110,793 66.5% 10.6%

Secondary Alpine, 
Amador, 
Colusa,  
El Dorado, 
Nevada, Sierra, 
Sutter, Yuba

65 519,647 9.4% 5.8%



 U N I V E R S I T Y  O F  C A L I F O R N I A  M E D I C A L  C E N T E R S  1 7 / 1 8  A N N U A L  F I N A N C I A L  R E P O R T           5

The University of California, Davis Medical Center

The Davis Medical Center is the principal clinical teaching site  
for the University of California, Davis, School of Medicine and  
the Betty Irene Moore School of Nursing at UC Davis, and it is  
the clinical core of the UC Davis Health system. 

Licensed as a 625-bed general acute care hospital with more  
than 30 operating rooms, the Davis Medical Center provides  
a full range of inpatient general acute and intensive care, and  
a full complement of ancillary, support and ambulatory services. 
These services are housed in about 4.9 million gross square feet  
of facilities, most of which are located on an approximately 
144-acre campus in the city of Sacramento. Ambulatory care is 
provided at the hospital-based clinics and at satellite clinics in 
Sacramento and in the surrounding communities of Auburn, 
Carmichael, Davis, Elk Grove, Folsom, Natomas, Rancho Cordova, 
Rocklin and Roseville. 

The Davis Medical Center serves as a tertiary and quaternary care 
referral hospital for a 33-county, 65,000-square-mile service area 
with a population of more than six million. Its services range from 
heart and vascular surgery to transplant and neurological surgery. 
It is the only provider of several tertiary/quaternary services 
between San Francisco and Portland, including Level I adult and 
pediatric trauma care. It is also home to the region’s only nationally 
ranked comprehensive children’s hospital and a National Cancer 
Institute-designated comprehensive cancer center. 

The Davis Medical Center participates in a variety of cooperative 
outreach activities with regional health care providers. The UC 

Davis Health Cancer Care Network is comprised of community-
based cancer centers in Marysville, Merced, Bakersfield, Truckee/
Tahoe and the southeastern Sierra. The Davis Medical Center’s 
nationally recognized clinical telemedicine and rural affiliation 
programs have affiliations with community hospitals and 
Federally Qualified Health Centers (FQHCs), Adventist Health, 
the Veterans Administration, Lawrence Livermore National 
Laboratory and the adjacent Shriners Hospitals for Children — 
Northern California. The UC Davis Medical Group, supported 
by approximately 1,260 faculty and contract physicians and 
approximately 900 residents and fellows, provides inpatient  
and outpatient medical services.

Significant events during the year are highlighted below: 

The Davis Medical Center continues to maintain 
an outstanding local and national reputation 

• The Davis Medical Center is the top-ranking hospital in  
the Sacramento metropolitan area, according to the results  
of the annual U.S. News & World Report “Best Hospitals”  
2018-2019 survey.

• The Davis Medical Center ranked as one of the nation’s  
best hospitals for 2018-2019 in 11 adult medical specialties, 
including cancer care; cardiology and heart surgery; diabetes 
and endocrinology; ear, nose and throat; geriatrics; gynecology; 
nephrology; neurology and neurosurgery; orthopedics; 
pulmonology; and urology, according to the annual U.S. News  
& World Report “Best Hospitals” 2018-2019 survey.



6    

• U.S. News & World Report also released ratings for common 
types of care or procedures for 2018-2019, and ranked the 
Davis Medical Center as high performing in abdominal aortic 
aneurysm repair, aortic valve surgery, chronic obstructive 
pulmonary disease, colon cancer surgery, heart bypass 
surgery, heart failure and lung cancer surgery. UC Davis was 
also designated as high performing in gastroenterology and 
gastrointestinal surgery in the medical specialties rankings.

• U.S. News & World Report also ranked the Davis Children’s 
Hospital among the nation’s top children’s hospitals in five 
specialties in its 2018-2019 rankings, including neonatology, 
diabetes and endocrinology, and nephrology. Together with 
its longstanding partner, Shriners Hospitals for Children — 
Northern California, UC Davis Children’s Hospital also ranked  
in orthopedics and urology.

• UC Davis Children’s Hospital was re-verified for two years as 
a Level I Children’s Surgery Center by the American College 
of Surgeons (ACS). The designation from the ACS Children’s 
Surgery Verification Quality Improvement Program focuses on 
the nation’s first and only multi-specialty standards of surgical 
care for pediatric patients. UC Davis was the first hospital on 
the West Coast, and only the fourth in the nation at the time,  
to earn Level I status when originally verified in 2016.

• For the third consecutive year, Becker’s Hospital Review included 
UC Davis Medical Center on its list of 100 Great Hospitals in 
America for 2017. The publication for U.S. health care leaders 
notes that listed hospitals are “home to many medical and 
scientific breakthroughs, provide best-in-class patient care  
and are stalwarts of their communities, serving as research 
hubs or local anchors of wellness.”

• For the seventh consecutive year, the nation’s largest lesbian, 
gay, bisexual, transgender and queer (LGBTQ) civil rights 
organization recognized the Davis Medical Center as a Leader  
in LGBTQ Healthcare Equality in 2017 for creating an inclusive 
and welcoming environment for LGBTQ patients and employees.

• UC Davis Health also earned its seventh consecutive  
“Most Wired” designation in 2017, as one of the nation’s  
top health leaders in information technology. The award is 
based on a national survey conducted by Hospitals & Health 
Networks magazine.

Regional outreach and strategic initiatives
We are continuing to enhance our ability to provide the right 
care, at the right time, in the right place to support our ongoing 
commitments both to our academic mission and our strong 
operational and financial performance. Responding to our 
Community Needs Assessment research, we continue to increase 
affiliations with regional health care providers through seamless 
transfer and repatriation processes — supported by electronic 
health record interoperability, virtual delivery of health care 
expertise and regional partnerships — to ensure access to 
tertiary and quaternary services at the Davis Medical Center 
when needed. We are also increasing our partnerships with 
Federally Qualified Health Centers (FQHCs), recognizing these 
neighborhood clinics are often a convenient care destination 
for transportation-challenged populations. By working in 
partnership with FQHCs, the Davis Medical Center can help 
increase the quality of care provided as well as further expand 
access to health care services across its catchment area.

We envision continuing to have a larger footprint providing care 
at non-UC Davis hospitals through affiliations and contractual 
agreements, and providing a larger share of care through virtual 
and telemedicine visits to increase the quality and expertise of 
care delivered in Northern California’s rural markets. 

• The UC Davis telehealth program connects 30 specialties  
to 70 remote hospitals and clinic sites — as well as to the 
patient’s home — enabling patients throughout California  
to receive direct clinical and specialty care without leaving 
their communities. 

• Distance education offerings also train and update community 
providers on topics such as pain management and evidence-
based mental health treatment.

• To enhance access to care at community hospital affiliates, 
UC Davis Health physicians deliver on-site expertise through 
rotation clinics and hospitalist programs. UC Davis already 
provides adult hospitalist services at Adventist Health Lodi 
Memorial hospital, for example, and in spring 2018 entered 
into a professional services agreement to greatly expand 
pediatric and neonatal care services there.

• A shared project announced in fall 2017 enables Placerville-
based Marshall Medical Center to transition to a new,  
state-of-the-art, electronic health records system that  
allows health information sharing both within and beyond 
Marshall’s clinical network, including with UC Davis Health.

• With our National Cancer Institute-designated comprehensive 
cancer center, UC Davis Health has regional Cancer Care 
Network partners located throughout California to bring 
advanced cancer care and the latest clinical research to 
patients in their local communities.





8    

The University of California, Irvine Medical Center  
Service Area and Market Share
The following table presents certain historical utilization statistics for  
the primary and secondary service areas for the 12-month period ended 
December 31, 2016. Data for the 12-month period ended December 31, 2016,  
is the most current data available from the state of California Office of 
Statewide Health Planning and Development.

MARKET  
AREA COUNTIES

# OF  
ZIP CODES POPULATION

% OF 
DISCHARGES

MARKET 
SHARE

Primary Orange 91 1,956,091 67.9% 8.2%

Secondary Orange,  
Los Angeles, 
Riverside,  
San Bernardino

80 2,053,127 19.5% 2.2%



 U N I V E R S I T Y  O F  C A L I F O R N I A  M E D I C A L  C E N T E R S  1 7 / 1 8  A N N U A L  F I N A N C I A L  R E P O R T           9

UC Irvine Medical Center is the primary teaching facility for UCI 
School of Medicine. In 1976, The Regents purchased the land 
and facilities that now include UC Irvine Medical Center from 
the Orange County Board of Supervisors. The medical center 
subsequently expanded with the addition of the University 
Hospital Tower, UC Irvine Neuropsychiatric Center, Chao Family 
Comprehensive Cancer Center and the H. H. Chao Comprehensive 
Digestive Disease Center. The UC Irvine Medical Center Douglas 
Hospital opened as the main inpatient facility in March 2009. It was 
designed to meet and exceed the needs of a world-class academic 
medical center and provide an exceptional patient experience.

As Orange County’s only academic medical center, UC Irvine 
Medical Center is licensed to operate 417 beds and offers 
specialty inpatient care and specialty/primary care outpatient 
services, teaching and clinical research.

It serves as the primary tertiary and quaternary care referral 
center for nearly four million people residing in and around 
Orange County, western Riverside County and southeastern  
Los Angeles County. It is also Orange County’s only combined 
Level I Trauma Center and Level II Pediatric Trauma Center 
designated by the American College of Surgeons, combined  
high-risk obstetrics and regional neonatal programs, and 
American Burn Association-verified Regional Burn Center.  
The UC Irvine Medical Center is home to Orange County’s only 
National Cancer Institute-designated comprehensive cancer 
center, providing access to leading clinical care and trials not 
available anywhere else in the county.

UC Irvine Medical Center provides inpatient and outpatient 
services through a clinical practice group of more than  
400 faculty physicians and surgeons. Outpatient services are 
provided at the medical center’s pavilion buildings, Chao Family 
Comprehensive Cancer Center, H. H. Chao Comprehensive 
Digestive Disease Center and Gottschalk Medical Plaza on the  
UCI campus. In addition to these locations, UC Irvine Medical 
Center owns and operates two Federally Qualified Health Centers 
in Santa Ana and Anaheim to meet the needs of underserved 
populations in Orange County.

These sites enable UC Irvine Medical Center to provide a full 
scope of high-quality patient care services to the community  
and attract a broad and diverse patient population required  
to support the education and research programs of UCI School  
of Medicine.

Significant events during the year are highlighted below:

National recognition
For the 18th consecutive year, UC Irvine Medical Center is listed 
among “America’s Best Hospitals” and the only Orange County 
hospital consistently rated among the nation’s best, according 
to the 2018-2019 U.S. News & World Report survey. The annual 
rankings recognize hospitals that excel in treating the most 
challenging clinical conditions. The UC Irvine Medical Center 
program in urology and gynecology was rated among the 
country’s top 50 in 2018. Since 2001, the magazine has listed  
UC Irvine Medical Center programs in urology, gynecology, 

The University of California, Irvine Medical Center 



10    

geriatrics, cancer, digestive disorders/gastroenterology & GI 
surgery, nephrology, orthopedics and ear, nose & throat among 
the top 50 nationwide.

In 2018, UC Irvine Medical Center received its eighth “A” grade  
in The Leapfrog Group’s Hospital Safety Grade, which rates how  
well hospitals protect patients from errors, injuries and infections. 
UC Irvine Medical Center features more than 100 physicians listed 
as Best Doctors in America by Best Doctors, Inc., more than any 
hospital or health system in Orange County.

The Joint Commission renewed UC Irvine Medical Center’s 
certification as a Comprehensive Stroke and Cerebrovascular 
Center. UC Irvine Medical Center was the first Orange County 
hospital to earn this designation, which is reserved for those 
institutions capable of receiving and treating the most  
complex stroke cases, including patients suffering ischemic  
and hemorrhagic strokes, and transient ischemic attacks.

The American College of Surgeons renewed verification of  
UC Irvine Medical Center’s Level I adult and Level II pediatric 
trauma designations. UC Irvine Medical Center has been the 
leader in providing trauma services since Orange County created 
one of the nation’s first inclusive trauma care systems in 1980.

UC Irvine Medical Center Clinical Network 
Primary Care 

• UC Irvine Medical Center continues to expand its community-
based primary care presence, providing access to family 
medicine, internal medicine, pediatrics and senior health in 
Placentia, Yorba Linda, Orange and Tustin. Plans are underway  
to expand to further locations.

Specialty Care 

• UC Irvine Medical Center continues to expand its specialty 
care services in the coastal region, opening a Newport Beach 
specialty center that includes urology, executive health, 
behavioral health and sleep medicine services.

Major hospital and capital projects
• Began an emergency department expansion that includes 

additional space for mental health assessments, an ambulance 
ramp canopy, an emergency department fast track space, 
expanded triage capabilities as well as staff lounge, lockers  
and restrooms.

• Upgraded chiller plant and electrical infrastructure systems 
serving UC Irvine Douglas Hospital, University Hospital Tower 
and the UC Irvine Medical Center Neuropsychiatric building, 
including undergrounding of utilities.

• Creation of an electric vehicle charging station to serve visitors 
and staff.

• Expansion of active security and safety infrastructure across 
the medical center campus.

• Improved patient access at Gottschalk Medical Plaza on the  
UC Irvine campus.

Information Services infrastructure
During 2018, Information Services (IS) implemented the following 
initiatives:

• Transition to a new electronic medical records system (Epic)  
in affiliation with UC San Diego. This was the first ever 
academic medical center (AMC) deployment of multiple  
AMCs on a single Epic instance.

• Transition from a mainframe-based revenue cycle system  
to a comprehensive, single platform for both clinical and 
revenue cycle data.

• Deployment of UC Health Data Warehouse across all  
of the University's health entities for improving population 
health and research.

• Continue to enhance the privacy and security of UC Irvine 
Medical Center’s IS environment.

These activities position UC Irvine Medical Center to deliver 
world-class health care to our patient population.





12    

The University of California, Los Angeles Medical Center  
Service Area and Market Share
The following table presents certain historical utilization statistics for  
the primary and secondary service areas for the 12-month period ended 
December 31, 2016. Data for the 12-month period ended December 31, 2016,  
is the most current data available from the state of California Office of 
Statewide Health Planning and Development.  

MARKET AREA COUNTIES
# OF  

ZIP CODES POPULATION
% OF 

DISCHARGES
MARKET 
SHARE

Primary Los Angeles, 
Kern, Ventura

404 7,518,978 73.6% 4.4%

Secondary Los Angeles, 
Kern, Orange, 
Riverside,  
San Bernardino, 
San Luis Obispo, 
Santa Barbara, 
Ventura

836 13,013,523 25.7% 0.9%



 U N I V E R S I T Y  O F  C A L I F O R N I A  M E D I C A L  C E N T E R S  1 7 / 1 8  A N N U A L  F I N A N C I A L  R E P O R T           13

The UCLA Medical Center (UCLA) is the hospital system of UCLA 
Health — an integrated and comprehensive health system, which 
also includes the UCLA Faculty Practice Group, responsible for the 
clinical care of UCLA Health patients. 

UCLA Health operates licensed-bed facilities at the 445-bed 
Ronald Reagan UCLA Medical Center (RRUCLA) in Westwood, 
which includes the UCLA Mattel Children’s Hospital (MCH),  
the 265-bed Santa Monica-UCLA Medical Center and Orthopedic 
Hospital (SMUCLA) in Santa Monica, and the 74-bed Resnick 
Neuropsychiatric Hospital at UCLA (RNPH) in Westwood.  
The financial statements also include the activities of the  
UCLA Tiverton House, a 100-room hotel facility for patients  
and their families.

UCLA is the principal teaching site for the David Geffen School  
of Medicine at UCLA (DGSOM). The mission is to provide  
leading-edge patient care in support of the educational and 
scientific programs of the schools of the UCLA Center for the 
Health Sciences, including the Schools of Medicine, Dentistry, 
Nursing and Public Health.

The Westwood campus opened in 1955 as a 320-bed hospital  
and expanded to 669 beds by 1967. On June 29, 2008,  
the construction of the RRUCLA then 466-bed and RNPH 74-bed, 
state-of-the-art, replacement hospital opened for patient care, 
meeting the seismic requirements of the state of California’s  
SB 1953 Hospital Facilities Seismic Safety Act.

UCLA offers patients of all ages comprehensive care, from  
routine to highly specialized medical and surgical treatment.  

In addition, the Westwood campus is known for its wide range 
of tertiary and quaternary care offerings including Level I trauma 
care, regional neonatal and pediatric intensive care units (ICUs), 
neurosurgery/neurology, comprehensive cancer care, blood 
and marrow transplantation and solid organ transplantation. 
SMUCLA also serves the University’s teaching and research 
missions while meeting the health care needs of Los Angeles’ 
west side community. RNPH is one of the leading centers for 
comprehensive patient care, research and education in the fields 
of mental and developmental disabilities and offers a full range  
of treatment options for patients.

Together, these sites enable UCLA to provide a full spectrum 
of services and attract the volume and diversity of patients 
necessary to meet its educational, clinical, research and 
community services missions.

Significant events during the year are highlighted below:

UCLA Health Sciences maintains  
its outstanding national reputation
• UCLA Health hospitals in Westwood and Santa Monica once 

again placed No. 1 in Los Angeles, No. 2 in California and  
No. 7 in the nation on the Honor Roll in the 2018-2019  
U.S. News & World Report "Best Hospitals" rankings. 

• MCH was recognized in the annual Best Children's Hospital 
rankings published by U.S. News & World Report with eight 
specialties ranking on the U.S. News & World Report list of top 
programs in the country.

The University of California, Los Angeles Medical Center 



14    

• DGSOM ranks No. 4 among best medical schools for primary 
care in the U.S. News & World Report annual survey of the best 
graduate schools in the U.S. DGSOM ranks No. 8 in the ranking 
of the nation's best medical schools for research. 

• RRUCLA and SMUCLA each received an “A,” the highest score 
possible, in The Leapfrog Group’s data-driven assessment  
of quality and safety.

• RRUCLA led the nation in the number of solid organ transplants 
performed in 2017 and remained the overall transplant leader 
through the first half of 2018, including kidney, pancreas, lung, 
liver, heart and intestine transplants, according to the Organ 
Procurement and Transplantation Network. The UCLA Kidney 
Transplantation Program is the highest volume program in  
the nation. 

• In February 2018, UCLA Health was one of the first hospitals 
in the country to launch the chimeric antigen receptor (CAR) 
T-cell therapy program for patients with blood cancers.

• The brain cancer program at UCLA’s Jonsson Comprehensive 
Cancer Center and the UCLA Brain Tumor Center was designated 
a “Specialized Program of Research Excellence” by the National 
Cancer Institute in recognition of the program’s exemplary 
achievements in research and patient care.

• RRUCLA and SMUCLA have received the American Heart 
Association’s 2018 “Get with the Guidelines — Heart Failure 
Gold Plus Quality Achievement Award” and recognized on  
the “Target: Heart Failure” Honor Roll. 

• The Ahmanson/UCLA Adult Congenital Heart Disease Center 
has received accreditation from the Adult Congenital Heart 
Association, a nationwide support organization.

• SMUCLA joined RRUCLA as a “Baby-Friendly Hospital,” 
recognizing the hospitals as models for breastfeeding support.

• MCH was recognized with “High Risk Infant Follow-up 
Super Star Award” by the California Perinatal Quality Care 
Collaborative (CPQCC).

• UCLA’s hospitals were each recognized as “LGBTQ Healthcare 
Equality Leader” as part of the Human Rights Campaign 
Foundation’s Healthcare Equality Index 2018. 

• UCLA Health has been designated an Antimicrobial Stewardship 
Centers of Excellence by the Infectious Diseases Society  
of America. 

• RRUCLA, RNPH and SMUCLA were awarded an acute care Stage 
7 award for highest level of electronic medical record progress 
at hospitals and health systems by HIMSS Analytics, a global 
healthcare advisor.

• RRUCLA ranks number one in patient-centered care, according 
to Vizient’s quality and accountability review of 108 academic 
medical centers. SMUCLA ranked 19th in the patient-centered-
care category, rising 41 ranks in one year. 

• UCLA Medical Group received the UC Berkeley School of Public  
Health Right Care Initiative 2018 Award for excellence in diabetes 
blood sugar control. 

• UCLA was the first U.S. hospital to implement the 3 Wishes 
Project, which honors dying patients and creates cherished 
memories for loved ones. 

• UCLA Health social media ranks in the top 10 “The Best Social 
Media from America’s Top Hospitals” list by Convince & Convert. 

• UCLA Health ranked in the top 50 in the nation among all 
industries as America’s Best Midsize Employers by Forbes and 
was named one of the “150 Top Places to work in Healthcare”  
in 2018 by Becker’s Hospital Review.

UCLA Medical Center continues  
to work on strategic initiatives
UCLA Health and DGSOM have embarked on a unified strategic 
plan refresh designed to articulate a clear vision, accelerate 
systemwide integration and position UCLA for continued success 
amid funding and competitive pressures. UCLA’s strategic 
activities remain focused on increasing tertiary and quaternary 
care delivery at the Westwood campus while expanding its 
primary and secondary care presence, including securing 
partners, to create a robust health care delivery platform for 
managing all aspects of high-quality health care delivery with 
convenient access. These activities are related to a carefully 
orchestrated clinical growth strategy that advances UCLA’s 
depth, scope and reach, promotes increased market presence, 
rationalizes care by utilizing lower-cost clinical settings, secures 
alignments that fuel additional clinical growth and provides 
partners with access to a large and vibrant academic community. 

• UCLA Health Training Center, which serves as the official 
training center of the Los Angeles Lakers, opened in 
September 2017, in El Segundo. 

• UCLA Health secured a patient-transfer agreement with  
the Southern California Hospital in Culver City for low-acuity  
emergency department patients who need inpatient admission.

• UCLA Mobile Stroke Unit, the first in California and on the  
West Coast, launched in October 2017, and is a partnership 
with the Santa Monica Fire Department and Los Angeles 
County Emergency Medical Services Agency, as a part of  
the 911 emergency response system. 

• UCLA Health and DGSOM embarked on a new initiative 
providing consultation services to develop a new,  
state-of-the-art, hospital in Guangzhou, Guangdong, China.  
This three-party affiliation among UCLA, R&F Properties  
and Medpoint Health Partners will bring clinical excellence, 
superb patient experience, innovative technology and 
enhanced access to the region.





16    

The University of California, San Diego Medical Center  
Service Area and Market Share
The following table presents certain historical utilization statistics for  
the primary and secondary service areas for the 12-month period ended 
December 31, 2016. Data for the 12-month period ended December 31, 2016,  
is the most current data available from the state of California Office of 
Statewide Health Planning and Development.   

MARKET 
AREA COUNTY

# OF  
ZIP CODES POPULATION

% OF 
DISCHARGES

MARKET 
SHARE

Primary San Diego 77 1,462,772 54.8% 13.7%

Secondary San Diego 95 1,825,840 30.3% 5.7%



 U N I V E R S I T Y  O F  C A L I F O R N I A  M E D I C A L  C E N T E R S  1 7 / 1 8  A N N U A L  F I N A N C I A L  R E P O R T           17

UC San Diego Health maintains a two-campus strategy, fulfilling 
its three-part mission of clinical service, teaching, and research 
excellence at locations in Hillcrest and La Jolla. Each medical 
complex supports acute inpatient care, emergency services and 
a spectrum of outpatient programs. The two locations operate 
under one license with a capacity of 808 beds.

The UC San Diego Medical Center in Hillcrest (390 beds), 
established in 1966, serves as a principal clinical teaching site  
for the UC San Diego School of Medicine and is the focal point  
for community service missions. It is home to the area’s only 
Regional Burn Center, and one of only two Level I trauma centers  
in San Diego County. The campus also includes the Owen Clinic,  
founded in 1982 and among the top HIV care programs nationally, 
as well as adult inpatient psychiatric care and intensive outpatient 
psychiatric care for older adults. Long-range plans are underway 
to modernize the Hillcrest campus, pending approval by the  
UC Regents.

The La Jolla campus (418 beds), located on the eastern portion  
of the main university campus, has been the center of substantial 
growth in the last decade. The expansion includes:

• The Koman Family Outpatient Pavilion opened in 2018, a  
four-story building that features eight operating rooms for 
surgeries that once required hospital stays, as well as specialty 
services in orthopedics and sports medicine, breast oncology 
and imaging, and other specialty services.

• The Jacobs Medical Center (245 beds) opened in 2016,  
a 10-story building with advanced surgery, oncology,  
and high-risk obstetrics & gynecology. It is adjacent to the  
seven-story Altman Clinical and Translational Research 
Institute, which also opened in 2016 and is a regional hub  
for translational medicine and clinical trials.

• The La Jolla campus also includes Moores Cancer Center,  
the primary site for outpatient oncology care with nearly  
350 medical and radiation oncologists, surgeons and 
researchers, Shiley Eye Institute, a multi-specialty vision  
center with the region’s only facility dedicated to children,  
and Sulpizio Cardiovascular Center, the inpatient facility  
for the newly created Cardiovascular Institute.

UC San Diego Health maintains  
strong reputation for patient care
UC San Diego Health was ranked among the nation’s best in six 
adult medical and surgical specialties by U.S. News & World Report 
for 2018-2019. Specialties listed in the top 50 nationally include: 

• Cancer — Anchored by Moores Cancer Center, the only 
National Cancer Institute-designated Comprehensive  
Cancer Center in the region.

• Cardiology and Heart Surgery — The region’s first 
cardiovascular center, opened in 2011.

The University of California, San Diego Medical Center 



18    

• Geriatrics — A pioneer in this field, UC San Diego Health  
now has a specialized Senior Emergency Care Unit within  
the La Jolla emergency department, which was accredited  
in 2018 by the American College of Emergency Physicians  
as a Level 1 designation, the highest possible. It is the first 
geriatric emergency department to be accredited by the  
state of California.

• Neurology and Neurosurgery — In 2018, UC San Diego Health 
added a second comprehensive stroke center as designated by 
the Joint Commission, making it the only healthcare provider  
in the region with two comprehensive centers.

• Orthopedics — UC San Diego Health is the Official Health Care 
Provider of the San Diego Padres, with a medical team led by 
orthopedic surgeons and sports medicine specialists.

• Pulmonology — For the past 10 years, it has been ranked 
in the top 20 for this medical specialty, largely for its role in 
pioneering the pulmonary thromboendarterectomy (PTE), 
an operation for removing blood clots from the pulmonary 
arteries to treat chronic pulmonary hypertension.

Other noteworthy accolades include:

Top Docs — More than 100 UC San Diego Health physicians 
in 45 medical specialties were voted “Top Docs” in 2017 by 
local physicians participating in the San Diego County Medical 
Society’s annual survey.

Nursing excellence — With more than 1,880 RNs, 42 percent 
of whom hold certification in a nursing specialty, the American 
Nurses Credentialing Center recognizes UC San Diego Health  
as a Magnet hospital, considered among the highest recognitions 
for nursing excellence.

New center of excellence — In 2018, it was named a Lewy Body 
Dementia Association Research Center of Excellence, joining 
a network of 24 pre-eminent U.S. academic medical research 
centers studying and treating this common form of dementia. 

Optimizing care in California — For the third year straight,  
it qualified in 2018 for more than 90 percent of the federal 
incentive payments available through its participation in the 
California Public Hospital Redesign and Incentives in Medi-Cal 
(PRIME) program, which is focused on optimizing the way care 
is delivered through California’s safety net hospitals to improve 
population health and lower the costs of health care. 

Healthcare equality — For the second straight year, it earned a 
perfect score on the 2018 Healthcare Equality Index (HEI) from 
the nation’s largest LGBTQ civil rights organization.

Strategic growth to meet the region’s demand  
for value-based care close to home
To meet current demand and expected growth in the future,  
UC San Diego Health is focusing on community care locations 
for primary care and ambulatory services. These locations feature 
convenient, close to home clinics offering same-day appointments, 
walk-in hours and online appointment scheduling. In the past  
two years, two Express Care clinics, one Urgent Care clinic and  
19 urgent care sites with affiliated providers have opened.





20    

The University of California, San Francisco Medical Center 
and Children’s Hospital and Research Center Oakland  
Service Area and Market Share
The following table presents certain historical utilization statistics for  
the primary and secondary service areas for the 12-month period ended 
December 31, 2016. Data for the 12-month period ended December 31, 2016, 
 is the most current data available from the state of California Office of 
Statewide Health Planning and Development.   

MARKET AREA COUNTIES
# OF 

ZIP CODES POPULATION
% OF 

DISCHARGES
MARKET 
SHARE

Primary San Francisco, 
Alameda,  
Contra Costa, 
San Mateo

149 4,466,000 60.8% 8.2%

Secondary Marin, Napa,  
Santa Clara, 
Solano, Sonoma

146 3,290,000 14.1% 2.6%



 U N I V E R S I T Y  O F  C A L I F O R N I A  M E D I C A L  C E N T E R S  1 7 / 1 8  A N N U A L  F I N A N C I A L  R E P O R T           21

UCSF Health is comprised of the hospitals of UCSF Medical Center, 
the UCSF Faculty Clinical Practices, Langley Porter Psychiatric 
Hospital and Clinics and UCSF Benioff Children’s Hospital Oakland. 
UCSF Health serves as the principal clinical teaching site for the 
University of California, San Francisco, School of Medicine, affiliated 
with the University of California since 1873. 

UCSF Medical Center in San Francisco is licensed to provide inpatient  
care at Moffitt-Long Hospital on the 107-acre Parnassus campus 
and at UCSF Benioff Children’s Hospital and Bakar Cancer Hospital 
in San Francisco’s Mission Bay neighborhood. UCSF Medical Center 
also provides outpatient hospital care at the hospital sites, UCSF 
Mount Zion and physician clinical care at those hospitals and 
other locations primarily in San Francisco. It also has a national 
cancer institute designated as a National Comprehensive Cancer 
Network Member Institution. The UCSF Medical Center in  
San Francisco is licensed to operate 1,019 beds. 

UCSF Health’s financial statements also include the activities 
of the UCSF Faculty Clinical Practices — the faculty practice 
organization for more than 1,100 UCSF faculty physicians.  
The net revenues from clinical practices are recorded in net 
patient service revenue; the direct expenses of non-physician 
staff and non-labor expenses are included in operating expenses. 

Effective January 1, 2014, UCSF Medical Center affiliated with 
Children’s Hospital & Research Center Oakland and the University 
of California became its sole corporate and voting member.  
Now known and doing business as UCSF Benioff Children’s 

Hospital Oakland (BCHO), the 106-year-old hospital retains its 
status as a private, not-for-profit 501(c)(3) medical center, offering 
children and their families outstanding medical, surgical and 
mental health care. BCHO has 190 licensed beds and more than 
500 physicians in 43 specialties.

The BCHO hospital is one of only five American College of Surgeons 
(ACS) Pediatric Level I Trauma Centers in the state, and has one of 
the largest pediatric intensive care units in Northern California.

UCSF Health continues to maintain an 
outstanding local and national reputation
• UCSF Medical Center is the top ranked hospital in California 

and a destination for patients with complex conditions from 
around the world. 

• U.S. News & World Report ranked UCSF Medical Center the  
sixth best hospital in the country in its 2018-2019 survey  
and awarded Honor Roll status for exceptional performance  
in 15 medical specialties, including twelve in the top 10. 

• UCSF Benioff Children’s Hospitals are the top ranked hospitals 
in Northern California and nationally recognized by U.S. News  
& World Report in all ranked 10 specialties.

• The UCSF School of Medicine was ranked second and fifth  
in the nation by U.S. News & World Report in its survey for  
2018-2019 best medical schools for its primary care training 
and research training, respectively — the only medical school 
in the country ranked in the top five in both categories. 

The University of California, San Francisco Medical Center  
and Children’s Hospital and Research Center Oakland 



22    

• UCSF Medical Center is designated as a Magnet hospital by 
the American Nurses Credentialing Center (ANCC) which 
recognizes organizations for quality patient care, nursing 
excellence and innovations in nursing.

• UCSF Medical Center became the only institution in the 
country to receive a perfect score on the national LGBTQ 
Healthcare Equality Index (HEI) for nine consecutive years. 
The HEI annually invites health care facilities nationwide to 
complete a survey describing how they provide equitable, 
inclusive care for lesbian, gay, bisexual, transgender and  
queer (LGBTQ) patients and their families.

UCSF Health continues to focus on strategic 
initiatives and network expansion to meet  
its mission and community needs
• UCSF Health is self-supporting and uses its margins to meet 

important needs in the community, including training 
physicians and other health professionals, supporting medical 
research, providing care to the medically and financially needy, 
and building and operating facilities to serve the diverse needs 
of its patients.

• During the year, construction was completed on the UCSF 
Benioff Children’s Hospital Oakland Outpatient Center which 
was opened in May 2018. The new six-story building adds 
89,000 square feet of exam rooms and clinical workspace and 
features the latest technology in a space designed specifically 
for children. 

• UCSF Health continued to implement its Health System Strategic 
Plan to foster strategic alignments with other providers to 
provide more access to clinical care. 

• Canopy Health, a Bay Area-wide health care network developed 
by UCSF Health, John Muir Health and three physician groups, 
has grown to include more than 6,000 physicians, dozens of 
care centers and 18 hospitals throughout the San Francisco 
Bay Area. The breadth of the Canopy Health network enables 
patients to have in-network access to a full continuum of care,  
through close connections between primary care providers, 
community hospitals, medical groups (facilities and practitioners) 
and academic medical centers. In 2017, Canopy Health grew  
to more than 24,000 members.

• In August 2017, UCSF Health entered into an affiliation 
agreement with Dignity Health, the nation’s sixth largest  
health system. As part of the agreement, UCSF Health staff 
and faculty are providing consulting services at Dignity Health 
hospitals in the San Francisco Bay Area. The primary goal of 
the affiliation is to enhance medical, surgical and specialty 
care programs at the Bay Area Dignity Health hospitals and 
clinically integrate UCSF Health and Dignity Health Medical 
foundation physicians.

• In June 2018, the Berkeley Outpatient Center opened as a 
jointly operated and staffed facility with John Muir Health.  
The 90,000-square-foot center offers adult specialty and 
primary care, urgent care, and lab and imaging services.

• In July 2018, UCSF Health opened a new primary care practice 
in San Francisco. Located at China Basin, this office will serve 
the growing Mission Bay and surrounding community.

• In September 2018, UCSF Health signed a Master Alliance 
Agreement to expand clinical collaborations in Marin County, 
with the goal of improving patient care and strengthening 
physician practices for the local community.

• In September 2018, UCSF Health and Sonoma Valley Hospital 
signed a collaboration agreement to combine expertise  
and resources to share best practices and collectively enhance 
the quality of local services.  This includes coordination of  
out-of-area transport of sick patients and transfer of patients 
back to Sonoma Valley for less-intensive care.

UCSF Health: Commitment to the Community
• UCSF Health collaborated with the San Francisco Department 

of Public Health and other health and social service agencies  
to develop a community health needs assessment report in 
2016 to identify key health priorities in its primary service area.  
These priorities are important components in the Health System 
Strategic Plan mentioned above and are included in future 
goals for UCSF Health.

• UCSF Health provided more than $852 million in uncompensated 
or under-compensated care in 2018.

• While UCSF Health is known and respected nationally and 
internationally, its primary commitment is providing leading-
edge health care services to the people of the San Francisco 
Bay Area and communities throughout Northern California  
and offering the best possible experience for patients and  
their families. 









26     M A N A G E M E N T ’ S  D I S C U S S I O N  A N D  A N A L Y S I S

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)

INTRODUCTION

The objective of Management’s Discussion and Analysis is to help readers better understand the UC Medical Centers’ financial position 
and operating activities for the year ended June 30, 2018, with selected comparative information for the years ended June 30, 2017 
and 2016. This discussion has been prepared by management and should be read in conjunction with the financial statements and 
the notes to the financial statements. Unless otherwise indicated, years (2016, 2017, 2018 etc.) in this discussion refer to the fiscal years 
ended June 30.

OVERVIEW

The University of California, Medical Centers (the “Medical Centers”) are operating units of the University of California (the “University”), 
a California public corporation under Article IX, Section 9 of the California Constitution. The University is administered by The Regents 
of the University of California (“The Regents”) of which, under the formation documents of the University, administrative authority with 
respect to the Medical Centers is vested in the President of the University. The Medical Centers consist of the University of California, 
Davis Medical Center (“UC Davis Medical Center” or “Davis”), the University of California, Irvine Medical Center (“UC Irvine Medical 
Center” or “Irvine”), the University of California, Los Angeles Medical Center (“UCLA Medical Center” or “Los Angeles”), the University 
of California, San Diego Medical Center (“UCSD Medical Center” or “San Diego”) and the University of California, San Francisco Medical 
Center (“UCSF Medical Center” or “San Francisco”), each of which provides educational and clinical opportunities for students in 
the University’s Schools of Medicine (“Schools of Medicine”) and offers a comprehensive array of medical services including tertiary 
and quaternary care services. The San Francisco Medical Center’s financial statements include Children’s Hospital & Research Center 
Oakland (“CHRCO”), a blended component unit of the University of California. The Regents are the sole corporate and voting member 
of CHRCO, a private, not-for-profit 501(c)(3) corporation. San Francisco provides certain management services for CHRCO.  
The San Francisco Medical Center’s financial statements also include the activities of the UCSF Faculty Clinical Practices.

The Medical Centers’ activities are monitored by The Regents’ Committee on Health Services. Under the formation documents of the 
University of California, administrative authority with respect to the Medical Centers is vested in the President of the University, who, 
in turn, has delegated certain authority to the Chancellor of the applicable campus. At each applicable campus, direct management 
authority has been further delegated by the applicable Chancellor as follows: for the UC Davis Medical Center, to the Vice Chancellor, 
Human Health Sciences; for the UC Irvine Medical Center and the UCSF Medical Center, to the applicable Medical Center Director;  
and for the UCLA Medical Center and the UCSD Medical Center, to the Vice Chancellor, Health Sciences. 



 U N I V E R S I T Y  O F  C A L I F O R N I A  M E D I C A L  C E N T E R S  1 7 / 1 8  A N N U A L  F I N A N C I A L  R E P O R T           27

OPERATING STATISTICS

The following table presents utilization statistics for the Medical Centers: 

(shown in fiscal year)

Davis Irvine Los Angeles San Diego San Francisco TOTAL

Licensed beds

2018 625 417 784 808 1,276 3,910

2017 627 417 784 808 1,276 3,912

2016 621 411 795 563 1,276 3,666

Admissions

2018 34,763 22,086 40,438 31,715 45,837 174,839

2017 34,564 21,173 40,966 29,264 45,480 171,447

2016 33,002 20,777 41,282 28,713 43,456 167,230

Average daily census

2018 535 344 729 552 760 2,920

2017 536 338 741 504 755 2,874

2016 502 338 744 476 719 2,779

Discharges

2018 34,811 21,982 40,526 31,683 45,800 174,802

2017 34,565 21,270 40,979 29,200 45,549 171,563

2016 32,955 20,872 41,263 28,719 43,310 167,119

Average length of stay

2018 5.6 5.7 6.6 6.4 6.1 6.1

2017 5.6 5.8 6.6 6.3 6.0 6.1

2016 5.6 5.9 6.6 6.1 6.1 6.1

Patient days

2018 195,370 125,476 266,020 201,431 277,281 1,065,578

2017 195,678 123,191 270,550 184,135 275,446 1,049,000

2016 183,667 123,557 272,191 174,101 262,430 1,015,946

Case mix index1

2018 1.91 1.83 2.03 2.03 2.06

2017 1.87 1.83 2.00 1.96 1.97

2016 1.80 1.81 1.99 1.91 1.96

Outpatient visits

2018 967,695 773,807 775,952 345,276 1,838,829 4,701,559

2017 1,007,187 786,917 776,341 311,659 1,704,965 4,587,069

2016 995,688 751,629 806,359 305,286 1,531,435 4,390,397
1Case mix index is calculated at the patient level and is not determinable systemwide.

Licensed Beds
Licensed beds changed as follows:

Increased (decreased)

2018 2017

Davis (2) 6 Decrease in FY18 was a result of ongoing renovation in hospital. Increase in FY17  
was due to space changes due to seismic compliance requirements.

Irvine 6 Licensed beds increased by six general acute care beds in 2017, with no change in 2018.

Los Angeles (11) Licensed beds decreased in FY17 due to the closure of the Ronald Reagan 
rehabilitation center.

San Diego 245 Jacobs Medical Center opened in November 2016 adding 245 new beds,  
with no change in 2018.



28     M A N A G E M E N T ’ S  D I S C U S S I O N  A N D  A N A L Y S I S

Admissions and Patient Days
Admissions fluctuate based upon the Medical Centers’ market share and overall volumes in the marketplace. Patient days fluctuate 
based on admissions and the overall length of stay, generally as a result of the complexity of care provided.

Patient days for each Medical Center are as follows:

Davis

Irvine

Los Angeles

San Diego

San Francisco

 183,667 

195,370   

  123,191   

  195,678   

 270,550    

184,135 

   275,446  

 272,191  

   266,020  

123,557   

  125,476    

  174,101 

   201,431   

262,430  

  277,281 

 51,110  2017 20162018

Admissions and patient days changed in 2018 as follows:

Increased (decreased)

ADMISSIONS PATIENT DAYS

Davis 199 0.6% (308) (0.2%) Admissions and patient days remained relatively stable.

Irvine 913 4.3 2,285 1.9 Admissions and patient days increased primarily due to higher volume in  
Emergency Department admissions.

Los Angeles (528) (1.3) (4,530) (1.7) Admissions and patient days decreased due to lower Contract patient days.

San Diego 2,451 8.4 17,296 9.4 Increase primarily due to the first full year of operations at Jacobs Medical Center  
since its opening in November 2016.

San Francisco 357 0.8 1,835 0.7 Adult admissions and patient days increased but were offset by declines in  
children's volumes.



 U N I V E R S I T Y  O F  C A L I F O R N I A  M E D I C A L  C E N T E R S  1 7 / 1 8  A N N U A L  F I N A N C I A L  R E P O R T           29

Admissions and patient days changed in 2017 as follows:

Increased (decreased)

ADMISSIONS PATIENT DAYS

Davis 1,562 4.7% 12,011 6.5% Admissions and patient days were higher due to an increase in the acuity of patients.

Irvine 396 1.9 (366) (0.3) Slight admissions increased and patient days decreased due to continued focus  
on lower length of stay.

Los Angeles (316) (0.8) (1,641) (0.6) Admissions and patient days decreased due to lower Medicare, Medi-Cal  
and capitation patient days.

San Diego 551 1.9 10,034 5.8 Admissions and patient days increased primarily due to the opening of new beds  
at Jacobs Medical Center for the final seven months of the fiscal year.

San Francisco 2,024 4.7 13,016 5.0 Admissions and patient days increased primarily due to growth in Children’s Hospital 
volume that has continued to grow since the opening of the Mission Bay Hospital  
in 2015. Adult volumes also increased due to growth of targeted programs.

Outpatient Visits
Outpatient services provided by the Medical Centers include clinic visits, primary care network, home health and hospice and 
emergency visits. The following presents outpatient services volume for the Medical Centers:

(shown in fiscal year)

Davis Irvine Los Angeles San Diego San Francisco TOTAL

2018

Hospital clinics 449,590 662,285 693,053 267,049 1,736,684 3,808,661

Primary care network 434,804 58,842 493,646

Home health and hospice 24,148 24,148

Emergency visits 59,153 52,680 82,899 78,227 102,145 375,104

Total Medical Center outpatient visits 967,695 773,807 775,952 345,276 1,838,829 4,701,559
School of Medicine and other non-hospital clinic visits1 22,525 20,681 1,867,904 567,792 2,478,902

2017

Hospital clinics 460,417 677,593 695,529 234,056 1,600,025 3,667,620

Primary care network 466,313 57,490 523,803

Home health and hospice 23,072 3,072 26,144

Emergency visits 57,385 51,834 80,812 77,603 101,868 369,502

Total Medical Center outpatient visits 1,007,187 786,917 776,341 311,659 1,704,965 4,587,069
School of Medicine and other non-hospital clinic visits1 19,091 74,760 1,742,158 515,501 2,351,510

2016

Hospital clinics 455,050 656,274 727,264 228,290 1,407,805 3,474,683

Primary care network 456,511 46,219 502,730

Home health and hospice 22,848 22,459 45,307

Emergency visits 61,279 49,136 79,095 76,996 101,171 367,677

Total Medical Center outpatient visits 995,688 751,629 806,359 305,286 1,531,435 4,390,397

School of Medicine and other non-hospital clinic visits1 13,529 123,779 1,629,438 472,166 2,238,912
1Related revenues not reported by the Medical Centers. All San Francisco clinic visits are reported as revenues by the Medical Center.



30     M A N A G E M E N T ’ S  D I S C U S S I O N  A N D  A N A L Y S I S

The volume of total outpatient visits for the Medical Centers are as follows: 

967,695

995,688

1,007,187

806,359

775,952

751,629

773,807

305,286

345,276

1,838,829

2017 20162018

Davis

Irvine

Los Angeles

San Diego

San Francisco

786,917

 776,341 

 311,659  

 1,704,965  

1,531,435

Total outpatient visits changed in 2018 as follows:

Increased (decreased)

Davis (39,492) (3.9%) Vacancies in positions and termination of contracts contributed to the decrease.

Irvine (13,110) (1.7) Decrease due to planned reduction in ambulatory schedules during the EPIC conversion.

Los Angeles (389) (0.1) Decrease due to a reduction in hospital clinic visits.

San Diego 33,617 10.8  Increase due to the first full year of operation at Jacobs Medical Center  
and clinic expansions at other locations.

San Francisco 133,864 7.9 Outpatient visits increased due to growth of outpatient programs, including the 
expansion of physical therapy services at the UCSF Mount Zion facility and  
clinical outreach to grow other targeted areas.

Total outpatient visits changed in 2017 as follows:

Increased (decreased)

Davis 11,499 1.2% Visits continue to increase based on a new clinic and continued demand  
for oncology services. 

Irvine 35,288 4.7 Overall visits increased due to the continued expansion in community-based  
primary and specialty care services. 

Los Angeles (30,018) (3.7) Outpatient visits decreased due to a reduction in hospital clinic visits. 

San Diego 6,373 2.1 Clinic visits increased 2.5% due to clinic expansion, while emergency room visits 
increased 0.8%.

San Francisco 173,530 11.3 Outpatient visits increased due to growth of outpatient programs and  
clinical outreach to grow targeted areas.



 U N I V E R S I T Y  O F  C A L I F O R N I A  M E D I C A L  C E N T E R S  1 7 / 1 8  A N N U A L  F I N A N C I A L  R E P O R T           31

STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

The following table summarizes the operating results for the Medical Centers for fiscal years:

(in thousands of dollars)

Davis Irvine Los Angeles San Diego San Francisco TOTAL

2018

Net patient service revenue $2,172,804 $1,124,757 $2,395,252 $1,838,912 $4,155,733 $11,687,458

Other operating revenue 48,957 52,747 118,813 99,317 214,673 534,507

Total operating revenue 2,221,761 1,177,504 2,514,065 1,938,229 4,370,406 12,221,965

Total operating expenses 2,045,569 1,042,663 2,394,047 1,813,765 4,242,116 11,538,160

Income from operations 176,192 134,841 120,018 124,464 128,290 683,805

Net non-operating revenues (expenses) 15,612 (12,761) 9,872 (24,959) 46,189 33,953

Income before other changes in net position 191,804 122,080 129,890 99,505 174,479 717,758

Other changes in net position (46,757) (30,886) (201,812) (155,601) 18,460 (416,596)

Increase (decrease) in net position 145,047 91,194 (71,922) (56,096) 192,939 301,162

Net position - beginning of year (708,545) (352,244) (266,302) (34,676) (367,706) (1,729,473)

Net position - end of year ($563,498) ($261,050) ($338,224) ($90,772) ($174,767) ($1,428,311)

2017

Net patient service revenue $2,105,499 $1,088,317 $2,388,924 $1,595,867 $3,748,100 $10,926,707

Other operating revenue 41,875 28,010 113,628 92,295 203,654 479,462

Total operating revenue 2,147,374 1,116,327 2,502,552 1,688,162 3,951,754 11,406,169

Total operating expenses 1,983,662 1,050,777 2,384,772 1,668,586 4,003,451 11,091,248

Income (loss) from operations 163,712 65,550 117,780 19,576 (51,697) 314,921

Net non-operating revenues (expenses) 9,467 (17,961) (36,579) (10,470) 24,134 (31,409)

Income (loss) before other changes in net position 173,179 47,589 81,201 9,106 (27,563) 283,512

Other changes in net position (29,562) (50,705) (166,007) (88,902) (47,588) (382,764)

Increase (decrease) in net position 143,617 (3,116) (84,806) (79,796) (75,151) (99,252)

Net position - beginning of year (852,162) (349,128) (181,496) 45,120 (292,555) (1,630,221)

Net position - end of year ($708,545) ($352,244) ($266,302) ($34,676) ($367,706) ($1,729,473)

2016

Net patient service revenue $1,888,702 $984,161 $2,266,980 $1,465,431 $3,370,854 $9,976,128

Other operating revenue 46,572 25,490 97,058 79,227 196,463 444,810

Total operating revenue 1,935,274 1,009,651 2,364,038 1,544,658 3,567,317 10,420,938

Total operating expenses 1,974,918 1,035,154 2,336,904 1,507,201 3,822,694 10,676,871

Income (loss) from operations (39,644) (25,503) 27,134 37,457 (255,377) (255,933)

Net non-operating revenues (expenses) (461) (20,450) (24,398) 16 (14,756) (60,049)

Income (loss) before other changes in net position (40,105) (45,953) 2,736 37,473 (270,133) (315,982)

Other changes in net position (49,060) (60,492) (170,042) (48,663) (20,939) (349,196)

Decrease in net position (89,165) (106,445) (167,306) (11,190) (291,072) (665,178)

Net position:

Beginning of year, as previously reported (762,997) (242,683) (14,190) 56,310 563 (962,997)

Cumulative effect of accounting change (2,046) (2,046)

Beginning of year, as restated (762,997) (242,683) (14,190) 56,310 (1,483) (965,043)

Net position – end of year ($852,162) ($349,128) ($181,496) $45,120 ($292,555) ($1,630,221)



32     M A N A G E M E N T ’ S  D I S C U S S I O N  A N D  A N A L Y S I S

Revenues
Patient service revenue depends on inpatient occupancy levels, the volume of outpatient visits, the complexity of care provided and 
the payment rates for services provided. Patient service revenues are net of bad debts and estimated allowances from contractual 
arrangements with Medicare, Medi-Cal and other third-party commercial payors and have been estimated based on the terms of 
reimbursement for contracts currently in effect. Other operating revenue consisted primarily of clinical teaching support funds,  
grants and contract revenues and other non-patient services such as contributions, pharmacy rebate programs and cafeteria revenues. 

The following chart illustrates trends in the net patient service revenue and other operating revenue:

492,173

471,889

2,105 42

119

215

204

99

53

281,088

2,395

972,267

1142,389

1,125

25984

3,748

921,596

504   

1,839

791,465

4,156

1963,371

2017

2018

2016

2017

2018

2016

2017

2018

2016

2017

2018

2016

2017

2018

2016

Net patient service revenue Other operating revenue            shown in millions of dollars

Davis

Irvine

Los Angeles

San Diego

San Francisco

Revenues for 2018 as compared to 2017 are as follows:

Increased (decreased) in millions of dollars

TOTAL OPERATING 
REVENUE

NET PATIENT  
SERVICE REVENUE

Davis $74.4 3.5% $67.3 3.2% Increase due to growth of patient volume, as well as large settlement  
with a third party for prior year services. 

Irvine 61.2 5.5 36.4 3.3 Increase due to growth of patient volume as well as 340B and  
specialty pharmacy revenue.

Los Angeles 11.5 0.5 6.3 0.3 Increase due to a slight growth in volume and additional supplemental funding.

San Diego 250.1 14.8 243.0 15.2 Increase due to 9.5% growth in patient census, increased complexity of cases  
and contract price increases.

San Francisco 418.7 10.6 407.6 10.9 Increase due to growth in patient volumes, primarily outpatient, improvements in 
reimbursement rates and overall patient acuity levels and prior year Medicare cost 
report settlements.



 U N I V E R S I T Y  O F  C A L I F O R N I A  M E D I C A L  C E N T E R S  1 7 / 1 8  A N N U A L  F I N A N C I A L  R E P O R T           33

Revenues for 2017 as compared to 2016 are as follows:

Increased (decreased) in millions of dollars

TOTAL OPERATING 
REVENUE

NET PATIENT  
SERVICE REVENUE

Davis $212.1 11.0% $216.8 11.5% Increased third-party settlements, higher volumes and complexity of cases 
contributed to the increase.

Irvine 106.7 10.6 104.2 10.6 The increase was mainly due to higher patient volume and increased complexity  
of cases.

Los Angeles 138.5 5.9 121.9 5.4 The increase is due to an increase in third-party settlements and additional 
supplemental funding.

San Diego 143.5 9.3 130.4 8.9 The increase was mainly due to higher patient volume after the opening of new beds 
at Jacobs Medical Center in November 2016, as well as increased complexity of cases 
and contract price increases.

San Francisco 384.4 10.8 377.2 11.2 Increase is due to growth of patient volume, an increase of contracted rates and an 
increase of Medi-Cal supplemental funds approved in the year.

The most common payment arrangement for inpatient services is a prospectively determined per-diem rate or case rate. The most 
common payment arrangement for outpatient care is a prospective payment system that uses ambulatory payment classifications.  
The following chart illustrates the percentage of net patient service revenue by payor:

2456  20  

2555  20  

2452  24  

26 1

1

51 22  

2150 29  

2744 28  

21 1

1

65 13  

21 167 11  

2266 11  

2651 23 

2550 25  

2650 24  

16 15 168

15 13 270

32

16 14 169

2017

2018

2016

2017

2018

2016

2017

2018

2016

2017

2018

2016

2017

2018

2016

Contracted Medicare Medi-Cal Non-sponsored/self-pay shown in percentages

Davis

Irvine

Los Angeles

San Diego

San Francisco



34     M A N A G E M E N T ’ S  D I S C U S S I O N  A N D  A N A L Y S I S

Payor mix changed in 2018 as follows:

Davis Medi-Cal increased due to a large settlement received in the current year.  
Additionally, capitated revenue decreased due to the termination of a large contract.

Irvine Payor mix changed primarily with increased Medicare offset by a decrease  
in contract revenue.

Los Angeles Payor mix changed primarily with a decrease in Medi-Cal and an increase in contracts  
as a result of a shift from traditional Medi-Cal to Medi-Cal managed care plans.  
All other payors remained relatively consistent with prior year.

San Diego Overall payor mix was stable although this year continued the shift away from  
traditional Medi-Cal towards Medi-Cal managed care plans.

San Francisco Payor mix changed primarily with a decrease in Medi-Cal and an increase in contracts 
as a result of a shift from traditional Medi-Cal to Medi-Cal managed care plans.

Payor mix changed in 2017 as follows:

Davis Payor mix is consistent when compared to prior year.

Irvine Payor mix changed primarily with an increase in Medi-Cal due to reserves related  
to the Medi-Cal waiver program.

Los Angeles Payor mix changed primarily with an increase in Medi-Cal due to continued Medi-Cal 
expansion as a result of the Affordable Care Act. In addition, contract (capitated) 
decreased due to the termination of one of the capitation agreements during the year.  
All other payors remained relatively consistent with prior year.

San Diego While overall payor mix was stable, within the Medi-Cal category there was a shift 
away from the traditional Medi-Cal and towards Medi-Cal managed care plans.

San Francisco Payor mix based on net patient revenue was consistent compared to the prior year. 



 U N I V E R S I T Y  O F  C A L I F O R N I A  M E D I C A L  C E N T E R S  1 7 / 1 8  A N N U A L  F I N A N C I A L  R E P O R T           35

Operating Expenses
Operating expenses fluctuate based on patient statistics, including inpatient occupancy levels, the volume of outpatient visits  
and the mix of services provided. Additionally, expenses are impacted by inflation and ongoing cost containment efforts by the 
Medical Centers. The following table summarizes the operating expenses for the Medical Centers:

(in thousands of dollars)

Davis Irvine Los Angeles San Diego San Francisco TOTAL

2018

Salaries and wages $898,454 $427,120 $1,011,430 $671,513 $1,589,405 $4,597,922

Pension benefits 107,400 37,541 121,203 86,068 194,567 546,779

Retiree health benefits 89,497 34,908 109,242 77,397 161,755 472,799

Other employee benefits 174,866 89,914 202,184 185,116 269,081 921,161

Professional services 129,586 22,414 35,315 63,125 726,528 976,968

Medical supplies 344,284 183,205 346,885 408,936 609,932 1,893,242

Other supplies and purchased services 139,897 145,814 404,539 150,869 368,743 1,209,862

Depreciation and amortization 76,331 78,723 147,785 93,379 216,292 612,510

Insurance and other 85,254 23,024 15,464 77,362 105,813 306,917

Total $2,045,569 $1,042,663 $2,394,047 $1,813,765 $4,242,116 $11,538,160

2017

Salaries and wages $844,408 $407,671 $972,473 $620,548 $1,496,989 $4,342,089

Pension benefits 138,692 65,965 157,056 102,403 223,821 687,937

Retiree health benefits 104,795 46,113 127,609 79,684 177,865 536,066

Other employee benefits 163,447 118,183 201,544 173,917 272,697 929,788

Professional services 119,988 24,240 40,363 49,322 660,395 894,308

Medical supplies 310,960 155,943 326,994 348,549 543,119 1,685,565

Other supplies and purchased services 141,370 144,902 402,568 147,549 318,791 1,155,180

Depreciation and amortization 78,839 69,271 142,841 76,779 210,913 578,643

Insurance and other 81,163 18,489 13,324 69,835 98,861 281,672

Total $1,983,662 $1,050,777 $2,384,772 $1,668,586 $4,003,451 $11,091,248

2016

Salaries and wages $800,159 $406,619 $924,643 $528,171 $1,389,825 $4,049,417

Pension benefits 185,667 91,575 211,154 119,576 247,971 855,943

Retiree health benefits 124,210 60,645 136,790 80,253 170,434 572,332

Other employee benefits 161,394 87,581 197,504 150,406 288,656 885,541

Professional services 103,469 13,608 44,725 51,058 608,724 821,584

Medical supplies 307,472 142,439 314,613 307,050 505,000 1,576,574

Other supplies and purchased services 141,457 141,628 360,980 154,564 292,693 1,091,322

Depreciation and amortization 79,291 68,706 134,100 58,391 205,146 545,634

Insurance and other 71,799 22,353 12,395 57,732 114,245 278,524

Total $1,974,918 $1,035,154 $2,336,904 $1,507,201 $3,822,694 $10,676,871



36     M A N A G E M E N T ’ S  D I S C U S S I O N  A N D  A N A L Y S I S

The following graph illustrates the percentage of operating expenses by type: 

Davis 47  43  5 76  16  8

39  6 4  

39 9  6 8

7  

7 2 

2    1415  211

41  4 3  8  1    1418  29

1 14 14

Irvine

Los Angeles

San Diego

San Francisco 2017

2018

2016

2017

2018

2016

2017

2018

2016

2017

2018

2016

2017

2018

2016

Salaries and wages Pension benefits Retiree health benefits Other employee benefits Professional services

Other supplies and purchased services Depreciation and amortization Insurance and otherMedical supplies

shown in percentages

6  41 5 1714 27  8 

6  6  1  

6  42 5 1714 15  8 2  

9  40 8  1513  2

1  

4  

5  6 37  10 921  35 

5 637  7  714  164  

5  6  

4  

5 537  6  914  174  3  

6  36  8 613  164  

108  5 35  10 5

4

5  5 37  10 823  34 5

20  3

8 9 41  6  4    716  5

4

45  44  4 76  17  9 4

4

Total operating expenses changed in 2018 as follows:

Increased (decreased) in millions of dollars

Davis $61.9 3.1% Lower pension and retiree health expenses were offset by hourly wage increases. 
Supply costs are consistent with volume.

Irvine (8.1) (0.8) Lower pension and retiree health benefits were offset by a net increase in salaries mainly 
due to rate changes. Other employee benefits — vacation accrual was a one-time 
charge in fiscal year 2017. Medical supply costs increased consistent with volume.

Los Angeles 9.3 0.4 Increases in salaries, other employee benefits, medical supplies, and other supplies 
and purchased services due to volume increases and wage rate increases.

San Diego 145.2 8.7 Overall increase reflects 9.5% increase in patient census.

San Francisco 238.7 6.0 Increase due to higher patient volumes and annual cost inflation offset  
by lower pension and retiree health costs.

Total operating expenses changed in 2017 as follows:

Increased (decreased) in millions of dollars

Davis $8.7 0.4% Salary increases were offset by lower pension and retiree health benefits,  
while supply costs were consistent with volume.

Irvine 15.6 1.5 Overall expenses were consistent with prior year. Other employee benefits  
increased due to vacation accrual.

Los Angeles 47.9 2.0 Increases in salaries, other employee benefits, medical supplies, and other supplies 
and purchased services due to volume increases and wage rate increases.

San Diego 161.4 10.7 The increase in salaries, employee benefits, and medical supplies reflects higher  
patient volume, scheduled increases for employees, and inflation. In addition,  
the opening of Jacobs Medical Center in November 2016 resulted in pre-opening  
and transition expenses such as staff training, as well as higher depreciation expense.

San Francisco 180.8 4.7 Increase in salaries and benefits, professional fees and medical supplies is primarily 
due to increased patient volumes and wage rate increases.



 U N I V E R S I T Y  O F  C A L I F O R N I A  M E D I C A L  C E N T E R S  1 7 / 1 8  A N N U A L  F I N A N C I A L  R E P O R T           37

Salaries and Benefits
Salary and employee benefits expenses include wages paid to employees, vacation, holiday and sick pay, payroll taxes, workers’ 
compensation insurance premiums, health insurance, pension and retiree health benefits expenses and other employee benefits. 
Salaries and benefits as a percentage of total operating revenues have changed primarily due to favorable changes in pension  
and retiree health expenses, offset by higher salaries.

(shown as percentage)

2018 2017 2016

Davis 57.2% 58.3% 65.7% Decrease due to lower pension and retiree health costs offset by an 
increase in salaries.

Irvine 50.1 57.1 64.0 Payroll increase was offset by pension and retiree health benefits 
decrease.

Los Angeles 57.4 58.3 62.2 Decrease due to lower pension and retiree health benefit expense 
partially offset by an increase in wages.

San Diego 52.6 57.8 56.9 Decrease due to revenue growth higher than growth in salaries, and 
reduced pension and retiree health expense.

San Francisco 50.7 54.9 58.8 Decrease due to lower pension and retiree health benefit expense 
offset by an increase in salaries and wages resulting from increased 
patient volumes.

Approximately one-half of the Medical Centers’ workforces, including nurses and employees providing ancillary services, expand  
and contract with patient volumes. Salaries and wages, full-time employees (FTEs) and salary and wage rates changed as follows:

Increased (decreased) in millions of dollars

2018 2017

Salaries and Wages FTEs Rate Changes Salaries and Wages FTEs Rate Changes

Davis $54.0 6.4% 216 2.7% $31.5 3.6% $44.2 5.5% 174 2.2% $26.6 3.3%

Irvine 19.4 4.8 (21) (0.5) 21.4 5.3 1.1 0.3 (52) (1.2) 4.1 1.1

Los Angeles 39.0 4.0 118 1.3 26.2 2.7 47.8 5.2 123 1.3 34.9 3.8

San Diego 51.0 8.2 363 5.4 17.6 2.8 92.4 17.5 818 13.9 19.2 3.6

San Francisco 92.4 6.2 214 1.8 66.0 4.3 107.2 7.7 464 4.0 51.9 3.6

Employee benefits changed as follows:  

Increased (decreased) in millions of dollars

2018 2017

Pension Retiree Health Other Employee 
Benefits Pension Retiree Health Other Employee 

Benefits

Davis ($31.3) (22.6%) ($15.3) (14.6%) $11.4 7.0% ($47.0) (25.3%) ($19.4) (15.6%) $2.1 1.3%

Irvine (28.4) (43.1) (11.2) (24.3) (28.3) (23.9) (25.6) (28.0) (14.5) (24.0) 30.6 34.9

Los Angeles (35.9) (22.8) (18.4) (14.4) 0.6 0.3 (54.1) (25.6) (9.2) (6.7) 4.0 2.0

San Diego (16.3) (16.0) (2.3) (2.9) 11.2 6.4 (17.2) (14.4) (0.6) (0.7) 23.5 15.6

San Francisco (29.3) (13.1) (16.1) (9.1) (3.6) (1.3) (24.2) (9.7) 7.4 4.4 (16.0) (5.5)



38     M A N A G E M E N T ’ S  D I S C U S S I O N  A N D  A N A L Y S I S

Substantially all full-time employees of the Medical Centers participate in the University of California Retirement Plan (UCRP).  
The University has a financial responsibility for pension benefits associated with its defined benefit plans. The Medical Centers are 
required to contribute at a rate set by The Regents. Employer contribution rates were 14.0 percent in 2018, 2017 and 2016, of covered 
compensation. Pension expense is allocated to the Medical Centers based on their proportionate share of covered compensation for 
the fiscal year. Pension expense fluctuates primarily based on expected as compared to actual investment returns and the trend in the 
Medical Centers' proportionate share of the net pension liability. Pension expenses were lower in 2018 and 2017 due to higher than 
expected investment returns. Pension expense and contributions for the Medical Centers related to UCRP were as follows:

(In thousands of dollars)

2018 2017 2016

Medical Center 
Pension Expense

Pension 
Contributions

Medical Center 
Pension Expense

Pension 
Contributions

Medical Center 
Pension Expense

Pension 
Contributions

Davis $107,400 $111,593 $138,692 $102,403 $185,667 $95,435

Irvine 38,750 48,153 63,997 48,710 90,499 46,628

Los Angeles 121,203 122,001 157,056 111,966 211,154 105,103

San Diego 86,068 79,580 102,403 69,647 119,576 60,001

San Francisco 172,233 153,693 203,864 139,730 226,586 124,681

Total $525,654 $515,020 $666,012 $472,456 $833,482 $431,848

The University administers single-employer health and welfare plans to provide primarily medical, dental and vision benefits to  
eligible retirees (and their eligible family members) of the University of California and its affiliates through the University of California 
Retiree Health Benefit Trust (UCRHBT). The University has a financial responsibility for retiree health benefits associated with UCRHBT. 
The Medical Centers are required to contribute at a rate assessed each year by the University based upon projected pay-as-you-go 
financing requirements. Retiree health benefits expense is allocated to the Medical Centers based on their proportionate share of 
covered compensation for the fiscal year. Retiree health expenses were lower in 2018 and 2017 due to the increases in the discount 
rate. Retiree health benefits expenses and contributions for the Medical Centers are as follows:

(In thousands of dollars)

2018 2017 2016

Retiree Health 
Expense

Retiree Health 
Contributions

Retiree Health 
Expense

Retiree Health 
Contributions

Retiree Health 
Expense

Retiree Health 
Contributions

Davis $89,497 $22,535 $104,795 $21,562 $124,210 $20,334

Irvine 34,908 10,170 46,113 10,089 60,645 10,433

Los Angeles 109,242 26,042 127,609 24,975 136,790 23,664

San Diego 77,397 16,088 79,684 14,677 80,253 12,780

San Francisco 161,755 33,182 177,865 31,217 170,434 28,147

Total $472,799 $108,017 $536,066 $102,520 $572,332 $95,358

Other employee benefits fluctuated due to changes in the number of employees and higher health insurance costs. 

Professional Services
Professional services include payments to the Schools of Medicine for physician services in the hospitals and clinics, payments to other 
health care providers for capitated patients, outside lab fees, organ acquisition fees, transcription fees and legal fees. 

Professional services changed in 2018 as follows:

Increased (decreased) in millions of dollars

Davis $9.6 8.0% Increases are primarily due to professional network costs for physician services.

Irvine (1.8) (7.5) Decrease due to fewer medical directors and lower consulting costs.

Los Angeles (5.0) (12.5) Decrease due to lower legal fees, lower costs related to consulting and management 
fees due to cessation of information technology and revenue cycle projects.

San Diego 13.8 28.0 Increase primarily due to realignment of call coverage fees paid to several physician 
specialties.

San Francisco 66.1 10.0 Increase due to growth of patient volumes. Professional services include the UCSF Faculty 
Clinical Practices, while other UC Health entities only reflect hospital performance.



 U N I V E R S I T Y  O F  C A L I F O R N I A  M E D I C A L  C E N T E R S  1 7 / 1 8  A N N U A L  F I N A N C I A L  R E P O R T           39

Professional services changed in 2017 as follows:

Increased (decreased) in millions of dollars

Davis $16.5 16.0% Increases are due to professional network costs for physician services.

Irvine 10.6 78.1 Mainly due to increase in consulting fees to optimize operational efficiency.

Los Angeles (4.4) (9.8) Lower costs related to consulting and management fees due to cessation of 
information technology and revenue cycle projects. In addition, there was a  
slight decrease in medical director fees.

San Diego (1.7) (3.4) There was a reduction of call coverage fees paid to physicians.

San Francisco 51.7 8.5 Increase due to growth of patient volumes which increases payments  
for physician services.

Medical Supplies
Medical supply costs fluctuate with patient volumes. Medical supplies are also subject to significant inflationary pressures due to 
escalating pharmaceutical costs and continued innovation in implants, prosthetics and other medical supplies. The Medical Centers 
have ongoing initiatives to control supply utilization and to negotiate competitive pricing. 

Medical supply expenses, including pharmaceuticals, changed in 2018 as follows:

Increased (decreased) in millions of dollars

Davis $33.3 10.7% Increases in volume and utilization of higher priced pharmaceuticals contributed  
to the change.

Irvine 27.3 17.5 Increase due to new specialty pharmacy opening in fiscal year 2018 therefore 
increasing pharmaceutical supplies cost.

Los Angeles 19.9 6.1 Increase due to higher pharmaceutical costs, increased surgical volumes and 
transplant cases.

San Diego 60.4 17.3 Increase primarily reflects higher patient volume and inflation, particularly for 
pharmaceuticals.

San Francisco 66.8 12.3 Increase primarily due to higher pharmaceutical and blood costs for high cost 
treatment therapies.

Medical supply expenses, including pharmaceuticals, changed in 2017 as follows:

Increased (decreased) in millions of dollars

Davis $3.5 1.1% An increase in volume contributed to the higher costs.

Irvine 13.5 9.5 Medical supplies increased due to higher surgical volume and pharmaceutical expense 
increased due to increased discharge, case mix intensity and growth in cancer center.

Los Angeles 12.4 3.9 Increase due to higher pharmaceutical costs as a result of an increase in the usage of 
expensive medications. Additionally, medical supplies increased as a result of surgical 
volumes and laboratory supply costs.

San Diego 41.5 13.5 The increase was due to higher patient volumes, inflation and an increase in usage  
of higher cost pharmaceuticals.

San Francisco 38.1 7.5 Increase due to higher patient volumes and growth of surgical cases.

Other Supplies and Purchased Services
Other supplies and purchased services include non-medical supplies, medical purchased services, repairs and maintenance.

Other supplies and purchased services changed in 2018 as follows:

Increased (decreased) in millions of dollars

Davis ($1.5) (1.0%) Other supplies and purchased services are consistent with prior year.

Irvine 0.9 0.6 Slight increase in non-medical supplies offset by decrease in purchased services.

Los Angeles 2.0 0.5 Increase in repairs and maintenance costs and an increase in genetic testing.

San Diego 3.3 2.3 Increase was below growth in patient census and reflects process improvements.

San Francisco 50.0 15.7 Increase due to higher purchased medical services as a result of increased  
patient volumes and repair and maintenance costs.



40     M A N A G E M E N T ’ S  D I S C U S S I O N  A N D  A N A L Y S I S

Other supplies and purchased services changed in 2017 as follows:

Increased (decreased) in millions of dollars

Davis ($0.1) (0.1%) Other supplies and purchased services are consistent with prior year.

Irvine 3.3 2.3 Increases mainly due to increase in non-medical services and increased campus 
services operations.

Los Angeles 41.6 11.5 Purchased services increased as a result of more transplant cases. Additionally, 
non-medical supplies increased as a result of surgical volumes and laboratory  
supply costs.

San Diego (7.0) (4.5) The decrease was primarily due to the completion of process improvements that 
resulted in lower purchased services expense in the revenue cycle department  
as well as other areas.

San Francisco 26.1 8.9 Increase due to higher repair and maintenance costs and higher externally purchased 
medical services due to greater patient volume.

Depreciation and Amortization
Depreciation and amortization expense changed in 2018 as follows:

Increased (decreased) in millions of dollars

Davis ($2.5) (3.2%) Deferred capital maintenance resulted in lower depreciation expense.

Irvine 9.5 13.6 Increase due to EPIC project and Chao Comprehensive Digestive Disease Center  
being placed into service.

Los Angeles 4.9 3.5 Increase due to completed projects and new equipment that were capitalized  
during the year.

San Diego 16.6 21.6 Increase reflects first full year of Jacobs Medical Center, opening of Koman Family 
Outpatient Pavilion in March 2018, and other projects and equipment.

San Francisco 5.4 2.6 Increase due to the completion of the Benioff Children's Hospital Oakland  
Outpatient Center and new equipment placed in service during the year.

Depreciation and amortization expense changed in 2017 as follows:

Increased (decreased) in millions of dollars

Davis ($0.5) (0.6%) Depreciation and amortization are consistent with prior year.

Irvine 0.6 0.8 Slight increase due to capitalization of software projects involving health system security.

Los Angeles 8.7 6.5 Increase due to completed projects and new equipment that were capitalized during 
the year.

San Diego 18.4 31.5 The increase was due to the opening of Jacobs Medical Center in November 2016.

San Francisco 5.8 2.8 Increase due to completed projects and new equipment placed in service during the year.

Insurance
The Medical Centers are insured through the University’s malpractice, general liability, workers’ compensation and health and welfare  
self-insurance programs. All claims and related expenses are paid from the University’s self-insurance funds or captive insurance 
company. Rates for each Medical Center are established based upon claims experience and insurance cost increase or decrease 
with favorable or unfavorable claims experience. CHRCO has a claims-made policy for malpractice, and is self-insured for workers’ 
compensation and health and welfare benefits.



 U N I V E R S I T Y  O F  C A L I F O R N I A  M E D I C A L  C E N T E R S  1 7 / 1 8  A N N U A L  F I N A N C I A L  R E P O R T           41

Income (Loss) from Operations
The Medical Centers reported income (loss) from operations and operating margins of: 

(in millions of dollars)

2018 2017 2016

Income from  
Operations Operating Margin Income (loss) from  

Operations Operating Margin Income (loss) from  
Operations Operating Margin

Davis $176.2 7.9% $163.7 7.6% ($39.6) (2.0%)

Irvine 134.8 11.5 65.5 5.9 (25.5) (2.5)

Los Angeles 120.0 4.8 117.8 4.7 27.1 1.1

San Diego 124.5 6.4 19.6 1.2 37.5 2.4

San Francisco 128.3 2.9 (51.7) (1.3) (255.4) (7.2)

Total $683.8 $314.9 ($255.9)

In 2018 and 2017, operating results improved due to increased volumes, higher supplemental revenues and lower pension and retiree 
health benefits expenses. Operating results also improved in San Diego and San Francisco as a result of increased volumes related to 
opening new hospitals in 2017 and 2015, respectively.

Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)
Non-operating revenues and expenses include Hospital Fee Program revenue, federal subsidies for bond interest, private gifts, investment 
income, interest expense and changes in fair value expense and losses on disposals of capital assets. Non-operating revenues and 
expenses for the years that ended June 30 are as follows:

(in thousands of dollars)

Davis Irvine Los Angeles San Diego San Francisco TOTAL

Net non-operating revenues (expenses):

2018 $15,612 ($12,761) $9,872 ($24,959) $46,189 $33,953

2017 9,467 (17,961) (36,579) (10,470) 24,134 (31,409)

2016 (461) (20,450) (24,398) 16 (14,756) (60,049)

Net non-operating revenues (expenses) improved (declined) in 2018 as follows:

Change in millions of dollars

Davis $6.1 64.9% Capitalization of interest costs resulted in lower expense, while higher cash balances 
and outstanding notes receivables resulted in more interest income.

Irvine 5.2 29.0 Net non-operating expenses decreased due to increase in grant and interest income.

Los Angeles 46.5 127.0 Increase is primarily due to an increase in revenue from the Hospital Fee Program 
grants, an increase in investment income and a decrease in interest expense.  
In the prior year, there was a significant loss on a hedge termination.

San Diego (14.5) (138.4) Decrease is due to interest expense for full year of Jacobs Medical Center.

San Francisco 22.1 91.4 Increase due to additional Hospital Fee Program grants, increases in investment 
income and contributions.

Net non-operating revenues (expenses) improved (declined) in 2017 as follows:

Change in millions of dollars

Davis $9.9 2,153.6% Capitalization of interest costs resulted in lower expense, while higher cash balances 
yielded more interest income. Additionally, joint venture income improved over last year.

Irvine 2.5 12.2 Changes due to slight increase in interest income offset by decrease in interest expense.

Los Angeles (12.2) (49.9) Decrease in revenue due to the loss on termination of hedge. The decrease was partially 
offset by an increase in the net appreciation of fair value for long-term investments.

San Diego (10.5) (65,537.5) Interest expense was greater as less total interest costs were capitalized during the year 
with the completion of Jacobs Medical Center in November 2016. This was partially offset 
by higher revenue from Hospital Fee Program grants and higher investment income.

San Francisco 38.9 263.6 Investment income increased from the prior year.



42     M A N A G E M E N T ’ S  D I S C U S S I O N  A N D  A N A L Y S I S

Income (Loss) Before Other Changes in Net Position
Income (loss) before other changes in net position fluctuates consistent with operating results. Income (loss) before other changes  
in net position for the Medical Centers is as follows:

(in thousands of dollars)

Davis Irvine Los Angeles San Diego San Francisco TOTAL

2018 $191,804 $122,080 $129,890 $99,505 $174,479 $717,758

2017 173,179 47,589 81,201 9,106 (27,563) 283,512

2016 (40,105) (45,953) 2,736 37,473 (270,133) (315,982)

Changes in income (loss) before other changes in net position in 2018 are as follows:

Increased (decreased) in millions of dollars

Davis $18.6 10.8% The increase is due to higher volume which outpaced expenses, along with one-time 
third-party settlements.

Irvine 74.5 156.5 Overall increase due to increase in patient revenue offset by decreases in pension,  
retiree health benefits and non-operating expenses.

Los Angeles 48.7 60.0 Increase is primarily due to the reduction in pension and retiree health benefits expense.

San Diego 90.4 992.7 Increase primarily due to revenue from higher patient census that outpaced expenses.

San Francisco 202.0 733.0 Increase due to higher patient volumes which outpaced expenses including a reduction 
in pension and retiree health expenses and prior year Medicare cost report settlements.

Changes in income (loss) before other changes in net position in 2017 are as follows:

Increased (decreased) in millions of dollars

Davis $213.3 531.8% The increase is due to higher volume which outpaced expenses, along with one-time 
third-party settlements.

Irvine 93.5 203.6 Increase in patient income from operations and Medi-Cal waiver program income.

Los Angeles 78.5 2,867.9 The increase is primarily due to growth in net patient service revenue attributed  
to increases from contracts and the Medicare and Medi-Cal programs.

San Diego (28.4) (75.7) This decrease is primarily due to additional costs for opening and operating the new 
Jacobs Medical Center that have not yet been fully covered by new revenues.

San Francisco 242.6 89.8 Increase due to higher patient volumes, an increase of Medi-Cal supplemental funds 
approved in the year, a decrease of pension expense and higher investment income.



 U N I V E R S I T Y  O F  C A L I F O R N I A  M E D I C A L  C E N T E R S  1 7 / 1 8  A N N U A L  F I N A N C I A L  R E P O R T           43

Other Changes in Net Position
Health system support includes amounts paid to the Schools of Medicine by the Medical Centers to fund the operating activities, 
clinical research and faculty practice plans, as well as other payments for various programs. Transfers from the respective campuses  
to fund capital projects are reported as contributions for building programs. The following table presents total other changes in  
net position as follows:

(in thousands of dollars)

Davis Irvine Los Angeles San Diego San Francisco TOTAL

2018 ($46,757) ($30,886) ($201,812) ($155,601) $18,460 ($416,596)

2017 (29,562) (50,705) (166,007) (88,902) (47,588) (382,764)

2016 (49,060) (60,492) (170,042) (48,663) (20,939) (349,196)

Other changes in net position changed in 2018 as follows:

Increased (decreased) in millions of dollars

Davis ($17.2) (58.2%) The change is primarily due to the Medical Center transferring an under utilized  
building to the University. Additionally, there were initiatives executed by the  
University, but funded by the Medical Center. 

Irvine 19.8 39.1 The change is due to increased patient revenues and lower pension and related expenses.

Los Angeles (35.8) (21.6) Payments for health system support, representing transfers to the School of Medicine 
in support of the overall strategic plan.

San Diego (66.7) (75.0) Decrease primarily due to slow down of gifts and donations now that primary  
fundraising for Jacobs Medical Center is complete; and increased payments for  
health system support.

San Francisco 66.0 138.8 Change is due to funds donated for the construction of the Precision Cancer Medical 
Building offset by an increase in health system support.

Other changes in net position changed in 2017 as follows:

Increased (decreased) in millions of dollars

Davis $19.5 39.7% The change is primarily due to changes in strategic academic support. Additionally, the 
School of Medicine shared supplemental Medi-Cal revenues with the Medical Center.

Irvine 9.8 16.2 Change due to increase in pension payable to University offset by decrease in health 
system support.

Los Angeles 4.0 2.4 Payments for health system support, representing transfers to the School of Medicine 
in support of the overall strategic plan.

San Diego (40.2) (82.7) This was primarily because capital contributions received for Jacobs Medical Center 
construction were lower than in the prior year, while health system support  
transfers increased.

San Francisco (26.6) (127.3) Change is primarily due to an increase of health system support.



44     M A N A G E M E N T ’ S  D I S C U S S I O N  A N D  A N A L Y S I S

STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION

The statements of net position for 2017 and 2016 for San Francisco have been restated for an accounting change related to irrevocable 
split-interest agreements that was implemented in 2018. The following tables are abbreviated statements of net position at June 30: 

(in thousands of dollars)

Davis Irvine Los Angeles San Diego San Francisco TOTAL

2018

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $741,159 $331,844 $943,930 $293,548 $823,411 $3,133,892

Net patient accounts receivable 248,467 155,384 330,172 321,636 594,448 1,650,107

Short-term investments and other current assets 149,804 101,758 392,120 139,660 230,295 1,013,637

  Total current assets 1,139,430 588,986 1,666,222 754,844 1,648,154 5,797,636

Restricted assets 45,783 41,547 10,928 4,138 78,109 180,505

Capital assets, net 1,080,332 759,413 1,717,689 1,661,760 2,375,485 7,594,679

Investments and other noncurrent assets 105,448 94,761 20,214 215,288 435,711

  Total assets 2,370,993 1,389,946 3,489,600 2,440,956 4,317,036 14,008,531

Deferred outflows of resources 330,997 128,954 454,015 401,567 775,863 2,091,396

Liabilities:

Current liabilities 408,938 230,244 471,304 246,776 655,904 2,013,166

Long-term debt 342,030 335,335 908,811 792,429 922,666 3,301,271

Net pension liability 643,552 292,837 706,286 460,577 910,558 3,013,810

Net retiree health benefits liability 1,215,567 548,548 1,404,685 867,819 1,789,855 5,826,474

Other liabilities 266,959 138,408 343,508 290,933 404,824 1,444,632

  Total liabilities 2,877,046 1,545,372 3,834,594 2,658,534 4,683,807 15,599,353

Deferred inflows of resources 388,442 234,578 447,245 274,761 583,859 1,928,885

Net position:

Net investment in capital assets 698,049 421,341 780,373 847,607 1,447,759 4,195,129

Restricted 45,783 41,547 10,884 77,245 175,459

Unrestricted (1,307,330) (723,938) (1,129,481) (938,379) (1,699,771) (5,798,899)

  Total net position ($563,498) ($261,050) ($338,224) ($90,772) ($174,767) ($1,428,311)



 U N I V E R S I T Y  O F  C A L I F O R N I A  M E D I C A L  C E N T E R S  1 7 / 1 8  A N N U A L  F I N A N C I A L  R E P O R T           45

(in thousands of dollars)

Davis Irvine Los Angeles San Diego San Francisco TOTAL

2017

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $628,409 $342,862 $1,007,761 $394,822 $626,724 $3,000,578

Net patient accounts receivable 242,561 122,480 317,226 254,358 554,803 1,491,428

Short-term investments and other current assets 128,055 61,809 146,281 91,587 154,000 581,732

  Total current assets 999,025 527,151 1,471,268 740,767 1,335,527 5,073,738

Restricted assets 86,748 69,703 13,781 9,954 90,724 270,910

Capital assets, net 1,030,246 734,509 1,749,540 1,620,948 2,349,538 7,484,781

Investments and other noncurrent assets 18,194 308,331 21,426 195,072 543,023

  Total assets 2,134,213 1,331,363 3,542,920 2,393,095 3,970,861 13,372,452

Deferred outflows of resources 362,917 160,399 516,101 345,110 836,506 2,221,033

Liabilities:

Current liabilities 328,609 270,520 404,441 231,802 592,470 1,827,842

Long-term debt 362,743 338,340 934,794 754,170 928,264 3,318,311

Net pension liability 675,141 340,003 741,290 459,781 961,088 3,177,303

Net retiree health benefits liability 1,227,803 574,394 1,422,069 835,720 1,777,540 5,837,526

Other noncurrent liabilities 242,313 115,732 400,951 240,242 368,317 1,367,555

  Total liabilities 2,836,609 1,638,989 3,903,545 2,521,715 4,627,679 15,528,537

Deferred inflows of resources 369,066 205,017 421,778 251,166 547,394 1,794,421

Net position:

Net investment in capital assets 640,415 393,404 790,467 857,221 1,396,747 4,078,254

Restricted 86,748 69,703 11,138 89,739 257,328

Unrestricted (1,435,708) (815,351) (1,067,907) (891,897) (1,854,192) (6,065,055)

  Total net position ($708,545) ($352,244) ($266,302) ($34,676) ($367,706) ($1,729,473)

(in thousands of dollars)

Davis Irvine Los Angeles San Diego San Francisco TOTAL

2016

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $464,908 $253,332 $903,617 $465,589 $450,701 $2,538,147

Net patient accounts receivable 236,285 135,199 320,492 199,428 493,161 1,384,565

Short-term investments and other current assets 124,593 89,431 95,381 92,875 176,469 578,749

Total current assets 825,786 477,962 1,319,490 757,892 1,120,331 4,501,461

Restricted assets 14,038 24,015 61,546 99,599

Capital assets, net 1,004,073 718,179 1,813,446 1,471,118 2,381,726 7,388,542

Investments and other noncurrent assets 18,837 285,880 13,058 163,044 480,819

Total assets 1,848,696 1,196,141 3,432,854 2,266,083 3,726,647 12,470,421

Deferred outflows of resources 630,774 303,895 774,292 422,288 1,003,134 3,134,383

Liabilities:

Current liabilities 374,616 240,452 421,741 234,871 510,171 1,781,851

Long-term debt 268,671 267,344 837,071 684,672 829,519 2,887,277

Net pension liability 895,967 456,616 990,520 564,996 1,237,418 4,145,517

Net retiree health benefits liability 1,385,392 678,034 1,531,589 873,597 1,810,693 6,279,305

Other noncurrent liabilities 212,198 102,884 398,707 158,108 371,515 1,243,412

Total liabilities 3,136,844 1,745,330 4,179,628 2,516,244 4,759,316 16,337,362

Deferred inflows of resources 194,788 103,834 209,014 127,007 261,881 896,524

Net position:

Net investment in capital assets 701,366 446,355 959,252 749,527 1,475,111 4,331,611

Restricted 11,360 63,785 75,145

Unrestricted (1,553,528) (795,483) (1,152,108) (704,407) (1,830,312) (6,035,838)

  Total net position ($852,162) ($349,128) ($181,496) $45,120 ($291,416) ($1,629,082)



46     M A N A G E M E N T ’ S  D I S C U S S I O N  A N D  A N A L Y S I S

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents changed in 2018 as follows:

Increased (decreased) in millions of dollars

Davis $112.8 17.9% Increase in cash is due to the strong operational performance as well as an increase  
in interest.

Irvine (11.0) (3.2) Decrease due to payments to suppliers, salaries and employee benefits outpacing 
accounts receivable collections.

Los Angeles (63.8) (6.3) Decrease is primarily due to the pay-off of the Note Payable to Campus.

San Diego (101.3) (25.7) Decrease due to construction and opening of Koman Family Outpatient Pavilion  
and increased health system support.

San Francisco 196.7 31.4 Increase due to the result of strong financial performance from hospital operations.

Cash and cash equivalents changed in 2017 as follows:

 Increased (decreased) in millions of dollars

Davis $163.5 35.2% Increase in cash is due to the strong operational performance.

Irvine 89.5 35.3 Increase in cash due to improved operating income and reduced patient  
accounts receivable.

Los Angeles 104.1 11.5 Increase in cash is due to higher patient A/R cash collections, cash from third-party 
settlements and capital financing activities.

San Diego (70.8) (15.2) The decrease is primarily the result of revenues not yet matching the pre-opening  
and operating costs of Jacobs Medical Center, which opened in November 2016.

San Francisco 176.0 39.1 Increase due to an increase of cash from hospital operations.

Patient Accounts Receivable
Patient accounts receivable, net of estimated uncollectible accounts, changed in 2018 as follows:

Increased (decreased) in millions of dollars

Davis $5.9 2.4% Higher volume was offset by improved collections.

Irvine 32.9 26.9 Increase due to EPIC revenue cycle conversion.

Los Angeles 12.9 4.1 Increase due to timing of payments from Medi-Cal and Contract payors.

San Diego 67.3 26.5 Increase primarily due to the opening of new facilities near the end of the fiscal year and 
payer related issues that temporarily increased days in patient receivables at year end.

San Francisco 39.6 7.1 Increase due to higher patient volumes.

Patient accounts receivable, net of estimated uncollectible accounts, changed in 2017 as follows:

Increased (decreased) in millions of dollars

Davis $6.3 2.7% Higher volume was offset by improved collections.

Irvine (12.7) (9.4) Reduced receivables due to improved billing and collection efforts.

Los Angeles (3.3) (1.0) The decrease was due to continued revenue cycle improvements during the year.

San Diego 54.9 27.5 The increase was due to increased patient volumes after the opening of Jacobs Medical 
Center in November 2016, and to the timing difference of a large adjustment to the 
Medicare interim payment rate that was not received until early July.

San Francisco 61.6 12.5 Increase due to higher patient volumes.



 U N I V E R S I T Y  O F  C A L I F O R N I A  M E D I C A L  C E N T E R S  1 7 / 1 8  A N N U A L  F I N A N C I A L  R E P O R T           47

Capital Assets
Net capital assets changed in 2018 as follows:

 Increased (decreased) in millions of dollars

Davis $50.1 4.9% Ongoing construction resulted in higher capital expenditures.

Irvine 24.9 3.4 Increase due to EPIC system and construction of chiller plant and electrical systems.

Los Angeles (31.9) (1.8) Annual depreciation exceeded capital projects for the year.

San Diego 40.8 2.5 Increase primarily due to construction of Komen Family Outpatient Pavilion.

San Francisco 25.9 1.1 Increase due to the construction of the Precision Cancer Medical Building  
and the Benioff Children's Hospital Oakland Outpatient Center.

Net capital assets changed in 2017 as follows:

 Increased (decreased) in millions of dollars

Davis $26.2 2.6% Ongoing construction resulted in higher capital expenditures. 

Irvine 16.3 2.3 Increased capital expenditures and equipment purchases.

Los Angeles (63.9) (3.5) Annual depreciation exceeded capital projects for the year.

San Diego 149.8 10.2 Net of depreciation, this increase was primarily for construction costs of the  
Jacobs Medical Center and the Outpatient Pavilion, as well as for equipment  
for those new buildings.

San Francisco (32.2) (1.4) Depreciation increased with the opening of the Mission Bay facility in 2015 and has 
exceeded capital projects for the past two years.

Long-term Debt
Long-term debt, including the current portion, changed in 2018 as follows:

 Increased (decreased) in millions of dollars

Davis ($21.4) (5.6%) Debt service payments were made reducing the long-term debt.

Irvine (3.0) (0.9) Debt service payments were made reducing the long-term debt.

Los Angeles (24.4) (2.5) Debt service payments were made reducing the long-term debt.

San Diego 44.6 5.8 Increase primarily due to equipment financing arrangements related to  
Koman Family Pavilion, net of scheduled debt service payments.

San Francisco (5.4) (0.6) Debt service payments were made reducing long-term debt.

Long-term debt, including the current portion, changed in 2017 as follows:

 Increased (decreased) in millions of dollars

Davis $90.0 30.6% Increase is due to issuance of new debt exceeding refunding of old debt. 

Irvine 69.4 25.6 Increase due to issuance of new bonds.

Los Angeles 104.8 12.2 The increase is due to the refinancing of debt with new pooled revenue bonds  
and other borrowings.

San Diego 72.3 10.3 The increase, net of debt service payments, is due to a new bond issue in August 2016 
that refunded the 2007 A and 2009 E bonds and provided additional funds for Jacobs 
Medical Center construction, as well as two new equipment financing arrangements.

San Francisco 99.5 11.9 New debt was issued in the year to fund capital construction and to refinance  
short-term commercial paper.



48     M A N A G E M E N T ’ S  D I S C U S S I O N  A N D  A N A L Y S I S

Net Pension Liability 
The University has a financial responsibility for pension benefits associated with its defined benefit plans. The net pension liability 
related to UCRP is allocated to the Medical Centers based on their proportionate share of covered compensation for the fiscal year.

(in thousands of dollars)

2018 2017 2016

Proportionate 
Share

Net Pension 
Liability

Proportionate 
Share

Net Pension 
Liability 

Proportionate 
Share

Net Pension 
Liability

Davis 6.8% $643,552 6.7% $675,141 6.6% $895,967

Irvine 3.0 279,015 3.2 321,946 3.2 438,524

Los Angeles 7.5 706,286 7.3 741,290 7.3 990,520

San Diego 4.9 460,577 4.5 459,781 4.1 564,996

San Francisco 9.4 886,409 9.1 919,943 8.6 1,171,002

Total 31.6% $2,975,839 30.8% $3,118,101 29.8% $4,061,009

The changes in net pension liability have been primarily driven by the investment performance of the UCRP investment portfolio. 
UCRP’s total investment rate of return was positive 7.8 percent in 2018, positive 14.5 percent in 2017 and negative 2.0 percent in 2016. 
The discount rate used to estimate the net pension liability was 7.25 percent in 2018, 2017 and 2016.

The Irvine Medical Center’s proportionate share of the net pension liability for the Orange County Employee Retirement System was 
$13.8 million, $18.1 million and $18.1 million as of June 30, 2018, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

CHRCO is the sponsor of a single employer defined benefit plan subject to Employee Retirement Income Security Act (ERISA) that 
covers substantially all full-time employees. The net pension liability for CHRCO is measured as the total pension liability, less the 
amount of the pension plan’s fiduciary net position. The net pension liability for CHRCO was $24.1 million, $41.1 million and  
$66.4 million as of June 30, 2018, 2017 and 2016, respectively, and the liability is reported by San Francisco.

Net Retiree Health Benefits Liability 
The University has a financial responsibility for retiree health benefits. The net retiree health benefits liability is allocated to  
Medical Centers based on their proportionate share of covered compensation for the fiscal year.

(in thousands of dollars)

2018 2017 2016

Proportionate 
Share

Net Retiree Health 
Benefits Liability 

Proportionate 
Share

Net Retiree Health 
Benefits Liability 

Proportionate 
Share

Net Retiree Health 
Benefits Liability

Davis 6.6% $1,215,567 6.6% $1,227,803 6.6% $1,385,392

Irvine 3.0 548,548 3.1 574,394 3.2 678,034

Los Angeles 7.7 1,404,685 7.6 1,422,069 7.3 1,531,589

San Diego 4.8 867,819 4.5 835,720 4.1 873,597

San Francisco 9.8 1,789,855 9.5 1,777,540 8.6 1,810,693

Total 31.9% $5,826,474 31.3% $5,837,526 29.8% $6,279,305

The changes in net retiree health benefits liability have been primarily driven by the changes in discount rates used to estimate the  
net retiree health benefits liability. The discount rate used to estimate the net retiree health benefits liability as of June 30, 2018, 2017 
and 2016 was 3.87 percent, 3.58 percent and 2.85 percent, respectively. The discount rate was based on the Bond Buyer 20-Bond 
General Obligation index since UCRHBT plan assets are not sufficient to make benefit payments.



 U N I V E R S I T Y  O F  C A L I F O R N I A  M E D I C A L  C E N T E R S  1 7 / 1 8  A N N U A L  F I N A N C I A L  R E P O R T           49

Net Position 
Net position represents the residual interest in the Medical Centers’ assets and deferred outflows after all liabilities and deferred 
inflows are deducted. Net position is reported in the following categories: net investment in capital assets; restricted, nonexpendable; 
restricted, expendable; and unrestricted. 

Under generally accepted accounting principles, net position that is not subject to externally imposed restrictions governing its use 
must be classified as unrestricted for reporting purposes. Unrestricted net position is negative primarily due to obligations for pension 
and retiree health benefits exceeding the Medical Centers’ reserves.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Days Cash on Hand
Days cash on hand measures the average number of days’ expenses the Medical Centers maintain in cash and unrestricted investments. 
The goal, set by the University of California Office of the President, is a minimum of 60 days cash on hand. 

Days cash on hand are as follows:

2018 2017 2016

Davis 137 120 90

Irvine 126 128 96

Los Angeles 191 164 150

San Diego 62 91 118

San Francisco 92 77 61

Days of Revenue in Accounts Receivable
The days of revenue in accounts receivable measures the average number of days it takes to collect patient accounts receivable. 
Generally, days of revenue in accounts receivable have increased when Medical Centers implemented new billing systems and  
have decreased as the Medical Centers have streamlined the billing and collection processes. 

Days of revenue in accounts receivable are as follows:

2018 2017 2016

Davis 42 42 46

Irvine 50 41 50

Los Angeles 50 48 52

San Diego 64 58 50

San Francisco 52 54 54

Debt Service Coverage
Debt service coverage ratio measures the amount of funds available to cover the principal and interest on long-term debt.  
Debt service coverage decreases as new debt is issued and increases with stronger operating results. 

Debt service coverage ratios are as follows:

2018 2017 2016

Davis 8.8 6.4 1.3

Irvine 12.7 6.5 1.3

Los Angeles 5.0 4.4 3.5

San Diego 3.8 1.9 2.0

San Francisco 7.4 4.0 (0.3)



50     M A N A G E M E N T ’ S  D I S C U S S I O N  A N D  A N A L Y S I S

LOOKING FORWARD

Payments from Federal and State Health Care Programs
Entities doing business with governmental payors, including Medicare and Medicaid (Medi-Cal in California), are subject to risks  
unique to the government-contracting environment that are difficult to anticipate and quantify. Revenues are subject to adjustment  
as a result of examination by government agencies as well as auditors, contractors and intermediaries retained by the federal, state  
or local governments (collectively “Government Agents”). Resolution of such audits or reviews often extends (and in some cases does 
not even commence until) several years beyond the year in which services were rendered and/or fees were received.

Moreover, Government Agents frequently interpret government regulations and other requirements differently. For example, 
Government Agents might disagree on a patient’s principal medical diagnosis, the appropriate code for a clinical procedure or 
many other matters. Such disagreements might have a significant effect on the ultimate payout due from the government to fully 
recoup sums already paid. Governmental agencies may make changes in program interpretations, requirements or “conditions of 
participation,” some of which may have implications for amounts previously estimated. In addition to varying interpretation and 
evolving codification of the regulations, standards of supporting documentation and required data are subject to wide variation.

In accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, to account for the uncertainty around Medicare and Medicaid revenues, 
each Medical Center estimates the amount of revenue that will ultimately be received under the Medicare and Medi-Cal programs. 
Amounts ultimately received or paid may vary significantly from these estimates.

Hospital Facilities Seismic Safety Act
State of California Senate Bill 1953 (SB 1953), the Hospital Facilities Seismic Safety Act, requires hospitals to meet certain standards 
designed to yield predictable seismic performance, whether at the essential life safety level or post-earthquake continued operations 
level. Buildings used for acute care patient services must either be retrofitted by 2030 or the acute care services must be relocated 
and the building must be closed, repurposed or demolished. The Medical Centers are continuing to address these seismic building 
requirements; however, the cost to comply with the statutory requirements by 2030 cannot be estimated at this time.

Cautionary Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements
Certain information provided by the Medical Centers, including written as outlined above or oral statements made by its representatives, 
may contain forward-looking statements as defined in the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. All statements, other than 
statements of historical facts, which address activities, events or developments that the Medical Centers expect or anticipate will or 
may occur in the future, contain forward-looking information.

In reviewing such information, it should be kept in mind that actual results may differ materially from those projected or suggested 
in such forward-looking information. This forward-looking information is based upon various factors and was derived using various 
assumptions. The Medical Centers do not undertake to update forward-looking information contained in this report or elsewhere  
to reflect actual results, changes in assumptions or changes in other factors affecting such forward-looking information.



 U N I V E R S I T Y  O F  C A L I F O R N I A  M E D I C A L  C E N T E R S  1 7 / 1 8  A N N U A L  F I N A N C I A L  R E P O R T           51



52    

We have audited the accompanying individual financial statements of the University of California, Davis Medical 
Center, the University of California, Irvine Medical Center, the University of California, Los Angeles Medical 
Center, the University of California, San Diego Medical Center, and the University of California, San Francisco 
Medical Center (collectively referred to as the “University of California Medical Centers”), each of which is a 
department of the University of California (the “University”), which comprise the individual statements of net 
position as of June 30, 2018 and 2017, and the related individual statements of revenues, expenses and changes  
in net position and of cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Individual Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the individual financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the 
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation  
of individual financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on the individual financial statements based on our audits. We conducted 
our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards  
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the individual financial 
statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
individual financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of 
the risks of material misstatement of the individual financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making 
those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the University of California Medical Centers’ 
preparation and fair presentation of the individual financial statements in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the University of California Medical Centers’ internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit 
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the individual 
financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to  
provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Report of Independent Auditors

TO THE REGENTS OF THE UNIVERSIT Y OF CALIFORNIA



 U N I V E R S I T Y  O F  C A L I F O R N I A  M E D I C A L  C E N T E R S  1 7 / 1 8  A N N U A L  F I N A N C I A L  R E P O R T           53

Opinions

In our opinion, the individual financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
individual financial positions of the University of California, Davis Medical Center, the University of California, 
Irvine Medical Center, the University of California, Los Angeles Medical Center, the University of California,  
San Diego Medical Center, and the University of California, San Francisco Medical Center as of June 30, 2018  
and 2017, and their individual changes in financial position and their individual cash flows for the years then 
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Emphasis of Matters

As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements, the individual financial statements of the University of California 
Medical Centers are intended to present the financial position, and the changes in financial position and cash 
flows of only that portion of the University of California that is attributable to the transactions of the University 
of California Medical Centers. They do not purport to, and do not, present fairly the financial position of the 
University of California as of June 30, 2018 and 2017, and its changes in financial position and cash flows for the 
years then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
Our opinions are not modified with respect to this matter.

As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements, the University of California Medical Centers changed the manner 
in which they account for irrevocable split-interest agreements as of July 1, 2017. Our opinions are not modified 
with respect to this matter.

Other Matter

The accompanying management’s discussion and analysis on pages 26 through 50, the schedules of the University  
of California Medical Centers’ proportionate share of UCRP’s net pension liability, the schedule of changes in the 
net pension liability for the CHRCO Pension Plan, the schedule of net pension liability for the CHRCO Pension Plan, 
the schedule of employer contributions for the CHRCO Pension Plan and related notes, the schedule of Irvine’s 
proportionate share of OCERS’s net pension liability, and the schedule of the Medical Centers’ proportionate  
share of UCRHBT’s net retiree health benefits liability on pages 110 through 113 are required by accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America to supplement the individual financial statements. 
Such information, although not a part of the individual financial statements, is required by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the individual 
financial statements in the appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain 
limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of 
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our 
inquiries, the individual financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the individual 
financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the  
limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP 
San Francisco, California 
October 10, 2018



54    2 0 1 7  /  2 0 1 8  F I N A N C I A L  S T A T E M E N T S

Davis Irvine Los Angeles San Diego San Francisco TOTAL 
(memorandum only)

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents $741,159 $331,844 $943,930 $293,548 $823,411 $3,133,892

Short-term investments 230,080 230,080

Net patient accounts receivable 248,467 155,384 330,172 321,636 594,448 1,650,107

Other receivables 21,433 597 33,539 18,884 86,924 161,377

Third-party payor settlements, net 42,500 63,803 41,270 67,434 25,862 240,869

Inventory 34,367 21,641 36,695 31,724 55,062 179,489

Prepaid expenses and other assets 51,504 15,717 50,536 21,618 62,447 201,822

Total current assets 1,139,430 588,986 1,666,222 754,844 1,648,154 5,797,636

Restricted assets:

Deposits held for hospital construction 45,783 41,547 45 4,138 16 91,529

Donor funds 10,883 78,093 88,976

Capital assets, net 1,080,332 759,413 1,717,689 1,661,760 2,375,485 7,594,679

Investments in joint ventures 16,369 1,460 18,884 13,712 50,425

Investments 63,370 188,099 251,469

Other assets 89,079 29,931 1,330 13,477 133,817

Total assets 2,370,993 1,389,946 3,489,600 2,440,956 4,317,036 14,008,531

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 330,997 128,954 454,015 401,567 775,863 2,091,396

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 66,944 46,774 201,492 116,215 259,651 691,076

Accrued salaries and benefits 110,751 60,368 166,951 75,816 151,795 565,681

Third-party payor settlements, net 173,380 104,744 67,470 15,930 136,227 497,751

Current portion of long-term debt
    and financing obligations

21,152 2,737 28,548 25,862 5,060 83,359

Other current liabilities 36,711 15,621 6,843 12,953 103,171 175,299

Total current liabilities 408,938 230,244 471,304 246,776 655,904 2,013,166

Long-term debt and financing obligations,
    net of current portion

342,030 335,335 908,811 792,429 922,666 3,301,271

Net pension liability 643,552 292,837 706,286 460,577 910,558 3,013,810

Net retiree health benefits liability 1,215,567 548,548 1,404,685 867,819 1,789,855 5,826,474

Notes payable to campus 20,632 95,000 115,632

Pension payable to University 266,959 117,776 294,440 192,368 369,031 1,240,574

Interest rate swap agreements 49,068 6,435 55,503

Self-insurance 18,413 18,413

Other noncurrent liabilities 3,565 10,945 14,510

Total liabilities 2,877,046 1,545,372 3,834,594 2,658,534 4,683,807 15,599,353

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 388,442 234,578 447,245 274,761 583,859 1,928,885

NET POSITION

Net investment in capital assets 698,049 421,341 780,373 847,607 1,447,759 4,195,129

Restricted: Nonexpendable endowments and gifts 603 27,715 28,318

Restricted: Expendable capital projects and other 45,783 41,547 10,281 49,530 147,141

Unrestricted (1,307,330) (723,938) (1,129,481) (938,379) (1,699,771) (5,798,899)

Total net position ($563,498) ($261,050) ($338,224) ($90,772) ($174,767) ($1,428,311)

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

UNIVERSIT Y OF CALIFORNIA MEDICAL CENTERS 

STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION
At June 30, 2018 (in thousands of dollars)



 U N I V E R S I T Y  O F  C A L I F O R N I A  M E D I C A L  C E N T E R S  1 7 / 1 8  A N N U A L  F I N A N C I A L  R E P O R T           55

UNIVERSIT Y OF CALIFORNIA MEDICAL CENTERS 

STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION
At June 30, 2017 (in thousands of dollars)

Davis Irvine Los Angeles San Diego San Francisco TOTAL 
(memorandum only)

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents $628,409 $342,862 $1,007,761 $394,822 $626,724 $3,000,578

Net patient accounts receivable 242,561 122,480 317,226 254,358 554,803 1,491,428

Other receivables 21,940 306 21,382 16,133 40,391 100,152

Third-party payor settlements, net 34,821 24,720 46,824 31,421 9,273 147,059

Inventory 31,346 19,437 33,727 28,428 50,620 163,558

Prepaid expenses and other assets 39,948 17,346 44,348 15,605 53,716 170,963

Total current assets 999,025 527,151 1,471,268 740,767 1,335,527 5,073,738

Restricted assets:

Deposits held for hospital construction 86,748 69,703 2,643 9,954 5,639 174,687

Donor funds 11,138 85,085 96,223

Capital assets, net 1,030,246 734,509 1,749,540 1,620,948 2,349,538 7,484,781

Investments in joint ventures 14,432 1,392 20,136 9,370 45,330

Investments 278,294 171,102 449,396

Other assets 3,762 28,645 1,290 14,600 48,297

Total assets 2,134,213 1,331,363 3,542,920 2,393,095 3,970,861 13,372,452

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 362,917 160,399 516,101 345,110 836,506 2,221,033

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 59,575 46,617 182,055 111,674 210,552 610,473

Accrued salaries and benefits 98,700 61,389 157,557 69,579 199,673 586,898

Third-party payor settlements, net 118,546 121,267 30,262 28,510 116,133 414,718

Current portion of long-term debt
    and financing obligations

21,834 2,765 26,920 19,511 4,869 75,899

Other current liabilities 29,954 38,482 7,647 2,528 61,243 139,854

Total current liabilities 328,609 270,520 404,441 231,802 592,470 1,827,842

Long-term debt and financing obligations,
    net of current portion

362,743 338,340 934,794 754,170 928,264 3,318,311

Net pension liability 675,141 340,003 741,290 459,781 961,088 3,177,303

Net retiree health benefits liability 1,227,803 574,394 1,422,069 835,720 1,777,540 5,837,526

Notes payable to campus 75,000 73,664 148,664

Pension payable to University 242,313 115,732 264,013 162,747 329,111 1,113,916

Interest rate swap agreements 61,938 9,423 71,361

Self-insurance 18,459 18,459

Other noncurrent liabilities 3,831 11,324 15,155

Total liabilities 2,836,609 1,638,989 3,903,545 2,521,715 4,627,679 15,528,537

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 369,066 205,017 421,778 251,166 547,394 1,794,421

NET POSITION

Net investment in capital assets 640,415 393,404 790,467 857,221 1,396,747 4,078,254

Restricted: Nonexpendable endowments and gifts 611 26,229 26,840

Restricted: Expendable capital projects and other 86,748 69,703 10,527 63,510 230,488

Unrestricted (1,435,708) (815,351) (1,067,907) (891,897) (1,854,192) (6,065,055)

Total net position ($708,545) ($352,244) ($266,302) ($34,676) ($367,706) ($1,729,473)

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



56    2 0 1 7  /  2 0 1 8  F I N A N C I A L  S T A T E M E N T S

UNIVERSIT Y OF CALIFORNIA MEDICAL CENTERS

STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
For the year ended June 30, 2018 (in thousands of dollars)

Davis Irvine Los Angeles San Diego San Francisco TOTAL 
(memorandum only)

Net patient service revenue $2,172,804 $1,124,757 $2,395,252 $1,838,912 $4,155,733 $11,687,458

Other operating revenue:

Clinical teaching support 7,882 13,467 21,349

Grants and contracts 43,766 43,766

Other 48,957 44,865 105,346 99,317 170,907 469,392

Total other operating revenue 48,957 52,747 118,813 99,317 214,673 534,507

Total operating revenue 2,221,761 1,177,504 2,514,065 1,938,229 4,370,406 12,221,965

Operating expenses:

Salaries and wages 898,454 427,120 1,011,430 671,513 1,589,405 4,597,922

Pension benefits 107,400 37,541 121,203 86,068 194,567 546,779

Retiree health benefits 89,497 34,908 109,242 77,397 161,755 472,799

Other employee benefits 174,866 89,914 202,184 185,116 269,081 921,161

Professional services 129,586 22,414 35,315 63,125 726,528 976,968

Medical supplies 344,284 183,205 346,885 408,936 609,932 1,893,242

Other supplies and purchased services 139,897 145,814 404,539 150,869 368,743 1,209,862

Depreciation and amortization 76,331 78,723 147,785 93,379 216,292 612,510

Insurance and other 85,254 23,024 15,464 77,362 105,813 306,917

Total operating expenses 2,045,569 1,042,663 2,394,047 1,813,765 4,242,116 11,538,160

Income from operations 176,192 134,841 120,018 124,464 128,290 683,805

Non-operating revenues (expenses):

Hospital Fee Program grants 4,041 3,685 6,584 5,596 7,238 27,144

Investment income 13,952 5,573 21,720 4,881 17,390 63,516

Build America Bonds federal interest subsidies 3,353 3,074 2,368 15,089 23,884

Private gifts, net 31,034 31,034

Net appreciation in fair value of investments 9,645 19,273 28,918

Interest expense (6,989) (12,927) (34,419) (37,532) (43,844) (135,711)

Gain (loss) on disposal of capital assets 266 (6) (470) (525) (298) (1,033)

Other 4,342 (12,439) 3,738 253 307 (3,799)

Net non-operating revenues (expenses) 15,612 (12,761) 9,872 (24,959) 46,189 33,953

Income before other changes in net position 191,804 122,080 129,890 99,505 174,479 717,758

Other changes in net position:

Donated assets (466) 5,149 120,820 125,503

Contributions (distributions) for building
   programs

1,066 1,566 (23,133) 1,251 (19,250)

Transfers (to) from University, net (19,570) 6,198 12,629 (3,034) 15,850 12,073

Changes in allocation for pension payable  
   to University

2,032 9,523 (1,148) (10,528) (3,175) (3,296)

Health system support (30,285) (48,173) (212,827) (124,055) (116,286) (531,626)

Other changes in net position (46,757) (30,886) (201,812) (155,601) 18,460 (416,596)

Increase (decrease) in net position 145,047 91,194 (71,922) (56,096) 192,939 301,162

Net position:

     Beginning of year (708,545) (352,244) (266,302) (34,676) (367,706) (1,729,473)

             End of year ($563,498) ($261,050) ($338,224) ($90,772) ($174,767) ($1,428,311)

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



 U N I V E R S I T Y  O F  C A L I F O R N I A  M E D I C A L  C E N T E R S  1 7 / 1 8  A N N U A L  F I N A N C I A L  R E P O R T           57

UNIVERSIT Y OF CALIFORNIA MEDICAL CENTERS

STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
For the year ended June 30, 2017 (in thousands of dollars)

Davis Irvine Los Angeles San Diego San Francisco TOTAL 
(memorandum only)

Net patient service revenue $2,105,499 $1,088,317 $2,388,924 $1,595,867 $3,748,100 $10,926,707

Other operating revenue:

Clinical teaching support 7,882 13,467 21,349

Grants and contracts 46,195 46,195

Other 41,875 20,128 100,161 92,295 157,459 411,918

Total other operating revenue 41,875 28,010 113,628 92,295 203,654 479,462

Total operating revenue 2,147,374 1,116,327 2,502,552 1,688,162 3,951,754 11,406,169

Operating expenses:

Salaries and wages 844,408 407,671 972,473 620,548 1,496,989 4,342,089

Pension benefits 138,692 65,965 157,056 102,403 223,821 687,937

Retiree health benefits 104,795 46,113 127,609 79,684 177,865 536,066

Other employee benefits 163,447 118,183 201,544 173,917 272,697 929,788

Professional services 119,988 24,240 40,363 49,322 660,395 894,308

Medical supplies 310,960 155,943 326,994 348,549 543,119 1,685,565

Other supplies and purchased services 141,370 144,902 402,568 147,549 318,791 1,155,180

Depreciation and amortization 78,839 69,271 142,841 76,779 210,913 578,643

Insurance and other 81,163 18,489 13,324 69,835 98,861 281,672

Total operating expenses 1,983,662 1,050,777 2,384,772 1,668,586 4,003,451 11,091,248

Income (loss) from operations 163,712 65,550 117,780 19,576 (51,697) 314,921

Non-operating revenues (expenses):

Hospital Fee Program grants 2,583 593 2,229 5,379 2,519 13,303

Investment income 7,548 3,621 16,540 5,644 12,884 46,237

Build America Bonds federal interest subsidies 3,322 3,048 2,354 15,041 23,765

Private gifts, net 19,523 19,523

Net appreciation in fair value of investments 18,978 24,608 43,586

Interest expense (8,881) (13,405) (42,129) (23,595) (47,595) (135,605)

Gain (loss) on disposal of capital assets 128 (58) (636) (252) (1,696) (2,514)

Decrease upon hedge termination (41,249) (41,249)

Other 8,089 (12,034) 6,640 (1,150) 1,545

Net non-operating revenues (expenses) 9,467 (17,961) (36,579) (10,470) 24,134 (31,409)

Income (loss) before other changes  
   in net position 173,179 47,589 81,201 9,106 (27,563) 283,512

Other changes in net position:

Donated assets 3,500 30,533 12,934 46,967

Contributions (distributions) for building
   programs 983 1,756 (315) 17,781 20,205

Transfers (to) from University, net (4,349) (404) 89 (4,664)

Changes in allocation for pension payable  
   to University 1,892 7,266 5,834 (9,130) 6,506 12,368

Health system support (28,088) (59,727) (175,341) (109,586) (84,898) (457,640)

Other changes in net position (29,562) (50,705) (166,007) (88,902) (47,588) (382,764)

Increase (decrease) in net position 143,617 (3,116) (84,806) (79,796) (75,151) (99,252)

Net position:

      Beginning of year, as previously reported (852,162) (349,128) (181,496) 45,120 (291,416) (1,629,082)

      Cumulative effect of accounting change (1,139) (1,139)

      Beginning of year, as restated (852,162) (349,128) (181,496) 45,120 (292,555) (1,630,221)

             End of year ($708,545) ($352,244) ($266,302) ($34,676) ($367,706) ($1,729,473)

 See accompanying notes to financial statements.



58    2 0 1 7  /  2 0 1 8  F I N A N C I A L  S T A T E M E N T S

UNIVERSIT Y OF CALIFORNIA MEDICAL CENTERS 

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended June 30, 2018 (in thousands of dollars)

Davis Irvine Los Angeles San Diego San Francisco TOTAL 
(memorandum only)

Cash flows from operating activities:

Receipts from patients and third-party payors $2,137,790 $1,075,330 $2,424,797 $1,723,041 $4,119,593 $11,480,551

Payments to employees (891,423) (453,987) (1,004,666) (665,276) (1,634,372) (4,649,724)

Payments to suppliers (717,905) (356,920) (791,467) (727,947) (1,742,457) (4,336,696)

Payments for benefits (334,815) (130,758) (378,375) (292,960) (572,134) (1,709,042)

Other receipts (payments) 43,896 (6,722) 103,350 133,658 209,776 483,958

Net cash provided by operating activities 237,543 126,943 353,639 170,516 380,406 1,269,047

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:

Health system support (30,285) (48,173) (200,198) (124,055) (116,286) (518,997)

Grants from the Hospital Fee Program 7,045 3,685 6,584 5,596 7,238 30,148

Transfers to University, net (19,570) (11,270) (30,840)

Gifts received for other than capital purposes 31,038 31,038

Repayment of notes payable to campus (5,158) (75,000) (80,158)

Net cash used by noncapital  
   financing activities

(42,810) (49,646) (268,614) (129,729) (78,010) (568,809)

Cash flows from capital and related  
   financing activities:

Contributions (distributions) for building
   programs

1,066 1,566 (23,133) 1,251 (19,250)

Proceeds from financing obligations and  
   other borrowings

5,340 1,765 24,030 263,123 294,258

Build America Bonds federal interest subsidies 3,353 3,074 2,368 15,089 23,884

Proceeds from sale of capital assets 62 332 394

Purchases of capital assets (110,227) (97,856) (115,657) (115,339) (212,689) (651,768)

Refinancing or prepayment of  
   outstanding debt

(4,595) (1,875) (20,680) (225,521) (252,671)

Scheduled principal paid on long-term debt       
and financing obligations

(18,436) (1,539) (20,231) (19,527) (4,210) (63,943)

Interest paid on long-term debt and  
   financing obligations

(12,895) (15,265) (41,657) (41,715) (54,211) (165,743)

Gifts and donated funds (466) 5,149 120,820 125,503

Other non-operating receipts (payments) 2,440 247 254 253 (142) 3,052

Net cash used by capital and  
   related financing activities

(137,245) (109,604) (171,333) (154,010) (134,092) (706,284)

Cash flows from investing activities:

Investment income received 11,892 5,573 21,720 4,881 17,390 61,456

Distributions from (contributions to)  
   investments in joint ventures, net

150 3,416 1,252 (4,342) 476

Purchase of investments (5,512) (4,566) (10,078)

Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments 2,284 2,284

Change in restricted assets 40,965 28,155 2,853 5,816 17,173 94,962

Other non-operating receipts (payments) 2,255 (12,439) 444 (9,740)

Net cash provided by investing activities 55,262 21,289 22,477 11,949 28,383 139,360

Net increase (decrease) in cash and  
   cash equivalents

112,750 (11,018) (63,831) (101,274) 196,687 133,314

Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of year 628,409 342,862 1,007,761 394,822 626,724 3,000,578

Cash and cash equivalents - end of year $741,159 $331,844 $943,930 $293,548 $823,411  $3,133,892



 U N I V E R S I T Y  O F  C A L I F O R N I A  M E D I C A L  C E N T E R S  1 7 / 1 8  A N N U A L  F I N A N C I A L  R E P O R T           59

UNIVERSIT Y OF CALIFORNIA MEDICAL CENTERS 

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS continued
For the year ended June 30, 2018 (in thousands of dollars)

Davis Irvine Los Angeles San Diego San Francisco TOTAL 
(memorandum only)

Reconciliation of income (loss) from operations  
   to net cash provided by operating activities:

Income from operations $176,192 $134,841 $120,018 $124,464 $128,290 $683,805

Adjustments to reconcile income from operations 
to net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization expense 76,331 78,723 147,785 93,379 216,292 612,510

Provision for uncollectible accounts 118,743 58,513 33,960 28,622 30,362 270,200

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Patient accounts receivable (124,649) (91,417) (46,906) (95,900) (70,006) (428,878)

Other receivables (3,397) (39,374) (12,157) (2,751) (46,532) (104,211)

Inventory (3,021) (2,204) (2,968) (3,296) (4,442) (15,931)

Prepaid expenses and other assets (11,556) 1,629 (8,590) (6,053) (7,609) (32,179)

Other assets (84,797) (84,797)

Accounts payable and accrued expenses (3,841) (4,912) 19,522 8,627 28,953 48,349

Accrued salaries and benefits 12,051 (1,021) 9,395 6,237 (47,878) (21,216)

Third-party payor settlements 47,155 (16,523) 42,762 (48,593) 3,504 28,305

Other liabilities 4,542 2,929 (804) 10,159 41,056 57,882

Pension benefits (26,692) (16,057) (24,093) (1,066) 73,695 5,787

Retiree health benefits 60,482 21,816 75,715 56,687 34,721 249,421

 Net cash provided by operating activities $237,543 $126,943 $353,639 $170,516 $380,406 $1,269,047

SUPPLEMENTAL NONCASH ACTIVITIES INFORMATION

Payables for property and equipment $23,823 $2,475 $9,499 $4,317 $31,116 $71,230

Bond retirements (3,480) (3,480)

Amortization of bond premium 3,403 1,384 6,743 2,891 1,197 15,618

Capital asset transfers from (to) the University (10,637) 1,566 (9,071)

Change in fair value of interest rate swaps (12,870) (2,989) (15,859)

Swap fair value amortization (1,046) (1,046)

Advances from University 21,336 21,336

Beneficial interests in irrevocable  
   split-interest agreements

12,798 12,798

Notes receivable for net patient service revenue 95,610 95,610

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



60    2 0 1 7  /  2 0 1 8  F I N A N C I A L  S T A T E M E N T S

UNIVERSIT Y OF CALIFORNIA MEDICAL CENTERS 

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended June 30, 2017 (in thousands of dollars)

Davis Irvine Los Angeles San Diego San Francisco TOTAL 
(memorandum only)

Cash flows from operating activities:

Receipts from patients and third-party payors $2,082,050 $1,074,187 $2,371,606 $1,577,020 $3,733,828 $10,838,691

Payments to employees (846,604) (504,716) (966,540) (613,960) (1,480,225) (4,412,045)

Payments to suppliers (667,106) (321,751) (842,031) (646,009) (1,589,811) (4,066,708)

Payments for benefits (316,720) (82,081) (359,259) (268,213) (508,063) (1,534,336)

Other receipts 37,410 91,433 100,305 117,223 235,242 581,613

Net cash provided by operating activities 289,030 257,072 304,081 166,061 390,971 1,407,215

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:

Health system support (28,088) (59,727) (175,341) (109,586) (84,898) (457,640)

Grants from the Hospital Fee Program 3,041 593 2,229 5,379 2,519 13,761

Transfers to University, net (4,349) (8,154) (12,503)

Gifts received for other than capital purposes 19,523 19,523

Net cash used by noncapital  
   financing activities

(29,396) (59,134) (173,112) (112,361) (62,856) (436,859)

Cash flows from capital and related  
   financing activities:

Contributions (distributions) for building
   programs

983 1,756 (315) 17,781 20,205

Proceeds from financing obligations and  
   other borrowings

383,893 134,493 284,789 65,886 92,979 962,040

Build America Bonds federal interest subsidies 3,322 3,048 2,354 15,041 23,765

Proceeds from sale of capital assets 35 16,842 18 208 17,103

Purchases of capital assets (100,823) (91,245) (89,714) (159,044) (175,536) (616,362)

Refinancing or prepayment of  
   outstanding debt

(269,040) (58,585) (202,725) (17,787) (41,854) (589,991)

Scheduled principal paid on long-term debt       
and financing obligations

(28,225) (5,540) (14,215) (18,615) (4,560) (71,155)

Interest paid on long-term debt and  
   financing obligations

(12,488) (14,493) (46,139) (38,555) (53,752) (165,427)

Gifts and donated funds 3,500 30,533 12,934 46,967

Payment from swap counterparty 82,455 82,455

Payment to swap counterparty (81,047) (81,047)

Net cash used by capital and  
   related financing activities (25,665) (30,292) (43,206) (135,525) (136,759) (371,447)

Cash flows from investing activities:

Investment income received 7,435 3,621 16,540 5,645 12,884 46,125

Distributions from (contributions to)  
   investments in joint ventures, net

4,682 3,708 (8,648) (5,240) (5,498)

Purchase of investments (4,124) 7,264 3,140

Change in restricted assets (86,748) (69,703) 257 14,061 (29,178) (171,311)

Other non-operating receipts (payments) 4,163 (12,034) (1,063) (8,934)

Net cash provided (used) by investing
   activities

(70,468) (78,116) 16,381 11,058 (15,333) (136,478)

Net increase (decrease) in cash and  
   cash equivalents

163,501 89,530 104,144 (70,767) 176,023 462,431

Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of year 464,908 253,332 903,617 465,589 450,701 2,538,147

Cash and cash equivalents - end of year $628,409 $342,862 $1,007,761 $394,822 $626,724 $3,000,578



 U N I V E R S I T Y  O F  C A L I F O R N I A  M E D I C A L  C E N T E R S  1 7 / 1 8  A N N U A L  F I N A N C I A L  R E P O R T           61

UNIVERSIT Y OF CALIFORNIA MEDICAL CENTERS 

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS continued
For the year ended June 30, 2017 (in thousands of dollars)

Davis Irvine Los Angeles San Diego San Francisco TOTAL 
(memorandum only)

Reconciliation of income (loss) from operations  
   to net cash provided by operating activities:

Income (loss) from operations $163,712 $65,550 $117,780 $19,576 ($51,697) $314,921

Adjustments to reconcile income from operations 
to net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization expense 78,839 69,271 142,841 76,779 210,913 578,643

Provision for uncollectible accounts 108,876 23,415 25,282 27,229 40,706 225,508

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Patient accounts receivable (115,152) (10,696) (22,016) (82,159) (102,348) (332,371)

Other receivables (7,985) 31,864 (4,390) (1,934) 18,142 35,697

Inventory (3,166) (720) (3,346) (4,107) (1,301) (12,640)

Prepaid expenses and other assets (1,542) (3,522) (12,977) 36 1,007 (16,998)

Accounts payable and accrued expenses (9,056) 20,467 35,562 (3,128) 9,063 52,908

Accrued salaries and benefits (5,326) 6,595 14,036 6,590 19,874 41,769

Third-party payor settlements (22,634) (26,849) (18,656) 36,083 47,370 15,314

Other liabilities 8,968 37,157 (88,882) 3,305 16,664 (22,788)

Pension benefits 16,006 11,205 22,866 26,694 44,246 121,017

Retiree health benefits 77,490 33,335 95,981 61,097 138,332 406,235

 Net cash provided by operating activities $289,030 $257,072 $304,081 $166,061 $390,971 $1,407,215

SUPPLEMENTAL NONCASH ACTIVITIES INFORMATION

Payables for property and equipment $14,387 $7,545 $9,584 $8,403 $10,969 $50,888

Bond retirements (46,080) (2,680) (13,360) (1,150) (63,270)

Amortization of bond premium 3,566 1,088 4,184 1,408 747 10,993

Capital asset transfers from the University 144 1,756 1,900

Change in fair value of interest rate swaps (27,065) (4,765) (31,830)

Swap fair value amortization (354) (354)

Refinancing of University and campus  
   payable with long-term debt

(6,951) (87,000) (55,521) (53,715) (203,187)

Advances from University 38,995 38,995

Beneficial interests in irrevocable  
   split-interest agreements 13,271 13,271

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



62     N O T E S  T O  F I N A N C I A L  S T A T E M E N T S

1. ORGANIZATION
The University of California, Medical Centers (the “Medical Centers”) are operating units of the University of California (the “University”), 
a California public corporation under Article IX, Section 9 of the California Constitution. The University is administered by The Regents 
of the University of California (“The Regents”) of which, under the formation documents of the University, administrative authority with 
respect to the Medical Centers is vested in the President of the University. The Medical Centers consist of the University of California, 
Davis Medical Center (“UC Davis Medical Center” or “Davis”), the University of California, Irvine Medical Center (“UC Irvine Medical 
Center” or “Irvine”), the University of California, Los Angeles Medical Center (“UCLA Medical Center” or “Los Angeles”), the University 
of California, San Diego Medical Center (“UCSD Medical Center” or “San Diego”) and the University of California, San Francisco Medical 
Center (“UCSF Medical Center” or “San Francisco”). The Medical Centers provide educational and clinical opportunities for students  
in the University’s Schools of Medicine (“Schools of Medicine”) and offer a comprehensive array of medical services including tertiary 
and quaternary care services.

The financial statements of the Medical Centers present the financial position, and the changes in financial position and cash flows,  
of only that portion of the University that is attributable to the transactions of the Medical Centers.

The Regents are the sole corporate and voting member of Children’s Hospital & Research Center Oakland (“CHRCO”), a private,  
not-for-profit 501(c)(3) corporation. Children’s Hospital & Research Center Foundation, a nonprofit public benefit corporation,  
is organized and operated for the purpose of supporting CHRCO. Since San Francisco provides certain management services for 
CHRCO, CHRCO combined with its foundation is included with UCSF Medical Center in the financial statements.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Presentation
The financial statements of the Medical Centers have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted  
in the United States of America, including all applicable Statements of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB).  
The proprietary fund method of accounting is followed and uses the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis  
of accounting.

GASB Statement No. 81, Irrevocable Split-Interest Agreements, was implemented by the Medical Centers as of July 1, 2017. The Statement 
establishes standards for accounting and financial reporting for irrevocable split-interest agreements. The Statement requires that the 
Medical Centers recognize assets, liabilities and deferred inflows of resources for split-interest agreements administered by the Medical 

U N I V E R S I T Y  O F  C A L I F O R N I A  M E D I C A L  C E N T E R  P O O L E D  G R O U P 

Notes to Financial Statements 
Years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017



 U N I V E R S I T Y  O F  C A L I F O R N I A  M E D I C A L  C E N T E R S  1 7 / 1 8  A N N U A L  F I N A N C I A L  R E P O R T           63

Centers at the inception of the agreement. The Statement also requires the Medical Centers to recognize assets and deferred inflows 
representing their beneficial interests in irrevocable split-interest agreements that are administered by third parties. The Statement 
requires the Medical Centers to recognize revenue when the resources become available to spend.

The adoption of Statement No. 81 did not result in any adjustments to the financial statements of Davis, Irvine, Los Angeles and  
San Diego. The effects of the changes from the adoption of Statement No. 81 on San Francisco’s financial statements for the year  
ended June 30, 2017, are as follows: 

(in thousands of dollars)

SAN FRANCISCO
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

As Previously  
Reported

Effect of Adoption of 
Statement No. 81 As Restated

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

Other assets $1,329 $13,271 $14,600

Total assets 3,957,590 13,271 3,970,861

Deferred inflows of resources 533,051 14,343 547,394

Restricted net position: Nonexpendable endowments and gifts 26,204 25 26,229

Restricted net position: Expendable capital projects and other 64,607 (1,097) 63,510

Total net position (366,634) (1,072) (367,706)

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

Net appreciation in fair value of investments 24,541 67 24,608

Net nonoperating revenues 24,067 67 24,134

Loss before other changes in net position (27,630) 67 (27,563)

Decrease in net position (75,218) 67 (75,151)

In March 2017, the GASB issued Statement No. 85, Omnibus 2017, effective for the Medical Centers' fiscal year beginning July 1, 2017. 
The Statement addresses practice issues that have been identified during implementation and application of certain GASB Statements 
including issues related to blending component units, goodwill, fair value measurement and application and post-employment benefits. 
Implementation of Statement No. 85 had no impact on the financial statements.

In May 2017, the GASB issued Statement No. 86, Certain Debt Extinguishment Issues, effective for the Medical Centers' fiscal year beginning 
July 1, 2017. This Statement establishes standards of accounting and financial reporting for in-substance defeasance transactions in  
which cash and other monetary assets acquired with resources other than the proceeds of the refunding debt are placed in an irrevocable 
trust for the sole purpose of extinguishing debt. In addition, this Statement revises existing standards for prepaid insurance associated 
with extinguished debt. Implementation of Statement No. 86 had no impact on the financial statements.

Significant accounting policies of the Medical Centers are as follows (total columns are memorandum only):

Cash and cash equivalents. All University operating entities maximize the returns on their cash balances by investing in a Short Term 
Investment Pool (STIP) managed by the Treasurer of The Regents. The Regents are responsible for managing the University’s STIP and 
establishing the investment policy, which is carried out by the Treasurer of The Regents.

Substantially, all of the Medical Centers’ cash is deposited into the STIP, and all Medical Center deposits into the STIP are considered 
demand deposits except for certain deposits held for hospital construction. The net asset value for the STIP is held at a constant value 
of $1, not adjusted for unrealized gains and losses associated with the fluctuation in the fair value of the investments included in the 
STIP (which are predominately held to maturity) and are not recorded by each operating entity but absorbed by the University as  
the manager of the pool. None of these amounts are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. To date, the Medical Centers 
have not experienced any losses on these accounts.

Interest income is reported as non-operating revenue in the statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net position.

Additional information on cash and investments can be obtained from the University’s 2017-2018 annual report.

UCSF Medical Center includes certain investments in highly liquid debt instruments with original maturities of three months or less as 
cash and cash equivalents. 



64     N O T E S  T O  F I N A N C I A L  S T A T E M E N T S

Investments. Investments are reported at fair value. The Medical Centers’ investments consist of investments in the UC Regents Total 
Return Investment Pool (TRIP) and General Endowment Pool (GEP). UCSF Medical Center’s investments consist of investments in 
the UCSF Foundation’s (UCSFF’s) Endowed Investment Pool (EIP), the University’s STIP and other investment securities. The basis of 
determining the fair value of pooled funds or mutual funds is determined as the number of units held in the pool multiplied by the 
price per unit share, computed on the last day of the month. Securities are generally valued at the last sale price on the last business 
day of the fiscal year, as quoted on a recognized exchange or by utilizing an industry standard pricing service, when available. 
Securities for which no sale was reported as of the close of the last business day of the fiscal year are valued at the quoted bid price  
of a dealer who regularly trades in the security being valued. Certain securities may be valued on a basis of a price provided by a  
single source. 

Investment transactions are recorded on the date the securities are purchased or sold (trade date). Realized gains or losses are recorded 
as the difference between the proceeds from the sale and the average cost of the investment sold. Dividend income is recorded on the  
ex-dividend date and interest income is accrued as earned. Gifts of securities are recorded at estimated fair value at the date of donation. 

Inventory. The Medical Centers’ inventory consists primarily of pharmaceuticals and medical supplies which are stated on a first-in, 
first-out basis at the lower of cost or market.

Prepaid Expenses and Other Assets. The Medical Centers’ prepaid expenses are primarily prepayments for pharmaceuticals and 
medical supplies, rent, equipment and maintenance contracts. Other assets include beneficial interests in irrevocable split-interest 
agreements administered by third parties and are classified as level 3 on the fair value hierarchy.

Restricted Assets, Deposits Held for Hospital Construction. The University directly finances the construction, renovation and 
acquisition of facilities and equipment as authorized by The Regents through the issuance of debt obligations. Bond proceeds are 
primarily invested in STIP and are released to the Medical Centers when spent on qualifying expenditures for hospital construction. 

Restricted Assets, Donor Funds. The Medical Centers have been designated as the trustees for several charitable remainder trusts.  
The trusts are established by donors to provide income to designated beneficiaries, generally for life. Upon maturity, the principal in 
the trusts will be distributed to the Medical Centers. Trust assets are recorded at fair value. 

The Medical Centers have been named the irrevocable beneficiaries for several charitable remainder trusts for which the Medical Centers 
are not the trustees. Upon maturity of each trust, the remainder of the trust corpus will be transferred to the Medical Centers.  
These funds cannot be sold, disbursed or consumed until a specified number of years have passed or a specific event has occurred.  
The Medical Centers recognize contribution revenue when all eligibility requirements have been met.

Beneficial interests in irrevocable split-interest agreements. The beneficial interests in irrevocable split-interest agreements represent 
the Medical Centers' right to the portion of the benefits from the irrevocable split-interest agreements that are administered by third 
parties and are recognized as an asset and deferred inflows of resources. These are measured at fair value and are reported as other 
noncurrent assets in the statements of net position. Changes in the fair value of the beneficial interest asset are recognized as an 
increase or decrease in the related deferred inflows of resources. At the termination of the agreement, net assets received from the 
beneficial interests are recognized as revenues. 

Capital Assets. The Medical Centers’ capital assets are reported at cost. Depreciation is recorded on a straight-line basis over the 
estimated useful lives of the assets. The range of the estimated useful lives for the Medical Centers’ buildings and land improvements  
is 5 to 40 years and 2 to 20 years for equipment. University guidelines mandate that land purchased with the Medical Centers’ funds  
is recorded as an asset of the Medical Centers. Land utilized by the Medical Centers but purchased with other sources of funds is  
recorded as an asset of the University. Significant additions, replacements, major repairs and renovations to infrastructure and 
buildings are generally capitalized by the Medical Centers if the cost exceeds $35,000 and if they have a useful life of more than one  
year. Minor renovations are charged to operations. Equipment with a cost in excess of $5,000 and a useful life of more than one year  
is capitalized. Incremental costs, including salaries and employee benefits, directly related to the acquisition, development and 
installation of major software projects are included in the cost of the capital assets. Interest on borrowings to finance facilities is 
capitalized during construction, net of any investment income earned on tax-exempt borrowings during the temporary investment  
of project-related borrowings.

Investments in Joint Ventures. Certain Medical Centers have entered into joint-venture arrangements with various third-party entities 
that include home health services, cancer center operations and a health maintenance organization. Investments in these joint 
ventures are recorded using the equity method.



 U N I V E R S I T Y  O F  C A L I F O R N I A  M E D I C A L  C E N T E R S  1 7 / 1 8  A N N U A L  F I N A N C I A L  R E P O R T           65

Interest Rate Swap Agreements. Certain Medical Centers have entered into interest rate swap agreements to limit the exposure 
of their variable-rate debt to changes in market interest rates. These derivative financial instruments are agreements that involve 
the exchange with a counterparty of fixed- and variable-rate interest payments periodically over the life of the agreement without 
exchange of the underlying notional principal amounts. The difference to be paid or received is recognized over the life of the 
agreements as an adjustment to interest expense. 

Interest rate swaps are recorded at fair value as either assets or liabilities in the statements of net position. The Medical Centers have 
determined that the market interest rate swaps are hedging derivatives that hedge future cash flows. Under hedge accounting, 
changes in the fair value are considered to be deferred inflows (for hedging derivatives with positive fair values) or deferred outflows 
(for hedging derivatives with negative fair values). 

At the time of pricing certain interest rate swaps, the fixed rate of the swaps was off-market such that the Medical Centers received 
an up-front payment. As such, the swaps consist of an at-the-market interest rate swap derivative instrument and a borrowing, 
represented by the up-front payment. The unamortized amount of the borrowing is included in the current and noncurrent portion  
of debt and amortized as interest expense over the term of the bonds.

Bond Premium. The premium received in the issuance of long-term debt is amortized as a reduction to interest expense over the term 
of the related long-term debt. 

Self-Insurance Programs. The University is self-insured or insured through a wholly owned captive insurance company for medical 
malpractice, workers’ compensation, employee health care and general liability claims. These risks are subject to various claim and 
aggregate limits, with excess liability coverage provided by an independent insurer. 

Liabilities are recorded when it is probable a loss has occurred and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. These losses 
include an estimate for claims that have been incurred, but not reported. The estimated liabilities are based upon an independent 
actuarial determination of the present value of the anticipated future payments. While the Medical Centers participate in the self-
insurance programs, they are administered by the University of California Office of the President. Accordingly, the self-insurance 
funding and liabilities are not included in the accompanying financial statements. 

CHRCO has a claims-made policy for medical malpractice claims. Under this policy, insurance premiums cover only those claims 
actually reported during the policy term. Should the claims-made policy not be renewed, or replaced with equivalent insurance, 
claims related to occurrences during their terms but reported subsequent to their termination may be uninsured. CHRCO has a high-
deductible, per-occurrence policy for workers’ compensation with no limit, and is effectively self-insured due to the high deductible. 
CHRCO has a self-insured preferred provider organization plan for health claims. 

Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources. Deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 
represent a consumption and acquisition of net position that applies to a future period, respectively. The Medical Centers classify gains 
on refunding of debt as deferred inflows of resources and losses as deferred outflows of resources and recognize the amortization of 
gains and losses as a component of interest expense over the remaining life of the old debt, or the new debt, whichever is shorter.  
The Medical Centers classify changes in irrevocable split-interest agreements as deferred inflows of resources until the resources 
become available to spend. 

The Medical Centers classify an increase in the fair value of the hedging derivatives as deferred inflows of resources, and a decrease  
in the fair value of hedging derivatives as deferred outflows of resources.

Changes in net pension liability not included in pension expense, including proportionate shares of collective pension expense from 
the University of California Retirement Plan, are reported as deferred outflows of resources or deferred inflows of resources related to 
pensions for the Medical Centers. 

Changes in net retiree health benefits liability not included in retiree health benefits expense, including proportionate shares of 
collective retiree health benefits expense from the University of California, are reported as deferred outflows of resources or deferred 
inflows of resources related to retiree health benefits for the Medical Centers.

Net Position. Net position is required to be classified for accounting and reporting purposes in the following categories:

Net Investment in Capital Assets — Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by outstanding principal balances of debt 
attributable to the acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets.

Restricted — The Medical Centers classify net position resulting from transactions with purpose restrictions as restricted net assets  
until the resources are used for the specific purpose or for as long as the provider requires the resources to remain intact.



66     N O T E S  T O  F I N A N C I A L  S T A T E M E N T S

Nonexpendable — Net position subject to externally imposed restrictions that must be retained in perpetuity.

Expendable — Net position whose use is subject to externally imposed restrictions that can be fulfilled by actions pursuant to those 
restrictions or that expire by the passage of time.

Unrestricted — Net positions that are neither restricted nor invested in capital assets, net of related debt. Unrestricted net position 
may be designated for specific purposes by management or The Regents. Substantially, all unrestricted net positions are allocated for 
operating initiatives or programs, or for capital programs. 

Expenses are charged to either restricted or unrestricted net position based upon a variety of factors, including consideration of prior 
and future revenue sources, the type of expense incurred, budgetary policies surrounding the various revenue sources or whether the 
expense is a recurring cost. Unrestricted net position is negative due primarily to obligations for pension and retiree health benefits 
exceeding the Medical Centers’ reserves.

Contributions received by CHRCO may be designated by the donor for restricted purposes or may be without restriction as to their use. 
Contributions restricted by donors as to use or time period are reported as restricted until used in a manner designated or upon expiration 
of the time period. Under California law, income and gains on permanently restricted net position are maintained in restricted expendable 
net position until those amounts are appropriated for expenditure by the Board of Directors in a manner consistent with the standard 
of prudence prescribed by the Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act. Income and gains on permanently restricted net position 
that are available for expenditure are $9.8 million and $7.8 million as of June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

Revenues and Expenses. Revenues received through conducting the programs and services of the Medical Centers are presented in 
the financial statements as operating revenue. Revenues include professional fees earned by the faculty physicians practicing as the 
UCSF Faculty Clinical Practices.

Operating revenues include net patient service revenue reported at the estimated net realizable amounts from patients, third-party 
payors including Medicare and Medi-Cal, and others for services rendered, including estimated retroactive audit adjustments under 
reimbursement agreements with third-party payors. Retroactive adjustments are accrued on an estimated basis in the period the 
related services are rendered and adjusted in future periods as final settlements are determined. Laws and regulations governing 
the Medicare and Medi-Cal programs are extremely complex and subject to interpretation. As a result, there is at least a reasonable 
possibility that recorded estimates could change by a material amount in the near term. The Medical Centers believe that they are in 
compliance with all applicable laws and regulations related to the Medicare and Medi-Cal programs.

The Medical Centers estimate and recognize a provision for uncollectible accounts based on historical experience.

CHRCO receives grants from federal agencies and other third parties. Government grants are reimbursed based on actual expenses 
incurred or units of service provided. Revenue from these grants is recognized either when expenses are incurred or when services  
are provided, depending on the grant award agreements. 

Substantially, all of the Medical Centers’ operating expenses are directly or indirectly related to patient care activities. 

Non-operating revenues and expenses include Hospital Fee Program grants, interest income and expense, federal interest subsidies, 
gains on bond retirements, the gain or loss on the disposal of capital assets, and other non-operating revenue and expenses.

Health system support, donated assets, contributions for building programs, transfers to the University and changes in allocation for 
pension payable to the University are classified as other changes in net position.

Net Pension Liability. The University of California Retirement Plan (UCRP) provides retirement benefits to retired employees of the Medical 
Centers. The Medical Centers are required to contribute to UCRP at a rate set by The Regents. Net pension liability includes the Medical 
Centers’ share of the University’s net pension liability for UCRP. The Medical Centers’ share of net pension liability, deferred inflows of 
resources, deferred outflows of resources and pension expense have been determined based upon their proportionate share of covered 
compensation for the fiscal year. The fiduciary net position and changes in the fiduciary net position of UCRP have been measured 
consistent with the accounting policies used by the Plan. For purposes of measuring UCRP’s fiduciary net position, investments are 
reported at fair value and benefit payments are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms.

Net pension liability also includes the net pension liability for the Retirement Plan for Children’s Hospital & Research Center Oakland 
(CHRCO Plan). The net pension liability is measured as the total pension liability, less the amount of the pension plan’s fiduciary net 
position. The fiduciary net position and changes in net position have been measured consistent with the accounting policies used by 
the CHRCO Plan. The total pension liability is determined based upon discounting projected benefit payments based on the benefit 
terms and legal agreements existing at the pension plan’s fiscal year end. Projected benefit payments are discounted using a single rate 



 U N I V E R S I T Y  O F  C A L I F O R N I A  M E D I C A L  C E N T E R S  1 7 / 1 8  A N N U A L  F I N A N C I A L  R E P O R T           67

that reflects the expected rate of return on investments, to the extent that plan assets are available to pay benefits, and a tax-exempt,  
high-quality municipal bond rate when plan assets are not available. Pension expense is recognized for benefits earned during the 
period, interest on the unfunded liability and changes in benefit terms. The differences between expected and actual experience 
and changes in assumptions about future economic or demographic factors are reported as deferred inflows or outflows and are 
recognized over the average expected remaining service period for employees eligible for pension benefits. The differences between 
expected and actual returns are reported as deferred inflows or outflows and are recognized over five years.

Net Retiree Health Benefits Liability. The University provides retiree health benefits to retired employees of the Medical Centers. 
The University established the University of California Retiree Health Benefit Trust (UCRHBT) to allow certain University locations and 
affiliates, including the Medical Centers, to share the risks, rewards and costs of providing for retiree health benefits and to accumulate 
funds on a tax-exempt basis under an arrangement segregated from University assets. Contributions from the Medical Centers to 
the UCRHBT are effectively made to a single-employer health plan administered by the University as a cost-sharing plan. The Medical 
Centers are required to contribute at a rate assessed each year by the University. 

Net retiree health benefits liability includes the Medical Centers’ share of the University’s net retiree health benefits liability for UCRHBT. 
The Medical Centers’ share of net retiree health benefits liability, deferred inflows of resources, deferred outflows of resources and 
retiree health benefits expense have been determined based upon their proportionate share of UCRP’s covered compensation for 
the fiscal year. The fiduciary net position and changes in net position of UCRHBT have been measured consistent with the accounting 
policies used by the trust. For purposes of measuring UCRHBT’s fiduciary net position, investments are reported at fair value and 
benefit payments are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms.

Pension Payable to University. Additional deposits in UCRP have been made using University resources to make up the gap between  
the approved contribution rates and the required contributions based on The Regents’ funding policy. These deposits, carried as internal 
loans by the University, are being repaid by the Medical Centers, plus accrued interest, over a thirty-year period through a supplemental 
pension assessment. The Medical Centers’ share of the internal loans has been determined based upon their proportionate share of 
covered compensation for the fiscal year. Supplemental pension assessments are reported as pension expense by the Medical Centers. 
Additional deposits in UCRP by the University, and changes in the Medical Centers’ share of the internal loans, are reported as other 
changes in net position. 

Charity Care. The Medical Centers provide care to patients who meet certain criteria under their charity care policies without charge 
or at amounts less than its established rates. Amounts determined to qualify as charity care are not reported as net patient service 
revenue. The Medical Centers also provide services to other patients under publicly sponsored programs, which may reimburse at 
amounts less than the cost of the services provided to the recipients. The difference between the cost of services provided to these 
persons and the expected reimbursement is included in the estimated cost of charity care.

Transactions with the University and University Affiliates. The Medical Centers have various transactions with the University and 
University affiliates. The University, as the primary reporting entity, has at its discretion the ability to transfer cash from the Medical 
Centers at will (subject to certain restrictive covenants or bond indentures) and to use that cash at its discretion. The Medical Centers 
record expense transactions where direct and incremental economic benefits are received by the Medical Centers. Payments, which 
constitute subsidies or payments for which the Medical Centers do not receive direct and incremental economic benefit, are recorded 
as health system support in the statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net position.

Certain revenues and expenses are allocated from the University to the Medical Centers. Allocated expenses reported as operating 
expenses in the statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net position are management’s best estimates of the Medical Centers’ 
arms-length payment of such amounts for its market-specific circumstances. To the extent that payments to the University exceed an 
arms-length estimated amount relative to the benefit received by the Medical Centers, they are recorded as health system support.

Compensated Absences. The Medical Centers accrue annual leave, including employer related costs, for employees at rates based 
upon length of service and job classification and compensatory time based upon job classification and hours worked.

Tax Exemption. The University of California is recognized as a tax-exempt organization under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue 
Code (IRC), except for tax on unrelated business income tax under IRC Section 511. The University is also exempt from federal income 
tax under IRC Section 115(a) as a state institution. In addition, the University is exempt from state income taxes imposed under the 
California Revenue and Taxation Code. CHRCO is qualified for exemption under IRC Section 501(c)(3).



68     N O T E S  T O  F I N A N C I A L  S T A T E M E N T S

Use of Estimates. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities 
and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and 
expenditures during the reporting period. Although management believes these estimates and assumptions are reasonable, they are 
based upon information available at the time the estimate or judgment is made and actual amounts could differ from those estimates.

Reclassifications. Certain reclassifications have been made to the 2017 financial information to conform to the 2018 financial 
statement presentation.

New Accounting Pronouncements. In December 2016, the GASB issued Statement No. 83, Certain Asset Retirement Obligations, effective 
for the Medical Centers’ fiscal year beginning July 1, 2018. This Statement establishes criteria for determining the timing and pattern 
of recognition of a liability and a corresponding deferred outflow of resources for asset retirement obligations. The Statement requires 
the measurement of an asset retirement obligation to be based on the best estimate of the current value of outlays expected to be 
incurred. The deferred outflow of resources associated with an asset retirement obligation will be measured at the amount of the 
corresponding liability upon initial measurement and generally recognized as an expense during the reporting periods that the asset 
provides service. Disclosure requirements include a general description of the asset retirement obligation and associated tangible 
capital assets, the source of the obligation to retire the assets, the methods and assumptions used to measure the liability and other 
relevant information. The Medical Centers are evaluating the effect that Statement No. 83 will have on its financial statements.

In January 2017, the GASB issued Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities, effective for the Medical Centers’ fiscal year beginning  
July 1, 2019. This Statement establishes criteria for identifying fiduciary activities of all state and local governments. Governments 
with activities meeting the criteria should present a statement of fiduciary net position and a statement of changes in fiduciary net 
position. This Statement describes four fiduciary funds that should be reported, if applicable: (1) pension (and other employee benefit) 
trust funds, (2) investment trust funds, (3) private-purpose trust funds and (4) custodial funds. Custodial funds generally should report 
fiduciary activities that are not held in a trust or equivalent arrangement that meets specific criteria. The Medical Centers are evaluating 
the effect that Statement No. 84 will have on its financial statements. 

In June 2017, the GASB issued Statement No. 87, Leases, effective for the Medical Centers’ fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020. This Statement 
establishes a single approach to accounting for and reporting leases based on the principle that leases are financings of the right to 
use an underlying asset. Under this Statement, a lessee is required to recognize a lease liability and an intangible right-to-use lease 
asset, and a lessor is required to recognize a lease receivable and a deferred inflow of resources. Limited exceptions to the single-
approach guidance are provided for short-term leases, defined as lasting a maximum of twelve months at inception, including any 
options to extend financed purchases, leases of assets that are investments and certain regulated leases. The Medical Centers are 
evaluating the effect Statement No. 87 will have on its financial statements.

In April 2018, the GASB issued Statement No. 88, Certain Disclosures Related to Debt, including Direct Borrowings and Direct Placements, 
effective for the Medical Centers' fiscal year beginning July 1, 2018. This Statement defines debt for purposes of disclosures in notes to 
financial statements as a liability that arises from a contractual obligation to pay cash (or other assets that may be used in lieu of cash) 
in one or more payments to settle an amount that is fixed at the date the contractual obligation is established. This Statement requires 
additional disclosures related to debt, including providing additional information for direct borrowings and direct placements of debt 
separately from other debt. The Medical Centers are evaluating the effect that Statement No. 88 will have on its financial statements.

In June 2018, the GASB issued Statement No. 89, Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred before the End of a Construction Period, effective 
prospectively for the Medical Centers' fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020. The Statement requires that interest cost incurred before the 
end of a construction period to be recognized as an expense in the period in which the cost is incurred. As a result, interest costs would 
not be capitalized as part of the asset’s historical cost. For construction in progress, interest cost incurred after applying Statement  
No. 89 will not be capitalized. The Medical Centers are evaluating the effect that Statement No. 89 will have on its financial statements.

In August 2018, the GASB issued Statement No. 90, Majority Equity Interests — An amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 61,  
effective for the Medical Centers' fiscal year beginning July 1, 2019. The Statement defines a majority equity interest in a legally separate 
organization and clarifies the accounting and financial reporting for majority equity interests, classified as either investments or 
component units, in the financial statements. The Medical Centers are evaluating the effect that Statement No. 90 will have on its 
financial statements.



 U N I V E R S I T Y  O F  C A L I F O R N I A  M E D I C A L  C E N T E R S  1 7 / 1 8  A N N U A L  F I N A N C I A L  R E P O R T           69

2. INVESTMENTS

The composition of investments, by investment type and fair value level at June 30, is as follows:

(in thousands of dollars)

FAIR VALUE 
LEVEL

LOS ANGELES SAN FRANCISCO

2018 2017 2018 2017

Fixed- or variable-income securities:

U.S. government-guaranteed:

U.S. Treasury bills, notes and bonds 2 $422 $434

U.S. government-guaranteed 422 434

Other U.S. dollar-denominated:

U.S. agencies - asset-backed securities 2 29 29

Other U.S. dollar-denominated 29 29

Commingled funds:

U.S. equity funds 1 1,096 1,059

Non-U.S. equity funds 1 404 528

U.S. bond funds 1 326 307

Non-U.S. bond funds 1 159 152

Money market funds 1 95 106

Balanced funds NAV 293,450 278,294 234,375 212,704

Commingled funds 293,450 278,294 236,455 214,856

Publicly traded real estate investment trusts 1 259 264

Real estate 3 589

Total investments 293,450 278,294 237,165 216,172

Less: Current portion (230,080)

Less: Reported as restricted assets in donor funds (49,066) (45,070)

Noncurrent portion $63,370 $278,294 $188,099 $171,102

The University-managed commingled funds (UC pooled funds) serve as the core investment vehicle for the Medical Centers.  
A description of the funds used is as follows: 

TRIP. The Total Return Investment Pool (TRIP) allows participants the opportunity to maximize the return on their long-term working  
capital by taking advantage of the economies of scale of investing in a large pool across a broad range of asset classes. TRIP supplements 
STIP by investing in an intermediate-term, higher-risk portfolio allocated across equities, fixed-income and liquid alternative strategies, 
and allows participants to maximize the return on their long-term capital. The objective of TRIP is to generate a rate of return above 
the policy benchmark, after all costs and fees, consistent with liquidity, cash flow requirements and the risk. UCLA Medical Center’s 
investment in TRIP is classified as commingled balanced funds. TRIP is considered to be an external investment pool from the  
Medical Center’s perspective. The fair value of the UCLA Medical Center’s investment in TRIP was $230.1 million and $220.2 million  
at June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively. 

Investments in TRIP require at least one calendar quarter notice to the campus for any redemptions or withdrawals. Withdrawals will 
occur on the last business day of the month. Investments into TRIP are subject to certain withdrawal guidelines such as limiting the 
withdrawals to 10 percent of the current value of TRIP in any one quarter. 

GEP. The General Endowment Pool (GEP) is an investment pool in which a large number of individual endowments participate in order 
to benefit from diversification and economies of scale. GEP is a balanced portfolio of equities, fixed-income securities and alternative 
investments. The primary goal is to maximize long-term total return, growth of principal and a growing payout stream to ensure that 
future funding for endowment-supported activities can be maintained. Where donor agreements place constraints on allowable 
investments, assets associated with endowments are invested in accordance with the terms of the agreements. UCLA Medical Center’s 
investment in GEP is classified as commingled funds. GEP is considered to be an external investment pool from the Medical Center’s 
perspective. The fair value of the UCLA Medical Center’s investment in GEP was $63.4 million and $58.1 million at June 30, 2018 and 
2017, respectively. 



70     N O T E S  T O  F I N A N C I A L  S T A T E M E N T S

EIP. UCSF Medical Center invests primarily in the UCSF Foundation’s Endowed Investment Pool (EIP). EIP is the UCSF Foundation’s 
primary investment vehicle for endowed gifts. The Foundation’s primary investment objective is growth of principal sufficient to 
preserve purchasing power and provide income to support current and future activities. Investments in EIP include high-quality, 
readily marketable equity and fixed-income securities; other types of investments, including derivative instruments such as financial 
futures, may be made at the direction of the UCSF Foundation’s Investment Committee. EIP represents investments in a unitized pool. 
UCSF Medical Center’s investment in EIP is classified as commingled funds. Transactions within each individual endowment in the  
pool are based on the unit market value at the beginning or end of the month during which the transaction takes place for withdrawals 
and additions, respectively. 

Investments in the EIP by the UCSF Foundation require at least twelve months’ prior written notice of intention to terminate as of a date 
specified in the notice. Withdrawals will occur on the last business day of the month and are subject to certain withdrawal guidelines 
such as providing a forecasted schedule of cash withdrawals 90 days prior to the start of each fiscal year. 

Fair Value. Fair value is defined in the accounting standards as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer  
a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. Assets and liabilities reported at fair value 
are organized into a hierarchy based on the levels of inputs observable in the marketplace that are used to measure fair value. Inputs 
are used in applying the various valuation techniques and take into account the assumptions that market participants use to make 
valuation decisions. Inputs may include price information, credit data, liquidity statistics and other factors specific to the financial 
instrument. Observable inputs reflect market data obtained from independent sources. In contrast, unobservable inputs reflect the 
entity’s assumptions about how market participants would value the financial instrument. 

A financial instrument’s level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest level of any input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement. The following describes the hierarchy of inputs used to measure fair value and the primary valuation methodologies 
used for financial instruments measured at fair value on a recurring basis:

Level 1 — Prices based on unadjusted quoted prices in active markets that are accessible for identical assets or liabilities are classified as 
Level 1. Level 1 investments include equity securities commingled funds (exchange traded funds and mutual funds) and other publicly 
traded securities.

Level 2 — Quoted prices in markets that are not considered to be active, dealer quotations or alternative pricing sources for similar assets  
or liabilities for which all significant inputs are observable, either directly or indirectly are classified as Level 2. Level 2 investments 
include fixed- or variable-income securities, commingled funds (institutional funds not listed in active markets) and other assets that 
are valued using market information.

Level 3 — Investments classified as Level 3 have significant unobservable inputs, as they trade infrequently or not at all. The inputs 
into the determination of fair value of these investments are based upon the best information in the circumstance and may require 
significant management judgment.

Net Asset Value (NAV) — Investments whose fair value is measured at NAV are excluded from the fair value hierarchy. Investments in 
non-governmental entities that do not have a readily determinable fair value may be valued at NAV. Investments measured at NAV 
include commingled balanced funds.

Not Leveled — Cash and cash equivalents are not measured at fair value and, thus, are not subject to the fair value disclosure requirements. 

Investment Risk Factors
There are many factors that can affect the value of investments. Some, such as custodial credit risk, concentration of credit risk and 
foreign currency risk, may affect both equity and fixed-income securities. Equity securities respond to such factors as economic 
conditions, individual company earnings performance and market liquidity, while fixed-income securities are particularly sensitive 
to credit risks and changes in interest rates. UCLA Medical Center and UCSF Medical Center have established investment policies to 
provide the basis for the management of a prudent investment program appropriate to the particular fund type.

Credit Risk
Fixed-income securities are subject to credit risk, which is the chance that a bond issuer will fail to pay interest or principal in a timely 
manner, or that negative perceptions of the issuer’s ability to make these payments will cause the security price to decline. These 
circumstances may arise due to a variety of factors, such as financial weakness or bankruptcy. 

A bond’s credit quality is an assessment of the issuer’s ability to pay interest on the bond and, ultimately, to pay the principal. Credit 
quality is evaluated by one of the independent rating agencies, for example Moody’s Investor Service (Moody’s) or Standard & Poor’s 



 U N I V E R S I T Y  O F  C A L I F O R N I A  M E D I C A L  C E N T E R S  1 7 / 1 8  A N N U A L  F I N A N C I A L  R E P O R T           71

(S&P). The lower the rating, the greater the chance, in the rating agency’s opinion, that the bond issuer will default, or fail to meet its 
payment obligations. Generally, the lower a bond’s credit rating, the higher its yield should be to compensate for the additional risk. 

Certain fixed-income securities, including obligations of the U.S. government or those explicitly guaranteed by the U.S. government, 
are considered to have minimal credit risk. The credit risk profile for investments at June 30, 2018 and 2017 are as follows: 

(in thousands of dollars)

SAN FRANCISCO

2018 2017

Fixed- or variable-income securities:

U.S. government-guaranteed $422 $436

Other U.S. dollar-denominated:

Not rated 29 29

Commingled funds:

U.S. bond funds: Not rated 326 307

Non-U.S. bond funds: Not rated 159 152

Money market funds: Not rated 95 106

UCLA Medical Center’s and UCSF Medical Center’s commingled funds (including GEP, EIP and TRIP) are not rated. 

Custodial credit risk
Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of the failure of the custodian, the investments may not be returned. Substantially, 
all of UCSF Medical Center’s investments are registered in the name of the UCSF Foundation. UCLA Medical Center’s investments are 
registered in the name of the University. 

Concentration of credit risk 
Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss associated with a lack of diversification of having too much invested in a few individual 
issuers, thereby exposing the organization to greater risks resulting from adverse economic, political, regulatory, geographic or credit 
developments. Securities issued or explicitly guaranteed by the U.S. government, mutual funds, external investment pools and other 
pooled investments are not subject to concentration of credit risk. Investments in the various investment pools managed by the  
Office of the Chief Investment Officer of the Regents and the UCSF Foundation are external investment pools and are not subject  
to concentration of credit risk. There is no concentration of any single individual issuer of investments that comprises more than  
five percent of total investments. 

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of fixed-income securities will decline because of changing interest rates. The prices of 
fixed-income securities with a longer time to maturity, measured by effective duration, tend to be more sensitive to changes in interest 
rates and, therefore, more volatile than those with shorter durations. Effective duration is the approximate change in price of a security 
resulting from a 100-basis-point (1-percentage-point) change in the level of interest rates. It is not a measure of time. 

The effective durations for fixed- or variable-income securities at June 30, 2018 and 2017 are as follows:

SAN FRANCISCO

2018 2017

U.S. government-guaranteed:

U.S. Treasury bills, notes and bonds 5.5 3.8

UCSF Medical Center considers the effective duration for money market funds to be zero, and effective duration information for the  
EIP is unavailable.

Investments include other asset-backed securities, which generate a return based upon either the payment of interest or principal  
on obligations in an underlying pool, generally associated with auto loans or credit cards. The relationship between interest rates  
and prepayments makes the fair value highly sensitive to changes in interest rates. At June 30, 2018 and 2017, the fair value of  
UCSF Medical Center’s other asset backed securities was $29, with an effective duration of 4.0 and 2.7, respectively.



72     N O T E S  T O  F I N A N C I A L  S T A T E M E N T S

Foreign Currency Risk
The University’s strategic asset allocation policy for TRIP and GEP as well as the UCSF Foundation’s asset allocation strategy includes 
allocations to non-U.S. equities and non-dollar-denominated bonds. Exposure from foreign currency risk results from investments in 
foreign currency-denominated equity, fixed-income and private equity securities. At June 30, 2018 and 2017, UCSF Medical Center is 
subject to foreign currency risk as a result of holding various currency denominations in the following investments: 

(in thousands of dollars)

SAN FRANCISCO

2018 2017

Commingled funds:

Various currency denominations:

Non-U.S. equity funds $404 $528

Non-U.S. bond funds 159 152

Real estate investment trusts 97 105

Total exposure to foreign currency risk $660 $785

3. NET PATIENT SERVICE REVENUE

The Medical Centers have agreements with third-party payors that provide for payments at amounts different from the Medical 
Centers’ established rates. A summary of the payment arrangements with major third-party payors follows:

Medicare. Medicare patient revenues include traditional reimbursement under Title XVIII of the Social Security Act or Medicare 
capitated contract revenue.

Inpatient acute care services rendered to Medicare program beneficiaries are paid at prospectively determined rates per discharge. 
These rates vary according to a patient classification system that is based on clinical, diagnostic and other factors. Inpatient non-acute 
services, certain outpatient services and medical education costs related to Medicare beneficiaries are paid based, in part, on a cost 
reimbursement methodology. Medicare reimburses hospitals for covered outpatient services rendered to its beneficiaries by way of an 
outpatient prospective payment system based on ambulatory payment classifications. The Medical Centers do not believe that there 
are significant credit risks associated with the Medicare program.

The Medical Centers are reimbursed for cost reimbursable items at a tentative rate with final settlement of such items determined after 
submission of annual cost reports and audits thereof by the Medicare fiscal intermediary. The Medical Centers’ classification of patients 
under the Medicare program and the appropriateness of their admission are subject to an independent review by a peer review 
organization. The Medical Centers have received final notices from the Medicare fiscal intermediary through June 30, 2010, for UC Davis 
Medical Center, except for 2004 and 2005, which are still under review; through June. 30, 2011 for UC Irvine Medical Center; through 
June 30, 2008 for Ronald Reagan UCLA Medical Center; through June 30, 2014 for the Santa Monica Hospital; through June 30, 2016 
for the Resnick Neuropsychiatric Hospital; through June 30, 2011, for UCSD Medical Center; through June 30, 2009 for UCSF Medical 
Center, except for 2004 and 2005, which are currently under review; and through June 30, 2015 for CHRCO. The fiscal intermediary is 
in the process of conducting their audits of the subsequent cost reports. The results of these audits have yet to be finalized and any 
amounts due to or from Medicare have not been determined. Estimated receivables and payables related to all open cost reporting 
periods are included in the statements of net position as third-party payor settlements.

Medi-Cal. The Medicaid program is referred to as Medi-Cal in California. Medi-Cal fee-for-service (FFS) inpatient hospital payments are  
made in accordance with the federal Medicaid hospital financing waiver and legislation enacted by the state of California (Waiver Program).  
The Waiver Program has been enacted in three five-year phases, the first covering 2006 through 2010, the second covering 2011 
through 2015 and the third covering 2016 through 2020. The total payments under the Waiver Program made to the Medical Centers 
include a combination of Medi-Cal inpatient FFS payments, Medi-Cal Disproportionate Share Hospital (DSH) payments and the Safety 
Net Care Pool. Effective November 2011 through 2015, the Medical Centers are also eligible to receive incentive payments designed 
to encourage delivery system innovation in connection with federal health care reform. Effective July 2017, the Medical Centers 
may be eligible to receive enhanced payments and additional reimbursement for Medi-Cal managed care patients. However, since 
final approval of these payments is still pending with the Center for Medicare and Medicaid Services, the Medical Centers have not 
recognized revenues as of June 30, 2018. 



 U N I V E R S I T Y  O F  C A L I F O R N I A  M E D I C A L  C E N T E R S  1 7 / 1 8  A N N U A L  F I N A N C I A L  R E P O R T           73

The Medical Centers are reimbursed at interim rates with final settlement of such items determined after submission of annual 
filings and audits thereof by the state. Payments under The Waiver Program are based on the allocation of pooled funds amongst all 
participating designated public hospitals in the state and are subject to change based on the audit results of the other participating 
designated public hospitals. The Medical Centers have received final settlements for the Waiver Program through 2007. The state is in 
the process of conducting audits of subsequent years of the Waiver Program. The results of these audits have yet to be finalized and 
any amounts due to or from Medi-Cal have not been determined. Estimated receivables and payables related to all Waiver Program 
reporting periods are included in the statements of net position as third-party payor settlements.

CHRCO has a contractual agreement with the Medi-Cal program, which includes patients that qualify for California Children’s Services. 
CHRCO is an essential Medi-Cal and California Children’s Services provider. Inpatient services are reimbursed by the All Patient Refined 
Diagnosis Related Group, at a per-case rate based upon acuity. Outpatient services are paid via fee schedules. In addition, CHRCO is the 
recipient of Medi-Cal funds under various state of California programs, in particular the Private Hospital Supplemental Fund and DSH.  
The state of California funds eligible hospitals based upon the total pool of funding available and a formula for distribution. The legislative 
funding is subject to retroactive reductions and potential future elimination.

Assembly Bill 1383. State of California Assembly Bill 1383 of 2009, as amended by AB 1653 on September 8, 2010, and extended 
through 2013, established a series of Medicaid supplemental payments funded through a Quality Assurance Fee and a Hospital Fee 
Program, which are imposed on certain California hospitals. The effective date of the Hospital Fee Program was April 1, 2009 through 
December 31, 2013, and was predicated, in part, on the enhanced Federal Medicaid Assistance Percentage contained in the American 
Reinvestment and Recovery Act. The Hospital Fee Program was extended for three years starting on January 1, 2014 with SB 239. 
The Hospital Fee Program makes supplemental payments to hospitals for various health care services and supports the state’s effort 
to maintain health care coverage for children. The Hospital Fee Program is funded by a Quality Assurance Fee paid by participating 
hospitals and matching federal funds. All of the Medical Centers, except CHRCO, are designated as public hospitals, and are exempt 
from paying the Quality Assurance Fee. CHRCO recognized $85.7 million and $54.5 million of patient service revenue under the 
Hospital Fee Program for the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively. CHRCO paid $23.4 million and $14.7 million in Quality 
Assurance Fees for the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively. The Medical Centers, including CHRCO, receive supplemental 
payments under the Hospital Fee Program. 

Assembly Bill 915. State of California Assembly Bill 915, Public Hospital Outpatient Services Supplemental Reimbursement Program, 
provides for supplemental reimbursement equal to the federal share of unreimbursed facility costs incurred by public hospital 
outpatient departments. This supplemental payment covers only Medi-Cal fee-for-service outpatient services. The supplemental 
payment is based on each eligible hospital’s certified public expenditures, which are matched with federal Medicaid funds.

Senate Bill 1732. State of California Senate Bill 1732 provides for supplemental Medi-Cal reimbursement to DSH for costs (i.e., principal 
and interest) of qualified patient care capital construction. For the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, the Medical Centers applied for 
and received additional revenue related to the reimbursement of costs for certain debt-financed construction projects based on the 
Medical Centers’ Medi-Cal utilization rate.

Other. The Medical Centers have entered into agreements with numerous non-government third-party payors to provide patient care 
to beneficiaries under a variety of payment arrangements. These include arrangements with:

• Commercial insurance companies that reimburse the Medical Centers for reasonable and customary charges. Workers’ compensation 
plans pay negotiated rates and are reported as contract (discounted or per-diem) revenue.

• Managed care contracts such as those with HMOs and PPOs that reimburse the Medical Centers at contracted or per-diem rates, 
which are usually less than full charges. CHRCO contracts with various Medi-Cal managed care plans in the state. These plans 
operate as state-licensed HMOs that provide health care services on a prepaid basis to enrolled Medi-Cal members residing in  
the county. Eligible members select the plan in which they wish to participate.

• Capitated contracts with health plans that reimburse the Medical Centers on a per-member-per-month basis, regardless of whether 
services are actually rendered. The Medical Centers assume a certain financial risk, as the contract requires patient treatment for all 
covered services. Expected losses on capitated agreements are accrued when probable and can be reasonably estimated.

• Certain health plans that have established a shared-risk pool where the Medical Centers share in any surplus associated with 
health care utilization as defined in the related contracts. Additionally, the Medical Centers may assume the risk of certain health 
care utilization costs, as determined in the related agreements. Differences between the final contract settlement and the amount 
estimated as receivable or payable relating to the shared-risk arrangements are recorded in the year of final settlement.



74     N O T E S  T O  F I N A N C I A L  S T A T E M E N T S

• Counties in the state of California that reimburse the Medical Centers for certain indigent patients covered under county contracts.

• CHRCO receives Medi-Cal supplemental payments, which are comprised of both federal and non-federal components. CHRCO 
received $56.7 million and $85.0 million under these programs for the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively. Included in 
the $56.7 million is $26.5 million approved in 2018 for prior periods.

The most common payment arrangement for inpatient services is a prospectively determined per-diem rate or case rate. The most 
common payment arrangement for outpatient care is a prospective payment system that uses ambulatory payment classifications.

Amounts due from Medicare and Medi-Cal as a percentage of net patient accounts receivable at June 30 are as follows:

(shown as percentage)

MEDICARE MEDI-CAL

2018 2017 2018 2017

Davis 20.0% 19.8% 17.7% 17.3%

Irvine 22.8 25.0 17.6 17.4

Los Angeles 13.6 11.1 5.1 5.7

San Diego 24.9 29.5 14.6 13.6

San Francisco 11.9 10.3 9.4 11.1

For the years ended June 30, net patient service revenue included amounts due to favorable (or unfavorable) cost report settlements 
with Medicare, Medi-Cal, County Medical Services Program and changes in estimate for settlements related to Medi-Cal as follows:

(in thousands of dollars)

2018 2017

Davis $102,692 $65,345

Irvine* 10,849 45,361

Los Angeles 17,719 36,651

San Diego 48,394 34,898

San Francisco 52,601 16,319

Total $232,255 $198,574

* 2017 includes $11.5 million of favorable adjustments to correct a prior period.

Net patient accounts receivable and net patient service revenues at June 30 are presented net of uncollectible accounts as follows: 

(in thousands of dollars)

PATIENT ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE ALLOWANCE 
at June 30

PATIENT SERVICE REVENUE ALLOWANCE
for the year ending June 30

2018 2017 2018 2017

Davis $68,606 $61,991 $118,743 $108,876

Irvine 68,633 33,757 58,513 23,415

Los Angeles 37,343 44,060 33,960 25,282

San Diego 48,614 40,952 28,622 27,229

San Francisco 59,599 55,412 30,362 40,706

Total $282,795 $236,172 $270,200 $225,508



 U N I V E R S I T Y  O F  C A L I F O R N I A  M E D I C A L  C E N T E R S  1 7 / 1 8  A N N U A L  F I N A N C I A L  R E P O R T           75

Net patient service revenue by major payor for the years ended June 30 is as follows:

(in thousands of dollars)

Davis Irvine Los Angeles San Diego San Francisco TOTAL

2018

Medicare $525,856 $307,346 $499,129 $470,418 $611,649 $2,414,398

Medi-Cal 506,292 313,130 282,076 440,892 563,128 2,105,518

Contract (discounted or per-diem) 1,040,980 490,985 1,566,189 924,287 2,873,526 6,895,967

Contract (capitated) 97,141 30,013 39,225 166,379

Non-sponsored/self-pay 2,535 13,296 17,845 3,315 68,205 105,196

Total $2,172,804 $1,124,757 $2,395,252 $1,838,912 $4,155,733 $11,687,458

2017

Medicare $517,226 $231,953 $506,431 $406,581 $590,910 $2,253,101

Medi-Cal 432,762 307,908 303,393 388,363 564,773 1,997,199

Contract (discounted or per-diem) 1,015,785 545,915 1,509,690 798,524 2,508,066 6,377,980

Contract (capitated) 137,163 48,485 36,118 221,766

Non-sponsored/self-pay 2,563 2,541 20,925 2,399 48,233 76,661

Total $2,105,499 $1,088,317 $2,388,924 $1,595,867 $3,748,100 $10,926,707

4. CHARITY CARE

Information related to the Medical Centers’ charity care, as defined within the policy footnote, for the years ended June 30 is as follows:

(in thousands of dollars)

Davis Irvine Los Angeles San Diego San Francisco TOTAL

2018

Charity care at established rates $22,859 $77,350 $13,353 $77,270 $67,402 $258,234

Estimated cost of charity care 4,959 19,516 6,111 24,246 21,263 76,095

Estimated cost in excess of reimbursement 
for patients under publicly sponsored 
programs

214,403 95,087 365,060 289,175 830,423 1,794,148

2017

Charity care at established rates $19,863 $36,347 $10,007 $49,863 $59,381 $175,461

Estimated cost of charity care 3,904 9,497 4,672 16,950 19,984 55,007

Estimated cost in excess of reimbursement 
for patients under publicly sponsored 
programs

185,277 181,775 317,676 334,682 589,438 1,608,848



76     N O T E S  T O  F I N A N C I A L  S T A T E M E N T S

5. RESTRICTED ASSETS, DONOR FUNDS

Restricted assets due to donor restrictions are invested and remitted to the Medical Centers in accordance with the donors’ wishes. 
Securities are held by the trustee in the name of the University. The trust agreements permit trustees to invest in equity and  
fixed-income securities, in addition to real property.

The composition of restricted assets due to donor restrictions at June 30 is as follows:

(in thousands of dollars)

Los Angeles San Francisco TOTAL

2018

Cash and STIP $4,120 $29,027 $33,147

General Endowment Pool and Endowed Investment Pool 6,243 46,276 52,519

Mutual funds 30 30

Charitable remainder trusts 491 2,790 3,281

Total $10,884 $78,093 $88,977

2017

Cash and STIP $4,177 $40,014 $44,191

General Endowment Pool and Endowed Investment Pool 6,366 41,602 47,968

Mutual funds 30 30

Charitable remainder trusts 565 3,469 4,034

Total $11,138 $85,085 $96,223

Donor restricted funds for the years ended June 30 are available for the following purposes:

(in thousands of dollars)

Los Angeles San Francisco TOTAL

2018

Capital projects $1,051 $6,132 $7,183

Endowments 603 27,715 28,318

Operations 9,230 44,246 53,476

Total $10,884 $78,093 $88,977

2017

Capital projects $1,000 $22,413 $23,413

Endowments 611 26,204 26,815

Operations 9,527 36,468 45,995

Total $11,138 $85,085 $96,223

Gifts and pledges are included in the financial statements of the University and transferred to the Medical Centers when used. 
Additional gift funds and pledges received by the related campus or foundation but not used by the Medical Centers are not  
included in the financial statements of the Medical Centers.



 U N I V E R S I T Y  O F  C A L I F O R N I A  M E D I C A L  C E N T E R S  1 7 / 1 8  A N N U A L  F I N A N C I A L  R E P O R T           77

6. CAPITAL ASSETS

The Medical Centers’ capital asset activity for the years ended June 30 is as follows:

(in thousands of dollars)

DAVIS 2016 ADDITIONS DISPOSALS 2017 ADDITIONS DISPOSALS 2018

ORIGINAL COST

Land $36,675 $36,675 $36,675

Buildings and improvements 1,350,568 $17,488 1,368,056 $23,402 ($18,929) 1,372,529

Equipment 414,722 35,448 ($30,228) 419,942 75,721 (25,988) 469,675

Construction in progress 36,316 52,127 88,443 37,457 125,900

Capital assets, at cost $1,838,281 $105,063 ($30,228) $1,913,116 $136,580 ($44,917) $2,004,779

2016 DEPRECIATION DISPOSALS 2017 DEPRECIATION DISPOSALS 2018

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION

Buildings and improvements $557,712 $40,846 $598,558 $39,061 ($9,207) $628,412

Equipment 276,496 37,993 ($30,177) 284,312 37,270 (25,547) 296,035

Accumulated depreciation 834,208 $78,839 ($30,177) 882,870 $76,331 ($34,754) 924,447

Capital assets, net $1,004,073 $1,030,246 $1,080,332

 

(in thousands of dollars)

IRVINE 2016 ADDITIONS DISPOSALS 2017 ADDITIONS DISPOSALS 2018

ORIGINAL COST

Land $12,418 $441 $12,859 $12,859

Buildings and improvements 855,219 24,955 880,174 $5,990 ($367) 885,797

Equipment 361,297 60,822 ($302) 421,817 66,285 (11,672) 476,430

Construction in progress 19,348 (559) 18,789 31,605 50,394

Capital assets, at cost $1,248,282 $85,659 ($302) $1,333,639 $103,880 ($12,039) $1,425,480

2016 DEPRECIATION DISPOSALS 2017 DEPRECIATION DISPOSALS 2018

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION

Buildings and improvements $305,956 $34,481 $340,437 $36,805 ($367) $376,875

Equipment 224,147 34,790 ($244) 258,693 41,918 (11,419) 289,192

Accumulated depreciation 530,103 $69,271 ($244) 599,130 $78,723 ($11,786) 666,067

Capital assets, net $718,179 $734,509 $759,413

(in thousands of dollars)

LOS ANGELES 2016 ADDITIONS DISPOSALS 2017 ADDITIONS DISPOSALS 2018

ORIGINAL COST

Land $62,474 ($5,873) ($9,683) $46,918 $2,581 $49,499

Buildings and improvements 1,985,063 29,376 (4,297) 2,010,142 22,484 2,032,626

Equipment 692,306 60,107 (29,401) 723,012 88,531 ($23,024) 788,519

Construction in progress 23,144 9,941 33,085 2,808 35,893

Capital assets, at cost $2,762,987 $93,551 ($43,381) $2,813,157 $116,404 ($23,024) $2,906,537

2016 DEPRECIATION DISPOSALS 2017 DEPRECIATION DISPOSALS 2018

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION

Buildings and improvements $503,876 $56,567 ($801) $559,642 $56,934 $616,576

Equipment 445,665 86,274 (27,964) 503,975 90,851 ($22,554) 572,272

Accumulated depreciation 949,541 $142,841 ($28,765) 1,063,617 $147,785 ($22,554) 1,188,848

Capital assets, net $1,813,446 $1,749,540 $1,717,689



78     N O T E S  T O  F I N A N C I A L  S T A T E M E N T S

(in thousands of dollars)

SAN DIEGO 2016 ADDITIONS DISPOSALS 2017 ADDITIONS DISPOSALS 2018

ORIGINAL COST

Land $8,641 $8,641 $8,641

Buildings and improvements 825,738 $844,584 1,670,322 $162,250 1,832,572

Equipment 346,184 97,926 ($9,820) 434,290 63,200 ($29,341) 468,149

Construction in progress 835,192 (715,649) 119,543 (90,734) 28,809

Capital assets, at cost $2,015,755 $226,861 ($9,820) $2,232,796 $134,716 ($29,341) $2,338,171

2016 DEPRECIATION DISPOSALS 2017 DEPRECIATION DISPOSALS 2018

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION

Buildings and improvements $343,408 $42,935 $386,343 $53,604 $439,947

Equipment 201,229 33,844 ($9,568) 225,505 39,775 ($28,816) 236,464

Accumulated depreciation 544,637 $76,779 ($9,568) 611,848 $93,379 ($28,816) 676,411

Capital assets, net $1,471,118 $1,620,948 $1,661,760

(in thousands of dollars)

SAN FRANCISCO 2016 ADDITIONS DISPOSALS 2017 ADDITIONS DISPOSALS 2018

ORIGINAL COST

Land $143,268 $143,268 $143,268

Buildings and improvements 2,539,484 $100,300 2,639,784 $138,125 ($124) 2,777,785

Equipment 1,049,641 45,009 ($28,841) 1,065,809 59,850 (13,448) 1,112,211

Construction in progress 183,711 35,331 (1,013) 218,029 44,562 7 262,598

Capital assets, at cost $3,916,104 $180,640 ($29,854) $4,066,890 $242,537 ($13,565) $4,295,862

2016 DEPRECIATION DISPOSALS 2017 DEPRECIATION DISPOSALS 2018

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION

Buildings and improvements $928,216 $89,565 $1,017,781 $93,070 $1,110,851

Equipment 606,162 121,348 ($27,939) 699,571 123,222 ($13,267) 809,526

Accumulated depreciation 1,534,378 $210,913 ($27,939) 1,717,352 $216,292 ($13,267) 1,920,377

Capital assets, net $2,381,726 $2,349,538 $2,375,485

(in thousands of dollars)

TOTAL 2016 ADDITIONS DISPOSALS 2017 ADDITIONS DISPOSALS 2018

ORIGINAL COST

Land $263,476 ($5,432) ($9,683) $248,361 $2,581 $250,942

Buildings and improvements 7,556,072 1,016,703 (4,297) 8,568,478 352,251 ($19,420) 8,901,309

Equipment 2,864,150 299,312 (98,592) 3,064,870 353,587 (103,473) 3,314,984

Construction in progress 1,097,711 (618,809) (1,013) 477,889 25,698 7 503,594

Capital assets, at cost $11,781,409 $691,774 ($113,585) $12,359,598 $734,117 ($122,886) $12,970,829

2016 DEPRECIATION DISPOSALS 2017 DEPRECIATION DISPOSALS 2018

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION

Buildings and improvements $2,639,168 $264,394 ($801) $2,902,761 $279,474 ($9,574) $3,172,661

Equipment 1,753,699 314,249 (95,892) 1,972,056 333,036 (101,603) 2,203,489

Accumulated depreciation 4,392,867 $578,643 ($96,693) 4,874,817 $612,510 ($111,177) 5,376,150

Capital assets, net $7,388,542 $7,484,781 $7,594,679



 U N I V E R S I T Y  O F  C A L I F O R N I A  M E D I C A L  C E N T E R S  1 7 / 1 8  A N N U A L  F I N A N C I A L  R E P O R T           79

Equipment under financing obligations and related accumulated amortization at June 30 are as follows:

(in thousands of dollars)

Davis Irvine Los Angeles San Diego TOTAL

2018

Equipment under financing obligations $2,220 $106,660 $75,651 $184,531

Accumulated amortization (1,929) (43,716) (13,866) (59,511)

Total $291 $62,944 $61,785 $125,020

2017

Equipment under financing obligations $59,370 $19,700 $107,905 $61,352 $248,327

Accumulated amortization (36,152) (19,070) (35,000) (18,524) (108,746)

Total $23,218 $630 $72,905 $42,828 $139,581

The Medical Centers made seismic improvements in order to be in compliance with Senate Bill 1953, the Hospital Facilities Seismic 
Safety Act. Certain facilities and equipment were constructed or acquired to make seismic improvements using financing obligations 
of the University. These facilities and equipment were contributed at cost by the University to the Medical Centers to support the 
operations of the Medical Centers. Principal and interest payments required for these obligations are not reflected in the financial 
statements of the Medical Centers. 

7. PAYABLES TO UNIVERSITY AND CAMPUS

The UC Irvine Medical Center has an internal payable of $25.8 million to the UCI campus as of June 30, 2018.  The payable bears no 
interest and is being repaid in annual installments with the final payment due in May 2023. 

The UCLA Medical Center had an internal line of credit in the amount of $75.0 million from the UCLA campus Chancellor reported as  
a note payable to the campus as of June 30, 2017. Interest was charged on the line of credit based on the STIP rate, an annual average 
of 1.2 percent for the year ended June 30, 2017. Interest expense of $5.2 million was recorded on the line of credit for the year ended 
June 30, 2017. The note was paid off in 2018 and no interest was charged for the year ended June 30, 2018.

The UCSD Medical Center has an internal loan of up to $95.0 million from the UCSD campus funded from the campus’ allocation of 
proceeds from a series of General Revenue Bonds of The Regents. The loan is to fund a portion of the costs for an outpatient pavilion. 
The loan is due in May 2047 and bears interest at a rate of 5.0 percent. As of June 30, 2018 and 2017, balances of $95.0 million and 
$73.7 million, respectively, were outstanding and are reported as a note payable to the campus on the statements of net position. 
Interest payments of $2.9 million and $2.5 million were made on the loan for the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively. 

Advances from the University, financed through the University’s bank lines, are made to the Medical Centers to finance capital projects. 
As of June 30, 2017, UCSF Medical Center had $19.7 million of advances reported as other current liabilities.

8. INTEREST RATE SWAP AGREEMENTS 

As a means to lower the UCLA and UCSF Medical Centers’ borrowing costs, when compared against fixed-rate bonds at the time 
of issuance, the UCLA and UCSF Medical Centers entered into interest rate swap agreements in connection with their variable-rate 
Medical Center Pooled Revenue Bonds. Under the swap agreements, the Medical Centers pay the swap counterparty a fixed interest 
rate payment and receive a variable-rate interest payment to effectively change the variable-rate bonds to synthetic fixed-rate bonds. 
For three of the hedging derivatives, the notional amount of the swap matches the principal amount of the variable-rate Medical 
Center Pooled Revenue Bonds, and the swap agreement contains scheduled reductions to outstanding notional amounts that match 
scheduled reductions in the variable-rate bonds. One of the UCLA Medical Center interest rate swaps is a partial hedge, whereby the 
notional amount of the swap of $25.8 million is less than the amount of bonds outstanding of $31.3 million.

The UCLA Medical Center determined that certain of its interest rate swap agreements were hedging derivatives that hedge future 
cash flows for its variable-rate Medical Center Pooled Revenue Bonds. At the time of pricing the interest rate swaps, the fixed rate on 
each of the swaps was off-market such that the UCLA Medical Center received an up-front payment. As such, the swaps consist of 



80     N O T E S  T O  F I N A N C I A L  S T A T E M E N T S

an at-the-market interest rate swap derivative instrument and a borrowing, represented by the up-front payment. The unamortized 
amount of the borrowing was $75.2 million and $79.0 million at June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively. 

The notional amounts, fair value of the interest rate swaps outstanding and the change in fair value for June 30 are as follows:

(in thousands of dollars)

NOTIONAL AMOUNT FAIR VALUE – POSITIVE (NEGATIVE) CHANGES IN FAIR VALUE

2018 2017 CLASSIFICATION 2018 2017 CLASSIFICATION 2018 2017

Los Angeles $124,775 $124,775 Other noncurrent 
liabilities

($31,577) ($40,420) Deferred outflows $8,843 $17,184

24,250 24,250 Other noncurrent 
liabilities

(8,307) (10,252) Deferred outflows 1,945 4,649

25,750 25,750 Other noncurrent 
liabilities

(9,184) (11,266) Deferred outflows 2,082 5,232

San Francisco 64,075 67,540 Other noncurrent 
liabilities

(6,435) (9,423) Deferred outflows 2,988 4,765

Because interest rates have changed since the execution of the swaps, financial institutions have estimated the fair value of the swaps 
using quoted market prices when available or a forecast of expected discounted future net cash flows. The swaps are classified as level 
2 on the fair value hierarchy. The fair value of the interest rate swap is the estimated amount the Medical Centers would have either 
(paid) or received if the swap agreement was terminated on June 30, 2018 or 2017. 

Additional terms with respect to the outstanding interest rate swaps, classified as hedging derivatives, along with the credit rating of 
the counterparty, are as follows:

(in thousands of dollars)

TERMS
NOTIONAL AMOUNT EFFECTIVE  

DATE
MATURITY  

DATE
CASH PAID OR 

RECEIVED
COUNTERPARTY
CREDIT RATING2018 2017

Los Angeles

Pay fixed 4.550 percent; receive 67 percent of 3-Month LIBOR* 
+0.61 percent

$31,610 $31,610 2016 2030 None Aa2/A+

Pay fixed 4.625 percent; receive 67 percent of 3-Month LIBOR* 
+0.67 percent

38,670 38,670 2016 2037 None Aa2/A+

Pay fixed 4.6935 percent; receive 67 percent of 3-Month LIBOR* 
+0.74 percent

54,495 54,495 2016 2043 None Aa2/A+

Pay fixed 4.741 percent; receive 67 percent of 3-Month LIBOR* 
+0.79 percent

24,250 24,250 2016 2045 None Aa2/A+

Pay fixed 4.741 percent; receive 67 percent of 3-Month LIBOR* 
+0.79 percent

25,750 25,750 2016 2047 None Aa2/A+

San Francisco

Pay fixed 3.5897 percent; receive 58 percent of 1-Month LIBOR* 
+0.48 percent

64,075 67,540 2007 2032 None Aa3/A+

* London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR)

Interest Rate Swap Risk Factors
Credit Risk
The Medical Centers could be exposed to credit risk if the counterparties to the swap contracts are unable to meet the terms of the 
contracts. Contracts with positive fair values are exposed to credit risk. The Medical Centers face a maximum possible loss equivalent  
to the amount of the swap contract’s fair value, less any collateral held by the Medical Centers provided by the counterparties.  
Swap contracts with negative fair values are not exposed to credit risk. Although the Medical Centers have entered into the interest 
rate swap contracts with creditworthy financial institutions, there is credit risk for losses in the event of non-performance by 
counterparties or unfavorable interest rate movements.



 U N I V E R S I T Y  O F  C A L I F O R N I A  M E D I C A L  C E N T E R S  1 7 / 1 8  A N N U A L  F I N A N C I A L  R E P O R T           81

There are no collateral requirements related to the swaps held by the UCSF Medical Center. Depending on the fair value and the 
counterparty credit rating for the UCLA Medical Center swaps with the counterparty that is currently rated Aa2/A+, the University  
may be entitled to receive collateral to the extent the positive fair value exceeds $20.0 million as of June 30, 2018. At June 30, 2018  
and 2017, there was no collateral required. 

Interest Rate Risk
There is a risk that the value of the interest rate swaps will decline because of changing interest rates. The values of interest rate swaps with 
longer maturity dates tend to be more sensitive to changing interest rates and, therefore, more volatile than those with shorter maturities. 

Basis Risk
There is no basis or tax risk related to two of the swaps classified as hedging derivatives with a total notional amount of $149.0 million 
since the variable rate the UCLA Medical Center pays to the bond holders matches the variable-rate payments received from the  
swap counterparty. 

In connection with one of the UCLA Medical Center swaps and the UCSF Medical Center swap, there is a risk that the basis for the variable  
payment received will not match the variable payment on the bonds that expose the UCLA Medical Center and the UCSF Medical 
Center to basis risk whenever the interest rates on the bonds are reset. Interest rates on the bonds are tax-exempt interest rates,  
while the basis of the variable receipt on the interest rate swap is taxable. Tax-exempt interest rates can change without a corresponding 
change in the LIBOR rate due to factors affecting the tax-exempt market, which do not have a similar effect on the taxable market.  
For example, the swaps expose the UCSF Medical Center to risk if reductions in the federal personal income tax rate cause the relationship 
between the variable interest rate on the bonds to be greater than 58.0 percent of the 30-day LIBOR, plus 0.48 percent. The swaps expose 
the UCLA Medical Center to risk if reductions in the federal personal income tax rate cause the relationship between the variable interest 
rate on the bonds to be greater than 67.0 percent of the three-month LIBOR, plus 0.79 percent.

Termination Risk
There is termination risk for losses on the interest rate swaps classified as hedging derivatives in the event of non-performance by 
the counterparty in an adverse market resulting in cancellation of the synthetic interest rate and returning the interest rate payments 
to the variable interest rates on the bonds. For the interest rate swap held by the UCSF Medical Center, the termination threshold is 
reached when the credit quality rating for either the underlying Medical Center Pooled Revenue Bonds or swap counterparty falls 
below Baa2 or BBB. For the swaps held by the UCLA Medical Center, the termination threshold is reached when the credit quality rating 
for the underlying Medical Center Pooled Revenue Bonds falls below Baa3/BBB-, or the interest rate swap counterparty’s rating falls 
below Baa2 or BBB. Upon termination, the Medical Centers may also owe a termination payment if there is a realized loss based on  
the fair value of each interest rate swap. 



82     N O T E S  T O  F I N A N C I A L  S T A T E M E N T S

9. LONG-TERM DEBT AND FINANCING OBLIGATIONS
The Medical Centers’ outstanding debt at June 30 is as follows:

(in thousands of dollars)

Davis Irvine Los Angeles San Diego San Francisco TOTAL

2018
University of California Medical Center Pooled Revenue Bonds:

2007 Series B* $64,075 $64,075

2007 Series C-2* $149,025 149,025

2009 Series F Build America Bonds $155,855 143,320 $110,355 19,620 429,150

2010 Series G & I 7,695 9,620 17,315

2010 Series H Build America Bonds 700,000 700,000

2013 Series J $9,805 2,230 58,935 300,800 525 372,295

2013 Series K* 31,300 31,300

2016 Series L 247,800 120,400 262,020 87,415 107,250 824,885

2016 Series M 57,555 36,310 45,180 19,130 158,175

University of California General Revenue Bonds:

2017 Series AY 4,525 1,765 20,365 192,785 219,440

Financing obligations 291 94,551 67,413 162,255

Other borrowings 75,244 75,244

Total outstanding debt and financing obligations 319,685 316,851 887,635 768,388 910,600 3,203,159
Unamortized bond premium 43,497 21,221 49,724 49,903 17,126 181,471

Total debt and financing obligations 363,182 338,072 937,359 818,291 927,726 3,384,630
Less: Current portion (21,152) (2,737) (28,548) (25,862) (5,060) (83,359)

Noncurrent portion of debt and financing obligations $342,030 $335,335 $908,811 $792,429 $922,666 $3,301,271

* Variable-rate bonds

(in thousands of dollars)

Davis Irvine Los Angeles San Diego San Francisco TOTAL

2017
University of California Medical Center Pooled Revenue Bonds:

2007 Series B* $67,540 $67,540

2007 Series C-2* $149,025 149,025

2009 Series F Build America Bonds $155,855 143,320 $110,355 19,620 429,150

2010 Series G & I 9,490 14,100 23,590

2010 Series H Build America Bonds 700,000 700,000

2013 Series J $15,415 4,360 81,535 497,935 525 599,770

2013 Series K* 31,300 31,300

2016 Series L 260,690 121,050 267,185 88,695 107,780 845,400

2016 Series M 61,465 36,605 47,970 19,345 165,385

Financing obligations 621 630 103,112 44,466 148,829

Other borrowings 79,048 79,048

Total outstanding debt and financing obligations 338,191 318,500 911,985 755,551 914,810 3,239,037
Unamortized bond premium 46,386 22,605 49,729 18,130 18,323 155,173

Total debt and financing obligations 384,577 341,105 961,714 773,681 933,133 3,394,210
Less: Current portion (21,834) (2,765) (26,920) (19,511) (4,869) (75,899)

Noncurrent portion of debt and financing obligations $362,743 $338,340 $934,794 $754,170 $928,264 $3,318,311

* Variable-rate bonds



 U N I V E R S I T Y  O F  C A L I F O R N I A  M E D I C A L  C E N T E R S  1 7 / 1 8  A N N U A L  F I N A N C I A L  R E P O R T           83

Significant terms of the Medical Centers’ outstanding debt are as follows:

INTEREST RATE INTEREST PAYMENT FREQUENCY PRINCIPAL PAYMENT TERMS

University of California Medical Center
 Pooled Revenue Bonds:

2007 Series B* 1.2 percent Monthly Through 2032

2007 Series C-2* 2.2 to 2.4 percent Quarterly Through 2045

2009 Series F "Build America Bonds" 4.3 percent, after 35.0 percent 
federal subsidy

Semi-annually Through 2049

2010 Series G & I 3.0 percent to 5.8 percent Semi-annually Through 2025

2010 Series H "Build America Bonds" 4.2 percent, after 35.0 percent 
federal subsidy

Semi-annually Through 2048

2013 Series J 4.0 percent to 5.3 percent Semi-annually Through 2048

2013 Series K* 1.2 percent Monthly Beginning 2045 through 2047

2016 Series L 2.5 percent to 5.0 percent Semi-annually Through 2047

2016 Series M 1.5 percent to 3.5 percent Semi-annually Through 2047

University of California General Revenue Bonds:

2017 Series AY 3.0 percent to 5.0 percent Semi-annually Beginning 2022 through 2041

Financing obligations (primarily for computer and 
medical equipment, collateralized by underlying 
equipment)

Fixed interest rates of  
1.1 percent to 6.0 percent

Monthly, quarterly Through 2042

*Variable-rate bonds

Total interest expense and interest capitalized during the years ended June 30 are as follows:

(in thousands of dollars)

2018 2017

INTEREST EXPENSE INTEREST 
CAPITALIZED INTEREST EXPENSE INTEREST 

CAPITALIZED

Davis $6,989 $4,104 $8,881 $2,266

Irvine 12,927 954 13,405 1,070

Los Angeles 34,419 832 42,129 830

San Diego 37,532 2,459 23,595 13,551

San Francisco 43,844 9,701 47,595 6,107

Total $135,711 $18,050 $135,605 $23,824



84     N O T E S  T O  F I N A N C I A L  S T A T E M E N T S

The activity with respect to current and noncurrent debt is as follows:

(in thousands of dollars)

DAVIS REVENUE
BONDS

FINANCING
OBLIGATIONS TOTAL

Year ended June 30, 2018

Long-term debt and financing obligations at June 30, 2017 $383,956 $621 $384,577

New obligations 4,525 4,525

Bond premium, net 514 514

Principal payments and debt retirements (22,410) (621) (23,031)

Amortization of bond premium (3,403) (3,403)

Long-term debt and financing obligations at June 30, 2018 363,182 363,182
Less: Current portion (21,152) (21,152)

Noncurrent portion of long-term debt  
   and financing obligations at June 30, 2018

$342,030 $342,030

Year ended June 30, 2017

Long-term debt and financing obligations at June 30, 2016 $287,463 $7,101 $294,564

New obligations 390,844 390,844

Principal payments and debt retirements (290,785) (6,480) (297,265)

Amortization of bond premium (3,566) (3,566)

Long-term debt and financing obligations at June 30, 2017 383,956 621 384,577
Less: Current portion (21,213) (621) (21,834)

Noncurrent portion of long-term debt  
   and financing obligations at June 30, 2017

$362,743 $362,743

(in thousands of dollars)

IRVINE REVENUE
BONDS

FINANCING
OBLIGATIONS TOTAL

Year ended June 30, 2018

Long-term debt and financing obligations at June 30, 2017 $340,475 $630 $341,105

New obligations 1,765 1,765

Bond premium, net

Principal payments and debt retirements (3,075) (339) (3,414)

Amortization of bond premium (1,384) (1,384)

Long-term debt and financing obligations at June 30, 2018 337,781 291 338,072
Less: Current portion (2,446) (291) (2,737)

Noncurrent portion of long-term debt  
   and financing obligations at June 30, 2018

$335,335 $335,335

Year ended June 30, 2017

Long-term debt and financing obligations at June 30, 2016 $268,299 $3,370 $271,669

New obligations 183,013 183,013

Principal payments and debt retirements (109,749) (2,740) (112,489)

Amortization of bond premium (1,088) (1,088)

Long-term debt and financing obligations at June 30, 2017 340,475 630 341,105
Less: Current portion (2,426) (339) (2,765)

Noncurrent portion of long-term debt  
   and financing obligations at June 30, 2017

$338,049 $291 $338,340



 U N I V E R S I T Y  O F  C A L I F O R N I A  M E D I C A L  C E N T E R S  1 7 / 1 8  A N N U A L  F I N A N C I A L  R E P O R T           85

(in thousands of dollars)

LOS ANGELES REVENUE
BONDS

FINANCING
OBLIGATIONS

OTHER 
BORROWINGS TOTAL

Year ended June 30, 2018

Long-term debt and financing obligations at June 30, 2017 $779,554 $103,112 $79,048 $961,714

New obligations 20,365 20,365

Bond premium, net 2,934 2,934

Principal payments and debt retirements (32,350) (8,561) (40,911)

Amortization of bond premium (2,939) (3,804) (6,743)

Long-term debt and financing obligations at June 30, 2018 767,564 94,551 75,244 937,359
Less: Current portion (15,816) (8,929) (3,803) (28,548)

Noncurrent portion of long-term debt  
   and financing obligations at June 30, 2018

$751,748 $85,622 $71,441 $908,811

Year ended June 30, 2017

Long-term debt and financing obligations at June 30, 2016 $705,574 $111,317 $39,979 $856,870

New obligations 374,469 82,455 456,924

Principal payments and debt retirements (296,305) (8,205) (43,386) (347,896)

Amortization of bond premium (4,184) (4,184)

Long-term debt and financing obligations at June 30, 2017 779,554 103,112 79,048 961,714
Less: Current portion (14,555) (8,561) (3,804) (26,920)

Noncurrent portion of long-term debt  
   and financing obligations at June 30, 2017

$764,999 $94,551 $75,244 $934,794

(in thousands of dollars)

SAN DIEGO REVENUE
BONDS

FINANCING
OBLIGATIONS TOTAL

Year ended June 30, 2018

Long-term debt and financing obligations at June 30, 2017 $729,215 $44,466 $773,681

New obligations 192,785 35,674 228,459

Bond premium, net 34,664 34,664

Principal payments and debt retirements (202,895) (12,727) (215,622)

Amortization of bond premium (2,891) (2,891)

Long-term debt and financing obligations at June 30, 2018 750,878 67,413 818,291
Less: Current portion (10,978) (14,884) (25,862)

Noncurrent portion of long-term debt  
   and financing obligations at June 30, 2018

$739,900 $52,529 $792,429

Year ended June 30, 2017

Long-term debt and financing obligations at June 30, 2016 $662,014 $39,393 $701,407

New obligations 106,974 16,471 123,445

Principal payments and debt retirements (38,365) (11,398) (49,763)

Amortization of bond premium (1,408) (1,408)

Long-term debt and financing obligations at June 30, 2017 729,215 44,466 773,681
Less: Current portion (8,149) (11,362) (19,511)

Noncurrent portion of long-term debt  
   and financing obligations at June 30, 2017

$721,066 $33,104 $754,170



86     N O T E S  T O  F I N A N C I A L  S T A T E M E N T S

(in thousands of dollars)

SAN FRANCISCO REVENUE
BONDS TOTAL

Year ended June 30, 2018

Long-term debt and financing obligations at June 30, 2017 $933,133 $933,133

New obligations

Principal payments and debt retirements (4,210) (4,210)

Amortization of bond premium (1,197) (1,197)

Long-term debt and financing obligations at June 30, 2018 927,726 927,726
Less: Current portion (5,060) (5,060)

Noncurrent portion of long-term debt  
   and financing obligations at June 30, 2018

$922,666 $922,666

Year ended June 30, 2017

Long-term debt and financing obligations at June 30, 2016 $833,600 $833,600

New obligations 146,694 146,694

Principal payments and debt retirements (46,414) (46,414)

Amortization of bond premium (747) (747)

Long-term debt and financing obligations at June 30, 2017 933,133 933,133
Less: Current portion (4,869) (4,869)

Noncurrent portion of long-term debt  
   and financing obligations at June 30, 2017

$928,264 $928,264

(in thousands of dollars)

TOTAL REVENUE
BONDS

FINANCING
OBLIGATIONS

OTHER 
BORROWINGS TOTAL

Year ended June 30, 2018

Long-term debt and financing obligations at June 30, 2017 $3,166,333 $148,829 $79,048 $3,394,210

New obligations 219,440 35,674 255,114

Bond premium, net 38,112 38,112

Principal payments and debt retirements (264,940) (22,248) (287,188)

Amortization of bond premium (11,814) (3,804) (15,618)

Long-term debt and financing obligations at June 30, 2018 3,147,131 162,255 75,244 3,384,630
Less: Current portion (55,452) (24,104) (3,803) (83,359)

Noncurrent portion of long-term debt  
   and financing obligations at June 30, 2018

$3,091,679 $138,151 $71,441 $3,301,271

Year ended June 30, 2017

Long-term debt and financing obligations at June 30, 2016 $2,756,950 $161,181 $39,979 $2,958,110

New obligations 1,201,994 16,471 82,455 1,300,920

Principal payments and debt retirements (781,618) (28,823) (43,386) (853,827)

Amortization of bond premium (10,993) (10,993)

Long-term debt and financing obligations at June 30, 2017 3,166,333 148,829 79,048 3,394,210
Less: Current portion (51,212) (20,883) (3,804) (75,899)

Noncurrent portion of long-term debt  
   and financing obligations at June 30, 2017

$3,115,121 $127,946 $75,244 $3,318,311

In December 2017, General Revenue Bonds totaling $625.5 million of tax-exempt bonds were issued to refinance all or a portion of 
certain projects of the University through the advance refunding of certain bonds, including most of the outstanding Medical Center 
Pooled Revenue Bonds, 2013 Series J of $223.4 million. The bonds mature at various dates through 2041. The tax-exempt bonds have  
a stated weighted average interest rate of 4.7 percent. The refunding of the outstanding Medical Center Pooled Revenue Bonds resulted 
in a loss of $32.4 million, recorded as a deferred outflow of resources that will be amortized as interest expense over the term of the 
refunded bonds. The bond premium of $39.7 million will be amortized as a reduction to interest expense over the term of the bonds. 
The refinancing and refunding of previously outstanding Medical Center Pooled Revenue Bonds resulted in cash flow savings of  
$22.2 million and an economic gain of $17.7 million.



 U N I V E R S I T Y  O F  C A L I F O R N I A  M E D I C A L  C E N T E R S  1 7 / 1 8  A N N U A L  F I N A N C I A L  R E P O R T           87

In August 2016, Medical Center Pooled Revenue Bonds totaling $1.0 billion, including $872.8 million of tax-exempt bonds and  
$173.4 million taxable bonds, were issued to finance and refinance certain facilities and projects of the Medical Centers. Proceeds, 
including a net bond premium of $155.8 million, were used to pay for project construction, issuance costs and refund $724.5 million of 
outstanding Medical Center Pooled Revenue Bonds and all of the outstanding Hospital Revenue Bonds. The bonds mature at various 
dates through 2047. In the event of a failed remarketing, the variable-rate demand bonds can be put back to The Regents for tender. 
The University provides its own liquidity in connection with mandatory and optional tenders and remarketing of these bonds.  
The interest rates on the variable-rate demand bonds reset daily and an interest rate swap is being used to limit exposure to changes 
in market interest rates. The tax-exempt and taxable bonds have a stated weighted average interest rate of 4.5 percent and 3.0 percent, 
respectively. The refunding of the outstanding Medical Center Pooled Revenue Bonds and Hospital Revenue Bonds resulted in a loss 
of $8.0 million, recorded as a deferred outflow of resources that will be amortized as interest expense over the term of the refunded 
bonds. The bond premium will be amortized as a reduction to interest expense over the term of the bonds. The refinancing and refunding 
of previously outstanding Revenue Bonds resulted in cash flow savings of $193.5 million and an economic gain of $151.2 million.

The Medical Centers’ Pooled Revenue Bonds are issued to finance capital projects and other needs at the University’s Medical Centers 
and are collateralized by a joint and several pledges of certain operating and non-operating revenues, as defined in the indentures, 
of all five of the University’s Medical Centers. The Medical Center Pooled Revenue Bond Indenture requires the Medical Centers to set 
rates, charges and fees each year sufficient for the Medical Centers’ total operating and non-operating revenues to pay for the annual 
principal and interest on the bonds and sets forth certain other covenants. Pledged revenues for the Medical Centers for the year 
ended June 30, 2018 was $12.2 billion. 

The Medical Center Pooled Revenue Bonds 2007 Series B and 2013 Series K totaling $64.1 million and $31.3 million, respectively,  
are variable-rate demand obligations subject to daily and weekly remarketing, respectively. The University has not entered into a standby 
bond purchase agreement for the 2013 Series K bonds. The UCSF and UCLA Medical Centers have access to the hospital working capital 
program from the University described below for any amounts that would be obligated for repayment to the University.

The Medical Centers’ revenues are not pledged for any other purpose than under the indentures for the Medical Center Pooled Revenue 
Bonds. The pledge of the Medical Centers’ revenues under the Medical Center Pooled Revenue Bonds is on parity with interest rate 
swap agreements. 

The University has an internal working capital program that allows each Medical Center to receive internal advances. Advances may 
not exceed 60 percent of a Medical Center’s accounts receivable for any working capital needs. Interest on any such advance is based 
upon the earnings rate on the STIP. Repayment of any advances made to the Medical Centers under the working capital program is not 
collateralized by a pledge of revenues. Currently, there are no advances to the Medical Centers. The University may cancel or change 
the terms of the working capital program at its sole discretion. However, the University has historically provided working capital 
advances under informal or formal programs for the Medical Centers.

As of June 30, 2018, CHRCO had no amounts outstanding under its revolving credit facility for $25.0 million. The interest rate on the 
credit facility is 3.2 percent as of June 30, 2018 and the facility expires on August 31, 2020.

Future Debt Service and Interest Rate Swaps
Future debt service payments for the Medical Centers’ fixed- and variable-rate debt for each of the five fiscal years subsequent to 
June 30, 2018, and thereafter, are shown below. Although not a prediction by the Medical Centers of the future interest rate cost of 
the variable-rate bonds or the impact of the interest rate swaps, these amounts assume that current interest rates on variable-rate 
bonds and the current reference rates of the interest rate swaps will remain the same. As these rates vary, variable-rate bond interest 
payments and net interest rate swap payments will vary. 



88     N O T E S  T O  F I N A N C I A L  S T A T E M E N T S

(in thousands of dollars)

DAVIS REVENUE
BONDS PRINCIPAL INTEREST

Year ending June 30

2019 $31,187 $17,900 $13,287

2020 30,796 18,125 12,671

2021 30,370 18,325 12,045

2022 29,967 18,710 11,257

2023 29,504 19,055 10,449

2024 - 2028 120,927 80,480 40,447

2029 - 2033 60,039 30,235 29,804

2034 - 2038 60,026 37,005 23,021

2039 - 2043 60,119 46,270 13,849

2044 - 2048 37,169 33,580 3,589

Total future debt service 490,104 $319,685 $170,419

Less: Interest component of future payments (170,419)

Principal portion of future payments 319,685

Adjusted by:

Unamortized bond premium 43,497

Total debt $363,182

(in thousands of dollars)

IRVINE REVENUE
BONDS

FINANCING
OBLIGATIONS

TOTAL
PAYMENTS PRINCIPAL INTEREST

Year ending June 30

2019 $18,209 $295 $18,504 $1,531 $16,973

2020 21,390 21,390 4,465 16,925

2021 21,403 21,403 4,620 16,783

2022 21,375 21,375 4,790 16,585

2023 21,376 21,376 5,000 16,376

2024 - 2028 110,789 110,789 32,575 78,214

2029 - 2033 115,283 115,283 45,560 69,723

2034 - 2038 113,316 113,316 56,735 56,581

2039 - 2043 110,260 110,260 71,025 39,235

2044 - 2048 96,623 96,623 79,065 17,558

2049 12,241 12,241 11,485 756

Total future debt service 662,265 295 662,560 $316,851 $345,709

Less: Interest component of future payments (345,705) (4) (345,709)

Principal portion of future payments 316,560 291 316,851

Adjusted by:

Unamortized bond premium 21,221 21,221

Total debt $337,781 $291 $338,072



 U N I V E R S I T Y  O F  C A L I F O R N I A  M E D I C A L  C E N T E R S  1 7 / 1 8  A N N U A L  F I N A N C I A L  R E P O R T           89

(in thousands of dollars)

LOS ANGELES REVENUE
BONDS

FINANCING
OBLIGATIONS

TOTAL
PAYMENTS PRINCIPAL INTEREST

Year ending June 30

2019 $47,494 $13,573 $61,067 $21,779 $39,288

2020 50,037 13,717 63,754 25,176 38,578

2021 48,710 13,867 62,577 24,805 37,772

2022 48,350 4,052 52,402 15,498 36,904

2023 48,431 4,214 52,645 16,448 36,197

2024 - 2028 233,911 23,738 257,649 88,789 168,860

2029 - 2033 230,125 28,881 259,006 114,674 144,332

2034 - 2038 227,690 35,138 262,828 151,287 111,541

2039 - 2043 227,120 30,182 257,302 189,220 68,082

2044 - 2048 179,390 179,390 156,480 22,910

2049 8,777 8,777 8,235 542

Total future debt service 1,350,035 167,362 1,517,397 $812,391 $705,006

Less: Interest component of future payments (632,195) (72,811) (705,006)

Principal portion of future payments 717,840 94,551 812,391

Adjusted by:

Unamortized bond premium 49,724 49,724

Other borrowings 75,244 75,244

Total debt $842,808 $94,551 $937,359

(in thousands of dollars)

SAN DIEGO REVENUE
BONDS

FINANCING
OBLIGATIONS

TOTAL
PAYMENTS PRINCIPAL INTEREST

Year ending June 30

2019 $42,844 $16,562 $59,406 $21,824 $37,582

2020 42,836 15,659 58,495 21,514 36,981

2021 40,396 11,812 52,208 15,780 36,428

2022 40,386 6,808 47,194 11,210 35,984

2023 40,384 4,235 44,619 9,027 35,592

2024 - 2028 247,881 13,115 260,996 93,942 167,054

2029 - 2033 246,051 8,453 254,504 113,911 140,593

2034 - 2038 243,900 243,900 132,845 111,055

2039 - 2043 243,998 243,998 171,630 72,368

2044 - 2048 202,869 202,869 176,705 26,164

Total future debt service 1,391,545 76,644 1,468,189 $768,388 $699,801

Less: Interest component of future payments (690,570) (9,231) (699,801)

Principal portion of future payments 700,975 67,413 768,388

Adjusted by:

Unamortized bond premium 49,903 49,903

Total debt $750,878 $67,413 $818,291



90     N O T E S  T O  F I N A N C I A L  S T A T E M E N T S

(in thousands of dollars)

SAN FRANCISCO REVENUE
BONDS PRINCIPAL INTEREST

Year ending June 30

2019 $57,951 $4,355 $53,596

2020 58,327 4,865 53,462

2021 72,359 19,050 53,309

2022 72,119 19,695 52,424

2023 71,874 20,395 51,479

2024 - 2028 354,191 113,390 240,801

2029 - 2033 343,159 136,805 206,354

2034 - 2038 326,157 163,140 163,017

2039 - 2043 309,888 200,880 109,008

2044 - 2048 269,946 226,900 43,046

2049 1,200 1,125 75

Total future debt service 1,937,171 $910,600 $1,026,571

Less: Interest component of future payments (1,026,571)

Principal portion of future payments 910,600

Adjusted by:

Unamortized bond premium 17,126

Total debt $927,726

(in thousands of dollars)

TOTAL REVENUE
BONDS

FINANCING
OBLIGATIONS

TOTAL
PAYMENTS PRINCIPAL INTEREST

Year ending June 30

2019 $197,685 $30,430 $228,115 $67,389 $160,726

2020 203,386 29,376 232,762 74,145 158,617

2021 213,238 25,679 238,917 82,580 156,337

2022 212,197 10,860 223,057 69,903 153,154

2023 211,569 8,449 220,018 69,925 150,093

2024 - 2028 1,067,699 36,853 1,104,552 409,176 695,376

2029 - 2033 994,657 37,334 1,031,991 441,185 590,806

2034 - 2038 971,089 35,138 1,006,227 541,012 465,215

2039 - 2043 951,385 30,182 981,567 679,025 302,542

2044 - 2048 785,997 785,997 672,730 113,267

2049 22,218 22,218 20,845 1,373

Total future debt service 5,831,120 244,301 6,075,421 $3,127,915 $2,947,506

Less: Interest component of future payments (2,865,460) (82,046) (2,947,506)

Principal portion of future payments 2,965,660 162,255 3,127,915

Adjusted by:

Unamortized bond premium 181,471 181,471

Other borrowings 75,244 75,244

Total debt $3,222,375 $162,255 $3,384,630

Additional information on the revenue bonds can be obtained from the 2017-2018 annual report of the University of California.



 U N I V E R S I T Y  O F  C A L I F O R N I A  M E D I C A L  C E N T E R S  1 7 / 1 8  A N N U A L  F I N A N C I A L  R E P O R T           91

For the Medical Centers' cash flow hedges, future debt service payments for the Medical Centers’ variable-rate debt and net receipts or 
payments on the associated hedging derivative instruments for each of the five fiscal years subsequent to June 30, 2018, and thereafter 
are as presented below. Although not a prediction by the Medical Centers of the future interest cost of the variable-rate bonds or the 
impact of the interest rate swaps, using rates as of June 30, 2018, combined debt service requirements of the variable-rate debt and 
net swap payments are as follows:

(in thousands of dollars)

LOS ANGELES

VARIABLE-RATE BOND

PRINCIPAL INTEREST INTEREST RATE 
SWAP, NET TOTAL

Year ending June 30

2019 $3,692 $4,170 $7,862

2020 3,701 4,170 7,871

2021 3,706 4,170 7,876

2022 3,685 4,170 7,855

2023 $3,365 3,685 4,170 11,220

2024 - 2028 19,260 17,312 19,569 56,141

2029 - 2033 24,075 14,998 17,053 56,126

2034 - 2038 30,175 12,053 13,903 56,131

2039 - 2043 55,030 7,687 9,363 72,080

2044 - 2048 42,870 1,481 2,073 46,424

Total future debt service $174,775 $72,000 $82,811 $329,586

(in thousands of dollars)

SAN FRANCISCO

VARIABLE-RATE BOND

PRINCIPAL INTEREST INTEREST RATE 
SWAP, NET TOTAL

Year ending June 30

2019 $3,590 $749 $1,227 $5,566

2020 3,725 721 1,161 5,607

2021 3,860 678 1,086 5,624

2022 3,995 633 1,011 5,639

2023 4,145 585 934 5,664

2024 - 2028 23,090 2,139 3,415 28,644

2029 - 2033 21,670 649 1,029 23,348

Total future debt service $64,075 $6,154 $9,863 $80,092

(in thousands of dollars)

TOTAL

VARIABLE-RATE BOND

PRINCIPAL INTEREST INTEREST RATE 
SWAP, NET TOTAL

Year ending June 30

2019 $3,590 $4,441 $5,397 $13,428

2020 3,725 4,422 5,331 13,478

2021 3,860 4,384 5,256 13,500

2022 3,995 4,318 5,181 13,494

2023 7,510 4,270 5,104 16,884

2024 - 2028 42,350 19,451 22,984 84,785

2029 - 2033 45,745 15,647 18,082 79,474

2034 - 2038 30,175 12,053 13,903 56,131

2039 - 2043 55,030 7,687 9,363 72,080

2044 - 2048 42,870 1,481 2,073 46,424

Total future debt service $238,850 $78,154 $92,674 $409,678



92     N O T E S  T O  F I N A N C I A L  S T A T E M E N T S

10. OPERATING LEASES
The Medical Centers lease certain buildings and equipment under agreements recorded as operating leases. The terms of the 
operating leases extend through the year 2042. Operating lease expenses for the years ended June 30 are as follows:

(in thousands of dollars)

2018 2017

Davis $21,396 $21,349

Irvine 5,018 4,769

Los Angeles 14,219 14,427

San Diego 17,318 16,116

San Francisco 49,578 46,597

Total $107,529 $103,258

Future minimum payments on operating leases with an initial or non-cancellable term in excess of one year are as follows:

(in thousands of dollars)

Davis Irvine Los Angeles San Diego San Francisco TOTAL

Year ending June 30

2019 $24,327 $3,663 $12,080 $17,812 $38,354 $96,236

2020 22,670 2,456 9,984 16,186 34,023 85,319

2021 20,022 2,116 6,980 15,411 27,950 72,479

2022 16,704 1,823 5,545 11,667 19,220 54,959

2023 12,770 1,671 1,808 7,670 13,476 37,395

2024 – 2042 45,358 2,267 10,599 13,366 76,250 147,840

Total $141,851 $13,996 $46,996 $82,112 $209,273 $494,228

11. DEFERRED OUTFLOWS AND INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
The composition of deferred outflows and inflows of resources at June 30 is summarized as follows:

(in thousands of dollars)

Davis Irvine Los Angeles San Diego San Francisco TOTAL

2018

Deferred outflows of resources

Net pension liability $72,255 $23,834 $72,974 $98,624 $190,224 $457,911

Net retiree health benefits liability 249,969 105,120 331,973 274,684 578,571 1,540,317

Debt refunding 8,773 28,259 633 37,665

Interest rate swap agreements 49,068 6,435 55,503

Total $330,997 $128,954 $454,015 $401,567 $775,863 $2,091,396

Deferred inflows of resources

Net pension liability $22,198 $37,351 $22,632 $13,291 $30,618 $126,090

Net retiree health benefits liability 366,244 197,227 423,225 261,470 539,275 1,787,441

Debt refunding 1,388 1,388

Irrevocable split-interest agreements 13,966 13,966

Total $388,442 $234,578 $447,245 $274,761 $583,859 $1,928,885



 U N I V E R S I T Y  O F  C A L I F O R N I A  M E D I C A L  C E N T E R S  1 7 / 1 8  A N N U A L  F I N A N C I A L  R E P O R T           93

(in thousands of dollars)

Davis Irvine Los Angeles San Diego San Francisco TOTAL

2017

Deferred outflows of resources

Net pension liability $83,087 $35,110 $88,338 $93,406 $225,389 $525,330

Net retiree health benefits liability 270,698 125,289 365,825 251,704 600,977 1,614,493

Debt refunding 9,132 717 9,849

Interest rate swap agreements 61,938 9,423 71,361

Total $362,917 $160,399 $516,101 $345,110 $836,506 $2,221,033

Deferred inflows of resources

Net pension liability $54,811 $35,282 $56,364 $37,264 $78,091 $261,812

Net retiree health benefits liability 314,255 169,735 363,978 213,902 454,960 1,516,830

Debt refunding 1,436 1,436

Irrevocable split-interest agreements 14,343 14,343

Total $369,066 $205,017 $421,778 $251,166 $547,394 $1,794,421

12. RETIREMENT PLANS
University of California Retirement Plan
Substantially all full-time employees of the Medical Centers participate in the University of California Retirement System (“UCRS”) that 
is administered by the University. The UCRS consists of The University of California Retirement Plan (“UCRP”), a single-employer defined 
benefit pension plan, and the University of California Retirement Savings Program (“UCRSP”) that includes four defined contribution 
pension plans with several investment portfolios generally funded with employee non-elective and elective contributions. The Regents 
has the authority to establish and amend the benefit plans. Additional information on the retirement plans can be obtained from the 
2017-2018 annual reports of the University of California Retirement System.

UCRP provides lifetime retirement income, disability protection, death benefits, and post-retirement and pre-retirement survivor benefits 
to eligible employees of the University and its affiliates. Membership is required in UCRP for all employees appointed to work at least  
50 percent time for one year or more or for an indefinite period or for a definite period of a year or more. An employee may also 
become eligible by completing 1,000 hours within a 12-month period. Generally, five years of service are required for entitlement 
to plan benefits. The amount of pension benefit is determined under the basic formula of covered compensation times age factor 
times years of service credit. The maximum monthly benefit cannot exceed 100 percent of the employee’s highest average plan 
compensation over a 36-month period, subject to certain limits imposed under the Internal Revenue Code. Annual cost-of-living 
adjustments (COLAs) are made to monthly benefits according to a specified formula based on the Consumer Price Index. Ad hoc  
COLAs may be granted subject to funding availability.

Contributions
Contributions to the UCRP may be made by the Medical Centers and the employees. The rates for contributions as a percentage of 
payroll are determined annually pursuant to The Regents’ funding policy and based upon recommendations of the consulting actuary. 
The Regents determine the portion of the total contribution to be made by the Medical Centers and by the employees. Employee 
contributions by represented employees are subject to collective bargaining agreements. Effective July 1, 2015, employee member 
contributions range from 7.0 percent to 9.0 percent. The University pays a uniform contribution rate of 14.0 percent of covered payroll 
on behalf of all UCRP members. 

Employee contributions to UCRP are accounted for separately and currently accrue interest at 6.0 percent annually. Upon termination, 
members may elect a refund of their contributions plus accumulated interest; vested terminated members who are eligible to retire 
may also elect monthly retirement income or a lump sum equal to the present value of their accrued benefits.



94     N O T E S  T O  F I N A N C I A L  S T A T E M E N T S

Contributions during the years ended June 30 are as follows:

(in thousands of dollars)

2018 2017

MEDICAL CENTER EMPLOYEE TOTAL MEDICAL CENTER EMPLOYEE TOTAL

Davis $111,593 $63,612 $175,205 $102,403 $58,672 $161,075

Irvine 48,153 27,090 75,243 48,710 27,566 76,276

Los Angeles 122,001 68,520 190,521 111,966 63,142 175,108

San Diego 79,580 45,038 124,618 69,647 39,636 109,283

San Francisco 153,693 88,405 242,098 139,730 80,894 220,624

Total $515,020 $292,665 $807,685 $472,456 $269,910 $742,366

Additional deposits were made by the University to UCRP of $391.8 million and $481.0 million for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2018 and 
2017, respectively. The Medical Centers reported pension expense and an increase in the pension payable to the University for its portion 
of these additional deposits based upon their proportionate share of covered compensation for the year ended June 30 is as follows:

(in thousands of dollars)

2018 2017

Davis $26,678 $32,007

Irvine 11,567 15,263

Los Angeles 29,279 35,143

San Diego 19,093 21,797

San Francisco 36,746 43,612

Total $123,363 $147,822

Net Pension Liability 
The Medical Centers’ proportionate share of the net pension liability for UCRP as of June 30 is as follows:

(in thousands of dollars)

2018 2017

Proportion of the  
net pension liability

Proportionate share of  
net pension liability

Proportion of the  
net pension liability

Proportionate share of  
net pension liability

Davis 6.8% $643,552 6.7% $675,141

Irvine 3.0 279,015 3.2 321,946

Los Angeles 7.5 706,286 7.3 741,290

San Diego 4.9 460,577 4.5 459,781

San Francisco 9.4 886,409 9.1 919,943

Total 31.6% $2,975,839 30.8% $3,118,101

The Medical Centers’ net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2018 and 2017 and calculated using the plan net position valued  
as of the measurement date and total pension liability determined based upon rolling forward the total pension liability from the 
results of the actuarial valuations as of July 1, 2017 and 2016, respectively. Actuarial valuations represent a long-term perspective  
and involve estimates of the value of reported benefits and assumptions about the probability of certain events occurring far into  
the future. The Medical Centers’ net pension liability was calculated using the following methods and assumptions:

(shown as percentage)

2018 2017

Inflation 3.0% 3.0%

Investment rate of return 7.25 7.25

Projected salary increases 3.8 - 6.2 3.8 - 6.2

Cost-of-living adjustments 2.0 2.0



 U N I V E R S I T Y  O F  C A L I F O R N I A  M E D I C A L  C E N T E R S  1 7 / 1 8  A N N U A L  F I N A N C I A L  R E P O R T           95

Actuarial assumptions are subject to periodic revisions as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates 
are made about the future. The actuarial assumptions used in 2018 and 2017 were based upon the results of an experience study 
conducted for the period July 1, 2010 through June 30, 2014. For pre-retirement mortality rates, the RP-2014 White Collar Employee 
Mortality Tables (separate table for males and females) projected with the two-dimensional MP-2014 projection scale to 2029 were 
used. For post-retirement, healthy mortality rates are based on the RP-2014 White Collar Healthy Annuitant Mortality Table projected 
with the two-dimensional MP-2014 projection scale to 2029, and with ages then set forward one year. For disabled members, rates are 
based on the RP-2014 Disabled Retiree Mortality Table projected with the two-dimensional MP-2014 projection scale to 2029, and with 
ages then set back one year for males and set forward five years for females. For disabled members, rates are based on the RP-2014 
Disabled Retiree Mortality Table, projected with the two-dimensional MP-2014 projection scale to 2029, and with ages then set back 
one year for males and set forward five years for females.

The long-term expected investment rate of return assumption for UCRP was determined in 2015 based on a building-block method in 
which expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These returns 
are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target 
asset allocation percentage, adding expected inflation and subtracting expected investment expenses and a risk margin. The target 
allocation and projected arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class, after deducting inflation, but before deducting 
investment expenses, used in the derivation of the long-term expected investment rate of return assumption are summarized in  
the following table:

 (shown as percentage)

TARGET ALLOCATION LONG-TERM EXPECTED  
REAL RATE OF RETURN

Asset class

U.S. Equity 28.5% 6.1%

Developed International Equity 18.5 7.0

Emerging Market Equity 8.0 8.6

Core Fixed Income 12.5 0.8

High Yield Bonds 2.5 3.0

Emerging Market Debt 2.5 3.9

Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 4.5 0.4

Real Estate 5.5 4.8

Private Equity 8.0 11.2

Absolute Return 6.5 4.2

Real Assets 3.0 4.4

Total 100.0% 5.6%

Discount Rate
The discount rate used to estimate the net pension liability as of June 30, 2018 and 2017 was 7.25 percent. To calculate the discount rate, 
cash flows into and out of UCRP were projected in order to determine whether UCRP has sufficient cash in future periods for projected 
benefit payments for current members. For this purpose, Medical Center contributions that are intended to fund benefits of current plan 
members and their beneficiaries are included. Projected Medical Center and member contributions that are intended to fund the service 
costs of future plan members and their beneficiaries, as well as projected contributions of future plan members, are not included.  
UCRP was projected to have assets sufficient to make projected benefit payments for current members for all future years.



96     N O T E S  T O  F I N A N C I A L  S T A T E M E N T S

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to the Discount Rate Assumption 
The following presents the June 30, 2018 net pension liability of the Medical Center calculated using the June 30, 2018 discount rate 
assumption of 7.25 percent, as well as what the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate different than 
the current assumption: 

(in thousands of dollars)

1% DECREASE  
(6.25%)

CURRENT DISCOUNT 
(7.25%)

1% INCREASE  
(8.25%)

Davis $1,232,831 $643,552 $151,805

Irvine 534,500 279,015 65,816

Los Angeles 1,353,008 706,286 166,603

San Diego 882,312 460,577 108,643

San Francisco 1,698,064 886,409 209,091

Total $5,700,715 $2,975,839 $701,958

Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources for pensions are related to the following sources as of the years 
ending June 30:

(in thousands of dollars)

Davis Irvine Los Angeles San Diego San Francisco TOTAL

2018

Deferred Outflows of Resources

Changes in proportion and differences between location’s  
contributions and proportionate share of contributions

$24,416 $1,534 $20,474 $64,388 $102,784 $213,596

Changes of assumptions or other inputs 31,212 13,531 34,252 22,336 42,987 144,318

Difference between expected and actual experience 16,627 7,209 18,248 11,900 22,902 76,886

Total $72,255 $22,274 $72,974 $98,624 $168,673 $434,800

Deferred Inflows of Resources

Changes in proportion and differences between location’s 
contributions and proportionate share of contributions

$3,697 $24,675 $2,327 $50 $3,159 $33,908

Net difference between projected and actual earnings on 
pension plan investments

14,727 6,385 16,163 10,540 20,285 68,100

Difference between expected and actual experience 3,774 1,636 4,142 2,701 5,198 17,451

Total $22,198 $32,696 $22,632 $13,291 $28,642 $119,459

2017

Deferred Outflows of Resources

Changes in proportion and differences between location’s  
contributions and proportionate share of contributions

$18,863 $3,407 $17,823 $49,669 $110,206 $199,968

Changes of assumptions or other inputs 52,287 24,933 57,408 35,607 71,243 241,478

Difference between expected and actual experience 11,937 5,693 13,107 8,130 16,266 55,133

Total $83,087 $34,033 $88,338 $93,406 $197,715 $496,579

Deferred Inflows of Resources

Changes in proportion and differences between location’s 
contributions and proportionate share of contributions

$6,509 $11,103 $3,329 $4,369 $9,905 $35,215

Changes of assumptions or other inputs 25,208 12,020 27,677 17,167 34,347 116,419

Net difference between projected and actual earnings on 
pension plan investments

13,043 6,219 14,321 8,882 17,772 60,237

Difference between expected and actual experience 10,051 4,794 11,037 6,846 13,697 46,425

Total $54,811 $34,136 $56,364 $37,264 $75,721 $258,296



 U N I V E R S I T Y  O F  C A L I F O R N I A  M E D I C A L  C E N T E R S  1 7 / 1 8  A N N U A L  F I N A N C I A L  R E P O R T           97

Net deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense during 
the years ending June 30 as follows:

(in thousands of dollars)

Davis Irvine Los Angeles San Diego San Francisco TOTAL

2019 $59,498 $17,212 $65,971 $58,284 $109,868 $310,833

2020 27,125 3,953 27,930 32,907 60,158 152,073

2021 (40,475) (24,594) (46,603) (17,904) (42,069) (171,645)

2022 1,738 (5,468) 835 8,630 8,199 13,934

2023 2,171 (1,525) 2,209 3,416 3,875 10,146

Total $50,057 ($10,422) $50,342 $85,333 $140,031 $315,341

The University of California Retirement Savings Program (UCRSP) plans (Defined Contribution (DC) Plan, Supplemental DC Plan, 403(b) 
Plan and 457(b) Plan) provide savings incentives and additional retirement security for all eligible employees. The DC Plan accepts both 
pretax and after-tax employee contributions. The Supplemental DC Plan accepts employer contributions on behalf of certain qualifying 
employees. The 403(b) and 457(b) Plans accept pretax employee contributions and the Medical Centers may also make contributions 
on behalf of certain members of management. Benefits from the UCRSP plans are based on participants’ mandatory and voluntary 
contributions, plus earnings, and are immediately vested.

Orange County Employees Retirement System
Orange County Employees Retirement System (OCERS) administers a cost-sharing multi-employer defined benefit pension plan for the 
County of Orange, City of San Juan Capistrano and thirteen special districts. Certain employees of the University of California, Irvine 
Medical Center, were eligible to continue to participate in OCERS at the time the hospital was acquired. 

OCERS provides retirement, disability and death benefits. Plan retirement benefits are tiered based upon date of OCERS membership. 
Participation in the Plan for Irvine is closed to new members. Irvine Medical Center’s share of net pension liability, deferred inflows of 
resources, deferred outflows of resources and pension expense have been determined based upon its specific actuarial accrued liability 
and a share of assets allocated in accordance with a formula set forth in OCERS’ policy. The fiduciary net position and changes in net 
position have been measured consistent with the accounting policies used by the OCERS Plan. 

Additional information on OCERS can be obtained from the 2017-2018 annual reports of the Orange County Employee Retirement 
System at www.ocers.org.

Membership in the OCERS Plan consisted of the following at December 31, 2017: 16,947 retired members and beneficiaries, 5,803 inactive 
members, 21,721 active members. 

Contributions
Contribution rates for OCERS are set by the Board of Trustees. 

Net Pension Liability
The Irvine Medical Center’s proportionate share of the net pension liability was $13.8 million and $18.1 million as of June 30, 2018 and 
2017, respectively. Irvine’s net pension liability for OCERS was measured as of June 30, 2018 and 2017, and the total pension liability 
was determined by an actuarial valuation as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 rolled forward to June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively.  
The actuarial assumptions used in 2018 were based on the results of an experience study for the period from January 1, 2014 
through December 31, 2016. The actuarial assumptions used in 2017 were based on the results of an experience study for the period 
from January 1, 2011 through December 31, 2013. The net pension liability for the Plan was calculated based upon the following 
assumptions as of June 30, 2018: 2.8 percent inflation, 7.0 percent investment rate of return, 4.25-12.25 percent projected salary 
increases and 3.0 percent cost-of-living adjustments. The net pension liability for the Plan was calculated based upon the following 
assumptions as of June 30, 2017: 3.0 percent inflation, 7.25 percent investment rate of return, 4.25-13.5 percent projected salary 
increases and 3.0 percent cost-of-living adjustments. 



98     N O T E S  T O  F I N A N C I A L  S T A T E M E N T S

The target allocation and projected arithmetic real rates of return, after deducting inflation, but before investment expenses, used in the 
derivation of the long-term expected investment rate of return assumption for each major asset class for the OCERS Plan are as follows: 

(shown as percentage)

TARGET ALLOCATION LONG-TERM EXPECTED  
REAL RATE OF RETURN

Asset Class

Global Equity 35.0% 6.4%

Core Bonds 13.0 1.0

High-Yield Bonds 4.0 3.5

Bank Loan 2.0 2.9

TIPS 4.0 1.0

Emerging Market Debt 4.0 3.8

Real Estate 10.0 4.3

Core Infrastructure 2.0 5.5

Natural Resources 10.0 7.9

Risk Mitigation 5.0 4.7

Mezzanine/Distressed Debts 3.0 6.5

Private Equity 8.0 9.5

Total 100.0%

Discount Rate
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.0 percent and 7.25 percent for June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively. 
The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed plan member contributions will be made at the current 
contribution rate and that employer contributions will be made at rates equal to the actuarially determined contribution rate. For this 
purpose, only employer contributions will be made at rates equal to the actuarially determined contribution rates. 

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to the Discount Rate Assumption
The following presents the current-period net pension liability calculated using the June 30, 2018 discount rate assumption of 7.0 percent, 
as well as what the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate different than the current assumption:

(in thousands of dollars)

1% DECREASE  
 (6.0%)

CURRENT DISCOUNT 
(7.0%)

1% INCREASE  
(8.0%)

Net pension liability $21,989 $13,822 $7,189



 U N I V E R S I T Y  O F  C A L I F O R N I A  M E D I C A L  C E N T E R S  1 7 / 1 8  A N N U A L  F I N A N C I A L  R E P O R T           99

Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources 
As of June 30, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources are as follows:

(in thousands of dollars)

2018 2017

Deferred Outflows of Resources

Changes of assumptions or other inputs $1,186

Difference between expected and actual experience 374 $491

Net difference between projected and actual earnings on pension plan investments 586

Total $1,560 $1,077

Deferred Inflows of Resources

Difference between expected and actual experience $2,286 $443

Changes of assumptions or other inputs 482 703

Net difference between projected and actual earnings on pension plan investments 1,887

Total $4,655 $1,146

The net amount of deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions that will be recognized in 
pension expense during the next six years is as follows:

(in thousands of dollars)

Year ending June 30

2019 ($848)

2020 (511)

2021 (856)

2022 (720)

2023 (159)

2024 (1)

Total ($3,095)

Children’s Hospital and Research Center Oakland Pension Plan
CHRCO administers the CHRCO Pension Plan as the Sponsor and plan assets are held by U.S. Bank (the Trustee). The CHRCO Pension Plan 
is a noncontributory defined benefit plan subject to the single employer defined benefit under ERISA rules that covers active and retired 
employees. The CHRCO Pension Plan was amended effective January 1, 2012 to exclude unrepresented employees hired or rehired on or 
after January 1, 2012. The CHRCO Pension Plan provides retirement, disability and death benefits to plan participants. Benefits are based 
on a participant’s length of service, age at retirement and average compensation as defined by the CHRCO Pension Plan.

The net pension liability for the Plan was calculated based upon the following assumptions as of June 30, 2018 and 2017: 3.0 percent 
inflation, 7.0 percent investment rate of return, 5.0 percent salary increases through 2017, 4.0 percent afterward and no cost-of-living  
adjustments. CHRCO recognized pension expense of $22.3 million and $20.0 million for the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, 
respectively.

Mortality rates were based on the RP-2016 mortality with fully generational projected mortality improvements using modified scale 
MP-2016. The MP-2016 projection scale was modified for this valuation to utilize the Social Security Administration’s intermediate cost 
projection scale and a 15-year convergence period. 

Additional information on the CHRCO Pension Plan can be found in the annual reports, which can be obtained by contacting CHRCO.



100     N O T E S  T O  F I N A N C I A L  S T A T E M E N T S

Condensed financial information for the CHRCO Pension Plan as of and for the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 is as follows:

(in thousands of dollars)

Children’s Hospital & Research Center  
Oakland Pension Plan

2018 2017

CONDENSED STATEMENT OF PLAN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

Investments at fair value $460,061 $409,008

Total assets 460,061 409,008

Net position held in trust 460,061 409,008

CONDENSED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN PLAN’S FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

Contributions 33,600 28,800

Investment and other income, net 33,269 41,256

Total additions 66,869 70,056

Benefit payment and participant withdrawals 12,802 11,767

Plan expense 3,014 2,727

Total deductions 15,816 14,494

Increase in net position held in trust 51,053 55,562

Net position held in trust

Beginning of year 409,008 353,446

End of year 460,061 409,008

CHANGES IN TOTAL PENSION LIABILITY

Service cost 11,304 9,910

Interest 31,854 29,672

Difference between expected and actual experience 92 33

Changes of benefit terms 3,609 2,442

Benefits paid, including refunds of employee contributions (12,802) (11,767)

Net change in total pension liability 34,057 30,290

Total pension liability

Beginning of year 450,152 419,862

End of year 484,209 450,152

Net pension liability, end of year $24,148 $41,144

Membership in the CHRCO Plan consisted of the following at June 30, 2018:

Retirees and beneficiaries receiving benefits 957

Inactive members entitled to, but not yet receiving benefits 1,144

Active members 1,856

Total membership 3,957

Contributions 
Employer contributions for the CHRCO Plan are determined under IRC Section 430. Employees are not required or permitted to 
contribute to the Plan.



 U N I V E R S I T Y  O F  C A L I F O R N I A  M E D I C A L  C E N T E R S  1 7 / 1 8  A N N U A L  F I N A N C I A L  R E P O R T           101

Net Pension Liability
The net pension liability for CHRCO was measured as of June 30, 2018, and the total pension liability was determined by an actuarial 
valuation as of January 1, 2018 rolled forward to June 30, 2018. The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2018 valuation were 
based on the results of an experience review conducted during 2015. The target allocation and projected arithmetic real rates of return, 
after deducting inflation, but before investment expenses, used in the derivation of the long-term expected investment rate of  
return assumption for each major asset class for the CHRCO Plan are as follows:

(shown as percentage)

TARGET ALLOCATION LONG-TERM EXPECTED  
REAL RATE OF RETURN

Asset Class

U.S. Equity 51.5% 4.3%

Developed International Equity 13.5 4.9

Emerging Market Equity 1.9 7.8

Core Fixed Income 33.1 1.4

Total 100.0%

Discount Rate
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.0 percent for June 30, 2018 and 2017. The projection of cash flows used  
to determine the discount rate assumes that CHRCO will make contributions to the Plan under IRC Section 430’s minimum requirements  
for a period of eight years, and that all future assumptions are met. Based on these assumptions, the CHRCO Plan’s fiduciary net position  
is projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments for current active and inactive employees. 

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to the Discount Rate Assumption
The following presents the current-period net pension liability calculated using the June 30, 2018 discount rate assumption of 7.0 percent, 
as well as what the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate different than the current assumption:

(in thousands of dollars)

1% DECREASE  
 (6.0%)

CURRENT ASSUMPTION 
(7.0%)

1% INCREASE  
(8.0%)

Net pension liability $91,671 $24,148 ($31,644)

Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources 
As of June 30, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources were as follows:

(in thousands of dollars)

2018 2017

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Difference between expected and actual experience $5,714 $4,356

Changes of benefit terms 178 195

Changes of assumptions 15,659 21,768

Net difference between projected and actual earnings 
on pension plan investments

1,355

Total $21,551 $27,674

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Difference between expected and actual experience $1,709 $2,370

Net difference between projected and actual earnings 
on pension plan investments

267

Total $1,976 $2,370



102     N O T E S  T O  F I N A N C I A L  S T A T E M E N T S

The net amount of deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions that will be recognized in 
pension expense during the next five years is as follows:

(in thousands of dollars)

Year ending June 30

2019 $10,597

2020 8,236

2021 152

2022 158

2023 432

Total $19,575

13. RETIREE HEALTH PLANS
The University administers single-employer health and welfare plans to provide health and welfare benefits, primarily medical, dental 
and vision, to eligible retirees (and their eligible family members) of the University of California and its affiliates through UCRHBT.  
The Regents has the authority to establish and amend the plan. Additional information on the retiree health plans can be obtained 
from the 2017-2018 annual reports of the University of California. 

The contribution requirements of the eligible retirees and the participating University locations, such as the Medical Centers, are 
established and may be amended by the University. Membership in UCRP is required to become eligible for retiree health benefits. 
Contributions toward benefits are shared with the retiree. The University determines the employer’s contribution. Retirees are required 
to pay the difference between the employer’s contribution and the full cost of the health insurance. Retirees who are employed by the 
University after July 1, 2013, and retire at the age of 56 or older, become eligible for a percentage of the University’s contribution based 
on age and years of service. Retirees are eligible for the maximum University contribution at age 65 with 20 or more years of service. 
Retirees employed by the University prior to 1990 and not rehired after that date are eligible for the University’s maximum contribution 
if they retire before age 55 and have at least 10 years of service, or if they retire at age 55 or later and have at least 5 years of service. 
Retirees employed by the University after 1989 are subject to graduated eligibility provisions that generally require 10 years of service 
before becoming eligible for 50 percent of the maximum University contribution, increasing to 100 percent after 20 years of service. 

Contributions
Campus and Medical Center contributions toward retiree health benefits, at rates determined by the University, are made to UCRHBT. 
The University receives retiree health contributions from retirees that are deducted from their UCRP benefit payments. The University 
also remits these retiree contributions to UCRHBT. The University acts as a third-party administrator on behalf of UCRHBT and pays 
health care insurers and administrators amounts currently due under the University’s retiree health benefit plans for retirees who 
previously worked at a campus or Medical Center. UCRHBT reimburses the University for these amounts.

Participating University locations, such as the Medical Centers, are required to contribute at a rate assessed each year by the University. 
The contribution requirements are based upon projected pay-as-you-go financing requirements. The assessment rates were $2.80 and 
$2.93 per $100 of UCRP covered payroll effective July 1, 2017 and 2016, respectively. 

The Medical Centers’ contributions for the years ended June 30 are as follows:

(in thousands of dollars)

2018 2017

Davis $22,535 $21,562

Irvine 10,170 10,089

Los Angeles 26,042 24,975

San Diego 16,088 14,677

San Francisco 33,182 31,217

Total $108,017 $102,520



 U N I V E R S I T Y  O F  C A L I F O R N I A  M E D I C A L  C E N T E R S  1 7 / 1 8  A N N U A L  F I N A N C I A L  R E P O R T           103

Net Retiree Health Benefits Liability
The Medical Centers’ proportionate share of the net retiree health benefits liability as of June 30 is as follows:

(in thousands of dollars)

2018 2017

Proportion of the net retiree 
health benefits liability

Proportionate share of net retiree 
health benefits liability

Proportion of the net retiree 
health benefits liability

Proportionate share of net retiree 
health benefits liability

Davis 6.6% $1,215,568 6.6% $1,227,803

Irvine 3.0 548,548 3.1 574,394

Los Angeles 7.7 1,404,685 7.6 1,422,069

San Diego 4.8 867,819 4.5 835,720

San Francisco 9.8 1,789,855 9.5 1,777,540

Total 31.9% $5,826,475 31.3% $5,837,526

The Medical Centers’ net retiree health benefits liability was measured as of June 30, 2018 and 2017 and calculated using the plan 
net position valued as of the measurement date and total retiree health benefits liability based upon rolling forward the results of 
the actuarial valuations as of July 1, 2017 and 2016, respectively. Actuarial valuations represent a long-term perspective and involve 
estimates of the value of reported benefits and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. 
Significant actuarial methods and assumptions used to calculate the Medical Centers’ net retiree health benefits liability were:  

(shown as percentage)

2018 2017

Discount rate 3.87% 3.58%

Inflation 3.0 3.0

Investment rate of return 3.0 3.0

Health care cost trend rates Initially ranges from 5.0 to 9.3  
decreasing to an ultimate rate  
of 5.0 for 2033 and later years

Initially ranges from 5.0 to 9.5  
decreasing to an ultimate rate  
of 5.0 for 2032 and later years

Actuarial assumptions are subject to periodic revisions as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are 
made about the future. The actuarial assumptions are based upon the results of an experience study conducted for the period of  
July 1, 2010 through June 30, 2014. For pre-retirement mortality rates, the RP-2014 White Collar Employee Mortality Tables (separate 
table for males and females) projected with the two-dimensional MP-2014 projection scale to 2029 were used. For post-retirement, 
healthy mortality rates are based on the RP-2014 White Collar Healthy Annuitant Mortality Table projected with the two-dimensional 
MP-2014 projection scale to 2029, and with ages then set forward one year. For disabled members, rates are based on the RP-2014 
Disabled Retiree Mortality Table projected with the two-dimensional MP-2014 projection scale to 2029, and with ages then set back 
one year for males and set forward five years for females. For disabled members, rates are based on the RP-2014 Disabled Retiree 
Mortality Table, projected with the two-dimensional MP-2014 projection scale to 2029 and with ages then set back one year for  
males and set forward five years for females.

Sensitivity of Net Retiree Health Benefits Liability to the Health Care Cost Trend Rate
The following presents the June 30, 2018 net retiree health benefits liability of the Medical Center calculated using the June 30, 2018 
health care cost trend rate assumption with initial trend ranging from 5.0 percent to 9.3 percent grading down to an ultimate trend of 
5.0 percent over 15 years, as well as what the net retiree health benefits liability would be if it were calculated using a health care cost 
trend rate different than the current assumption:

(in thousands of dollars)

1% DECREASE (4.0% to 8.3%)
DECREASING TO (4.0%)

CURRENT TREND (5.0% to 9.3%)
DECREASING TO (5.0%)

1% INCREASE (6.0% to 10.3%)
DECREASING TO (6.0%)

Davis $1,040,716 $1,215,568 $1,460,980

Irvine 469,643 548,548 659,295

Los Angeles 1,202,629 1,404,685 1,688,277

San Diego 742,989 867,819 1,043,024

San Francisco 1,532,395 1,789,855 2,151,210

Total $4,988,372 $5,826,475 $7,002,786



104     N O T E S  T O  F I N A N C I A L  S T A T E M E N T S

Discount Rate
The discount rate used to estimate the net retiree health benefits liability as of June 30, 2018 and 2017 was 3.87 percent and 3.58 percent, 
respectively. The discount rate was based on the Bond Buyer 20-Bond General Obligation index since UCHRBT plan assets are not 
sufficient to make benefit payments.  

Sensitivity of Net Retiree Health Benefits Liability to the Discount Rate Assumption
The following presents the June 30, 2018 net retiree health benefits liability of the Medical Center calculated using the June 30, 2018 
discount rate assumption of 3.87 percent, as well as what the net retiree health benefits liability would be if it were calculated using a 
discount rate different than the current assumption:

(in thousands of dollars)

1% DECREASE
(2.87%)

CURRENT DISCOUNT
(3.87%)

1% INCREASE
(4.87%)

Davis $1,451,157 $1,215,568 $1,044,116

Irvine 654,862 548,548 471,177

Los Angeles 1,676,927 1,404,685 1,206,559

San Diego 1,036,012 867,819 745,416

San Francisco 2,136,747 1,789,855 1,537,402

Total $6,955,705 $5,826,475 $5,004,670

Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources 
Deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources for retiree health benefits are related to the following sources as of 
the years ended June 30:

(in thousands of dollars)

Davis Irvine Los Angeles San Diego San Francisco TOTAL

2018

Deferred outflows of resources

Changes in proportion and differences between 
location's contributions and proportionate share 
of contributions

$22,265 $2,364 $68,842 $112,121 $243,289 $448,881

Changes of assumptions or other inputs 222,471 100,394 257,083 158,827 327,577 1,066,352

Net difference between projected and  
actual earnings on plan investments

254 115 294 181 374 1,218

Difference between expected and actual experience 4,979 2,247 5,754 3,555 7,331 23,866

Total $249,969 $105,120 $331,973 $274,684 $578,571 $1,540,317

Deferred inflows of resources

Changes in proportion and differences between 
location’s contributions and proportionate share 
of contributions

$31,952 $31,952

Changes of assumptions or other inputs $214,481 96,789 $247,850 $153,123 $315,812 1,028,055

Difference between expected and actual experience 151,763 68,486 175,375 108,347 223,463 727,434

Total $366,244 $197,227 $423,225 $261,470 $539,275 $1,787,441



 U N I V E R S I T Y  O F  C A L I F O R N I A  M E D I C A L  C E N T E R S  1 7 / 1 8  A N N U A L  F I N A N C I A L  R E P O R T           105

(in thousands of dollars)

Davis Irvine Los Angeles San Diego San Francisco TOTAL

2017

Deferred outflows of resources

Changes in proportion and differences between 
location's contributions and proportionate share 
of contributions

$8,740 $2,739 $62,419 $73,399 $221,729 $369,026

Changes of assumptions or other inputs 256,150 119,833 296,679 174,352 370,839 1,217,853

Net difference between projected and  
actual earnings on plan investments

220 103 255 150 319 1,047

Difference between expected and actual experience 5,588 2,614 6,472 3,803 8,090 26,567

Total $270,698 $125,289 $365,825 $251,704 $600,977 $1,614,493

Deferred inflows of resources

Changes in proportion and differences between 
location's contributions and proportionate share 
of contributions

$22,719 $22,719

Changes of assumptions or other inputs $217,515 101,759 $251,931 $148,055 $314,905 1,034,165

Difference between expected and actual experience 96,740 45,257 112,047 65,847 140,055 459,946

Total $314,255 $169,735 $363,978 $213,902 $454,960 $1,516,830

The net amount of deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to retiree health benefits that will be 
recognized in retiree health benefit expense during the years ending June 30 is as follows:

(in thousands of dollars)

Davis Irvine Los Angeles San Diego San Francisco TOTAL

2019 ($11,143) ($10,508) ($7,055) $5,551 $13,568 ($9,587)

2020 (11,166) (10,518) (7,081) 5,535 13,535 (9,695)

2021 (11,188) (10,528) (7,107) 5,518 13,501 (9,804)

2022 (11,216) (10,541) (7,139) 5,499 13,461 (9,936)

2023 (11,242) (10,553) (7,169) 5,480 13,422 (10,062)

Thereafter (60,320) (39,459) (55,701) (14,369) (28,191) (198,040)

Total ($116,275) ($92,107) ($91,252) $13,214 $39,296 ($247,124)



106     N O T E S  T O  F I N A N C I A L  S T A T E M E N T S

14. SELF-INSURANCE
The Medical Centers are insured through the University’s malpractice, general liability, workers’ compensation, and health and welfare 
self-insurance programs. All operating departments of the University are charged premiums to finance the workers’ compensation and 
health and welfare programs. The University’s Medical Centers are charged premiums to finance the malpractice insurance. All claims 
and related expenses are paid from the University’s self-insurance funds or the University’s wholly owned captive insurance company. 
Such risks are subject to various per-claim and aggregate limits, with excess liability coverage provided by independent insurers. 

Malpractice and general liability premiums are recorded as insurance and other expense in the statements of revenues, expenses and 
changes in net position. Workers’ compensation premiums, net of refunds, are included as other employee benefits in the statements 
of revenues, expenses and changes in net position.

CHRCO’s liabilities for medical malpractice, workers’ compensation and health care claims changed as follows:

(in thousands of dollars)

MEDICAL 
MALPRACTICE

WORKERS' 
COMPENSATION

EMPLOYEE  
HEALTH CARE TOTAL

Year ended June 30, 2018

Liabilities at June 30, 2017 $4,563 $12,221 $1,675 $18,459

Claims incurred and changes in estimates (1,943) 2,411 10,104 10,572

Claim payments 2,430 (2,954) (10,094) (10,618)

Liabilities at June 30, 2018 $5,050 $11,678 $1,685 $18,413

Discount rate Undiscounted 5.0% Undiscounted

Year ended June 30, 2017

Liabilities at June 30, 2016 $4,425 $12,540 $1,864 $18,829

Claims incurred and changes in estimates 730 2,469 7,965 11,164

Claim payments (592) (2,788) (8,154) (11,534)

Liabilities at June 30, 2017 $4,563 $12,221 $1,675 $18,459

Discount rate Undiscounted 5.0% Undiscounted

Year ended June 30, 2016

Liabilities at June 30, 2015 $4,427 $11,197 $2,522 $18,146

Claims incurred and changes in estimates 730 4,283 8,547 13,560

Claim payments (732) (2,940) (9,205) (12,877)

Liabilities at June 30, 2016 $4,425 $12,540 $1,864 $18,829

Discount rate Undiscounted 5.0% Undiscounted

CHRCO has two irrevocable letters of credit with a bank totaling $10.8 million as of June 30, 2018, which is security for the workers’ 
compensation large dollar insurance deductible. No amounts were drawn on the letter of credit as of June 30, 2018.



 U N I V E R S I T Y  O F  C A L I F O R N I A  M E D I C A L  C E N T E R S  1 7 / 1 8  A N N U A L  F I N A N C I A L  R E P O R T           107

15. TRANSACTIONS WITH OTHER UNIVERSITY ENTITIES
Services purchased from the University include office and medical supplies, building maintenance, repairs and maintenance, 
administrative, treasury, medical services and insurance. Services provided to the University include physician office rentals, 
pharmaceuticals, billing services, medical supplies and cafeteria services. Such amounts are netted and reported as operating  
expenses in the statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net position for the years ended June 30 are as follows:

(in thousands of dollars)

Davis Irvine Los Angeles San Diego San Francisco TOTAL

2018

Other employee benefits $10,074 $6,052 $22,963 $11,417 $18,456 $68,962

Professional services 70,177 4,463 2,079 59,812 601,395 737,926

Other supplies and purchased services 14,321 42,983 83,616 12,444 39,073 192,437

Insurance and other 11,706 6,639 7,179 11,197 11,322 48,043

Interest income (expense), net (11,888) (5,573) (21,720) (4,866) (15,498) (59,545)

Total $94,390 $54,564 $94,117 $90,004 $654,748 $987,823

2017

Other employee benefits $8,384 $6,454 $22,675 $10,309 $16,877 $64,699

Professional services 76,550 5,225 1,602 45,986 540,858 670,221

Other supplies and purchased services 9,602 41,182 79,102 9,602 38,208 177,696

Insurance and other 9,602 5,598 6,208 9,014 9,143 39,565

Interest income (expense), net (7,434) (3,621) (16,540) (5,599) (11,737) (44,931)

Total $96,704 $54,838 $93,047 $69,312 $593,349 $907,250

Additionally, the Medical Centers make payments to the Schools of Medicine. Services purchased from the Schools of Medicine include 
physician services that benefit the Medical Centers, such as emergency room coverage, physicians providing medical direction to the 
Medical Centers and the Medical Centers’ allocation of malpractice insurance. Such expenses are reported as operating expenses in 
the statements of revenue, expenses and changes in net position. Health system support includes amounts paid to the Schools of 
Medicine by the Medical Centers to fund the operating activities, clinical research and faculty practice plans, as well as other payments 
made to support various programs. 

The payments made by the Medical Centers for the years ended June 30 are as follows:

(in thousands of dollars)

Davis Irvine Los Angeles San Diego San Francisco TOTAL

2018

Reported as operating expenses $94,390 $54,564 $94,117 $90,004 $654,748 $987,823

Reported as health system support 30,285 48,173 212,827 124,055 116,286 531,626

Total payments to the University $124,675 $102,737 $306,944 $214,059 $771,034 $1,519,449

2017

Reported as operating expenses $96,704 $54,838 $93,047 $69,312 $593,349 $907,250

Reported as health system support 28,088 59,727 175,341 109,586 84,898 457,640

Total payments to the University $124,792 $114,565 $268,388 $178,898 $678,247 $1,364,890



108     N O T E S  T O  F I N A N C I A L  S T A T E M E N T S

16. COMPONENT UNIT INFORMATION
Condensed financial statement information related to CHRCO for the years ended June 30 is as follows:

(in thousands of dollars)

2018 2017

CONDENSED STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

Current assets $311,603 $249,445

Capital assets, net 325,396 295,766

Other assets 269,174 266,607

Total assets 906,173 811,818

Total deferred outflows of resources 21,551 27,674

Current liabilities 193,228 104,878

Long-term debt 102,518 103,592

Other noncurrent liabilities 53,506 70,927

Total liabilities 349,252 279,397

Total deferred inflows of resources 15,942 16,714

Net investment in capital assets 222,341 191,683

Restricted 66,759 79,945

Unrestricted 273,430 271,753

Total net position $562,530 $543,381

CONDENSED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

Operating revenues

Net patient service revenue $525,401 $530,515

Grants and contracts 43,766 46,195

Other operating revenue 22,441 20,854

Operating expenses (582,955) (558,460)

Depreciation expense (35,946) (33,842)

Operating income (loss) (27,293) 5,262
Non-operating revenues, net 44,428 42,218

Income before other changes in net position 17,135 47,480
Other, including donated assets 2,014 17,450

Increase in net position 19,149 64,930

Net position:

Beginning of year, as previously reported 543,381 479,590

Cumulative effect of accounting change (1,139)

Beginning of year, as restated 543,381 478,451

Net position - end of year $562,530 $543,381

CONDENSED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Net cash provided (used) by:

Operating activities $37,520 $37,041

Noncapital financing activities 23,462 19,523

Capital and related financing activities (56,953) 5,336

Investing activities 18,657 (14,452)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 22,686 47,448
Cash and cash equivalents – beginning of year 118,862 71,414

Cash and cash equivalents – end of year $141,548 $118,862



 U N I V E R S I T Y  O F  C A L I F O R N I A  M E D I C A L  C E N T E R S  1 7 / 1 8  A N N U A L  F I N A N C I A L  R E P O R T           109

17. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
The health care industry is subject to numerous laws and regulations of federal, state and local governments. Compliance with these 
laws and regulations is subject to periodic governmental review, interpretation and audits, as well as regulatory actions unknown and 
unasserted at this time.

The Medical Centers are contingently liable in connection with certain claims and contracts, including those currently in litigation, 
arising out of the normal course of its activities. Management and General Counsel are of the opinion that the outcome of such matters 
will not have a material effect on the Medical Centers’ financial statements.

The Medical Centers have entered into various construction contracts. The remaining costs of the Medical Center projects, excluding 
interest, as of June 30, 2018 are estimated to be approximately:

(in thousands of dollars)

Davis $44,899

Irvine 56,119

Los Angeles 11,648

San Diego 11,771

San Francisco 109,137

Total $233,574

Under an agreement with a private, non-profit hospital, UCSF Medical Center paid in contributions $20.0 million in September 2018, 
and committed to provide $90.0 million in aggregate capital investments through a series of newly formed joint ventures with the 
hospital over the course of the initial 10 years of the agreement. An additional service agreement was signed for UCSF Medical Center 
to operate certain outpatient clinics whose sole corporate member is the same non-profit hospital.



110     R E Q U I R E D  S U P P L E M E N T A R Y  I N F O R M A T I O N

Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited)

UCRP
The schedule of the Medical Centers’ proportionate share of UCRP’s net pension liability is presented below:

(in thousands of dollars)

AS OF JUNE 30 Proportion of the  
net pension liability

Proportionate share of  
net pension liability Covered payroll

Proportionate share of  
the net pension liability  

as a percentage of its  
covered payroll

Plan fiduciary net  
position as a percentage  

of the total  
pension liability

DAVIS

2018 6.8% $643,552 $791,832 81.3% 85.9%
2017 6.7 675,141 732,307 92.2 84.0
2016 6.6 895,967 682,784 131.2 77.2
2015 6.5 627,561 635,120 98.8 82.9
2014 6.6 468,810 603,824 77.6 86.3
2013 6.5 690,989 563,695 122.6 78.3
2012 6.3 880,516 522,988 168.4 71.3

IRVINE
2018 3.0% $279,015 $343,303 81.3% 85.9%
2017 3.2 321,946 349,207 92.2 84.0
2016 3.2 438,524 334,184 131.2 77.2
2015 3.2 308,211 311,924 98.8 82.9
2014 3.3 235,813 303,726 77.6 86.3
2013 3.3 345,341 281,722 122.6 78.3
2012 3.3 466,849 277,288 168.4 71.3

LOS ANGELES
2018 7.5% $706,286 $869,020 81.3% 85.9%
2017 7.3 741,290 804,058 92.2 84.0
2016 7.3 990,520 754,840 131.2 77.2
2015 7.2 697,260 705,659 98.8 82.9
2014 7.3 513,936 661,946 77.6 86.3
2013 7.0 739,451 603,229 122.6 78.3
2012 6.6 928,298 551,368 168.4 71.3

SAN DIEGO
2018 4.9% $460,577 $566,698 81.3% 85.9%
2017 4.5 459,781 498,712 92.2 84.0
2016 4.1 564,996 430,563 131.2 77.2
2015 4.0 385,387 390,029 98.8 82.9
2014 3.9 271,458 349,636 77.6 86.3
2013 3.8 405,012 330,401 122.6 78.3
2012 4.2 587,011 348,659 168.4 71.3

SAN FR ANCISCO
2018 9.4% $886,409 $1,090,645 81.3% 85.9%
2017 9.1 919,943 997,838 92.2 84.0
2016 8.6 1,171,002 892,379 131.2 77.2
2015 8.1 777,948 787,319 98.8 82.9
2014 7.4 523,452 674,202 77.6 86.3
2013 7.8 822,056 670,617 122.6 78.3
2012 7.5 1,044,811 620,572 168.4 71.3

TOTAL
2018 31.6% $2,975,839 $3,661,498 81.3% 85.9%
2017 30.8 3,118,101 3,382,122 92.2 84.0
2016 29.8 4,061,009 3,094,750 131.2 77.2
2015 29.0 2,796,367 2,830,051 98.8 82.9
2014 28.5 2,013,469 2,593,334 77.6 86.3
2013 28.4 3,002,849 2,449,664 122.6 78.3

2012 27.9 3,907,485 2,320,875 168.4 71.3



 U N I V E R S I T Y  O F  C A L I F O R N I A  M E D I C A L  C E N T E R S  1 7 / 1 8  A N N U A L  F I N A N C I A L  R E P O R T           111

CHRCO PENSION PLAN
The schedule of changes in the net pension liability for the CHRCO Pension Plan for the years ended June 30 is as follows:

(in thousands of dollars)

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

TOTAL PENSION LIABILITY

As of June 30

Service cost $11,304 $9,910 $10,410 $9,448 $9,274

Interest on the total pension liability 31,854 29,672 27,782 24,683 22,453

Changes of benefit terms 92 33 24 40 142

Difference between expected and actual experience 3,609 2,442 (3,690) 762 2,487

Changes of assumptions or other inputs 3,613 33,105

Benefits paid, including refunds of employee contributions (12,802) (11,767) (9,509) (8,082) (6,994)

Net change in total pension liability 34,057 30,290 28,630 59,956 27,362

Total pension liability - beginning of year 450,152 419,862 391,232 331,276 303,914

Total pension liability - end of year 484,209 450,152 419,862 391,232 331,276

PLAN NET POSITION

Contributions - employer 33,600 28,800 24,000 18,000 14,500

Net investment income 33,269 41,256 214 11,797 48,704

Benefits paid, including refunds of employee contributions (12,802) (11,767) (9,509) (8,082) (6,994)

Administrative expense (3,014) (2,727) (1,816) (1,222) (718)

Net change in plan net position 51,053 55,562 12,889 20,493 55,492

Total plan net position - beginning of year 409,008 353,446 340,557 320,064 264,572

Total plan net position - end of year 460,061 409,008 353,446 340,557 320,064

Net pension liability - end of year $24,148 $41,144 $66,416 $50,675 $11,212

The schedule of net pension liability for the CHRCO Pension Plan as of June 30 is:

 (in thousands of dollars)

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

Total pension liability $484,209 $450,152 $419,862 $391,232 $331,276

Plan net position 460,061 409,008 353,446 340,557 320,064

Net pension liability $24,148 $41,144 $66,416 $50,675 $11,212

Ratio of plan net position to total pension liability 95.0% 90.9% 84.2% 87.0% 96.6%

Covered payroll $187,639 $184,083 $165,672 $177,986 $175,189

Net pension liability as a percentage of covered payroll 12.9% 22.4% 40.1% 28.5% 6.4%

The schedule of employer contributions for the CHRCO Pension Plan for the years ended June 30 is:

 (in thousands of dollars)

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

Actuarially calculated employer contributions $7,710 $5,642 $7,823 $12,239 $21,282

Contributions in relation to the actuarially calculated employer 
contribution

33,600 28,800 24,000 18,000 14,500

Annual contribution (excess) deficiency ($25,890) ($23,158) ($16,177) ($5,761) $6,782

Covered payroll $187,639 $184,083 $165,672 $177,986 $175,189

Actual contributions as a percentage of covered payroll 17.9% 15.6% 14.5% 10.1% 8.3%



112     R E Q U I R E D  S U P P L E M E N T A R Y  I N F O R M A T I O N

Notes to schedule

Methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates:

Valuation date Actuarially calculated contributions are calculated as of January 1 of the end of the fiscal year in which 
contributions are reported. 

Actuarially determined contribution The Plan is subject to funding requirements under ERISA. The contribution shown is the IRC Section 430 
minimum contribution prior to offset by credit balances prorated for the number of months in the fiscal 
year. For the period January 1, 2014 to June 30, 2014, the amount shown does not reflect changes in the 
Highway and Transportation Funding Act of 2014 (HATFA). The contribution for July 1, 2014 and thereafter 
includes HATFA.        

Contributions in relation to the 
  actuarially determined contribution

The amount shown is equal to the contributions contributed to the Plan during the fiscal year shown.          

Actuarial cost method Unit Credit Actuarial Cost Method.

Amortization method Level dollar, closed amortization.

Remaining amortization period 7 years for changes in unfunded liabilities that occur each valuation date.

Asset valuation method The actuarial value of assets is equal to the two-year average of Plan asset values as of the valuation 
date. The two-year average is the average of the two prior years' adjusted market value of assets and the 
current year's market value of assets. For this purpose, the prior years' market value of assets is adjusted to 
reflect benefit payments, administrative expenses, contributions and expected returns for the prior years. 
The resulting actuarial value of assets is adjusted to be within 10% of the market value of assets at the 
valuation date, as required by IRC Section 430.

Inflation 3.0%.

Investment rate of return 7.0%, net of pension plan investment expenses, including inflation.

Projected salary increases 5.0%, including inflation through 2017, 4.0% afterward.

Cost-of-living adjustments N/A.

Mortality Adjusted RP-2014 Mortality Table for males or females with back up base table to 2006, as appropriate, 
with generational adjustments for mortality improvements based on Scale MP-2016.



 U N I V E R S I T Y  O F  C A L I F O R N I A  M E D I C A L  C E N T E R S  1 7 / 1 8  A N N U A L  F I N A N C I A L  R E P O R T           113

OCERS
The schedule of Irvine’s proportionate share of OCERS’s net pension liability is presented below:

(in thousands of dollars)

AS OF JUNE 30 Proportion of the  
net pension liability

Proportionate share of  
net pension liability Covered payroll

Proportionate share of  
the net pension liability  

as a percentage of its  
covered payroll

Plan fiduciary net  
position as a percentage  

of the total  
pension liability

2018 0.3% $13,822 $15 92,146.7% 37.6%

2017 0.3 18,057 44 41,038.6 34.5

2016 0.3 18,092 285 6,348.1 34.8

RETIREE HEALTH BENEFITS
The schedule of the Medical Centers’ proportionate share of UCRHBT’s net retiree health benefits liability is presented below:

(in thousands of dollars)

AS OF JUNE 30
Proportion of the  

net retiree health benefits 
liability

Proportionate share  
of net retiree health 

benefits liability
Covered payroll

Proportionate share of  
the net retiree health 
benefits liability as a 

percentage of  
its covered payroll

Plan fiduciary net  
position as a percentage  
of the total retiree health 

benefits liability

DAVIS

2018 6.6% $1,215,568 $804,821 151.0% 0.7%

2017 6.6 1,227,803 735,904 166.8 0.6

2016 6.6 1,385,392 682,784 202.9 0.3

2015 6.5 1,174,370 635,120 184.9 0.3

IRVINE

2018 3.0% $548,548 $363,214 151.0% 0.7%

2017 3.1 574,394 344,334 166.8 0.6

2016 3.2 678,034 334,184 202.9 0.3

2015 3.2 576,719 311,924 184.9 0.3

LOS ANGELES

2018 7.7% $1,404,685 $930,071 151.0% 0.7%

2017 7.6 1,422,069 852,389 166.8 0.6

2016 7.3 1,531,589 754,840 202.9 0.3

2015 7.2 1,304,836 705,659 184.9 0.3

SAN DIEGO

2018 4.8% $867,819 $574,571 151.0% 0.7%

2017 4.5 835,720 500,922 166.8 0.6

2016 4.1 873,597 430,563 202.9 0.3

2015 4.0 721,260 390,029 184.9 0.3

SAN FR ANCISCO

2018 9.8% $1,789,855 $1,185,071 151.0% 0.7%

2017 9.5 1,777,540 1,065,427 166.8 0.6

2016 8.6 1,810,693 892,379 202.9 0.3

2015 8.1 1,455,873 787,319 184.9 0.3

TOTAL

2018 31.9% $5,826,475 $3,857,748 151.0% 0.7%

2017 31.3 5,837,526 3,498,976 166.8 0.6

2016 29.8 6,279,305 3,094,750 202.9 0.3

2015 29.0 5,233,058 2,830,051 184.9 0.3







116     R E G E N T S  A N D  O F F I C E R S  O F  T H E  U N I V E R S I T Y  O F  C A L I F O R N I A

U N I V E R S I T Y  O F  C A L I F O R N I A 

Regents and Officers

F A C U L T Y  R E P R E S E N T A T I V E S  (non-voting)

Robert May, Chair, Assembly of the Academic Senate
Kum-Kum Bhavnani, Vice Chair, Assembly of the Academic Senate 

O F F I C E R S  O F  T H E  R E G E N T S

Alexander Bustamante, Senior Vice President-Chief Compliance and Audit Officer
Charles F. Robinson, General Counsel and Vice President-Legal Affairs
Jagdeep Singh Bachher, Chief Investment Officer and Vice President-Investments
Anne Shaw, Secretary and Chief of Staff 

O F F I C E  O F  T H E  P R E S I D E N T

Janet Napolitano, President of University
Michael Brown, Provost and Executive Vice President-Academic Affairs
Nathan Brostrom, Executive Vice President-Chief Financial Officer
Rachael Nava, Executive Vice President-Chief Operating Officer
John D. “Jack” Stobo, Executive Vice President-UC Health 
Claire Holmes, Senior Vice President-External Relations & Communications
Christine Gulbranson, Senior Vice President-Innovation and Entrepreneurship
Charles F. Robinson, General Counsel and Vice President-Legal Affairs
Alexander Bustamante, Senior Vice President-Chief Compliance and Audit Officer
Jagdeep Singh Bachher, Chief Investment Officer and Vice President-Investments

M E D I C A L  C E N T E R  C H I E F  E X E C U T I V E  O F F I C E R S

Brad Simmons, Davis (Interim)
Richard Gannotta, Irvine
Johnese Spisso, Los Angeles
Patty Maysent, San Diego
Mark Laret, San Francisco

M E D I C A L  C E N T E R  C H I E F  F I N A N C I A L  O F F I C E R S

Timothy R. Maurice, Davis
Jay Sial, Irvine
Paul Staton, Los Angeles
Lori Donaldson, San Diego
Barrie Strickland, San Francisco

A P P O I N T E D  R E G E N T S  
(In alphabetical order by last name)

Maria Anguiano
Richard C. Blum 
Laphonza Butler
Michael Cohen
Gareth Elliott
Cecilia Estolano
Howard “Peter” Guber
George D. Kieffer
Sherry L. Lansing
Richard Leib
Hadi Makarechian
Eloy Ortiz Oakley
Lark Park
John A. Perez
Richard Sherman
Ellen Tauscher
Charlene R. Zettel

E X  O F F I C I O  R E G E N T S

Jerry Brown, Governor of California
Gavin Newsom, Lieutenant Governor
Anthony Rendon, Speaker of the Assembly
Tom Torlakson, State Superintendent of Public Instruction
Janet Napolitano, President of the University

A L U M N I  R E G E N T S

Darin Anderson, President,
  Alumni Associations of the University of California
Jason Morimoto, Vice President,
  Alumni Associations of the University of California

R E G E N T S - D E S I G N A T E 
Christine Simmons, Treasurer,
  Alumni Associations of the University of California
William Um, Secretary,
  Alumni Associations of the University of California
Hayley Weddle, Student Regent Designate



© 2018 THE REGENTS OF THE UNIVERSIT Y OF CALIFORNIA

University of California
Office of the President
1111 Franklin Street
Oakland, CA 94607 

ucop.edu



% Of Budget Budget
Total Budget from Foundation 100 $20,000.00

Expenses (Monthly) Description Cost
Needs Educational Platform Development for community centers $6,500.00 UI/UX Design, Architectural Framework
Needs Database Development (AWS/Heroku) $4,000.00
Needs Dietician to Develop Nutritional Counseling Program $4,500.00
Needs Subsidized E-Consults (proof of concept) ~ 400 Hours $5,000.00



 
 
Meeting Date: 11/13/2019  
 
Report Type:  Discussion 
 
 
 
 

 

Title:  Revisions to Procedures for Awarding Grants 

Location:  Citywide 

Recommendation: Pass a motion revising the procedures for awarding grants 

Contact:  Janelle Oishi, Program Specialist, (916) 808-1016, Youth, Parks, & Community Enrichment 

Presenter:  None 

Department:  Youth, Parks, & Community Enrichment 

Division:  Fiscal and Management Services 

Attachments: 

01 Description/Analysis 
02 Recommended New Grant Funding Documents 
03 Recommendations for New Grant Funding Procedures 

 
  
Submitted By: Janelle Oishi, Program Specialist 
  

Ann Land and Bertha 
Henchel Report 

www.CityofSacramento.org  

http://www.cityofsacramento.org/


Attachment 01 – Description/Analysis 
 

Issue: The Ann Land and Bertha Henschel Commission is responsible for the disbursement of 
income of the Ann Land Memorial Fund and the Bertha Henschel Memorial Fund for the benefit, aid, 
and assistance of the destitute men, women, and children of the City in such a manner as may be 
deemed proper and beneficial.  

The Commission allocates funds through an annual grant process and holds a grant funding meeting 
every November. Applicants for grants must be present to be considered. The President of the 
Commission named an ad hoc committee to work with staff to review the grant funding procedures 
and bring a recommendation to the Commission for further discussion. The ad hoc committee has 
requested that staff provide an overview of the committee’s recommendations.  

Policy Considerations: The Commission may establish a new grant funding procedure by formally 
adopting it as a regulation (see City Code § 2.64.100 [directing the Commission to “adopt rules and 
regulations for its government and for the performance of its duties”]) and submitting it to the City 
Council for review and approval (see City Code § 2.64.040 [providing that the commission “shall at all 
times be under the supervision and control of the city council”]). 
 
 Economic Impacts: None 

 Environmental Considerations: None 

 Sustainability: None 

 Commission/Committee Action: None 

Rationale for Recommendation: The Ann Land and Bertha Henschel Commission is authorized to 
decide how to distribute funds to the destitute men, women, and children of the City, subject to the 
City Council’s supervision. (City Code §§ 2.64.040, 2.64.150.A, 3.48.020). 
 
Financial Considerations: None 

 Emerging Small Business Development (ESBD): None 



Ann Land and Bertha Henschel 

Memorial Fund Commission 
Commission Priorities 

It is the purpose of the Ann Land and 

Bertha Henschel Memorial Fund 

Commission to assist the destitute men, 

women, and children of the City of 

Sacramento. 

 

The Ann Land and Bertha Henschel Memorial Fund Commission (“Commission”) establishes an ongoing strategic planning 
process by which it translates its purpose and values into actionable and measurable priorities for its support of Sacramento 
residents. This document outlines long-term strategic priorities for the Commission as well as the process by which the 
Commission determines annual funding priorities.  

Strategic Priorities 
Every four years, the Commission will engage in a comprehensive, data-driven review to update its Strategic Priorities. Data 
gathering may include input from: 

• Community health needs assessments 
• Sacramento strategic plans and City Department planning documents 
• Presentations by City staff of various departments on issues relevant to the City 
• Feedback from community and stakeholder representatives 
• Feedback from recipient of Commission fund awards 

The Commission’s Strategic Priorities is an overarching document which ensures alignment with the Comission’s primary 
purpose as well as City strategic initiatives. This document provides a foundation for members of the Commission to 
organize and utilize their experience, expertise and knowledge of the needs of Sacramento’s communities. 

Annual Funding Priorities 
At the beginning of each calendar year, the Commission sets its Annual Funding Priorities for the following year. The Annual 
Funding Priorities is a living document which is consistently re-evaluated to assess grant processes and outcomes. This 
living document gives the Comission members and staff a clear roadmap to help focus energies on priority areas so that 
projects are implemented in a balanced way.  

Target Population 
The Ann Land and Bertha Henschel Memorial Fund Commission directs its funds to support the basic human needs of the 
destitute men, women, and children of the City. Destitution is a multi-dimensional concept, with three main components: 
economic, social, and political powerlessness. Destitution is defined as a state of extreme poverty experienced by poor 
and/or vulnerable individuals and families that are not able to meet their minimum subsistence needs, lack access to the key 
productive assets needed to escape from poverty, and/or are dependent on public or private assistance.1 

Based on Abraham Maslow’s Hierarchy of Needs2, the most basic needs for physical survival are divided into two 
categories, physiological needs and safety  needs. Physiological needs encomass biological requirements for human 
survival; if these needs are not satisfied the human body cannot function optimally. Safety needs are defined as protection 
from the elements, security, order, law, stability, and freedom from fear. The Commission will provide support for the 
physiological and safety needs of destitute men, women, and children of Sacramento. 

 

 
1 Devereux, Stephen. (2003). Conceptualizing Destitution. Volume 216 of Working Paper, Institute of Development Studies. Brighton, Sussex. 
2 Maslow, A. H. (1943). A Theory of Human Motivation. Psychological Review, 50(4), 370-396.  



Ann Land and Bertha Henschel Memorial Fund 
2020 GRANT GUIDELINES  

 

 
The City of Sacramento’s Ann Land and Bertha Henschel Memorial Fund Commission invites you to apply for 
grant monies from the Ann Land and Bertha Henschel Memorial Fund. 

 
 
Online Application Available:  
           Monday, August 26, 2019 
 
Application Deadline: 

Monday, September 23, 2019 at 4pm 

 

Contact: 
Janelle Oishi, Program Specialist 

Youth, Parks, & Community Enrichment 

(916) 808-1016 
joishi@cityofsacramento.org 

All applications shall be submitted via the online application process. Applicants must submit their 
application by the date of the Application Deadline to be considered for a grant award.  

Once applications are received, ALBHMF staff will review for completeness and ensure all required 
documents are attached. Staff will provide notice to applicants to submit any missing documentation by 
Monday, October 28, 2019. Beyond submission of documents for completeness, no amendments to 
application content will be accepted. 
 

Purpose: The purpose of the Ann Land and Bertha Henschel Memorial Fund is to assist the destitute men, 
women, and children of the City of Sacramento.  

 

History: The Ann Land Memorial Fund was established in 1914 with a bequest of $200,000 to the City by former 
Mayor William Land as a memorial to his mother, Ann Land. In 1952, Bertha Henschel bequeathed $275,000 to 
the City to establish a fund in her name. Additional contributions to these funds have been made by Emma 
Hotfilter, Annie Zacariah, and Warren Reed. Each year, interest earnings on these bequests and contributions 
may be distributed to non-profit organizations. The Sacramento City Council appoints community members to 
the Ann Land and Bertha Henschel Memorial Fund Commission to review grant applications and award grants to 
qualified non-profit organizations. 

 

Funds Available For 2020, the Ann Land and Bertha Henschel Memorial Fund Commission has 
approximately $150,000 in funds to distribute to organizations that provide “direct 
aid and assistance to the destitute men, women, and children of the City of 
Sacramento.” Funds are limited, and demand is high. On average, the 
Commission awards between 12 to 20 grants annually.  

Last year’s average award was $6,000. The Commission anticipates an increase 
in applications this year, so the average award may be lower.   

Eligibility Only non-profit 501(c)(3) organizations that have an office or facility within the 
City of Sacramento and serve destitute residents of the City are eligible to apply.   



Required Online 
Application 
Attachments 

 Verification of your organization’s not-for-profit status (letter from IRS 
confirming § 501(c)(3) status). 

 Verification that your organization (1) is registered with the Registry of 
Charitable Trusts maintained by the California Attorney General or (2) is not 
required to register. 

 A copy of your organization’s current business license or a letter from the 
City of Sacramento Finance Department verifying your organization’s 
exemption from the City’s business-operations tax. The Sacramento City 
Code requires that anyone conducting business within the City of 
Sacramento have a current business license on file with the City. The City 
issues nonprofit organizations a waiver letter in lieu of a business license. A 
waiver letter can be obtained at the Revenue Counter in New City Hall, First 
Floor, Room 1214. Indicate your organization’s non-profit status on the 
application form. There is no charge for nonprofit organizations. 

 A copy of your organization’s most recent audit and any corrective actions or 
recommendations suggested by the auditor. If you do not have an annual 
audit, please explain why and provide a copy of your organization’s most-
recent annual financial statements, signed by your organization’s 
treasurer AND by the preparer, whether a CPA or bookkeeper. 

 A budget showing the proposed expenses using ALBH funds. A grantee may 
not use funds to defray its administrative expenses, overhead, or 
unanticipated expenses (e.g. salary or personnel costs). The budget should 
clearly explain the dollar amount requested for each categorized expense. 
Program activities outlined in the grant application narratives should be 
clearly linked to the budget request. 

Disqualification Read all instructions thoroughly and complete the application carefully. An 
application will be disqualified if it is incomplete or if it does not include all 
required materials. 

Your failure to attend the Commission’s annual funding meeting at 9:00 
a.m. on Wednesday, November 13, 2019, in the Council Chambers, New 
City Hall, 915 I Street, First Floor, Sacramento, will result in disqualification 
even if you have previously been funded. 

Date Funds Available Grant funds are expected to be available to successful applicants on or after 
January 1, 2020. The Ann Land and Bertha Henschel Memorial Fund 
Commission will make its allocations at its annual funding meeting on November 
13, 2019. Written notification of the Commission’s decision will be emailed to all 
applicants on or about December 9, 2019. Successful applicants must enter into 
a funding agreement with the Commission as a condition for receiving funds. 



Public Documents All applications submitted to the City become public documents and are 
available to the public for review once included in the agenda packet for the 
Commission’s meeting on November 13. If you believe that all or part of your 
application should be kept confidential, please notify the Commission’s staff. 

Authorized Uses Grant funds may be used only to carry out activities that benefit, aid, and assist 
the destitute men, women, and children of the City. A grantee may not use the 
funds to defray its administrative expenses, overhead, or unanticipated 
expenses (e.g. salary or personnel costs). Exceptions may be made at the 
discretion of the Commission. A grantee may only expend these funds during the 
term of the funding agreement.   

Other Important Notes Grants are awarded for only one year. Approval of a grant this year in no way 
implies that funding will be awarded in subsequent years. 

Grant funds must be used for the purposes specified in the grant application.  
Grant funds are to support the basic human needs of the destitute men, women 
and children of the City. 

Grantees are required to submit semi-annual reports to the Commission, 
and the failure to do so will disqualify a grantee from participating in the 
next funding cycle for which the grantee would otherwise be eligible. 

For More Information For more information please contact Janelle Oishi, Support Staff to the Ann Land 
and Bertha Henschel Memorial Fund Commission: 

Email: joishi@cityofsacramento.org 

Telephone: (916) 808-1016 

  

mailto:joishi@cityofsacramento.org


2020 Ann Land & Bertha Henschel Memorial Fund Online Grant Application 
 

Contact Information 

1. Organization  Name:  
2. Address:  

Mailing Address:  
3. Contact Person  

Title:  
Phone Number:  
Email Address:  

4. Executive Officer  
Name:  
Phone Number:  
Email Address:  
  

5. Reporting Contact  
Name:  
Title:  
Phone Number:  
Email Address:  

 

Program Proposal 

1. Select the Sacramento City Council District(s) where services will be rendered.                                                    
Please reference this link for Council District areas:                                                       
https://www.cityofsacramento.org/-/media/Corporate/Files/GIS/Maps/Council_All_E.pdf?la=en 
☐ Council District 1 
☐ Council District 2 
☐ Council District 3 
☐ Council District 4 
☐ Council District 5 
☐ Council District 6 
☐ Council District 7 
☐ Council District 8 
 

2. Select your program service recipients. 
☐ Adult Men  ☐ Adult Women  ☐ Families  ☐ Children/Youth 
 

3. What category of services will you provide using this funding? 
☐ Food/Nutrition   ☐ Shelter/Housing   
☐ Transportation   ☐ Social Services to Support Basic Human Needs 
☐ Other: _____________________________ 
 

4. How does your program’s objectives align with the goals of the Commission (to assist the destitute men, women 
and children of the City of Sacramento)? 

5. How does your program objectives align with the ALBH Annual Funding Priorities? 
6. Describe your program intake and assessment process. How will you determine eligibility for the proposed 

services? 

https://www.cityofsacramento.org/-/media/Corporate/Files/GIS/Maps/Council_All_E.pdf?la=en


7. Describe any collaboration with other agencies for delivery of the proposed program services. 
8. Briefly describe the proposed program services. 
10. How many clients will be served with ALBHMF funds? What is the percentage out of your total clients served? 

(clients served with ALBHMF funds ÷ total clients served by the proposed program) 
11. Describe your program evaluation methods. What are the program’s goals and expected outcomes? 
12. Describe your indicators and criteria for judging success. How will success be measured? 

Sustainability 

1. Is the proposed program supported by any other funding source? If so, please describe the type of support from 
each source. 

2. Why is this funding important to your program? 
3. What is the organization’s plan for program sustainability beyond the grant project period? 

Organizational Capacity 

1. Please provide your mission statement. 
2. What is your organization’s date of incorporation? 
3. What other services and programs does your organization provide? 
4. Please describe your organization’s experience and capacity to implement the proposed program. 
5. Please describe your program staff’s experience and capacity to deliver effective services. 

 



ALBHMF GRANT EVALUATION MATRIX 
 

Organization : 

Project/Program: 

 
Commissioner Name: 

 

FACTORS 

WEIGHTED DECISION-M AKING CRITERIA 

RATING 0     |     1     |     2     |    3 4     |     5     |     6 7    |    8     |    9 

Geographic area is accessible and 
appropriate for identified target 
population 

No clear connection between 
target population and area 

Moderate linkage between target 
population and area 

Clear demonstrated links 
between target population and 

area 

 

Fit with ALBHMF’s purpose No significant alignment Moderate alignment Strategic alignment 

 

Alignment with ALBHMF Annual Funding 
Priorities Low priority, limited impact Moderate priority alignment or 

impact 
High priority and potential impact 

 

Demonstrated assessment process to 
determine target population/eligibility 

Minimal or no demonstrated 
assessment process 

Assessment process is too vague 
OR stringent for appropriateness to 

target population 

Appropriate assessment process 
described relative to target 

population 

 

Collaboration with other agencies for 
delivery   of services 

No identified partners or 
collaborative agreements Potential partners or collaborators 

identified 
Longstanding relationships with 

partners/collaborators 

 

Scope – number of clients that will be 
served with ALBHMF funds 

Minimal clients served relative 
to request for funds 

Moderate scope of clients served 
relative to request for funds 

Demonstrated maximum impact on 
clients served relative to funds 

 

Evaluation: program objectives and 
outcomes have technical merit and are 
clear, appropriate, and measurable 

Vague or no clear program 
outcome measures OR 

measures are not linked to 
services provided 

Appropriate outcomes linked to 
services provided 

Appropriate, clear, and measurable 
outcome metrics link clearly to 

services provided 

 

Sustainability – program is supported by 
matching funds or in-kind contributions 

No support (matching or in-kind) is 
committed to the program 

Some support (matching OR in-
kind) is committed to the program 

Demonstrated support 
(matching or in-kind) is 

committed to the program 

 

Sustainability – program is likely to be 
sustainable after the grant project period 

Program is not likely to operate 
beyond the grant project period/ 

no plan for sustainability 

Program seems likely to operate 
beyond the grant project period/ 

plan describes some future 
needs/actions 

Plan is highly likely to operate 
beyond the project period/ plan 

describes diverse future 
needs/actions 

 



Organization’s experience and capacity 

No demonstrated experience in 
provision of services; significant 
investment of resources required 

to build program 

Some history of experience in 
services; some investment of 

resources required to 
build/implement program 

Demonstrated history of 
experience providing services; 

little or no investment required to 
build/implement program 

 

Staff experience and capacity Staff inexperienced; inadequate 
credentials/training 

Some/partial staff experience; 
related credentials/training 

Demonstrated staff experience; 
related credentials/training 

 

Organization’s financial capacity – program 
activities are reflected in the budget 

Budget line items do not reflect 
appropriate categorized 

expenses. Program activities are 
not linked to budget expenses. 

Budget adequately reflects dollar 
amounts per categorized expense. 
Program activities are somewhat 
reflected in the budget expenses 

Budget clearly reflects dollar 
amounts per categorized expense. 
Program activities clearly linked to 

budget expenses 

 

Additional Notes: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

TOTAL:       
 
 

/108 
 
 
 



PROPOSAL SCORING LEGEND 
Score Descriptor Additional Guidance 
0 Inadequate No strengths present 
1 Poor Very few strengths and numerous major weaknesses 
2 Marginal A few strengths and a few major weaknesses 
3 Fair Some strengths but with at least one major 

weakness 
4 Satisfactory Some strengths but also some moderate 

weaknesses 
5 Good Strong but with at least one moderate weakness 
6 Very Good Strong but with numerous minor weaknesses 
7 Excellent Very strong with only some minor weaknesses 
8 Outstanding Extremely strong with negligible weaknesses 
9 Exceptional Exceptionally strong with essentially no weaknesses 

• Minor Weakness: an easily addressable weakness that does not substantially lessen impact 
• Moderate Weakness: a weakness that lessens impact 
• Major Weakness: a weakness that severely limits impact 

Non-numeric score options: 
• NR: not recommended for further consideration 
• DF: deferred 
• CF: conflict 
• NP: not present 
• ND: not discussed 

  



ALBHMF Funding Awards Matrix

Applicant Request Award % of request
$10,000 $10,000
$10,000 $10,000
$10,000 $10,000
$10,000 $10,000
$10,000 $10,000

100%

$10,000 $8,000
$10,000 $8,000
$10,000 $8,000
$10,000 $8,000
$10,000 $8,000

80%

$10,000 $6,000
$10,000 $6,000
$10,000 $6,000
$10,000 $6,000
$10,000 $6,000

$10,000 $4,000
$10,000 $4,000
$10,000 $4,000
$10,000 $4,000
$10,000 $4,000

$10,000 $2,000
$10,000 $2,000
$10,000 $2,000
$10,000 $2,000
$10,000 $2,000

$10,000 $0
$10,000 $0
$10,000 $0
$10,000 $0

TOTAL $290,000 $150,000
no award

60%

40%

20%



Definition of destitution/"basic human needs" Commission Priorities

Required application attachments 

(Nonprofit status letter, Charitable Trusts Registry status, BOT exemption, recent 

audit or financial statements, budget)

Grant Guidelines

Updated application questions; reduce redundancies Grant Application

Weighted scoring for application questions Evaluation Matrix

Predetermined funding levels/caps Awards Matrix

Review Community Needs Assessments February Meeting Commission Priorities

Determine Annual Funding Priorities May Meeting Commission Priorities

Determine Award Levels of Funding May Meeting Awards Matrix

Commissioner Review of Application Submissions October

Use of Evaluation Matrix to Score Applications October Evaluation  Matrix

November Presentations by Applicant Agencies; Commissioner Final Scores November Meeting Evaluation  Matrix

Scores Confirmed/Tallied into Awards Matrix November Meeting Awards Matrix

Review of Recommended Changes

Commission Documents

Commission Processes


	00-00 ALBH_11132019_Agenda
	General Conduct for the Public Attending Ann Land and Bertha Henschel Memorial Funds Commission Meetings
	 Members of the public attending commission meetings shall observe the same rules and decorum applicable to the Members and staff as noted in Chapters 3 and 4 of Council Rules of Procedure.
	 Stamping of feet, whistles, yells or shouting, physically threatening conduct, and/or similar demonstrations are unacceptable public behavior and will be prohibited by the Sergeant-at-Arms.
	 Lobbyists must identify themselves and the client(s), business, or organization they represent before speaking to the Committee.
	 Members of the public wishing to provide documents to the Committee shall comply with Rule 7D of the Council Rules of Procedure.

	Members of the Public Addressing the Ann Land and Bertha Henschel Memorial Funds Commission
	AGENDA
	New City Hall, 1st Floor – Council Chambers
	Open Session – 9:00 a.m.
	Discussion Calendar   Estimated Time:  4 hours
	Discussion calendar items include an oral presentation including those recommending “receive and file”.
	Public Comments - Matters Not on the Agenda
	Commission Comments, Questions, and Ideas
	Adjournment

	01-01 Approval of Minutes
	01-02 ALBH_08212019_Minutes
	Meeting Minutes of the
	Open Session – 4:07 p.m.
	Consent Calendar
	Discussion Calendar

	Public Comments - Matters Not on the Agenda
	Commission Comments, Questions, and Ideas
	Adjournment

	02-01 Site Visit Reports
	02-02 Site Visit Reports (January - June 2019)
	ACC Senior Services 2019
	REIMAGINE Mack Road Foundation 2019
	Repairing the Breach Neighborhood Project 2019
	ALBH Site Visits_RoundII_MacIntosh 1.pdf
	ALBH Site Visits_RoundII_MacIntosh 2.pdf
	ALBH Site Visits_RoundII_MacIntosh 3.pdf

	River City Food Bank 2019
	Sacramento LGBT Community Center 2019
	Sacramento Self Help Housing 2019
	Saint John's Program for Real Change 2019
	Stanford Settlement Neighborhood Center 2019
	The Salvation Army 2019
	Wellspring Women's Center 2019
	Women's Empowerment 2019

	03-01 Approve 2020 Commission Meeting Calendar
	03-02 2020 Commission Meeting Calendar
	Sheet1

	04-01 Highlights of City Treasurer's Annual Report and 2020 Funding Recommendations
	04-02 ALBH Endowment Fund Annual Investment Report
	Cover Page
	Table of Contents
	Introduction, Strategy & Objectives
	Portfolio Summary
	Portfolio Appraisal
	Performance History
	Performance By Asset Class @ Market
	Performance By Asset Class @ Cost
	Purchases/Sales and Gains/Losses

	05-01 2020 Funding Allocations
	05-02 Funds Requested by Services
	Requested by Services

	05-03 Funding History
	Funding History

	05-04 2020 Funding Applications
	ALBH 2020 Complete Apps CL
	2020 Complete Applications
	Alchemist CDC 2020
	00-Grant_Application
	01-Program Description
	02-Board
	03-Org Chart
	04-501c3
	05-AG Reg Status
	06-City Tax
	07-FIN
	Alchemist CDC 2017 financials and audit explanation
	Audited financial explanation

	2017 Profit & Loss signed
	2017 Profit & Loss
	Profit & Loss sig page

	2017 Balance Sheet signed
	2017 Balance Sheet
	Balance Sheet sig page


	08-Budget

	City of Refuge 2020
	00-Grant_Application
	01-Program Description
	02-Board
	03-Org Chart
	04-501c3
	05-AG Reg Status
	06-City Tax
	07-FIN
	08-Budget

	Community Against Sexual Harm 2020
	00-Grant_Application
	01-Program Description
	02-Board
	03-Org Chart
	04-501c3
	05-AG Reg Status
	06-City Tax
	07-FIN
	08-Budget
	Sheet1


	GRID Alternatives North Valley 2020
	00-ALBH_Grant_Application
	01-Program Description
	02-Board List
	03-Org Chart
	04-501c3
	05-AG Reg Status
	06-City Tax Ltr
	07-Financials
	08-Budget

	Know Corporation 2020
	00-ALBH_Grant_Application
	01-Program Description
	02-Board List
	03-Org Chart
	04-501c3
	05-AG Reg Status
	06-City Tax Ltr
	07-Financials
	08-Budget

	Middle Way Health Foundation 2020
	00-Grant_Application
	01-Program Description
	02-Board
	03-Org Chart
	04-501c3
	05-AG Reg Status Correct
	05-AG Reg Status
	06-City Tax
	07-FIN
	08-Budget

	My Sister's House 2020
	00-Grant_Application
	01-Program Description
	02-Board
	03-Org Chart
	3.2 2019-2020 MSH STAFF Organizational Chart updated 101719.pdf
	3.pdf

	04-501c3
	05-AG Reg Status
	06-City Tax
	07-FIN
	08-Budget
	ANN LAND AND BERTHA HENSCHEL MEMORIAL FUND 2020 GRANT BUDGET


	NeighborWorks Sacramento 2020
	00-Grant Application
	01-Program Description
	02-Board
	03-Org Chart
	04-501c3
	05-AG Reg Status Correct
	05-AG Reg Status
	06-City Tax
	07-FIN
	08-Budget

	Next Move Homeless Services 2020
	00-Grant_Application
	01-Program Description
	02-Board
	03-Org Chart
	Nest Move Homeless Services Organization Chart

	04-501c3
	05-AG Reg Status
	06-City Tax
	07-FIN
	08-Budget
	Sheet1


	ReIMAGINE Mack Road Foundation 2020
	00-Grant_Applicaiton
	01-Program Description
	The 2017 American Community Survey (U.S. Census Bureau) provides a 5-year estimate of the 95823 zip code, which includes the Mack Road, Valley Hi, Center Pkwy neighborhoods served by RMRF.  Survey data indicates that of the 23,326 children under 18 yr...

	02-Board
	03-Org Chart
	04-501c3
	05-AG Reg Status
	06-City Tax
	07-FIN
	08-Budget

	Repairing the Breach Neighborhood Project 2020
	00-Grant_Application
	01-Program Description
	02-Board
	03-Org Chart
	04-501c3
	05-AG Reg Status Correct
	05-AG Reg Status
	06-City Tax
	07-FIN
	08-Budget

	Sacramento Food Bank & Family Services 2020
	00-Grant_Application
	01-Program Description
	02-Board List
	03-Org Chart
	04-501c3
	05-AG Reg Status
	06-City Tax Ltr
	07-Financials
	08-Budget

	Sacramento LGBT Community Center 2020
	00-Grant Application
	01-Program Description
	02-Board List
	03-Org Chart
	04-501c3
	05-AG Reg Status Correct
	05-AG Reg Status
	06-City Tax Ltr
	07-FIN
	08-Budget

	Sacramento Loaves & Fishes 2020
	00-Grant_Application
	01-Program Description
	02-Board
	In an environment of welcome, hospitality, safety, and cleanliness, we seek to provide an oasis for homeless men, women and children seeking survival services

	03-Org Chart
	04-501c3
	05-AG Reg Status Correct
	05-AG Reg Status
	Page 1
	Page 2

	06-City Tax
	Page 1

	07-Financials
	08-Budget
	Table 1


	Sacramento Self Help Housing 2020
	00-ALBH_Grant_Application
	01-Program Description
	02-Board List
	03-Org Chart
	04-501c3
	05-AG Reg Status correct
	05-AG Reg Status
	06-City Tax Ltr
	07-FIN
	08-Budget

	Stanford Settlement Neighborhood Center 2020
	00-Grant_Application
	01-Program Description
	02-Board
	03-Org Chart
	04-501c3
	05-AG Reg Status Correct
	05-AG Reg Status
	06-City Tax
	07-FIN
	08-Budget

	The Salvation Army 2020
	00-Grant_Application
	01-Program Description
	02-Board
	03-Org Chart
	04-501c3
	05-AG Reg Status
	06-City Tax
	07-Financials
	08-Budget

	Travelers Aid Emergency Assistance Agency 2020
	00-Grant_Application
	01-Program Description
	02-Board
	Executive Director-Interim

	03-Org Chart
	TRAVELERS AID EMERGENCY ASSISTANCE AGENCY

	04-501c3
	05-AG Reg Status Correct
	05-AG Reg Status
	06-City Tax
	07-FIN
	---FIN DOC for Travelers Aid Emergency Assistance Agency.pdf
	TAEAA Financials_2019.pdf

	08-Budget

	Women Escaping A Violent Environment 2020
	01-ALBH_Grant_Application
	01-Program Description
	02-Board List
	03-Org Chart
	ORG CHART 10.15.19.vsdx
	All WEAVE


	04-501c3
	05-AG Reg Status
	06-City Tax Ltr
	07-Financials
	08-Budget

	Wellspring Women's Center 2020
	00-ALBH_Grant_Application
	01-Program Description
	02-Board List
	03-Org Chart
	04-501c3
	05-AG Reg Status Correct
	05-AG Reg Status
	06-City Tax Ltr
	07-Financials
	08-Budget

	Women's Civic Improvement Club 2020
	00-Grant Application
	01-Project Description
	02-Board
	03-Org Chart
	04-501c3
	05-AG Reg Status
	06-City Tax
	07-FIN
	08-Budget

	Women's Empowerment 2020
	00-ALBH_Grant Application
	01-Program Description
	02-Board List
	03-Org Chart
	04-501c3
	05-AG Reg Status
	06-City Tax Ltr
	07_01-Second Fin
	07-Financials
	08-Budget


	2020 Incomplete Apps as of 11.6.19.pdf
	2020 Incomplete Apps 11.6.19.pdf
	ALBH 2020 Incomplete Apps CL

	ACC Senior Services 2020.pdf
	00 -01Notification of Incomplete Application
	00-Grant_Application
	01-Program Description
	02-Board List
	03-Org Chart
	04-501c3
	05-AG Reg Status Correct
	05-AG Reg Status
	06-City Tax Correct
	06-City Tax
	07-Financials
	08-Budget

	Active 20-30 Club of Greater Sacramento 2020.pdf
	00 -01Notification of Incomplete Application
	00-Grant_Application
	01-Program Description
	02-Board
	03-Org Chart
	04-501c3
	05-AG Reg Status Correct
	05-AG Reg Status Updated 11.7.19
	05-AG Reg Status
	07-FIN
	Oct 2019 Scholarship Board Budget.pdf
	Oct 2019 Benevolent Board Budget.pdf

	08-Budget

	First Step Communities 2020.pdf
	00 01 Notification of Incomplete Application
	00-Grant_Application
	01-Program Description
	02-Board
	03-Org Chart
	04-501c3
	05-AG Reg Status Correct
	05-AG Reg Status Updated 11.6.19
	05-AG Reg Status
	06-City Tax
	07-FIN
	FSC_ALBH_Finacial letter_2020 submision.pdf
	---FIN DOC for First Step Communities 10.28.19.pdf

	08-Budget

	Fresher Sacramento 2020.pdf
	00 01 Notification of Incomplete Application
	00-Grant_Application
	01-Program Description
	02-Board
	03-Org Chart
	04-501c3
	05-AG Reg Status
	06-City Tax
	08-Budget

	Mercy Pedalers Inc 2020.pdf
	00 01 Notification of Incomplete Application
	00-Grant_Application
	01-Project Description
	02-Board
	03-Org Chart
	04-501c3
	05-AG Reg Status Correct
	08-Budget

	River City Food Bank 2020.pdf
	00 01 Notification of Incomplete Application
	00-Grant_Application
	01-Program Description
	02-Board
	03-Org Chart
	04-501c3
	05-AG Reg Status Correct
	05-AG Reg Status
	06-City Tax Correct
	06-City Tax
	07-Financials updated 11.6.19
	RCFB Letter from Treasurer_11.5.19.pdf
	RCFB-FinancialStatements-Dec2018.pdf
	RCFB-FinancialStatements-Dec2018.pdf
	SoA
	SFP

	RCFB-FinancialStatementsLetterhead-Dec2018.pdf


	07-Financials
	08-Budget

	Saint John's Program for Real Change 2020.pdf
	00 01 Notification of Incomplete Application
	00-Grant_Application
	01-Program Description
	02-Board List
	03-Org Chart
	Organizational Chart �September 2019

	04-501c3
	05-AG Reg Status Correct
	06-City Tax
	07-FIN
	08-Budget

	South Sacramento Christian Center 2020.pdf
	00 01 Notification of Incomplete Application
	00-ALBH_Grant_Application
	01-Program Description
	02-Board updated 11.6.19
	03-Org Chart
	04-501c3
	05-AG Reg Status Correct
	06-City Tax
	07-FIN updated 11.6.19
	07-Financials
	Audit Exemption Ltr 2020.pdf
	SSCC Profit and Loss Budget 2017.pdf

	08-Budget

	South Sacramento Interfaith Partnership Food Closet 2020.pdf
	00-Grant_Application
	01-Program Description
	02-Board
	03-Org Chart
	04-501c3
	05-AG Reg Status
	06-City Tax
	07-FIN
	08-Budget
	Sheet1


	UC Davis Health Division Cardiology Heart Failure 2020.pdf
	00 01 Notice of Incomplete Application
	00-Grant_Application
	01-Program Description
	02-Board List
	03-Org Chart
	04-501c3
	05-AG Reg Status
	07-FIN
	08-Budget



	06-01 Revisions to Annual Funding Process
	06-02 Recommended New Grant Funding Documents
	ALBH Commission Priorities.draft 10.2019
	Ann Land and Bertha Henschel Memorial Fund Commission
	Commission Priorities
	Strategic Priorities
	Annual Funding Priorities
	Target Population


	Grant Guidelines and Application draft 10.2019
	Funds Available
	Public Documents
	Authorized Uses
	Other Important Notes
	For More Information
	2020 Ann Land & Bertha Henschel Memorial Fund Online Grant Application

	Grant Evaluation Matrix.draft 10.2019
	Funding Awards Matrix.draft 10.2019
	Sheet1


	06-03 Recommendations for New Grant Funding Procedures

	Date of Visit: 9/20/2019
	1: All of the funds are used in their transportation programs. They have a number of cars and vans used to transport very-low-income seniors to and from meal sites that are served by Meals on Wheels. In addition, they transport seniors from low income senior housing to grocery stores to do their grocery shopping. They also provide transportation to medical appointments. 
	2: Applicants for these services are initially screened over the phone, they they fill out a form that requests income information. They focus on seniors who live in low income housing such as SRHA/SRAB housing who don't have their own transportation.  
	sources: They get funding from Area 4 Agency on Aging, Cal Trans programs help them to purchase the vans that they own, and provide some funding for drivers. Paratransit provides funds for vehicle maintenance. The Independent Transportation Network of America provides a grant to be used to transport eligible individuals to eye doctor appointments. The Sacramento Area Council of Governments (SACOG) provides funding specifically for medical and dialysis appointments. 
	make to improve the annual funding process: The application and funding process are straight forward and not at all burdensome. Recommend doing the funding presentations in some type of random order. Last year's reverse-alpha order was good for organizations that are always last, which was a step in the right direction.They would like for us to develop some kind of rating system so they better understand our granting process.  
	Date of Visit_6: 9/18/19
	1_6: The funds are spent on food to serve the children and youth who attend the program.  A portion is allocated to cover the cost of meals for the annual Sacramento Summer Night Lights (SSNL) programs.  During this community event, they work in conjunction with a local school district to provide “supper” through the Family and Adult Nutrition program.  Meals for children up to 18 years old are free under this program.  Meals for adults are $3.50 per meal. ReImagine Mack Road Foundation allocated a portion of the food dollars in the grant application to cover this cost.  The summer of 2019 they served 1255 low income adults and seniors. 285 of those meals were paid for with ALBH grant funding.
	2_6: The target population is children and youth.  Outside of some transitional age youth (TAY), they do not directly serve homeless adults in the program.  They do, however, serve homeless youth, children living in foster situations, and children and youth from low income. Here is a snapshot description of the community and target population they serve:The 2017 American Community Survey (U.S. Census Bureau) provides a 5-year estimate of the 95823 zip code, which includes the Mack Road, Valley Hi, Center Pkwy neighborhoods served by RMRF.  Survey data indicates that of the 23,326 children under 18 yrs. living in the 95823 for which poverty status was determined, 36.7% live in households with income below the poverty line & 63.3% in households on or above; 50.7% live in households supported by SSI, cash public assistance income, or SNAP benefits with 72.3% in female head-of households. The kids that are served by the Mack Road Partnership live in the 95823 zip code; in the homes in the Mack Road, Valley Hi, and Center Parkway neighborhoods, including many who reside in any of 7 large, low-income, apartment communities along the Mack Road corridor.
	sources_6: ALBH is the only grant that is used exclusively for food dollars.  ReImagine Mack Road Foundation has a 2019 grant with the County of Sacramento through the office of Supervisor Kennedy that covers other program costs.  They are allowed to allocate some food costs for the children/youth they serve under this grant. They primarily use this grant to “keep the doors open”.  It is the main resource for operational costs of running the Community Center, keeping the doors open and paying for a staff person.  This ensures the kids have a safe place to be and a place where they can receive hot food and healthy snacks.  Currently, they have about $409.00 remaining in the ALBH grant and will utilize this other funding to help cover food costs to ensure no child leaves hungry once ALBH food dollars are exhausted.Recently, the RMRF connected with the United Way and will be able to receive “Supper”, which is an evening meal service, through a Federal Family and Adult Nutrition program.  This would be in-kind, while school is in session.  This grant will cover 5 days per week.  If this pending application is accepted, this will help provide another resource to feed hungry children and youth in our community.  
	make to improve the annual funding process_6: As per Marilyn Mann, the funding process is not necessarily burdensome; unless you have to get a new exemption/permit to do business from the City, although non-profits don’t sell anything.  Is that required every year? As a matter of feedback:  Those at the front desk taking the application and answering questions do not always have the correct information, which creates confusion.  Last year was my first year submitting a proposal for ALBH.  Long story short, I had bad information, which led to an error in the paperwork submitted, a delay in sending in the form I had all along, which was the correct form BTW, which I was told was NOT in fact the right form.  This made my application “late” reduced our ability to be fully funded at the original request.  That was a tough one.
	Date of Visit_7: July 12, 2019
	1_7: Approximately 95 percent of the ALBHM Fund dollars are spent purchasing food from Sacramento Food Bank. The remaining 5 percent is used to buy paper and plastic bags used by the participants to take the food with themd.
	2_7: On the application, guests are asked if they are homeless. During the time they are signing in, they are also asked if they have a way to cook food. 
	sources_7: The church which houses the food closet, St. John's Missionary Baptist Church, includes some annual funding for the food closet. An east coast organization also recently established a link between Repairing the Breach and several local fast food establishments (including Starbucks) that wish to donate leftover food at the end of the day.
	make to improve the annual funding process_7: The application process has been fine for them in the past. They are, however, looking forward to learning more about potential future changes to the application process.
	Date of Visit_8: 09/19/2019
	1_8: Funds are used to help feed the hungry, homeless and poverty stricken families and individuals of Sacramento; providing them with healthy and nutritious food options. Upon arriving to the facility I witnessed a line out the door, filled with people who don't know where their next meal will come from. Some of which might have gone days without a sufficient meal in their belly. I also witnessed mothers and families who came in with their kids looking to have them be fed. In 2018 River City Food Bank served 41,092 Adults, 12,153 seniors and 21,039 children; these figures are in Sacramento alone and does not include some of the other programs offered. Objectively, River City Food Bank's mission aligns perfectly with the commission's, to help the destitute men, woman, and children of Sacramento. From my observation River City Food Bank desperately needs the support of our commission to continue their fight against the food insecurity that the residents of Sacramento face every day.  
	2_8: They are identified through a registration and application process, which involves income and public assistance eligibility questions.
	sources_8: There are other funders for these services, only change is that the need is continuously growing year after year and the amount of funding has not been able to keep up with the need. 
	make to improve the annual funding process_8: Application process is one of the more convenient ones in comparison to others. 
	Date of Visit_11: 9/19/2019
	1_11: The grant funds are used to purchase food for the organization's drop-in center. At this time, this is the ONLY funding for food at the center. Individuals come to their drop in center who are experiencing homelessness, at risk of homelessness, or from food-insecure low income families. The drop in center is open 7 days a week, 12-6 PM and food is available, along with other resources. 
	2_11: The drop in center serves 13-24 year olds. The center does outreach to high schools and community colleges in the area. There is an intake process that happens on an individual's first visit that identifies their needs. After intake, individuals sign in to receive services and food. The center's focus is harm reduction, helping provide food and resources.
	sources_11: ALBH is the only grant they receive specifically for food. The center receives funding for their mental health services through Sacramento County, and individuals in the community may bring in food as well, but they have no other source of money to purchase food. 
	make to improve the annual funding process_11: The funding process was simple and straight-forward. This was their first time going through it, and they felt it was fair, and they are happy to have the funds.  
	Date of Visit_14: August 13. 2019
	1_14: The ALBHM Fund dollars are primarily used to cover the costs associated with the training and support of their housing assistance volunteers.
	2_14: The primary source of referrals for this program comes from Loaves and Fishes. The clients of Loaves and Fishes self-identify as homeless.
	sources_14: At this time, the only funding available to support the housing outreach program at Friendship Park (within Loaves and Fishes) is supplied by the ALBHM Fund.
	make to improve the annual funding process_14: They do not find the application process burdensome, but find the required presentation at the annual meeting to be "unique."
	Date of Visit_15: 9/17/2019
	1_15: The funds are used for food. Their total expense to feed 3 meals per day to 270 women and children residents is $313,000 per year. Our funds represent about 3% of their total food budget.
	2_15: They serve 270 formerly homeless women and children in a residential setting. They have a waiting list of approximately 250. Individuals seek out St. John's through friends, other charities, treatment programs, all through word-of-mouth. They have an application and screening process that is used. 100% are homeless. 
	sources_15: They get funds through the State Child and Adult Care Food Program, Sprouts Community Foundation, and the United Way Emergency Food and Shelter Program. They also receive donations from a number of community based charities and foundations. Local companies also come in to sponsor and prepare meals. These sources have remained consistent. 
	make to improve the annual funding process_15: Increased funding availability would be good!  This was Ms. Cawdrey's first experience with the commission and she felt that the application and funding process was fairly simple, which is wonderful!  
	Date of Visit_17: 9/20/2019
	1_17: The funds help to provide food for their teen and after-school programs. During the school year, they serve children and teens from 3:30 to 7 PM. A full hot meal is served each day, and for many of the children they serve, it is the only hot meal they get all day.  During the summer, the center is open 12:30 to 5 PM, and the food provided is more like lunch and snacks.  
	2_17: For children to participate, a parent has to come in and fill out paperwork to sign them up, including reporting their income level. The sign-up process has to be repeated each year. Children must live in the center's service area, zip codes 95815, 95833, 95834, 95835 and 95838. The vast majority come from 95815 and 95833. The center is located in 95833 and 95815 is very close by. The neighborhood where the center is located has a high percentage of low income households.  During the summertime, their programs include field trips, swimming and other off-property activities. Parents pay on a sliding scale during the summer programs. 
	sources_17: Other funding for food is provided by the Smart and Final Foundation, the local Soroptimist Club, and the Rotary Club of Natomas. They also receive some individual donations.  
	make to improve the annual funding process_17: The process is simple and straightforward. The timing of the payments works out well for them.  Not sure what the criteria is for a "successful" grant-funded program. The funding process seems very subjective. She would like to see a more transparent process with more clear criteria used to evaluate the applications.Also, suggests putting all names in a bowl and picking non-profits in random order, so no one can complain about always being first or last. The "reverse alpha" order used last November was a good change, but random order might appear more fair.  The annual funding meeting also provides an opportunity for her to hear about other programs in the city and to interact with other program directors. 
	Date of Visit_18: 09/18/2019 
	1_18: This devision of the Salvation Army, is an after school program for underprivileged kids and teens, in the Sacramento area. Primarily supporting Capitol Heights Academy and PS7 Middle School. The grant funds are used to feed children who attend this program. The snacks and meals average around 300/ week, including two meals during Summer Day Camp, over 15,000 meals from August through July annually. On my visit I was given a tour of the different programs and classes that are offered. I was also shown the food and drinks that the fund assets are used towards. I was pleased to see that a majority of the food and snacks being provided was healthy and nutritious. Jo Anne mentioned how this was such a valuable program for the kids in the area and the positive impact it has had in their lives.upon meeting a few of the kids, I was pleased to see that the kids were enjoying their time and their level of maturity was above average, in my opinion. 
	2_18: they are identified through the school along with a an application process. The application includes complete data relevant to household incomes and public assistance.
	sources_18: CACFP [ California Child and Adult Food Program] supports students and reimburses a percentage of their daily snacks for those identified as Free/Reduced Lunch Candidates. Our fund covers the gap and deficit that CACFP does not cover. 
	make to improve the annual funding process_18: Seamless, concise and direct application process. 
	Date of Visit_20: 9/23/19
	1_20: The ALBH funds are spent on Regional Transit one-way transit tickets.  These tickets are purchased 1/2 price through a partnership with Next Move. Women are given 2 tickets every other week for Regional Transit and are then used for essential travel; doctors appointments, grocery store, school, etc...
	2_20: This is the definition of the majority of who they serve. 78% report less than $5,000.00 annual income.  37% report homelessness, while another 24% report transitory non-permanent housing situations. 
	sources_20: Wellspring Women's Center always seek additional funding for RT passes, but at this point they only have ALBH.  They have reduced their overall budget due to a change in the bequest donation policy.  Next Move also increased their processing fee to 5% on RT pass orders.
	make to improve the annual funding process_20: No, especially compared to their funding application.  Recommendations is to keep the process straightforward - as is.
	Date of Visit_23: 9/23/19
	1_23: The ALBH funds are used for the following areas:*Food (breakfast and lunch), healthy snacks, formula, diapers, and other essential items for the children of the women who are going through the Empowerment and Job Readiness Program.  The children are anywhere between 0-13 years of age.  Approximately 15-20 kids per day.  *Transportation assistance, bus passes, and transportation reimbursement*Nutrition and cooking classes for the women going through the 9-week program
	2_23: The majority of women that come through their front door are homeless.  They are not only homeless, 85% are homeless and raising children.  These women are escaping domestic violence, looking for work, and/or struggling with an addiction.  To start the Empowerment and Job Readiness Program the women must be clean, sober and non-violent.   
	sources_23: Soroptimist International of Greater Sacramento also helps with transportation costs.  Save Mart Cares Foundation and Kaiser Permanente provide funds as well.  
	undefined: The first year was a learning process, but moving forward it should be easier.  Please keep the application form simple and straightforward.  


